
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Cabinet Date: 

 
21 October 2015 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824712589 

 e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held at 10.00 am on TUESDAY, 
27 OCTOBER 2015 in CONFERENCE ROOM 1A, COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 
THE MEETING 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting.   
 

3 URGENT MATTERS   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972.   
 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 14) 

 To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 29 September 2015   
(copy enclosed).   
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

5 PROPOSAL TO CLOSE YSGOL LLANFAIR DC AND YSGOL 
PENTRECELYN AS OF THE 31 AUGUST 2017 AND FOR THE DIOCESE 
OF ST. ASAPH TO OPEN A NEW DUAL-STREAM CATEGORY 2, 
CHURCH IN WALES VOLUNTARY CONTROLLED PRIMARY SCHOOL 
FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  (Pages 15 - 210) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
(copy enclosed) presenting the objection report for consideration and seeking 
Cabinet approval to implement the proposal. 
 

6 PROPOSED CLOSURE OF YSGOL LLANBEDR DC  (Pages 211 - 378) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
presenting the findings of the formal consultation and seeking Cabinet 
approval to the publication of a statutory notice on the proposal to close Ysgol 
Llanbedr DC as of 31 August 2016 with existing pupils transferring to Ysgol 
Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 
 

7 DRAFT LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 
2015: LACK OF A 5-YEAR SUPPLY OF READILY DEVELOPABLE 
HOUSING LAND  (Pages 379 - 452) 

 To consider a report by Councillor David Smith, Lead Member for Public 
Realm (copy enclosed) presenting the draft LDP Annual Monitoring Report 
and highlighting the lack of a 5-year supply of readily developable housing 
land. 
 

8 FINANCE REPORT  (Pages 453 - 470) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance, Corporate Plan and Performance (copy enclosed) detailing the 
latest financial position and progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 

9 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 471 - 474) 

 To receive the enclosed Cabinet Forward Work Programme and note the 
contents.   
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Hugh Evans 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Eryl Williams 
Bobby Feeley 
 

Hugh Irving 
Huw Jones 
Barbara Smith 
David Smith 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 



 

 

All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for 
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which 
has made an application for financial assistance’. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held in Conference Room 1a, County Hall, Ruthin on 
Tuesday, 29 September 2015 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Hugh Evans, Leader and Lead Member for the Economy; Bobby Feeley, 
Lead Member for Social Care, Adult and Children's Services; Hugh Irving, Lead Member 
for Customers and Libraries; Huw Jones, Lead Member for Community Development; 
Barbara Smith, Lead Member for Modernisation and Housing; David Smith, Lead 
Member for Public Realm; Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for Finance, Corporate 
Plan and Performance and Eryl Williams, Deputy Leader and Lead Member for Education 
 
Observers:  Councillors Ray Bartley, Meirick Davies, Martyn Holland, Dewi Owens, 
Merfyn Parry and Huw Williams 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (MM); Corporate Directors: Economy and Public Realm (RM) and 
Communities (NS); Heads of Service: Legal, HR and Democratic Services (GW), 
Customers and Education Support (JW), Education (KE); Programme Manager (JC); 
Chief Accountant (RW), and Committee Administrator (KEJ) 

 
 

1 APOLOGIES  
 
There were no apologies. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
Councillor Martyn Holland declared a personal interest in agenda item 5 because 
he was a School Governor of Ysgol Bro Famau. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS  
 
No urgent matters had been raised. 
 

4 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 28 July 2015 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2015 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Leader. 
 

5 PROPOSAL TO CLOSE YSGOL RHEWL AS OF 31 AUGUST 2017 AND 
TRANSFER EXISTING PUPILS TO YSGOL PEN BARRAS, RUTHIN OR RHOS 
STREET SCHOOL, RUTHN SUBJECT TO PARENTAL PREFERENCE  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Councillor Eryl Williams presented the report detailing the objections received 
following publication of the Statutory Notice to close Ysgol Rhewl with pupils 
transferring to Ysgol Pen Barras or Rhos Street School subject to parental 
preference, together with factors to be considered prior to determining the proposal. 
 
The proposal for Ysgol Rhewl had been made in the context of the wider Ruthin 
area review taking into account the suitability and condition of school sites and 
surplus places and the impact on the long term sustainability of the school.  Cabinet 
was reminded that Performance Scrutiny Committee had recommended further 
work be undertaken during the consultation process to address concerns raised 
relating to the new Glasdir site and the Welsh Language offer.  The findings of that 
work had been included at Appendix D and E to the report.  Councillor Merfyn Parry 
(local member) raised concerns over the adequacy of that supplementary work in 
terms of consultation highlighting the lack of information provided by officers in 
order to inform meaningful debate at meetings and the difficulties in convening 
meetings due to the availability of key individuals.  He felt appropriate consultation 
had not been undertaken, adding that there had been no discussion whatsoever on 
the latest proposal to provide discretionary transport to the nearest category 2 
school.  Consequently Councillor Parry asked that the matter be deferred pending 
further consultation with stakeholders.  Cabinet sought assurances regarding the 
supplementary work as directed by scrutiny and officers reported upon a timetable 
of communication culminating in the findings as detailed in Appendix D and E to the 
report.  Cabinet considered the process of engagement to be robust and that 
sufficient information had been provided to enable a fully informed decision. 
 
Councillor Williams drew members’ attention to the report and statutory processes 
to be followed.  Cabinet considered the objections detailed within the report 
together with the arguments for the proposal and factors detailed in the School 
Organisation Code.  Members paid particular attention to issues raised relating to 
the new Glasdir site and Welsh Language impact as the main areas of concern – 
 
(1) Concerns relating to the new site at Glasdir 

 
Concerns had been raised regarding road safety and feasibility of the development. 
 
Two road safety assessments had been undertaken on 14/08/15 (school holiday) 
and 15/09/15 (school term) which found that the current route for pupils walking 
from Rhewl to Glasdir was not hazardous.  The assessment did not take into 
account any future development and Cabinet sought assurances as to the future 
safety of the route and ensuring appropriate traffic control measures were in place 
prior to the new schools’ opening.  The need to clarify the 30 mph speed limit for 
motorists travelling into Ruthin was also raised.  Officers provided assurances that 
route safety was a top priority which would be kept under close review.  Traffic and 
transport assessments would continue throughout the site development as 
circumstances changed to ensure any safety issues were identified. 
 
Regarding the feasibility of the development to accommodate pupils assurances 
were provided that proposed capacity of the two new schools would allow sufficient 
room for growth.  The proposal linked the transfer of pupils from Ysgol Rhewl to the 
new schools at Glasdir and pupils would not be expected to move twice in the event 

Page 8



of any delay in the site development process.  Cabinet agreed that the intention to 
transfer pupils to the new schools be made clear in the resolution. 
 
(2) Concerns relating to the impact on the Welsh Language offer 
 
Concerns had been raised that the current Welsh Language offer could not be 
replicated if pupils moved to either of the new schools.  Councillor Merfyn Parry 
reiterated those concerns and whilst noting the latest proposal to provide an option 
to transfer pupils to the nearest category 2 school he remained concerned about 
the lack of consultation and detail provided to test whether it was a robust option 
and he raised questions in that regard.  Cabinet also sought assurances that the 
three curriculum offers for pupils in terms of Welsh medium, English medium and 
dual stream settings provided at least equivalent standards and opportunities for 
progression in their current language medium. 
 
Officers responded to those issues as follows – 
 

 further context was provided to the current language offer in the area and the 
extent of Welsh Language delivered in a range of settings which demonstrated 
suitable alternative provision.  The current proposal allowed parents to choose 
three types of setting in order for pupils to maintain their current language 
medium – Welsh medium (Pen Barras), English medium (Rhos Street) and Dual 
stream (Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd).  As a result pupils would not be disadvantaged 
in terms of standards and opportunities for progression in their current language 
medium if the proposal was implemented 

 if Cabinet approved the proposal officers would discuss school preferences with 
parents and capacity would be built into the new Glasdir site schools and the 
proposals for the new area category 2 school.  Officers were confident that all 
three schools had capacity to accommodate parental preferences for pupils 
transferring from Ysgol Rhewl 

 with regard to the transport element for the category 2 school officers explained 
that the Home to School Transport Policy allowed for the provision of 
discretionary transport in cases of school closure.  Cabinet was advised that the 
Head of Education would look favourably upon applications made as a result of 
the closure of Ysgol Rhewl and confirmed that this discretion could be extended 
to siblings of existing pupils – members agreed that this element be further 
clarified as appropriate within their resolution. 

 
Councillor Williams moved the recommendation with amendments in order to clarify 
that the transfer of pupils would coincide with opening of the new school buildings 
and that applications for discretionary transport to the nearest category 2 school 
would also be considered from siblings of existing pupils.  Cabinet was satisfied that 
the proposal presented the best option to ensure a high standard of school 
provision for the future. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet – 
 
(a) note the findings of the objection report; 
 

Page 9



(b) following consideration of the above, Cabinet approve implementation of the 
proposal to close Ysgol Rhewl on the 31 August 2017 with existing pupils 
transferring to the new school building of Ysgol Pen Barras, Ruthin or Rhos 
Street School, Ruthin subject to parental preference, and 

 
(c) that applications for discretionary transport to the nearest category 2 school, 

be considered on a case by case by case basis, from existing pupils of Ysgol 
Rhewl and their siblings for the remainder of their primary education. 

 
At this juncture (10.55 a.m.) the meeting adjourned for a refreshment break. 
 

6 MODIFICATION TO YSGOL LLANFAIR AND YSGOL PENTRECELYN 
PROPOSAL  
 
Councillor Eryl Williams presented the report seeking Cabinet approval to consult 
on a change to the timescale of the proposed closure of Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn and the opening of a new area school. 
 
Formal consultation on the proposal had already been undertaken but following 
initial feasibility works for the new build it was recommended that implementation of 
the proposal be delayed by twelve months.  Consequently approval was sought to 
consult with the Diocese of St. Asaph, Governing Bodies of both schools and Welsh 
Ministers on the option that the two schools would close on 31 August 2017, rather 
than 2016, with the Church in Wales establishing a new area school on the existing 
sites on 1 September 2017, rather than 2016.  This modification would allow further 
time for the two schools to work closely together before amalgamation and could 
result in the area school being on separate sites for a shorter period.  If approved 
Cabinet would consider the findings of the consultation regarding the modification at 
its October meeting as part of the process of determining the proposal.  To comply 
with the requirements of the School Organisation Code it was recommended that 
the decision be implemented immediately. 
 
Cabinet noted the requirements set out in the School Organisation Code regarding 
such modifications.  As local member the Leader welcomed the proposal which he 
believed would create more stability in the community with a realistic timescale. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet approves the recommendations to – 
 
(a) consult with the Diocese of St. Asaph, as a joint proposer, to seek their 

consent to the proposed modification; 
 
(b) obtain the consent of the Welsh Ministers to the proposed modification; 
 
(c) consult with the governing bodies of Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn on 

the proposed modification, and 
 
(d) agrees that the recommendations be implemented immediately in 

accordance with the Council’s call in procedure rules contained in the 
constitution in light of the circumstances as set out within the report. 

 

Page 10



7 CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORT QUARTER 1 - 2015/16  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report providing an update on the 
delivery of the Corporate Plan 2012 – 17 as at the end of quarter 1 of 2015/16. 
 
The report included three main elements – 
 

 Corporate Plan 2012 – 17 – members’ attention was drawn to the analysis of 
key exceptions and an explanation behind the ‘Red’ status of each indicator had 
been included within the report and elaborated upon further at the meeting 

 National Strategic Indicators 2014/15 – an analysis had been provided of 
Denbighshire’s excellent performance against national indictors with 20 in the 
top half and 14 in the top quartile, Denbighshire also had the fewest number in 
the bottom half.  8 national indicators had declined in performance and an 
explanation behind the decline had also been provided 

 Corporate Project Register – there were no projects with a ‘Red’ status and only 
two projects with an ‘Orange’ status with all projects on track. 

 
During consideration of the report the following issues were raised – 
 

 Outcome 8: Residents and visitors to Denbighshire have access to a safe and 
well-managed road network – the indicator linked to outcome agreement funding 
would be removed in future when the funding was subsumed into the Revenue 
Support Grant.  It was anticipated that budget reductions would have an adverse 
impact and the need to keep this priority under close review was emphasised 

 National Strategic Indicator: SCC/002: Looked after children changing school – 
assurances were provided that this indicator continued to be closely monitored.  
Given the small cohort of children and valid reasons for school moves in all 
cases it was not considered a priority for improvement 

 Carbon Emissions – Councillor Thompson-Hill explained that information could 
not be produced at present due to a major issue with the new British Gas billing 
system which they were working to resolve.  It was considered appropriate to 
wait for the full data rather than reporting upon inaccurate partial data 

 Deficit School Places – it was explained that figures related to the number of 
schools who did not have enough places and there was a general imbalance in 
that schools in the North of the county tended to be oversubscribed with schools 
in the South having surplus places 

 Percentage of staff receiving a performance appraisal – this figure had 
decreased 17% to 67% compared to the same period last year and raised some 
concern.  Officers explained the decrease was due to staff reorganisations but 
the figure was expected to increase.  Performance for this indicator would be 
challenged as part of the service challenge process. 

 
Cabinet welcomed Denbighshire’s excellent performance in the National Strategic 
Indicators and their track record in that regard.  Whilst recognising it was still early 
in the process members were also pleased to note the good progress overall in 
delivering the Corporate Plan.  However it was noted that assumptions were still 
being made at this stage and it was too early to assess the impact of budget 
pressures on services.  A clearer picture would emerge later in the year. 
 

Page 11



In moving the recommendations Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill also 
acknowledged points raised by members which he would take on board. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet receives the report and notes the progress in delivering 
the Corporate Plan 2012 – 17 as at the end of quarter 1 of 2015/16. 
 

8 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2014/15  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report updating Cabinet on the 
performance of the treasury management function and demonstrating compliance 
with treasury limits and Prudential Indicators during 2014/15. 
 
In summarising the report Councillor Thompson-Hill referred to the economic 
background and subsequent impact on treasury management activities.  He 
highlighted the main points for members in terms of borrowing and investment 
activity including the Housing Revenue Subsidy buyout which would result in 
significant savings to the Housing Revenue Account and provided an update on the 
termination and buyout of the County Hall PFI agreement which was close to 
completion.  Recent changes to banks bail out arrangements had also led to 
changes in the Council’s investment activity to minimise risk.  All prudential 
indicators were as expected at this stage and there were no issues to report in that 
regard.  Corporate Governance Committee had considered the report and found no 
issues which warranted further investigation.  The Chief Accountant added an 
overview of current economic indicators and risk implications of treasury decisions 
and strategies used to manage those risks. 
 
RESOLVED that the Annual Treasury Management Report for 2014/15 be noted. 
 

9 FINANCE REPORT  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report detailing the latest financial 
position and progress against the agreed budget strategy.  He provided a summary 
of the Council’s financial position as follows – 
 

 a net under spend of £0.380m was forecast for service and corporate budgets 

 74% of agreed savings had been achieved to date (target £7.3m) 

 highlighted key variances from budgets or savings targets relating to individual 
service areas, and 

 a general update on the Housing Revenue Account, Housing Capital Plan and 
the Capital Plan (including the Corporate Plan element). 

 
The following matters were raised during debate – 
 

 members were pleased to note that 74% of savings had been achieved at such 
an early stage in the financial year and Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill and the 
finance team were congratulated on their work and progress made 

 there was some discussion regarding the merits of subsidising car parking 
charges by town councils and Councillor David Smith (Lead Member) advised 
that the situation was under regular review 

Page 12



 questions were raised regarding the impact of introducing charges at Rhyl Drift 
Park and Councillor Huw Jones (Lead Member) confirmed that despite poor 
weather £20k income had been taken and savings had been achieved – whilst 
visitors had been content to pay charges there was still some local opposition 

 in response to assurances sought regarding delivery of the Corporate Plan the 
Chief Accountant reported upon ongoing work to update the latest assumptions 
and it was agreed to receive a report back on the issue in November. 

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet notes the budgets set for 2015/16 and progress against 
the agreed budget strategy. 
 

10 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Councillor Hugh Evans presented the Cabinet Forward Work Programme for 
consideration and members noted an additional item for November on delivery of 
the Corporate Plan as agreed under the previous agenda item. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet’s Forward Work Programme be noted. 
 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the Press and 
Public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds 
that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 of 
Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
11 YSGOL GLAN CLWYD: CONTRACT AWARD  

 
Councillor Eryl Williams presented the confidential report seeking authorisation to 
proceed with the construction and subsequent completion of the Ysgol Glan Clwyd 
Project via a Contract Award.  The construction project included a new extension 
and partial demolition, remodelling and refurbishment of existing buildings. 
 
Cabinet welcomed the positive project which demonstrated the Council’s 
commitment to investing in schools and members were keen for the project details 
to be made public.  The Programme Manager reported upon the subsequent 
publicity drive in order to maximise the positive elements of the project via press 
releases, events and leaflet drop.  In terms of the financing further details were 
provided and assurances given that the project was fully funded. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet approve the award of a contract related to the Ysgol Glan 
Clwyd project to the named contractor and to the provisional value as specified 
within the report. 
 
The meeting concluded at 12.10 p.m. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
Report To:    Cabinet Report 
 
Date of Meeting:   27th October 2015 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Eryl Williams  
 
Report Author:  Head of Customers and Education Support 
 
Title:  Proposal to close Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol 

Pentrecelyn as of the 31st of August 2017 and for the 
Diocese of St.Asaph to open a new dual-stream 
Category 2, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled 
primary school from 1st September 2017. 

 

 
 
1. What is the report about?  
 
1.1 This report is to advise Cabinet of the process that is required to be followed 

as a consequence of the conclusion of the Statutory Notice period which 
would allow a determination to be made on the proposal. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 
2.1 Following the completion of a period of Statutory Notice, a decision is required 

on whether to proceed to implement the proposal to close Ysgol Llanfair and 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn on the 31st of August 2016 and for the Diocese of St.Asaph 
to open a new dual-stream Category 2, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled 
primary school from 1st September 2016, initially from the 2 current school 
sites of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. The Second phase would 
see the area school consolidated on a new site in the Llanfair/ Pentreceyln 
area, subject to land availability and suitability.  
 

2.2 At the Cabinet meeting in September, Cabinet agreed that we could consult 
with the Diocese, the 2 governing bodies of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn and the Welsh Government to look at modifying the proposal in 
regards to the date of implementation; both schools to close on the 31st 
August 2017, rather than 2016, and the new area school to open from 1st 
September 2017, rather than 2016.  
 
 

3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

The recommendations for Cabinet are:- 
 

(i) To consider the findings of the objections report, 
 

(ii) Subject to consideration of the above, to approve implementation of the 
proposal and the proposed modification to close Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 

  

Pentrecelyn on the 31st August 2017 and the Diocese of St.Asaph to open a 
new dual-stream Category 2, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled primary 
school from the 1st September 2017, 
 

(iii) That applications for discretionary transport to the nearest category 1 school, 
be considered on a case by case basis, from existing pupils and siblings of 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn for the remainder of their Primary education following the 
closure of the school( as of the 1st September 2017) 

 
4. Report details. 
 
4.1 The Council published a Statutory Notice on the 18th of June 2015 notifying 

stakeholders of the intention to close Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn on 
the 31st of August 2016. The 28 day statutory notice period came to an end on 
the 15th of July 2015. 

 
4.2  In line with the requirements of the new school organisation code 

(http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/school-
organisation-code/?lang=en0), the proposals were published on Denbighshire 
County Council’s website and near the main entrance to the existing schools 
which are subject of the proposal. 

  Each school subject to the proposals were provided with copies of the notice 
to distribute to pupils, parents carers and guardians, and staff members (the 
schools may distribute the notice by email); 

 
4.3.  On the day that the proposals were published, the consultees listed in 

Appendix 2 received either a hard copy of the proposals or were emailed a link 
to the relevant website. 

 
4.4  All objections submitted during the notice period had to be made in writing or 

by email. At the end of the consultation period on the 15th July 2015 the 
Council had received 30 individual objections from members of the 
Community.   

 
Process 

 
4.5 In determining proposals the School Organisation Code states decision 

makers: 

 must consider whether there are any other related proposals; 

 must ensure that the statutory consultation has been conducted in 
accordance with this Code; 
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/s
chool-organisation-code/?lang=en 

 must ensure that the proposal has been published in accordance 
with this Code and the notice contains all the required information; 

 must consider the consultation document and consultation report; 

 must consider the objections and the objection report and any 
responses to the notice supporting the proposals; 

 

Page 16

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/school-organisation-code/?lang=en0
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/school-organisation-code/?lang=en0
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/school-organisation-code/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/school-organisation-code/?lang=en


 

  

4.6 Under section 54 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 2013 Act 
where proposals have been approved or rejected by a local authority the 
following bodies may within 28 days refer the proposal to the Welsh Minister 
for consideration: 

o Another local authority affected by the proposals, 
o The appropriate religious body for any school affected, 
o The governing body of a voluntary or foundation school subject to the 

proposals, 
o A trust holding property of a voluntary or foundation school subject to 

the proposals, 
o A further education institution affected by the proposals. 

 
4.7 The School Organisation Code clearly states that “where a local authority’s 

proposals have received objections, and require determination under section 
53 of the 2013 Act, the local authority must not approach the determination of 
these proposals with a closed mind. Objections must be conscientiously 
considered alongside the arguments in respect of the proposals and in the 
light of the factors set out in section 1.3 – 1.14 of this Code.” 

 
4.8 In considering the proposal Cabinet should take into account the factors 

highlighted within the code which include quality and standards in education, 
need for places and the impact on accessibility of schools, resourcing of 
education and other financial implications as detailed in the School 
Organisation Code.  Appendix 1, the Determination Report provides Cabinet 
with a summary of the factors to be considered prior to determining any 
proposal. 

 
4.9 In addition, in accordance with the 2013 Act Cabinet are required to give full 

consideration to the objections received by the Community to the proposal.  
The objections have been collated into an Objection Report which details the 
objections received and the response of the local authority to these concerns. 
This is attached as Appendix 3. 

 
 Proposed Modification 
 
4.10 At the Cabinet meeting in September, Cabinet agreed that we could consult 

with the Diocese, the 2 governing bodies of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn and the Welsh Government to look at modifying the proposal in 
regards to the date of implementation; both schools to close on the 31st August 
2017, rather than 2016, and the new area school to open from 1st September 
2017, rather than 2016.  The Diocese of St.Asaph and the 2 governing bodies 
have all indicated their support for the proposed modification and this 
information has been submitted to the Welsh Government for their approval. 

 
4.11   On the 15th October we received confirmation that the Welsh Government 

have agreed to the proposals being modified. See Appendix 8. 
 
Recommendations of Scrutiny Committee 

 

Page 17



 

  

4.12 The Performance Scrutiny Committee reviewed the decision of Cabinet to 
publish the statutory notices at its meeting on the 9th June. The Committee 
determined that there was not sufficient evidence to ask Cabinet to consider 
its decision of 2nd June to publish a statutory notice to close Ysgol Llanfair DC 
and Ysgol Pentrecelyn and to open a new area school, 

 
“the Committee, having received assurances that the impact on pupils 
choosing to leave either school would be closely monitored and the impact 
of Ysgol Pentrecelyn’s closure on the other two Category 1 schools in the 
area was manageable, by a majority concluded that the matter did not 
merit being referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration. However, the 
Committee asked officers to explore the possibilities for the Council to 
designate schools a “bilingual” schools rather than be constrained by the 
WG guidelines on categorisation according to Welsh medium provision.” 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
5.1 The proposal supports the priority of “Improving performance in education and 

the quality of our school buildings” and has been highlighted as a work stream 
as follows: “We will continue to review school provision across the County to 
ensure that we provide the right number of school places, of the right type, in 
the right location. 
 

5.2 The Local Authority are committed to monitoring the standards and outcomes 
of the new Area School which will be reviewed regularly at School Standards 
Monitoring Group, Scrutiny and by the Welsh in Education Strategic group. 

 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

 
6.1 The proposal will not have an effect on other services within the organisation. 

 
6.2 The potential gain to the new are school whilst amalgamated on two sites 

during the first phase, taking into account funding losses, gains and potential 
savings would be £22,683. 

 
6.3 Should the recommendation be approved, transport costs could increase for 

the specific period until existing pupils have left primary education, due to the 
possible use of discretionary transport. 

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 

 
7.1 The impact of this proposal will be neutral as very little will change during the 

first phase as the new area school will operate from the 2 current school’s site.  
 

7.2 The full Equality Impact Assessment is included as Appendix 4. 
 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

Page 18



 

  

8.1 Full consultation has been undertaken with all stakeholders and the findings 
from the Formal Consultation period were presented to Cabinet on the 2nd of 
June 2015. Objections submitted during the statutory notice period are 
summarised in the objections report.  

 
 
 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
9.1 The delay in the release of savings from the amalgamation of the schools will 

need to be factored into the capital financing budget but will not impact 
adversely on the affordability of the wider project. Any additional transport 
costs will be taken into account as part of the overall calculation of savings. 

 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

There is a strong possibility that the proposal could result in adverse publicity 
for the Council and in adverse public comments.  
 
To minimise this risk the Council will seek to ensure clear communication with 
all stakeholders. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision 

 
School Standards and Organisations (Wales) Act 2013 
Modernising Education Policy Framework (approved by Cabinet January 
2009) 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Determination Report 

1.0 Summary 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members about the decision required in 

relation to the publication of a statutory notice for: 
 

 The closure of Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd on 31st August 2016, 

 The closure of Ysgol Pentrecelyn on 31st August 2016,  

 The Diocese of St.Asaph to open a new dual-stream Category 2, Church in 
Wales Voluntary Controlled primary school from 1 September 2016. 
 

1.2 At the Cabinet meeting in September Cabinet agreed that we could consult with 
the Diocese, the 2 governing bodies of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
and the Welsh Government in regards to modifying the proposal- to change the 
date of implementation; both schools to close on the 31st August 2017, rather 
than 2016, and the new area school to open from 1st September 2017, rather 
than 2016.  
 

1.3 We have consulted with the Diocese of St.Asaph as joint proposers to the 
proposal. The School Organisation Code states that we have to also consult with 
both Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn governing bodies prior to the 
submission to the Welsh Government. A verbal update will be provided at the 
meeting. 

 
1.4 The Council has considered a number of factors in relation to the modification. 

Concerns were expressed during the initial consultation over the length of time 
the area school would be in existence over two sites. In addition a potential delay 
to the timescale for implementation could arguably assist in delivering the 
leadership and management changes required for a new school. It is considered 
that a delay in implementation of 12 months would give a greater period of 
consolidation of the school. This would also have the potential to bring the 
timescale for implementation in line with other proposals in the Ruthin area.  

 

1.5 The modification will result in no change to the final outcome. However it will 
reduce the time that the new area school will operate over the 2 separate sites, 
which from an educational view can only benefit the children. This modification 
will also allow further time for the 2 schools to work closely together before the 
amalgamation and could result in the Area school being on 2 separate sites for a 
shorter amount of time, i.e. should the new build be ready for January 2018 the 
period would only be 1 term. 

 
 
1.6 It is recommended that this proposal is approved for implementation with the 

proposed modification. This proposal will ensure the effective provision of 
primary places within the Ruthin area.  

 
 
 

 

Page 21



 

2.0 Background to the proposal 
 

2.1 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education 
Policy Framework in January 2009 to provide a platform upon which to review 
existing school provision.  
 

2.2 The council is committed to providing a first class education for all children and 
young people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed 
that ‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the 
importance of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that 
meet the needs of 21st century Wales. 

 
2.3 The objectives of the review were: 

 To ensure the sustainability of high quality education provision 

 Improve the quality of school buildings and facilities; 

 Provide the right number of places, of the right type in the right location; 
 
3.0 Ruthin Review – Informal Consultation 
     
3.1 In November 2012, Denbighshire’s Cabinet approved the commencement of a 

review of primary school provision in the Ruthin area. The review encompassed 
the following primary schools in the area:- 

 Ysgol Borthyn 

 Ysgol Bro Famau (Llanarmon yn Ial and Llanferres) 

 Ysgol Clocaenog 

 Ysgol Cyffylliog 

 Ysgol Gellifor 

 Ysgol Llanbedr 

 Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd 

 Ysgol Pen Barras 

 Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

 Ysgol Rhewl  

 Rhos Street School 

 Ysgol Bryn Clwyd was also considered at the request of the Federated 

Governing Body of Ysgol Bryn Clwyd and Ysgol Gellifor. 

3.2 The informal consultation document highlighted a number of issues that needed 
to be addressed to achieve long term sustainability.  These included: 

a. Sustainability of Schools and High Quality Provision  
b. Surplus Places  
c. Condition and Suitability of School Buildings (incl. use of Mobile 

Accommodation) 
d. Recruitment of Head Teachers 
e. Demand for Welsh Medium Education 

 
3.3 Following careful consideration of the issues raised during the Informal 

Consultation stage, the following six proposals were approved by the Cabinet. 
These were: 

Page 22



 

 Creation of new area school to serve the communities of Clocaenog 
and Cyffylliog. 

 Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr with transfer of pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, 
Ruthin subject to parental preference. 

 Ruthin town area detailed feasibility. 

 Proposed federation of Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn. 

 Support for the Federation of Ysgol Bryn Clwyd and Ysgol Gellifor. 

 Retention of Ysgol Bro Famau. 
 

 

4.0 Formal Consultation 
 

4.1 In January 2015, Denbighshire County Councils Cabinet approved 
recommendations to start a formal consultation on the proposal to close Ysgol 
Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol Pentrecelyn from the 31st August 2016 and the 
Church in Wales to establish a new Area school on the existing sites from the 1st 
September 2016.  
 

4.2  A period of formal consultation started on the 3rd February 2015 and closed on 
the 16th March 2015. A formal consultation document (Appendix 5) was 
published which provided details of the proposal. 

 
4.3 During the formal consultation, parents, staff, governors, children and young 

people were consulted along with other statutory consultees. The findings of the 
formal consultation were collated in the Formal Consultation Report (Appendix 6) 
and presented to Cabinet on the 2nd of June 2015. 
 

4.4 At this meeting, Denbighshire County Councils Cabinet approved a 
recommendation to publish a statutory notice to close Ysgol Llanfair DC and 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn from 31st August 2016 and for the Diocese of St.Asaph to 
open a new dual-stream Category 2, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled 
primary school from 1 September 2016. 

 
 
5.0 Statutory Notice 
 
5.1 A Statutory Notice was published on the 18th June 2015. A copy is attached in 

Appendix 7. The notice period came to an end on the 15th July 2015. 
 
5.2 In total 30 objections were submitted during the objection period. The points 

raised and the responses provided are included in the Objections Report. 
(Appendix 3) 
 

 
6.0 Determining School Organisation Proposals 

 
6.1 When approving or determining proposals, relevant bodies: 

 must consider whether there are any other related proposals; 

Page 23



 

 must ensure that the statutory consultation has been conducted in 
accordance with this Code (the requirement to consult does not apply to 
proposals to discontinue a school which is a small school); 

 must ensure that the proposal has been published in accordance with 
this Code and the notice contains all the required information; must 
consider the consultation document and consultation report; 

 must consider the objections and the objection report and any 
responses to the notice supporting the proposals; 

 
7.0 The Schools 
 
7.1 Ysgol Llanfair DC 
 

Ysgol Llanfair DC is located in the centre of the village of Llanfair DC and serves 

an age range of 4 – 11 years old. The school is identified as a Category 2 Dual 

stream primary school- this is where two types of provision exist side-by-side 

and parents/pupils opt either for the mainly Welsh-medium or mainly English-

medium provision.It is a voluntary controlled school predominately serving the 

villages of Llanfair DC, Pwllglas and the surrounding area. This is illustrated in 

the diagram below which shows the postcode location of the home address for 

each pupil (based on September 2014) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

As of September 2014 Ysgol Llanfair DC had 92 full time pupils, and there are 

currently 13 part time pupils in nursery. 

The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls, based on January 2014 data, 
suggests that a steady increase in future pupil numbers will occur at the school 
as illustrated below: 

 

 

 

 
7.2 Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
  

Ysgol Pentrecelyn is located on the outskirts of the village of Pentrecelyn and 

serves an age range of 4-11. The school is currently identified as a Category 1 – 

Welsh medium primary school where all pupils in the Foundation Phase 

experience the areas of learning through the medium of Welsh. The school 

predominately serves children from Graigfechan, Pentrecelyn, Llanelidan and 

the surrounding areas. This is illustrated in the diagram below which shows the 

postcode location of the home address for each pupil. 

As of September 2014 Ysgol Pentrecelyn had 35 full time pupils and there are 
currently 12 part time pupils in nursery. 

 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers –January 2014 PLASC 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

82 80 83 87 87 

Page 25



 

 

The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that an increase in future 
pupil numbers will occur at the school as illustrated below: 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January 2014 PLASC 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

37 40 40 42 41 

 

8.0 Determining Factors 
 

Quality and standards in education 
 
8.1 It is the view of Estyn that the current proposal is likely to at least maintain the 

current standards of provision in the area. In addition Estyn has commented that; 
 

 For the long term, the authority asserts appropriately that partnership 

working between both schools would provide greater stability. It claims 

that this proposal would formalise the joint working between the schools 

and provide the foundation for moving towards one school on a modern, 

purpose built accommodation. 

 The authority has appropriately considered the impact of the proposal 
on the quality of the outcomes and provision as well as leadership and 
management. The proposal is considered to have distinct advantages. 
The proposal predicts greater opportunities for the two schools to work 
together to improve staff expertise that would lead to raising standards. 
 

8.2 Educational standards at both schools over the past five years are shown below: 

  

 

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 

 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 88.9% 91.7% 100.0% 94.1% 93.3% 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn  66.7% * * * 80.0% 

Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire 78.1% 82.3% 83.5% 86.0% 86.6% 

Wales – Average 78.2% 80.0% 88.6% 84.3% 86.1% 

*However as a result of very small cohorts in each year a meaningful comparison with local and 
national averages is not possible 

8.3 The Local Authority believe that the quality of outcomes, provision and 
leadership and management would at least maintain provision.  

i. Outcomes- standards and wellbeing- It is anticipated that during the 
amalgamation phase the Temporary Governing Body will review the 
curriculum to be adopted for the new school and the local authority 
would work with the Temporary Governing Body to ensure that the 

Page 26



 

strengths of both schools are developed, alongside external advice to 
ensure that the framework for improved standards are in place for the 
new school.  
 

The proposal will offer greater opportunities for the two schools to work together to 
improve staff expertise that will lead to raising standards.   

ii. Provision- learning experiences, teaching, care support and guidance, 
learning environment- The proposal could allow provision to be 
maintained as it is anticipated that during the amalgamation phase the 
majority of pupils will be educated in their current learning environment 
with existing staff. An Area school will provide additional teaching 
capacity for smaller groups of pupils who are in need of extra support; 
including greater capacity for more able and talented pupils.  

Small schools are limited in their abilities to respond to fluctuations in pupil 
numbers by their schools structural and teaching capacity. A larger area school 
will be able to respond to fluctuations in pupil numbers that are a feature of rural 
schools. 

iii. Leadership and management- leadership, improving quality, 
partnership    working and resource management- The proposal could 
lead to improvements in respect of leadership and management. The 
amalgamated phase should provide stability in terms of resource 
management, improve partnership working and provide an opportunity 
for strengthening leadership. There will be more opportunities for the 
teachers to share good practice and develop leadership skills during 
the amalgamated phase.  

8.4 Estyn commented that “the proposal is likely to maintain the present standards 
of educational provision in this area of Denbighshire and based on current 
provision, the proposal reasonably claims that maintaining the status quo could 
provide greater risks than any proposals for change.” In regards to the Welsh 
language they agreed that, the proposal acknowledges appropriately the 
possible perception that the Welsh language and ethos would be affected 
negatively. It emphasises the essential role of the new Governing Body and 
Denbighshire Council in ensuring that the current strong Welsh ethos is retained. 

 
Additional Learning needs Provision 

 
8.5 If the Current Proposal is approved the two existing schools will become one new 

school but the pupils will continue to be taught on the existing sites. The most 
significant change for a pupil would be a change in site and teacher. Accordingly, 
any pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) who currently attend the schools 
will continue to receive the same education and support but the environment 
may change. The Council will take all practicable steps to minimise disruption 
and assist pupils with any transfer. 

 
Language of Provision 
 

8.6 The decision by Cabinet on the 2nd June 2015 to issue a Statutory Notice was 
called in for further scrutiny on the 11th June 2015. It was agreed that the impact 

Page 27



 

on pupils choosing to leave either school would be closely monitored and the 
impact of Ysgol Pentrecelyn’s closure on the other two Category 1 schools in the 
area was manageable.  

 
8.7 The majority of objections to the Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

proposals were on the grounds of language categorisation. Objectors to the 
proposal have stated that in terms of the Welsh language that there is a difference 
between Category 1 and Category 2 schools. Objectors have stated that there is 
more to Welsh medium education than pupil attainment only- ethos, management, 
administrative and social language are equally important.  

 
8.8 For a school to operate as a Category 2 school they need to be able to deliver 

Category 1 outcomes and ensure that the ethos is delivered in both languages. 
The importance of the Welsh language and ethos will ultimately be the 
responsibility of the schools Governing Body, they will need to ensure that the 
Welsh offer at the school does not weaken.  

 

8.9 It is important that we do not lose sight of the categorisations and the 3 criteria set 
around categorisation- Curriculum, Language of the school and the Outcomes: 

 
Category 1 primary schools are ‘Welsh – medium primary schools’- the 
curriculum delivery language is Welsh, as is the day to day communication 
language with the pupils. Pupil assessments are also undertaken through the 
medium of Welsh and the expectation is that pupils are able to easily transfer 
to Welsh medium secondary provision at the end of Key Stage 2. Pupils will 
also have reached a standard in English equivalent to pupils in predominantly 
English medium schools. 
 
Category 2 primary schools are dual stream primary schools- these schools 
provide Welsh medium and English medium provision side by side. 
Dependent upon parental choice the curriculum is delivered through the 
medium of Welsh or English. If they choose Welsh medium the delivery 
language of the pupil’s education, the language of communication with the 
pupil and educational assessments is Welsh- the same as for a Category 1 
school. If the parents choose for their child to be educated through the 
medium of English, the curriculum is delivered in English, the communication 
language with the child is English and any assessments are done in English- 
the same as a Category 5 school.  
 
The expectation for Category 2 schools is that pupils in the Welsh medium 
stream would be able to transfer to Welsh medium secondary provision, the 
same as Category 1 school pupils, with the pupils in the English stream being 
able to transfer to English medium secondary provision, the same as pupils 
from Category 5 primary schools.    

 
8.10   The proposal put forward had been identified as the best solution for the 

delivery of education in the Llanfair DC and Pentrecelyn areas as it delivers a 
school which would provide education to pupils in their parents’ choice of 
language.  It would also provide the area with a new school facility in due course. 

  
8.11 As Ysgol Llanfair DC has a Welsh medium stream, this delivers the curriculum 

the same manner as a Category 1 school.  The designation of the new school as 

Page 28



 

a Category 2 school was deemed appropriate as it would meet the offer currently 
provided by both Ysgol Pentrecelyn and Ysgol Llanfair DC.  The educational 
offer, therefore, meets the needs of both sets of pupils to an equivalent standard 
– which is what the School Organisation Code requires. 

 
8.12 Not all pupils at Ysgol Llanfair start in the Welsh stream, the way Ysgol Llanfair 

deliver Category 2 outcomes is very successful. Figures from February 2015 
showed that of the 103 pupils; 76 pupils (73.8%) were in the Welsh stream and 
27 pupils (26.2%) in the English stream. 18 (17.5%) of the 76 pupils in the Welsh 
stream started off in the English stream. 

 
Transport 
 

8.13 Objectors have identified that some Ysgol Pentrecelyn pupils who choose to   
attend another Category 1 school maybe separated due to the Council’s 
transport policy. The power to award discretionary transport resides with the 
Head of Education and any such applications for a category 1 school will be 
considered on a case by case basis, from existing pupils of Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
for the remainder of their Primary education. 

 
 
9.0    Need for places and the impact on the accessibility of schools   

 
9.1 Within the Ruthin area there are Welsh Medium, English Medium and Dual 

Stream provision. The outcomes from each language category are as follows: 
 

Category Outcomes 

Welsh Medium (1) The normal expectation is that pupils, regardless of home 
language, will be able to transfer easily to Welsh medium 
Secondary provision and by the end of Key Stage 2 will have 
reached a standard in English equivalent to that reached by 
pupils in predominantly English medium schools. 

English Medium (5) The normal expectation is that pupils will transfer to English 
medium secondary provision and continue to learn 
predominantly through the medium of English, learning 
Welsh as a second language. 
 

Dual Stream For pupils in the Welsh stream, normal expectations are as 
for category 1. For pupils in the English medium stream, 
normal expectations are as for category 5. 

 
 
9.2 Denbighshire County Council has adopted a balanced approach to developing 

proposals for the future primary provision to serve the Ruthin area for the future. 
Proposals ensure that the area will retain English, Welsh and faith provision in a 
mix of rural and town locations. The informal consultation involved all 11 schools 
and the Diocesan authority.  

 
9.3 The proposal could impact slightly on Ysgol Pen Barras and Ysgol Bro Elwern- 

both category 1 schools who may receive some pupils from Ysgol Pentrecelyn, 
who wish not to attend the area school. Figures from September 2014 show that 

Page 29



 

there are 29 surplus places in Ysgol Pen Barras and 13 in Ysgol Bro Elwern- 
therefore a total of 42 places.  

 
9.4 At the commencement of the Ruthin Review 28.8% of the capacity for the area 

was provided in Category 1 schools. We have a number of proposals in terms of 

the Ruthin area and these are; 

i) Ysgol Cyffylliog and Ysgol Clocaenog amalgamated as Ysgol 
Carreg Emlyn ( this was implemented in September 2014) 

ii) Ysgol Rhewl- To Close 
iii) Ysgol Llanbedr- To Close 
iv) Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn amalgamated to form a new 

area school 
These proposals for the overall Ruthin area reflect the need to reduce overall 
capacity in the area whilst maintaining the current mixture of provision in the 
area, albeit from a lower number of schools. The proposals provide a balance of 
choice of language, faith, town and rural schools. 

 
Should all the proposals be adopted there will be an increase in capacity for 
Welsh medium schools (Category 1) of approximately 17 places (34.4% of all 
places in the Ruthin area) and a reduction in the capacity of Dual stream schools 
(Category 2) of 97 places in the Ruthin area.  

 
9.5 There is expected to be limited impact in secondary provision in the area. Both 

schools currently feed Ysgol Brynhyfryd as will the new area school. 
 
10.0 Resourcing of Education 
 
10.1 Currently Ysgol Llanfair DC receives a budget of £4,296 per pupil and Ysgol 

Pentrecelyn receives a budget of £5,364 per pupil, both are higher than the 
Denbighshire average of £3,931. 

 
10.2 The potential gain to the new area school whilst amalgamated on the two sites, 

taking into account funding losses, gains and potential savings would be 
£22,026. This figure is based on the best available information and assumes 
current funding level would apply and that no other material changes take place 
at the school, i.e. increase/ decrease in pupil numbers. 

 
10.3 Once the schools are amalgamated the budget share per pupil will be £4,274. 
 
11.0 Other general factors 
 
11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been conducted and has identified that 

very little will change during the first phase when the new area school will 
operate from the 2 current sites.  The full Equality Impact Assessment is in 
Appendix 4. 

 
11.2 Ysgol Pentrecelyn is in the freehold ownership of Denbighshire County Council. 

Ysgol Llanfair DC is owned partly by Denbighshire County Council and the 
Diocese of St.Asaph. 

 
 

Page 30



 

12.0 Specific factors in the consideration of school closures 
 
12.1 In preparing the proposal consideration was given to other alternatives:  
   

Option 1.1 Maintain the status quo 

Option 1.2 Undertake extension works at Ysgol Llanfair DC 

Option 1.3 Extend Ysgol Llanfair DC on a new site and close 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

Option 1.4 Close both schools and establish a permanent new 
Dual-site Area school on the existing sites. 

Option 1.5 Close both schools and initially establish a dual site 
area school prior to building a new area school in 
Llanfair. 

Option 1.6 Federate the 2 schools. 

 
12.2 The advantages and disadvantages of each option which were considered by 

the Council were detailed in the consultation report. 
 
12.3 Option 1.5 was the preferred option when considered against the investment 

and critical success factors. 
 
12.4 Option 1.6 of federation was initially considered. However, new regulations 

published in May 2014 state, “Neither LA’s nor governing bodies have powers 
to federate voluntary (VA and VC) or foundation schools with community 
schools, community special schools and maintained nurseries.” With this in 
mind federation is no longer a viable option and has to be discounted. 

 
 
13.0 Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment 
 
 
13.1 The following sources of information have been used as part of the Community 

Impact Assessment; 
 

 Impact Assessment Questionnaires returned by the 
headteacher of the 2 affected schools; 

 PLASC September 2014 data; 

 Statistical data stored by Denbighshire County Council; 

 Census Information; 

 Denbighshire’s Welsh Education Scheme 2010-13; and 

 Informal consultation responses. 
 
13.2 In order to assess the potential impact on families and the local community 

consideration has been given to the following area; 
 

 School designation; 

 School links to the local community; 

 Impact on neighbouring schools; 

 Impact on parents and families; 

 Travelling implications for pupils/ parents; 

 Impact on community activities; 

Page 31



 

 Impact on community facilities; 

 Impact on community demographics. 
 

13.3 To summarise; initially the proposal would have limited impact on families and 
the local communities when utilising the existing school sites based in both 
communities. The proposal may have a positive impact on pupils through an 
improved education provision. The way in which the sites will be used be a 
decision for the headteacher and Governing Body to discuss and implement. 
Options that could be considered are keeping the pupils and staff as they are 
with increased opportunity for the 2 sites to come together for specific events. 
Pupils would benefit from interacting with a larger group of children and large 
peer groups. 

 
13.4 Denbighshire County Council is committed to working with local communities 

and has an external funding advisory service to assist local communities in 
accessing funding for community projects. 

 
 
13.5 In order to assess the potential impact on the Welsh Language, consideration 

has been given to the following; 
    

 Language of the schools; 

 Access to Welsh Medium Education; 

 Education Provision/ Educational Standards; 

 Access to non-statutory provision; 

 Access to pre/after school activities; 

 Use of Welsh within the community. 
 

13.6 Data taken from the 2011 Census demonstrates that 44.1% of the population of 
the 3 wards of Efenechtyd, Llanfair DC/ Gwyddelwern and Ruthin ward can 
speak Welsh. The spread of Welsh speakers is relatively even across the area 
where the 2 schools are located.  

 
13.7 To summarise, the proposal will be neutral in terms of its impact on the Welsh 

language. Even though the proposal would reduce the amount of Category 1 
places in the area, we believe that increasing the dual stream offer could 
ensure more pupils are educated in Welsh as well as English. Pupils who 
choose to access Welsh medium education will be thoroughly bilingual in the 
use of both Welsh and English on leaving primary school and have an 
appreciation of the cultural heritage of Wales.  

 

Page 32



Appendix 2 
 

Consultee List: 

The following consultees received either a hard copy of the proposals or were emailed a link to the 

relevant website: 

a. Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn; 
b. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following schools: 
  i) Ysgol Llanfair DC; 

ii)Ysgol Pentrecelyn; 
iii) Ysgol Pant Pastynog; 
iv) Ysgol Pen Barras; 
v) Ysgol Rhewl; 
vi) Ysgol Carreg Emlyn; 
vii)  Rhos Street School; 
viii)Ysgol Borthryn; 
viiii)Ysgol Dyffryn Ial; 
x)  Ysgol Bro Elwen; 
xi)  Ysgol Llanbedr 

c. Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph and Roman Catholic Diocese of Wrexham; 
d. Headteachers and Chairs of Governors of all Denbighshire Schools; 
e. Independent nursery providers in the Ruthin area; 
f. Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years Development and 

Childcare Partnerships; 
g. All Denbighshire County Councillors; 
h. Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing areas affected by the 

proposal; 
i. Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd Community Council; 
j. Llanelidan Community Council; 
k. Efenechtyd Community Council; 
l.  Ruthin Town Council; 
m. The Welsh Government; 
n. Estyn;  
o. Relevant teaching and staff trades unions. 
p. Taith 
q. Gwasanaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion (GwE) 
r. North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 
s. Flintshire County Council 
t.  Wrexham County Borough Council.  
 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 
 

1 
 

Denbighshire County Council and The Diocese of St.Asaph Objections Report 
Objections to the Proposal to Close Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn and to establish a new area school 
 
Under Section 49 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 proposers must publish a summary of the statutory objections and the 
proposer’s response to those objections (“the Objections Report”) 
 
Number of objections received: 30 
 

 
 
 

Point Raised Local Authority and Diocese of St.Asaph Response 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

W
ri

tt
e

n
 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

s 
R

ai
si

n
g 

th
e

 

P
o

in
t 

%
 o

f 
R

e
sp

o
n

d
en

ts
 

R
ai

si
n

g 
th

e
 P

o
in

t 

1 Proposal goes against the main targets outlined 
in the Welsh Government's 'Welsh Medium 
Education Strategy’- to safeguard and strengthen 
Welsh medium provision.  

Denbighshire County Council believes that the current Category 2 model at Ysgol 
Llanfair brings more pupils into Welsh education, who may have gone to an 
English medium school otherwise. The school attracts pupils from English 
speaking families whose children often start in the English medium stream and 
subsequently become confident enough in the Welsh language to move into the 
Welsh stream.  Those pupils in the Welsh stream at Ysgol Llanfair are receiving a 
equivalent provision to those who attend a Category 1 Welsh medium provision. 
This proposal is part of the Ruthin Review, which started in 2012. A number of 
issues in the Ruthin area needed to be reviewed; the sustainability of schools, 
ensuring high quality provision, reducing the amount of surplus places, condition 
of the school buildings, recruitment of head teachers and demand for Welsh 
medium education.  
At the commencement of the Ruthin Review 28.8% of the capacity for the area 
was provided in Category 1 schools. We have a number of proposals in terms of 
the Ruthin area, these are:  

i) Amalgamation of Ysgol Cyffylliog and Ysgol Clocaenog as Ysgol Carreg 
Emlyn (implemented September 2014), 

ii) Ysgol Rhewl- to close,  

5 17% 

P
age 37



Appendix 3 
 

2 
 

iii) Ysgol Llanbedr- to close and 
iv) Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn amalgamated to form a new 

area school.  
These proposals for the overall Ruthin area reflect the need to reduce overall 
capacity in the area, whilst maintaining the current mixture of provision, albeit 
from a lower number of schools. The proposals provide a balance of choice of 
language, faith, town and rural schools. Should all the proposals as listed be 
adopted, there will be an increase in capacity for Welsh medium schools 
(Category 1) of approximately 17 places (34.4% of all places in the Ruthin area) 
and a reduction in the capacity of Dual stream schools (Category 2) of 97  
places in the Ruthin area.   
At the commencement of the Ruthin Review in February 2013 24.89% of the 
capacity for the Ruthin area were faith places. If all proposals are adopted this 
will increase to 26.8% of all places in the Ruthin area, although a reduction of 20 
faith places. 

2 Proposal goes against Denbighshire County 
Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2014-
2017. How can the Council be truly committed to 
this plan if they are closing a Category 1 Welsh 
medium school? We must challenge and 
question how re-categorising Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
to be a Category 2 school can ensure this?  

The outcomes of pupils wanting a Welsh medium education are equal in 
Category 1 and Category 2. The 2 categories in terms of Welsh medium provision 
are the same, but the way they are delivered may differ. The key will be how do 
we maintain and sustain the provision in a new model.  
Denbighshire County Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2014-2017 
states that the Council is “fully committed to the Welsh Governments aspiration 
of delivering a ‘sustained increase in both the number and percentage of people 
able to speak Welsh. The Council recognises the importance of bilingualism in 
21st Century Wales and has adopted a long term aspiration that all children and 
young people in the County will leave full-time education being competent and 
confident in using both Welsh and English languages.” 

6 20% 

3 Schools should be grouped together based on 
identity- community, faith, Welsh medium, 
bilingual. Ysgol Pentrecelyn and Ysgol Llanfair 
should not be together as they differ in terms of 
religious identity and language category. 

As a Local Authority we look at a geographical area and the communities that live 
in the area which the school/s serve.   
 
 
 
 
 

1 3% 

P
age 38



Appendix 3 
 

3 
 

4 There is a difference between Category 1 and 
Category 2 schools, even though in terms of 
educational attainment they are equal in terms 
of their requirements.  
There is more to Welsh medium education than 
pupil attainment only- ethos, management, 
administrative and social language equally 
important. 
Welsh medium schools offers a comprehensive 
experience of Wales' culture e.g. Eisteddfod, 
acting, singing, competing.  
There is no way of guaranteeing the same 
linguistic standard, undoubtedly the Welsh 
language will be weakened.  
 

For a school to operate as a Category 2 school they need to be able to deliver 
Category 1 outcomes and ensure that the ethos is delivered in both languages. 
The importance of the Welsh language and ethos will ultimately be the 
responsibility of the schools Governing Body, they will need to ensure that the 
Welsh offer at the school does not weaken.  
Initially not much would change whilst the school remains on 2 sites. Should the 
proposal be adopted and a new school is built on one site it is difficult to say 
what the offer would look like entirely, nothing is predetermined. 
It is important that we do not lose sight of the categorisations and the 3 criteria- 
Curriculum, Language of the school and the Outcomes. 
Category 1 primary schools are ‘Welsh – medium primary schools’- the 
curriculum delivery language is Welsh, as is the day to day communication 
language with the pupils. Pupil assessments are also undertaken through the 
medium of Welsh and the expectation is that pupils are able to easily transfer to 
Welsh medium secondary provision at the end of Key Stage 2. Pupils will also 
have reached a standard in English equivalent to pupils in predominantly English 
medium schools. 
Category 2 primary schools are dual stream primary schools- these schools 
provide Welsh medium and English medium provision side by side. Dependent 
upon parental choice the curriculum is delivered through the medium of Welsh 
or English. If they choose Welsh medium the delivery language of the pupil’s 
education, the language of communication with the pupil and educational 
assessments is Welsh- the same as for a Category 1 school. If the parents choose 
for their child to be educated through the medium of English, the curriculum is 
delivered in English, the communication language with the child is English and 
any assessments are done in English- the same as a Category 5 school.  
The expectation for Category 2 schools is that pupils in the Welsh medium 
stream would be able to transfer to Welsh medium secondary provision, the 
same as Category 1 school pupils, with the pupils in the English stream being able 
to transfer to English medium secondary provision, the same as pupils from 
Category 5 primary schools.    

12 40% 

5 As 100% of pupils at Ysgol Pentrecelyn and 70% 
of the pupils at Ysgol Llanfair currently receive 
their education through the medium of Welsh, 

It is important to remember that not all pupils at Ysgol Llanfair start in the Welsh 
stream, the way Ysgol Llanfair deliver Category 2 outcomes is very successful.  
Figures from February 2015 showed that of the 103 pupils; 76 pupils (73.8%) 

7 23% 

P
age 39



Appendix 3 
 

4 
 

the case for Category 1 school is very strong. were in the Welsh stream and 27 pupils (26.2%) in the English stream. 18 (17.5%) 
of the 76 pupils in the Welsh stream started off in the English stream. 

6 Currently the bilingual education in Ysgol Llanfair 
is working very well, however there is no 
guarantee that this level of success can be 
sustained in the future- staff and governors are 
only temporarily- i.e. only in control of the 
school for their term in office/ post.  
Lack of commitment for the Welsh language can 
put Welsh at Category 2 schools in a volatile and 
inferior situation.  
Category 1 schools are unique- they provide 
Welsh education in fullness.  

If the current proposal is adopted the Temporary Governing Body will be made 
up of governors from both schools, which will ensure the existing Welsh ethos 
would be carried forward into the new Area school. 
It will be the responsibility of the head teacher and Temporary Governing Body 
to ensure that the Welsh ethos is not reduced in any way, that all staff can speak 
Welsh- this can be incorporated into the school's recruitment policy. The 
Temporary Governing Body and then the permanent Governing Body have an 
important role to play in ensuring the new Category 2 school delivers the 
outcomes of a Category 2 school. 
The new school staff will be initially recruited from the 2 existing schools- posts 
will be ‘ring fenced’ for these staff. This will ensure that a strong Welsh ethos will 
remain. The instrument of governance must reflect the offer of the school.  

11 37% 

7 The Governing body of a Voluntary Aided/ 
Voluntary Controlled School rather than the 
Local Authority have the right to apply for 
change of school language category. 

Any future change to the language category, of any school, would be required to 
be the subject of formal consultation and a statutory notice.  
A Governing Body cannot undertake a change in language category by itself, it 
must publish proposals to make any regulated alternations to a school and go 
through the consultation process, which includes consultation with the Local 
Authority and other stakeholders prior to a Statutory Notice period.  
If the proposal did not meet the Council's Strategy for Welsh Medium Education 
then we, as a Local Authority, would object. If there are any objections to the 
proposal then the Local Authority and not the Governing Body would decide if it 
should proceed. 
If the Local Authority itself objects then the proposal would be decided by the 
Welsh Minister. 

4 13% 

8 Contrary to other authorities in Wales- 
Denbighshire believes that the most effective 
way of increasing the number of fluent Welsh 
speakers is through volatile bilingual and not 
Welsh medium structures.  
Where is the evidence that a category 2 school 
enables more children to receive a Welsh 
medium education where other counties are 

The Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan documents how the Council has 
planned to increase the number of pupils assessed through the medium of 
Welsh. This has been achieved by reviewing demand for Welsh Medium 
education to ensure sustainable long term provision. This approach has also been 
assisted by significant investment by Denbighshire County Council and the Welsh 
Government into Welsh medium primary schools. 
In reviewing the evidence in terms of parental demand, in this particular area, 
the Council is of the view that a Category 2 school would enable more children to 

3 10% 

P
age 40



Appendix 3 
 

5 
 

moving away from Category 2 schools and 
developing Category 1 schools? 

receive a Welsh medium education. 

9 Believe the new area school for Llanfair DC and 
Pentrecelyn should be a Category 1 school. 
Closing a Welsh medium school would be a 
major backward step for the area.  
You are not offering comparable education 
without having to travel outside this Welsh rural 
community.  

It is unfortunate that the categorisation are numerical and there is an assumption 
that 1 is better than 2. The Local Authority believe that a Category 2 school 
meets the needs of the Llanfair/ Pentrecelyn area- the designation of the new 
school as a Category 2 is deemed appropriate as it meets the offer currently 
provided by both schools.   
The proposal has been put forward as the best solution for delivering education 
in the Llanfair DC and Pentrecelyn area as it delivers a school within the 
community, which would provide education to pupils in their parents’ choice of 
language.  

19 
 

63% 

10 As the majority of pupils at Ysgol Pentrecelyn do 
not intend to enrol at the proposed school, this 
proposal is no longer viable.  
The known demand amongst parents shows that 
there is an increase in the demand for Welsh 
language education- Category 1 in the 
Pentrecelyn catchment area.  
 

The Council is of the view that a primary school in the region of 105-140 pupils is 
sustainable within a rural location. 
Should the proposal be implemented, during the feasibility stage of the second 
phase, the Council may have to review elements of the plan such as the size of 
the new school. However, the Cabinet members are committed to delivering a 
new school for the area to ensure the future of education is secure, in terms of 
the standard of education and to provide facilities and resources that meet the 
needs of 21st Century education. The current situation is not sustainable.   
The Councils forecast of full-time pupil rolls for Ysgol Pentrecelyn suggests a 
small increase in pupil numbers over the next few years: 
 

2016 2017 2018 2019 

40 40 42 41 

 
The capacity of the school has been calculated at 56 pupils, which taking the 
figures above into account, results in approximately 25% of surplus places within 
the school. 
The Council believes that this proposal offers parents the opportunity to 
maintain Welsh medium provision. The Council needs to reduce the number of 
places and schools in the area and this proposal will assist this.  

3 10% 

11 The current model in Ysgol Llanfair basically 
operates as a Category 1 school in all but name. 

The outcomes at Ysgol Llanfair in Welsh first language are very good and we 
believe the model at Ysgol Llanfair attracts pupils from English speaking families 
who may have otherwise gone to an English medium school. In 2014 the 

2 7% 

P
age 41



Appendix 3 
 

6 
 

percentage achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 in Welsh 1st language at Ysgol 
Llanfair DC was 90.9%, which was above the Denbighshire (85.1%) and national 
(88.1%) averages.  
The Governing Body at Ysgol Llanfair DC have been approached a number of 
times with requests to change the categorisation from a 2 to a 1, but this had 
been turned down each time as it was felt the school would lose pupils.  
The school's aim is to ensure that they have the highest possible numbers of 
Welsh speakers at the age of 11, therefore the Category 2 model works well for 
them. The Governing Body believe that being a Category 2 school has 
contributed to community cohesion, produced more Welsh speakers and 
facilitated pupils from non-Welsh speaking backgrounds to transfer over to 
Welsh medium education if they wished to, even though they had not intended 
to enter the stream at the beginning of their educational journey. 
‘Dual- Stream’ is the wording used by the Welsh Government to describe a 
Category 2 school, how this is delivered is down to the schools themselves- the 
way Ysgol Llanfair currently deliver Category 2 outcomes is something we wish to 
replicate in the new school- where both streams are in the same class, thereby 
immersing all pupils in the Welsh language.  
During the consultation period we received a number of responses from parents 
who sent their child to Ysgol Llanfair initially to the English stream, who then 
transferred to the Welsh stream. These parents stated that had the school been 
Category 1 then they would have sent them to an English medium school and 
therefore the Welsh language would have lost those pupils.   

12 Concerns over how other Category 2 schools 
have operated. 

Unfortunately in the past monitoring of the categorisations has not been as 
stringent but, moving forward as a Local Authority, we are committed in ensuring 
a school's categorisation matches what it is delivering and its outcomes. We 
would ensure that safeguards are put in place around the Governing Body to 
ensure that the school is delivering to its category, such as ensuring the schools 
recruitment policy states that all posts must be Welsh essential and that the 
instrument of governance reflects the offer of the school. 
The Local Authority as part of its overall monitoring role for the Welsh Education 
Strategic Plan will ensure that the current strong Welsh medium ethos in both 
schools is retained and will intervene as appropriate should this be diluted. 

2 7% 

13 The Council has failed in its duty to offer services At both parents meetings a Welsh speaking officer was available to translate for 2 7% 

P
age 42



Appendix 3 
 

7 
 

in the Welsh language on a number of occasions 
during the consultation process.  
Disappointed that at the consultation meetings 
we did not have the opportunity to put our views 
in Welsh. 

anyone wishing to speak Welsh. Some people did not want to converse through a 
translator and therefore a follow up meeting was arranged with Welsh speaking 
officers the following week.  
All documentation was available in Welsh and English and all residents were able 
to respond in either language.   

14 The Llanelidan Community Council did not 
receive the consultation documents from the 
council. 

In total 4 community/ town councils were emailed the formal consultation 
documents including the clerk for  Llanelidan Community Council. 

1 3% 

15 On figures collected locally Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
full-time pupil numbers will raise to 44 next year, 
45 in 2016/17 and 52 in 2017/18, would this 
make the new school oversubscribed? 

We have to use the figures that are based on the PLASC (Pupil Level Annual 
School Census) and our projections.  
The size of the new school is not set in stone, however we need to be mindful 
that we do not build the school too big as this may have a negative effect on 
neighbouring schools. 

1 3% 

16 How does the Local Authority propose to 
safeguard the Welsh language provision in cases 
of oversubscription, would there be preference 
to those selecting the Welsh stream (point 3 in 
section 1.9 of DCC's admissions policy)? Who 
gets priority?  
Is the Council prepared to safeguard the balance 
between Welsh medium and English medium in 
the new area school? 

The School Admissions Code (2013), page 12 section 2.29 states,  
"In setting oversubscription criteria admission authorities must not: Adopt 
criteria which select pupils on the basis of ability or aptitude (except in relation to 
school sixth forms) except schools with partially selective arrangements which 
already had such arrangements in place at the beginning of the 1997/98 school 
year and are permitted to continue to use selection by ability. There is only one 
school in Wales with partially selective arrangements. The general prohibition on 
ability based criteria includes, in the case of Welsh medium schools, the ability to 
speak Welsh." 
This would also apply to two-language schools.  In terms of language criteria the 
exception is when defining the nearest "suitable" school, which is defined as 
being in accordance with the applicant's faith and language preference(s). The 
use of "suitable" in this context prevents us from giving priority to either 
language as they need to be considered equally.  
An option could be to determine separate admission numbers for the Welsh and 
English streams but this would need to be discussed with the schools Governing 
Body, the Local Authority and the Diocese of St.Asaph. 

2 7% 

17 It is difficult to compare 2 Estyn reports as they 
were completed 4 years apart. 

We have to comply with the Welsh Government's School Organisation Code, 
which states that reference must be made to the latest Estyn reports of any 
schools being discussed. 

1 3% 

18 Category 2 school is not an equivalent choice for The new area school will provide the option of Welsh medium education within 7 23% 

P
age 43



Appendix 3 
 

8 
 

parents seeking Welsh medium education. 
Parents will be forced out of the area to a town 
school or another village school, 100% of our 
pupils are attending their nearest suitable 
school.  
 

the Category 2- dual stream setting. The Council categorises its education 
provision in line with the Welsh Government's document Defining Schools 
according to Welsh medium provision October 2007.  
It does not help that the categorisation is numerical and that some people read 
that Category 2 is a lesser category than Category 1. In terms of Welsh language 
education they are the same but just delivered differently. We want to increase 
the number of non-Welsh speaking children accessing Welsh medium education 
and we believe Category 2 can do this.  We also want to increase the number of 
children becoming proficient in the Welsh language. It is important to recognise 
that pupils at Ysgol Llanfair in the English stream have very good Welsh second 
language skills as well. 

19 The Council will have no Category 1 schools 
between Ruthin and Llangollen. 

Point noted. 2 7% 

20 Other options that need examining are: - 
Federating with other rural Category 1 schools- 
Carreg Emlyn and Gwyddelwern with 1 managing 
head. 

A federation involving 4 schools (Ysgol Bro Elwern is already federated with Ysgol 
Betws Gwerfil Goch) over a wide geographical area could place pressure on the 
leadership of the school. This option would not address issues regarding surplus 
places. 

2 7% 

21 Federating with Ysgol Pen Barras. This option would not address issues such as surplus places and condition of the 
school. 

2 7% 

22 New area school being a Category 1 community 
or VC school and pupils seeking English medium 
(and faith based) education transferring to Ysgol 
Borthyn, Ysgol Llanbedr or Rhos street. 

We believe that the proposal of a Category 2 school meets the needs of the area 
that the school will serve. 

2 7% 

23 Two schools, one site with an executive head 
managing the 2 schools. 

Moving both schools in their current form to a shared new site with one 
executive head may not be viable or sustainable.  
The new executive head would have two line managers in the form of two 
governing bodies and would have to duplicate all the administrative functions of 
a school. 
This option would create equivalent small and medium sized Welsh medium 
provision next to each other which is not sustainable.  
Economies of scale would not be realised in constructing the new site due to the 
need to create two separate schools on the same site. This would add cost to the 
project such as creating two secure entrances, two staff rooms, two halls etc. 
Other mergers that the Local Authority have undertaken in the county have been 

1 3% 

P
age 44



Appendix 3 
 

9 
 

successful, such as Ysgol Carreg Emlyn and Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy . 

24 One school, 2 defined and separate streams- 
English and Welsh- immersion would still be 
there for those pupils from non-Welsh speaking 
families in the Welsh stream. 

If the current proposal is adopted, it will be the responsibility of the head teacher 
and Temporary Governing Body to decide on the classroom configuration for the 
new school.  We as promoters believe that the way Ysgol Llanfair currently 
delivers within the Category 2 category, delivers the best outcomes for Welsh 
and non-Welsh speakers. 

1 3% 

25 Has the site at Pentrecelyn been considered? Feasibility work on a possible site for the new school has started. Part of this 
work will be to look at both current school sites. 

1 3% 

26 Governing body will need a strong Welsh ethos 
and policies which have the Welsh language at 
the heart of the school- how can the Governing 
Body influence parent choice and retain a Welsh 
majority to allow immersion to continue in 
future years? 

It will be up to the Governing Body to shape the ethos and culture of the school 
to ensure it is attractive to parents who seek Welsh medium education for their 
child, whether they are fluent Welsh speakers or learners. The school via 
induction events would be able to reinforce this ethos upon prospective parents 
in terms of how their children would be educated within the new school. 

1 3% 

27 According to the Community and Welsh 
Language Impact Assessment the proposal would 
be neutral in regards to the Welsh language. We 
have concerns over this.   
The Positive/ Neutral/ Negative table in the 
assessment does not reflect the reality. 

The document aims to be subjective in terms of the impact that the proposal 
would have upon the wider Llanfair/ Pentrecelyn community. It will be important 
for the new school to ensure that a Welsh ethos is retained. Whilst we have 
acknowledged that the use of Welsh may reduce outside the classroom it is 
important to recognise that the Governing Body can ensure that the recruitment 
policy can state that all staff must be Welsh speaking, which will ensure the 
Welsh language remains a strong presence in the school. 
The current proposal contained in the consultation document is to establish an 
Area school on 2 sites, therefore the Community and Welsh language Impact 
Assessment was focused on this only.  
The School Organisation Code states that in terms of the Community and Welsh 
language impact assessments “the requirement for assessments should not be 
overly burdensome and does not consider that it is necessary to commission such 
work from external consultants.”  

2 7% 

28 Does bilingualism work better through 
immersion in a Category 1 school or a Category 2 
school? It would be better to use a Category 1 
school as the basis for true immersion and where 
the Welsh language is used in all aspects of 
school life.  

The current evidence suggests that the current model of Ysgol Llanfair delivers 
strong education outcomes for pupils education through the medium of Welsh. 
Over the last 3 years the school in terms of outcomes for Welsh 1st language in 
Key Stage 2 at level 4, has seen Ysgol Llanfair outperform the Denbighshire and 
all Wales average. 
Therefore from the evidence we believe that the outcomes at Ysgol Llanfair are 

3 10% 

P
age 45



Appendix 3 
 

10 
 

Category 1 schools accommodate children from 
non-Welsh speaking families as well.  
Immersion education also means that as well as 
the language medium of lessons, Welsh is used 
for activities across the whole school, extra-
curricular activities and the language informally 
used by children with each other on the yard. 

very good and that the way they deliver Category 2 outcomes is very successful. 

29 In a Category 2 school pupils are assessed in 
Welsh first language and Welsh second language 
with some pupils transferring to the bilingual 'N' 
stream in Brynhyfryd- if this ceases to exist how 
would the pupils studying Welsh as a second 
language continue their education? 

Pupils in both the English and ‘N’ streams at Ysgol Brynhyfryd have to study 
Welsh as a 2nd language. 
Presently the 'N' stream in Brynhyfryd is considered suitable for pupils who have 
learnt Welsh as a second language and who, by the end of Key Stage 2, have a 
good understanding of the language. These are usually pupils transferring from 
Category 2 primary schools. The ‘N’ stream is for Welsh learners; it is not 
bilingual provision. 
Pupils’ competency and confidence in the Welsh language is assessed at the end 
of key stage 2 and advice provided on the most appropriate provision in terms of 
ensuring linguistic progression.  
From September 2015, the 'N' stream is stopping in its present form. Pupils who 
are already in the 'N' stream will receive additional support so that they can 
successfully enter the Welsh 1st language stream and will be assessed as 1st 
language at the end of Key stage 3 and GCSE. There maybe a few pupils who do 
not make the expected progress or because of parental preference will transfer 
to the English stream. 

2 7% 

30 The Council does not use catchment areas when 
determining school admissions- should this be 
reconsidered? 

The current arrangements allow for diversity of choice regarding faith, language 
and location, which are often difficult to determine with strictly defined 
catchment areas. 

1 3% 

31 Headteacher in a Category 2 school could be a 
non-Welsh speaker in addition to some members 
of staff. 

Should the current proposal be adopted the Temporary Governing Body of the 
new school will initially be made up of Ysgol Llanfair DC governors, Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn governors and foundation Governors appointed by the Diocese of 
St.Asaph. It will be there responsibility to appoint a suitable Welsh speaking head 
teacher. The Temporary Governing Body will have a responsibility to ensure that 
Welsh is not reduced in any way and that all staff can speak Welsh- this can be 
incorporated into the school’s recruitment policies. This is no different to a 
Category 1 school. If there was any pressure for the language category to change 

2 7% 

P
age 46



Appendix 3 
 

11 
 

there are safeguards in place to protect it. The Governing Body have an 
important role to play in ensuring a Category 2 school delivers the outcomes of a 
Category 2 school. 

32 Future of the "Cylch Ti a Fi" at Pentrecelyn- 
currently 12 children attend. 

During the first phase when the school is on the 2 existing sites, nothing will 
change and the Ti a Fi could continue. Prior to the establishment of a single site 
school, we would work with providers to ascertain best service delivery for these 
services. 

1 3% 

33 Ysgol Llanfair works well currently due to the low 
class sizes and the fact that classes are run as 
one rather than 2 streams, therefore pupils 
choosing the English stream are immersed in 
Welsh- this cannot be sustained in the new 
school where pupil numbers will be bigger. 

The learning offer and structure of the proposed new school will be the 
responsibility of the headteacher and the Temporary Governing Body. They will 
decide how it will be configured in order to deliver what is required. We, as a 
Local Authority, can advise and support to ensure that the offer is right to deliver 
dual stream. It would be premature to say now how the class sizes will be 
configured, but there are a number of options available to preserve and enhance 
the provision. When the school is on the 2 existing sites we would advise the 
Temporary Governing Body to keep things as they are. 
It will also be about working in partnership with GwE and working with the 
Temporary Governing Body to look at what is needed and what the budget will 
allow. It is important to understand that there is a commitment from the Local 
Authority for this to work. 

2 7% 

34 There is now no Ti a Fi in Pwllglas- what 
influence will this have on the future linguistic 
balance in a school such as Ysgol Llanfair? 

We believe that Ysgol Llanfair is attractive to Welsh speaking and non-Welsh 
speaking families. The ethos of the staff and school is distinctively Welsh. The 
delivery model of the curriculum allows for those pupils who start at the school 
in the English stream to move into the Welsh stream confidently and continue 
their education in the medium of Welsh in secondary school. 

1 3% 

35 The 2 schools are very similar- only difference is 
a minority of pupils did not take their foundation 
phase and Key stage 2 tests through the medium 
of Welsh. How do you secure this forever when a 
school is a constantly evolving entity?  
The answer is via opening a new welcoming rural 
Category 1 school marketed as promoting 
bilingualism. 

The Council believes that the proposal offers parents the opportunity to maintain 
Welsh medium provision in the area. The Council needs to reduce the number of 
places and schools in the area and this proposal will assist this. 

1 3% 

36 Break-up of communities if some families decide 
to send their children to the area school whilst 

At present as a wider community there are many activities outside of school 
where the children in the community come together to participate in activities. 

3 10% 

P
age 47



Appendix 3 
 

12 
 

others opt for an alternative Category 1 school. We would hope that the majority, if not all pupils from Ysgol Pentrecelyn, would 
attend the new Area school, although the final decision regarding choice will be 
made by parents. However, this should not be seen as a barrier for the continued 
community interaction which presently takes place. 

37 Whilst there is a majority selecting the minority 
language it may work with the support of staff 
but how can the school implement a policy 
forcing limits on parental choice; is this possible? 
It would be better to use a Category 1 school as 
the basis for the immersion model. 

It would be the responsibility of the head teacher and Temporary Governing 
Body to ensure that Welsh is not reduced in anyway and that all staff can speak 
Welsh. We believe that the Category 2 model, as demonstrated in Ysgol Llanfair 
now, delivers very good outcomes. 

1 3% 

38 Potential growth in housing in the area could 
have an influence on the language balance of the 
new school. 

We cannot predict who will move into the area. There is also parental 
preference; therefore it is difficult to assess which mediums of education people 
will choose for their children in terms of language, faith, size and location. 

2 7% 

39 What has the Local Authority done in terms of 
Welsh medium education? 

Denbighshire, in partnership with the Welsh Government, over the last 5 years 
have carried out extension works to increase capacity at a number of Welsh 
medium primary schools. These include; Ysgol Gymraeg y Gwernant, 
Llangollen,Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy, Cynwyd, Ysgol y Llys, Prestatyn and Ysgol Twm o’r 
Nant, Denbigh. 
The proposals for the Ruthin area could also lead to investment in Ysgol Pen 
Barras and a new school site for Ysgol Carreg Emlyn, Clocaenog and Cyffylliog 
which is currently operational across the 2 sites. 
There is also £15.9m to be invested in secondary provision through the extension 
works at Ysgol Glan Clwyd, St.Asaph. 
The establishment of the Welsh in Education Strategic Group has assisted the 
authority in focusing on meeting the demand for Welsh medium education 
whether within a Category 1 or Category 2 setting. 

1 3% 

40 According to the 2011 census, 48.3% of residents 
of the ward can speak Welsh, amongst the 
highest in Denbighshire. If this isn't a basis to 
create a Category 1 school in one of the most 
Welsh areas in the County, then the whole logic 
of the existence of Category 1 schools in any part 
of the county must be questioned. 

The ability to speak Welsh in the Llanfair/ Gwyddelwern ward is broken down as 
follows: Gwyddelwern 62.06%, Llanfair DC 49.71%, Llanelidan 45.89% and 
Bryneglwys 39.89%. Within this ward there are currently 3 primary schools:  
Ysgol Pentrecelyn- Category 1,  
Ysgol Bro Elwern- Category 1  
Ysgol Llanfair DC- Category 2. 

2 7% 

41 The Local Authority aim is to increase the The 28% target was achieved in 2012/13 with 285 seven year old pupils taught 2 7% 

P
age 48



Appendix 3 
 

13 
 

number of pupils receiving a Welsh medium 
education 28.1% (285) in 2012/13 to 29% in 
2017.  
By 2015/16 28% had been achieved, 3 years 
earlier than planned. It seems strange that 
Denbighshire's boast to reach a 'challenging' 
target earlier than anticipated leads to setting a 
very small target of only 29% by 2016/17. One of 
the best ways of reaching this would be to 
ensure an area school in one of the most Welsh 
areas of the County of Welsh medium Category 1 
status. 

through the medium of Welsh. To increase the target further would require a 
significant change in demand from English medium to Welsh medium, especially 
in the north of the authority where the number of pupils is increasing.  
Between 2010/11 and 2011/12 the number of pupils increased by 10 but the 
percentage taught at seven years old fell by 1.8% due to growth in English 
medium schools. The authority has invested significantly in the last few years, 
increasing the number of places in the north of the county at Ysgol y Llys, 
Prestatyn and Ysgol Twm o'r Nant, Denbigh. This will support growth in Welsh 
medium in this area. 
There is a risk that establishing the area school as a Category 1 school could 
reduce demand for Welsh medium education within the area with parents opting 
for English medium education.  

42 Understand that the Council is in the process of 
creating a new Welsh Language Scheme for the 
county. Any decision to reclassify the school 
should be put on hold until this new scheme is 
adopted. There is no sense in agreeing one policy 
that affects the education in the county when 
another policy, that could affect education in the 
county, is prepared at the same time. 

A new Welsh Language scheme for Denbighshire is in its infancy.  
This proposal is being presented in line with current policies and officers cannot 
pre-empt the contents/ outcomes of a new scheme which currently has no 
definite timetable of implementation. 

1 3% 

43 There is a thought that a Category 2 school is 
more attractive than a Category 1 school if 
parents are unsure about whether their child will 
cope with learning Welsh as a second language.  
The Council schools admissions policy clearly 
states that "The majority of Nursery, Reception 
and Year 1 pupils attending Welsh Medium or 
opting for Welsh at a dual stream school easily 
develop competence and confidence in both 
Welsh and English, regardless of the family home 
language."  
Ysgol Pentrecelyn, as a Welsh medium primary 
school have non-Welsh speaking families, we are 
not exclusive, we are a community.  

We believe that the Category 2 model, as delivered in Ysgol Llanfair, attracts 
pupils from both Welsh and English speaking families. The Welsh stream in Ysgol 
Llanfair is equivalent to the provision in a Welsh medium Category 1 school. 

2 7% 

P
age 49



Appendix 3 
 

14 
 

If the new school were to be a Category 2 it 
would isolate those parents seeking a Welsh 
Medium education via true immersion. 

44 There is a history of children switching from the 
English stream to the Welsh stream in Llanfair. If 
these children had not switched the language 
balance within the school would have been 56% 
Welsh stream, 44% English stream- a very 
different language balance. 

We agree the language balance would have been different- as of February 2015 
the split was 73.8% in the Welsh stream and 26.2% in the English stream. 
However, this reflects the success the school has of encouraging parents to 
choose the Welsh stream for their child, when initially they entered the school in 
the English stream. 

1 3% 

45 If bilingual schools work so well, why are there 
only 36 out of the 1333 primary schools in 
Wales? 

Denbighshire County Council believes that the current Category 2 model at Ysgol 
Llanfair brings more pupils into Welsh education that may have gone to an 
English medium school otherwise.  
The school attracts pupils from English speaking families who may have gone to 
an English medium school otherwise.  
The outcomes of pupils wanting a Welsh medium education are equal in 
Category 1 and Category 2. The 2 categories in terms of Welsh medium provision 
are the same but the way they are delivered may differ.   
The situation regarding Welsh medium provision varies from county to county 
and the way some counties describe their schools varies- i.e. in Gwynedd they 
categorise all of their school as 'bilingual' and do not refer to the Welsh 
Government's categories.  
In Carmarthenshire they use the term 'bilingual education’ Gareth Morgans, 
Chief Education Officer for Carmarthenshire has stated that “when we use the 
term 'Welsh- medium education' that, in my experience, attracts a lot of 
comment and also some opposition. When we talk about creating bilingual 
pupils, where both Welsh and English are first languages, in a way, there is far 
greater acceptance among the parents of that approach." ( Quote taken from 
The Children, Young People and Education Committee, Welsh Government, 2nd 
July 2015.) 

1 3% 

46 Ysgol Llanfair DC is a unique model sustained by 
factors that can be changed, it cannot be 
preserved forever and is in fact closing, 
something that people seem to be forgetting. 
How can the new area school work in the same 

The Temporary Governing Body will be made up of Governors from both schools 
which will ensure the existing Welsh ethos would be carried forward into the 
new Area school. It will be the responsibility of the head teacher and Temporary 
Governing Body to ensure that Welsh is not reduced in any way, that all staff can 
speak Welsh- this can be incorporated into the school's recruitment policies. The 

2 7% 

P
age 50



Appendix 3 
 

15 
 

way when it will be a bigger school starting with 
a new slate? 

Governing Body has an important role to play in ensuring a Category 2 school 
delivers the outcomes of a Category 2 school. 

47 In a report published last year by Estyn 
"Linguistic progression and standards of Welsh in 
ten bilingual schools", it states that "Only in a 
third of bilingual schools do most pupils who 
study Welsh as a first language follow two or 
more additional GCSEs through the medium of 
Welsh. Overall, the proportion of pupils studying 
Welsh as a first language declines as they 
progress through their schooling." Whilst these 
quotes, in part, refer to secondary education the 
key point is the decrease of the number of pupils 
progressing the Welsh Medium education in the 
secondary sector. 

The Estyn report looked at progression and standards in ten secondary schools. 
The report focused on the linguistic progression of pupils in key stage 4 in terms 
of studying Welsh as a first language and other qualifications through the 
medium of Welsh; evaluated the effectiveness of curricular models and teaching 
methods that are in place in bilingual schools; and identified and shared good 
practice in relation to bilingual education. 
It doesn’t comment on primary age provision.  
Pupils who choose the Welsh medium stream in a Category 2 school have the 
same opportunities to go into Welsh medium secondary education as those who 
attend a Category 1 school. Based on current numbers at Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn, 76% of pupils would be in the Welsh medium stream at the end of 
Key stage 2 of the new area school. This would deliver 96 pupils to secondary 
Welsh medium education based on the number of pupils at the school in 
September 2014. 

1 3% 

48 What does the Church have to offer the new 
school that is different to the ethos that is in 
most community schools already? 

In terms of curriculum and admissions policy nothing would change. Community 
schools are required to promote "broadly Christian values"; as a voluntary 
controlled school it would have a "clearly" Christian ethos. The school would 
have 2 inspections- 1 from Estyn and 1 from the Church. The Church would have 
representation on the Governing Body and would give extra help and support to 
the school. 

2 7% 

49 Suggest the Current Proposal is amended to 
include the formation of a Language Centre 
based either on the premises of the new Area 
school or the current school house premises at 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn. The main purpose of the 
Centre would be to provide intense Welsh 
medium education to latecomers to the Welsh 
language at all rural Welsh schools in southern 
parts of Denbighshire.  
This would allay any fears of parents of junior 
age pupils currently in the English medium 
stream at Ysgol Llanfair and all other parents in 

In Denbighshire, we have two latecomer centres; one is at Ysgol Bro Elwern, 
Gwyddelwern and the other at Ysgol y Llys, Prestatyn. 
The provision of Welsh language immersion centres will be considered separately 
to the current proposal.  
The current proposal provides a model, which currently is perceived by parents, 
to provide a smooth transition to access Welsh medium education.  

1 3% 

P
age 51



Appendix 3 
 

16 
 

similar circumstances in other local Welsh rural 
schools in South Denbighshire. 

50 Understand the financial reasons but this 
proposal will damage the language and its 
future.  

The model at Ysgol Llanfair currently increases the number of young people who 
speak the Welsh language. By encouraging English speaking families to send their 
child/ren to the school we are increasing the number of people using the 
language who could have been lost to English medium education. If we are going 
to safeguard the language we need to increase the effort to speak Welsh. 
The current situation is not sustainable.  
The Council is committed to providing a first class education for all children and 
young  people in the county. We have to change and modernise education 
provision in the county, as improvements in education cannot be sustained 
without changes to the way education is provided. We believe this proposal is 
the best solution for delivering education in the Llanfair DC and Pentrecelyn 
areas. 

2 7% 

51 For those seeking a Welsh medium education, 
only option is Ysgol Pen Barras- 9 miles from 
Llandegla. 

The new area school will offer a Welsh medium education for those pupils who 
choose the Welsh stream.  

1 3% 

52 Are the wishes of Pentrecelyn school parents less 
important than the wishes of a minority of 
Llanfair school parents? 

The designation of the new school as a Category 2 school was deemed 
appropriate as it would meet the offer currently provided by both Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn and Ysgol Llanfair DC. The current situation is not sustainable and we 
believe that this proposal is the best solution for delivering education in the 
Llanfair DC and Pentrecelyn areas. 

1 3% 

53 How is the County going to ensure enough 
spaces for the present pupils at Pentrecelyn to 
receive their education in a Category 1 school in 
future? 

The transfer numbers from Ysgol Pentrecelyn to the proposed new Area school is 
not yet known.  
Some may choose to attend Ysgol Bro Elwern, Gwyddelwern, if that is the nearest 
school to their home address. Others who want to attend a Category 1 school 
may choose to transfer to Ysgol Pen Barras, Ruthin.  
Figures from September 2014 show that there are 29 surplus places in Ysgol Pen 
Barras and 13 in Ysgol Bro Elwern, therefore a total of 42 places. The new 
development in Glasdir will also increase the capacity at Ysgol Pen Barras.  
We would hope that some Pentrecelyn parents would send their child to the new 
area school. Of the 30 parents who responded to the consultation document- 4 
said they would go to the area school, 4- were unsure/ skipped the question, 9 
said to another Category 1 school, 12 to Ysgol Pen Barras, 1 to Ysgol Bryn Tabor, 

2 7% 

P
age 52



Appendix 3 
 

17 
 

1 to Ysgol Carreg Emlyn ( 1 parent responded twice) 

54 The process in making a final decision is entirely 
unjust. Astonished to find the Diocesan Board of 
Education will decide with the Cabinet on 
whether to proceed with the proposal.  
During the full consultation process the Board 
naturally gave full support to the proposal- they 
have a full vested interest in this matter as the 
county are proposing a faith school under the 
control of the Board itself.  

In accordance with the School Organisation Code where a school is to be 
designated as a Voluntary Aided (VA) or Voluntary Controlled (VC) the associated 
Diocese become one of the promoters and will open the new area school, as the 
proposal is for the new Area school to be a Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled 
school. The Cabinet will meet separately from the Diocesan Board of Statutory 
Education to discuss the objections. 

1 3% 

55 Object to the fact that it will be a Church school- 
history tells us that the Welsh people in rural, 
agricultural and mainly Nonconformist areas 
such as Pentrecelyn suffered gravely at the 
hands of the Church.  

We believe that faith-based education is an important part of the overall 
education portfolio on offer to parents in Denbighshire and we wish to maintain 
the provision currently offered by Ysgol Llanfair DC in this regard. There is no 
prejudice against non-faith or Welsh chapel children. Admissions criteria and the 
RE syllabus remain the same as is currently in place in both Ysgol Llanfair DC and 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn.  
We would welcome strong links with the local chapel, and would hope the 
proposed new school would foster a positive and fruitful relationship with the 
chapel minister as well as the local Church in Wales incumbent. 
The Church in Wales is open and transparent in its offer to parents that its ethos 
is based on a set of values that promotes Christian character and an education 
that is about values, as well as academic achievement. Its vision is for a school 
that will celebrate and promote the Welsh language and culture, and that will 
seek to give all its pupils a broad and rich education underlined with a Christian 
ethos. 

1 3% 

56 We love our language and are disgusted with 
some of the councillors who have turned their 
backs on the language and our Welsh 
community. In the Cabinet meeting on the 3rd 
June council members were keen for the 2 
communities to turn against each other and that 
you were trying to blackmail us into doing things 
your way by saying the new school will be 
delayed or stopped if we took you to court. 

The Council has been in discussions with both Governing Bodies regarding 
options for joint working to ensure sustainable provision in the Llanfair/ 
Pentrecelyn area for a number of months prior to the consultation period.  
This discussion included options for working together and moving towards a 
single site. During these meetings an overall consensus towards the area school 
model has been supported alongside the new school being designated as a 
Voluntary Controlled School recognised by the Church in Wales. Both schools 
have expressed support for retaining their existing language designation. 
If the proposal is delayed, this could have a detrimental effect on a new school 

1 3% 

P
age 53



Appendix 3 
 

18 
 

being built as the funding could be lost.  

57 Reducing the amount of Category 1 schools in 
the area will have a negative effect on our native 
language.  

The focus of Denbighshire is ensuing that we provide schools of the right type in 
the right place to meet parental demand. Accordingly the focus is on the number 
of places to access Welsh medium education rather than a cruder measure of the 
number of Category 1 schools. 
At the commencement of the Ruthin Review 28.8% of the capacity for the area 
was provided in Category 1 schools.  
We have a number of proposals in terms of the Ruthin area and these are; 

i) Ysgol Cyffylliog and Ysgol Clocaenog amalgamated as Ysgol Carreg Emlyn ( 
implemented September 2014),  
ii) Ysgol Rhewl- to close, 
 iii) Ysgol Llanbedr- to close and 
iv) Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn amalgamated to form a new area 
school.  

These proposals for the overall Ruthin area reflect the need to reduce overall 
capacity in the area whilst maintaining the current mixture of provision in the 
area, albeit from a lower number of schools. The proposals provide a balance of 
choice of language, faith, town and rural schools. Should all the proposals be 
adopted there will be an increase in capacity for Welsh medium Schools- 
Category 1 of approximately 17 places (34.4% of all places in the Ruthin area) and 
a reduction in the capacity of Dual stream schools- Category 2 of 97 places in the 
Ruthin area.  
At the commencement of the Ruthin Review in February 2013, 24.89% of the 
capacity for the Ruthin area were faith places. If all proposals are adopted this 
will increase to 26.8% of all places in the Ruthin area, although a reduction of 20 
faith places. 

3 10% 

58 The consultation review undertaken by the 
Council to involve the community and public in 
any participation in the decision making process 
has been limited to say the least, with the 
council limiting the consultation process to one 
option only- the councils preferred option of 
closing the school.  
The evidence in favour of a new Category 1 

The Formal consultation document, which was issued in February 2015, detailed 
a number of options that the Council had considered and the reasons why they 
had been discounted- in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2013.  
Section 2.1 looked at 6 options that had been looked at for the area and matched 
these to the Council's Investment Objectives and Critical Success Factors. From 
these one option was preferred and discussed in further detail in the document.  
All letters and emails received during the consultation period were available in 
full to all Cabinet Members. The Consultation Report, that summarised the 

6 20% 

P
age 54



Appendix 3 
 

19 
 

school has not been presented. responses, was circulated to all respondents who requested it as well as those we 
have to send it to in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2013. 
The Council’s Cabinet carefully considered all the issues raised during the 
consultation period, on balance, in considering all the issues, Cabinet Members 
supported the proposal to provide a Category 2 Dual- stream school.   

59 The Council has not taken into account the facts 
which have arisen from the consultation process; 
that the majority of Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
respondents were against the closure of the 
school and opposed to a Category 2 dual stream 
school- these were disregarded as was the 
suggestion that Ysgol Pentrecelyn would 
consider a federation between other schools.    

The Council’s Cabinet carefully considered all the issues raised during the 
consultation period. On balance in considering all the issues, Cabinet Members 
supported the proposal to provide a Category 2 Dual- stream school.  All original 
letters and emails were made available to all Cabinet members to view and a 
summary of all responses was published in the Consultation Report. 

3 
 

10% 

60 It is unbelievable that the council are willing to 
sacrifice the loss of the Welsh language even 
after the major report commissioned by them 
into the Welsh language by Cefin Campbell. The 
report stated that: "Welsh will no longer be a 
living language in Denbighshire in 10 years unless 
drastic action is taken to save it!"  
The council spent a lot of money commissioning 
this report and on this occasion are going against 
its findings. Is this a proper way to spend the tax 
payers money- on reports that no one is going to 
take any notice of? 

The recommendations of the Sbectrwm Consultancy Report (Author Cefin 
Campbell) have not yet been adopted by the Authority as policy. The report and 
recommendations will be subject to scrutiny from elected members and will 
require their support to be adopted as policy.  
Proposals must adhere to the current policies of the authority and cannot pre 
determine the adoption of a recommendation that has not been approved by the 
Council. 

5 17% 

61 The Council has failed to comply with 
requirements of the School Standards and 
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the School 
Organisation Code (2013).  
The consultation either relates to the Current 
Proposal and both the First and Second phase or 
the establishment of an Area school on the 
existing sites. The Council's preferred option is to 
close both schools and establish a new school on 

The Council is of the view that the Consultation document meets the 
requirements of the School Organisation Code. 
The formal consultation document states in section 1.3 that: “Denbighshire 
County Council would close Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn on the 31st 
August 2016; and the Church in Wales will establish a new Area School on the 
existing sites from 1st September 2016.” This is reiterated in the Statutory 
Notice.  
This is the proposal that the consultation document is based upon. The reference 
to the second phase, namely providing a single site for the new school is included 

2 7% 

P
age 55



Appendix 3 
 

20 
 

one site, none of the consultees can be clear 
whether they are being consulted on this 
preferred option, Second Phase or alternatively 
just the option of establishing a new school using 
the existing sites- First Phase.  
We consider that the First Phase of the 
consultation is predicted on the Second Phase 
being fulfilled. However, we, as consultees, are 
not provided with sufficient information in 
relation to the Second Phase in order to make an 
informed decision.  
This uncertainty is not assisted by the 
Community and Welsh Language Impact 
Assessment which relates only to the First Phase 
of the proposal. 
If the consultation includes the Second Phase- a 
fundamental error is that the document does not 
identify the location of the single site school, 
which must be provided. 

in the consultation document for information to ensure parents and consultees 
are aware of the wider picture as to why the proposal has been brought forward. 
A counter argument could be made that by not including the Council's aspiration 
to provide a new school on a single site would be more likely to fall foul of the 
requirement in the Code to, "include sufficient reasons and information for 
particular proposals to enable intelligent consideration and responses."  
 

62 The Statutory Notice mentions the closure of 
both schools without specifying the background 
of their language categorisation and does not 
explain to the layman what exactly is a Category 
1 or 2 school.  
The Notice does not specifically refer to the fact 
that parents can choose to send their children to 
a category one school and ensure free transport 
for pupils to attend a nearby Category one 
school.  

The School Organisation Code 2013 does not state that the language category 
needs to be noted when discontinuing a school.  
The Statutory Notice for the proposal does state that further information 
regarding the proposal can be found on the Council's website and it names the 
Welsh Government document that details the language categorisations and the 
document number.   
The Explanatory note details where people can get hold of the consultation 
document, the Council’s School Admissions Policy and Home to School Transport 
Policy, which provides this level of information. 

2 7% 

63 Why does the Church in Wales want to open a 
new Category 2 school and not a Category 1 
school? How much influence does it have on the 
decision?  

The Diocese of St.Asaph responded to the formal consultation stating,  
"We are aware that much debate has been held over the language categorisation 
of the new school. Having considered the different options, we believe that, in 
this case, the bilingual model is the best option for fostering and promoting the 
highest possible learner outcomes for Welsh Language. To this end, we support 

1 3% 

P
age 56



Appendix 3 
 

21 
 

and endorse the statement made by the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanfair DC in 
response to this consultation. We take great pride in Ysgol Llanfair’s outstanding 
promotion and support for Welsh Language and culture. All available school data 
supports our view that their model of bilingual learning actively encourages the 
uptake of Welsh-medium education, and is particularly helpful for parents 
seeking to fully engage with their children’s learning.” 

64 The County's transportation policy separates 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn pupils who want to go to other 
Category 1 schools.  

Transport will be provided in accordance with the Council’s current School 
Transport policy.  
Within the current policy, transport is provided from the pupils home address 
and in particular the policy states that 
 " The Authority will provide discretionary transport to the nearest school 
providing Welsh medium education even if it is not their nearest qualifying 
school. For this purpose, it would be a school which is categorised as 1 or 2 
within the Welsh Government guidelines on Welsh medium Provision."  

2 7% 

65 Make other English schools in the Ruthin area 
into Category 2 schools and open a new Category 
1 area school for Welsh first language pupils and 
learners who wish to have Welsh medium 
education, as this is the wish of the majority in 
Llanfair and all of the pupils in Pentrecelyn. 

The provision within the Llanfair/ Pentrecelyn areas and the wider Ruthin area is 
not considered to be sustainable, we need to reduce surplus places and the 
number of schools we have. Overall, the Ruthin Review proposals seek to 
increase Category 1 provision in terms of places and seek to provide the right 
offer in the right locations. 
The feedback from the majority of Llanfair parents suggests support for the 
current proposal. 

1 3% 

66 The Council decided Ysgol Carreg Emlyn was to 
be Category 1 with Ysgol Cyffylliog (Category 2) 
required to conform. 

In considering any proposal the Council needs to consider the individual needs of 
the area to ensure that the right offer is made to meet the local demand, which 
fits into the overall demand for the wider area. The Council believes that applying 
a one size fits all approach would not work in Denbighshire. 
In considering this wider picture different solutions were proposed for 
Clocaenog/ Cyffylliog as opposed to the Llanfair/ Pentrecelyn proposal. 
The difference in that situation was that Ysgol Cyffylliog, which although classed 
as a Category 2 school offered little dual stream provision- it was mainly through 
the medium of Welsh.  
There was a very small cohort of pupils who had been assessed in English and 
second language Welsh over the last few years, however most pupils were 
assessed in Welsh.  
The balance overall was much greater for Welsh medium education in the area. 

1 3% 

P
age 57



Appendix 3 
 

22 
 

Ysgol Llanfair offers something distinctive. 

67 How can any school turn into a non-Welsh school 
in the end? Are you suggesting a Category 1 
school can turn into a non-Welsh school at some 
point in in the future? 

Yes, in theory this could happen. Any proposal that emerges reflects parental 
demand for places and in an instance where there is no or little demand for 
Welsh medium education then the Council would review, amongst all options the 
language category of a school and this could be reviewed to meet local demand.  

1 3% 

68 The local dialect which is unique to this small 
area will be diluted. 

Point noted. 1 3% 

69 It has been stated and published several times 
that Welsh medium education in a Category 2 
school is just like Welsh medium education in a 
Category 1 school except delivered differently- 
how is it delivered differently this is not 
explained. 

The Ysgol Llanfair DC model has both streams in the same class, and this is 
working very well.  
The configuration of the classes in the proposed new area school will be a 
decision for the Temporary Governing Body. The Local Authority would advise 
that whilst the school is on the 2 existing sites things could stay as they are.  

1 3% 

 
 P

age 58



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ruthin Area Review of Primary School 

Provision- Proposed New Area school for 
Llanfair & Pentrecelyn 

  
Appendix 4 

October 2015 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 4 
New Area School- Llanfair DC and Pentrecelyn 
 

Contact: 
 

Lisa Walchester, Customers and Education 
Support 

Updated: 06/10/15 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A service review or re-organisation proposal 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

The creation of a New Area School following the closure of Ysgol Llanfair DC and 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn. The new area school will initailly open on the exsiting school 
sites. 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

No The impact of this proposal will be neutral as very little will 
change. The only changes will be: 
1) The existing schools will close; 
2) A new school will open but operate from existing sites. 
3) The school will only need one headteacher and that post 
may be filled by one of the existing head teachers or an 
external candidate. Accordingly the post of the existing 
headteachers will be redundant and a single new position will 
be created. Advice will be provided to the governing body of 
the new school to ensure that the process of appointing a 
New Headteacher is not discriminatory 

 
 

Page 60



 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

•The consultation period started on 3rd February 2015 until 16th March 2015. The 
consultation document (standard and children friendly) circulated to all relevant 
stakeholders. 
 
•Questionnaire circulated to relevant stakeholders and an online survey prepared 
for people to complete. 
 
•Meetings held with the School Council, Staff, Governors and Parents of Ysgol 
Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn to take views and opinions. 
  
•The outcome of the consultation was summarised into a consultation report, a 
draft of which was presented to DCC’s Cabinet of elected members for them to 
consider. 
 
•The consultation report was published on the DCC and a link to the web page will 
be sent to certain relevant stakeholders.   
 
•An Objection Report detailing the objections received and the Local Authority 
response will be presented to DCC’s Cabinet of elected members for them to 
consider. 
All correspondence with stakeholders was available bilingually (Welsh and 
English). 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The impact will be neutral as noted in section 3, the proposal will not result in 
significant change.  

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

No 

 

Page 61



 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No <If yes, please provide detail> 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
No <If yes please complete the table below. If no, please explain 

here> 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 01.11.15 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Lisa Walchester 06.10.15 
 

 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Page 62



Appendix 5 
 

 

     

 
Modernising Education Programme 

 

Review of Primary School Provision in the Ruthin Area 

 

Formal Consultation Document 

Proposal for a new Area School to replace 
Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

 

February 2015 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



1 
 

Contents  

No Description Page No 

1.  Introduction 2 

2.  Summary of proposal 2 

3.  Consultation Process 3 

4.  Power to make a decision 5 

5.  Background to the proposal 5 

6.  Current Provision 7 

7.  Educational attainment 12 

8.  Alternative provision 13 

9.  Secondary provision 15 

10.  Additional Learning needs provision 15 

11.  The proposal in detail 16 

12.  What is the proposed option? 19 

13.  Language Provision 22 

14.  Admission arrangements 26 

15.  What are the transport implications of this proposal? 26 

16.  What are the staffing implications of this proposal? 26 

17.  What are the financial implications of this proposal? 27 

18.  Site 28 

19.  How would any new school buildings be financed? 29 

20.  What are the disadvantages of this proposal? 30 

21.  Alternative options 31 

22.  Explanation of the statutory process 35 

23.  Community, Welsh Language and Equality assessment 36 

24.  Response Form 37 

 Appendix 1 38 

 Appendix 2 40 

 Formal Consultation Response Form 43 

 

 

 

  

Page 64



2 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 In 2013 Denbighshire County Council completed an Informal Consultation with 

eleven primary schools in the Ruthin Area. 
 
1.2 As a consequence of the informal consultation exercise Denbighshire County 

Council wish formally to consult with all interested parties on a proposal which they 
consider would strengthen future provision. 

 
1.3 The proposal that: 
 

Denbighshire County Council would close Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
on the 31st August 2016; and the Church in Wales will establish a new Area School 
on the existing sites from the 1st September 2016. 

 
2. Summary of proposal 
 
 First Phase 
 
2.1 This formal consultation relates to a proposal to create the New Area School to 

serve both Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Pentrecelyn Communities. Throughout this 
document, this proposal is called the Current Proposal. 

 
2.2 If the Current Proposal is agreed and implemented the first phase would see the 

existing Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn close on 31st August 2016.  The new 
Church in Wales Area School would open on 1st September 2016.  

 
2.3 In accordance with the School Organisation Code, the Church in Wales have been 

consulted on the draft proposal and are in general support of the proposal. It is 
proposed that the new area school will be a Category 2- Dual Stream Primary 
School where two types of provision exist side-by-side. Parents/pupils opt either for 
the mainly Welsh-medium or mainly English-medium provision. Both Welsh and 
English are used in the day to day business of the school. The language of 
communication with the pupils is determined by the nature of the curricular 
provision, but in some schools high priority is given to creating a Welsh-language 
ethos throughout the school. The school communicates with parents in both 
languages. The competency and confidence of pupils in both English and Welsh will 
be depending upon the ethos and policies of the school and governing body. See 
Appendix 1 for details of the categorisation categories and what they mean.  

 
2.4 It is proposed that the new area school would initially use the existing buildings in 

Llanfair and Pentrecelyn.  The way in which the sites will be used will be a decision 
for the headteacher and governing body to discuss and implement. Options that 
could be considered are keeping the pupils and staff as they are with increased 
opportunity for the 2 sites to come together for specific events. This will allow for a 
smoother transition into the new build for both pupils and staff. Throughout this 
document the creation of the Dual-Site Area School is called the First Phase. 

Page 65



3 
 

Second Phase 
 
2.5 The next phase would see the Area School consolidated on a new site in the 

Llanfair/ Pentrecelyn area, subject to land availability and suitability. We are 
proposing that the new build will be ready by September 2017 therefore ensuring 
the split site will only be for one academic year. Councillors will consider approval 
for the capital funding in February 2015.  

 
2.6 Throughout this document the movement onto a new site is called the Second 

Phase. 
 
 
3. Consultation Process 
 
3.1 This formal consultation process relates to the Current Proposal and both the First 

and Second Phase. This formal consultation is being carried out to ensure that all 
relevant parties have an opportunity to contribute to this important subject.   

 
3.2 This formal consultation document has been sent to a wide range of potential 

consultees including: 

a. Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol 

Pentrecelyn; 

b. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following schools: 
  i) Ysgol Llanfair DC; 

ii) Ysgol Pentrecelyn; 
iii) Ysgol Pant Pastynog; 
iv) Ysgol Pen Barras; 
v) Ysgol Rhewl; 
vi) Ysgol Carreg Emlyn; 
vii) Rhos Street School; 
viii) Ysgol Borthryn; 
viiii) Ysgol Dyffryn Ial; 
x)  Ysgol Bro Elwen; 
xi)  Ysgol Llanbedr 

c. Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph and Roman Catholic Diocese of 

Wrexham; 

d. Headteachers and Chairs of Governors of all Denbighshire Schools; 
e. Independent nursery providers in the Ruthin area; 
f. Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years 

Development and Childcare Partnerships; 
g. All Denbighshire County Councillors; 
h. Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing areas affected 

by the proposal; 
i. Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd Community Council; 
j. Llanelidan Community Council; 
k. Efenechtyd Community Council; 

Page 66



4 
 

l.  Ruthin Town Council; 
m. The Welsh Government; 
n. Estyn;  
o. Relevant teaching and staff trades unions. 
p. Taith 
q. Gwasanaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion (GwE) 
r. North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 
s. Flintshire County Council 
t.  Wrexham County Borough Council.  

 
3.3 This formal consultation document has also been published on the Denbighshire 

County Council website www.denbighshire.gov.uki 
 
3.4 The formal consultation period in respect of the Current Proposal will take place 

between 3rd February 2015 until 16th March 2015. 
 
3.5 A series of formal consultation events will take place during this period. These will 

be arranged in the format of a ‘parents evening’ where attendees will be able to 
speak with officers on a one to one basis. Details of the meetings are included in 
the letter which is circulated.  

   
3.6 Events will also be held with pupils at Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn.   
 
3.7 A supplementary versionii of this formal consultation document has been produced 

for and made available to children and young people who are likely to be affected 
by the Current Proposal.  The supplementary version has been written specifically 
to enable children and young people to understand better and engage with the 
formal consultation. 

 
3.8 You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current 

Proposal at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing.  Responses 
should be sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County 
Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e-mail to 
modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk by no later than 16th March 2015. 

 
3.9 At the end of the formal consultation period all views received will be collated and 

considered before any recommendation is made to proceed to the next stage and 
issue a statutory notice. 

 
3.10 It is anticipated that Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet will consider a report 

on the outcome of this formal consultation (including a recommendation from 
Council officers) in May/June.  

 
 
 
 
 

Key Points:  

 Formal Consultation starts on the 3rd February 2015 and finishes on the 16th March 2015. 

 We are consulting with all stakeholders including children attending the schools.  

 We intend to report back to Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet in May/ June. 

Page 67

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/
mailto:modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk


5 
 

 
4. Power to make a decision 
 
4.1 Denbighshire County Council is permitted to publish proposals to establish a new 

area school according to the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013iii.  
Accordingly, the formal publication of the closure of the two existing schools may 
be carried out by the Council following the correct statutory procedure. 

 
 
5. Background to the proposal 
 
5.1 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education Policy 

Frameworkiv in January 2009 to provide a platform upon which to review existing 
school provision. 

 
5.2 The council is committed to providing a first class education for all children and 

young people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed 
that ‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the 
importance of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that 
meet the needs of 21st century Wales. 

 
5.3 We know that we have to change and modernise education provision in the county, 

as improvements in education cannot be sustained without changes to the way 
education is provided.  Schools need to be able to provide the best possible 
learning experience so that children and young people in Denbighshire have the 
widest opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential. 

 
5.4 In November 2012 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the 

commencement of an informal consultation on the future of primary education in 
the Ruthin Review.  The informal consultation document highlighted a number of 
issues that needed to be addressed to achieve long term sustainability.  These 
included: 

a.  Sustainability of Schools and High Quality Provision  
b.  Surplus Places  
c. Condition and Suitability of school buildings (incl. use of mobile      

accommodation) 
d.  Recruitment of Head Teachers 
e.  Demand for Welsh Medium Education 

 
5.5 The informal consultation ended on 22nd March 2013 and Denbighshire County 

Council has carefully considered the issues raised during this period.  In total over 
63 letters and emails were received from stakeholders together with 195 
questionnaires completed by parents.  The findings of the informal consultation 
exercise have been compiled by the council and have been published on its website 
as part of the decision making process. 

 

Page 68



6 
 

5.6 Cabinet in June 2013 agreed a range of recommendations for the Ruthin area. This 
included the recommendation to the Governing Bodies of Ysgol Pentrecelyn and 
Ysgol Llanfair DC that they form a federation to be in place no later than 1st 
September 2014.  Between September 2013 and April 2014 discussions 
commenced with both Governing Bodies to explore the scope for joint working. In 
May 2014 the Welsh Government published new regulations which effectively 
prevented the two schools from federation due to one school being a Community 
School and the other a Voluntary Controlled School.   

 
5.7 Both Governing Bodies have continued dialogue with Denbighshire regarding 

options for joint working to ensure sustainable provision in the Llanfair / 
Pentrecelyn area.  This has included examining options for working together as an 
area school and moving towards a single site.  During these meetings an overall 
consensus towards the area school model has been supported alongside the new 
school being designated as a Voluntary Controlled School recognised by the Church 
in Wales.  Both Governing Bodies have expressed support for retaining their 
existing language designation; namely Governors of Ysgol Pentrecelyn would 
support the new school being a Category 1 school and Governors of Ysgol Llanfair 
would support the new school being a Category 2 school. 

 
5.8 In developing this proposal the Council has been mindful of the relative strengths of 

both Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn against the long term needs for the 
Ruthin area. However the accommodation at both schools does not meet modern 
requirements and could hinder future delivery of the curriculum. Based on current 
provision maintaining the status quo could provide greater risks than any proposals 
for change. For the long term the authority believes that partnership working 
between both schools will provide greater stability. This proposal will formalise this 
option of joint working and provide the foundation for moving towards a modern 
purpose built accommodation.  

 
5.9 This proposal is part of a reorganisation of primary schools in Ruthin, this proposal 

is moving forward at the same time as: 
i. A new purpose built shared campus in the town of Ruthin to enable the 
relocation of Ysgol Pen Barras and Rhos Street School to the new 
development on Glasdir. 
ii. A new area school building for Ysgol Carreg Emlyn who are currently on 2 
sites in Clocaenog and Cyffylliog.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Points:  

 Modernising Education is a Denbighshire County Council priority. 

 The report of the informal consultation is published on our website. 

Page 69



7 
 

6. Current Provision 
 
6.1 This section details the current provision at Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn.   

 
Ysgol Llanfair DC 

 
6.2 Ysgol Llanfair DC is located in the centre of the village of Llanfair DC and serves an 

age range of 4 – 11 years old. The school is identified as a Category 2 – Dual stream 

primary school- this is where two types of provision exist side-by-side and 

parents/pupils opt either for the mainly Welsh-medium or mainly English-medium 

provision. 

   

6.3 It is a voluntary controlled school predominately serving the villages of Llanfair DC, 

Pwllglas and the surrounding area. This is illustrated in the diagram below which 

shows the postcode location of the home address for each pupil. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



8 
 

6.4 As of September 2014 Ysgol Llanfair DC had 92 full time pupils, and there are 
currently 13 part time pupils in nursery.  The numbers of pupils in each year group 
are as follows:  

 

Reception  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

15 13 11 13 12 13 15 

 
 
 
6.5 The full time pupil numbers for the last 5 years are illustrated below, these are 

taken from the January PLASC figures.   
PLASC- Pupil Level Annual School Census is collected every January by the Welsh 
Government and looks at the number of pupils on roll on a specified day in January.  

 

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

94 96 93 90 84 
 
  
 
6.6 The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls, based on January 2014 data, suggests 

that a steady increase in future pupil numbers will occur at the school as illustrated 
below: 

 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers –January 2014 PLASC 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

82 80 83 87 87 
 
 

6.7 The capacity of the school building has been calculated at 113 pupils.  As of 

September 2014 the school had 21 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 19% of the 

total capacity.  The school is operating at below capacity but the school does have 

two temporary classrooms which provide 54 places. The two temporary classrooms 

have been in place for over 3 years and therefore must be included in the overall 

capacity assessment for the school. As a result the admission number for the school 

has been increased to 15.  
 

6.8 The school’s last Estyn Inspection was in June 2010v and the inspection report, in 
summary, commented as follows: 

 
Current performance 
The school is good and a very happy establishment because: 

 The school’s distinct feature is the sense of a family community and closeness to 
learners; 

 There is an element of excellence in the learning experiences offered to learners 
and this has a positive impact on their achievement; 

 They make progress, achieve well and become confidently bilingually. 
 

Page 71



9 
 

 
Recommendations 
In order to improve, the school needs to: 

 Maintain the good standards whilst aiming for excellence; 

 Raise ICT standards in Key stage 2; 

 Develop learners’ self-assessment strategies in order that they become more 
independent learners; 

 Ensure consistency in comments on learners work, giving them clear guidance on 
what they need to do to improve their work; 

 Complete and align work plans for the new curriculum in Key stage 1 and 2; 

 Strengthen the monitoring system to focus more specifically on the achievement of 
learners. 
 

Key Question  Inspection Grade 

1. How well do learners achieve? Grade 2  

2. How effective are teaching, training and 

assessment? 

Grade 2 

3. How well do the learning experiences 

meet the needs and interests of learners 

and the wider community? 

Grade 1 

4. How well are learners cared for, guided 

and supported? 

Grade 2 

5. How effective are leadership and 

strategic management? 

Grade 2 

6. How well do leaders and managers 

evaluate and improve quality and 

standards? 

Grade 2 

7. How efficient are leaders and managers 

in using resources? 

Grade 2 

Key: 
Grade 1  Good with outstanding features   

Grade 2  Good features and no important shortcomings 

Grade 3  Good features outweigh shortcomings   

Grade 4  Some good features, but shortcomings in important areas 

Grade 5  Many important shortcomings 

 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 
6.9 Ysgol Pentrecelyn is located on the outskirts of the village of Pentrecelyn and serves 

an age range of 4-11. The school is currently identified as a Category 1 – Welsh 

medium primary school where all pupils in the Foundation Phase experience the 

areas of learning through the medium of Welsh. The school predominately serves 

children from Graigfechan, Pentrecelyn, Llanelidan and the surrounding areas. This 

Page 72



10 
 

is illustrated in the diagram below which shows the postcode location of the home 

address for each pupil. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.10 As of September 2014 Ysgol Pentrecelyn had 35 full time pupils and there are 
currently 12 part time pupils in nursery.  Pupils in each year group are as follows: 

 

Reception  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2 8 7 6 3 6 3 

 
6.11 The pupil numbers have fluctuated over recent years as illustrated below: 
 

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

23 20 27 31 39 

 
6.12 The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that an increase in future pupil 

numbers will occur at the school as illustrated below: 
 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January 2014 PLASC 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

37 40 40 42 41 

 
6.13 The capacity of the school building has been calculated at 56 pupils.  As of 

September 2014 the school had 21 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 37% of the 
total capacity.  

Page 73



11 
 

 
6.14 A new temporary headteacher has been appointed since 1st September 2014. The 

previous acting headteacher, was on a secondment and ran the school for three 
years, she has returned to her original substantive post at the end of the 2014 
summer term. Headteacher recruitment is both a national and local issue with 
smaller schools in particular finding it difficult to recruit permanent headteachers. 
In general the lack of a permanent headteacher can impact on leadership and 
management of a school and may represent a long term risk to the delivery of 
education and to standards within a school. The Current Proposal could see the 
development of leadership and management structures, to provide increased 
opportunities for staff development and progression. The governing body have 
been keen to seek a permanent appointment whilst discussions have been ongoing 
with regards to the Ruthin primary school review, this situation has been regularly 
discussed and reviewed with the Local Authority. The Local Authority have advised 
the Governing Body against advertising for a permanent head at this time.  

 
6.15 The schools last Estyn inspection was in November 2014 vi and the inspection 

report, in summary, commented as follows:  
 

Current performance 
The school’s current performance is adequate because:  

 many pupils make appropriate progress during their time at the school; pupils nearly all co-

operate well in small groups or in pairs, and develop as effective independent learners.  

 nearly all pupils’ oral skills in Welsh develop very robustly;  

 almost all pupils take pride in their Welshness and take an enthusiastic part in cultural and 

community activities; and  

 schemes of work ensure suitable activities for the majority of pupils.  

 
Recommendations 
In order to improve, the school needs to: 

 Raise standards of extended writing in Welsh and English; 

 Raise standards of numeracy across the curriculum in Key stage 2; 

 Plan learning experiences that enable more able pupils to achieve according to their 
ability consistently; 

 Ensure that the standard of teaching across the school is consistently good. 
 

Key Question  Inspection Grade 

1.  How good are outcomes? Adequate 

2. How good is provision? Adequate 

3. How good are leadership and management? Good 

 

Key: 
Excellent Many strengths, including significant examples of sector-leading practice  

Good  Many strengths and no important areas requiring significant improvement 

Adequate Strengths outweigh areas for improvement   

Unsatisfactory Important areas for improvement outweigh strengths 

Page 74



12 
 

 
7. Educational attainment 
 
7.1 Educational standards at both schools over the past five years are shown below.  
   

 

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 

 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 88.9% 91.7% 100.0% 94.1% 93.3% 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn  66.7% * * * 80.0% 

Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire 78.1% 82.3% 83.5% 86.0% 86.6% 

Wales – Average 78.2% 80.0% 88.6% 84.3% 86.1% 
*However as a result of very small cohorts in each year a meaningful comparison with local and national 
averages is not possible 

 
7.2 Pupils in Ysgol Pentrecelyn are educated in two classrooms of mixed ages.  

The teaching and learning is primarily through the medium of Welsh, with the aim 
of every pupil being fluent in Welsh and English by the end of KS2. In the 
Foundation Phase increasing numbers of pupils come from a naturally Welsh 
background and there is a Welsh ethos in the delivery of activities and the 
curriculum. The foundation phase has increased in numbers and has a wide range 
of age and ability. 

 
7.3 In Ysgol Pentrecelyn the 2014 Foundation Phase indicator was 83.3%. This was 

lower than Welsh, LA and Family average. The percentage achieving the expected 
outcome in Welsh Language development was 83.3%. This was lower than the 
Welsh, LA and family average. However 50% of pupils gained the higher outcomes, 
this was higher than the Welsh, LA and family average. The percentage achieving 
the expected outcome in Mathematical Development was 83.3%. This was lower 
than the Welsh, LA and family average. However the number that gained the higher 
outcomes was higher than the Welsh, LA and family average.  100% of learners 
achieved the expected outcome in Personal and social development. This was 
higher than the Welsh, LA and family average. 67% achieved the higher outcomes, 
again higher than Welsh, LA and Family average.  

 

7.4 In 2014 Key Stage 2 results for Ysgol Pentrecelyn the Core Subject Indicator was 
80%. This was lower than Welsh, LA and Family average. The percentage achieving 
the expected levels in Welsh Language was 80%. This was lower than the Welsh, LA 
and family average. However 40% of pupils gained the higher levels, this was higher 
than the Welsh and LA average. The percentage achieving the expected levels in 
Maths was 80%. This was lower than the Welsh, LA and family average. However 
40% of pupils gained the higher levels, this was higher than the Welsh and LA 
average. The percentage achieving the expected levels in Science was 80%. This 
was lower than the Welsh, LA and family average. However 40% of pupils gained 
the higher levels, this was higher than the Welsh and LA average. 

 

7.5 In Ysgol Llanfair DC the 2014 Foundation Phase indicator was 92.3%. This was 
higher than Welsh and LA average. The percentage achieving the expected 

Page 75



13 
 

outcome in Welsh Language development was 100%. This was higher than the 
Welsh, LA and family average. 30% of pupils gained the higher levels, this was 
higher than the Welsh and LA average. The percentage achieving the expected 
outcome in English Language development was 66.7%. This was lower than the 
Welsh, LA and family average. No pupils gained the higher outcomes. The 
percentage achieving the expected outcome in Mathematical Development was 
100%. This was higher than the Welsh and  LA average. 38.5% gained the higher 
outcomes, this was higher than the Welsh, LA and family average. 100% of learners 
achieved the expected outcome in Personal and social development. This was 
higher than the Welsh, LA and family average. 46% achieved the higher outcomes, 
higher than Local Authority average.  

 

7.6 In 2014 Key Stage 2 results for Ysgol Llanfair DC the Core Subject Indicator was 
93.3%. This was above the Welsh, LA and Family average. The percentage achieving 
the expected levels in English Language was 93.3%. This was higher than the Welsh, 
LA and family average. 46.7% of pupils gained the higher levels, this was higher 
than the Welsh, family and LA average. The percentage achieving the expected 
levels in Welsh Language was 90.9%. This was higher than the Welsh and LA 
average. 40% of pupils gained the higher levels, this was higher than the Welsh and 
LA average. The percentage achieving the expected levels in Maths was 93.3%. This 
was higher than the Welsh, LA and family average. 40% of pupils gained the higher 
levels, this was higher than the Welsh and LA average. The percentage achieving 
the expected levels in Science was 93.3%. This was higher than the Welsh and LA 
average. 40% of pupils gained the higher levels, this was higher than the Welsh, 
Family and LA average.  

 
8. Alternative provision  
 
8.1 Should the Current Proposal proceed, Denbighshire County Council would wish to 

see all pupils transfer to the New Area School to ensure that they continue to 
receive their education in a rural area and to a consistently high standard. 

 
8.2 Denbighshire County Council believe that the majority of pupils would transfer to 

the new area school. We appreciate that we may lose some pupils who currently 
attend Ysgol Pentrecelyn and whose parents wish to send their children to a 
Category 1- Welsh medium school. With this in mind the nearest alternative schools 
below are both Category 1 schools. 

 
School Name Type of School Current 

Capacity 
Surplus 
Places 

Nursery 
Places 

Number of 
pupils on Roll 
(Sept 2014) 

Ysgol Pen Barras 
(Ruthin) 

Welsh / 
Community 252 29 36 

 
223 

Ysgol Bro Elwern 
(Gwyddelwern) Welsh/ Community 48 13 6 

 
35 

 

Page 76



14 
 

8.3  Further information is provided in Appendix 2, which compares the 2 schools listed 
above with Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn with regard to: 

 
1. Education attainment 
2. Free School Meals (FSM) 
3. Additional Learning Needs Data 
4. Current full time pupil numbers ( September 2014 PLASC) 
5. Current part time nursery pupil numbers ( September 2014 

PLASC) 
6. Pupil numbers for the last 5 years for each school 
7. Projected pupil numbers for the next 5 years 
8. Estyn reports summary for each school 

 
8.4 The information contained in Appendix 2 suggests that the alternative provision will 

at least maintain the standard of education provision for pupils wishing to move. 
Both schools have surplus places and will be able to continue to deliver the full 
curriculum at the foundation phase and each key stage of education, should a 
number of parents choose to send their children to an alternative provision as a 
consequence of the proposal. 

 
8.5 The table below shows the overall condition category for each school taken from 

the 21st Century Schools Survey Condition Category for the above schools: 
 

School Overall Condition  

Ysgol Pen Barras C 

Ysgol Bro Elwern C 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn B 

Ysgol Llanfair DC B 

Key: 
A- Good (No deterioration) 
B- Satisfactory (Minor deterioration) 
C- Poor (Major deterioration) 
D- Bad (Life expired) 

   
Ysgol Pen Barras is in Ruthin and the school site is split between the English 
medium school Rhos Street, which occupies the original building and Penbarras 
which occupies the extension and mobiles. The 2 schools share the canteen and 
annexe to Llanrhydd Street. There are currently 5 mobiles at Ysgol Pen Barras 
mainly located between the upper playground and the playing field. It is important 
to note that there are plans for a new purpose built shared campus in the town of 
Ruthin to enable the relocation of Ysgol Pen Barras and Rhos Street School to the 
new development on Glasdir. 
 
Ysgol Bro Elwern is located in Gwyddelwern. The school buildings consists of a 19th 
century/early twentieth century traditional village school and school house, 
fronting the main road through the village, to which a modern flat roofed extension 
has been added to the rear. There is no hall space at the school and pupils currently 

Page 77



15 
 

use community facilities in the village, in partnership with Ysgol Betws Gwerfil Goch 
which it is federated with, for the delivery of physical education curriculum.  

 
8.6 Other schools on the periphery of the catchment areas of the existing schools are 

listed below: 
 

School Name Type of School Current 
Capacity 

Surplus 
Places 

Nursery 
Places 

Number of 
pupils on Roll 
(Sept 2014) 

Ysgol Rhewl (Rhewl) 
Dual Stream / 
Community 82 29 11 

 
53 

Ysgol Pant Pastynog 
(Prion) 

Welsh / Church in 
Wales (VC) 54 -8 7 

 
62 

Ysgol Carreg Emlyn 
( Clocaenog & 
Cyffylliog) Welsh/ Community 80 20 11 

 
 
60 

Ysgol Borthyn 
(Ruthin) 

English/ Church in 
Wales (VC) 142 22 20 

 
120 

Ysgol Llanbedr 
(Llanbedr) 

English/ Church in 
Wales (VC) 54 32 11 

 
22 

Ysgol Dyffryn Ial 
(Llandegla) 

English/ Church in 
Wales (VC) 60 19 8 

 
41 

Rhos Street School  
(Ruthin) 

English/ 
Community 189 38 23 

 
151 

 
 

 

 

 

 

9. Secondary Provision 

Both Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn currently feed Ysgol Brynhyfryd and 

the new Area School will continue to feed Ysgol Brynhyfryd. See table in Section 

13.2 for more information in regards to pupil progression from both schools into 

secondary education.  

 

10. Additional Learning needs provision 

 

10.1 If the Current Proposal is approved the two existing schools will become one new 
school but the pupils will continue to be taught on the existing sites. The most 
significant change for a pupil would be a change in site and teacher. Accordingly, 
any pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) who currently attend the schools 
will continue to receive the same education and support but the environment may 
change.  The Council will take all practicable steps to minimise disruption and assist 
pupils with any transfer. 

Key point: There is alternative provision for communities within the wider area which may 

receive pupils as a consequence of this current proposal. 

Page 78



16 
 

10.2 The council appreciates that Phase 2 proposal to move to a New Area School will 
result in greater change than operating one school on two sites.  This will affect all 
pupils but it is likely to prove even more challenging to pupils with ALN.  The council 
will take all practicable steps to minimise disruption and to assist such pupils with 
the transition. Any pupils with additional learning needs currently attending either 
school will continue to receive the same educational support that is required. 
Arrangements that are currently in place for pupils, such as dedicated 1-2-1 
support, will transfer to their new learning environment. 

10.3 Denbighshire County Council will provide appropriate help and support for 
additional learning needs pupils. Should parents with pupils who are registered ALN 
have any questions regarding the support that the Council could offer they will 
have the opportunity to speak to the relevant ALN Education Officers. 

10.4 The facilities available at a New Area School will be designed in consultation with 
Denbighshire County Council’s ALN Education Officers, and the staff and pupils 
concerned. It is anticipated that this approach will produce improved conditions 
and so learning experience for pupils with ALN specifically regarding dedicated 1-2-
1 areas, resources, accessibility and acoustics. 

 

 

 

 
 
11. The proposal in detail - description and rationale 
 
11.1 Denbighshire County Council has a responsibility to provide the best possible 

educational provision for children and young people. This proposal has been 
developed in line with: 
a. the Council’s commitment to ‘Modernising Education’; 
b. the School Effectiveness Framework’s aim of enabling all children and young 

people to develop their full potential. 
 
11.2 There are a number of issues facing both schools that could impact on their ability 

to sustain educational standards and experiences into the future. 
 

Educational case for change 
 

11.3 In considering the proposal careful attention has been given to the likely impact of 
this proposal on the quality of outcomes, provision and leadership and 
management. In summary the proposers believe that the proposal would at least 
maintain provision for the following reasons: 

 
i. Outcomes- standards and wellbeing- The proposal is likely to at least 

maintain existing outcomes for the new school. It is anticipated that during 
the amalgamation phase the Temporary Governing Body will review the 

Key Points: 

 A new area school would provide an opportunity to improve facilities. 

Page 79



17 
 

curriculum to be adopted for the new school and the local authority would 
work with the Temporary Governing Body to ensure that the strengths of 
both schools are developed, alongside external advice to ensure that the 
framework for improved standards are in place for the new school.  
 

The Current Proposal will offer greater opportunities for the two schools to work 
together to improve staff expertise that will lead to raising standards.   
For example: 

a. Teachers can work together to plan and prepare high quality lessons and 
standardise assessment and thus reducing the demands on individual teachers;  
b. Peer observation of the best teachers lessons to develop consistently high 
teaching practice, and 
c. Sharing resources to enable more efficient and innovative ways of working 

  
The proposers would expect that the revised arrangements could lead to a raise in 
standards through teachers working together to plan and prepare high quality 
lessons, by undertaking peer observations. 
 

ii. Provision- learning experiences, teaching, care support and guidance, 
learning environment-  The proposal  could allow provision to be maintained 
as it is anticipated that during the amalgamation phase the majority of 
pupils will be educated in their current learning environment with existing 
staff. An Area school will provide additional teaching capacity for smaller 
groups of pupils who are in need of extra support; including greater capacity 
for more able and talented pupils. See table below for future projections for 
the new area school: 

 

  
 
 Currently pupils are taught in classes encompassing up to 4 age groups. A larger 

area school will provide opportunities for pupils to be taught within a reduced age 
range. 

 
Small schools are limited in their abilities to respond to fluctuations in pupil 
numbers by their schools structural and teaching capacity. A larger area school will 
be able to respond to fluctuations in pupil number that are a feature of rural 
schools. 

 
 

iii. Leadership and management- leadership, improving quality, partnership    
working and resource management- The proposal could lead to 
improvements in respect of leadership and management. The amalgamated 
phase should provide stability in terms of resource management, improve 
partnership working and provide an opportunity for strengthening 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January 2014 PLASC 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

119 120 123 129 128 

Page 80



18 
 

leadership. There will be more opportunities for the teachers to share good 
practice and develop leadership skills during the amalgamated phase.  

 
Smaller schools, due to financial constraints, find it difficult to implement senior 
leadership structures that meet the requirements of teachers pay and conditions.  
In Ysgol Pentrecelyn a new temporary Headteacher has been appointed since 1 
September 2014. The previous acting Headteacher, was on a secondment and ran 
the school for three years, she returned to her original substantive post end of 
summer term 2014. The Current Proposal could see the development of leadership 
and management structures, to provide increased opportunities for staff 
development and progression. The governing body have been keen to seek a 
permanent appointment whilst discussions have been ongoing with regards to the 
Ruthin primary school review, this situation has been regularly discussed and 
reviewed with the Local Authority. The Local Authority have advised the Governing 
Body against advertising for a permanent head at this time. 

 
 

Adequacy of existing school buildings and sites 

 

11.4 In terms of the 21st Century Schools Survey Condition Category the condition of 

both schools is B-Satisfactory (Minor deterioration). Whilst the existing facilities at 

both schools allow for the delivery of the basic curriculum entitlement, the current 

environment restricts the potential to deliver the innovative curriculum required 

for 21st century learning. 

 

11.5 Ysgol Llanfair DC currently have two mobile classrooms which provide classrooms 

for years 5 and 6, with year 4 accommodated in a first floor area which is accessed 

via a narrow staircase which is not ideal. The toilet provision is a major concern at 

the school as it is below the statutory minimum for current pupil numbers. Energy 

consumption at the site is £11/m² per annum which is mid range. 

 

 There is no separate hall or dining facilities with classrooms in the main building 

doubling up as dining area and assembly areas. The school use the church hall for 

events and the church for services- unfortunately these are both located on the 

opposite side of the A525 resulting in pupils and staff having to cross a busy road to 

access these facilities. 

 

 A major concern for the site is the arrangement for parking and the lack of suitable 

drop off/ pick up and pedestrian facilities. Currently there is an agreement with the 

village hall and the local authority that for a small charge per day staff have to park 

at the church hall- this cost is met by the local authority. There is also limited 

parking for deliveries.  

 

Page 81



19 
 

11.6 Ysgol Pentrecelyn is split between the extended original school and the school 

house. Energy consumption at the site is £11/m² per annum which is mid range. 

  

 The school has parking adjacent to the highway for approximately 9 vehicles. There 

is a reasonably sized field incorporating a football pitch and small soft play area, the 

field area is not owned by the authority but by Llysfasi College. This can be utilised 

by the school as long as the school remains open as a school.  

 

 The catering facilities are not ideal with the kitchen in need of a refurbishment and 

there is poor access for deliveries with steps at the access door of the kitchen. Also 

there are steps down into the dining area from the kitchen which can be 

problematic. 

   

11.7 Both schools have a maintenance backlog- Ysgol Llanfair DC of £53,357.64 and 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn £47,717.20.   

 

11.8 Both sites are in need of significant investment to enable both schools to provide a 

learning environment fit for purpose to meet the requirements of the 21st Century 

Schools Programme.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

12. What is the proposed option? 

 

12.1 This formal consultation relates to the Current Proposal, namely: to close Ysgol 
Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn to enable the establishment of an Area School 
serving the communities of Llanfair DC, Pentrecelyn and the surrounding areas on 
the existing sites.  

 

12.2 A second phase, which will follow the completion of the current proposal, would 
involve construction of a new school building in a location to be determined in the 
Llanfair DC area.  

 

What would this mean? 
 

12.3 If the Current Proposal was approved: 
 

a. Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn School would both close on  
31st August 2016; and 

b. The Area School would open on 1st September 2016 (initially on the existing 
sites in Llanfair DC and Pentrecelyn and utilising the existing buildings). 

 

Key points:  

 Small schools have limited capacity to implement senior leadership structures. 

 Both school buildings are not fit for purpose and would require significant 

investment to improve facilities. 

Page 82



20 
 

12.4 The new school would be voluntary controlled school and categorised as a 
Category 2- Dual Stream Primary School where two types of provision exist side-
by-side in these schools. Parents/pupils opt either for the mainly Welsh-medium or 
mainly English-medium provision. Both Welsh and English are used in the day to 
day business of the school. The language of communication with the pupils is 
determined by the nature of the curricular provision, but in some schools high 
priority is given to creating a Welsh-language ethos throughout the school. The 
school communicates with parents in both languages. The competency and 
confidence of pupils in both English and Welsh will be depending upon the ethos 
and policies of the school and governing body.  

 
12.5 It is proposed that the new area school would initially use the existing buildings in 

Llanfair and Pentrecelyn.  The way in which the sites will be used will be a decision 
for the headteacher and governing body to discuss and implement. Options that 
could be considered are keeping the pupils and staff as they are with increased 
opportunity for the 2 sites to come together for specific events. This will allow for a 
smoother transition into the new build for both pupils and staff. 

 
12.6 The Welsh language impact assessment has considered the potential impact to 

pupils, parents and the wider community of this proposal and it will be an essential 
role of the new governing body to ensure that the mitigation measures outlined in 
the impact assessment are progressed to ensure that a strong welsh language 
ethos is maintained as is the case now in both schools.  

 

12.7 All children attending Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn would transfer to the 
Area School; subject to parental preference.   

 
12.8 In terms of the leadership and management of the Area School, as of 1st September 

2016 there would be one Governing Body, one Executive Headteacher and one 
group of staff.  The Governing Body would include Parent, Denbighshire County 
Council, Teacher, Staff and Church in Wales representation together with a number 
of Community Governors.  Prior to the opening of the Area School a Temporary 
Governing Body would be established and this would take key decisions regarding 
the appointment of the Headteacher and the supportive leadership team, the 
staffing structure for and name of the Area School, uniform, policies etc. 

 
12.9 The temporary governing body would be encouraged to allow the existing Breakfast 

provision to continue at Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. 
 

12.10 The intention of the Council, working in partnership with the Church in Wales, 
would be to consolidate provision on to a single site- Phase 2. The vision for the 
New Area School would be a 4 - 11 provision serving 140 pupils 0.6 form entry.  We 
are proposing that the new build will be ready by September 2017 therefore 
ensuring the split site will only be for one academic year. Councillors will consider 
approval for the capital funding in February 2015. The new school accommodation 
would be based on the existing facilities at both schools, it is not anticipated that 

Page 83



21 
 

any significant changes would occur to the accommodation prior to the building of 
the proposed new school.  

 

12.11 The law relating to school reorganisation provides that when a community school 
becomes a voluntary controlled school, any land (other than playing fields) held by 
a local authority must be transferred to the relevant diocesan body; in this case, the 
Diocese. If the Proposals are progressed, it will be recommended that the buildings 
of Ysgol Pentrecelyn are transferred to the Diocese on the condition that they will 
be transferred back to DCC if at any time they stop being used as a faith school. 
Following the completion of the new school building Denbighshire County Council 
would need to consider declaring the existing site at Ysgol Pentrecelyn as surplus to 
requirements in accordance with the Modernising Education Policy Framework. It is 
anticipated that any proceeds from the disposal of surplus sites would be used to 
contribute to the overall costs of the new school building. Ysgol Llanfair DC site is 
partly owned by the Church in Wales. The process of disposing of the Ysgol Llanfair 
DC site will be considered in partnership with the Church in Wales.   

 
12.12 The table below shows the timescale that we are potentially working to, should the 

proposal go forward: 
 

Consultation period 3rd February- 16th March 2015 

Decision of Cabinet May 2015 

Statutory Notice Period June 2015- July 2015 

Decision of Cabinet September 2015 

Transition to new area school October 2015- August 2016 

The new area school on the two current sites 
in Llanfair and Pentrecelyn 

September 2016 

 
It is anticipated should investment be approved that pupils move into the new 
school on one site in September 2017. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Points: 

 All children currently attending Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn would 

transfer to the new area school subject to parental preference. 

 The new school would be a voluntary controlled Category 2 school (Dual stream) 

 The new area school would have a capacity of 169 with 23 nursery places during  

phase 1. 

 A Temporary Governing Body will be established who will appoint the Head 

teacher.  

 The school will be a Welsh Medium Category 2 school. 

 The New Area School (Phase 2) would have a capacity of 140 pupils. 

Page 84



22 
 

13. Language Provision 

13.1 When discussing language it is important to refer Denbighshire County Council’s 

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2014-2017: vii where it is stated that, 

 
“Denbighshire County Council is fully committed to the Welsh Government’s 
aspiration of delivering ‘a sustained increase in both the number and 
percentage of people able to speak Welsh. The Council recognises the 
importance of bilingualism is in 21st Century Wales and has adopted a long 
term aspiration that all children and young people in the County will leave 
full-time education being competent and confident in using both Welsh and 
English languages.” 

 
13.2 The document also highlights the importance of children continuing their education 

through the medium of Welsh in the secondary sector. Pupils attending both Ysgol 
Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn normally go onto attend the secondary school 
Ysgol Brynhyfryd in Ruthin. This currently has 3 streams- Welsh, English and the ‘N 
Stream’ (Bi-lingual)  Nearly all pupils who attend Ysgol Pentrecelyn enter the Welsh 
stream- see the table below: 

 
Language 

assessed at the 

end of KS2 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 Total 

Welsh and 
English 

5 0 4 1 6 2 18 

English only 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Secondary School Learning Pathway 
Number of pupils: 

 

 

Transferring to 
the Welsh 
Stream  

4 0 3 0 3 2 12 

Transferring to 
‘N Stream’ 

0 0 1 1 1 0 3 

Transferring to 
the English 
Stream 

0 0 0 0 1 0 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



23 
 

The table below shows the results for Ysgol Llanfair DC- the majority of pupils enter 

the Welsh stream, however there are some pupils that enter the ‘N Stream’: 

Language 
assessed at the 
end of KS2 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 Total 

Welsh and 
English 

11 11 
 

11 6 4 7 50 

English only 
 

4 6 1 6 5 0 21 

Secondary School Learning Pathway 
Number of Pupils: 

 

 

Transferring to 
the Welsh 
Stream  

11 11 10 4 2 6 44 

Transferring to 
‘N Stream’ 

4 3 1 6 4 1 19 

Transferring to 
the English 
Stream 

0 1 0 0 1 0 2 

The figures above show that over the last 6 years 88% of pupils from Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn and 67% of pupils from Ysgol Llanfair DC transferred to the Welsh 
stream.  

 
13.3 Categorisation 
 

The Welsh Government’s Defining Schools According to Welsh Medium Provision 
(Oct 2007) states the categories of schools “according to the amount of Welsh used 
in teaching and learning and in the day to day conduct of the school.”  It clearly 
states that the definitions have no basis in legislation but have been developed to 
give parents better information and “for local and national government on the 
extent to which pupils are learning through the medium of Welsh.” 

 
The document states the following in regards to Category 1 and Category 2 schools: 

 
  “1. Welsh-Medium Primary School 

Curriculum - all Pupils in the Foundation Phase experience the areas of 
learning through the medium of Welsh. Welsh is the main teaching medium 
at KS2 with at least 70% of the teaching through the medium of Welsh. 
English is introduced formally as a subject at Key Stage 2 and is taught 
through the medium of English, and English may occasionally be used for 
some aspects of some subjects. 

 
Language of the School - Welsh is the language of the day to day business of 
the school. Welsh is used as the language of communication with the pupils 
and for the school’s administration. The school communicates with parents 
in both languages. 

 

Page 86



24 
 

Outcomes - The normal expectation is that pupils, regardless of home 
language, will be able to transfer easily to Welsh medium secondary 
provision and by the end of Key Stage 2 will have reached a standard in 
English equivalent to that reached by 
pupils in predominantly English medium schools. 

 
2. Dual Stream Primary School 
Curriculum - Two types of provision exist side-by-side in these schools. 
Parents/pupils opt either for the mainly Welsh-medium or mainly English-
medium provision which is usually delivered as in categories and 5 
respectively. 

 
Language of the School - Both Welsh and English are used in the day to day 
business of the school. The language of communication with the pupils is 
determined by the nature of the curricular provision, but in some schools 
high priority is given to creating a Welsh-language ethos throughout the 
school. The school communicates with parents in both languages. 

 
Outcomes - for pupils in the Welsh stream, normal expectations are as for 
category 1. For pupils in the English medium stream, normal expectations 
are as for category 5.” 

 
 
13.4 The following table shows the outcomes for Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn in 

2014: 
 

 % achieving Level 4 + at Key Stage 2 

 English Welsh 1st 
Language 

Maths Science 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 93.3% 
 

90.9% 93.3% 93.3% 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 60.0% 
 

80.0% 80.0% 80.0% 

Denbighshire 89.2% 
 

85.1% 89.5% 90.9% 

Wales Average 88.4 
 

88.1% 88.9% 90.3% 

 
In Ysgol Llanfair DC some pupils are assessed in Welsh as a second language, in 
2014 a total number of 4 pupils (100%) gained level 6 which is above the expected 
level of level 4.  
 

13.5 Denbighshire County Council believe that Ysgol Llanfair’s current model brings 
more pupils into Welsh education who may have gone to an English medium school 
otherwise. However it is important to note that the Welsh stream in Ysgol Llanfair 
offers a similar provision to pupils who attend a Welsh medium school.  

 

Page 87



25 
 

13.6 Fluency of pupils at the schools 

 

The table below shows that similar numbers of pupils in both schools have very 

comparable skills in speaking Welsh.  

 

  Pupils on roll (taken from PLASC* Jan 2014 return) 

Fluent in Welsh Can speak Welsh but 

not fluent 

Cannot speak Welsh 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 68 (70.1%) 22 (22.7%) 7 (7.2%) 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 30 (71.4%) 10 (23.8%) 2 (4.8%) 

* PLASC – Pupil Level Annual School Census 

**Including Full and Part-Time numbers on roll 

 

13.7 Governance 

To maintain the ethos and language currently celebrated at both schools we need 
to work together to develop a supportive environment to ensure that this ethos is 
maintained through the adoption of relevant policies to safeguard the Welsh 
language.   

 
13.8 Should the proposal be implemented the temporary governing body, appointed 

from the existing governors from Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn will for 
example be required to review the staffing structure within the school.  The 
temporary governing body will need to make sure its recruitment procedures 
ensure the staff at the school, both teachers and support staff, have the required 
levels of fluency to maintain the current strong Welsh ethos. This should be 
addressed by ensuring all jobs are classified as Welsh essential during the 
recruitment process and that the governing body’s recruitment policy reflects that 
all staff members must be able to communicate in Welsh. 

 
13.9 Similarly it will be important for Denbighshire County Council as part of its overall 

monitoring role for the Welsh Education Strategic Plan to ensure that the current 
strong welsh medium ethos is retained, and intervenes as appropriate should this 
be diluted. 
 

13.10 Every governing body has to have an Instrument of Government which is a 
statement of the makeup of the Governing Body. The Instrument of Government 
has to be agreed with the local authority - the local authority would need to agree 
to include a statement about the language of the school. Any language category 
included in an Instrument of Government would need to be recognised by the 
Welsh Government. A school delivering Welsh medium education is either 
recognised as a Welsh medium school or a dual-stream school. Any future change 
to the language category of the school would be required to be the subject of 
formal consultation and statutory notices.  A Governing Body cannot undertake a 
change in language category by itself. 

 

Page 88



26 
 

 

14. Admission arrangements for the Area School 

 
14.1 The Area School would have a unified approach to admission arrangements and 

would be administered by Denbighshire County Council’s School Admissions 
service. Full support will be provided to parents who wish to apply for their children 
to be admitted to an alternative school should the proposals be implemented.  

 
15. What are the transport implications of this proposal? 

 

15.1 2013/14 costs for ‘Home to School Transport’ for the 2 schools are as follows: 

Ysgol Llanfair DC= £348 per day x 190 days= £66,120 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn= £231 per day x 190 days= £43,890 

Therefore total costs for both schools is £ 110,010 

 
15.2 Pupils will continue to be transported to their designated site for the period that 

the school stays on two sites, in accordance with the current Home to School 
Transport Policy.  

 
15.3 Currently 30 (86%) of the 35 full time Ysgol Pentrecelyn pupils get free home to 

school transport. Currently 48 ( 52%) of the 92 full time Ysgol Llanfair pupils get free 
home to school transport.    

 
15.4 Currently the road in front of Ysgol Pentrecelyn is deemed hazardous in both 

directions, however this is currently under review. Ysgol Llanfair is surrounded by a 
number of hazardous routes especially in the Pwllglas direction.  

 
16. What are the staffing implications of this proposal? 

 

16.1 Should the Current Proposal be implemented, the Area School would have only one 
Headteacher. The Temporary Governing Body of the Area School would need to 
appoint the Headteacher and this could involve national advertisements or it could 
be an internal appointment.   

 

16.2 Denbighshire County Council, with agreement from the Temporary Governing 
Body, would apply its policies to reassure and clarify the position of staff. 

  

16.3 A staffing structure would need to be developed for the Area School taking into 
account a number of factors including operating initially on two sites, delivering the 
curriculum, class sizes and budget implications. 

 

16.4 While the Area School operates on two sites the council does not anticipate any 
major changes to the existing staffing structures other than the Headteacher and 
other leadership positions. However, final decisions regarding the new staffing 

Page 89



27 
 

structure would be taken by the Temporary Governing Body and the new 
Headteacher. 

 

16.5 The council will recommend to the Temporary Governing Body that all teaching and 
associate staff posts for the Area School should be “ring-fenced” to the staff within 
the existing two schools.  

 
16.6 As part of this formal consultation process there will be full consultation with all 

members of staff and the appropriate teaching and staff unions. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

17. What are the financial implications of this proposal? 

 
17.1 The cost of provision based upon the 2014/15 budget share is £4,296 per pupil at 

Ysgol Llanfair DC and £5,364 per pupil at Ysgol Pentrecelyn, compared with the 
Denbighshire average of £3,931. 

 
17.2 The current reported financial position for the schools is:  

Balance c/f 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 

Ysgol Llanfair DC £43,878  (£3,288) (£64,964) 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn £8,759 £1,783 (£1,595) 

 *This is based on the existing 3 year plan.  

 Any balances, surplus or deficit , at either school, will transfer to the Local Authority at the 
point of change. 

 

17.3 The potential gain to the new area school whilst amalgamated on two sites, taking 
into account funding losses, gains and potential savings would be £22,026. This 
figure is based on the best available information and assumes current funding level 
would apply and that no other material changes take place at the school i.e. 
increase/ decrease in pupil numbers.  

 
17.4 Once the schools are amalgamated the budget share per pupil will be £4,274. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key points: 

 The Area school would have one Head teacher 

 The Temporary Governing Body appoints the Head teacher 

 Final decisions on staffing structures would be taken by the Temporary 

Governing Body and the new head teacher. 

 The Council will recommend that roles are “ring-fenced” for existing staff 

 All staff and unions will be consulted. 

Key points: 

 Both schools receive more than the Denbighshire average of funding per pupil. 

 All schools in Denbighshire are funded through a funding formula. 

 The Local Authority inherits any balance, surplus or deficit at the point of change. 

 It is estimated that one area school on two sites will receive more funding. 

 

Page 90



28 
 

18. Site 
 
18.1 The final site location for the New Area School, which will emerge from the Second 

Phase, will be carefully considered by Denbighshire County Council in partnership 
with the Church in Wales. 

 
18.2 In the first instance, the difficulties in expanding both current school sites within 

the existing boundaries to accommodate all pupils attending both schools have 
been acknowledged during site analysis. 

 
18.3 The priority, in considering a new single location, has been to ensure, where 

appropriate, it can be accessible to a large percentage of current and future pupils. 
See combined catchment diagram below: 

  
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



29 
 

18.4 More detailed feasibility work will be progressed to determine a preferred site 
which will enable Denbighshire County Council to enter into any negotiations which 
may be required with any third parties regarding land purchases etc. 

 
 
 Transport 
 

  
18.5 Transport would be provided in the first instance in accordance with Denbighshire 

County Council’s Transport Policy which states that free transport is provided for 
pupils who live more than 2 miles from their nearest suitable school. Both schools 
have a number of hazardous routes around them, however a number of these have 
recently been reviewed and one route to Ysgol Pentrecelyn from Llysfasi College 
direction is no longer considered hazardous therefore free transport on this route 
will cease after 17th July 2015.   

 
 

18.6 In view of the timescale between the Current Proposal being approved and a new 
site becoming operational, it is difficult to estimate the likely costs implications in 
respect of transport budgets in full.  During this time (for which the Area School 
may operate until the Second Phase is approved), there will be a range of variables 
which will impact on any modelling, including changes in pupil numbers, transport 
costs etc.   

 

 
 Financial  
 

18.7 In view of the range of variables associated with the move to a single site, at this 
stage it is more difficult to predict what the overall impact would be for the 
finances of the New Area School. Costs will be modelled taking into account the 
likely pupil numbers and floor areas based upon current projections.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19. How would any new school buildings work be financed? 
 

19.1 The Council as part of their Corporate Plan has identified as a priority investment in 
school buildings as a consequence of area reviews. Investment in the Llanfair/ 
Pentrecelyn area has been identified as an initial priority area. Councillors will 
consider approval for the capital funding in February 2015.  

 

Key points: 

Site 

 Neither existing site can accommodate the existing pupils of both schools. 

Transport 

 All request for pupil transport would be in line with Denbighshire County Council 

policy. 

Page 92



30 
 

19.2 Any savings generated for school organisation proposals such as savings from the 
removal of temporary accommodation, capital receipts and any revenue savings 
will be used to support the overall investment in this priority area. 

 
 
20. What are the disadvantages of the proposal? 
 
20.1 If the Current Proposal is approved the Area School will be located on the existing 

school sites in Llanfair and Pentrecelyn.  This arrangement would be managed to 
ensure that any disruption is kept to a minimum and should not impact negatively 
on the children’s education. 

 
20.2 If the school becomes a category 2 school there maybe a perception that the welsh 

language and ethos will be diluted. To ensure that this does not happen it will be 
essential that the governing body has a strong ethos and policies which put the 
Welsh language at the heart of the school.  As part of the development of the 
proposal a Community and Language Impact Assessment has been undertaken and 
this has highlighted a number of actions to be undertaken to mitigate against any 
potential loss of ethos.  Any new Governing Body should ensure that progress 
against these actions is closely monitored.  Similarly it will be important for 
Denbighshire as part of its overall monitoring role for the Welsh Education Strategic 
Plan to ensure that the current strong welsh medium ethos is retained, and 
intervenes as appropriate should this be diluted. 

 
20.3 There would also be implications for staff at the current Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol 

Pentrecelyn should the proposals be progressed for the development of an Area 
School.  The role of the Headteacher would need to be carefully considered by the 
Temporary Governing Body. The approach to appointments to the role of 
Headteacher/Deputy Headteachers would be an issue for determination by the 
Temporary Governing Body which would need to consider whether the positions 
should be advertised nationally or appointed internally.   

 
20.4 The new Head teacher and the Temporary Governing Body would be required to 

consider the staffing structure for the Area School. The Council would work initially 
with the Temporary Governing Body (and then with the Governing Body) of the 
Area School during these times and should the need arise would work with the 
current members of staff at both schools and/or the new area school to seek 
redeployment opportunities.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key points: 

 Changes will be managed to ensure that disruption will be minimised to ensure 

that there is no impact on education. 

 The Temporary Governing Body will need to decide if they advertised for a 

Head teacher nationally or appointed internally. 

 Some staff may be redeployed or made redundant depending on the staffing 

structure adopted. 

Page 93



31 
 

21. Alternative Options 
 
21.1 Denbighshire County Council have given careful consideration to a range of 

alternative options as part of the development of the Current Proposal.  In 
considering these options reference has been made to the main investment 
objectives of the council’s 21st Century Schools Programme which are as follows: 

 

a. Learning environments for children and young people aged from 3 to 19 that 
will enable successful implementation of strategies for school improvement 
and better educational outcomes; 

b. Greater economy through better use of resources to improve efficiency and 
cost-effectiveness of the education estate and public provision; and 

c. A sustainable education system with all schools meeting a 21st Century 
Schools Standard, and reducing recurrent costs and carbon footprint. 

 

21.2 Denbighshire County Council have also referred to the Critical Success Factors for 
this project.  The main options that have been considered are as follows: 

 

Option 1.1 Maintain the status quo; 
 

Option 1.2 Undertake extension works at Ysgol Llanfair DC; 
 

Option 1.3 Extend Ysgol Llanfair DC on a new site & close Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 

Option 1.4 Close both schools and establish a permanent new Dual-site Area school on 
the existing sites. 

 
Option 1.5  Close both Schools and initially establish a dual site area school prior to 

building a new area school in Llanfair. 
 
Option 1.6 Federate the 2 schools; 

 

21.3 The main advantages and disadvantages of each option are as follows. 

 

Option 1.1 Maintain Status Quo (Do nothing) 

Advantages Disadvantages 

This is the ‘cheap’ option as no additional 
investment expenditure is required. 

Would not address the fact that Ysgol 
Llanfair currently have 2 mobile 
classrooms. 

 Would not assist Ysgol Pentrecelyn who 
currently have an acting Headteacher.  

Appointing a permanent Head teacher for 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn may be difficult in the 
current configuration. 

 The two schools could face real issues 

Page 94



32 
 

regarding long term sustainability in 
regard to delivering the changing 
curriculum. 

 

 

Option 1.2   Extend Ysgol Llanfair DC; 
 

Advantages Disadvantages 

Designing and constructing additional fit 
for purpose facilities would significantly 
improve the learning environment for all 
pupils. 

The current site is sufficient for 
development as a 105 capacity school 
only. 

Would enable the schools capacity to be 
amended to reflect the respective current 
demand for Ysgol Llanfair DC. 

Would not solve the issue of lack of 
parking/ drop off/ pick up facilities on the 
existing site. 

Would not lead to any significant changes 
in regard to school organisation 
proposals with potential alterations 
required to the capacity of Ysgol Llanfair 
DC. 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn will still face the issues 
regarding a temporary headteacher.  

Would not require amendments to pupil 
travel arrangements. 

 

 

Option 1.3- Extend Ysgol Llanfair DC on a new site & close Ysgol Pentrecelyn: 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

Designing and constructing additional fit 
for purpose facilities would significantly 
improve the learning environment for all 
pupils. 

Community of Pentrecelyn could be 
excluded from the future operation of 
the school and therefore the new school 
would not reflect the wider community.  

The capacity of the school would be 
increased to take into account the 
current demand for places at the school 
and any pupils from Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
that may attend the school. 

 

Would not require major amendments to 
pupil travel arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



33 
 

Option 1.4 Close both schools and establish a permanent new Dual-site Area school 

on the existing sites.  

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

No additional Capital Investment 
expenditure is required. 

Would not solve the issue of lack of 
parking/ drop off/ pick up facilities at 
Ysgol Llanfair DC.  

A permanent Head Teacher would be 
appointed for the new area school. 

Would not address the fact that Ysgol 
Llanfair currently have 2 mobile 
classrooms. 

Resources and space would be organised 
across both sites accordingly. 

 

The two sites could face real issues 
regarding long term sustainability in 
regard to delivering the changing 
curriculum. 

Pupils could be taught in smaller age 
groups than the current provision. 

 

  

 

Option 1.5 Close both Schools and initially establish a dual site area school prior to 

building a new area school. 

Advantages Disadvantages 

Designing and constructing new fit for 
purpose facilities would significantly 
improve the learning environment for all 
pupils. 

Potential risk that parents choose an 
alternative provision to the new School 
especially if they live at the periphery of 
the new catchment area. 

Bringing together the delivery of both 
schools to a single campus could yield 
significant economies of scale. 

Risk of funding not being available for the 
new build.  

A new area school will have sufficient 
capacity to absorb fluctuations in pupil 
numbers.  

 

The long term sustainability of the school 
would be far more secure in regard to 
delivering the changing curriculum. 

 

 

Option 1.6 Federate both schools- The new regulations published in May 2014 state 

that “Neither LAs nor governing bodies have powers to federate voluntary 

(VA and VC) or foundation schools with community schools, community 

special schools and maintained nurseries”.  With this in mind federation is 

therefore no longer a viable option. This has therefore been discounted.  

Page 96



34 
 

21.4 The analysis of these options suggest that to meet the investment objectives and 

critical success factors that the option of closing both schools and establishing a 

dual site area school should be considered as the preferred option. 

 

Analysis of Options against Investment Objectives and Critical Success Factors 

 

 

 

Option 1.1 

Do nothing 

Option 1.2 

Extend Ysgol 

Llanfair DC 

Option 1.3 

New school 

in Llanfair, 

close Ysgol 

Pentrecelyn 

Option 1.4 

Existing 

Dual- Site 

Area School  

Option 1.5 

New One 

Site Area 

School 

1 Improved 

Learning 

Environment 

x   x  

2 Greater Economy 

– Revenue 

Implications 

x ? ? x ? 

2  Greater Economy 

– Capital 

? ? ? ? ? 

3 Sustainable 

Education system 

x x    

Critical success factors 

CSF1 Improved 

attainment and 

performance 

? 

 

? ? ? ? 

CSF2 Improved 

school condition 

and suitability 

x 

 

  x 
 

 

CSF3 Reduction in 

surplus places 
x 

x 
   

CSF4 Improved 

ability to appoint 

and retain 

permanent Head 

Teachers.  

x 

 

 

x    

CSF 5 Support the 

increase in demand 

for Welsh Medium 

Education 

x 

 

 
 ?  

Summary Discounted Discounted Possible Possible Preferred 

Page 97



35 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22. Explanation of the statutory process 

 

22.1 In order for the Current Proposal to be implemented, Denbighshire County Council 

is required to follow a procedure laid out by a combination of an Act of the Welsh 

Government and a statutory Code. 

22.2 The requirements are as follows: 

a. Consultation held with people likely to be affected by the Proposal; 

b. Consultation report setting out details of the Consultation to be published 

on the council’s website; 

c. Publication of the Current Proposal (also known as the ‘statutory notice’) 

with details such as the planned implementation date, how to obtain a copy 

of the consultation report and how to object: 

i) on the council’s website; 

ii) posted on or near the main entrance of the two schools; and 

ii) by providing affected schools with copies to distribute to parents. 

d. An objection period of 28 days from the date of publication allowing anyone 

who wishes to object to the Current Proposal to do so; 

e. Determination by the council (when, subject to the above process, the 

decision to implement the Current Proposal may be approved); 

f. Publication by the council of any objections and its response to them (within 

7 days of the date of determination of the Current Proposal. 

 

22.3 Please note that any response provided to the formal consultation will not be 

regarded as an objection to the Current Proposal.  This is because the Current 

Proposal may change in response to the formal consultation.  If you would like to 

object to the Current Proposal, please wait until it has been published (as described 

in paragraph 21.2(c) above) then follow the procedure set out on the statutory 

notice.  

 

 

 

Key Points:  

 Maintaining the status quo does not address any issues in either school. 

 Undertaking extension works at Ysgol Llanfair in isolation, doesn’t address the 
headteacher issue at Ysgol Pentrecelyn. 

 Closing both Schools and establishing an area school permanently on the existing sites 
does not improve the condition of buildings or facilities in the schools. 

 Closing both Schools, establish and build a new Area School meets the objectives set out 
in the review regarding surplus places, suitability of buildings and sustainability of 
provision. 
 

 

 

 

Key Point: For the current proposal to be implemented a Statutory Notices would be published for 

28 days. This would allow anyone wishing to object to do so.  

A response provided during the formal consultation will not be regarded as an objection. 

Page 98



36 
 

 

23. Community, Welsh Language and Equality impact 

 

23.1 As the Current Proposal, if implemented, will result in the closure of two schools a 

Equality, Welsh Language and Community impact assessments has been carried out 

and this is available on our website. 

 

23.2 Overall, the Current Proposal will be neutral in terms of its impact on the Welsh 

language. Even though the Current Proposal would reduce the amount of Category 

1 places in the area, we believe that increasing the bilingual offer could ensure 

more pupils are educated in Welsh as well as English.  

 

Pupils who have chosen to access Welsh medium education will be thoroughly 

bilingual in the use of both Welsh and English on leaving primary school and have 

an appreciation of the cultural heritage of Wales.  

 

It will be important to ensure that the new schools governance has a strong Welsh 

ethos and that the staff can teach in Welsh.  Any new Governing Body should 

ensure that progress against these actions is closely monitored.  Similarly it will be 

important for Denbighshire as part of its overall monitoring role for the Welsh 

Education Strategic Plan to ensure that the current strong welsh medium ethos is 

retained, and intervenes as appropriate should this be diluted. 

23.3 Initially the Current Proposal would have limited impact on families and the local 

communities when utilising the existing school sites based in both communities.  

23.4 The Current Proposal may have a positive impact on pupils through an improved 

education provision. The way in which the sites will be used will be a decision for 

the headteacher and governing body to discuss and implement. Options that could 

be considered are keeping the pupils and staff as they are with increased 

opportunity for the 2 sites to come together for specific events. Pupils would 

benefit from interacting with a larger group of children and larger peer groups. 

 

 

 

Page 99



37 
 

24. Response Form 

 

24.1  A response form for comments, including an opportunity for consultees to register 

their wish to be notified of publication of the formal consultation report, appears at 

the end of this consultation document. 

 

24.2 You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current 

Proposal at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing.  Responses 

should be sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County 

Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e-mail to 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk by no later than Monday 16th March 

2015. 

                                                           
i
 The consultation document can be found in the School Organisation & Modernising section or you can 

follow this link [www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] 
ii
 Formal Consultation Document for Children.  This is available upon request from DCC [and/or from the DCC 

website in the School Organisation & Modernising section by following this link 

[www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] 
iii
 Section 48 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act; 

iv
 Modernising Education Framework -  available to read on request at DCC’s offices in Ruthin or by visiting 

the website [www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] in the School Organisation & 

Modernising section 
v
 The Estyn report relating to both schools may be accessed by following this link www.estyn.gov.uk.  

 
vi
 The Estyn report relating to both schools may be accessed by following this link www.estyn.gov.uk.  

 
vii

 The full document can be found on DCC Website- https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-
council/strategies-plans-and-policies/education-and-schools/welsh-in-education-strategic-plan.aspx 
 

Page 100

mailto:modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/
http://www.estyn.gov.uk/
http://www.estyn.gov.uk/
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/education-and-schools/welsh-in-education-strategic-plan.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/education-and-schools/welsh-in-education-strategic-plan.aspx


38 
 

Appendix 1 
Primary Education 

The best way to become totally fluent in the Welsh language is to attend a primary school that offers Welsh-medium provision. In Denbighshire, Welsh-medium primary 

education is available at two different categories of schools, as defined by the Welsh Assembly Government: 

• Category 1 – Welsh-medium schools 

• Category 2 – Dual stream schools, where Welsh and English provision exists side by side 
 

 

Category Curriculum Language of the School Outcomes 
 

Welsh-
Medium 
Primary 
School – 
Category 1 
  

All Pupils in the Foundation Phase 
experience the areas of learning 
through the medium of Welsh. Welsh 
is the main teaching medium at junior 
stage with at least 70% of the teaching 
through the medium of Welsh. English 
is introduced formally as a subject at 
junior stage and is taught through the 
medium of English, and English may 
occasionally be used for some aspects 
of some subjects. 
 

Welsh is the language of the day to day business of the 
school. Welsh is used as the language of communication 
with the pupils and for the school’s administration. 
The school communicates with parents in both 
languages. 

The normal expectation is that pupils, 
regardless of home language, will be 
able to transfer easily to Welsh medium 
secondary provision and by the end of 
junior stage will have reached a standard 
in English equivalent to that reached by 
pupils in predominantly English medium 
schools. 

Dual Stream 
Primary 
School – 
Category 2 
  

Two types of provision exist side-by-
side in these schools. Parents/pupils 
opt either for the mainly Welsh-
medium or mainly English-medium 
provision which is usually delivered as 
in categories 1 and 5 respectively. 

Both Welsh and English are used in the day to day 
business of the school. The language of communication 
with the pupils is determined by the nature of the 
curricular provision, but in some schools high priority is 
given to creating a Welsh-language ethos throughout the 
school. The school communicates with parents in both 
languages. 
 

For pupils in the Welsh stream, normal 
expectations are as for category 1.  
For pupils in the English medium stream, 
normal expectations are as for category 
5. 

Predominantly 
English 
Medium 
primary 
school but 
with 
significant 
use of Welsh 
– Category 4 
  

Pupils in the Foundation Phase 
experience the areas of learning in 
both languages but with greater 
emphasis on English. 
In junior stage, both Welsh and 
English is used in teaching but there is 
greater emphasis on English. Welsh is 
used as the medium of teaching or 
learning for between 20% and 50% of 
the primary curriculum overall. 

The day to day language or languages of the school are 
determined by the school’s linguistic context. 
Both languages are used as languages of 
communication with the pupils and for the school’s 
administration. A high priority is given to creating a 
Welsh ethos. The school communicates with parents in 
both languages. 

The normal expectation is that pupils will 
transfer to English medium secondary 
provision, but will have attained 
enhanced Welsh second language skills. 
Some pupils may be able to pursue a 
limited number of subjects through the 
medium of Welsh at secondary level 
where these are offered. 
 

P
age 101



39 
 

 
 

Predominantly 
English 
medium 
primary 
school – 
Category 5 
  

All pupils in the Foundation Phase 
experience the areas of learning 
mainly through the medium of English. 
English is the main teaching medium 
at junior stage. Welsh is taught as a 
second language in junior stage, and 
some aspects of some subjects may 
be taught in Welsh. Less than 20% of 
the teaching is through the medium of 
Welsh. 

English is the language of the day to day business of the 
school, but some Welsh is also used as a language of 
communication with the pupils with the aim of improving 
their capacity to use everyday Welsh. The school 
communicates with parents either in English or in both 
languages. 

The normal expectation is that pupils will 
transfer to English medium secondary 
provision and continue to learn 
predominantly through the medium of 
English, learning Welsh as a second 
language. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 102



40 
 

Appendix 2-  
Alternative Provision 
Information below available on My Local School website- 
http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/index.html?iaith=eng 
 
1. Education attainment 

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 

 School Name 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Ysgol Pen Barras 97.1% 90.0% 96.8% 94.3% 89.7% 

Ysgol Bro Elwern 77.8% 85.7% * 100% 66.7% 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 66.7% * * * 80.0% 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 88.9% 91.7% 100.0% 94.1% 93.3% 

Local Authority- Total 78.1% 82.3% 83.5% 86.0% 86.6% 

Wales- Total 78.2% 80.0% 82.6% 84.3% 86.1% 
*However as a result of very small cohorts in each year a meaningful comparison with local and national averages is not possible 
 

%  pupils achieving the expected outcomes in the Foundation Phase areas of learning 

School Name 2012 2013 2014 

Ysgol Pen Barras 95.5% 94.7% 93.5% 

Ysgol Bro Elwern 40.0% * * 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 66.7% * 83.3% 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 100.0% 100.0% 92.3% 

Local Authority- Total 81.7% 84.9% 86.1% 

Wales- Total 80.5% 83.0% 85.2% 
*However as a result of very small cohorts in each year a meaningful comparison with local and national averages is not possible 
 

2. Free School Meals (FSM)  
 

School Name FSM- 3 year average 
2014 

Ysgol Pen Barras 1.6% 

Ysgol Bro Elwern 13.8% 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 5.3% 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 8.6% 

Local Authority- Total 21.2% 

Wales- Total 20.5% 

 
3. Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Data- 2014 

School Name School Action School Action Plus Statemented 

Ysgol Pen Barras 7.4% 3.7% * 

Ysgol Bro Elwern * * * 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn * * * 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 16.9% * * 

Local Authority- Total 12.5% 12.8% 1.1% 

Wales- Total 15.1% 8.8% 1.7% 
*However as a result of very small cohorts in each year a meaningful comparison with local and national averages is not possible 

 
 
 
4. Current full time pupil numbers 

Page 103

http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/index.html?iaith=eng


41 
 

 

Current Full Time Pupil Numbers- September 2014 

 School Name Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Total 

Ysgol Pen Barras 37 25 32 31 38 23 37 223 

Ysgol Bro Elwern 5 7 8 2 4 7 2 35 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 2 8 7 6 3 6 3 35 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 15 13 11 13 12 13 15 92 

 
5. Current Part-time Nursery Pupil numbers- September 2014  

 

School Name Nursery  

Ysgol Pen Barras 36 

Ysgol Bro Elwern 5 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 12 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 13 

 

6. Full time Pupil numbers for the last 5 years for each school 
 

Pupil Numbers 2010 – 2014- Full Time from January PLASC 

School Name 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Ysgol Pen Barras 215 216 218 223 223 

Ysgol Bro Elwern 43 36 32 33 33 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 23 20 27 31 39 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 94 96 93 90 84 

 

7. Projected pupil numbers for the next 5 years: 
 

Projected Pupil Numbers- January 2014 PLASC 

School Name 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Ysgol Pen Barras 221 216 224 218 218 

Ysgol Bro Elwern 33 36 36 38 43 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 37 40 40 42 41 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 82 80 83 87 87 

 

8. Estyn Reports: 
 

Estyn assesses the performance of schools. The inspection framework was changed in 2009/10 but prior to 
this 7 key questions were asked, namely:- 
 
School Ysgol Llanfair DC Ysgol Bro Elwern 

Date June 2010 June 2009 

1.  How well do leaners achieve? Grade 2 Grade 2 

2. How effective are teaching, training and assessment? Grade 2 Grade 2 

3. How well do the learning experiences meet the needs 

and interests of leaners and the wider community? 

Grade 1 Grade 2 

4. How well are leaners cared for, guided and supported? Grade 2 Grade 2 

5. How effective are leadership and strategic management? Grade 2 Grade 3 

6. How well do leaders and managers evaluate and Grade 2 Grade 3 

Page 104



42 
 

improve quality and standards? 

7. How efficient are leaders and managers in using 

resources? 

Grade 2 Grade 2 

Key: 

Grade 1  Good with outstanding features   
Grade 2  Good features and no important shortcomings 
Grade 3  Good features outweigh shortcomings   
Grade 4  Some good features, but shortcomings in important areas 
Grade 5  Many important shortcomings 
 
After 2009/10, the number of questions was reduced to 3. 
The three Key Questions are:-  
Key Question 1: How good are the outcomes?  
Key Question 2: How good is the provision?  
Key Question 3: How good is the leadership and management? 
 
School Ysgol Pen Barras Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

Date May 2011 November 
2014 

Key Question 1 
 

Good Adequate 

Key Question 2 
 

Good Adequate 

Key Question 3 
 

Good Good 

Current Performance 
 

Good Adequate 

Improvement Outlook 
 

Good Good 

 

 

All Estyn reports can be found on the Estyn website www.estyn.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formal Consultation Response Form 

Page 105

http://www.estyn.gov.uk/


43 
 

Denbighshire County Council has proposed to close Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn on the 31st of 

August 2016; and the Church in Wales will establish a new Area School on the existing sites from the 1st of 

September 2016. The next phase would see the Area School consolidated on a new site in the Llanfair/ 

Pentrecelyn area, subject to land availability and suitability. We are proposing that the new build will be 

ready by September 2017 therefore ensuring the split site will only be for one academic year. Councillors 

will consider approval for the capital funding in February 2015. 

We would like to hear your views regarding the proposal. You can let your views be known in the following 

ways; 

 If you are accessing this form online then please click here to complete  the online  survey; 

 If you have received a hard copy of the response form please return your copy to Modernising 

Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, 

LL15 1YN; 

 Visit our website at www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation and follow the survey link; 

 Alternatively you can scan the attached form and email it to us at 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk  

 If you do not have access to a scanner, simply send an email to the address provided above with 

your responses, using the same numbering as set out below; 

Please let us have your responses by Monday 16th March 2015. If you would like us to acknowledge receipt 

of your response please provide your names and address.  

 

1. Are you in favour of the proposal? 
(Please tick one box) 
 

 
Yes 

 

 
No 

 

 
2. Please indicate whether you are responding as a: 
 

Pupil of either 
school 

Parent of either 
school 

Staff Member of 
either school 

Community 
Member 

Other  

     

If other, please indicate; 

 

 

 

 

 

3. With which school are you most closely linked? 

Page 106

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation
mailto:modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk


44 
 

(Please tick only one box) 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 
 

 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 

 

Neither School 
 

 

 

4. Please indicate if any of the following have had an influence on your decision; 

 

 

If other, please state:-  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Please use an additional sheet if necessary) 

 

5. If the proposal is implemented would you send your child/ children to the Area School or would you 

choose another school? If you would choose another school, which one and why? 

 

The new Area School  
 

 If other, please state:- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Please use an additional sheet if necessary) 

 

 

 

6. Please let us have any comments or views, positive or negative, that you have regarding the proposal: 

Impact on Education 
 

 

Impact on local community  
 

 

Page 107



45 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Please use an additional sheet if necessary) 

 

7. Under the terms of the Data Protection Act 1998 we must inform you of the following: 

Denbighshire County Council (DCC) are seeking your views to help inform the decision on the current 

proposal. The information you have provided will be used only for this purpose, and may be shared with 

other internal agencies who are involved with the Consultation, however  only to inform decision makers of 

your views and to address any issues you raise. If you do not wish to provide personal details your views 

will still be considered, but we will not be able to acknowledge receipt of your response personally. 

 

Denbighshire County Council is the data controller for the purpose of the Data Protection Act 1998. Your 

personal information will be processed in accordance with that Act and is being collected for the purpose 

stated above only, and will not be shared with any other party. Should you have any queries regarding this 

please contact us via email at modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk. 

 

  

8. Would you like us to acknowledge receipt of you response? 

Page 108

mailto:modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk


46 
 

 
Yes 

 

 
No 

 

 

9. Would you like to receive an email link to the formal consultation report when it is published on the 

DCC website? 

 
Yes 

 

 
No 

 

 

10. If you have answered yes to either of the two above questions please provide an email address 

below: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Thank you for taking the time to respond.  

 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Formal Consultation Report 
 

relating to the proposal for a new Area School to replace Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn 
Clwyd and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

 
 
 
 
 

June 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 111



1 
 

Contents  

Number Section Page 

1.  Introduction 2 

2.  Formal Consultation 2 

3.  Meetings 3 

4.  Consultation Responses 3 

5.  Response forms and correspondence 5 

6.  Response from Estyn 6 

7.  Responses from UCAC & NUT Cymru 7 

APPENDIX A Consultation Document recipient list 9 

APPENDIX B Summary of issues raised in meetings 11 

APPENDIX C School Council findings 31 

APPENDIX D Summary of responses to Standard 
Response Forms 

36 

APPENDIX E Summary of responses to Children’s 
Response Forms 

39 

APPENDIX F Respondent Types 40 

APPENDIX G Summary of Issues and Responses 41 

APPENDIX H Estyn’s response to the Formal 
Consultation Document 

72 

APPENDIX I UCAC   full response 74 

APPENDIX J Ysgol Llanfair DC Governors full response 76 

APPENDIX K Ysgol Pentrecelyn Governors full response 78 

 

  

Page 112



2 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1. Denbighshire County Council (DCC) has completed a period of formal consultation regarding 
the proposal for a new Area School to replace Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn. DCC would close Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn on the 31st August 2016; 
and the Church in Wales will establish a new Area School on the existing sites from the 1st 
September 2016.  

 
1.2. The proposal is that the new Area school will be a Language Category 2- Dual Stream and 

Voluntary Controlled Church in Wales’ school.  
 

1.3. It is proposed that the new Area school would initially use the existing buildings in Llanfair and 
Pentrecelyn until the new Area School is consolidated on one site in a new build. If the 
proposal is implemented, we intend that the new build will be ready by September 2017.  

 
1.4. The formal consultation began on the 3rd February 2015 and closed on the 16th March 2015.  

 
1.5. Following the end of a school organisation consultation period, the Welsh Government’s 

School Organisation Code requires us to publish a consultation report.  In this document we 
have to: 
 

 Summarise each of the issues raised by people we speak to and who write to us;  

 Show our response to those issues; and  

 Set out Estyn’s view of the overall merits of what we are considering. 
 
1.6. This report should be considered by decision makers prior to determining whether or not to 

implement any proposal. 
 

 

2. Formal Consultation 
 

2.1. Hardcopy and electronic versions of the formal consultation document were sent to 390 
recipients.  You can see the complete list of recipients in Appendix A.   
 

2.2. The formal consultation document was published on DCC’s website and the Diocese’ website 
on 3 February 2015.   We wrote a special version of the Consultation Document, aimed at 
primary school children, and published it on the two websites.  You can see both versions of 
the Consultation Document in the Schools section of the Diocese’ website and the Closed 
Consultation section of the DCC website; just click on the proposal for a new area school to 
replace Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. 

 
2.3. To help and encourage people to give us their views, we produced a response document 

(Standard Response Form).  This formed part of the Consultation Document and, so, was also 
published on our websites.  The children’s version of the Consultation Document contained an 
age appropriate response form.  The Standard Response Form was converted into an online 
survey; a link to this survey was also published on our websites.   

 
2.4. We published the above documents in Welsh and English. 

 

Page 113



3 
 

3. Meetings 
 

3.1. We held separate consultation meetings with the governors, teachers and support staff, 
parents and the School Councils of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn.   
 

3.2. Meetings were held as follows: 

 With Staff and Governors of Ysgol Llanfair DC- 3rd February 2015 

 With Staff and Governors of Ysgol Pentrecelyn- 4th February 2015 

 With Parents of Ysgol Llanfair- 9th February 2015 

 With parents of Ysgol Pentrecelyn- 10th February 2015 

 Additional session with parents of Ysgol Pentrecelyn who wanted the session 
completely through the medium of Welsh- 24th February 2015 

 School council at Ysgol Llanfair DC- 5th March 2015 

 School council at Ysgol Pentrecelyn- 6th March 2015 
 
3.3. Both initial parents meetings were held in the respective schools. It was decided to adopt a 

‘parents’ evening’ format in favour of the open, question and answer format used during the 
informal consultation. The parents’ evening format created a more intimate environment in 
which people could say what they thought without having to be heard by a room filled with 
people.  
 

3.4. You can read a summary of the points raised at these meetings and the responses given at the 
time in Appendix B. 

 
3.5. Details of the consultation with pupils can be found in Appendix C. 

 
 
4. Consultation Response 

 

4.1 In total 205 responses were received during the consultation stage which included responses 
from Estyn, the National Union of Teachers of Wales (UCAC) and the NUT (Cymru). The table 
below shows the connection to either school (or not) of each respondent: 

 
Connection of Respondent Total 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 
 

69 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 

90 

No connection / Didn’t state connection 
 

46 

Total 
 

205 

 
4.2 We received joint responses from the following: 

4.2.1 Staff of Ysgol Llanfair DC (17 staff members) 
4.2.2 Governors of Ysgol Llanfair DC ( 11 Governors) See the full response in  Appendix J. 
4.2.3 Governors and staff of Ysgol Pentrecelyn which included 3 petitions:  

1)  Signed by 27 parents, 3 of which were parents to potential future pupils of the 
school- Stated if Denbighshire County Council close Category 1 school and only 
provide a Category 2 school they would send their child/children to another 
Category 1 school outside the area. 

2)   Signed by 8 parents in regards to the Cylch Ti a Fi in Pentrecelyn stating their 
support for a Category 1 school in the area. 

Page 114



4 
 

3)       Signed by 37 people- parents, staff and governors of the school- to support the 
response as a whole.  

See the full response in Appendix K. 
 

4.3 Table below shows the methods people used to respond to the consultation: 
 

Method of contact Number of contacts received 

Standard Response Forms 159 

Children & Young Person’s Response Forms 4 

Letters 19 

Emails 23 

Total number of contacts 
205 

 
4.4 The breakdown of the response types and the indicative support / opposition to the current 

proposals set out below. 
 

 
No Response 

Type 
For the 

Proposal 

 (actual  /   %) 

Against the 
Proposal 

 (actual   /  %) 

Other 

(actual  /   %) 

Total 

1.  Letters 4 21.1 15 78.9 0 0 19 

2.  Emails 5 21.7 13 56.5 5 21.7 23 

3.  Response 
Form 
(Online & 
postal) 

70 44.0 86 54.1 3 1.9 159 

4.  Children’s 
Response 
Form 

0 0 4 100 0 0 4 

Totals 79 38.5 118 57.6 8 3.9 205 

 
4.5 The following table shows how often issues were raised in the correspondence we received: 

 
Rank Issue Description Frequency of issue raised 

1. 

 

Language 
Category  

Important to retain Welsh Language Category for 
school, Importance of Bilingual Language 
Category in retaining pupils from non-Welsh 
speaking families, Long term impact of change in 
Language Category 

150 out of 205 

2. 

 

Church 
status 

Reasons for and against, importance of 
maintaining links to the Church, what does it 
mean. 

32 out of 205 

3. Governance Importance of the Welsh language and ethos, 25 out of 205 

Page 115



5 
 

 ensuring that the Welsh language provision is not 
weakened. 

4. Other Issues 

 

Proposal Document, Consultation method, future 
of nearby schools, transport, informal 
consultation 

25 out of 205 

5. 

 

Area school Amalgamation of the 2 schools, financial 
pressures 

23 out of 205 

6. 

 

School 
facilities  

Suitability of current facilities at both schools, 
need for updated facilities 

21 out of 205 

7. 

 

Class sizes Pupil: teacher ratio, concerns of class sizes and 
size of school. 

20 out of 205 

8. 

 

Community  Threat to community life. 15 out of 205 

9. Community 
& Welsh 
language 
Impact 
assessment 

Value of the assessment, impact on the Welsh 
language for the area. 

14 out of 205 

10. 

 

Rural school 

 

Importance of maintaining a school in the area.   12 out of 205 

 

11. 

 

Site Location of the new school 11 out of 205 

12. 

 

Other 
options 

Alternative options to the proposal 7 out of 205 

13. New build Availability of funding 4 out of 205 

 
4.6 The Council’s response to the concerns raised can be found in Appendix G 

 

 
5 Response forms and correspondence 

 
5.1 The Standard Response Form was designed to establish: 

 whether or not people were in favour of the Proposals;  

 the capacity in which they were responding;  

 whether or not they were linked to either school;  

 what influenced their views on the Proposals and any negative or positive comments 
they had; 

 whether or not they would send their child(ren) to the new area school if the Proposals 
were implemented; and 

 whether they wanted to make any other comments.   
 

5.2 A summary of the responses to the Standard Response Form and the Children’s Response 
Form is set out in Appendices D and E.   

 
5.3 On the response forms, we asked people to confirm whether they were linked most closely 

with Ysgol Llanfair DC, Ysgol Pentrecelyn or neither school.  We also received letters and 

Page 116



6 
 

emails from people telling us their view; some of those people indicated whether or not they 
were linked with either school.  Details of the respondents are set out in Appendix F.  

 
5.4 Examples of the types of points raised by all respondents to the Consultation, together with 

the Promoters’ response are set out in Appendix G. 
 

6 Response from Estyn 
 
The main points made by Estyn in response to the Proposals and the Promoters’ response to 
them are set out below.  The full response from Estyn is set out in Appendix H.     
 

Estyn Comment Promoters’ Response 

The proposal is likely to maintain the present 
standards of educational provision in this area of 
Denbighshire. 

Agreed 

Based on current provision, the proposal 
reasonably claims that maintaining the status quo 
could provide greater risks than any proposals for 
change. 

Agreed 

For the long term, the authority asserts 
appropriately that partnership working between 
both schools would provide greater stability.  

Agreed 

The proposal acknowledges appropriately the 
possible perception that the Welsh language and 
ethos would be affected negatively. 

Agreed 

Proposer does not identify possible concerns 
about the re-designation of Ysgol Pentrecelyn as 
a faith school. 

Ysgol Llanfair DC is a VC school. Both 
Governing Bodies have continued dialogue 
with Denbighshire regarding options for 
joint working to ensure sustainable 
provision in the Llanfair / Pentrecelyn area.  
During these meetings an overall 
consensus towards the area school model 
has been supported alongside the new 
school being designated as a school with a 
designated religious character. This 
designation will be a Voluntary Controlled 
School recognised by the Church in Wales. 

 

The proposal appropriately claims that the area 
school would need a new staffing structure. 

During Phase 1 when the new area school 
is utilising both sites we envisage staffing 
staying broadly the same but with changes 
to leadership and management only. When 
the school is on one site in the new build a 
new staffing structure will be in place. 
Work on this will begin immediately once 
the new headteacher and temporary 
governing body are in place.  

Page 117



7 
 

The local authority has considered suitable 
alternatives. 

Agreed 

The authority has appropriately considered the 
impact of the proposal on the quality of the 
outcomes and provision as well as leadership and 
management. 

 Agreed 

Pupils will continue to be transported to their 
designated site in accordance with the current 
Home to School Transport Policy. 

Agreed 

Pupils with additional learning needs who 
currently attend the schools would continue to 
receive the same education and support, but the 
environment may change. 

Agreed 

The second phase of the proposal to eventually 
move to a new area school is likely to prove more 
of a challenge to pupils with additional learning 
needs. 

Agreed 

 
7 Response from UCAC and NUT Cymru 

 
7.1 In accordance with the requirements from the School Organisation Code, a copy of the 

Consultation Document was sent to all relevant trade unions for their observations. UCAC 
(The National Union of Teachers Cymru) and NUT Cymru both submitted a response to the 
formal consultation.   
 

7.2 In its response, UCAC observes that: 
 The Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd area requires a larger school as a matter of urgency and 

 UCAC appreciates Denbighshire County Council’s intention to preserve education in 

rural areas. 

 

7.3 UCAC’s concerns include: 
 The lack of assertiveness regarding Phase 2. 

 Availability and suitability of land. 

 Denbighshire County Council ability to fund Phase 2. 

 Will the new school be big enough? 

 Timescale to establishing Temporary Governing Body and appointing a new 

Headteacher. 

 To ensure jobs for the current staff are protected. 

 

7.4 The full UCAC response can be found in Appendix I. 
 

7.5 NUT Cymru full response was as follows: 
 

We are pleased with the commitment to ring fence posts for those already  
employed at the two current schools. We also acknowledge the following  
point: 

  

Page 118



8 
 

16.4 While the Area School operates on two sites the council does not  
anticipate any major changes to the existing staffing structures other  
than the Headteacher and other leadership positions. However, final  
decisions regarding the new staffing structure would be taken by the  
Temporary Governing Body and the new Headteacher. 

  
and therefore would not anticipate any redundancies when the new school is created. 
We would also request that we are consulted with regarding the proposed new staffing 
structure of the new area school before it is implemented. 

 

Page 119



9 
 

APPENDIX A 

Consultation Document Recipient List 
 

No Stakeholder Number of recipients  

1.  Parents of pupils of Ysgol Pentrecelyn 28 

2.  Parents of pupils of Ysgol Llanfair DC 76 

3.  Teachers and support staff at Ysgol Pentrecelyn 12 

4.  Teachers and support staff at Ysgol Llanfair DC 17 

5.  Governors at Ysgol Pentrecelyn 9 

6.  Governors at Ysgol Llanfair DC 11 

7.  School Council Ysgol Pentrecelyn 6 

8.  School Council Ysgol Llanfair DC 10 

9.  Governors of the Other Schools Likely to be Affected 
(Clerks) 

11 

10.  School Council of the Other Schools Likely to be Affected 
(Co-ordinator) 

11 

11.  Dioceses of St Asaph and Wrexham 3 

12.  Headteachers and (Chair) Governors of all schools in 
Denbighshire 

112 

13.  Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership 
and the Early Years Development and Childcare 
Partnership 

1 

14.  Independent nursery providers in the Ruthin area 6 

15.  All Denbighshire County Councillors  47 

16.  Local and regional Assembly Members and MPs 8 

17.  Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd Community Council  1 

18.  Llanelidan Community Council 1 

19.  Efenechtyd Community Council 1 

20.  Ruthin Town Council 1 

21.  The Welsh Ministers 3 

22.  Estyn 1 

Page 120



10 
 

23.  Relevant Teaching and support staff Trade Unions 6 

24.  Taith 4 

25.  North Wales Regional School Effectiveness and 
Improvement Service 

1 

26.  North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 1 

27.  Flintshire County Council 1 

28.  Wrexham County Borough Council 1 

 Total 390 

Page 121



11 
 

APPENDIX B 

Summary of issues raised in meetings 
 

Teachers’ and support staff meeting at both Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1.  How will it work for staff, especially if 
there is an equivalent post in Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn? 

Initially nothing will change when the new school 
is on the 2 existing sites. Once the Temporary 
Governing Body is in place, staffing structures for 
the new school in the new build will be 
determined. This will give HR plenty of time to 
work with all existing staff to ensure that 
alternative employment is identified elsewhere if 
appropriate.  

In terms of the new school, staff would have to 
re-apply but posts would be ring fenced for staff 
at the 2 current schools. This can be discussed 
further with Denbighshire County Council’s HR 
department. 

Any vacancies that occur during the time that the 
school is on the 2 sites will be filled on a 
temporary basis only. 

2.  Can you clarify something, in section 
12.10- it states that the new school will be 
for 140 pupils- does this mean 4 classes? 

It is not for the local authority to configure the 
school. The Temporary Governing Body will 
decide how the school will be configured. There 
will be changes in the budget and the Temporary 
Governing Body will work closely with the Local 
Authorities finance team in terms of pupil 
numbers and staffing to determine how the 
school will be configured.  

3.  Why a Category 2 and not Category 1? Local Authority sees that Ysgol Llanfair’s model is 
something special and exceptional, not just 
across Denbighshire but also Wales.  

The outcomes of pupils wanting a Welsh medium 
education are equal in Category 1 and Category 
2. The 2 Categories in terms of Welsh medium 
provision are the same but the way they are 
delivered may differ. The key will be how do we 
maintain and sustain the provision in a new 
model. 

It does not help that the categorisation is 
numerical and that some people read that 
Category 2 is a lesser category than Category 1, 
in terms of Welsh language education they are 
the same just delivered differently. We want to 
increase the number of non-Welsh speaking 
children accessing Welsh medium education and 
we believe Category 2 can do this. 

It is important to note and look at what 

Page 122



12 
 

categorisation is and what it means. In each 
category there are 3 clear criteria’s-  

1. Curriculum, 

2. Language of the school and 

3. Outcomes 

Pupils who choose the Welsh medium stream in 
Category 2 have the same opportunities to go 
onto Welsh medium secondary education as 
those who attend a Category 1 school.     

4.  One concern is that at the moment the 
secret to our success is the classes are 
relatively small; the outcomes may not be 
as good if the classes are bigger. 

It will be about working in partnership with GwE 
and working with the Temporary Governing Body 
to look at what is needed and what the budget 
will allow. It is important to understand that 
there is a commitment from the Local Authority 
that this will work, and it is about what will be 
needed at that moment in time.  

5.  It will be important how the new teaching 
areas in the new build will be designed. 
Will we have a say? 

The Temporary Governing body will work with 
the Local Authority in designing the new school. 
We are guided by BB99 regulations in terms of 
how much space will be needed for the number 
of pupils, and will work on what we would like, 
what we can afford and what needs to be 
prioritised.  

6.  Will teachers have to be interviewed for 
their jobs? 

Not during the first phase, as everything will stay 
the same. 

For the new build, and when this is open, there 
are a number of processes to go through. The 
Temporary Governing Body and the Local 
Authority will start work early on the staffing 
structure for the new school in the new build. 
This will give HR plenty of time to work with all 
existing staff to ensure that alternative 
employment is identified elsewhere if 
appropriate.  

In terms of the new school in the new build you 
would have to re-apply, posts will be ring fenced 
for current staff at the 2 schools.  

7.  Who will make up the new Temporary 
Governing Body? 

Page 20 of the consultation document explains 
the make-up of the Temporary Governing Body 
and this will initially be made up of Governors 
from both Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
aswell as representatives from the Diocese.  

8.  Does the new school depend on Ysgol 
Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn working 
together? 

We have had a number of meetings already with 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn governors and they are fixed 
on the new school being Category 1.  

Governors from Ysgol Pentrecelyn appreciate 
that the outcomes at Ysgol Llanfair are excellent 
and if it can be guaranteed that the staff and 

Page 123



13 
 

head remain, then that would go to some way to 
allaying some of their concerns.  

As we have explained to them, we believe that 
the new school should be a Category 2 as based 
on evidence and numbers this is the correct way 
forward.  

Elected members could agree or disagree with 
the proposal. They cannot say it should be a 
Category 1, this would need to be consulted on. 
Members want a new school in the area, and we 
are all aware that the debate will be around the 
language category. Education is a top priority 
and members have had to make difficult 
decisions in other areas. 

The other factor in the proposal which we 
cannot overlook is whether the new school 
should be voluntary controlled, Church in Wales 
school.  

9.  When will the language category be 
decided? 

It really is an evolving process. The consultation 
report will be going to Cabinet in May. In terms 
of the consultation period it is not about the 
volume of responses; it is more to do with any 
evidence in terms of outcomes that we have 
missed that you can feed into the consultation 
process. Members can change their mind. 

If the proposal is agreed there is then the 
statutory notice period where people can, if they 
wish, object to the proposal. It is an evolving 
process. 

10.  Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog came 
together, have they got a new school yet? 

 

 

We decided from a political perspective to go for 
the funding for all 3 of the Ruthin projects at the 
same time. We now have agreement in place for 
funding for the Llanfair/ Pentrecelyn area school, 
new school for Ysgol Carreg Emyln 
(amalgamation of Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol 
Cyffylliog) and the new schools in Ruthin for 
Ysgol Pen Barras and Rhos Street.  

11.  New school is for 140 pupils- will there be 
room for expansion? 

Yes, we base the numbers on current pupil 
numbers and predictions. We cannot build a 
school too big as it could put other schools at 
risk. We need to manage the number of pupils 
across the area.  

The final size of the school will be discussed with 
the Temporary Governing Body. 

12.  Has a site been chosen yet for the new 
school? 

 

We are currently looking at all options and we 
need to look at where the majority of pupils are 
coming from, which is the Llanfair area. We are 
undertaking feasibility studies on a number of 
sites but will not say our preferred site, as we do 
not own the land. There is more work to be done 

Page 124



14 
 

on the sites such as traffic assessments, 
environmental studies etc. 

13.  What would the language at play or lunch 
be? Bi-lingual? 

It would depend on how the school was 
configured. In terms of the new school it will be 
the responsibility of the leadership team to 
decide. 

14.  Would all jobs be Welsh essential? Yes; we are advising that the governors ensure 
that the HR policy indicates that all posts must 
be Welsh essential. 

15.  Can the governors change the policy so 
that posts advertised won’t be Welsh 
essential? 

 

The HR documents will be determined by the 
Governing Body. As a Local Authority, if we saw a 
job was not Welsh essential, we would question 
it as it is not representative of the school. There 
are a number of checks the HR department 
would do and question if there was anything we 
were not happy with. 

16.  Could the school end up non- Welsh 
speaking? 

Yes it could- but so could any school. However, 
schools will be closely monitored by the Local 
Authority and scrutinized, and if they are not 
delivering what they should they will be 
challenged. 

It is not appropriate to discuss other schools 
history and, if we are honest, we have not been 
challenging those schools who are not delivering 
within their category. One of the aims of the 
categorisations is to ensure that parents know 
what the offer looks like and gives them the right 
information. 

17.  Does the Cabinet read the 
documentation? 

Yes, throughout the consultation period we 
speak with them and they ask us questions. 
People do not see what goes on in the 
background. Equally people can lobby their local 
members aswell. 

18.  What would the difference be being a 
church school to not being one? 

There is not a great deal of difference. In terms 
of curriculum and admissions policy nothing 
would change. Community schools are required 
to promote “broadly Christian values”; as a 
voluntary controlled school it would have a 
“clearly” Christian ethos.  The school would have 
2 inspections- 1 from Estyn and 1 from the 
Church. The Church would have representation 
on the Governing Body. The Church would give 
extra help and support to the school. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



15 
 

Governors’ meetings at Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1.  Is it possible that the decision, should the 
proposal go forward, be delayed and 
delayed by certain people who do not want 
the Language Category, referring to the 
Ysgol Llanbedr case? 

Ysgol Llanbedr situation was referred to the 
Minister by the Diocese of St.Asaph as it is a 
church school.  

A number of specified organisations can refer 
the proposal to the Minister if they wish, in 
accordance with the School Organisation Code. 

2.  With all the debate around the language 
categorisation, could an option be 2 
separate new build buildings, one for 
Category 1 school and one for Category 2 
school? 

This would not be an option as it would not be 
sustainable and would be 2 schools instead of 1. 
If the proposal goes ahead it will be a decision 
for the Temporary Governing Body to 
determine how the new school would be 
configured.  

3.  Taking into account the current climate if 
100% of Ysgol Pentrecelyn do not want it, 
can it still go ahead?  

It is not about the volume of negative responses 
that we receive, it is about the case being made 
and this being backed up by evidence.  

Responses need to be focused on evidence and 
the outcomes. Important that we do not lose 
site of the categorisations and the 3 criteria- 
Curriculum, Language of the school and 
Outcomes. In terms of the Welsh medium offer 
Category 1 and Category 2 offer the same.  

Pupils who choose the Welsh medium stream in 
a Category 2 school have the same 
opportunities to go onto Welsh medium 
secondary education as those who attend a 
Category 1 school.     

4.  It is a very emotive issue and we have to 
defend the school, it is a very difficult 
situation. 

It is obvious that some people see Category 
1 is better than 2, numerical way of 
categorisation does not help. 

It is important to note that the staff and 
governors at Ysgol Pentrecelyn are very 
supportive of the model at Ysgol Llanfair and if 
we could guarantee that it would follow that 
same model they would not have a problem.  

It is unfortunate that the categorisation are 
numerical and there is an assumption that 1 is 
better than 2.  

1 is the same as 2, just delivered differently. We 
believe 2 can increase the number of children 
accessing Welsh medium education and 
becoming proficient in the Welsh language. It is 
important to recognise that pupils at Llanfair in 
the English stream have very good Welsh 
second language skills as well.  

We agree the way the categories are classed 
does not help but we see Ysgol Llanfair as an 
example of best practice, not just across 
Denbighshire but Wales.  We believe a Category 
2 increases the number of learners that learn 

Page 126



16 
 

through Welsh.  

5.  Our children come from Welsh speaking 
homes but we believe that a Category 2 
school gives them more confidence with 
their English, as a parent you want their 
language skills to be strong in both English 
and Welsh so they can work anywhere. 

Yes, outcomes at the school are very good for 
English, Welsh and second language Welsh. We 
believe that pupils’ direction of travel is very 
good, and that pupils from the school go onto 
secondary school either in the Welsh stream or 
the N- stream.  

Our Welsh in Education Strategic Plan is all 
about increasing the numbers of Welsh 
speakers and people who are competent in 
Welsh. 

6.  In regards to the timeline- has the money 
definitely been allocated for phase 2, and 
how long could the school potentially be 
on 2 sites? 

Money has been allocated for the new build by 
councillors and feasibility work on site location 
has started. This has obviously started at risk so 
if the proposal does go ahead we have started 
some of the preparatory works. We will not go 
public with our preferred site until we own the 
site.   

We would hope that the one school on the 2 
sites would only be for one academic year, if all 
goes smoothly in terms of the build. 

7.  How long do the feasibility studies take? We have a number of studies that we will be 
carrying out on the sites- traffic study, 
environmental impact etc. Work is ongoing.  

8.  
Will the governors have input into the 
projected size of the new school, which is 
currently 140? 

 

The document states that the building will be 
140 pupils but this is negotiable. We looked at 
projected pupil numbers at both schools and 
added a tiny bit extra. We cannot build too big 
as we will be creating surplus places, also there 
is a risk that building too big could negatively 
affect another school. We need to find a 
balance so that the school is flexible and that 
the school is ‘future proofed’.  

We can debate the figure with the Temporary 
Governing Body at the appropriate time.   

9.  
Timeline is very tight if the new school is to 
open September 2017.  

 

We agree, but by starting some of the work 
now we are hopeful that we can make that 
deadline. 

10.  
What will the staffing structure look like? The staffing structure during the first phase 

when the school is on the current sites will not 
change, but remain as they are.  

There will be 12 months for the Temporary 
Governing Body to decide how to configure the 
new school, their budget and what staff they 
will need.  

11.  
What is the process of building a new We would work with representatives from the 

Temporary Governing Body on the design. The 

Page 127



17 
 

school? How will it work? design will have to be a certain size in terms of 
pupil numbers and how much space they will be 
required by building regulations BB99. 
Inevitably, we will need to work on what you 
ideally would like and what is affordable and 
this is a process of value engineering. We can 
take you to see other schools and show you 
how it is important that the space created is 
flexible. The curriculum is changing at a fast 
pace and it is important to future proof the 
design.  

12.  
The decision on Ysgol Llanbedr, how will 
this affect things? 

There are a number of options for Llanbedr 
which we are looking into with the Diocese.  
This consultation is independent of the Llanbedr 
process and will not be affected by any decision 
there.  

13.  
Does the new build depend on Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn closing? 

Members want a new area school for this area, 
and their vision is Category 2, voluntary 
controlled school. Their vision is to close both 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn and Ysgol Llanfair, that is the 
preferred option.  

Things remaining as they are-  the status quo- is 
not an option, it is not sustainable.  

14.  
Has there been any proposal for the school 
to be Category 1? 

Back in 2013 when we did the informal review 
of the Ruthin area we had an open mind; we 
wanted to understand the language needs and 
the view on church status. After looking at the 
evidence and looking at the Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan, it was discussed that Category 2 
does more than Category 1 in terms of 
increasing the numbers of Welsh language 
speakers.  

15.  
Words such as ‘downgrading’ and ‘diluting’ 
need to be challenged in terms of the 
categorisation? The way the categories are 
presented needs to change away from the 
numerical way.  

Absolutely, we agree.  

 

16.  
How much could this proposal change, how 
much influence can we have? 

The report from this consultation will go to 
Cabinet in May, they will not be able to change 
it and say the new school will be Category 1. 
They would have to ask us to go out to 
consultation on a new proposal i.e. the new 
area school being Category 1. 

17.  
Would this affect our timescales though? Yes it would. However, we have the money for 

the new build, we bid for the money along with 
the proposal for the Ruthin town schools and 
the new build for Ysgol Carreg Emlyn. The 
funding has now been allocated.  

18.  
What happens if in a few years’ time 
parents choose to send their children to 

It is important that we do not lose sight of the 
categorisations and the 3 criteria- Curriculum, 

Page 128



18 
 

the English stream, how can this be 
mitigated, how do we stop parents making 
this choice? Can you say a percentage in 
each stream? It would be very difficult to 
manage; influence in Ysgol Llanfair at the 
moment is Welsh. 

Language of the school and Outcomes. In terms 
of the Welsh medium offer Category 1 and 
Category 2 offer the same. Pupils who chose the 
Welsh medium stream in Category 2 have the 
same opportunities to go onto Welsh medium 
secondary education as those who attend a 
Category 1 school.  

We want to maintain the model of Ysgol Llanfair 
as it is now, not just here but across 
Denbighshire. The key will be recruitment of the 
head and the staff and ensuring they are all 
Welsh speakers. The Temporary Governing 
Body will need to ensure that their recruitment 
policy reflects this and states that all staff must 
be Welsh essential. Historically there has not 
been enough rigour on monitoring the 
categories of schools in Denbighshire but this is 
something we are now addressing. Schools 
must deliver outcomes that match their 
categories criteria.  

19.  
We have seen this in Ysgol Rhewl there are 
no Welsh speakers, not anymore anyway. 

Point noted.  

20.  
This will affect natural Welsh communities, 
huge responsibility on your hands- what is 
the evidence that Category 1 leads to 
worse outcomes than Category 2, where is 
the evidence? We understand that either 
way people will be displeased and faced 
with a choice? 

In the consultation document we have to say 
which Category we are proposing for the new 
area school. Based on the evidence presented 
and outcomes at Ysgol Llanfair we believe a 
Category 2 school is the way forward for this 
area.  

21.  
Parents have an entitlement to send their 
children to a Welsh speaking school. 

We want equal options in the area and we see 
Category 2 doing this, not Category 1. The local 
provision cannot be sustained as it is currently. 

22.  
If half of the parents at the Category 1 
school went to Ysgol Pen Barras the area 
school would not be viable? 

No it would not go ahead as planned, we would 
have to review elements of the plan. 

23.  
How many dual stream Category 2 schools 
are there in Denbighshire at present? 

2- Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Rhewl. 

 

24.  
Is there any opposition from the Diocese in 
terms of Category 1 and 2. 

 

They are supportive of our proposals and are 
very proud of Ysgol Llanfair DC, as they believe 
it is more accessible to those children whose 
parents may not speak Welsh. 

25.  
If the proposal for Ysgol Rhewl closure goes 
ahead Ysgol Pen Barras or Rhos Street 
would meet the outcomes of the children, 
how does the recent decision that Ysgol 
Llanbedr remains open affect things? 

The decision on Ysgol Llanbedr was never 
factored into the proposal, whether the closure 
went ahead or not.  

 

26.  
The data on page 25 looks bad as it 
indicates that not all our pupils speak 
Welsh. 

The data comes from the PLASC in January 
2014, we actually see it as more of a positive 
that non-welsh speakers would come into a 

Page 129



19 
 

Welsh medium school.  

27.  
Also the PLASC data that refers to English 
speaking homes. 

Again this is seen as a positive. 

28.  
In terms of staffing it mentions 
‘ringfencing’, what does this mean? 

The first phase- when the one school is on the 2 
existing sites there will be no staff changes. 
When the school moves onto one site there will 
be staffing changes, but jobs within the staffing 
structure of the new school will be ring-fenced 
for the current staff of the 2 schools i.e. priority 
will be given to these staff members. 

*An Ysgol Pentrecelyn governor asked for it to be noted that she was very disappointed that the 
whole consultation meeting was carried out through the medium of English. 
 
Parents’ meetings at Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn  
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1.  
Will it stay as a church school? Yes, that is the proposal. 

2.  
Ysgol Llanfair works well because of the 
small class sizes, I would be very 
concerned if the class sizes were to 
increase? 

The learning offer and structure of the new 
school will be the responsibility of the new 
headteacher and the Temporary Governing 
Body, they will decide how it will be configured 
in order to deliver what is required.  

We as a Local Authority can advise and support 
to ensure that the offer is right to deliver dual 
stream. It would be premature to say now how 
the class sizes will be configured. When the 
school is on the 2 existing sites we would advise 
the Temporary Governing Body to keep things 
as they are. 

3.  
I am happy that there will be a new 
school as the building lets Ysgol Llanfair 
down, there does seem to be some 
feeling between us and Pentrecelyn? 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn parents believe the new 
school should be a Category 1 school. We 
believe it should be a Category 2 as this would 
retain the provision in this area. 

4.  
We see the category as a win-win for 
English and Welsh speakers. 

It will be down to the new head teacher and 
Temporary Governing Body to ensure that  
Welsh is not reduced in any way, that all staff 
can speak Welsh- this can be incorporated into 
the schools recruitment policies.  

If there was any pressure for the category to 
change there are safeguards in place to protect 
it. The Governing Body has an important role to 
play in ensuring a Category 2 school delivers the 
outcomes of a Category 2 school. 

5.  
Nothing is guaranteed forever though? That is true and no-one really knows where 

education is going to be in 10/20 years’ time. 
We want to increase the number of Welsh 
speakers and we believe Category 2 does this. 

6.  
Having a new build will be brilliant, 
concerns regarding the finances and what 

If the Cabinet agree that it should not be a 
Category 2 school but Category 1, we will then 

Page 130



20 
 

happens if the language category is 
opposed? Could the money be taken 
away? 

 

have to go back out to consultation- this would 
delay things.  

However, in terms of the funding for the new 
school we decided from a political perspective 
to go for the funding for all 3 of the Ruthin 
projects at the same time. We now have 
agreement in place for funding for the Llanfair/ 
Pentrecelyn area school, new school for Ysgol 
Carreg Emyln (amalgamation of Ysgol Clocaenog 
and Ysgol Cyffylliog) and the new schools in 
Ruthin itself for Pen Barras and Rhos Street.  

7.  
When will the building works start? Until we have approval on the amalgamation of 

the 2 schools nothing can really start. We have 
undertaken some initial site feasibility works 
already; this work has been done at risk in the 
hope that things can move forward quicker if 
approval is given to proceed with the proposal. 

8.  
How did you decide on the new school 
being a Church school? 

We thought about the status of Ysgol Llanfair 
DC as a Church school and the additional 
support they receive from the Church. It was 
also discussed and agreed by both sets of 
governors.  

There is not too much difference between a 
Church and a community school.  In terms of 
curriculum nothing would change. The school 
would have 2 inspections- 1 from Estyn and 1 
from the Church.  

9.  
Why does the bi-lingual offer work in 
Ysgol Llanfair and not in other schools? 

Unfortunately, in the past monitoring of the 
categorisations has not been as stringent, but 
moving forward as a Local Authority we are 
committed in ensuring a school’s categorisation 
matches what it is delivering and its outcomes. 
We would ensure that safeguards are put in 
place around the Governing Body to ensure that 
was has happened previously would not 
happen. 

10.  
To us it is important that our child is 
fluent in English? 

Outcomes in English are just as important as 
outcomes in Welsh. We believe a Category 2 
school can help pupils have good outcomes in 
both English and Welsh. 

11.  
We are very happy with the offer at the 
moment- does not take for much for it to 
go wrong? 

It is all about continuously monitoring, working 
in partnership and taking responsibility for all 
learners.    

12.  
Over the long term the press are saying 
that the number of Welsh speakers will 
decrease, we need to maintain the level 
of Welsh? 

If we are going to safeguard the language we 
need to increase the effort to speak Welsh. 

13.  
We are concerned about the risks that 
surround this change? 

The bigger risk is to do nothing and allow things 
to continue as they are. One school is not 
sustainable and there is a risk we could miss this 

Page 131



21 
 

opportunity for a new school for the area. We 
need to be mindful in terms of managing any 
risks that come with the proposal. 

14.  
So in terms of classrooms in the new 
build the ratio does not have to be 30 
pupils to 1 teacher? 

At the stage of designing the building we will 
work in partnership with the Governing Body, 
as we have done on other projects such as Rhyl 
High and Ysgol Dyffryn Ial. We do a lot of 
consultation with the pupils as well as the 
Governing Body and staff. 

15.  
What is hoped to be achieved with a new 
area school? 

Currently we have 2 schools in the area; we 
know that this is not sustainable and we also 
know both schools have problems in terms of 
accommodation. We are on the outskirts of 
Ruthin and the view of Cabinet is to reduce 
surplus places whilst maintaining the good 
standard of education and giving parents a 
choice of a rural school.  

16.  
What is ‘rural education’? That education remains in the community and 

not solely in the larger towns. This means 
parents still have a choice and that some 
schools remain in the community. It is about a 
balanced sustainable approach. 

17.  
How much is the new school building 
going to cost? 

We have a budget of £3.4 million for the new 
build. 

18.  
From a design point of view, what is the 
upper limit, the maximum number of 
pupils a classroom will be designed for? 

30 is the maximum. 

19.  
In terms of the size of the overall school, I 
would say Ysgol Llanfair is at its maximum 
now with around 100 pupils, it starts to 
lose its intimacy when it gets bigger , I 
think it ceases to be ‘rural’ if it gets any 
bigger. When we moved to the area we 
wanted a small school, size does matter 
especially at primary age.  

In a small school the children get to know 
one another, a headteacher can teach 
and all kids are part of the Christmas play. 
I have to say I would move my children if 
the proposal went ahead as I believe the 
school would be too big. 

Point noted 

20.  
Clarification of impact of proposal on 
their children 

Timescales confirmed that the new school 
would operate across the current 2 sites as of 
September 2016, with the planned new school 
operational as of September 2017 

21.  
Would the proposal amend current 
options for pupils to be educated in 
either stream? 

Language options would stay the same for 
parents of Ysgol Llanfair, as they could indicate 
whether they wished their children to be 
educated in either language stream.  They 
would be expected to be competent in both 

Page 132



22 
 

languages by the end of KS2. 

The Council believes that should the new school 
be a Category 2 school this would not be 
detrimental to the Welsh language as this 
would not impact upon outcomes. 

22.  
Would the Headteacher remain? This would be a matter for the Temporary 

Governing Body to consider. 

23.  
What would be the main changes for 
pupils? 

Many elements would stay the same in the first 
phase.  There would be minimum change in 
respect of curriculum delivery with teaching 
staff expected to be the same. Elements which 
would change would be the name and uniform. 

The Council believes that the proposal offers 
parents the opportunity to maintain Welsh 
medium provision.  The Council needs to reduce 
the number of places and schools in the area 
and this proposal will assist this. 

24.  
Would there be pupil movement 
between the two sites should the schools 
amalgamate? 

As the arrangements would be for 12 months 
we believe this would be very unlikely. However 
the final decision will be made by the new 
Temporary Governing Body in partnership with 
the new Headteacher in how the 2 sites would 
operate.   

25.  
Where will the funding come for the new 
school? 

The funding is planned to come from 
Denbighshire 100% and this is what is in the 
current capital plan. 

The Council will discuss with the Church in 
Wales issues in relation to the disposal of sites 
and any finance that may be received in due 
course, should the proposal proceed. 

26.  
What sites are being considered?  Will 
highway safety and safe routes to school 
be considered? 

A number of sites are under discussion.  The 
Council are exploring a number of issues such as 
highways access, planning policy etc.  The issues 
in relation to walking routes to school etc. will 
all be considered carefully over the coming 
months. 

27.  
Would the number of pupils educated 
through the medium of Welsh be 
increased if it was a Category 1 school? 

The Council has focussed on the outcomes for 
the children more than the actual category of 
the school.  Based on this, the Council believes 
that the current proposal would allow a greater 
number of pupils to be educated through the 
medium of Welsh. 

28.  
As a parent I have strong views in favour 
of the benefits of the dual stream 
provision as this will deliver the most 
sustainable provision for the area in the 
long term. 

Point noted 

29.  
How will the Council monitor standards 
to ensure a full Welsh curriculum is 

The delivery of the curriculum would be a 
matter for the Governing Body of the new 

Page 133



23 
 

offered? school.  The Council will monitor this and it 
would be the role of the Head of Education to 
hold the Governing Body accountable should 
standards decline, including curriculum offer. 

30.  
What do you expect will be the outcome 
of the proposal on children currently 
attending the school? 

We expect that for pupils who attend the school 
that the outcomes from the new school should 
be similar.  The Council is of a view that the 
present proposal allows more pupils to access a 
Welsh medium education and allows pupils who 
initially may have chosen an English medium 
education to become immersed in the Welsh 
ethos and potentially transfer to the Welsh 
stream. 

31.  
Will pupils from a wider area be able to 
attend the school? 

The process for applications to the new school 
will be the same, and all pupils will be able to 
apply subject to capacity numbers; and then 
eligibility rules will come into play. 

32.  
Would a crossing be provided on the 
A525 through the village to enable pupils 
to access the Village Hall? 

This would need to be considered in the 
assessment of traffic movements and the 
location of the new school. 

33.  
Is this approach, as in the proposal, a way 
to get around the issue of not being able 
to federate? 

The option of federation was removed last year 
for a community and a voluntary controlled 
school to come together.  Federation was seen 
as a first phase towards an amalgamation on 
one site.  This change in regulations resulted in 
an alternative option of amalgamation in two 
phases emerging and being supported by 
Cabinet. 

34.  
When will the Council know the preferred 
site?  Will the existing sites be looked at? 

Members have committed finances to looking 
for a new site and various surveys have been 
commissioned ahead of receiving confirmation 
of any school organisational proposals.   

All options will be considered.  Redeveloping 
the existing sites will produce difficulties which 
would need to be addressed, particularly the 
poor highways’ access to the Llanfair site. 

35.  
Will the new school continue its links with 
the Church? 

The new school would be a voluntary controlled 
school and maintain its links with the Church.  
This would be an issue for the new Temporary 
Governing Body and the Church in Wales to 
develop further. 

36.  
What do the parents at Ysgol Llanfair 
think if the school was a Category 1? 

Some parents have told us they would move 
their child/ ren. 

37.  
Around 70% of the children in Ysgol 
Llanfair DC are educated in Welsh, why 
isn’t Category 1 the starting point? 

Pupils at Ysgol Llanfair do not all start in the 
Welsh stream; the way Ysgol Llanfair delivers 
Category 2 outcomes is very successful. We 
understand that a major concern is the 
sustainability of this and retaining it.   

We need to put in place safeguards to ensure 

Page 134



24 
 

the offer maintains the outcomes and put in 
place certain things which can ensure that the 
Welsh offer is not diluted, for example to 
ensure the recruitment policy allows jobs to be 
advertised Welsh essential.  

38.  
Ysgol Carreg Emlyn is a Category 1? Why? The difference in that situation was that Ysgol 

Cyffylliog, although classed as a Category 2 
school, offered very little dual stream provision- 
it was mainly through the medium of Welsh. 
There was a very small cohort of pupils who had 
been assessed in English and second language 
Welsh over the last few years, however most 
pupils were assessed in Welsh.  

The balance overall was much greater for Welsh 
medium education in the area. Ysgol Llanfair 
offers something distinctive. 

39.  
This proposal will lose parents? Do you 
want that? For parents not to send their 
children to the local school? 

No, we want to encourage more people into the 
Welsh language. The categorisation system is 
not ideal but we believe a Category 2 school 
gives both sets of children access to the 
curriculum in either language. 

40.  
What about the future of the Welsh 
language? 

The council as a whole has commissioned a 
report which looks at the Welsh language 
provision across the whole council area. This 
work has been done over the last 12 months 
and was looking at gaps in provision. The audit 
is now completed and a draft of the report is 
being prepared.  

41.  
Do you have evidence that pupils start in 
the English and move into the Welsh 
stream? 

We know of English speaking families in the 
area whose children have attended Ysgol 
Llanfair and originally started in the English 
medium stream and moved in the Welsh stream 
and therefore coming out of the school fully 
bilingual.  

Figures from February 2015 show that of the 
103 pupils: 

76 pupils (73.8%)- Welsh stream 

27 pupils (26.2%)- English stream  

18 of these pupils transferred from starting in 
the English stream to now being in the Welsh 
stream. 

42.  
The stats in the document are 
insignificant and show nothing with no 
numbers. 

We don’t dispute that Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
has some problems, the proposal looks 
like Ysgol Llanfair are getting a new 
school and Ysgol Pentrecelyn does not 

You are right about the stats and we take on 
board what you are saying. However, when 
there is a small cohort we cannot put the 
figures as individual children could be easily 
identified. What is more important is looking 
what happens to that child after primary, when 
they enter secondary school.  

Members understand the data and how it is 

Page 135



25 
 

look strong. presented. The Temporary Governing Body of 
the new area school will have equal 
representation from both schools and will be 
able to shape the instrument of governance. 

43.  
The Category is important, despite your 
reassurances, when it’s gone it’s gone 
forever. 

Point noted 

44.  Ysgol Llanfair is an excellent school, 
however Ysgol Rhewl is also a Category 2 
school and is completely different. 

We have to be honest and transparent; Ysgol 
Llanfair is delivering to the Category, but Ysgol 
Rhewl is not and this is causing confusion. We 
will shortly be going out to consultation on 
closing Ysgol Rhewl. Had we not been doing 
this, we would be definitely changing their 
language categorisation.  

45.  At the moment Welsh is spoken 
constantly at the school, including social 
activities and on the playground. My 
worry is this could be diluted in a 
bilingual school as my children will not be 
speaking Welsh throughout the day. 

We understand your concerns. Initially the new 
school will be on the 2 sites and not much 
would change. When they move into the new 
build, it is difficult to tell you at this stage what 
the offer would look like entirely; nothing is 
predetermined. 

46.  I want my 2 to be in the same class. 
When Ysgol Cyffylliog and Ysgol 
Clocaenog amalgamated to become Ysgol 
Carreg Emlyn, the sites were split I would 
not want this. 

I understand that, the split site works there and 
was a relatively easy decision.  

If the proposal goes ahead it will be a decision 
the Temporary Governing Body and 
Headteacher will have to make; we have said 
one option would be to keep things as they 
currently are.  

47.  
I will not have my children go to a 
bilingual school, so the only option I have 
is Ysgol Pen Barras, as Ysgol Bro Elwern is 
too far away. Want happens if, even if 
they get a new school, Pen Barras is 
oversubscribed- where will they go? 

  

A strong Governing Body and safeguards can be 
put in place to ensure that the Welsh ethos that 
exits in both schools now will remain and 
continue in the new area school; things such as 
ensuring the school’s recruitment policy states 
that all posts must be Welsh essential and that 
the instrument of governance reflects the offer 
of the school. 

48.  
I question the balance of the document 
and why in section 8.2 you discuss 
alternative schools. 

As part of the School Organisation Code we 
have to include certain things in a consultation 
document, and looking at alternative provision 
is something we have to detail.  

49.  
In terms of the stats can we not use 
fractions or would that break 
confidentiality? 

Yes it would as it might make a pupil easily 
identifiable. It is important to note that elected 
members do understand the stats and that 
some schools have small cohorts. 

50.  
How do you influence parental choice? If 
its dual-stream 50%-50% in each stream? 

It’s not about the number, it’s more about the 
offer and how it works. 

51.  
Can you say Welsh essential in 
recruitment policy? 

Yes you can. 

52.  
Who would monitor it? The Local Authority would monitor it. There is a 

strong Welsh in Education Strategic group, 

Page 136



26 
 

which is currently undertaking a big piece of 
work looking at both primary and secondary 
school language categorisation. 

This group is responsible for monitoring if a 
school should be in a particular category, and 
questioning and challenging the schools if they 
are not delivering to the outcomes of their 
categorisation.      

53.  
Who wrote the Community and Welsh 
language impact assessment? 

This was written by the modernising education 
team with the stats coming from the PLASC in 
January 2014 and the headteachers themselves. 
We have to work with the School Organisation 
code and in this it states that "the Welsh 
Government takes the view that the 
requirement for assessments should not be 
overly burdensome and does not consider that 
it is necessary to commission such work from 
external consultants.” 

54.  
As a governing body of a Category 2 
school, can I say the afterschool club will 
be delivered through the medium of 
Welsh. 

You have to be really careful in terms of the 
offer and equal opportunities need to be given 
to both sets of learners. 

55.  
Is this just a formality? Lots of 
assumptions have been made? Who 
wrote the document? 

The modernising education team wrote the 
document. If you are not happy with the 
balance of the document and you think it is 
biased in its information, please make this clear 
in your response. Nothing is predetermined and 
no decision has been made. We as officers do 
not make the decision; all the responses are 
collated and will be presented to Cabinet in 
May. The report will contain a recommendation 
which the Cabinet will have to support or not. 
They could ask us to re-consult on another 
proposal and this would mean another period 
of consultation. 

56.  
My concern as a parent is that this 
isolates Pentrecelyn as a school and picks 
it out that it is a school that has to close. 

Point noted. 

57.  
Who governs a Church in Wales in 
school? 

The Church appoints a minority of Foundation 
Governors to the Governing Body. As well as 
fulfilling the roles and responsibilities of School 
Governors, they are tasked with ensuring the 
school upholds an ethos based on clearly 
Christian values. 

58.  
Why do parents who live in Ruthin send 
their children to Llanfair? 

Parent can choose where they send their child 
to school and this choice can be factored by 
many things e.g. language, faith. 

59.  
Pentrecelyn is used by local people, I 
guess it is use it or lose it? Local school 
isn’t always about the language, not 

Point noted. 

Page 137



27 
 

everyone wants the same thing. I do 
worry the negative effect on the use of 
the church and chapel should the school 
no longer be here. 

60.  
The playing field is owned by Llysfasi 
college, if the proposal goes ahead will 
we still be able to utilise it? 

That is correct, the field is owned by Llysfasi 
College (now Coleg Cambria) which allow the 
school to use the sports field free of charge, 
whilst the school exits. 

61.  
This modernising 21st Century schools 
programme which is building new 
schools, it does not necessarily mean 
outcomes are improved or maintained, 
its more about a good structure, strong 
headteacher and good support- how does 
building a new school do this? 

It is concerned with improving the learning 
environment and can improve the way in which 
the curriculum is delivered. It is about using the 
space in a flexible manner to future proof the 
school, so it can deliver the ever-changing 
curriculum. Then yes, it is about strong 
governance and accountability. 

62.  
Why hasn’t Pentrecelyn been able to 
appoint a headteacher? 

We as the Local Authority advised the school 
not to have a head, as we knew the area review 
was happening.     

63.  
You have created that risk not us, we 
wanted to appoint a permanent head 2/3 
years ago. 

I understand what you are saying, but another 
problem is the qualification you now need to be 
a headteacher and the difficulty in accessing 
this qualification. It is a major problem and 
quite a complicated subject.   

64.  
Why has Ysgol Carreg Emlyn not been 
included as an alternative Welsh medium 
school for the parents of Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn. Ysgol Gwyddelwern has 
been included and that is 8 miles but 
Ysgol Carreg Emlyn is 6 miles. 

The alternative schools are identified by the 
current catchments and home locations of 
current pupils, not the distance between school 
sites. 

65.  
How will education be delivered in the 
new area school, how does the dual 
stream element work? Is it one class for 
the English stream and one class for the 
Welsh stream or are they both taught in 
one class with a teacher going between 
both? We need to know this type of 
information before we commit. 

The current model in Ysgol Llanfair has both 
streams in one classroom. The structure of the 
new school will be a matter for the Temporary 
Governing Body. 

66.  
Would it not be better for Ysgol Dyffryn 
Ial and Ysgol Llanfair which are both 
Category 2 schools and Church in Wales 
schools to be brought together instead of 
Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. 

We look at a number of factors, such as pupil 
travel times and distance when consulting on a 
proposal. Ysgol Dyffryn Ial is a Category 4 
school, not a Category 2 school. 

67.  
What about a type of Federation with 
Ysgol Pen Barras, Ysgol Pentrecelyn could 
be a satellite or unit of Ysgol Pen Barras 
but retaining Welsh medium education in 
a rural area. Concerns about the future of 
the Welsh language in rural areas, this 
would help maintain it. 

Alternative options have been explored, the 
current proposal maintains Welsh medium 
provision in the area. 

Page 138



28 
 

68.  
I don’t think many parents of this school 
will choose to send their children to the 
new area school if it is a Category 2 
school. It is more realistic that parents 
will send their children to alternative 
category 1 schools such as Ysgol Carreg 
Emlyn and Ysgol Pen Barras. 

Point noted. 

69.  
The Welsh ethos at Ysgol Llanfair has 
been helped by socio-economic factors 
within the area. This has boosted the 
Welsh ethos of the school. Children who 
attended the local Ti a Fi playgroups and 
their parents have chosen the Welsh 
stream education for their children. The 
Local Development Plan for the area will 
see more people moving into the area 
over time- where will these people be 
coming from- there has to be a balance to 
ensure that the Welsh language is 
maintained in rural areas. 

We cannot predict who will move into the area. 
There is also parental preference and it is 
difficult to foresee which medium of education 
people will choose for their children. 

70.  
It is important that it is realised that 
changes in pupil numbers are a feature of 
rural areas, it’s the dynamics of an area 
and sometimes there will be more pupils 
and sometimes less. It is a common 
feature of rural schools everywhere. 

We acknowledge this, which is why we are 
proposing an area school so that rural 
education is retained but is better prepared to 
respond to fluctuations in pupil numbers. 

71.  
Llanfair is closer to Ruthin. Why 
Pentrecelyn and Llanfair and not Borthyn 
and Llanfair? 

One reason is to increase the number of Welsh 
speakers, another is to manage the number of 
schools and reduce surplus places.  We want to 
secure education in relevant geographical 
areas.  Simply federating schools will not reduce 
surplus places. 

72.  
The Estyn report for Llanfair is dated 
2010 but Pentrecelyn’s has just been 
done.  There is nowhere in the document 
which shows the difference between 
then and now.  So you are not comparing 
like with like. 

The Welsh Government’s School Organisation 
Code, that we have to comply with, states that 
reference must be made to the latest Estyn 
reports of any schools being discussed. 

73.  
Why isn’t the category 2 option available 
in Ruthin?   

 

Ysgol Pen Barras is a Category 1 and Rhos Street 
a Category 5, both are big enough to keep them 
as 2 separate schools:  Llanfair and Pentrecelyn 
are not. 

74.  
Villages in Llanfair and Pwllglas will 
develop.  It only takes a few families, at 
the moment Llanfair school has 70:30 
[Welsh speaking].  When that changes, it 
will follow the example of Rhewl. 

There is also the risk of new Governors 
coming in. 

Yes, but they cannot change the category 
without consulting the Local Authority.  Also, 
the Governors are committed to the Welsh 
language.  I’m sorry that the message isn’t 
getting across from Llanfair.  The Governing 
Body has extended an invitation to parents to 
visit the school.  

Page 139



29 
 

75.  
The feedback from here for the initial 
consultation would have been 100% [in 
favour of a category 1] Welsh for this 
school. 

Our view is that the outcomes are the same 
[with Category 1 and 2]. 

 

76.  
The main point is that Llanfair is very long 
overdue for re-categorisation.  I believe 
that if it were done, Llanfair would be a 
category 1 school.   

As mentioned some children in Ysgol Llanfair 
will start in the English stream and become 
immersed in the Welsh language and then 
move into the Welsh stream. 

 

77.  
140 places – if everyone from 
Pentrecelyn goes to Llanfair.  49 pupils in 
Pentrecelyn; 100 in Llanfair – so it’s too 
small before you start. 

We won’t commence the build until all reviews 
are concluded.  We can re-size.  

 

78.  
The new school will be a Church in Wales 
school.  Could they take over? 

 

No they cannot.  They will have representatives 
on the governing body but would not be in the 
majority.  

79.  
How does categorisation work across the 
County- is there a Welsh Education 
Strategy to monitor this? 

Yes the Welsh in Education Strategic Group are 
currently undertaking a piece of work on the 
categorisation of schools across Denbighshire 
and how they work. 

80.  
In a Category 1 school pupils do not just 
have their education in the classroom 
through the medium of Welsh it is the 
entire ethos of the school. This could be 
lost in a Category 2 school, this is the 
concern. Parents have the right to send 
their children to a category 1 school if 
they want to. 

A Category 2 schools provides 2 offers, a Welsh 
Medium offer which must meet the outcomes 
of a Category 1 school and an English medium 
offer which meets the outcomes of a Category 5 
school.  

 

81.  
Would the parents of Ysgol Llanfair 
continue to send their children to the 
new area school even if it was a Category 
1 school? Have they been asked, proposal 
is only asking about Category 2? 

The option for parents to respond about which 
school they would send their child to is included 
within the response form and this information 
will be collected and presented in the formal 
consultation report. 

82.  
I want my children to be educated in the 
Welsh language entirely with a teacher 
that does not have to go from them to 
other children in two different languages 
in one classroom. I want them to speak 
Welsh not just in the classrooms but in all 
school activities. This won’t happen in a 
Category 2 school. Most go to the 
bilingual stream in Brynhyfryd not the 
Welsh stream, how does this strengthen 
the Welsh language.  

A Category 2 school offers Welsh medium 
education provision and also English medium 
provision. If it offers Welsh medium it must 
meet the outcomes of a Welsh medium school.  
There is a review of the school categorisations 
currently taking place as part of the Welsh in 
Education Strategic Group work programme. 

83.  
What is going to happen to the N Stream 
in Brynhyfryd in the future? 

 

The ‘N’ stream is for Welsh learners; it is not 
bilingual provision.  

From September 2015, the N Stream is stopping 
in its present form. Pupils already in the ‘N’ 

Page 140



30 
 

stream will receive additional support so that 
they can successfully enter the Welsh 1st 
Language stream and will be assessed as 1st 
Language at the end of key stage 3 and at GCSE. 
There may be a few pupils who do not make the 
expected progress or because of parental 
preference will transfer to the English stream. 

84.  
Would the new Pen Barras have sufficient 
capacity to accommodate the pupils? 

Yes it would.  

*A group of parents at Ysgol Pentrecelyn made representations objecting to the consultation meeting being 

conducted in English.  They said they did not want to speak with the council representatives in English because 

Welsh is their first language and they could not properly get their point across in English – even with a translator 

(as some of the parents had used).  An additional session was arranged at County Hall in Ruthin for any parents 

wishing to discuss the proposal through the medium of Welsh for the following week. Details of the session were 

distributed via the acting headteacher of the school. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 141



31 
 

APPENDIX C 

School Council Findings  

Report on the consultation with Pupils of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1  The School Organisation Code requires Denbighshire County Council (the proposers) to make 
suitable arrangements to consult with the pupils of any school which is affected by school 
organisation proposals. 

 
1.2  The code says that consultation must include consultation with the school councils of schools 

which are affected and should also include consultation with individual pupils where this is 
appropriate and practicable. 

 
1.3  The requirement has been set in respect of Article 12 of the United Nations Convention on the 

Rights of the Child (UNCRC) which states that children and young people have a right to have 
their views and opinions heard and listened to in decisions made by adults which affect their 
lives. 

 
2.0 Method of Consultation 

 
2.1  Denbighshire County Council published a separate Children’s version of the Formal 

Consultation Document. Copies of the children’s document were provided to children of both 
schools. 

 
2.2  Meetings were arranged by Denbighshire County Council Learner Voice Champion with both 

school councils. The meeting with the School Council of Ysgol Llanfair DC took place on the  
5th March 2015 and the meeting with the School Council of Ysgol Pentrecelyn took place on 
the 6th March 2015. 
 

3.0  Consultation Response  
 
3.1  Each meeting focused on similar elements: 

 What does the school look like now? 

 What they would like in a new school? 

 Hopes and Fears 

4.0  Response from the School Council at Ysgol Llanfair DC 
 

4.1 What does your school look like now? 

 After school club 

 Bilingual school (5 pupils) 

 Breakfast club 

 Cabins outside of school 

 Cannot do PE because of rain 

 Church  

 Church school (2pupils) 

 Classes upstairs ( 2 pupils) 

 Eating in the classrooms (2 pupils) 

 Field ( 7 pupils) 

 Not enough space 

 Not much room upstairs 

 Park 

 Place for first aid 

 Playground for the small children and 
one different for the big kids 

 Plenty of space to play 

 Poly tunnel ( 4 pupils) 

 Quiet place 

 Sheds 

Page 142



32 
 

 Football goals 

 Forest school (2 pupils) 

 Have somewhere to change to exercise 

 Have the opportunity to take part in the 
Eisteddfod 

 I have lots of friends 

 Need a better place to eat (3 pupils) 

 Need a hall 

 Need a safe way 

 Need new toilets/ more toilets 

 No canteen 

 No hall 

 No where for music 

 Not enough PE 

 Not enough PE tournaments 
 

 Small yard 

 Sports club 

 Teachers (2 pupils) 

 Large hedge eats footballs 

 Order of the lessons is good 

 Things to play with 

 Toilet 

 Classes in school building 

 Crossing the road at busy times 

 Yard ( 6 pupils) 
 

 

4.2 What would you like in the new school? 
 

 Pink uniform 

 SMART Boards 

 Continue after school club (3 pupils) 

 Animals 

 Apple Mac 

 Art room (2 pupils) 

 Astro turf (6 pupils) 

 Better park 

 Big yard (2 pupils) 

 Bilingual (5 pupils) 

 Black trousers 

 Breakfast club 

 Bring a phone to school (2 pupils) 

 Canteen ( 11 pupils) 

 Children’s room 

 Class (2 pupils) 

 Class teachers 

 Class to help with homework 

 Climbing wall ( 4 pupils) 

 Computer room ( 9 pupils) 

 Continue school council and eco council (2 
pupils) 

 Craft room  

 Do not want the new school to have rubbish 
on the floor 

 Exercise hall 

 First aid room ( 2 pupils) 

 Flat field (6 pupils) 

 Flat playground/ yard ( 7 pupils) 

 Friends 

 Fun activities (2 pupils) 

 Garden 

 Getting more people in the Eisteddfod 

 Making friends 

 Monkey bars 

 More exercise, less homework 

 More football tournaments 

 More sport 

 Music Cabin/ room (6 pupils) 

 Need a place to play when raining 

 Netball games 

 New bus stop 

 New toilets (5 pupils) 

 Nice teachers 

 Not by a road 

 1 day a week you can wear your own 
clothes 

 Park (2 pupils) 

 Parking instead of walking across the 
road to go to the car 

 Place for children to go when feeling sad/ 
worried ( 2 pupils) 

 Place for football 

 Place to go when feeling poorly (2 pupils) 

 Place to play 

 Place to relax 

 Read the bible in assembly 

 Room for each year 

 Safer road (3 pupils) 

 Science 

 Slide 

 Solar panels 

 Somewhere to change before exercise 

 Somewhere to play inside 

 Space for assembly 

 Sport/ PE ( 3 pupils) 

Page 143



33 
 

 Hall (7 pupils) 

 Healthy food 

 Hop Scotch 

 In Llanfair Mrs Hughes is good at knowing 
everyone 

 Ipads ( 2 pupils) 

 Church 

 Large play park 

 Library (5 pupils) 

 Lockers to change 

 Lollipop lady (3 pupils) 

 Lots more food 
 

 Staff room (8 pupils) 

 Staff toilets 

 Technology room 

 Welcome new people 

 Whiteboard in every classroom 

 More classrooms (2 pupils) 

 More room 

 Sheltered play area 

 Forest school 
 

4.3 Hopes and Fears 
 

Hopes Fears 

 Hope that here will be a canteen, hall, 
library, toilets and a place to change. 

 Hope there will be a place for somewhere to 
go for a minute if you are sad. 

 Looking forward to having more friends and 
a hall to exercise in if it rains. 

 More room to play outside. 

 More room to eat. 

 I hope we are going to get a canteen and 
hall. (2 pupils) 

 Hope that the new school will be bilingual 
and a church school near Llanfair. 

 There is a flat pitch and the yard isn’t 
slanted. 

 People will get used to the new building. 

 Making new friends and getting to know 
them better. 

 Looking forward to having things we don’t 
have now. 

 I would like to see the 2 get along. 

 Want to learn French. 

 Would like somewhere to do PE inside  

 Hope the new school is bilingual, has a 
sports hall and a canteen. 

 Nobody to be nasty. 

 Everyone will be friends. 

 Worried about the teachers losing their 
jobs (4 pupils) 

 Worry that the children in Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn will not think our Welsh is 
good enough (3 pupils) 

 People are sad about missing the old 
building. 

 Worried that there will be nasty people 
in Ysgol Pentrecelyn. 

 If some from Pentrecelyn are nasty 
during playtime. 

 

5.0  Response from the School Council at Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

5.1  What does your school look like now? 
 

 Healthy Breakfast Club  Listening to the teacher 

 Keeping healthy  Good garden (2 pupils) 

 More rules  Enough equipment to play with 

 Teachers  Speak Welsh 

 After school club  Good playground 

Page 144



34 
 

 Large enough  Keep Ti a Fi 

 I like lunch (2 pupils)  Good education 

 Play with everyone  Laptops 

 Do not like red paint, like it green  Lots of playtime 

 Tables are noisy  We can cook 

 Colourful chairs in the hall  

 
 
5.2  What would you like in the new school? 
 

 Have the same uniform                                      Keeping healthy 

 Exercise all week  Sports offer 

 Use whiteboards everyday  Councils 

 Listen to the teachers  Playing with each other 

 Breakfast club  Good clubs 

 More toilets  Retain our clubs 

 Good education  Good uniform 

 Playground  Green jumpers 

 Friendly children  Keep the school council/ eco council 

 We will be with Llanfair  People who speak Welsh ( 2 pupils) 

 People not speaking English  Keep the school Welsh ( 2 pupils) 

 No nasty children  

 
5.3  Hopes and Fears 

 

Hopes Fears 

 Leave the school here 

 Stay in Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

 Do not join Ysgol Pentrecelyn with Llanfair 

 The school will be Welsh (4 pupils) 

 To have a rural school 

 Have good friends 

 Have the same friends 

 Nobody will speak English 

 Miss our friends 

 The school being bilingual 

 Would not know anyone 

 Everyone speaking English (2 pupils) 

 Our Welsh getting worse 

 Have a new school uniform 

 Hurt the feelings of people that  have been 
educated at Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

 School will not be Welsh 

 Would not know where the classrooms are 

 Don’t want an English school 

 

6.0  Additional responses from Ysgol Llanfair DC 

Years 3, 4, 5 & 6 pupils at Ysgol Llanfair DC submitted the following responses in terms of how they 

feel about the 2 schools coming together: 

Years 3 & 4: 

 Good idea as make new friends (15 pupils) 

 Excited for a new school (3 pupils) 

 Flat yard and field (6 pupils) 

 Miss the old building, gazebo, poly tunnel 

and tyres 

 Not sure 

 Don’t like the idea of the 2 schools 

becoming a new school 

 Proud to be a church school 

 Happy it will be a church school (5 pupils) 

 New canteen ( 15 pupils) 

 More children in the school (2 pupils) 

Page 145



35 
 

 Nice to have a pool 

 Great to have 2 schools together as more 

children will speak Welsh and this will help 

with the other learners to speak Welsh. 

 More space to play ( 2 pupils) 

 Looking forward to working with 

Pentrecelyn 

 New hall ( 9 pupils) 

 Worried some teachers may lose their jobs 

 Library ( 2 classes) 

 Staff room ( 3 pupils) 

 Computer room (4 pupils) 

 Our school has perfect field with perfect 

grass 

 Don’t want the school to close, feel sad (2 

pupils) 

 Toilets are disgusting, walls are old 

 No mobiles 

 New school (3 pupils) 

 Car park (2 pupils) 

 Must be bilingual ( 8 pupils) 

 

Years 5 & 6: 

 Make new friends (4 pupils) 

 Bigger classrooms 

 Strengthen our sports teams 

 Gives students different opportunities and 

saves money 

 Excellent to have a new school 

 Staff and parents car park 

 Good idea (6 pupils) 

 Build a new school on the field in Ysgol 

Llanfair 

 I feel weary as some pupils will not got on 

with each other 

 Year 6 classroom too small 

 Staff room needed ( 9 pupils) 

 It will be sad when the school closes as I’m 

used to this school 

 New hall (9 pupils) 

 Bilingual school (11 pupils) 

 New canteen (4 pupils) 

 Computer room 

 

 

 

  

Page 146



36 
 

APPENDIX D 
Summary of responses to Standard Response Forms  

Question 1 Are you in favour of the Proposals? 

 Total %age 

Yes 70 44.03% 

No 86 54.09% 

No answer 3 1.89% 

 159  

 
Question 2: Please tell us whether you are responding as a:  

 
Type Total  %age 

Pupil of either school 4 2.52% 

Parent of a pupil of either 
school 

63 39.62% 

Staff Member of either school 4 2.52% 

Community Member 42 26.42% 

Other 46 28.93% 

 159  

 

Question 3: With which school are you most closely associated? 

 
Type Total  %age 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 61 38.36% 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 71 44.64% 

Neither school 27 16.98% 

 159  

 

Question 4: Please tell us if any of the following have had an influence on your view of the 
Proposals: 

 
Type Total %age 

Impact on education 118 74.21% 

Impact on local community 65 40.68% 

Other:   

   

Issues raised under “Other” heading 
(respondents could detail more than one 
“other”) 

Total %age 

Page 147



37 
 

Other: Impact on the Welsh  language 20 12.58% 

Other:  Importance of the school being a Church 
school 
 

3 1.89% 

Other:  Important that the school is bilingual 4 2.52% 

Other:  Important that the school is Category 1 
 

9 5.66% 

Other:  Importance of Area schools 4 2.52% 

Other:  Need of improved facilities 2 1.26% 

Other: Importance of equal opportunity for all 
parents/ children in the area 

1 0.63% 

Other: Family life 1 0.63% 

Other: Importance of small class sizes remaining 2 1.26% 

Other: Lack of choice for parents 1 0.63% 

Other: Impact on the children 1 0.63% 

 48  

 

*  Respondents were able to state more than one reason.  This explains why the total is greater 
than the number of respondents. 

 
Question 5: If the Proposals are implemented would you send your child/children to the new Area 
school or would you choose another school? If you would choose another school, which one and 
why? 
 

Type Total  %age 

The New Area School 67 42.14% 

Other 20 12.58% 

Skipped question, N/A or 
unsure 

49 30.82% 

Ysgol Pen Barras 18 11.32% 

Ysgol Bryn Tabor 4 2.52% 

Ysgol Llanbedr 1 0.63% 

Ysgol Carreg Emlyn 1 0.63% 

 160*  

 
Comment: Those who stated other but did not name a specific school stated that they would choose 
a Category 1 school for their child/ children. 
* One response named 2 schools so this is counted twice. 
 

Page 148



38 
 

Parents from the current schools responded as follows: 
Ysgol Llanfair: 33 parents responded- 31 said they would go to the area school, 1- was unsure/ 
skipped question, 1- said Ysgol Llanbedr 
 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn: 30 parents responded- 4 said they would go to the area school, 4- were unsure/ 
skipped question, 9 said to another Category 1 school, 12 to Ysgol Pen Barras, 1 to Ysgol Bryn Tabor, 
1 to Ysgol Carreg Emlyn ( 1 parent responded twice)  
 

 
Question 6: Please let us have any comments, positive or negative, that you would like to make 
about the Proposals:  
Please note that the responses to this question have been considered as part of the main 
consultation responses in Appendix G. 

Page 149



39 
 

APPENDIX E 

Summary of responses to Children’s Response Forms 

Question 1: Which school do you go to now? 

 
Type Total  %age 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 0 0 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 4 100% 

Another 0 0 

 4  

 
 
Question 2: How do you feel about the 2 schools coming together? 

 
Type Total  %age 

In favour 0 0 

Happy but only if the school 
stays Welsh 

1 25% 

Unhappy 3 75% 

 4  

 
Question 3: Is there anything else you would like to see happen instead of what we are planning?  

 
Type Total  %age 

A new school with the building 
in Pentrecelyn 

1 25% 

Federation with Ysgol Pen 
Barras 

1 25% 

Keep the school as it is 1 25% 

No response 1 25% 

 4  

 
Question 4: Would you like to say anything else? 

 
Type Total  %age 

No  3 75% 

No Welsh, English and Welsh 1 25% 

 4  

 

 

Page 150



40 
 

APPENDIX F 

Respondent Types 
 
Type Total %age 

Linked most closely with Ysgol 
Llanfair 

69 33.6% 

Linked most closely with Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn 

90 44.0% 

Neither school / did not say 46 22.4% 

 205  

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 151



41 
 

APPENDIX G 

Summary of Issues and Responses 

Language: 
Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

Must consider factors such as educational 
outcomes, linguistic performance and social 
cohesion, together, rather than separately. 
Parental choice is also important. There is a 
strong majority preference amongst parents in 
the area for a community based bilingual 
school. 

Point noted. 

Ysgol Llanfair has a long history of supporting 
and promoting the Welsh language by taking 
part in Urdd Eisteddfodau and other musical, 
social and community events through the 
Welsh language.  The area is bilingual and so 
the school has always aimed to achieve high 
standards of education in both languages and 
kept a strong Welsh ethos. 

Point noted. 

Llanfair Governing Body has been approached 
on several occasions over the last 20 years by 
the Local Authority, to consider becoming a 
Welsh medium school. However, after careful 
consideration, these requests were declined. 

Llanfair Governing Body believes that, if the 
school had changed, many non-Welsh speaking 
families within the community would not have 
sent their children to the school.  It believes 
the same would be true if such a change 
happened now. 

Point noted. 

The positive experience of the Welsh language 
has encouraged parents to change their 
children from the English to Welsh medium. 

Parents would not choose a Welsh-medium 
school initially and so such pupils would be 
potentially 'lost' from bilingual or Welsh-
medium education in the longer term. 

We want to encourage more people into the 
Welsh language. The categorisation system is not 
ideal but we believe Category 2 gives both sets of 
children access to the curriculum in either 
language. 

We received a number of responses from parents 
who sent their child to Ysgol Llanfair initially to the 
English stream, who then transferred to the Welsh 
stream. These parents stated that had the school 
been Category 1 then they would have sent them 
to an English medium school and therefore the 
Welsh language would have lost those pupils.   

The local paper has suggested that merging 
Llanfair with Pentrecelyn to make a bilingual 
school would ‘downgrade’ the Welsh language. 

As a parent of a child who began his education 
at Llanfair, I would like to strongly refute that 
assertion. The teaching of the Welsh language 

Point noted. 

Page 152



42 
 

was always at the forefront of activity at the 
school. 

The proposal would make sense if it was a 
Category 1. 

We believe the area is best served if the new area 
school is categorised as a 2.  

Ysgol Llanfair is successful in bringing in pupils 
from English speaking families and making 
them confident and at ease in Welsh. 

Ysgol Llanfair has strengthened, broadened, 
protected and developed the Welsh language. 

Point noted. 

Want a new school but must be Category 2.  
Open to bilingual education but not to 
provision in only one language. 

 

Point noted. 

There is a subtle difference between a bilingual 
and dual stream school.  Llanfair is bilingual.  
Dual stream suggests that English and Welsh-
speaking pupils are taught separately.  The 
school teaches them in the same class. 

The Local Authority recognises that the current 
model of delivery at Ysgol Llanfair is very 
successful and we would like the new area school 
to deliver the curriculum in a similar way. 
Ultimately the way the school is configured would 
be developed by the new headteacher and the 
Temporary Governing Body.  

The wording used is based on the Welsh 
Governments terminology of language 
classification. 

Bilingual provision creates an atmosphere of 
tolerance and inclusion and encourages 
families with English language background to 
consider a Welsh language education for their 
children as they know communication in both 
languages is acceptable e.g. PTA meeting, 
parents evening etc. 

Point noted. 

Unless the Welsh language reaches out to new 
learners, it won’t have a bright future. The 
creative and successful work carried out in 
Llanfair will help this. 

Point noted. 

We want to build well educated children 
proficient in both English and Welsh, educated 
in modern facilities where staff and students 
can thrive. 

Point noted. 

Being a single Welsh medium school does not 
provide assurance of pupil numbers for the 
future. If the Welsh language is to survive, it is 
completely reliant on winning over non-Welsh 
speakers. This is what Llanfair has done over 
the last 20 years. Their success as a community 
school shows that there is no need to always 
divide our education between the needs of 
Welsh speakers and non-Welsh speakers. 

 

Point noted. 

Page 153



43 
 

The press has stated that the standard of 
Welsh education in a bilingual school is inferior 
to that found in a Welsh school. The staff at 
Ysgol Llanfair disagree with this and take pride 
in the high standard of Welsh at the school - at 
a first language and second language level. 

Point noted. 

Words such as "dilution", "degrading", 
"diminution” and "watering down", are 
emotive and inevitably, therefore, inaccurate. 
Ysgol Llanfair is a very Welsh school. The basic 
business of the school is conducted through 
Welsh.  All members of staff (not just teachers) 
are Welsh speakers, apart from one, I believe, 
who is a Welsh learner and whose 
understanding is excellent.  All adverts for 
teaching posts stipulate that a command of 
Welsh is essential rather than preferable. 

We agree that words likes these, including 
‘downgrading’ are not helpful, unfortunately the 
Categories use a numerical system and people see 
1 as better than 2, when this is not the case.  

The Categories have been developed by the Welsh 
Government to give better information to parents 
and they indicate “the amount of Welsh used in 
teaching and learning and in the day to day 
conduct of the school.” 

The 2 schools are in fact incredibly similar; the 
only difference being a minority of pupils did 
not take their foundation phase and Key stage 
2 tests through the medium of Welsh. The 
question remains how do you secure this 
forever when a school is a constantly evolving 
entity? The answer is via opening a new 
welcoming rural Category 1 school marketed as 
promoting bilingualism. 

The Council believes that the proposal offers 
parents the opportunity to maintain Welsh 
medium provision in the area. The Council needs 
to reduce the number of places and schools in the 
area and this proposal will assist this.  

Unfortunately, there is no guarantee that this 
enlightened situation will continue in Ysgol 
Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd in future.  Being a 
'Bilingual School' does not mean the same 
thing in each Category 2 School. 

 

That is true and no-one really knows where 
education is going to be in 10/20 years’ time. We 
want to increase the number of Welsh speakers 
and we believe Category 2 does this in this area.  

 

Future of the "N" class in Ysgol Brynhyfryd? 

 

The “N” stream is considered to be suitable for 
pupils who have learnt Welsh as a second 
language and who, by the end of key stage 2, have 
a good understanding of the language. These are 
usually pupils transferring from Category 2 and 
Category 3 primary schools. The ‘N’ stream is for 
Welsh learners; it is not bilingual provision. 

Pupils’ competency and confidence in the Welsh 
language is assessed at the end of key stage 2 and 
advice provided on the most appropriate provision 
in terms of ensuring linguistic progression.  

From September 2015, the N Stream is stopping in 
its present form. Pupils already in the ‘N’ stream 
will receive additional support so that they can 
successfully enter the Welsh 1st Language stream 
and will be assessed as 1st Language at the end of 
key stage 3 and at GCSE. There may be a few 
pupils who do not make the expected progress or 
because of parental preference will transfer to the 

Page 154



44 
 

English stream. 

Why close a Welsh Language school?  There 
are so few in the area.   However, there could 
be real positives from the changes. 

Point noted. 

How many currently use the English stream at 
Llanfair? is it effectively a welsh school 
anyway? 

Figures from February 2015 show that of the 103 
pupils: 

76 pupils (73.8%)- Welsh stream 

27 pupils (26.2%)- English stream  

18 of these pupils transferred from starting in the 
English stream to now being in the Welsh stream. 

If these children had not switched streams the 
figures would look quite different: 

58 pupils (56.3%)- Welsh stream 

45 pupils ( 43.7%)- English stream 

This proves the success of the Ysgol Llanfair model 
and the way they develop the Welsh language in 
pupils.  

All schools in Wales should be bilingual.  
Segregation of English and Welsh speakers will 
ultimately cause the demise of the Welsh 
language. Bilingual schools create Welsh 
speakers from English families and vice versa. 

Point noted. 

Council should support the creation of an area 
school that builds on the existing strengths by 
encouraging and challenging pupils and staff to 
ensure fluency in Welsh and English as well as 
true bilingualism - as some Category 3 schools 
in some counties are able to do. 

Point noted. 

What will happen to the Pentrecelyn Ti a Fi? It 
is a very important step to introduce the 
language to children from a non-Welsh home. 

 

During the first phase when the school is on the 2 
existing sites nothing will change and the Ti a Fi 
could continue.  

Prior to the establishment of a single site school 
we would work with providers to ascertain best 
service delivery for these services.  

It is said that it works because only 30% of 
pupils are in the English stream at Ysgol Llanfair 
D.C.  What if this were turned on its head? 

It is not about the number, it is more about the 
offer and how it works. 

We need to provide a centre to deliver Welsh 
medium education for years to come with a 
guarantee. A bilingual school does not do this 
due to the constant fluctuation in pupils 
selecting either stream.  A Welsh medium 
school still attracts non Welsh speaking 
parents. Ysgol Pentrecelyn has a thriving Ti a Fi 
which gives people a taste of how our school 
works, we do not exclude none welsh speakers, 
neither do the other Welsh medium schools in 

Point noted. 

Page 155



45 
 

the area. 

In reference to the document in section 3.6 
“DCC recognises how important bilingualism is 
in 21st century Wales”; does bilingualism work 
better through immersion in a category 1 
school or a category 2 school?   

From the evidence we believe that the outcomes 
at Ysgol Llanfair are very good and that the way 
they deliver Category 2 outcomes is very 
successful.  

The Current Proposal for Pentrecelyn and 
Llanfair does not:  

i) safeguard and sustain one of the main 
targets outlined in the ‘Welsh Government’s 
Welsh Language Education Strategy’ i.e. ‘to 
safeguard and strengthen Welsh-medium 
education.’  

 ii) safeguard and sustain outcome 1 as 
outlined in ‘Denbighshire’s Strategic Plan for 
Welsh in Education’ i.e. ‘placing more seven-
year-olds being taught through the medium of 
Welsh’ 

It has been suggested that the proposals are 
inconsistent with the duty on local authorities 
to promote the Welsh language. 

If the new school is Category 2, the Council will 
run counter to the practices of other counties 
in Wales who establish more Welsh medium, 
Category 1 schools. 

How can the Council be truly committed to the 
Welsh in Education Strategic plan if they are 
closing a Category 1 Welsh medium school? 
And, if bilingual schools work so well, why are 
there only 36 out of the 1333 primary schools 
in Wales? 

How is the proposal contributing to any 
increase in the numbers who speak Welsh?  
How is it a sign of "commitment" that the 
Council is talking about in its Strategic Plan. 

 

Denbighshire County Council believe that Ysgol 
Llanfair’s current model brings more pupils into 
Welsh education who may have gone to an English 
medium school otherwise.  

For those pupils in the Welsh stream at Ysgol 
Llanfair they are receiving a similar provision to 
those who attend a Category 1 Welsh medium 
provision.  

We believe Ysgol Llanfair DC attracts pupils from 
English speaking families who may have otherwise 
gone to an English medium school. A number of 
pupils that attend Ysgol Llanfair who start their 
education in the English stream transfer into the 
Welsh stream. As of February 2015 the split at 
Ysgol Llanfair was as follows: 

Year Total Welsh 
stream 

English 
stream 

Transfers: 
English to 
Welsh 

Nursery 13 10 3 N/A 

Recep 15 9 6 5 

1 13 12 1 2 

2 11 8 3 0 

3 13 10 3 2 

4 12 9 3 1 

5 12 8 4 4 

6 14 10 4 4 

Total 103 

 

76 
(73.8%) 

27 
(26.2%) 

18 
(17.5%) 

The outcomes of pupils wanting a Welsh medium 
education are equal in Category 1 and Category 2. 
The 2 Categories in terms of Welsh medium 
provision are the same but the way they are 
delivered may differ. The key will be how do we 
maintain and sustain the provision in a new model. 
 
Denbighshire County Council’s Welsh in Education 

Page 156



46 
 

Strategic Plan 2014-2017 states that, 
“Denbighshire County Council is fully 
committed to the Welsh Government’s 
aspiration of delivering ‘a sustained increase in 
both the number and percentage of people 
able to speak Welsh. The Council recognises 
the importance of bilingualism is in 21st 
Century Wales and has adopted a long term 
aspiration that all children and young people in 
the County will leave full-time education being 
competent and confident in using both Welsh 
and English languages.” 
 

The Council decided Ysgol Carreg Emlyn was to 
be Category 1 with Ysgol Cyffylliog (Category 2) 
required to conform.  If Category 2 is so 
essential for Pentrecelyn/Llanfair why was it 
not a requirement for Ysgol Carreg Emlyn? 

The difference in that situation was that Ysgol 
Cyffylliog, which although classed as a Category 2 
school offered little dual stream provision- it was 
mainly through the medium of Welsh. There was a 
very small cohort of pupils who had been assessed 
in English and second language Welsh over the last 
few years, however most pupils were assessed in 
Welsh.  
The balance overall was much greater for Welsh 
medium education in the area. Ysgol Llanfair offers 
something distinctive. 

With 100% of pupils at Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
receiving Category 1 Welsh education and with 
70% of pupils from Ysgol Llanfair DC in the 
Welsh stream - is this not a sound basis for 
new Category 1 school?  

Pupils at Ysgol Llanfair do not all start in the Welsh 
stream, the way Ysgol Llanfair deliver Category 2 
outcomes is very successful. We understand that a 
major concern is the sustainability of this and 
retaining it.  We need to put in place safeguards to 
ensure the offer maintains the outcomes and put 
in place certain things which can ensure that the 
Welsh offer is not diluted, for example to ensure 
the recruitment policy allows jobs to be advertised 
Welsh essential.  

The sole purpose of this Proposal is to facilitate 
the county’s plans to provide a new school 
building for Llanfair D.C.  To achieve this, the 
county requires the premises at Pentrecelyn 
and the children.  Neither linguistic benefits 
nor the safeguarding of future full Welsh 
medium education is under any consideration.  
Supporting this Proposal would be no less than 
downgrading full Welsh medium education in 
the area. The only option remaining for 
children and families of Pentrecelyn is to 
remain open in its present form as a ‘Category 
1 independent school’.   

We need to review our school provision to:   

 make sure our education provision is of a 
high quality, and is sustainable in the long 
term,   

 improve the quality of school buildings and 
facilities,   

 provide the right number of school places, 
of the right type, in the right locations. 

The 2 schools continuing as they are is not an 
option as they are not sustainable in the long term 
and face real issues in regards to delivering the 
changing curriculum. 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn Governors- A Category 2 
school does not provide a cast iron guarantee 
that Welsh medium education will be present 
for future generations and add to that the fact 
that the Governing body of a Voluntary 

Any future change to the language category of the 
school would be required to be the subject of 
formal consultation and statutory notices.  A 
Governing Body cannot undertake a change in 
language category by itself. The Governing Body of 

Page 157



47 
 

Controlled School can propose to change a 
language category of a school rather than the 
Local Authority then this adds to the 
weakening of this guarantee. 

a school rather than the Local Authority publishes 
proposals to make regulated alterations to a 
school, including changes to the language 
category. The Local Authority, amongst other 
stakeholders, will be consulted with and could 
submit an objection if it was of the view that the 
proposal did not meet the Council’s Strategy for 
Welsh Medium Education.  

If there are any objections to the proposal then 
the Local Authority will decide if it should proceed. 
If the Local Authority itself objects then the 
proposal would be decided by the Welsh Minister. 

In a Category 1 school all pupils leave fluent in 
Welsh and English, personnel can change, 
parents can change but the language provision 
is not subject to these variables. 

Point noted. 

The current model in Ysgol Llanfair basically 
operates as a Category 1 school in all but 
name. 

The outcomes at Ysgol Llanfair in Welsh first 
language are very good and we believe the model 
at Ysgol Llanfair attracts pupils from English 
speaking families who may have otherwise gone 
to an English medium school.  

A Category 2 school is not an equivalent choice 
for parents seeking Welsh medium education. 
Parents will be forced out of the area to a town 
school or another village school or even to an 
oversubscribed school in the next county.  
100% of our pupils are attending their nearest 
suitable school.  Parents choose to send their 
child to the local school to be immersed in 
Welsh, how do we safeguard this option for the 
future?   

A Category 2 school offers Welsh medium 
education provision and also English medium 
provision. If it offers Welsh medium it must meet 
the outcomes of a Welsh medium school. 

In a Category 2 school the number of children 
assessed through the medium of Welsh is 
dependent on parental choice. Is the Council 
prepared to safeguard the balance between 
Welsh medium and English medium in the new 
area school? 

It is important that we do not lose sight of the 
categorisations and the 3 criteria- Curriculum, 
Language of the school and Outcomes. In terms of 
the Welsh medium offer Category 1 and Category 
2 offer the same.  
 
Pupils who chose the Welsh medium stream in 
Category 2 have the same opportunities to go 
onto Welsh medium secondary education as those 
who attend a Category 1 school.  
 
We want to maintain the model of Ysgol Llanfair as 
it is now, not just here but across Denbighshire. 
The key will be recruitment of the head and the 
staff and ensuring they are all Welsh speakers. The 
Temporary Governing Body will need to ensure 
that their recruitment policy reflects this and 
states that all staff must be Welsh essential. 
Historically there has not been enough rigour on 
monitoring the categories of schools in 
Denbighshire but this is something we are now 

Page 158



48 
 

addressing. Schools must deliver outcomes that 
match their categories criteria.  

The Council schools admissions policy clearly 
states that “The majority of Nursery, Reception 
and Year 1 pupils attending Welsh Medium or 
opting for Welsh at a dual stream school easily 
develop competence and confidence in both 
Welsh and English, regardless of the family 
home language.”  

Parents are not afraid to use Welsh medium 
child care and the local Cylch Meithrins, so why 
is there a fear surrounding primary education. 
We as a Welsh medium primary school have 
non-welsh speaking families, we are not 
exclusive, we are a community.  If the new 
school were to be a Category 2 it would isolate 
those parents seeking a Welsh Medium 
education via true immersion. 

We believe that the Category 2 model, as 
delivered in Ysgol Llanfair, attracts pupils from 
both Welsh and English speaking families. The 
Welsh stream in Ysgol Llanfair is a similar provision 
to a Welsh medium Category 1 school.  

Ysgol Llanfair DC is a unique model sustained 
by factors that can be changed, it cannot be 
preserved for ever and is in fact closing, 
something that people seem to be forgetting. 
How can the new area school work in the same 
way when it will be a bigger school starting 
with a new slate?  

The Temporary Governing Body will be made up of 
governors from both schools which will ensure the 
Welsh ethos of the new Area school will remain.  

It will be down to the head teacher and Temporary 
Governing Body to ensure that Welsh is not 
reduced in any way, that all staff can speak Welsh- 
this can be incorporated into the school’s 
recruitment policies.  

If there was any pressure for the category to 
change there are safeguards in place to protect it. 
The Governing Body has an important role to play 
in ensuring a Category 2 schools delivers the 
outcomes of a Category 2 school. 

Concern about the pupils learning Welsh as a 
second language, where is the place for them 
in the secondary sector?  How does this fit with 
Outcome 2 of the Welsh in Education Strategic 
Plan (WESP): 

“More learners continuing to improve their 
language skills on transfer from primary to 
secondary school. We aim to increase the 
percentage of learners who are assessed in 
Welsh first language at the end of year 9 to 
21%” 

Pupils assessed at the end of Key stage 2 in Welsh 
as a second language will usually transfer to an 
English medium school or English medium stream. 
They will continue to be assessed in Welsh as a 
second language unless they choose to enrol in a 
Welsh language immersion scheme. 
 
The overall objective of the WESP is to: 
“expand Welsh medium provision throughout the 
County to reflect and capitalise on the increased 
demand for Welsh medium education. The Council 
will work with our Welsh Medium and Bilingual 
schools to increase the number of pupils receiving 
their education through the medium of Welsh and 
to ensure that those pupils who receive Welsh 
medium primary education continue to do so in 
the secondary sector.” 
 
A significant influence on this target is the 
language assessed at the end of Key stage 2. Based 

Page 159



49 
 

on current numbers at Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn, 76% of pupils would be in the Welsh 
medium stream at the end of Key stage 2 of the 
new area school. This would deliver 96 pupils to 
secondary Welsh medium education based on the 
number of pupils at the school in September 2014.  
 
Based on current demand for Welsh medium 
education at the point of admission 79 pupils 
would attend a single stream Category 1 school. 
18 pupils have been gained to Welsh medium 
education in Ysgol Llanfair due to the policy of the 
school.  

Must ensure that Welsh is not only the 
language of the classroom but the language in 
which pupils socialise too.  In Category 2 
schools pupils in the Welsh stream are not 
obliged to speak Welsh outside of the 
classroom i.e. during playtime and lunchtime, 
trips and extracurricular activities etc. It is in 
these situations that pupils from non-Welsh 
speaking families are more likely to turn to 
their mother tongue.  It is also not statutory in 
a Category 2 school to deliver extracurricular 
activities in Welsh. 

We understand this concern, however initially not 
much would change whilst the school remains on 
2 sites. When the school is on one site it is difficult 
to say what the offer would look like entirely, 
nothing is predetermined.  

Whilst there is a majority selecting the minority 
language it may work with the support of staff 
but how can the school implement a policy 
forcing limits on parental choice; is this 
possible? It would be better to use a Category 
1 school as the basis for the immersion model. 

It will be down to the head teacher and Temporary 
Governing Body to ensure that Welsh is not 
reduced in anyway and that all staff can speak 
Welsh.  We believe that the Category 2 model, as 
in Ysgol Llanfair now, delivers very good 
outcomes.  

A Category 2 school in Denbighshire isn’t 
equivalent to the Welsh Government’s 
categories. In the Government’s categories, 2B 
and 2C categories are very different to 
category 2A, and the county needs to be clear 
about this. 

The debate on access to Welsh-medium 
education which is in in the county’s survey is 
vague, mentioning 'Category 2', which does not 
correspond to the Government’s categories. 
The establishment of a Welsh school, be it a 
category 1 or a category 2A one, is a positive 
step.  Any other category would not promote 
Welsh education.  

 

The Welsh Government’s Defining Schools 
According to Welsh Medium Provision (Oct 2007) 
states that categories 2A and 2B refer to Bilingual 
secondary school classification only, not primary. 
Within the primary school sector the categories 
are as follows: 

Category 1: Welsh medium 

Category 2: Dual Stream Primary school 

Category 3: Transitional primary school: Welsh 
medium with significant use of English 

Category 4: Predominantly English Medium school 
but with significant use of Welsh 

Category 5: Predominantly English medium 
primary school 

The above categories are also stated in 
Denbighshire’s Schools Information guide 2015-
16. 

  

Page 160



50 
 

There is a notable difference between dual-
stream schools and Welsh-medium schools. To 
enable dual-stream schools to present an 
education that is similar to Welsh education, 
there is a need to distinguish between both 
streams in the classroom, and outside. This 
includes school assemblies, sports, lunch hour 
and breaks.  It is difficult for dual-stream 
schools to do this. 

The small numbers of English speakers in the 
two schools in question means it would be a 
negative step to maintain an English stream in 
the proposed school. 

The current model in Ysgol Llanfair has both 
streams in one classroom. The way the new Area 
school is configured will be a decision for the new 
headteacher and Temporary Governing Body.  

The natural language of Ysgol Pentrecelyn in 
terms of learning and socialising on the 
playground is Welsh.  Would this be true of the 
Category 2 School proposed in Llanfair Dyffryn 
Clwyd/Pentrecelyn?  What is the current 
situation at Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd, on the 
playground as well as within the classroom?   

Initially the new school will be on the 2 sites and 
therefore not much would change. When the 
school is on one site it is difficult to tell you at this 
stage what the offer would look like entirely.  

 

With the likely growth of the area through 
housing development, population growth and 
so on, it means that the vague comments 
advised by the Council’s proposal on steps that 
the Governors could take to ensure future 
Welsh ethos is meaningless and unfounded. 
There is only one way of ensuring a Welsh 
ethos, and that is the growth in the number of 
pupils who wish to be educated through the 
medium of Welsh. A Category 1 school 
safeguards the procedure for the future, with 
each child fluent in Welsh and English. 

 

We cannot predict who will move into the area. 
There is also parental preference and therefore 
difficult to assess which mediums of education 
people will choose for their children in terms of 
language, faith, size and location.  

Indeed, under the proposed model, the County 
Council will not have a Category 1 school for 
any community between Ruthin and 
Llangollen. This would be a truly remarkable 
situation. This would leave many parents from 
the Pentrecelyn catchment having to travel out 
of the county to Wrexham for Category 1 
Welsh education. 

 

Point noted. 

The situation at Ysgol Rhewl, the only other 
Category 2 school in Denbighshire.  

 

Unfortunately in the past monitoring of the 
categorisations has not been as stringent but, 
moving forward as a Local Authority, we are 
committed in ensuring a school’s categorisation 
matches what it is delivering and its outcomes. We 
would ensure that safeguards are put in place 
around the Governing Body. 

 

Page 161



51 
 

A Category 2 school is beneficial for learners of 
Welsh as a second language but not beneficial 
to Welsh first language learners. 

We believe that outcomes for learners in the 
English and Welsh stream at Ysgol Llanfair are very 
good.  

There isn’t clear guidance from Denbighshire 
County Council’s "School Admissions" 
department to ensure the Welsh medium 
stream thrives. We may well see a situation 
arising where a child wishing to receive Welsh 
medium education in the school is denied at 
the expense of a child wishing to have English-
medium education. 
 

Parents can apply for a place at any school, and 
the Local Authority will make an offer if a place is 
available.  
 
Parents choose a school based on many factors 
including language, location and faith. We hope 
that the new school, as happens in Ysgol Llanfair 
now, attracts pupils from both Welsh speaking and 
non- Welsh speaking families, and that those 
pupils who initially enter the English stream will 
move into the Welsh stream as they progress 
through the school.  
 

In Category 1 schools the competence of all 
staff i.e. head teachers, senior managers, 
teachers and ancillary staff to communicate in 
writing and verbally in Welsh and English is 
essential. In such schools the status of Welsh is 
entirely secure. 

The outcomes of pupils wanting a Welsh medium 
education are equal in Category 1 and Category 2. 
The 2 Categories in terms of Welsh medium 
provision are the same but the way they are 
delivered may differ. The key will be how do we 
maintain and sustain the provision in a new model. 
 
It is important that we do not lose site of the 
categorisations and the 3 criteria- Curriculum, 
Language of the school and Outcomes. It is not 
about anything else- incidental Welsh or extra- 
curriculum activities. In terms of the Welsh 
medium offer Category 1 and Category 2 offer the 
same.  
Pupils who choose the Welsh medium stream in 
Category 2 have the same opportunities to go 
onto Welsh medium secondary education as those 
who attend a Category 1 school.     
 

Concern about the impact of the proposals on 
the provision of Welsh Education in rural areas. 
 

In Denbighshire’s schools all children have the 
opportunity to learn through the medium of 
Welsh or English. Bilingualism is introduced as 
early as possible. Welsh is part of the National 
Curriculum, and is taught both as a first and 
second language, depending on the school.  

Ysgol Llanfair is currently identified as Category 2 
(Dual Stream School). The normal expected 
outcomes for pupils in the Welsh stream are the 
same as for Category 1. For pupils in the English 
medium stream, normal expectations are the 
same as for Category 5. 

Concerns about the provision of Welsh 
Medium Education in the medium to long term 
within a Category 2 school: The former Ysgol 
Dyffryn iâl, Bryneglwys School was permitted 
to change its category during 2002-2005 from 1 
to 2, despite the opposition of some of the 

The new categories from the Welsh Government 
were introduced in 2007/08. Schools were allowed 
to align themselves with the most appropriate 
category. It is important to remember that the 
definitions of the categories have no basis in 
legislation but have been developed to give 

Page 162



52 
 

Governors. The school subsequently closed and 
Ysgol Dyffryn iâl reverted to one site in 
Llandegla. The provision of Welsh language 
education was further downgraded to the 
present category 4. 
 

parents better information in terms of Curriculum 
delivery, language of the school and outcomes.  

The Local Authority as part of its overall 
monitoring role for the Welsh Education Strategic 
Plan will ensure that the current strong Welsh 
medium ethos in both schools is retained and will 
intervene as appropriate should this be diluted.  

There is a notable difference between dual-
stream schools and Welsh-medium schools. To 
enable dual-stream schools to present an 
education that is similar to Welsh education, 
there is a need to distinguish between both 
streams in the classroom, and outside. This 
includes school assemblies, sports, lunch hour 
and breaks.  It is difficult for dual-stream 
schools to do this. 
 
The small numbers of English speakers in the 
two schools in question means it would be a 
negative step to maintain an English stream in 
the proposed school. 
 

‘Dual- stream’ is the wording used that the Welsh 
Government describes a Category 2 school, how 
this is delivered is down to the schools 
themselves- the way Ysgol Llanfair currently 
deliver Category 2 outcomes is something we wish 
to replicate in the new school- where both 
streams are in the same class, thereby immersing 
all pupils in the Welsh language.  

Has the link between language medium of 
pupils and where they live?  Do people (who 
live closer to another suitable school) choose 
to travel from Ruthin because of language, 
religion or something else? 
 

There are no formal catchment areas in regards to 
school admissions. It is down to parental 
preference and it is difficult to identify trends as a 
consequence. 

Forcing pupils to move from a Category 1 
school to a Category 2 school is totally unfair 
and it will have an adverse impact on the 
linguistic nature of the area for generations to 
come, and will be another nail in the coffin of 
the Welsh language. 

We believe that the Category 2 model as 
demonstrated in Ysgol Llanfair DC strengthens the 
Welsh language. 

The closure of a Category 1 school will not 
"maintain the provision" we have at present. 
 

The Council believes that the proposal offers 
parents the opportunity to maintain Welsh 
medium provision.  The Council needs to reduce 
the number of places and schools in the area and 
this proposal will assist this. 

Under the banner of a Category 2 school the 
new school can be anything between bilingual 
and English (e.g. Ysgol Rhewl and Ysgol 
Llandegla now) There is nothing to protect the 
Welsh ethos or education through the medium 
of Welsh. County officials argue that it is 
possible to maintain the existing ethos of Ysgol 
Llanfair – but it must be remembered that 
Ysgol Llanfair is being closed as part of this 
proposal – so it is not possible to use the 
existing ethos of Ysgol Llanfair as a reference 
for the new school – there will be a new 
school, a new location and completely new 

To maintain the ethos and language currently 
celebrated at both schools, we need to ensure 
that the Temporary Governing Body adopts 
relevant policies to safeguard the Welsh language, 
such as ensuring the recruitment policy states all 
posts will be Welsh essential.  

The new school staff will be recruited from the 2 
existing school staffs, posts will be ‘ring fenced’ for 
staff at the 2 existing schools. Whilst the area 
school operates on two sites the council does not 
anticipate any major changes to the existing 
staffing structures other than the Headteacher 
and other leadership positions.  

Page 163



53 
 

teachers here (and possibly pupils) and these 
will create a whole new ethos – under the 
umbrella of a Category 2 school the teachers 
here can be non-Welsh speakers, there's 
nothing that can guarantee a Welsh ethos.  

Favour a Category 1 Welsh medium site.  It is 
common sense to conclude that students who 
use Welsh socially in Key stage 1 and Key stage 
2 with their peers on the corridors and yard are 
more likely to be more confident and 
competent in their Welsh language skills, than 
those who do not. Welsh becomes a natural 
language of communication. 
 

Point noted. 

Now the Cylch Ti a Fi at Pwllglas has closed, the 
Cylch Meithrin continues but with a 
substantially lower intake. To what extent can 
the Cylch Meithrin continue to feed children 
from Welsh families to Ysgol Llanfair? What will 
the consequences be for Ysgol Llanfair if less 
Welsh families send their children to the 
school? Isn’t there a real threat here to the 
bilingual balance of the school? Is there a 
danger that Welsh speakers will be drowned? 
 
 
 
 

We believe that Ysgol Llanfair is attractive to 
Welsh speaking and non-Welsh speaking families. 
The ethos of the staff and school is distinctively 
Welsh. The delivery model of the curriculum 
allows for those pupils who start at the school in 
the English stream to move into the Welsh stream 
confidently and to continue their education in the 
medium of Welsh in secondary school. 
  
 

A 50/50 split in one classroom disrupts the 
progress of the pupils rather than developing 
them further in the long term. The percentage 
of Ysgol Llanfair pupils who achieve the 
expected outcome in the development of the 
English language is weak, while the rest of the 
results are very good which leads us to ask the 
question - is there sufficient time and attention 
given to those children who wish to study in 
English? Is it possible to ensure a level playing 
field for all children of all abilities in both 
languages? 
 

The table below shows % achieving level 4+ at Key 
Stage 2 in English in 2014: 

 English 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 93.3% 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn 60.0% 

Denbighshire 89.2% 

Wales Average 88.4% 
 

Moving the school backward from Category 1 
to Category 2 is a massive step backward from 
the perspective of language sustainability in 
the Vale of Clwyd and sets a dangerous 
precedent for the future. Previously the 
Council had a clear policy of moving categories 
upwards from 3 to 2 to 1 and it wasn’t possible 
to degrade a school. Did this policy change in 
the last few years? 

As we have explained we believe that the new 
school should be a Category 2 as based on 
evidence and numbers for this area that this is the 
correct way forward.  

Unfortunately in the past monitoring of the 
categorisations has not been as stringent, but 
moving forward as a Local Authority we are 
committed in ensuring a schools categorisation 
matches what it is delivering and its outcomes.  

 

 

Page 164



54 
 

Church: 

Consultee Comment Promoters Response 

Welcome the strong moral values and ethos in 
the school.  Feel the connection with the church 
is of fundamental importance. 

Point noted 

Does the new school have to be a Church 
School? (Llanfair is a church school but 
Pentrecelyn is not) 

We are now in Denbighshire building Church 
schools from new. The non-conformists and 
some without faith will lose a county school. 

We believe that faith-based education is an 
important part of the overall education portfolio 
on offer to parents in Denbighshire, and we wish 
to maintain the provision currently offered by 
Ysgol Llanfair DC in this regard. 

Concern about creating a new Church school 
rather than a council school, prejudicing against 
non-faith and Welsh chapel children who would 
not want a church school education? This would 
not be allowed where any other faiths were 
concerned, and for parents who are Welsh 
chapel goers. 

There is no prejudice against non-faith or Welsh 
chapel children. Admissions criteria and the RE 
syllabus remain the same as is currently in place 
in both Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. 
We would welcome strong links with the local 
chapel, and would hope the new school would 
foster a positive and fruitful relationship with the 
chapel minister as well as the local Church in 
Wales incumbent.  

The church teachings are not provided through 
the medium of Welsh, and even in the event that 
they are bilingual (rarely) it does still not provide 
the total Welsh education that a Category 1 
school provides. If the involvement of the church 
is so small, why does it need to be a Church 
school at all? 

RE is taught in Welsh in both schools currently, 
and this offer will remain in the Category 2 
model of the new school. 

Church and chapel services in the area are 
delivered in Welsh, with Welsh-speaking 
ministers serving the local chapel and parish. 

 

The new Area School should be a ‘Community 
School’.  The church should not be involved with 
the school. Church involvement is not in tune 
with the 21st Century. 

We believe that the Church still has a major 
relevance in the 21st Century as a provider of 
education, safeguarding the important position 
of RE in the curriculum and ensuring pupils have 
reflective space and guidance when considering 
some of the mysteries and challenges they will 
face as they grow. 

The church is an integral part of the life of a 
church school and this should continue. Any new 
site for the proposed school needs to take into 
account the access and availability of SS Cynfarch 
and St. Mary's Church. 

The Christian character of the school subtly 
influences the behaviour, expectations and ethos 
of the classroom and school yard and my 
children have been taught tolerance, 
compassion, respect and self-confidence which I 
believe stem from this ethos.  

The school should maintain strong links with the 
Church. 

The church school is important in instilling 

Points noted. 

Page 165



55 
 

correct moral/ ethical principles and we feel that 
a new Area school would be some distance from 
the church that children currently walk to. This 
would mean either a) more transport, b) less 
frequent use of the church. 

If the new school is to be a Faith school this only 
drives the concerns regarding language stability.  
The Local Authority has no power to change the 
language category therefore how can it truly 
implement monitoring of the Welsh language 
provision.  The Church in Wales overall is not, in 
our opinion, against a Welsh Medium School, it 
in fact has some in its portfolio but in this case 
the involvement in the proposal should be 
carefully considered.  What does the Church 
have to offer the new school that is different to 
the ethos that is in most community schools 
already? 

Local Authority monitoring of language provision 
is not dependent on the school being VC or CP. 

 

 

A new Church in Wales area school would be 
very beneficial for the education of the children 
in the area. 

Point noted. 

The new area school will need to be within safe 
walking distance of Llanfair Parish Church in 
order to maintain this. 

Point noted. 

 

 

I also oppose it being a church school and would 
much prefer it wasn't. 

Point noted. 

 

Religion and education should remain separate. 
The school should not be run by the Church. 

 

Considering the majority of the UK population is 
non-Christian, atheist, agnostic etc. that any 
school needs to be secular. Lets have a modern 
bilingual local school open to everyone. 

The school will not be run by the Church in 
Wales; the Church in Wales will appoint a 
minority of foundation governors to the 
Governing Body, who will run the school. 

A new VC school would be open to everyone, as 
VC schools follow Local Authority admissions 
criteria. 

 

Is a model adopted around the 1870's still 
relevant in today's education system? Schools 
should offer objective, fair and balanced multi-
faith belief education, including non-religious 
and other world views, rather than the one- faith 
religious instruction and worship. 

The RE syllabus followed (local Agreed syllabus) 
does include study of other beliefs and world 
views; it is not "one faith religious instruction". 

 

 

 

How much money is the Church putting forward 
towards building a new community school to get 
so much influence on the decisions of the 
Council? 

Discussions are ongoing with the relevant Trusts 
and authorities as to how the Church can best 
contribute to the costs of the new build. There 
are legal considerations surrounding the land 
asset that need to be properly managed. 

Do the Church of Wales oppose to a Category 1 
School? 

In this case, the Church in Wales believe that the 
Category 2 model, as taught in Ysgol Llanfair, 

Page 166



56 
 

offers the best way forward; providing excellent 
outcomes, encouraging a high uptake of Welsh 
from children from a non-Welsh-speaking 
background, and allowing parents to engage 
more fully with their children's education. 

Better to combine Llanfair and Llanbedr schools? 
Both are church schools. You would keep the 
bilingual and Welsh provision. 

The future of Llanbedr school is itself under 
review. The overall rationalisation of primary 
school provision envisaged by the Ruthin review 
process did not consider this a feasible option. 

School Facilities: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

Both schools need better facilities; including hall 
for assemblies and indoor PE when necessary, 
canteen, gym, and the toilets and classroom 
facilities are in need of updating. 

We agree that both schools’ facilities are in 
need of updating to ensure that the curriculum 
is delivered effectively. A new build school 
ensures that the space provided is flexible and 
future proofs the school for the ever-changing 
curriculum.   

Facilities at Ysgol Llanfair are below standard. It 
would be good to have new facilities. However 
moving the school will adversely affect the 
relationship between the school and church/ 
community. 

The new school would be a Voluntary 
Controlled school and would therefore maintain 
its links with the Church.  This would be an issue 
for the new Temporary Governing Body and the 
Church in Wales to develop further. 

 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn has superb sports facilities in 
the form of a large playing field, donated to the 
school and free of charge. 

The field is owned by Llysfasi College (now 
Coleg Cambria) which allow the school to use 
the sports field free of charge whilst the school 
exits.  

It seems that Llanfair is in more need of a new 
school than Pentrecelyn. The state of Llanfair's 
building and location is a real issue. As the 
proposal is for the new school to be bilingual and 
a church school it results that in real terms it is a 
proposal for a new school for Llanfair into which 
Pentrecelyn will be absorbed. 

The status quo is unsustainable and the Council 
believes that the current proposal is the right 
offer for the area.    

Transport is an issue for Llanfair but not one that 
means the school has to move. Traffic lights, a 
pedestrian crossing and rumble strips on the 
road at the entrance to the village would help. 

The current site in the village is close to the 
community and the church. The buildings are 
beautiful. It would be a waste to move. It would 
be better to replace the temporary 
accommodation on the current site. 

Redeveloping the existing sites will produce 
difficulties which would need to be addressed, 
particularly the poor highways access to the 
Llanfair site. 

 

New build does not necessarily mean better 
education. 

We believe that an improved learning 
environment can improve the way in which the 
curriculum is delivered. It is about using the 
space in a flexible manner to future proof the 
school. 

Page 167



57 
 

Governance: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

The governors at Llanfair are aware of the 
anxieties raised by those who believe that a 
bilingual school provides no certainty for the 
future of the Welsh language within such a 
designation. It has been claimed that a change in 
membership of the Governing Body could also be 
to the detriment of Welsh medium education. 
We believe that such an argument is not based 
on any sound evidence. 

Point noted. 

At Ysgol Llanfair, successive governing bodies, 
with linguistically mixed composition, have 
consistently supported the language category of 
the school and its strong Welsh ethos. This has 
also been reflected in staff recruitment. It is our 
understanding that, should further safeguards in 
this respect be required, this can be provided 
through an Instrument of Government for the 
new area school. We would support such an 
Instrument being put in place. 

Point noted. 

As it is the governors who will decide whether 
Welsh is a 'necessary' or a 'desirable' 
requirement for the head of the new school, the 
position of Welsh in the new school seems 
fragile. 

 

The Temporary Governing Body of the new 
school will initially be made up of Ysgol Llanfair 
DC governors, Ysgol Pentrecelyn governors and 
representatives of the Diocese.  

It will be down to the head teacher and 
Temporary Governing Body to ensure that  
Welsh is not reduced in any way, that all staff 
can speak Welsh- this can be incorporated into 
the schools recruitment policies. This is no 
different to a Category 1 school. 

If there was any pressure for the category to 
change there are safeguards in place to protect 
it, the Governing Body have an important role 
to play in ensuring a Category 2 schools delivers 
the outcomes of a Category 2 school. 

The ethos, management, administrative and 
social language of teachers, staff and pupils is 
equally as important as the linguistic medium of 
instruction in Welsh schools. Welsh should have 
priority. 

Point noted. 

Concern that the Welsh language may slip in 
time under the management of new people who 
may have different views to the current head 
teacher.  

A strong Governing Body and safeguards can be 
put in place to ensure that the Welsh ethos that 
exits in both schools now will remain and 
continue in the new area school; such as 
ensuring the schools recruitment policy states 
that all posts must be Welsh essential and that 
the instrument of governance reflects the offer 
of the school.  

Doubt over whether a Welsh ethos can be This would be a decision for the Temporary 

Page 168



58 
 

created. The facts seem to suggest that the 
governors meetings in the new school would be 
held in English. 

There is no certainty that the future Governing 
Body will be supportive of the Welsh language, it 
may decide to put a greater emphasis on English. 

Governing Body. 

It will be up to the governors, parents and 
community to ensure that this does not 
happen. 

Can it be guaranteed that the Governing Body 
can follow the expected mitigation measures 
arising from the linguistic assessment? Can it be 
guaranteed that the Local Authority has the 
capacity to monitor and influence in future? 
Should challenge not be the aim rather than 
mitigation? 

The Local Authority would monitor it; there is a 
strong Welsh in Education Strategic group, 
which is currently undertaking a big piece of 
work looking at both primary and secondary 
school language categorisation. 

This group is responsible for monitoring if a 
school should be in a particular category, and 
questioning and challenging the schools if they 
are not delivering to the outcomes of their 
categorisation.      

The ethos, administration language, staff 
appointments and management regime through 
the medium of Welsh would be safeguarded in a 
Category 1 school, such as Ysgol Pentrecelyn. 

For a school to operate as a Category 2 school 
they need to be able to deliver Category 1 
outcomes and ensure that the ethos etc. is 
delivered in both languages. 

As long as there are governors who can ensure 
staffing of the school remains to such a high level 
of bilingualism, education in both languages can 
only be a positive thing. 

Point noted. 

Emphasis is placed on the security of the 
Governing Body to ensure a neutral impact on 
the Welsh language - what actions will be in 
place by the County to ensure that the same 
emphasis is given within 10 years? 

The importance of the Welsh language and 
ethos will ultimately be the responsibility of the 
schools Governing Body to ensure that the 
Welsh offer at the school does not weaken. 

Making the new area school a Category 2 school 
rather than a Category 1 school endangers the 
strong ethos present at Llanfair. It would not be 
compulsory for the Governing Body to appoint a 
head teacher or teachers who speak Welsh.  

The Temporary Governing Body will need to 
make sure its recruitment procedures ensure 
the staff at the school; both teachers and 
support staff, have the required levels of 
fluency to maintain the current strong Welsh 
ethos. This should be addressed by ensuring all 
jobs are classified as Welsh essential during the 
recruitment process and that the Governing 
Body’s recruitment policy reflects that all staff 
members must be able to communicate in 
Welsh. 

The balance of first language Welsh speakers to 
second language speakers may change. 
Governors will need to be very aware of the 
linguistic challenges and accountable as regards 
their commitment to ensuring the social peer to 
peer use of the language. 

Point noted. 

Anglican schools do not have to maintain Welsh 
language categories; it is in the hands of the 
governors not the council whether changes are 
made in the future. Whilst this might mean 

Any future change to the language category of 
the school would be required to be the subject 
of formal consultation and Statutory Notices.  A 
Governing Body cannot change a language 

Page 169



59 
 

support for the Welsh language, it might mean 
downgrading the language category in the 
future. If large housing developments go ahead 
the demographics might threaten immersion 
education. 

category by itself. The Governing Body of a VC 
school rather than the Local Authority publishes 
proposals to make regulated alterations to a VC 
school, including changes to the language 
category. The Local Authority would have to be 
consulted with, and could submit an objection if 
it was of the view that the proposal did not 
meet the Council’s Strategy for Welsh Medium 
Education.  

If there are any objections to the proposal then 
the Local Authority will decide if it should 
proceed. If the Local Authority itself objects 
then the proposal would be decided by the 
Welsh Minister. 

The current school in Llanfair will be closed as 
part of this proposal – therefore it is not possible 
to use the current Llanfair School ethos as 
reference for the new school – there will be a 
completely new school, location and teachers 
here (and possibly pupils) and these will create a 
completely new ethos – under Category 2 
umbrella the teachers may be non-Welsh 
speaking of course, there is nothing to guarantee 
the Welsh ethos.   

In terms of staffing, during Phase 1 nothing is 
expected to change. During this time the 
Temporary Governing Body will work to 
develop a new staffing structure for when the 
school is operating off one site, and these posts 
will be ‘ringfenced’ for the current staff. The 
Temporary Governing Body need to ensure that 
their recruitment policy states that all jobs will 
be advertised as Welsh Essential. 

The consultation document states that the 
Governing Body should have a strong ethos and 
policies which put language at the heart of the 
school to mitigate against the Welsh language 
and ethos being diluted.  How can the Governing 
Body influence parent choice and retain a Welsh 
majority to allow immersion to continue in future 
years? 

It is up to the Governing Body to set the ethos 
and culture of the school to ensure it is 
attractive to parents who seek Welsh medium 
education for their child, whether they be 
fluent Welsh speakers or learners. 

Community: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

The knock on effect to the community of closing 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn will have a significant impact, 
which once implemented cannot be redressed. 

Point noted. 

It is important that any new school, and its 
provision, reflects the aspirations of the majority 
of the local community and provides equal 
opportunity for all parents/children in the area. 

 

We believe that this proposal offers a 
sustainable provision in the area. 

It is important that we do not lose our village 
schools, it would be a shame if the only option 
was in town. 

Currently we have 2 schools in the area, we 
know that this is not sustainable and we also 
know both schools have problems in terms of 
accommodation. We are on the outskirts of 
Ruthin and the view of Cabinet is to reduce 
surplus places, whilst maintaining the good 
standard of education and giving parents an 

Page 170



60 
 

option of a rural school.  

This is a rural Welsh area, and it is paramount to 
retain the local children in their community. 
There are many local families with young 
children who currently send their children to 
Pentrecelyn, and many of these would be forced 
to take their children out of their community to 
other Category 1 Welsh schools if the new school 
is categorised as Category 2. This would have a 
detrimental impact on our community and 
society with youngsters losing their sense of 
community and roots, not knowing each other as 
co-inhabitants, which will in its turn destroy the 
sense of community attachment. 

It is parental choice as to where the parents 
would wish to choose to send their child. The 
proposed new area school would deliver the 
same outcomes as a Category 1 school for those 
children who are educated in the Welsh stream.  

The language and the community would be at a 
loss in losing the Cylch Ti a Fi and Category 1 
Welsh education in the area – a large number of 
children would lose being fluent in the language 
and that is a damaging effect, which is contrary 
to Welsh Government and Denbighshire County 
Council strategies and the needs and desires and 
rights of people in this Welsh rural area.   

During the first phase when the school is on the 
2 existing sites nothing will change and the Ti a 
Fi could continue. Prior to the establishment of 
a single site school, we would work with 
providers to ascertain best service delivery for 
these services. 

The proposal should not alter the number of 
children who are fluent in Welsh negatively.  

 

Schools play a vital role in promoting social 
cohesion and community spirit. Our hope is that 
the new school be a focus of unity and concord 
in the Llanfair and Pentrecelyn area. We 
appreciate that the closure of existing schools 
can be challenging, but we trust that the best of 
both schools can be preserved and safeguarded 
for the benefit of future generations. 

Point noted. 

Pentrecelyn school has been around for decades 
and is the centre of the village for many reasons. 
It helps keep the chapel well attended, not just 
through the direct use by the school at Christmas 
and harvest festivals etc., but also outside of the 
school by children who would not necessarily use 
it but have friends from school who go and they 
want to join in. It provides a venue for all the 
summer fairs, Christmas fairs, whist drives, 
meetings and other events that are organised by 
the school and also as a playground out of school 
hours for children to use. 

During the first phase the schools will remain 
open on each site. Once Phase 2 is 
implemented the school buildings will close in 
both villages.  

Policy 10 of the Modernising Education Policy 
states that: 

“In the case of sites owned by the County 
Council, the Council will consider proposals for 
retention of the building and the minimum 
necessary land for access/car parking / playing 
fields for community use on the following basis 
only: 

(a) There is no alternative provision in the 
community for community events and meetings 
such as a community or village hall, church 
institute or sports club. Evidence suggests that 
communities have difficulty in properly funding 
and supporting more than one such facility; 

(b) Responsibility for running and maintaining 

Page 171



61 
 

the building would be passed in full to the local 
Town or Community Council or other 
community organisation. Community facilities 
should be funded by local residents in line with 
the arrangements which exist in many other 
communities across the county. The County 
Council is prepared to consider transferring the 
freehold of the building at nil consideration. 

Pentrecelyn school also provides a reason to 
know the people in our community. These are 
the things that the big town schools are taking 
from the community, and without our little 
school, we lose touch with the village and the 
people who live in the surrounding areas. This 
would be a great shame. 

It will be up to the Temporary Governing Body 
to ensure that all communities served by the 
new school are considered when events are 
held.  

Class sizes: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

Child:teacher ratio is an important issue 
undermining the success of Ysgol Llanfair.  We 
would hope to see the current child:teacher ratio 
maintained.   

 

The learning offer and structure of the new 
school will be the responsibility of the 
headteacher and the Temporary Governing 
Body. They will decide how it will be configured 
in order to deliver what is required.  

We as a Local Authority can advise and support 
to ensure that the offer is right to deliver dual 
stream. It would be premature to say now how 
the class sizes will be configured. When the 
school is on the 2 existing sites we would advise 
the Temporary Governing Body to keep things 
as they are. 

It will also be about working in partnership with 
GwE and working with the Temporary 
Governing Body to look at what is needed and 
what the budget will allow. It is important to 
understand that there is a commitment from 
the Local Authority that this will work and it’s 
about what will be needed at that moment in 
time. 

An increase in the school population via 
amalgamation could lead to further benefits, in 
that year groups could be taught together, rather 
than in dual or multi year groups. This should 
lead to greater challenge for pupils and a more 
streamlined focus on age-specific needs. 

The way the year groups are configured will be 
a decision for the Temporary Governing Body.  

Prefer smaller schools ( less than 100 pupils). 
Small rural schools are a wonderful part of 
education in Wales. 

Unfortunately it is no longer sustainable for the 
2 schools to continue as they are. 

 

Area School: 

Page 172



62 
 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

The amalgamation is a positive step. The services 
and numbers that can be shared will save costs 
for the council and for the schools. This should 
have happened years ago. 

Denbighshire County Council Cabinet members 
are committed to delivering an Area school for 
Llanfair/ Pentrecelyn. 

If this doesn't happen there is a risk of a super 
school in Ruthin which will damage numerous 
communities- Llanfair, Pwllglas, Pentrecelyn and 
Graigfechan and the surrounding areas. 

Point noted. 

Makes more sense to have one area school like 
at Ysgol Bro Famau and Ysgol Carreg Emlyn - 
examples of successful mergers 

Currently we have 2 schools in the area, but we 
know that this is not sustainable and we also 
know both schools have problems in terms of 
accommodation. Llanfair and Pentrecelyn are 
on the outskirts of Ruthin and the view of 
Cabinet is to reduce surplus places whilst 
maintaining the good standard of education and 
giving parents an option of a rural school.  

 

Educational provision in the County has to be 
modernised and changed. The creation of a new 
area school from the pupils of Ysgol Llanfair and 
Pentrecelyn is inevitable. However using the 
model of one of them is not the most sensible 
and fair solution. 

The current model in Llanfair is a Category 1 in all 
but name. 

We want to increase the number of Welsh 
speakers and we believe that the way Ysgol 
Llanfair delivers outcomes for Category 2 
delivers this. We also need to manage the 
number of schools and reduce surplus places 
whilst securing education in relevant 
geographical areas.   

 

There is general support for the new area school 
but not the language model.  

Point noted. 

In favour of the establishment of area schools, 
for the following reasons:- 

o they increase the opportunities for 
pupils in various fields, 

o it is possible to reduce the age range in 
the classroom, 

o it promotes healthy social interaction 
between the pupils, 

o area schools are cost effective,  

There are strong educational and social reasons 
for establishing area schools. 

Point noted. 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn has already agreed in principle 
on establishing an area school.  The school also 
agreed with the proposal to establish a voluntary 
controlled district school ruled by the Church in 
Wales. By standing their ground over the issue of 
language category it is true that the school 
stands for the principles of equal opportunities 
for pupils. 

Point noted. 

It is a completely hypothetical proposal as there's The proposal clearly states that the area school 

Page 173



63 
 

no information for the new school in the 
consultation documents regarding its nature, 
location or cost.   

will be a Category 2, Church in Wales school. 
Location of the new build has not been 
determined yet and the cost of the new build 
will be £3.4 million. 

Rural School: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

Attending a local rural school is enjoyable.  An 
all- inclusive, local school which provides 
education in English and Welsh is fundamental in 
creating a strong community. 

Point noted. 

There is often an argument that a small school 
cannot provide an adequate education, but there 
is much more to a school than statistical figures. 

The Authority is of the view that size of school 
does not always correlate to performance. 

Not in favour of the proposal but would still 
rather send my children to a rural community 
school than to town.  It seems that the proposal 
is for a new school for Llanfair DC into which 
Pentrecelyn will be absorbed. 

Point noted. 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn always served as a rural 'area' 
school, not just for the village i.e. Llanelidan, 
Llandegla etc. Nearest alternative is Pen Barras- 
overcrowded and poor facilities. 

Point noted. 

Want to preserve a local centre of excellence for 
Welsh language within this rural setting. 

Point noted. 

According to point 8.2, the Council is of the view 
that the majority of pupils will transfer to the 
new area school, whilst accepting that it may 
lose some pupils from Ysgol Pentrecelyn due to 
proposed category of the new school. Is the 
Council prepared to lose these children and keep 
them from their nearest local school?  

Such a situation would lead to the break-up of 
communities, with children who live in a rural 
area like this, where dwellings are scattered, 
attending different schools to their nearest 
neighbours, who will as a result become 
estranged from one another. In rural areas such 
as this the school is the hub of the area, forming 
part of the children’s sense of belonging. Sending 
them to school in town will oust them from the 
square mile of their childhood, which is 
extremely sad.  

We would hope that pupils would attend the 
new area school, as a Category 2 school Welsh 
medium offer is similar to a Category 1 school. 

The final decision regarding choice will be made 
by parents.    

Maintaining a rural community school is 
paramount to me 

The new area school will mean parents will still 
have a choice between a school in the 
community and a larger town school. It is about 
a balanced sustainable approach. 

Community & Welsh Language Impact Assessment: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

Page 174



64 
 

The Impact Assessment says that opening more 
Category 2 schools will provide opportunities for 
more children to get a bilingual education. This is 
true only if raising schools from Category 3 to 
Category 2 is the intention. The proposed change 
will have a negative effect on the ethos and use 
of the Welsh language outside of the school. 
What should happen is that Ysgol Llanfair DC is 
raised to the level of a Category 1 school (as 
happened with Ysgol Henllan) rather than Welsh 
education of Ysgol Pentrecelyn is ‘revisionism’.  

Based on current provision the Authority 
believes that a Category 2 school meets the 
needs of the communities in Llanfair and 
Pentrecelyn. 

Category 2 schools can deliver the same 
outcomes as Category 1, therefore the phrase 
‘raising the level’ is perhaps inappropriate. 

The county’s proposal would be neutral, 
according to the Impact Assessment. Being in a 
dual-stream school weakens the Welsh 
atmosphere that the Welsh school pupils have at 
present. The impact would be negative. 

We acknowledge that the use of Welsh 
language outside may reduce.  

It will be important for the new school to 
ensure the Welsh ethos is retained. 

It concluded that the impact is “neutral” as the 
area school will be on the 2 current sites.  
According to the Council’s proposal, this situation 
would continue for only a year, and the Council 
hasn’t tried to analyse the impact on the 
community of moving the 2 site school to a one 
site school within a year.  The Council therefore 
has failed in its duty to produce an Assessment of 
the Impact on the Community. 

The consultation document is regarding the 
school organisational proposal to establish an 
Area school on 2 sites, therefore the impact 
assessment was focused on this proposal only. 

The Positive / Neutral / Negative table doesn’t 
reflect the reality of the situation, but rather a 
personal view that we think is wrong. 

The drafting of a document of this nature is 
always subjective. In writing the document we 
sought to maintain a balance in terms of the 
impact of this proposal.  

 

Other Options: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

Option for Ysgol Pentrecelyn to remain and be a 
'satellite' of Ysgol Pan Barras and share a head 
teacher? 

This would not address issues such as surplus 
places and condition of the school. 

The use of the present sites as separate infants 
and primary sites ( as with Clocaenog/ Cyffylliog) 

When the school is on the 2 existing sites it will 
be up to the Temporary Governing Body as to 
how the sites are configured. We have 
suggested that the sites should remain as they 
are with the pupils coming together once the 
new build is ready. 

Category - why either Category 1 or Category 2? 
Should the County be looking at creating a model 
that is so progressive that it doesn't actually exist 
at present? Let's be the "first" to create a model 
that truly reflects the uniqueness and diversity of 
the Pentrecelyn/Llanfair/Pwllglas community and 
secures fully, for generations to come, the status 
of the Welsh language and the natural 

The Council has to define the language category 
of a school in accordance with Welsh 
Government guidance. 

Page 175



65 
 

Welshness of the area. 

Wouldn’t it be an option to keep it as it is, as a 
Category 1 Welsh Medium primary school, and 
appoint a permanent joint head with another 
school, as is currently happening at Ysgol Bro 
Elwern and Ysgol Betws Gwerfil Goch (with less 
children attending those schools!).  Aren’t there 
48 children at Pentrecelyn now, which means 
that there are only 8 spaces left? (56 at full 
capacity) 

Proposals are not solely focused on numbers 
but the right offer in the right location. 

As of September 2014 Ysgol Pentrecelyn had 35 
full time pupils, therefore 21 surplus places.  

What about the possibility of creating a Category 
1, Welsh Medium primary school in the Pwllglas 
area, which would cover children from the rural 
areas of Bro Elwern, Carreg Emlyn, Llanfair DC 
and Pentrecelyn. A Welsh medium school that 
would be the heart of the rural community, 
without anyone having to travel much more than 
4 miles to school. Close 4 schools and create one 
central school - isn’t this the way forward, which 
would also protect the Welsh language, (a very 
favourable financial option I would expect!) 

Proposals are not solely focused on numbers, 
but on the right offer in the right location. We 
believe that the proposal offers a sustainable 
provision for the area.  

 

What about the possibility of Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
and Ysgol Pen Barras sharing a head teacher? 
Two Category 1 Welsh medium schools 
federating with one permanent head, until the 
new Welsh medium school in Ruthin is ready. I 
think then that both schools would need to be 
closed, before the formation a brand new 
educational establishment – a Category 1 Welsh 
Medium primary school. 

Point noted. 

Is there really a need for 3 Church in Wales 
schools within 3 miles (or less) of each other in 
the Ruthin area? Wouldn’t it be a less favourable 
option to merge Ysgol Llanfair D.C. with Ysgol 
Llanbedr area schools, under the ecclesiastical 
institution in Wales? 

Currently discussions are ongoing in regards to 
Ysgol Llanbedr’s future. 

What about Ysgol Dyffryn Iâl - less than 50 
children (similar to Ysgol Pentrecelyn in pupil 
numbers) 

Ysgol Borthyn? 

They could federate as they are all Church in 
Wales Schools. 

Proposals are made not solely focused on 
numbers, but on the right offer in the right 
location. 

 

Why should the only way of improving/ 
modernising Llanfair to join with another school 
that are not currently interested to join anyway? 
Why not build on the positive situation we have 
instead of stopping it and starting again. What’s 
the proof this will work? 

Provision as it is is not sustainable, we need to 
reduce surplus places and the number of 
schools that we have. Other mergers that the 
Local Authority has undertaken in the area have 
been successful.  

When it became clear that the federation 
between the two schools in question was not 

A number of options have been looked at with 
both sets of governors involved in these 

Page 176



66 
 

possible, they immediately moved on to a model 
of one area school. The failure of the Council to 
consider alternative models is a fundamental 
weakness in this process in my opinion. 

discussions.  

Federating with the other rural Category 1 
schools – Carreg Emlyn and Gwyddelwern with 1 
managing head. 

 

A federation involving 4 schools over a wide 
geographical area could place pressure on the 
leadership of the school. This would also not 
address issues regarding surplus places. 

The new area school being a Category 1 
community or voluntary controlled school and 
pupils seeking English medium (and faith based) 
education transferring to Ysgol Borthyn or Ysgol 
Llanbedr or Ysgol Stryd Y Rhos 

We believe that the proposal of a category 2 
school meets the needs of the area that the 
school will serve.  

One school, 2 defined and separate streams, 
English and Welsh, therefore a clear choice form 
the start for parents, the immersion would still 
be there for those pupils from non-Welsh 
speaking families in the Welsh stream. 

We believe that the way Ysgol Llanfair currently 
delivers Category 2 delivers the best outcomes 
for Welsh and non-Welsh speakers.  

In section 6.4, of this document it states that DCC 
does not use catchment areas when determining 
school admissions, should this be reconsidered 
as it would greatly reduce transport cost and 
remove the cyclical movement of pupils from 
school to school depending on popularity? 

The current arrangements allow for diversity of 
choice regarding faith, language and location 
which are often difficult to determine with 
strictly defined catchment areas.  

 

Other Issues: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

Should the parents of Pentrecelyn pupils not 
wish for their children to attend a Category 2 
school, Denbighshire should provide transport, 
free of charge, for the pupils, so that they can 
attend Ysgol Penbarras, in Ruthin.   

 

Transport will be provided in accordance with 
Denbighshire County Council’s School Transport 
policy September 2014 states that, 

“The Authority will provide discretionary 
transport to the nearest school providing 
Welsh medium education even if it is not 
their nearest qualifying school. For this 
purpose, it would be a school which is 
categorised as 1 or 2 within the Welsh 
Government guidelines on Welsh Medium 
Provision.” 

It is difficult to accurately compare the 2 Estyn 
reports as they were completed 4 years apart 
and the bar has been significantly raised. 

We have to comply with the Welsh 
Government’s School Organisation Code, which 
states that reference must be made to the 
latest Estyn reports of any schools being 
discussed. 

The percentage of Welsh speakers in the area 
compares very favourably with the rest of Wales.  
The percentage of Welsh speakers in the area is 
close to the highest in Wales. Of the 887 wards in 
Wales, some 150 wards have a higher 

The overall percentage able to speak Welsh in 
the Llanfair/ Gwyddelwern ward is 48.3%. This 
is broken down: 

Community % 

Page 177



67 
 

percentage, but the percentage of Welsh 
speakers in the wards in this area is more than 
double the average for Wales and belong to the 
upper quartile of Welsh wards. 

 

 

Gwyddelwern 62.06% 

Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd 49.71% 

Llanelidan 45.89% 

Bryneglwys 39.89% 
 

With Pentrecelyn the third most Welsh area in 
Denbighshire, I feel it is the duty of DCC to 
provide Welsh medium education in a Category 1 
local school just as pupils of the area are 
receiving at present. 

Within the Llanfair/ Gwyddelwern ward there 
are currently 3 primary schools: 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn- Category 1 

Ysgol Bro Elwern- Category 1 

Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd- Category 2 

Originally it was requested that both schools 
federalise  (i.e. one federal governing board for 
both schools), but the Council states that the 
new government regulations make this 
impossible as it prohibits a federation between a 
community school and a voluntary ‘church’ 
school.  However, guideline 8.13-8.15 explains 
the process of co-operation which is more or less 
equal to a federation which is ‘co-labour’ with a 
joint governors committee rather than one 
federal governing board.  Practically, this is 
synonymous to creating a federation.  It’s 
obvious that Denbighshire County Council 
officers have misunderstood and, as a result, 
they haven’t given due consideration to this 
model as they should in accordance with the 
requirement to consider every alternative.  

Co-operation was discussed with both sets of 
governors after it was no longer possible to 
federate. This was not seen as a suitable option.  

I am not confident that the members of 
Denbighshire County Council’s Education 
Modernisation Programme will change their 
minds when discussing the plan to set up a 
Category 2 area school in Llanfair Dyffryn 
Clwyd/Pentrecelyn.  Presuming that this will be 
the final decision following the current 
'consultation’, I believe that a deserving 
provision should be made for pupils who will 
wish to continue to receive Welsh-medium 
education in a Category 1 school. 

The decision will be made by Denbighshire 
County Council’s Cabinet. If the decision is to 
proceed with the proposal as it stands a 
Statutory notice will be issued and an objection 
period of 28 days from the date of publication 
will begin. ( This is detailed in Section 22 of the 
proposal)   

The consultation process, run by the Council so 
far has been amateurish, and in my opinion, 
extremely insensitive. There is no excuse for 
failing to provide a process by which residents 
can contribute just as easily in both Welsh and 
English.  

Residents were able to respond in English or 
Welsh in a number of ways. The formal 
consultation document was available in both 
languages and the online survey was set up in 
English or Welsh.  

 

We were disappointed that we did not have the 
opportunity to put our views at the meeting in 
Welsh. Having a translator is not equal to being 
able to express directly in our chosen language. 

At both parents’ meetings a Welsh speaking 
officer was available if required. Due to the 
tight timescales the follow up meeting details 
was passed onto the school and the school 

Page 178



68 
 

We were not able to attend the hastily convened 
follow up meeting that was not advertised. 

were asked to inform all parents of this.   

English reply to ensure all personnel concerned 
understand my response. 

Responses were invited in either Welsh or 
English. Any Welsh responses have been 
translated into English and attached to the 
original.  

Are the responses to an informal consultation 
reliable and inclusive of the views of all 
stakeholders? 

The informal consultation was open to all 
members of the public.  

Unsure whether uniform will change in 
September 2016? 

This will be a decision for the Temporary 
Governing Body. 

 

The alternative school options being offered to 
Welsh language parents are in a worse state than 
Pentrecelyn. 

Ysgol Pen Barras will be moving into a new build 
at the Glasdir development, this is due to be 
ready by September 2017. 

My son did not have the opportunity to ask 
questions about the merger. He does not know if 
the school council had that opportunity. He was 
not properly consulted. 

Both school councils at Ysgol Llanfair DC and 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn were consulted (See 
Appendix C) A children’s version of the 
consultation document was available online and 
Ysgol Pentrecelyn requested a copy of the 
childrens version for each pupil, which were 
sent to the school.  

The Llanelidan Community Council did not 
receive the consultation documents from the 
council. This is another example of the Council 
officers failure to consult properly. 

In total 4 community/ town councils were 
emailed the formal consultation document 
including the Llanelidan Community Council.  

Why close 2 schools who provide a different 
education and who work effectively in this rural 
area. 

Keeping the status quo is not an option, as this 
is no longer sustainable.  

Why does Denbighshire County Council wish to 
locate two schools in one building whilst 
planning to move Ysgol Pen Barras and Rhos 
Street School in Ruthin to two new schools apart 
on the Glasdir site. 

Ysgol Pen Barras is a Category 1 school and 
Rhos Street is a Category 5 school, both are in 
need of new buildings and are big enough 
schools to remain as 2 separate schools. 

The proposal is set out biased to the model of 
one of the 2 schools which will be closing. It does 
not set out any forward thinking "out of the box" 
ideas. The new school will not be a reproduction 
of the present model due to increased pupils 
numbers. How does the school in Llanfair 
manage to have so many teachers when the 
county is under such financial pressure? 

The budget for each school in Denbighshire is 
defined by a standard methodology. It is then 
the responsibility of the governing body to 
manage this accordingly. 

The reality is that Llanfair has had optimal 
circumstances for success with favourable 
demographics and the stability a long term full 
time head teacher brings. Pentrecelyn has had 
unfavourable demographics in its area and only 
temporary head teachers for ten years.  

The demographics of the Pentrecelyn area are 

We understand that rural schools face 
uncertainty in regards to pupil numbers. This is 
where an area school can help education being 
retained in rural locations, as it is better 
prepared to respond to fluctuations in pupil 
numbers.    

Page 179



69 
 

now much improved and going to get better, a 
merger now allows for long term sustainability of 
a Category 1 school. 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn full-time pupil numbers (on 
figures collected locally rather than PLASC and 
council forecast) are set to rise to 44 next year, 
45 in 2016/17 and 52 in 2017/18, would this 
make the new school oversubscribed?  

And have a subsequent influence on the pupil: 
teacher ratio. How does Denbighshire County 
council propose to safeguard the Welsh language 
provision in cases of oversubscription, would 
there be preference to those selecting the Welsh 
stream (point 3 in section 1.9 of Denbighshire 
Schools Admissions Policy)? 

We have to use the figures that are based on 
the PLASC and our projections. The size of the 
new school is not set in stone but we have to be 
mindful that we do not build the school too big, 
as this may have a negative effect on 
neighbouring schools.  

This proposal was decided upon without 
consultation with stakeholders and people 
experienced in Welsh medium education. 

The proposal was developed with a range of 
organisations including the Governing Bodies of 
both schools, prior to public consultation. 

In 2012 RhAG published “The Growth of Welsh 
Medium Education (2002-2012)”, in reference to 
DCC they state that “There is now a stronger 
leadership in education generally, including 
Welsh medium education and this is bearing 
fruit. There are some notable 
milestones…creating a Strategic Group for Welsh 
Education…..taking advantage of the School 
Modernisation agenda to change the medium of 
some schools in the south of the county, creating 
two designated Welsh medium schools and 
making some English medium schools 
bilingual….”, has this been achieved? 

In terms of Welsh medium education in 
Denbighshire over the last 5 years, we have: 

o Extension works to increase capacity at 
Welsh medium school Ysgol Gymraeg y 
Gwernant, Llangollen. 

o Establishing a Welsh medium school 
Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy, Cynwyd. 

o Establishing a Welsh medium school 
Ysgol Carreg Emlyn, Clocaenog and 
Cyffylliog. 

o Capital investments in Welsh medium 
schools; Ysgol y Llys, Prestatyn, Ysgol 
Twm o’r Nant, Denbigh and future 
extension works at Ysgol Glan Clwyd, 
St.Asaph.  

o Establishment of Welsh in Education 
Strategic Group. 

According to the table under point 8.2., there 
aren’t enough surplus places available in Ysgol 
Gwyddelwern and Ysgol Penbarras, the nearest 
Category 1 schools, of all Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
pupils, should 100% of the parents decide not to 
send their children to a Category 2 school. 

Figures from September 2014 show that there 
are 29 surplus places in Ygsol Pen Barras and 13 
in Ysgol Bro Elwern, therefore a total of 42 
places.  The new development in Glasdir will 
also increase the capacity at Ysgol Pen Barras. 

We would hope that some Pentrecelyn parents 
would send their child to the new area school, 
Of the 30 parents who responded- 4 said they 
would go to the area school, 4- were unsure/ 
skipped question, 9 said to another Category 1 
school, 12 to Ysgol Pen Barras, 1 to Ysgol Bryn 
Tabor, 1 to Ysgol Carreg Emlyn ( 1 parent 
responded twice)  

 

Page 180



70 
 

Site: 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

Has the site at Ysgol Pentrecelyn been seriously 
considered? It is in an ideal non-hazardous site/ 
position. 

Feasibility work on a possible site for the new 
school has started. Part of this work will be to 
look at both school sites.  

Why would the site be in Llanfair? Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn serves a large area from Llandegla- 
Graigfechan- Llanelidan. 

 

The majority of pupils attending the school 
would live in the Llanfair, Pwllglas area. 

We welcome a new local location away from the 
very hazardous and busy main Wrexham road, 
which currently has no traffic calming / speed 
reduction facility. 

Point noted. 

It is pleasing that the interim period (on two 
sites) is only anticipated for 1 year, and I would 
urge anyone involved in the process to do their 
utmost to ensure this time period does not drag; 
a longer transitional period on 2 sites would no 
doubt have an impact on the management of 
and teaching in the 2 sites, which could sadly be 
detrimental to the education of the children. 

At the moment, we are hoping that the new 
school build will be open for September 2017, 
therefore ensuring that the split site will remain 
for 1 academic year only.  

This proposal does not seem joined up with the 
desire to build new schools in Ruthin. As the 
majority of these pupils are provided with 
transport to school, surely the location of the 
school for these pupils should be considered and 
discussed alongside the proposals for the town 
schools. 

The parents of all pupils at the school need to be 
asked which language they want the education 
for their children. 

All 3 of the Ruthin new build projects are 
moving forward together; new build for Ysgol 
Carreg Emlyn, the development at Glasdir in 
town and the area school for Llanfair/ 
Pentrecelyn.  

 

Parents choose a school for many reasons, not 
just language. 

I am in favour of the proposal for the main 
reason that it seems that to continue as we have 
done or to improve and upgrade the facilities at 
Ysgol Llanfair does not seem to be seen to be a 
viable option. My preferred option would be to 
channel resources and skill into achieving an 
updated and improved, viably functioning Area 
School on the Ysgol Llanfair site. 

 

Both current school sites will be looked at 
during the feasibility study. 

I would also like to know why schools have to be 
brand new to provide a better education for 
pupils. Pentrecelyn has plenty of room, a big hall 
and dining area, computer points and all the 
latest Ipads etc. and access to the internet with 
super-fast fibre optic broadband and a lovely 
playing field and garden. It has no portacabins 
and is not overcrowded but is not in declining in 
numbers either. Its main building and house are 

We believe that new school build allow for 
future-proofing the space provided to ensure 
that the ever-changing curriculum can be 
delivered to a high standard.  

Page 181



71 
 

in good condition. I can only see that better 
education comes from better teaching and 
leadership, something you as the council have 
knowingly denied Pentrecelyn for years. 

 

New Build 

Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

What will happen if funding is not available for 
the new build? 

Funding for the area school has now been 
secured and agreed at Full Council in February 
2015. The new school build will be funded 100% 
by Denbighshire County Council.  This will be 
made up of a mixture between prudential 
borrowing, cash reserves and capital receipts. 
The progression of the project is not dependent 
upon external funding. 

 

Could the funding be rescinded if for example 
there is a change of government?  

No, funding for the new school is now 
committed through Denbighshire’s own 
finances and is not coming from the 
government.  

Another consideration is the possible disruption 
while the two schools are amalgamated and the 
new school is built.  Of all the proposals, we think 
this clearly has the most benefits for the children 
and the community. 

The Temporary Governing Body would ensure 
that any disruption would be kept to a 
minimum and the delivery of education to all 
pupils at the school on both sites will continue 
to be delivered to its current standard.  

It is hugely important if the proposal goes ahead 
that pupils stay where they are (and siblings 
aren't split up) until the new build is ready. 

Whilst the school remains on 2 separate sites it 
will be the Temporary Governing Body who will 
decide how each site will be configured. One 
option would be to keep things as they are until 
the new building is ready, with activities to 
bring all the pupils together.  

  

Page 182



72 
 

Appendix H 
 

Estyn Response 
 

Estyn’s response to the proposal to create a new area school to serve both Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd 
and Pentrecelyn Communities.  
 
Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and Training in Wales have prepared this report.  
Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its associated Code, 
proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn. However Estyn is not a body which 
is required to act in accordance with the Code and the Act places no statutory requirements on 
Estyn in respect of school organisation matters. Therefore as a body being consulted, Estyn will 
provide their opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals.  
 
Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the following 
response to the information provided by the proposer. 
 
Introduction  
This consultation proposal is from Denbighshire County Council. The proposal is to close Ysgol 
Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol Pantycelyn on the 31st August 2016. The Church in Wales will 
establish a new area school on the existing sites from the 1st September 2016. It is anticipated that 
this split site provision will be for one academic year only. The split site provision will be replaced by 
a new build in the Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd / Pentrecelyn area, subject to land availability and 
suitability. 
 
Summary/ Conclusion  
It is Estyn’s opinion that the proposal is likely to at least maintain the current standards of provision 
in the area.  
 
Description and benefits  
The proposal contains an appropriate rationale and clearly defines the expected benefits.  
 
Whilst the existing facilities at both schools allow for the delivery of the basic curriculum 
entitlement, the proposal suggests that the current environment restricts the potential to deliver the 
innovative curriculum required for 21st Century learning. In terms of the 21st Century Schools 
Survey Condition Category, the condition of both schools is listed as ‘B’, satisfactory (minor 
deterioration). The proposal identifies relevant concerns regarding the learning environment, such 
as a narrow staircase access to Year 4 provision at Ysgol Dyffryn Clwyd. Based on current provision, 
the proposal reasonably claims that maintaining the status quo could provide greater risks than any 
proposals for change. 
 
For the long term, the authority asserts appropriately that partnership working between both 
schools would provide greater stability. It claims that this proposal would formalise the joint working 
between the schools and provide the foundation for moving towards one school on a modern, 
purpose built accommodation. 
 
The proposal acknowledges appropriately the possible perception that the Welsh language and 
ethos would be affected negatively. It emphasises the essential role of the new Governing Body and 
Denbighshire Council in ensuring that the current strong Welsh ethos is retained. However, the 
proposal does not identify possible concerns about the re-designation of Ysgol Pentrecelyn as a faith 
school. Additional information supplied to accompany the initial proposal document clarifies that 
any future change to the language category would be subject to formal consultation and statutory 
notices. 

Page 183



73 
 

 
The proposal appropriately claims that the area school would need a new staffing structure, taking 
into account a number of factors including operating initially on two sites, delivering the curriculum, 
class sizes and budget considerations. There would be implications for staff at the current Ysgol 
Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. The proposal states that the council would work 
initially with the temporary governing body, and then with the established governing body of the 
area school to support employment issues should the need arise. This seems appropriate. 
 
The local authority has considered suitable alternatives. These have been considered with reference 
to the council’s 21st Century Schools Programme objectives concerning appropriate learning 
environments to enable school improvement and better educational outcomes, greater economy 
through better use of resources and a sustainable education system. Each of these options have 
been analysed against appropriate investment objectives and critical success factors. As a result of 
this analysis, closing both schools and establishing a dual site area school is considered to be the 
preferred option. 
 
The authority has appropriately considered the impact of the proposal on the quality of the 
outcomes and provision as well as leadership and management. The proposal is considered to have 
distinct advantages. The proposal predicts greater opportunities for the two schools to work 
together to improve staff expertise that would lead to raising standards. Additional teaching capacity 
for smaller groups of pupils, including more able and talented pupils is expected as well as stability in 
terms of resource management, improved partnership working and strengthened leadership.  
 
The authority appears to have appropriately considered the impact of the changes on learner travel 
arrangements for the first stage of the proposal. Pupils will continue to be transported to their 
designated site in accordance with the current Home to School Transport Policy. 
 
Pupils with additional learning needs who currently attend the schools would continue to receive the 
same education and support, but the environment may change. The proposal states that the council 
would take all practicable steps to minimise disruption and assist pupils with any transfer.  
 
The second phase of the proposal to eventually move to a new area school is likely to prove more of 
a challenge to pupils with additional learning needs. The proposal lists appropriate procedures to 
provide help and support for pupils and their parents during this process. 

 

Date: 12 March 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 184



74 
 

Appendix I 

UCAC Response 

☻Formal Consultation on the proposal to establish a New Area School to 
replace Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

 
1. The National Union of Teachers Cymru (UCAC) is pleased to have the opportunity to 

respond to the formal consultation on the proposal to establish a New Area School to 
replace Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. We would be more than 
willing to elaborate on these comments and discuss them at any time.  
 

2. In drawing up this response, UCAC has consulted with its members locally and has drawn 
on the experiences of members who have been through a similar reorganization or who 
are working in quite similar situations in other counties.  
 

3. UCAC appreciates Denbighshire County Council’s desire to protect education in the rural 
areas and ensuring that it is responds appropriately to local demand for Welsh medium 
education. We recognize that this proposal, were it to be implemented fully and timely, 
would realize these ambitions.  
 

4. The data presented confirms unequivocally that there needs to be a bigger school in the 
Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd area, and quickly. Practical requirements, therefore, has led to the 
creation of a proposed two-stage plan with the intention of implementing the First Step 
– which is to establish an Area School on two sites in September 2016 – this is only a 
part-time solution to the crisis.  
 

5. However, UCAC has some concerns about the lack of assertiveness in the Consultation 
Document in terms of the lack of full commitment from the Council to realize the 
Second Stage if the Plan is approved. We also have concerns about the possible 
implications on employment throughout the process.  

 
Throughout the document, there are clauses that raise 'doubts' that the plan will be fully 
realized:  
 
... on the whole supported the proposal .. (Par 2.3) 
 
... dependent on availability and suitability of land .. (Par. 2..5)  

... anticipated that the pupils .. (Par 12.12) 

... site .. that will manifest itself from the Second Stage .. (Par 18.1)  

... may be within reach .. (Par 18.3)  

... any negotiations that might be needed .. (Par. 18.4)  

… councillors considering approving capital funding (Par 19.1) 

 

Page 185



75 
 

6. UCAC strongly believes that a site should be secured for the new school immediately. 
Without this assurance, there is a real danger that parents will choose to send their 
children to other schools if only to avoid a situation where the youngest children of the 
family are in a different location for the older children. Any Statutory Notice, therefore, 
should fully elaborate on the two stages.  

 

 
7. UCAC believes that capital funding should be secured before proceeding to issue any 

Notice. It is noted in the document that the ‘councillors will consider approving capital 
funding.’   

8 UCAC believes is should be ensured that staff and pupils have an input into the planning 
of the new school. The experience of many authorities is that a new school attracts 
pupils; it is important therefore that the new school will be big enough from the start 
and that the plans allow for it to be extended easily if the need arises.  

9. Assuming that the Plan will proceed, the Union has a real concern that it will be late in 
the day when the Temporary Governing Body will be established. This has been the 
experience unfortunately in other places. This means that the Body cannot make critical 
staffing decisions in good time. Therefore it must be ensured that a tight deadline to 
appoint a Body and to make decisions is included in any Notice.  

10. UCAC is firmly of the view that jobs should be protected by limiting them to staff within 
the two existing schools. Temporary staffing needs also need to be considered in the 
First Stage, in parallel with the needs for more permanent needs in the Second Stage by 
ensuring that every member of staff are certain of the nature of their agreement from 
the outset. The Union expects to be part of any discussions on the appointment process 
and any relocation requirements that may result from this reorganization.  

 
Conclusion  
UCAC recognizes that the Proposal to establish a New Area School is an option to face the 
challenges that rural schools face today.  
If the Council decides to introduce a Statutory Notice on the basis of the Formal Consultation, 

we emphasize that it needs to have considered the concerns raised in the response to protect 

the staff’s interests and protect the education of pupils locally. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 186



76 
 

Appendix J 

Ysgol Llanfair DC Governors Full Response 

The Governing Body of Ysgol Llanfair DC is in agreement with the proposal that the new area school 
should be a bilingual (Welsh language category 2) Church school. 

 

In recent weeks much emphasis has been placed on the language category alone in press and public 
discussion. However, the Governing Body believes that it is essential to consider factors such as 
educational outcomes, linguistic performance and social cohesion, together, rather than separately. 
Parental choice is also an important consideration and we understand there is a strong majority 
preference amongst parents in the area for a community based bilingual school. 
 
We are fully aware of the arguments advanced that changing the categorisation of the proposed 
area school to a Welsh medium school is the only means of protecting the Welsh language. We do 
not share this view and contend that the available evidence does not support this.  
 
The Governing Body and the community in Llanfair and Pwllglas are fully committed to protecting 
and promoting the Welsh language and believe that the most effective means of doing so is by 
maximising the number of children who are fluent in Welsh by the end of KS2. This is what Ysgol 
Llanfair has successfully achieved over many years. 
 
As well as achieving high standard of bilingualism (Estyn 2010) the school also achieves high 
standards in Welsh 1st Language. Welsh Government data shows that for the past three years (2012 
to 2014 inclusive), the school's performance in Welsh 1st Language at Level 4 has been consistently 
in the highest 25% or the highest 50% of schools in Wales with a similar free school meals 
percentage to Ysgol Llanfair. During that period the proportion of pupils achieving the expected 
Level 4 or above at the end of KS2 ranged from 90.9% to 100%. Over the same period the school's 
high benchmarking position was almost identical for English. 
 
The evidence of standards therefore demonstrates that a bilingual model can, in some cases, such as 
Ysgol Llanfair, be even more successful in promoting high standards of 1st language Welsh than a 
Welsh medium school. All available evidence also demonstrates that a designation as a Welsh 
language category 1 school also does not in itself guarantee high standards in other subjects, good 
leadership, effective governance or higher numbers of bilingual children at the end of KS2.  
 
Ysgol Llanfair also has a long history of supporting and promoting the Welsh language; this is not a 
recent development as some have suggested. The school has always played a prominent role in 
Welsh cultural activities such as Urdd Eisteddfodau as well as participating in a wide range of 
musical, social and community events through the Welsh language. But the school has also been 
mindful of the fact that this area is bilingual and so we have always aimed to achieve high standards 
of education in both languages whilst maintaining a strong Welsh ethos within the school. 
 
The governors at Llanfair are aware of the anxieties raised by those who believe that a bilingual 
school provides no certainty for the future of the Welsh language within such a designation. It has 
been claimed that a change in membership of the Governing Body could also be to the detriment of 
Welsh medium education. We believe that such an argument is not based on any sound evidence.  
 
At Ysgol Llanfair, successive governing bodies, with linguistically mixed composition, have 
consistently supported the language category of the school and its strong Welsh ethos. This has also 
been reflected in staff recruitment. It is our understanding that, should further safeguards in this 
respect be required, this can be provided through an Instrument of Government for the new area 
school. We would support such an Instrument being put in place.  

Page 187



77 
 

The Governing Body at Ysgol Llanfair has been approached on several occasions during the last 20 
years by the Local Authority, asking us to consider changing the designation of the school to become 
a Welsh medium school. This was always given lengthy consideration but after examining the 
evidence, including evidence of standards, the requests were declined. The Governing Body was 
always acutely aware that had this change been made, many non-Welsh speaking families within the 
community would not have chosen to send their children to our school. We have no doubt that this 
would also be the case now if the school became the preserve of only a part of our community. 
 
Many local families who are no less Welsh than those of us, who are already bilingual, make a 
positive choice of Ysgol Llanfair because it is bilingual with a strong Welsh ethos. 
 
The very positive experience of the Welsh language that they encounter in the school has also 
encouraged a number of parents to change from English to Welsh medium preference as their 
children progress through the school. However, we believe that such parents would not initially 
make a choice for a Welsh-medium school, and as a result such pupils would be potentially 'lost' 
from bilingual or Welsh-medium education in the longer term. We are aware that in other areas of 
the local authority, designation of schools as either Welsh or English medium has led to some 
division of communities along linguistic lines.  
 
To date, our community has successfully managed to avoid this by providing a positive bilingual 
alternative which is fully inclusive of all families. 

 
Geraint Lewis Jones 
Cadeirydd/Chair 
Corff Llywodraethol/Governing Body 
Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 188



78 
 

Appendix K 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn Governors Full Response 

 

Dear Modernising Education Programme Team and Cabinet members, 
 
Response to the Proposed New Area School for Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 
INTRODUCTION 
This document constitutes the response to the proposal for a new area school to replace Ysgol 
Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. It represents the views of the governors, staff and parents at the 
school. 
 
It has been the position of the Governing Body from the very outset to work in partnership with the 
Council as part of the Modernising Education Programme. The Governing Body recognises the 
financial challenges facing the Council and indeed the whole of the public sector and, as such, has 
been open to considering any options for education provision in the area. 
 
The options offered by council officials have been limited; in fact they were exclusively focussed 
around federating with Ysgol Llanfair and/or merging with Ysgol Llanfair on a new site. In May 2014 
any options of a federation or merger were removed at short notice by council officials due to the 
introduction of the School Organisation Code (2013) which came into Force on the 1st October 2013 
and which imposes requirements and provides guidelines in respect of school organisation 
proposals.  
 
Notwithstanding this last minute change the Governing Body were still keen to cooperate with the 
Council, and during discussions the Governing Body has been consistent in expressing its concerns 
that any new school would need to guarantee the provision of Welsh language schooling in the area 
in the future. Despite the obvious high standards currently set at Ysgol Llanfair it has become clear 
during discussions that the only way of guaranteeing Welsh language schooling of the highest 
integrity for the future would be through the provision of a category 1 Welsh language school. 
We object to Denbighshire County Councils proposal for a Category 2 Church in Wales school on 2 
counts, namely language category and faith provision. In our opinion a Category 2 school does not 
provide a cast iron guarantee that Welsh Medium Education will be present for future generations 
and add to that the fact that the Governing body of a Voluntary Controlled School can propose to 
change a language category of a school rather than the Local Authority then this adds to the 
weakening of this guarantee. 
 
We are not against the formation of a new school as it will no doubt improve the educational 
provision for all children within the area.  We do question why the proposed model was set out as 
per the current model in Ysgol Llanfair? If this is the case and the argument was based on a majority 
then why wasn’t the number of pupils learning through the medium of Welsh (70% in Ysgol Llanfair 
and 100% in Ysgol Pentrecelyn) taken as the majority. The current model in Ysgol Llanfair basically 
operates as a Category 1 school in all but name.  
 
We feel we are having to form this response from a disadvantaged position as the Proposal is a 
reproduction of the current model in Llanfair, we are having to prove our model, a Category 1 school 
in Wales, rather than both sides debate over a new and exciting educational prospect that promotes 
progression in educational provision for all children in the area.  
 
 
Denbighshire County Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan states that it is fully committed to 
the Welsh Governments aspiration of delivering 

Page 189



79 
 

 “a sustained increase in both the number and percentage of people able to speak Welsh”, 
yet in this case it is proposing to close a category 1 school.  Surely the risk factors of closing a 
category 1 school outweigh the risk factors of closing a category 2 school.  
 
POINTS ARISING FROM THE CONSULTATION DOCUMENT 
 
In a category 2 school Welsh Medium education is dependant on a large number of variables with a 
category 2 school – Head Teacher, Governing Body, Staff, Pupil: teacher ratio and parent preference.  
 
Point 2.3 – Summary of proposal. The document states parents can opt for a Welsh Medium or 
English Medium Education and the school by definition can give a high priority to creating a Welsh 
ethos, therefore by definition the model is prone to variance.  The consultation document states 
“the competency and confidence of pupils in both English and Welsh will be depending on the ethos 
and policies of the school and the governing body” both of which are constantly evolving in a 
direction dictated by parent pressure.  Whilst the model in Ysgol Llanfair works well there are other 
examples within the county where it has not worked so well; in Ysgol Rhewl no children been 
assessed through the Medium of Welsh first language for the last 4 years and it is under threat of 
closure, Ysgol Dyffryn Iâl has been moved from a category 2 to a category 4, Ysgol Cyffylliog has been 
closed.  In fact Ysgol Llanfair could be the only category 2 school left in Denbighshire County Council 
in the very near future. 
 
In a category 1 school all pupils leave fluent in Welsh and English, personnel can change, parents can 
change but the language provision is not subject to these variables. 
 
Point 3 - The consultation process. The Governing Body has already stated its disappointment that 
there were no Welsh speakers at the meeting with staff, governors and parents. The meeting with 
the school council also had to be arranged to provide Welsh speakers. We were also disappointed to 
see information on the Denbighshire County Council website stating “we have now completed 
consultation meetings with staff, governors and parents from both schools” when in actual fact 
some parent meetings had been re-arranged.  We also have concerns over the dissemination of 
information as some community council members (Llanelidan) had not seen the document.  We 
would question how you propose to analyse your data and evidence as the document is clearly 
weighted towards the school and community with a larger population.  
 
Point 6 – Current Provision. To the reader this can be misleading.  The document states that Ysgol 
Llanfair has 19% surplus places; this is due to inclusion of the temporary classrooms and does not 
make it clear that the school is oversubscribed and not fit for purpose.  The current Denbighshire 
County Council policy of not using catchment areas when determining school admissions means that 
schools go in cycles of popularity, Llanfair is a popular school at the moment drawing on a wide 
geographical area.    
 
Our full-time pupil numbers (on figures collected locally rather than PLASC and council forecast) are 
set to rise to 44 next year, 45 in 2016/17 and 52 in 2017/18, would this make the new school 
oversubscribed? And have a subsequent influence on the pupil: teacher ratio. How does 
Denbighshire County council propose to safeguard the Welsh language provision in cases of 
oversubscription, would there be preference to those selecting the Welsh stream (point 3 in section 
1.9 of Denbighshire Schools Admissions Policy)? 
It is also difficult to accurately compare the 2 Estyn reports as they were completed 4 years apart 
and the bar has been significantly raised. 
 
Point 7 - Educational attainment.  Ysgol Pentrecelyn struggles every year to get meaningful 
information out of the data provided by Foundation Phase and Key stage 2 tests due to low cohort 
numbers, we can quickly fall from the first to the fourth quartile based on one pupil performance 
and we are not obliged to publish our data because cohort numbers are so low.  Therefore to the 
reader it could make our school appear to be under performing. This year we have found the 

Page 190



80 
 

Numeracy and Literacy test figures a much better measure of performance.  Ysgol Llanfair delivers 
good results in these tests in Welsh and English, and in Welsh as a second language at key stage 2. In 
foundation phase only 67% achieve expected level in English and none achieved the higher level, 
therefore is there a level playing field for those pupils choosing the English stream, or does it 
demonstrate that there can never be a true balance between languages in a dual stream model? 
 
Point 8 - Alternative provision.  Despite what we have been told and notwithstanding the fact that 
the current category 2 model provide a Welsh stream, a category 2 school is not an equivalent 
choice for parents seeking Welsh Medium Education. Parents will be forced out of the area to a 
town school, or another village school or even to an oversubscribed school in the next county, 100% 
of our pupils are attending their nearest suitable school, parents chose to send their child to the 
local school to be immersed in Welsh, how do we safeguard this option for the future?  As a local 
authority you will have no Category 1 schools between Ruthin and Llangollen.  Forcing parents to 
send their child to an alternative school also breaks up community links and friendships, but despite 
this parents are prepared to remove their children from the new area school if it is not a category 1, 
see attached petition. 
 
Points 12 and 21 - The proposed option is basically a reproduction of the current model with an 
increased pupil : teacher ratio, therefore it may not work as well. We are concerned that at no point 
whilst engaging with us has there been any serious considerations to any other models. Have the 
following options been seriously considered 

 Federating with the other rural category 1 schools – Carreg Emlyn and Gwyddelwern with 1 
managing head 

 Federating with Ysgol Penbarras although this would not satisfy the County’s concerns over 
the maintenance backlog of our building and would parents naturally gravitate to one of the 
new schools anyway? 

 The new area school being a category 1 community or voluntary controlled school and pupils 
seeking English medium (and faith based) education transferring to Ysgol Borthyn or Ysgol 
Llanbedr or Ysgol Stryd Y Rhos 

 Two schools, one site, an executive head managing the 2 schools,  

 One school, 2 defined and separate streams, English and Welsh, therefore a clear choice 
form the start for parents, the immersion would still be there for those pupils from non-
Welsh speaking families in the Welsh stream.  

Point 13 - Language provision, the document refers to the councils Welsh in Education Strategic Plan  
“Denbighshire County Council is fully committed to the Welsh Government’s aspiration of 
delivering ‘a sustained increase in both the number and percentage of people able to speak 
Welsh. The Council recognises the importance of bilingualism is in 21st Century Wales and 
has adopted a long term aspiration that all children and young people in the County will 
leave full-time education being competent and confident in using both Welsh and English 
languages.” 
 

How does the council propose to monitor and sustain this via a category 2 school, the current model 
delivers this, how will this be safeguarded for the future? Does the council plan to put limits on how 
many parents can choose a particular stream?  Outcome 2 of WESP states “more learners continuing 
to improve their language skills on transfer from primary to secondary school”, currently only 67% of 
learners from Ysgol Llanfair transfer to Welsh stream in Brynhyfryd.   
 
The recruitment policy is cited as one of the safeguarding measures even if the Head is a fluent 
Welsh speaker this does not mitigate against over 50% of parents selecting the English stream thus 
switching the dominant language of teaching to English.  
 

Page 191



81 
 

We also have concerns over the voluntary control aspect of the school, that the governing body 
would not be able to undertake a change of language category without a formal consultation period.  
Point 18 – Site. Has the site at Pentrecelyn been serious considered? We understand in the current 
situation the site is not considered big enough but why not request additional land is gifted from 
college Cambria (Llysfasi Campus) as is the case with the current school field.  The consideration to 
site the school centrally to where the current population of pupils comes from is misleading due to 
the fact a large number currently travel from Ruthin to Llanfair.  The site in Pentrecelyn is off the 
main road and currently the 52 seater bus transporting children from Pwllglas to Llanfair comes 
down to the bus stop at Llysfasi College to turn around. The children in Llanfair could also travel on 
this bus to the new site.  
 
Point 20 - Disadvantages of the proposal. The document states that the governing body should have 
a strong ethos and policies which put language at the heart of the school to mitigate against the 
Welsh language and ethos being diluted.  How can the governing body influence parent choice and 
retain a welsh majority to allow immersion to continue in future years? 
 
Point 23 - Community, Welsh Language Impact Assessment document. We have concerns over how 
the impact can be considered neutral, can anything be neutral? It states that increasing the bilingual 
offer could ensure more pupils are educated in welsh as well as English but in fact a category 1 
school would ensure more pupils were educated in Welsh as well as English.  In reference to the 
document in section 3.6 “DCC recognises how important bilingualism is in 21st century Wales”; does 
bilingualism work better through immersion in a category 1 school or a category 2 school?  Pupils are 
assessed in Welsh first language and Welsh second language in a category 2 school with pupils 
transferring to the bilingual stream in Brynhyfryd but if this ceases to exist then how would these 
pupils studying Welsh as a second language continue their education?  
 
In section 6.4 of this document it states that DCC does not use catchment areas when determining 
school admissions, should this be reconsidered as it would greatly reduce transport cost and remove 
the cyclical movement of pupils from school to school depending on popularity? 
 
Q: WOULD THIS PROPOSAL DEGRADE WELSH IN THIS AREA IN THE LONG TERM? 
A: YES 
 
EDUCATION VIA TRUE IMMERSION 
As stated above our aim is to preserve and guarantee Welsh language provision for the future.  The 
key to this has to be immersion.  It is internationally recognised that immersion education offers the 
best conditions for a child to acquire a second language, and to become fully fluent. This is by far the 
most common practice used in Canada. To quote from Foundations of Bilingual Education And 
Bilingualism 2nd Edition (Colin Baker)  

Heritage or Maintenance Language Education refers to the education of language minority 
children through their minority and majority language.  In most cases, the majority language 
will be present in the curriculum, ranging from second language lessons to a varying 
proportion of the curriculum being taught the majority language.  
Where a minority language is used for a majority of classroom time (e.g. 80% - 100% in 
Wales), the justification is usually that children easily transfer ideas, concepts, skills and 
knowledge into the majority language.  Having taught a child multiplication in Spanish, this 
mathematical concept does not have to be re-taught in English.   
The justification given for heritage language education is also that a minority language is 
easily lost, a majority language is easily gained.  Children tend to be surrounded by the 
majority language.  Television and train advertisements, shops and signs, videos and visits 
often provide or induce bilingual proficiency in an incidental way by accenting a majority 
language.  Thus bilingualism is achieved by a concentration on the minority language at 
school. 
If the focus switches from public political opinion to the educational opinion of teachers, 
parents and students, there is general satisfaction with Canadian Heritage Language 

Page 192



82 
 

programs... the advantages may be summarized as follows (Canadian Education Association 
1991): 

 Positive self concept and pride in one’s background; 

 Better integration of child into school and society; 

 More tolerance of other people and different cultures; 

 Increased cognitive, social and emotional development; 

 Ease in learning of new languages; 

 Increased probability of employment 

 Responding to the needs and wishes of community. 

 
Immersion education also means that as well as the language medium of lessons Welsh is used as:  

 the language medium of activities across the whole school 

 the language medium of extra-curricular activities such as school excursions  

 the language informally used by the children with each other: on the school yard, at break 
and lunch times  

In comparison, dual stream schools offer Welsh-medium lessons; both languages could be used for 
school-wide activities, but the emphasis would inadvertently be placed on the English language as 
this is the common language – lingua franca – of the establishment. From our experience of dual 
stream schools, English is most commonly used on the school yard, during excursions, sport events 
and so on. 
 
Usually, from the perspective of the child and his/her language, a second language needs to have a 
major role in one ‘sphere’ of their life. Today, up to 95% of children who attend Welsh medium 
schools come from families where English is the main, or only language used in all spheres e.g. the 
home, entertainment, the wider family, recreational activities, the media. The Welsh language must 
be the main language of at least one of these spheres, and immersion education safeguards this. In 
dual stream schools, it is more often than not, that the Welsh language would be only be used as the 
medium of teaching, which is in total contrast to the linguistic experiences of a pupil receiving full 
Welsh medium education. 
 
Welsh-medium schools make a significant contribution to the cultural as well as educational 
development of a child, offering a comprehensive experience of Wales’ culture e.g. Eisteddfod, 
acting, singing, competing. This cannot always be achieved to the same degree in a dual stream 
school. 
 
The success of Welsh medium schools is dependent on having a Welsh-speaking Head teacher and 
all other members of staff who then speak the language with the pupils at all times. Again, this is in 
comparison with dual stream schools where the Head teacher could be a non-Welsh speaker in 
addition to some members of the English stream. 
 
Welsh-medium schools are dependent on the co-operation of parents, who wish for their children to 
attain fluency in the Welsh and English language, and who accept that the language of their 
education will be through the medium of Welsh. Their co-operation is an integral part of the success 
of Welsh medium schools. It is less than likely that this level of commitment would be found at a 
dual stream school. 
 
HOW IMMERSION WORKS IN YSGOL PENTRECELYN 

Page 193



83 
 

In a category 1 school such as ours Welsh medium education via immersion works. The Welsh 
language is used in all aspects of school life – sports, school trips, Urdd, music, PTA, Services and 
concerts etc. We accommodate those for whom Welsh is not a first language on entry into the 
school, we have a pupil teacher ratio of 15.5:1 (My Local Schools), pupils home language is split 43% 
from Welsh homes, 39% form English speaking homes and 18% from bilingual homes (information 
from Community and Welsh language Impact Assessment) therefore no-one can dispute the fact 
that we produce more pupils fluent in Welsh on leaving the school than starting and therefore 
promote Denbighshire County Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan of bilingualism.  Parents 
from Welsh speaking homes choose to send their children to a Category 1 school as they wish for 
their children to be fully immersed in a totally Welsh culture and ethos which is natural for them.  
Our parents who are unable to speak Welsh or are from bilingual homes are proud of the way their 
children have progressed at the school: 
 

“I felt with my kids not speaking any welsh at home, the best way for them to have any 
chance of picking it up was going to a Welsh school and be completely immersed in it all day.  
I don't think my child’s Welsh would be as good if she had gone to a bilingual school, I think 
she would have carried on speaking English because that would have been easier and that 
option would have been available where as in a category 1 she didn't have much choice other 
than to learn welsh if she wanted to be able to speak to anyone” 
 
 “I'm very proud that my children are bilingual and although school provides loads of good 
stuff being fully bilingual at an early age is a life skill that I couldn't have given them 
otherwise. We live in Wales, all children living here should grow up able to speak welsh and 
immersion is the best way to achieve that. Even though I've lived here since I was three years 
old my welsh is poor, I'm proud that my children will be bilingual and able to interact in welsh 
and benefit in terms of social and work opportunities” 
 
“If my children went to a bilingual school and that school became very 'English' there's a risk 
my children will start speaking English to each other -on the school yard etc and then at 
home- as their father is English speaking. With going to a cat 1 school they naturally speak 
welsh to each other and I work hard to encourage welsh speaking at all times.” 
 

There is no mention in the consultation of the “Cylch Ti a Fi” at Pentrecelyn which was established in 
November 2010.  Meeting weekly at Ysgol Pentrecelyn, the Cylch Ti a Fi offers activities which 
support child development from birth to 3.  It is a great opportunity for parents/carers/grandparents 
to meet and share experiences and socialise within a Welsh environment.  It is managed by a 
committee of parents.  There are currently 12 children attending each week at the school hall.  We 
have a play session, snack, story and song time during the 90 minute session.  It has been an ideal 
introduction for the children to the school’s nursery phase.  It also gives an introduction to the 
Welsh language before they start school and non-Welsh speaking parents and children from families 
where Welsh is not spoken at home come to introduce their children to the sound of the language 
and to sing and socialise bilingually.  Ex-parents/pupils from “Pentrecelyn Ti a Fi” and the current 
children/parents reflect the school’s linguistic nature – as it draws from the local area, Welsh, non-
Welsh and mixed language families come and are prepared to introduce the language to their 
children and be part of this Welsh community. This Ti a Fi group shows that there is a future, support 
and a need for category 1 Welsh education in our Welsh rural area. 

 
 
 
HOW IMMERSION WORKS IN YSGOL LLANFAIR DC (in its current form) 
 
Ysgol Llanfair DC has a strong Welsh ethos disseminated through the school via an excellent head 
and staffing structure.  It is also influenced by the fact that around 70% of the pupils are educated 
through the Welsh medium stream.  Classes are run as one rather than 2 streams and so those 
choosing the English stream are immersed in Welsh, this is entirely due to the very low pupil: 

Page 194



84 
 

teacher ratio of 12.9:1.  This ratio is not sustainable with the proposed 20 pupils per year group 
therefore is the quality of teaching through both languages sustainable?   
 
An ex-teacher at a bilingual school had this to say: 

I have experience of teaching bilingually.  I must say it can work well in the classroom 
improving the Welsh language standard of the English group and the English language 
standard of the Welsh group.  But teachers must be prepared to give time to the Welsh 
language, and I know that some just turn to English as it is easier.  Also when visitors come to 
speak or when we go on trips, they speak English so they don’t have to repeat themselves.  
So the Welsh language is lost frequently in situations like this.  All the best with the 
campaign! 
 

Parental co-operation and choice to put their child through a Welsh medium education has helped 
tremendously in the last 10 years. There have been a large number of Welsh families choosing to 
send their children to Ysgol Llanfair that have been fed by Cylch Meithrin in Pwllglas which has 
contributed to the language balance. There is now no Ti a Fi in Pwllglas demonstrating that this 
cohort of parents has grown up and not been replaced, what influence will this have on the future 
linguistic balance in the school? 
 
During the last academic year 2 governors from Ysgol Pentrecelyn visited Ysgol Llanfair to see how 
they delivered their education. It was clear that the school had an incredibly strong Welsh ethos, 
most lessons were entirely delivered in Welsh. This left the Governors with the feeling that the two 
schools were in fact incredibly similar, the only difference being a minority of pupils did not take 
their foundation phase and key stage 2 tests through the medium of Welsh. The question remains 
how do you secure this forever when a school is a constantly evolving entity? The answer is via 
opening a new welcoming rural category 1 school marketed as promoting bilingualism. 
 
INTERNAL FACTORS THAT MAY INFLUENCE IMMERSION IN A CATEGORY 2 SCHOOL  
 
In the equation of a successful bilingual school, such enthusiasm and commitment by head teachers 
and principals, teachers and auxiliary workers, may be an important and often underestimated 
factor in success.  There is a danger of seeing success in bilingual education as due to the system 
(e.g. immersion) and use of two languages in school. The commitment of bilingual teachers, and the 
special skills that a bilingual teacher uses beyond those required of a monolingual teacher, may be 
underestimated in the equation of successful bilingual schooling. 
 
In a category 2 school the number of children assessed through the medium of Welsh is dependant 
on parental choice. Is Denbighshire County Council prepared to safeguard the balance between 
Welsh medium and English medium in the new area school? 
 
We believe that downgrading the new area school from category 1 to category 2 would have a 
detrimental effect on our pupils’ choice of language whilst socialising with their friends and family. 
In order to create a Welsh ethos and provide a firm foundation for pupils’ Welsh identity, we must 
ensure that Welsh is not only the language of the classroom but the language in which pupils 
socialise too.  In category 2 schools pupils in the Welsh stream are not obliged to speak Welsh 
outside of the classroom i.e. during playtime and lunchtime, trips and extracurricular activities etc. It 
is in these situations that pupils from non-Welsh speaking families are more likely to turn to their 
mother tongue.  It is also not statutory in a category 2 school to deliver extracurricular activities in 
Welsh. 
 
A parent has spoken to a parent of a Welsh speaking pupil who attends a category 2 school, who 
said that her daughter is the only member of her group of friends who comes from a Welsh speaking 
home. In the classroom, this group of pupils attend the Welsh stream and speak Welsh, but as soon 
as the bell rings the language changes immediately to English and that forces the Welsh speaking 
pupil to change the language in which she socialises. 

Page 195



85 
 

 
As parents, with the help of the teachers and category 1 school staff, we have the ability to 
encourage, control and temper the use of the Welsh language outside the teaching area of the 
school and into extra curricular activities and events with the community. This ensures that the 
children have a sound foundation for the future.  
 
In comparison this would be much harder to encourage in secondary education however the identity 
would be cemented in. So in the event of category 1 background children socialising with non 
category 1 children in the secondary school, the former would seamlessly flip between the two 
languages depending on the audience.  Non-Welsh speaking people are often heard commending 
people who have this ability. 
 
Our concern would be that if first language Welsh children attend a category 2 school, the socialising 
would be done in English with Welsh becoming a classroom only language with no relevance to life 
outside of the classroom. By attending a category 1 school firmer Welsh language foundations are 
likely to be set. This will place pupils from non – Welsh speaking homes in a much more favourable 
position in the future as they are immersed in the language from the beginning of their academic 
career at 3 years old through to 11 years old in and out of the classroom. The core of first language 
Welsh pupils provides a strong basis for the language used outside of the classroom.  These children 
are used to speaking the language every day in informal situations with their parents, siblings, family 
friends and extended family.  They are far more likely to maintain this practice at school and in social 
activities with their non-Welsh speaking peers which in turn motivates the second language Welsh 
speakers to make use of the language outside of the classroom and realise it is not only the language 
of the classroom.  If non-Welsh children are a majority, Welsh children will change the language to 
accommodate non-Welsh speakers.  As time progresses this will become the norm. Whilst Welsh 
speaking children immersed in a naturally welsh speaking environment will stick to that language 
sadly this will no longer be the case and it will become a norm for the Welsh speakers to speak 
English together as that is what they will be used every day.  
 
Another important factor in relation to socialisation is that if the new proposed school is category 2 
and some families decide to send their children to the school whilst others will opt for an alternative 
category 1 school. This will lead to a break up in communities with children living effectively next 
door although separated by rural fields not knowing each other and parents of these children 
subsequently having no reason to get to know each other. Therefore this will have a detrimental 
effect on rural communities and the people who live there.  The school currently has links with the 
community via a termly Community Lunch in the school, visits to Llysfasi college, Pentrecelyn Chapel 
and Llanelidan Church, there is a real danger here of pupils growing up without a sense of their 
community. 
 
The question is can there be a level playing field in an immersion model?  
Again we refer to Colin Baker : 

Two Way/Dual Language Bilingual Education occurs when approximately equal numbers of 
language minority and language majority students are in the same classroom.  The English 
and non-English speakers are integrated in all lessons. Two way bilingual classrooms contain 
a mixture of language majority and language minority students.  A language balance close 
to 50% - 50% is attempted.  If one language becomes dominant (e.g. due to much larger 
numbers of one language group), the aim of bilingualism and biliteracy may be at risk. 
 
An imbalance in the two languages among students may result in one language being used 
to the exclusion of the other (e.g., Spanish speaking children having to switch to English to 
work cooperatively).  Alternatively, one language group may become sidelined (e.g. Spanish 
speakers become excluded from English speaking groups).  Segregation rather than 
integration may occur.  In the creation of a dual language school or classroom, careful 
student selection decisions have to be made to ensure a language balance.  

 

Page 196



86 
 

When an imbalance does exist, it may be preferable to have slightly more language minority 
children.  Where there is a preponderance of language majority children, the tendency is for 
language minority children to switch the higher status, majority language.  In most (but not 
all) language contexts, the majority language is well represented outside school (e.g. in the 
media and for employment).  Therefore, the balance towards the majority language outside 
school can be complemented by a slight balance towards the minority language in school 
(among student in-take and in curriculum delivery). 
 
A balance towards a greater proportion of minority language speakers may help to ensure 
that the ‘common denominator’ majority language does not always dominate in informal 
classroom and playground talk. 
 
..studies of bilingual education indicate that it may be preferable to separate languages in 
instruction rather than to mix them during a single lesson.  It tends to be regarded as 
preferable that one language is used for one set of subject; the other language for a separate 
set. 
One residual problem is in which language are particular subjects taught? For example, if 
mathematics and science, technology and computing are taught in the English language, will 
the hidden message be that English is of more value for scientific communication, for 
industrial and scientific vocations?   Will English latently receive a special, reserved status?  If 
the minority or second is used for humanities, social studies, sport and art, is the hidden 
message that minority languages are only of value in such human and aesthetic pursuits? 
Such language development needs to occur across the curriculum, in Science as well as 
Language Arts, in Maths and Technology as well as History and Geography.  Language 
development needs to be joined by cultural development. Throughout the curriculum, in all 
areas and cross-curricula topics, the culture surrounding the minority language needs 
transmitting to give that language purpose, meaning and vitality. 

 
Taking that evidence into account then the answer is there cannot be a level playing field.  Whilst 
there is a majority selecting the minority language it may work with the support of staff but how can 
the school implement a policy forcing limits on parental choice, we would ask is this possible? Or 
would it be better, as we feel it would, to use a category 1 school as the basis for the immersion 
model. 
 
EXTERNAL FACTORS THAT MAY INFLUENCE IMMERSION IN A CATEGORY 2 SCHOOL 
 
Apart from individual classroom and school characteristics, the effectiveness of bilingual education 
can take into account the social, political and cultural context in which such education is placed. 
Various effects may act and interact to make bilingual education more or less effective, e.g. home 
and parental, community, teacher, school and society. 
 
In the current Land Development Plan there are 129 units of housing allocated over 6 areas in 
Graigfechan, Llanfair and Pwllglas, 55 are forecast to be built in the next 5 years, the other 74 
unlikely to be built within the next 5 years.  This could have a dramatic influence on the language 
balance within the new area school; there can be no guarantee on the parental preference of the 
families moving into the area. If the new school was a category 1 then the pupils would be immersed 
in Welsh regardless of home language and there would be an increase in pupils leaving Key stage 2 
speaking Welsh and English whilst mitigating against the social factors already mentioned. 
Census figures last taken in 2011 show as a nation there was a 2% drop in Welsh speakers despite an 
increase in overall population.  These figures can be broken down to a more local level to the 2 local 
electoral wards, 
 

Electoral Ward % Welsh speakers aged 3 
and over – 2001 

% Welsh speakers aged 3 
and over - 2011 

Page 197



87 
 

Llanfair/Gwyddelwern 50.24 – Llanfair 
68.61 – Gwyddelwern 

48.3 

Efenechtyd(Pwllglas) 54.53 53.7 

(The Office for National Statistics) 
 
This clearly demonstrates a decrease in the number of people speaking Welsh and shows that 
Denbighshire County Council should be striving to increase the number of Welsh speakers within the 
area to stop this trend.  
 
In 2012 RhAG published “The Growth of Welsh Medium Education (2002-2012)”, in reference to DCC 
they state that “There is now a stronger Leadership in Education generally, including Welsh medium 
education and this is bearing fruit. There are some notable milestones…creating a Strategic Group 
for Welsh Education…..taking advantage of the School Modernisation agenda to change the medium 
of some schools in the south of the county, creating two designated Welsh medium schools and 
making some English medium schools bilingual….”, has this been achieved? 
 
HOW DO OTHER CATEGORY 2 SCHOOLS PERFORM  
 
The following table give some brief data on how the 36 category 2 dual stream school perform in 
Wales. The number of pupils learning through the medium of Welsh is sourced from Estyn 
inspections reports and as such is difficult to present consistently but it does still demonstrate how 
these schools function.   
 
Firstly 3 of these schools are infant schools so are not listed.  There are only 5 schools out of the 
remaining 33 that have 70% or above pupils taking the Welsh medium, 25 of them have around 50% 
or less in the Welsh Medium and 3 do not have any pupils taking Welsh as a first language at key 
stage 2.  Of these 3 schools 1 is situated very close to RAF Valley in Anglesey and the other 2 are in 
Denbighshire, what reassurance does this give us that our Local Authority will be able to preserve 
the current category 2 model for the long term?  The table clearly demonstrates that Ysgol Llanfair 
DC has the lowest Pupil Teacher ratio, which as stated previously cannot be sustained if pupil 
numbers grow, and according to some parents at the school this is the reason the model works so 
well. 
  

Page 198



88 
 

School Name Local Authority Pupil 
Teacher 

Ratio (My 
Local 

School) 

Number of Pupils learning through 
Welsh Medium  (most recent Estyn 

report) 

Ysgol Caergeiliog 
Foundation School 

Ynys Môn 21.4 No pupils taking KS2 tests in Welsh first 
language 

Ysgol Maelgwn Conwy 18.6 53% Welsh First language; 2 streams 

Ysgol Pencae Conwy 14.5 2 streams (no data on split) 

Ysgol Rhewl Denbighshire 15 No pupils taking KS2 tests in Welsh first 
language  

Ysgol Llanfair DC Denbighshire 12.9 73.8% in Welsh stream 

Ysgol Dyffryn Iâl Denbighshire 21.2 No pupils taking KS2 tests in Welsh first 
language 

Ysgol Cynddelw Wrexham 19.3 57% in Welsh stream 

Llanfair Caereinion  
C P 

Powys 21.5 47% Welsh stream 53%English stream 

Ysgol Dyffryn Trannon Powys 17 70% Welsh; 2 streams 

Llanfyllin CP School Powys 16.9 4/7 classes Welsh medium 

Builth Wells CP School Powys 18.1 5/13 classes Welsh medium 

Sennybridge CP School Powys 15.7 3/5 classes Welsh medium 

Ysgol Rhiw Bechan Powys 20.4 2 streams from Year 2 

Llanrhaeadr ym 
Mochnant CP 

Powys 15.6 2 streams 

Llandrindod Wells C I W 
School  

Powys 20.3 4 /8 classes Welsh medium 

Rhayader C I W School Powys 20.3 2/6 classes Welsh medium 

Narbeth C P School Pembrokeshire 22.5 6/11 classes Welsh medium 

Tenby Junior 
Community School 

Pembrokeshire 17.4 2/10 classes Welsh Medium 

Ysgol Gelli Aur Pembrokeshire 21.6 4/13 classes Welsh medium 

Ysgol Glannau Gwaun Pembrokeshire 20.4 70% in Welsh stream 

Ysgol Gynradd Parcrhun Carmarthenshire 16 Do have pupils taking KS2 in Welsh first 
language but no data found 

Ysgol Llys Hywel Carmarthenshire 15.9 50:50 split, 2 streams, Meithrin and 
Derbyn taught through Welsh only 

Llangennech Junior 
School 

Carmarthenshire 21.3 54% Welsh, 2 separate streams 

Hendy CP School Carmarthenshire 22.8 4/8 classes Welsh medium 

Llangunnor CP School Carmarthenshire 21.6 2 streams, no data 

Ysgol Griffith Jones Carmarthenshire 18.6 8/11 classes Welsh medium 

Ysgol Y Felin Carmarthenshire 15.8 4/8 classes Welsh medium 

Ysgol Bro Banw Carmarthenshire 18.2 5/21 classes Welsh medium 

Penderyn Primary 
School 

Rhondda Cynon 
Taf 

23.6 5/8 classes Welsh medium 

Dolau Primary School Rhondda Cynon 
Taf 

25 50:50 split 2 streams 

Heol Y Celyn Primary 
School 

Rhondda Cynon 
Taf 

21.4 6/15 classes Welsh Medium 

Ysgol Gynradd Gwaelod 
Y Garth  

Cardiff 20.2 8/10 classes Welsh medium 

Ysgol Gynradd Creigiau Cardiff 22.3 6/13 classes Welsh medium 

Gov.wales 

Page 199



89 
 

 
Q: DOES THIS PROPOSAL GO AGAINST THE NATIONAL DIRECTION OF TRAVEL IN SUPPORT OF 
NATIONAL WELSH LANGUAGE OBJECTIVES? 
A: YES 
 
The Welsh Government’s Welsh Medium Education Strategy 
 
The Welsh Government’s Welsh Medium Education Strategy is a statutory strategy that 
Denbighshire County Council is expected to reflect in its provision of education within the county.   
Denbighshire County Council’s intention to close a Welsh language category 1 school and transfer 
the pupils to a two stream Welsh and English category 2 school goes against their objectives and 
therefore breaches the Welsh Government’s Welsh Medium Education Strategy. 
The failure to satisfy the need for a Welsh Language category 1 education in the Pentrecelyn area 
under the new proposed arrangement is a failure to recognise local needs and respond to them, in 
compliance with the Welsh Government’s Welsh Medium Education Strategy, 3.2: 

 
‘Local authorities are expected to plan comprehensively for Welsh-medium education 
across their areas of responsibility…to recognise and respond to local needs of 
learners and to implement policies to fulfil the national aims.’ 
 

Introducing pupils who have received a Welsh medium category 1 education to a classroom 
environment where lessons are taught through English as well as Welsh goes against strategic 
objective 1.3:  
 

‘Welsh medium and bilingual school are expected, in their planning processes to self-
evaluate, reflect the direction of national targets and local authorities to safeguard and 
reinforce Welsh medium provision, and in some areas, bilingual provision’. 
 

In our opinion, it can’t be argued that weakening the presence of Welsh in the classroom (by moving 
from a monolingual Welsh education to a bilingual situation) achieves the strategic objective of 
safeguarding and reinforcing Welsh medium provision.  
The Strategy notes further in Section 3.5: 
 

‘This Strategy will bring about enduring change in the education infrastructure to 
ensure the sustainability of Welsh-medium education and the progression of learners 
from one stage to the next.’ 
 

The sustainability of Welsh medium education is not ensured by turning it into a Welsh and English 
medium education.  On the contrary, extensive educational and social research on the effect of a 
bilingual environment shows that introducing a minority language (Welsh) to a situation that 
includes the mass language (English), without exception leads to the weakening of the minority 
language.  This is elaborated upon in the response above. 
Strategic Objective 1.8 makes it:  
 

‘…To require local authorities to consider demand for, and access to, Welsh-medium 
provision when planning and bringing forward statutory proposals to change school 
provision’ 
 

Further to this, the first strategic aim of the Strategy is: 
‘To improve the planning of Welsh-medium provision in the pre-statutory and statutory 
phases of education, on the basis of proactive response to informed parental demand’ 

 
 
 
Which means: 

Page 200



90 
 

‘Ensuring the availability of Welsh-medium provision is dependent 
on strategic planning, effective joint working, systematic analysis of 
demand and a commitment to act on the evidence of demand where 
appropriate.’ 
 

The projections show that there is a growth in the call for places in a category 1 school in the Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn catchment area.  With so many Pentrecelyn parents declaring their aim to ensure a 
Welsh medium category 1 education for their children, even if the County proceed with their plan, 
it’s evident that the Education Authority has ignored the local demand if they are forced to attend a 
category 2 school.   
 
Finally, and maybe more importantly, the Government’s Strategy measures its success through 
different outcomes.  The relevant one in this case is:  

Outcome 1 
More seven-year-old children being taught through the medium of Welsh 
 

The plan to introduce a category 2 school instead of a category 1 school is not compatible with this 
outcome, nor with the objectives of the Government’s targets.   
 
The Welsh Government’s policy is to develop each school on a language continuum which means 
that each school should build on their Welsh medium provision, not weaken the provision. 
   
In response to a question in the Senedd on 10th February 2015, the First Minister, Carwyn Jones said:  

“… it is extremely important the any authority doesn’t do anything that weakens the Welsh 
in their area.” 

It must be asked if the proposed recommendations are congenial with this statement.  
 
And moreover, the Education Minister, Huw Lewis AM said, again in the Senedd on 11th February 
2015: “…we will assess any effect any proposals would have on the growth of Welsh-medium 
education in the area.” This suggests that the Welsh Government is concerned about the proposed 
changes on the language.  
 
Denbighshire’s Welsh Language in Education Strategy  
 
Denbighshire’s Welsh Language in Education Strategy for 2014-2017 sets the following as Outcome 
1: 

‘More seven-year -olds being taught through the medium of Welsh  
 
Denbighshire’s Welsh Language in Education Strategy also notes: 

‘In January 2009, the Council adopted the Modernising Education Policy Framework. The 
Framework sets out the criteria and policies to be considered when reviewing school provision. 
The Framework clearly emphasises the importance of promoting Welsh & bilingual education 
and that any future reviews identify the need to reflect demand for Welsh medium provision. It 
also contains a Promoting Bilingualism policy which articulates the Council’s long-term 
aspiration that all children and young people leave full time education being competent and 
confident using both Welsh and English languages.  

 
The Welsh Government’s Welsh Medium Education Strategy’s aim is to ‘safeguard and reinforce 
Welsh medium provision’ unambiguously.  The aim of Outcome 1 in Denbighshire’s Welsh Language 
in Education Strategy is to ensure that ‘more children aged seven are educated through the medium 
of Welsh’ is a clear policy statement.  
  
We are of the view that the reclassification of a naturally Welsh school to be a bilingual one, with a 
vast majority of the pupils Welsh first language speakers, congenial with this.  

Page 201



91 
 

According to the 2011 census, 48.3% of the residents of the ward can speak Welsh, amongst the 
highest in Denbighshire.  If there isn’t a basis to create a Category 1 school in one of the most 
Welsh areas of the county, then the whole logic of the existence of Category 1 schools in any part 
of the county must be questioned.   
 
Good Practice  
 
Denbighshire County Council’s aim is to increase the number of pupils receiving a Welsh medium 
education from 28.1%(285) in 2012/13 to 29% in 2017.  Moreover, the Denbighshire Strategy boasts 
that the ‘Council’s previous challenging target to increase the percentage to 28% by 2015/16 had 
been reached three years earlier than expected.   
 
Sir Gâr has adopted a policy recently committing the Authority to turn each two steam primary 
schools to Welsh schools, and every English school schools where the Foundation Phase is delivered 
entirely through the Welsh with two streams in KS2 a Welsh stream and 50% Welsh/English stream.  
 
Ynys Môn has set clear targets.  In their Welsh in Education Strategy Plan 2014-17, it states: 

 ‘Outcome 1 : More seven year old children receiving their education through the medium of 
Welsh.  
We will increase the percentage of pupils who follow first language track and are assessed in 
Welsh as a first language at the end of the Foundation Phase and KS2, aiming at 76% by 2017 
(from 69.7% in 2013). 
 

Ceredigion’s Plan says 
 ‘Outcome 1: Ensure that 80% of our 7 year old pupils are in Welsh education by 2017 (from 
76.4% in 2012/13). 
 

In Gwynedd, it states: 
                Language Policy – primary  

The goal of the Language Policy is the same across the county’s primary schools, to develop 
the ability of every pupil to be confident in both languages by the end of KS2. Welsh is the 
school’s official language of assessment at the end of KS1. In KS2, we continue to direct 
attention at developing pupils’ grasp of Welsh but we also begin the process skills in both 
languages. 

 
Gwynedd council has a target of 100% of pupils being assessed as Welsh first language.  
It seems strange that Denbighshire’s boast to reach a ‘challenging’ target earlier than anticipated 
leads to setting a very small target of only 29% by 2016/17, and one of the best ways of reaching the 
aim would be to ensure an area school in one of the most Welsh areas of the County of Welsh 
medium category 1 status.  
 
Denbighshire’s Language Scheme  
 
The Welsh Language Commissioner has powers to research the possible failures of public 
establishments to implement their Language Schemes.  Section 17 of Denbighshire’s current 
Language Scheme notes that the County will establish the language choice of any face to face 
meeting with the public.  It states: 
 

17.1 When we arrange or attend face-to-face meetings with members of the public, we will 
establish their language preference at the earliest opportunity and, whenever possible, 
ensure that a suitably qualified Welsh speaking member of staff deals with those whose 
preferred language is Welsh. 

 
17.2 If no suitably qualified Welsh speaker is available, we will offer the choice of continuing 
the meeting in English, arranging a meeting with an interpreter or dealing with the subject 

Page 202



92 
 

by corresponding in Welsh. The above will also apply to meetings held using 
videoconferencing and similar equipment. 

 
16.1 The council will ensure that all meetings with the public are fully bilingual. We will 
provide simultaneous translation from Welsh into English at our public and council meetings 
unless we have established that all participants are likely to use the same language e.g. 
invitation only meetings. 

 
We are of the opinion that the Council has failed in this duty to offer services in the Welsh language 
on a number of occasions during this consultation process.   
 
We also understand that the Council is in the process of creating a new Welsh Language Scheme for 
the county.  We feel strongly that any decision to reclassify school should be put on hold until this 
new scheme is adopted.  There is no sense in agreeing on one policy that affects the education in the 
county when another policy, that could affect education in the county, is prepared at the same time.   
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
We believe that creating a voluntary controlled category 2 school in the area will not promote and 
guarantee Welsh medium education for the future. There is a thought that a category 2 school is 
more attractive than a category 1 school if parents are unsure about whether their child will cope 
with learning Welsh as a second language. The Denbighshire County Council schools admissions 
policy clearly states that “The majority of Nursery, Reception and Year 1 pupils attending Welsh 
Medium or opting for Welsh at a dual stream school easily develop competence and confidence in 
both Welsh and English, regardless of the family home language.”  . Parents are not afraid to use 
Welsh medium child care and the local Cylch Meithrins so why is there a fear surrounding primary 
education. As stated above we as a Welsh medium primary school have non-welsh speaking families, 
we are not exclusive, we are a community.  In our opinion if the new school were to be a category 2 
you would in fact be isolating those parents seeking a Welsh Medium Education via true immersion. 
 
There is a history of children switching from the English stream to the Welsh stream in Llanfair  

Year Total 
Pupils 

Welsh 
Stream 

English 
Stream 

Number of pupils who have moved from English to 
the Welsh Stream 

Nursery 13 10 3 N/A 

Reception 15 9 6 5 

Year 1 13 12 1 2 

Year 2 11 8 3 0 

Year 3 13 10 3 2 

Year 4 12 9 3 1 

Year 5 12 8 4 4 

Year 6 14 10 4 4 

 
TOTAL 

 
103 

 
76 (73.8%) 

 
27 (26.2%) 

 
18 (17.5%) 

(Information provided by Denbighshire County Council) 
 
If these children had not switched language stream then the language balance within the school 
would have been 56% Welsh Stream: 44% English stream, a very different language balance.  
As stated previously our school accommodates and welcomes all pupils regardless of home 
language, we call on you to make the new area school a category 1 school. We can prioritise to 
continue this ethos within the new school and ensure that we do not exclude those who are fearful 
of a Welsh medium Education. One parent has been quoted as saying: 

Page 203



93 
 

 
 ‘Nid mater o gau plant "Saesneg" allan o gymdeithas Cymraeg yw pwrpas ysgolion 
swyddogol Cymraeg, yn wir i'r gwrthwyneb yw eu pwrpas. Rydw i'n dysgu mewn Ysgol Gyfun 
Gymraeg mewn ardal eithaf Saesnigaidd o Gymru. Mae 90% o'r disgyblion yn dod o gartrefi 
di-Gymraeg. Un o bwyntiau'r ysgolion Cymraeg yw hybu'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg yn eu 
bywydau y tu allan i'r ysgol. Esiampl perffaith o'r llwyddaint yma yw cyn ddisgyblyn fy ysgol i, 
sef John Hartson. Yn ei ddyddiau ysgol roedd John yn gwwrthwynebu defnyddio'r Gymraeg, 
am ei fod am chwarae pel-droed yn y Premiership. Ers iddo adael yr ysgol fodd bynnag mae 
ef wedi sylweddoli bod y defnydd o'r Gymraeg yn fantais iddo ac mae e'n (gymharol) 
rheolaidd i'w glywed yn sgwrsio yn y Gymraeg ar S4C ac ar radio Cymru.’ 

 
 
How can Denbighshire County Council be truly committed to the Welsh in Education Strategic plan if 
they are closing a category 1 Welsh Medium school? And, if bilingual schools work so well, why are 
there only 36 out of the 1333 primary schools in Wales? Ysgol Llanfair DC is a unique model 
sustained by factors that can be changed, it cannot be preserved for ever and is in fact closing, 
something that people seem to be forgetting. How can the new area school work in the same way 
when it will be a bigger school starting with a new slate? Welsh language provision cannot be 
guaranteed unless the school is Welsh medium. 
 
By definition a category 1 Welsh medium school should deliver children at the end of key stage 2 
competent in English as per a category 5 school therefore delivering results consistent with 
Denbighshire’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.  These pupils can then progress to Welsh medium 
education in the secondary sector.  We are strongly concerned about the pupils learning Welsh as a 
second language, where is the place for them in the secondary sector? How does this fit with 
Outcome 2 of the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan: 
 

“More learners continuing to improve their language skills on transfer from primary to 
secondary school. We aim to increase the percentage of learners who are assessed in Welsh 
first language at the end of year 9 to 21%” 
 

In Professor Donaldson’s recent report “Successful futures” he says 
 

“In particular there is a need to build children and young people’s confidence to use the 
language not only in lessons but also in activities and real-life situation outside the classroom 
and outside the school”  
 

Professor Sioned Davies, in her foreword to “One language for all: Review of Welsh second language 
at key stages 3 and 4(2013)”, says 
 

“The future of Welsh and Welsh culture is wholly dependant on transmitting the language to 
our young people” 
 

Cen Williams, Bangor University Research can be quoted 
“Immersion education is a success story, a fact that needs to be emphasised. Pupils who 
experience immersion become competent in a new language and achieve academic success 
through the medium of that language. But we don’t need to visit other countries to see the 
evidence for that; it has been happening here in Wales for at least forty years. In the bilingual 
or Welsh-medium schools of the south-east or north-east the vast majority of the pupils learn 
Welsh through immersion education at school rather than at home. The secondary schools 
then build on this success so that their second language develops as an academic language 
as well. They succeed academically in their content subjects through the medium of their 
second language. But by then they have two first languages, both Welsh and English; that is 
the extent of the success and the value of immersion education for us in Wales. The 
education system needs to recognise this success and to learn how to use aspects of 

Page 204



94 
 

immersion education to make up for the relative failure of learning Welsh as a subject in the 
majority of our English-medium schools. If our intent is to create a bilingual Wales, we need 
to capitalise on what is already happening here in the Welsh-medium sector and in other 
countries, and extend immersion education to English-medium schools.” 
 

In a report published last year by Estyn “Linguistic progression and standards of Welsh in ten 
bilingual schools” Anne Keane, Chief Inspector is quoted as saying 
 

 “Only in a third of bilingual schools do most pupils who study Welsh as a first language 
follow two or more additional GCSEs through the medium of Welsh. Overall, the proportion 
of pupils studying Welsh as a first language declines as they progress through their 
schooling. Although Gwynedd, Anglesey, Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire have the highest 
proportion of pupils in key stage 4 studying Welsh as a first language, the numbers of pupils 
choosing this path decreased by approximately one in every five pupils between key stages 2 
and 4.” 
 

Whilst these quotes in part refer to secondary education the keys point is the decrease of the 
number of pupils progressing the Welsh Medium Education in the Secondary sector. The report also 
states that a number of pupils who studied Welsh as a first language at primary school do not 
continue to study Welsh as a first language in secondary school or chose to study other subjects 
through Welsh. These pupils and their parents often make these choices without considering the 
benefits of continuing their studies through the medium of Welsh.   
 
If the new school is to be a Faith school this only drives the concerns regarding language stability.  
The Local authority has no power to change the language category therefore how can it truly 
implement monitoring of the Welsh Language provision.  The Church in Wales overall is not, in our 
opinion, against a Welsh Medium School, it in fact has some in its portfolio but in this case the 
involvement in the proposal should be carefully considered.  What does the Church have to offer the 
new school that is different to the ethos that is in most community schools already? 
 
We invite Officers and Elected members to consider our case and come forward with an exciting and 
progressive solution to what has been a difficult debate.    
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
Sarah Wynne 
Chair of Governors 
On behalf of Parents, Staff and Governors  
Ysgol Pentrecelyn 
 
 
 
 

Page 205



95 
 

References 
Joint Housing Land Availability Study 2014 – Denbighshire County Council 
Successful Futures: Independent Review of Curriculum and Assessment Arrangements in Wales – 
Professor Graham Donaldson CB, February 2015 
Foundations of Bilingual Education and Bilingualism 2nd Edition – Colin Baker 
Denbighshire Schools Information for parents, guardians and carers School Year 2015-2016 
Linguistic progression and standards of Welsh in ten bilingual schools – November 2014 –Estyn 
The Growth of Welsh Medium Education 2002-2012 – RhAG  
Census 2001 – Report on the Welsh Language – Office for National Statistics 
Census 2011 – Office for National Statistics 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2014-2017 – Denbighshire County Council 
Estyn reports on both schools available at www.estyn.gov.uk 
www.mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk 
Defining Schools According to Welsh medium provision – October 2007 
www.gov.wales/statistics-and-research/address-list-of-schools/?lang=en 
 
 

Page 206

http://www.mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/


DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
THE DIOCESE OF ST. ASAPH 
 
NOTICE OF SCHOOL REORGANISATION PROPOSAL UNDER THE SCHOOL STANDARDS AND ORGANISATION (WALES) 

ACT 2013  

1. Notice is hereby given in accordance with Section 41 and 43 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 (the Act) 
and the School Organisation Code that Denbighshire County Council of County Hall, Ruthin, Denbighshire LL15 1YN (the 
Council) and The Diocese of St.Asaph, Diocesan Office, High Street, St. Asaph, Denbighshire, LL17 0RD (the Diocese), having 
consulted such persons as required, propose the following: 

 The Council proposes to discontinue Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd, Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd, Ruthin, Denbighshire, LL15 2RU 
from 31 August 2016; 

 The Council proposes to discontinue Ysgol Pentrecelyn, Pentrecelyn, Ruthin, Denbighshire, LL15 2HG from 31 August 2016; 
and 

 The Diocese proposes to establish a new dual-stream Category 2, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled primary school for 
boys and girls aged 4 to 11 years old from 1 September 2016. The proposed new school will have a religious character of 
Church in Wales and will be maintained by the Council.  
 

2. Pupils currently attending Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn and those admitted during the 2016-17 school year will be able to 
attend the proposed new school from 1 September 2016.  The proposed new school will operate from the two current sites of 
Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. 

3. The Council and the Diocese undertook a period of consultation before deciding to publish this proposal. A consultation report 
containing a summary of the issues raised by consultees, the responses of the Council and the Diocese and the views of Estyn is 
available on the Denbighshire County Council website: www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation/ or you may request a 
copy by emailing modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk 
 

4. The Council will be the admission authority for the proposed new school. The admission number for first time admissions to the 
primary phase at the new school in the first year in which the proposal has been implemented is 23. Parents will need to state a 
preference in terms of which site they wish their child to attend to enable the Council to determine admissions for the new school. 

5. From 1 September 2016, pupils will be admitted to the new 4-11 school in accordance with the Council’s admission arrangements, 
which do not take account of the sex, aptitude or ability of the child.  Pupils currently in nursery/reception provision and Year 1 to 5 
at Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn, and those admitted during the 2015-16 school year, will be admitted to the proposed new 
school; 

6. The language category of the proposed new school, as defined by “Defining schools according to Welsh medium provision”, Welsh 
Government Information document No: 023/2007 will be, ‘Dual Stream- Category 2’. 

7. The new school’s pupil capacity will be 169. This will include 113 at the Llanfair site and 56 in the Pentrecelyn site. 

8. Parents may express a preference for another school and the Council will comply with any such expressed preference subject to 
the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, Section 86(3). 

9. The home to school transport arrangements for pupils currently at Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn will remain the same at 
the proposed new school in accordance with the Council’s Home to School Transport Policy as at the date of implementation of 
the proposal. 

10. Within a period of 28 days after the date of publication of this proposal, that is to say by 15 July 2015 any person may object to the 
proposal (the Objection Period) 

11. Objections should be sent in writing to Jackie Walley, Head of Customers and Education Support, Denbighshire County Council, 
County Hall, Ruthin, Denbighshire, LL15 1YN, or by email to modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk.  The Council will 
publish a summary of any such objections made within the Objection Period (and not withdrawn in writing), together with the 
observations of the Council and the Diocese, within the period of 28 days after the end of the Objection Period.  

  

Jackie Walley Rosalind Williams 
Head of Customers and Education 
Support 

Director of Education and Lifelong 
Learning 

For Denbighshire County Council        For The Diocese of St Asaph 

 
Dated this day [18 June] 2015 

 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 
(This explanatory note does not form part of the Notice but is offered by way of explanation)  

 
a) The proposal is one of six identified through the ‘Review of Primary School Provision in the Ruthin Area’ which was undertaken by the Council 

to address issues including Headteacher recruitment, surplus places, mobile accommodation and the sustainability of schools. 
b) At the date of the last school census in January 2015: 

i) Ysgol Llanfair had 94 Full Time pupils.  Its capacity was 113 Full Time pupils which meant there were 19 (16.8%) surplus places; and 
ii) Ysgol Pentrecelyn had 35 Full Time pupils on roll.  Its capacity was 56 Full Time pupils which meant there were 21 (37.5%) surplus 

places. 
c) This proposal is the first phase for the development of the area school. The second phase would see the Area school consolidated on a new 

site in the Llanfair/ Pentrecelyn area, subject to land availability and suitability. We are proposing that the new build will be ready by 
September 2017.  

d) The rationale for this proposal was set out in a consultation document circulated in February 2015. 
e) Copies of the consultation document, School Admissions Policy and Home to School Transport Policy are available from Modernising 

Education at the address set out in the Notice. 
f) The Act gives the Council the power to close a community school and the Diocese the power to open a voluntary controlled school.  

Accordingly, the Council and the Diocese have worked jointly on the proposal and will work together to implement it should it be determined. 

g) Delegated funding for the proposed new school will be in accordance with the Council’s local funding formula for schools. 
h) This Notice marks the start of a 28 objection period from 18 June 2015 to 15 July 2015 and sets out the address to which objections in writing 

may be submitted. 

Page 207

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation/
mailto:modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Y Grŵp Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 

Education and Public Services Group 

 

 

Parc Cathays • Cathays Park 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ 

Ffon. Tel  029 2080 1426 

SchoolManagementDivision3@Wales.gsi.gov.uk 

                Gwfan. Website: www.wales.gov.uk 

 

Eich cyf/Your ref  
Ein cyf/Our ref   
Lisa Walchester  

Denbighshire County Council 
County Hall 
Wynnstay Road 

Ruthin 
Denbighshire 
LL15 1YN 

 
 
 
 

15 October 2015 
Dear Lisa 
 
Thank you for your email of 9 October requesting the consent of the Welsh Ministers that 
the local authority in exercise of its functions under Section 51 (4) of the School Standards 
and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, may modify proposals published by the Diocese of St. 
Asaph (the diocesan authority) to establish a new dual-stream category 2 Church in Wales 
voluntary controlled primary school on 1 September 2016. 
 
On 18 June 2015 the local authority and the diocesan authority jointly published a statutory 
notice which stated the following: 
 

 The Council proposes to discontinue Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd from 31 August 
2016;  

 The Council proposes to discontinue Ysgol Pentrecelyn from  31 August 2016; and 

 The Diocese proposes to establish a new dual-stream Category 2, Church in Wales 
Voluntary Controlled primary school for boys and girls aged 4 to 11 years old from 1 
September 2016….  

 
Pupils currently attending Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn and those admitted during 
2016-17 school year will be able to attend the proposed new school in September 2016. 
The proposed new school will operate from the two current sites of Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn. 

The explanatory note, which does not form part of the notice, also stated the following: 
 
c) This proposal is the first phase for the development of the area school. The second 
phase would see the area school consolidated on a new site in the Llanfair/Pentrecelyn 
area, subject to land availability and suitability. We are proposing the new build will be ready 
by September 2017. 
 
The objection period ended on 15 July 2015 and 30 objections were received.  
 

Page 209

jame7721
Typewritten Text
Appendix 8



Under section 53 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 (the “2013 
Act”) the local authority is required to determine whether or not to proceed with its proposal 
to close Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn by 4 November 2015. The local authority 
is also required to consider whether to approve the diocesan authority’s proposal to 
establish a new dual-stream category 2 Church in Wales voluntary controlled primary school 
under section 51 of the 2013 Act, as objections to the proposal were received. The local 
authority can decide to reject or approve the diocesan authority’s proposal, or approve the 
proposal with modifications to either the proposed implementation date or the number of 
pupils to be admitted to the school. The local authority may only approve the proposal with 
modification(s) having obtained the consent of the Welsh Ministers and the proposer to the 
modification(s), and after consulting the governing bodies concerned. 
 
I note that at a meeting held on 29 September 2015 the local authority’s Cabinet was 
informed that feasibility work indicates the new school building would not be ready by 1 
September 2017 and that January 2018 was now considered a more realistic date. The 
Cabinet was also reminded that concerns were expressed during consultation about the 
proposed length of time the school would be split over two sites.   
 
The Cabinet resolved to meet again on 27 October to determine the proposals, to consult 
the diocesan authority and the governing bodies of Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn, and request the consent of the diocesan authority and the Welsh Ministers to 
modify the implementation dates of the proposals.  
 
I understand that the diocesan authority has agreed to the proposed modification so that the 
proposals are implemented a year later on 31 August 2017 and 1 September 2017. I have 
seen and noted letters informing the local authority that the diocesan authority and the 
chairs of the governing bodies of Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn are content with the 
proposed modification, although the governing body of Ysgol Pentrecelyn still opposes 
other aspects of the proposal.  
 
Having carefully considered the information provided, I write to inform you that if the local 
authority were to decide to approve the proposals, the Welsh Ministers agree to the 
proposals being modified as set out in your request, as follows:  
 

 Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn to close on 31st August 2017, rather than 
2016, with the Church in Wales establishing a new area school on the existing sites 
on 1 September 2017, rather than 2016. 

 

I should be grateful if you would acknowledge receipt of this letter and advise me of the 
decision made by the Cabinet on 27 October. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Mary Davies 
School Organisation and Governance Branch 
Schools Management and Effectiveness Division 

Page 210



 

Report To:    Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:   27th October 2015 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
 
Report Author:  Head of Customers and Education Support 
 
Title:     Proposed closure of Ysgol Llanbedr DC 
 

 

1. What is this report about? 
 

1.1. This report is to inform Cabinet members of the findings of the formal 
consultation that took place from the 16th of June 2015 to the 28th of July 
2015 regarding the following proposal; 
 
“Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd as of the 31st of 
August 2016 with existing pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin 
subject to parental preference” 
  

2. What is the reason for making this report? 
 

2.1. A decision is required by Cabinet whether to approve the publication of a 
statutory notice for the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC as of the 31st 
August 2016. 
 

3. What are the recommendations? 
 

3.1. To approve the publication of a statutory notice on the proposal to close 
Ysgol Llanbedr DC as of the 31st of August 2016 with existing pupils 
transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 
 

4. Report details 
 

4.1. In January 2015 the Minister for Education and Skills rejected the Council’s 
proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC stating “the Minister has decided that 
although he can reasonably conclude, on educational and strategic grounds, 
that the proposal could be approved, he must nonetheless reject the proposal 
because the consultation undertaken by the local authority was flawed in an 
important respect”. The Minister stated that information relating to standards 
and quality in education was limited. The Minister commented that he was 
“concerned about the future of Ysgol Llanbedr in the light of the relatively low 
number of children on roll, and the temporary nature of current leadership”.  
 

4.2. The authority, following consideration and assessment of the situation in the 
Ruthin area, were minded to commence a consultation for closure as issues 
such as surplus places remained.  
 

Page 211

Agenda Item 6



 

4.3. To address these concerns a period of consultation with the Diocese of St 
Asaph was agreed by Cabinet. This took place between April and May 2015. 
The Diocese wished to pursue an option for federation and change of legal 
status however, following careful consideration and assessment of the 
situation in the Ruthin area, officers were of the viewpoint that closure would 
meet the key strategic drivers for the Ruthin review including the 
safeguarding of the quality and standards for all pupils in the area. In the 
absence of any named partner and supporting details, Cabinet decided on 
the 2nd of June 2015 to approve the commencement of a formal consultation 
relating to the proposal outlined in para 1.1. The formal consultation period 
would allow the Diocese to work with officers to assess the viability of 
federation in more detail. The option presented by the Diocese was included 
in the formal consultation document. 
 

4.4. As the proposal relates to the closure of a Church in Wales Voluntary 
Controlled school the Council has identified Ysgol Borthyn as the proposed 
alternative provision which is of the same religious and language designation. 

 
4.5. The formal consultation took place between the 16th of June 2015 and the 

28th of July 2015 inclusive. A total of 539 responses were received during the 
consultation period. This included 112 letters and emails and 427 standard 
response forms. The majority of these responses were against the current 
proposal.   

 
4.6. Members need to consider the consultation report and the supporting 

documents which have been produced following the formal consultation 
period in regard to proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr, and in response to the 
Diocese request to consider federation. For ease of reference these have 
been detailed below:- 

 Appendix 1 includes: 
the timeline in respect of the federation option (1.4), 
the general response to federation (2.2), and  
an assessment of the benefits of federation specific to Ysgol Trefnant  
(3.1). 
 

 Appendix 2 contains the formal consultation report. In the report we have 

to; 

o Summarise each of the issues raised by consultees; 

o Respond to these issues by means of clarification, amendment to the 

proposal or rejection of these concerns, with supporting reasons; and 

o Set out Estyn’s view of the overall merits of the proposal. 

 The appendices, as listed below address these three points: 

Appendix A: The written response from the Diocese of St. Asaph and 

Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr 

Appendix B: Full list of recipients of the consultation documents 

Appendix C: Issues and comments submitted by pupils 

Appendix D: Issues raised via letter and email 

Appendix E: Issues raised via standard response form 

Page 212



 

Appendix F: Issues raised by the Diocese of St. Asaph 

Appendix F (i): Covering letter from the Diocese of St. Asaph 

Appendix G: Issues raised by the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr  

Appendix H: Estyns’ response 

 

4.7. The option of federation was considered by the authority when the proposals 
were at a formative stage. The Diocese and Chair of Governors were invited 
to present their case to Cabinet members prior to the consultation document 
being considered formally by members. Following the presentation and in 
advance of June’s Cabinet meeting the lead member wrote to the Diocese 
with clear guidance as to what would assist cabinet in considering the option 
of federation. 
 

4.8. Discussions at Cabinet in June 2015 included reference to the alternative 
option suggested by the Diocese of St Asaph and the Governing Body of 
Ysgol Llanbedr DC for the school to federate with another Church in Wales 
school in Denbighshire and a change in the legal status of the school from 
Voluntary Controlled (VC) to Voluntary Aided (VA). However, Cabinet were of 
the view that due to the lack of detail only a general assessment of federation 
could be made as no school had been named at this stage.  
 

4.9. Both the Diocese and Governing Body have stated there are a number of 
benefits that the proposed alternative option would offer. These are explored 
in Appendix 1 together with the timeline of events.  

 
4.10. The Council broadly agrees that benefits can be realised through federated 

school models. However, some of the issues in relation to the Ruthin area 
would not be addressed by federation. Namely, reducing surplus places, 
achieving a fairer and more equitable distribution of school funding and 
providing greater efficiency and effectiveness of the school estate.  In 
summary, although federation would achieve some benefits, closing Ysgol 
Llanbedr would achieve more of our objectives. 
 

5. The Way Forward 
 

5.1. Members need to consider the consultation report which documents the 
responses received during the consultation period. In addition further 
information regarding the federation option as submitted by the Diocese and 
the school should be considered by Cabinet prior to determining whether to 
proceed.  
 

5.2. From reviewing this information it is recommended that the Council proceeds 
to publish a statutory notice based upon the current proposal. The Statutory 
Notice will be required to be published for 28 days. During this 28 day period 
anyone wishing to make objections to the proposal has the opportunity to do 
so. It is intended that subject to approval this proposal will be published on 
the 10th November 2015 with the objection period ending on the 7th 
December 2015. To be considered as statutory objections, they must be 

Page 213



 

made in writing or by e-mail, and sent to the proposer within 28 days of the 
date on which the proposal was published. 
 

5.3. Following this date the Council will need to publish an objections report and 
the Cabinet will be asked to utilise its powers under the School Standards 
and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 to consider any objections submitted and 
to determine whether to implement the proposal. 

 
6. How does the decision contribute to corporate priorities? 

 
6.1. The proposal supports the priority of “improving performance in education 

and the quality of our school buildings” and has been highlighted as a 
workstream as follows; 
 
“We will continue to review school provision across the County to ensure we 
provide the right number of school places, of the right type, in the right 
location.” 

7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 

7.1. The proposal will not have an impact upon other services within the 
organisation. 
 

7.2. The proposal will result in a school budget saving of £126k, however the 
proposal may result in an increase of an estimated £26k should all pupils 
eligible for home to school transport transfer to Ysgol Borthyn. A further £4k 
revenue saving would be made from the disposal of the mobile classroom. 
The proposal overall will lead to greater effectiveness and efficiency of the 
school estate and a fairer and more equitable distribution of school funding. 
 

8. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
undertaken on the decision? The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 
 

8.1. The EqIA undertaken in relation to the proposal highlights that Ysgol 
Llanbedr is a Church in Wales primary school. Should the proposal be 
implemented this provision would cease within the Llanbedr area. 
 

8.2. The proposed receiving school, Ysgol Borthyn, is a school of the same faith 
designation which would allow existing pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr to continue to 
access faith based provision of the same designation and language medium.  

 
9. What consultations have been carried out with scrutiny and others? 

 
9.1. A formal consultation has been carried out in line with the requirements set 

out in the School Organisation Code. The findings of the formal consultation 
are set out within the formal consultation report (Appendix 2). 
 

10. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

Page 214



 

10.1. The costs around the consultation process have been contained within 
existing resources. The delay in implementation of the proposal has resulted 
in a pressure that is being funded within existing resources for 2015/16. A 
permanent solution may be required depending on Cabinet’s consideration of 
the outcome of the Statutory Notice period recommended in this report. 
 

11. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

11.1. There is strong possibility that the proposal could result in adverse publicity 
for the Council. To minimise this risk the Council will seek to ensure clear 
communication with all stakeholders. 
 

12. Power to make the decision  
 

12.1. School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. 
 

12.2. Modernising Education Policy Framework (approved by Cabinet January 
2009). 

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

Proposal to establish a Federation and change the legal status of 

Ysgol Llanbedr from Voluntary Controlled to Voluntary Aided 

 

1. Background 
 
1.1. The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 requires 

consultation with the appropriate religious body for 28 days before any 
decision is made to proceed to formal consultation. Consultation with the St 
Asaph Church in Wales Diocese took place between the 20th April and the 
18th May.  During this time representatives of the Governing Body and the 
Diocesan of St Asaph have met informally with Cabinet Members during this 
period of consultation to present their views on the future of Ysgol Llanbedr.   
 

1.2. Their proposal was to suspend the proposed consultation to close Ysgol 
Llanbedr to allow the St Asaph Diocesan Board of Statutory Education to 
secure a federation partner for Ysgol Llanbedr VC School and commence the 
consultation to change status from Voluntary Controlled to Voluntary Aided.   

 
1.3. As part of the proposal there was a commitment to review the future of the 

school in May 2018 and if the Diocesan have not achieved a successful 
federation, changed status and reduced surplus places to within 10% of 
extended capacity, the Diocese will work with the Authority to commence 
further consultation on closure. 

 

1.4. A timeline of dialogue is provided in the table below; 
 
 

Date Meeting / Event Outcome 

17/02/2015 Cabinet Meeting Report regarding Ministers decision; Cabinet noted 
content of Minister letter and agreed for officers to 
commence consultation with the Diocese of St Asaph 
regarding the future of Ysgol Llanbedr and consideration 
would be given to alternative proposals.  

27/03/2015 Meeting with 
Diocese   

Meeting with officers and Diocese officers prior to 28 day 
consultation. 

20/04/2015-
18th of May 
2015 

Diocese 
Consultation 

Draft consultation document issued to the Diocese. 

11/05/2015 Cabinet Briefing The Diocese and Governing Body were invited to attend a 
pre-cabinet meeting to discuss federation as an 
alternative option. It was proposed by the Diocese and 
Governing Body that the report for Cabinet regarding 
closure should be suspended whilst the Diocese secure a 
federation partner for Ysgol Llanbedr and commence a 
consultation to change status. Additionally, should a 

Page 217



federation be unsuccessful and surplus places at Ysgol 
Llanbedr were not reduced to within 10% of the extended 
capacity they would work with the authority to consult on 
closure.   

17/05/2015 Correspondence 
with Diocese 
from Lead 
Member  

Following the pre-cabinet meeting the lead member 
stated he did not feel the information presented was 
sufficient to suspend the report for closure. Should a 
consultation period be approved it would allow time for 
further work to be undertaken regarding the option to 
federate which would include confirmation of the school 
willing to federate, the revenue and capital savings likely 
to occur through federation and in adopting voluntary 
aided status, the evidence of demand for English medium 
faith education in the Ruthin area to justify retaining Ysgol 
Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn, including reference to pupil 
projections and additional housing together with how this 
demand would impact on surplus places. 

02/06/2015 June 2015 
Cabinet  

Report to Cabinet seeking approval to commence a 
formal consultation regarding the proposed closure of 
Ysgol Llanbedr.  

11/06/2015 Meeting with 
CEO and 
Diocese Director 
of Education 
and Lifelong 
Learning  

Meeting between CEO and the Diocese Director of 
Education and Lifelong Learning following the Cabinet 
decision to consult on closure. Draft proposal for 
federation with Ysgol Trefnant was discussed. It was left 
with the diocese to communicate this option with 
Governors and other relevant stakeholders. Identifying 
the potential partner enabled officers to start a more 
detailed evaluation of federation. 

16/06/2015-
28/07/2015 

Formal 
Consultation 
Period 

Formal consultation period regarding the proposal to 
close Ysgol Llanbedr and transfer existing pupils to Ysgol 
Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference 
undertaken. Responses submitted by both the Diocese 
and Governing Body containing information regarding 
benefits of federation. 

01/07/2015 Ysgol Trefnant 
Governing Body 
Meeting with 
Head of CES 

Head of Customers and Education Support met with the 
Governing Body of Ysgol Trefnant to discuss federation.  

11/09/2015  Meeting with the 
Diocese  

Meeting held with officers and the Diocese regarding 
progress around federation. This included a further 
discussion about Ysgol Trefnant being a potential partner 
for federation. At the request of the Diocese the Cabinet 
meeting to be held in September was deferred until 
October to allow the Diocese and schools more time to 
preprare the business case and communicate the 
intention to federate with parents.  

09/10/2015 Meeting with 
local member, 
head teacher 
and Chair of 
Governors 
(Ysgol 
Llanbedr).  
 

School representatives met with officers and the lead 
member to discuss the benefits of federation with Ysgol 
Trefnant. Assurance was received that the business case 
would be available for Cabinet on the 27th of October. 
This was specifically in relation to Ysgol Trefnant and in 
addition to the evaluation of general federation that had 
been undertaken since the start of the consultation 
period.  

Page 218



11/10/2015 Email from 
Ysgol Llanbedr 
Chair of 
Governors.  

Email from Ysgol Llanbedr Chair of Governors (Appendix 
1 (B)) describing the process they had been through over 
the last 5 months in evaluating federation with Ysgol 
Trefnant.  

12/10/2015 Email from 
Ysgol Trefnant 
Chair of 
Governors 

Email from Chair of Governors confirming “that the 
Governing Body at Ysgol Trefnant would like to proceed 
with working more collaboratively with Ysgol Llanbedr.” 
Minuted on the 8th of October 2015 and to ratified at the 
next full meeting at the 17th of November 2015. 
 

14/10/2015 Email from 
Headteacher of 
Ysgol Trefnant. 

Email containing the benefit appraisal forfederation from 
Ysgol Trefnant. Majority of these points have been 
considered in this evaluation to date (see appendix 1 (C)).  

 
2. Local Authority Response regarding Federation  

 
2.1 Federation was considered by the authority during the formative stages, an 

appraisal of all options considered is displayed in the table below; 

 

Option Advantages Disadvantages 

Option 1: Status Quo Ysgol Llanbedr DC would 
remain open. 

Surplus places would 

remain an issue in the area 

and within Ysgol Llanbedr. 

Would not result in any 

saving for the authority. 

This option would not lead 

to a more balanced 

distribution of pupil led 

funding. 

This option would not lead 

to greater efficiency and 

effectiveness of the school 

estate.  

In the short to mid-term 
capital investment would be 
required. 

Option 2: 
Federation/Amalgamation 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC would 
remain open. 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC would 
have a permanent 
Headteacher (split across 
two sites). This would 
provide an opportunity to 
strengthen leadership and 
management and a result in 
a Headteacher salary saving.  

Surplus places would 
remain- pupil forecasts 
suggest a surplus of 35.7% 
across English medium 
faith based provision in the 
Ruthin area in 2017. 

There would still be a 
requirement to finance and 
maintain two school 
buildings and staffing 

Page 219



There would be greater 
opportunity to share resource 
than the status quo and 
share best practice and staff 
expertise would be broader.  
 

bodies (excluding 
Headship). 

There may be increased 
staffing costs due to 
additional staff 
requirements as a 
consequence of revised 
leadership and 
management structures. 

Pupils would remain in 
mixed age cohorts in Ysgol 
Llanbedr DC- although 
some opportunities would 
be presented to undertake 
activities with pupils of a 
federated partner. 

Would not result in any 
significant revenue savings 
for the council other than a 
headship saving.  

This option would not lead 
to a more balanced 
distribution of pupil led 
funding. 

 
This option would not lead 
to greater efficiency and 
effectiveness of the school 
estate. 

Option 3: Change of 
Status 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC would 
remain open. 

Some elements of 
maintenance and 
administrative costs 
(admissions) would be 
transferred to the Diocese. 
 

This option would not 
address surplus places. 

Although some funding of 
the school would be 
alleviated some revenue 
would still be required. 

This option would not lead 
to a more balanced 
distribution of pupil led 
funding. 

 
This option would not lead 
to greater efficiency and 
effectiveness of the school 
estate. 

Option 4: Federation & 
Change of Status 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC would 
remain open. 

Some elements of 
maintenance and 
administrative costs 

This option would not 
address surplus places at 
Ysgol Llanbedr or in the 
wider area. 

Although some funding of 

Page 220



(admissions) would be 
transferred to the Diocese. 

Ysgol Llanbedr would have a 
permanent Headteacher 
(split across two school 
sites). This would provide an 
opportunity to strengthen 
leadership and management 
and a result in a 
Headteacher salary saving. 

There would be greater 
opportunity to share resource 
than the status quo and 
share best practice and staff 
expertise would be broader.  
 

the school would be 
alleviated some revenue 
would still be required. 

There may be increased 
staffing costs due to 
additional staff 
requirements as a 
consequence of revised 
leadership and 
management structures. 

This option would not lead 
to a more balanced 
distribution of pupil led 
funding. 

 
This option would not lead 
to greater efficiency and 
effectiveness of the school 
estate. 

Option 5: Extend Ysgol 
Llanbedr  

This option would result in 
21st century learning facilities 
for Ysgol Llanbedr DC. 

Would enable the removal of 
the mobile accommodation. 
 

This option would not 
address surplus places. 
This option may lead to an 
increase in surplus places 
in the mid to long-term 
resulting in wider school 
organisation proposals for 
the area. 

This option would require a 
significant capital 
investment. 

This option would not lead 
to a more balanced 
distribution of pupil led 
funding. 

 
This option would not lead 
to greater efficiency and 
effectiveness of the school 
estate. 

Option 6: Closure 
Continuity would be provided 
for pupils in a Category 5 
faith based provision within 
2.2 miles from the current 
school site. Pupils would be 
able to access at least an 
equivalent standard of 
education in a number of 
schools within the area. 

Surplus places within the 
Ruthin area would be 

Primary educational 
provision within the village 
of Llanbedr DC would 
cease. 

There would be no capital 
receipt for the authority as 
the school building and site 
is held in Trust.  

Staff may be redeployed or 
made redundant. 

Page 221



reduced. 

A revenue saving of £126k 
would be realised, a further 
revenue saving of £4,656 
would also be realised on 
removal of the mobile 
accommodation. 

Per pupil funding would 
become more evenly 
distributed across the area 
and would impact more 
widely across the school 
estate. 

Resources could be 
implemented more efficiently 
and effectively to maintain 
and strengthen educational 
improvement in the Ruthin 
area.  

No capital investment 
required. 
 

 
Should all pupils transfer to 
Ysgol Borthyn 15 pupils 
would be entitled to home 
to school transport which 
may lead to an approximate 
transport cost of £26,600. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 222



 

INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

 

 

Page 223



3. Assessment of the Proposed Benefits submitted by Ysgol Llandedr / Ysgol Trefnant and the Diocese 
 

3.1. As part of the response to the formal consultation, the Diocese of St Asaph and Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr have 
submitted a proposal to Federate Ysgol Llanbedr DC with Ysgol Trefnant VA and change the legal status from Voluntary 
Controlled to Voluntary Aided. The potential federation partner was made known to the authority in June which enabled 
officers started to evaluating this option alongside federation in general. 
 

3.2. The following assessment has been made of the proposed benefits. In particular the extent to which they would be achieved 
via federation and whether the benefits would be realised via alternative options such as closure of Ysgol Llanbedr or the 
retention of the school; 
 

Identified Benefit Federation Closure  Status Quo 

Ysgol Llanbedr would be 
retained 

School would remain open. School would close. School would remain 
open. 

Headteacher salary saving 
would be realised 

Leadership and Management would be shared with an 
alternative school.  The extent of the saving cannot be 
identified without a named partner (saving would be 
determined by payscale).   
 
Whilst the loss of a headteacher would reduce the 
overall staffing costs there are additional costs arising 
to cover for the loss of teaching commitment and cover 
whilst the Headteacher is with the federated partner. 
These costs cannot be quantified at this stage.  The 
Diocesan response suggests a saving in the region of 
£12,000 per annum may be generated and retained by 
the school. 
 
Additionally there is a lump sum allocation of £3k per 
individual school as part of a federated model. This is to 
support the difficulties inherent in managing 2 sites from 
an administration perspective. The schools still get 
funded as 2 schools but are managed by one Head 
Teacher and one Governing Body. This £6k would be 
an additional cost which would come from the overall 

The proposal would result in the direct saving of 
a headteacher salary.   

 
This saving amongst other savings would be 
used to reinvest in the Modernising Education 
Programme to fund improvements to the school 
estate and would be directed more efficiently to 
the benefit of all pupils in the area. 

All costs for 
leadership and 
management would 
remain with the school 
and no cost savings 
would occur. 

P
age 224



schools budget quantum. 
 
Further information regarding the funding can be found 
via the following link: 
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-
council/budgets-and-finance/school-budgets-and-
finance/school-funding-formula.aspx  

It would address the 
temporary nature of 
leadership at Ysgol 
Llanbedr. Federation 
would also provide a 
development opportunity 
for a Headteacher 

The requirement for a separate Headteacher for Ysgol 
Llanbedr would be removed.  Federation provides 
additional responsibilities for any Headteacher 
undertaking this role. 

The requirement for a separate Headteacher for 
Ysgol Llanbedr would be removed. 

A new permanent 
Headteacher would 
need to be recruited. 

Federation would allow for 
greater opportunity to 
share resource, best 
practice and staff expertise 
providing pupils with 
access to a greater pool of 
staff. 

The option of federation would   allow for a larger pool 
of staff and for staff at both sites to share best practice. 
Operationally this would be a split site arrangement and 
agreement would be required from existing staff to 
travel between federated schools The schools are 
located approximately 10.5miles apart.  

The option of closure would clearly impact on 
staff opportunities at Ysgol Llanbedr.  
Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr would realise the 
same learning and educational benefits for 
pupils who would have access to a broader 
compliment of staff, curriculum leads and 
established senior and middle management 
teams at Ysgol Borthyn. 

Would provide no 
opportunity for 
improved practices. 

A change in status to 
Voluntary Aided would 
result in savings for the 
local authority as capital 
works would be absorbed 
by the Diocese, Governing 
Body and Welsh 
Government capital grant 
scheme 

A saving would occur.  The financial extent of the 
saving long term is difficult to quantify.  Accessing such 
resources would be dependent upon 15% contribution 
from Church in Wales and / or Governing Body. 

Closure would address the maintenance 
backlog at the school leading to more efficient 
management of the school estate.   

No savings would 
occur and the 
maintenance backlog 
at the school would 
likely increase. 

VA status would result in 
the Governing Body 
controlling admissions and 
employing staff resulting in 
a saving to the local 

This would create an additional burden for the school to 
be absorbed within their delegated budget. 

Any saving to the local authority would be 
negligible.  The Council administers the 
admissions process for 16,000 pupils.  The % of 
these pupils who attend Ysgol Llanbedr would 
be 0.3% and therefore this change would make 

This would create an 
additional burden for 
the school to be 
absorbed within their 
delegated budget 

P
age 225

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/budgets-and-finance/school-budgets-and-finance/school-funding-formula.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/budgets-and-finance/school-budgets-and-finance/school-funding-formula.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/budgets-and-finance/school-budgets-and-finance/school-funding-formula.aspx


authority no real saving to the authority. 

The skills, experience and 
expertise of the current 
members of the Governing 
Bodies. 

The skills, experience and expertise of the existing 
members of both Governing Bodies could transfer to 
the new Governing Body. As a new Federated 
Governing Body would need to be formed, new 
Governors could also be appointed resulting in a 
change of skills and experience and expertise. 

School would close. Governing Body would 
cease to exist. 

School would remain 
open. No impact on 
Governing Body. 

Federation will future proof 
two similar schools.  

Federation will address the leadership of Ysgol 
Llanbedr, but doesn’t guarantee that surplus places will 
be reduced. 

Reduces surplus places. Surplus places would 
remain. 

Interaction where needed 
with larger peer groups. 

As stated by the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr: 
“Both governing bodies have been clear from the start 
that federation is not about moving pupils between 
schools to deliver the core curriculum instead it is to 
drive up the already good standards at both schools”. 

Pupils would be located in schools with larger 
peer groups. 

No impact on the size 
of peer groups. 

 

 

3.3. There are other benefits raised by the Governing Bodies in appendix 1 (A) and 1 (C) which have not been included in the 
above table including collaboration with other schools and organisations,  provision of wrap around care, use of Welsh 
language and improving communication. The Authority considers these benefits are independent of the federation model 
and could be implemented regardless of the proposal. 
 

3.4. In summary many of the benefits of Federation would also be achieved via the option of closure.  In some instances the 
financial savings are greater via closure.  The analysis from the Diocese and the Governing Body is that the option that 
produces the least overall benefits is the status quo and the option of keeping the school open as a single entity. 

P
age 226



4. Additional Issues to Consider 
 
4.1. As part of the review a number of options in relation to Ysgol Llanbedr were 

explored. The advantages and disadvantages of these options were provided 
within the formal consultation document issued June 2015. The Council 
broadly agrees that Federation would realise some benefits outlined by the 
Diocese and Governing Body, however a number of other issues would still 
remain and are not sufficiently addressed by Federation such as surplus 
places, fairer and more equitable distribution of pupil funding and greater 
effectiveness and efficiency of the school estate.  
 

4.2. In Federated arrangements, schools are managed by a single governing 
body and a single Headteacher. This, as stated by the Diocese and 
governing body in their response and by the local authority within the formal 
consultation document, allows for a salary saving and there are potential 
teaching, learning benefits and educational experience enhancement for 
pupils. Options for sharing best practice and the pooling of resources can be 
achieved in a Federated model. However, these benefits can also be 
achieved at a single site school. Ysgol Borthyn, the proposed alternative 
school, has a broad compliment of staff with an established senior leadership 
and middle management teams.   

 
4.3. In a Federated arrangement Ysgol Llanbedr will still remain a small school; 

surplus capacity will remain and is likely to increase as of September 2016 
due to a revised capacity assessment at the request of the school and 
governing body. Projected pupil numbers supplied by the Diocese and 
Governing Body are similar to that of the authority, it is acknowledged there 
will be an increase in pupils numbers however this is not a general increase 
across the Ruthin area. Birth rates and pupil numbers have remained static 
for a number of years. There is currently a surplus within the faith provision in 
the Ruthin area of 71 pupil places equating to 22.9% of the overall capacity. 
Within the wider English medium sector there are a further 133 surplus 
places equating to 26.7% of the overall capacity as of September 2015. In 
total there are 204 surplus places equating to 25.3% of the overall capacity. 

 
4.4. There would be no significant revenue savings as the head teacher’s salary 

is left in the school budget to compensate for other pressures arising from 
federation. In addition there is a £3k addition per school to meet the demands 
of federation. There is potential for the Church in Wales to contribute to the 
capital costs for the school but there has been no commitment made in any 
submission. A change in status to Voluntary Aided would transfer some 
financial liability from the authority, however a Federated model would still 
require two school buildings and sites to be maintained. 

 
4.5. Federated schools continue to be funded as individual schools, receiving 

their budgets as legal separate entities. Federation does not address the 
significant costs in maintaining small schools with surplus places.  Federation 
does not lead to a more equitable distribution of per pupil funding. Federation 
does not lead to a reinvestment into the overall school budget quantum.  

 

Page 227



4.6. Per pupil costs, which will decrease from the current level as pupil numbers 
increase (as demonstrated by the pupil forecasts within the formal 
consultation document), will still remain above average. Federation does not 
always equate to a more equitable funding arrangement between mainstream 
schools. In some circumstances, for example where schools are located 
away from a general population mass or closure would result in excessive 
travel time over the recommended 45 minute guidelines issued by the Welsh 
Government, Federation is the preferred option although it may not deliver 
financial efficiencies in all cases.  

 
4.7. As demonstrated by the Diocese and governing body there are cost savings 

for the Governing Body that can materialise from Federation and from a 
change in status to Voluntary Aided. However Ysgol Llanbedr would remain a 
small school and pupil forecasts demonstrate surplus places will remain. The 
efficiencies and economies of scale that can be achieved by transferring 
pupils to Ysgol Borthyn with a sustainable number of pupils, single 
governance and established leadership structures will provide better use of 
resource and provide pupils with a broad range of learning and development 
experiences and opportunities.  

 

4.8. Consideration is also required of the potential risks to Ysgol Trefnant should 
the school proceed towards seeking a formal federation.  Any proposal would 
need to be clear why federation would be in the best interests of learners. 
Potential benefits of shared resources may not be realised as a consequence 
of the distance between both schools and the proposals would impact on 
leadership of the school. There is a potential risk that progression of this 
proposal may destabilise what is seen as a stable school.  

 

 
5. Conclusion  

 
5.1. In the absence of an agreed joint staffing structure named federation partner 

it is difficult to quantify the actual level of savings that would be realised.  

However, the authority remain of the view that whilst federation can realise a 

number of benefits the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr would also allow for 

these benefits to be realised whilst also addressing wider issues such as 

surplus places, more equitable distribution of per pupil funding and greater 

efficiency and effectiveness of the school estate. If closure is agreed the 

change in school for pupils could give them access to a number of the 

learning benefits such as access to a broader compliment of teaching staff, 

curriculum leads and an established senior leadership and middle 

management team. 

 

5.2. The analysis from the Diocese and the Governing Body is that the option that 

produces the least overall benefits is the status quo and the option of keeping 

the school open as a single entity. 

 

 

Page 228



 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 (A) Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr 

 

Improving position at Ysgol Llanbedr 
 
Pupil numbers: 
Pupil numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr have grown for the last two years, despite being under 
threat of closure throughout this time, and this healthy growth is predicted by both council 
and the school to continue and actually increase. In fact the growth of Ysgol Llanbedr is 
predicted to be better than any of the other English medium schools in the area. 
Cost per pupil: 
Currently the cost per pupil at Ysgol Llanbedr is over £8000, however this is predicted to fall 
to nearly £5000 within two years using the council predicted pupil numbers. This predicted 
figure puts Ysgol Llanbedr very close to the Ruthin area average cost per pupil. If, as 
expected, pupil numbers increase faster than predicted then the cost per pupil will come 
down even quicker. 
 
Benefits of Federation between Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Trefnant 
 
In January 2015 the governing body at Ysgol Llanbedr reviewed the school’s position 
alongside changes in thdelivery of the curriculum in primary education. Whilst agreeing that 
the school is viable in its own right thegoverning body opted to look for a school to become a 
federation partner, in line with Welsh Assembly Government guidance. Maintaining rural 
schools in their communities, through federation, is a Welsh policy as it is recognised that 
the administrative burden of running a school is increasing. After careful consideration of 
possible federation partners Ysgol Llanbedr approached Ysgol Trefnant. Over 6 months a 
thorough evaluation of the federation proposal has been carried out. The plan is to start with 
collaborative working as soon as possible, realistically January at the earliest, whilst the 
federation paperwork and process is completed. The benefits identified are outlined below. 
For parents and pupils: 
o Schools within the federation will not lose their individual identity though they will share a 
singlegoverning body. 
o The schools will retain their separate legal status and have their own budget allocations 
and will besubject to their own Estyn Inspection. 
o Both schools have well-developed and varied curriculum and programme of extra-
curricular activities; sharing approaches will further enrich the education for the pupils. 
o Ysgol Trefnant is a good, stable school, with strong long term leadership. Ysgol Llanbedr, 
and the education provided within, will benefit from the strategic leadership already in place 
at Ysgol Trefnant. 
o Both schools have strong PTFAs, with committed teams to fund raise for equipment, trips 
and activities. 

Page 229



o Federation will lead to school trips being planned together resulting in savings through 
shared transport costs. 
o Federation will further develop opportunities for pupils to broaden their experiences of 
working with pupils from other schools (Recently Ysgol Llanbedr have worked with Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn, Glan Gele, Rhewl & Bro Famau). 
o Both schools will be able to maintain a small school feel, but with big school resources. 
o Ysgol Llanbedr has excellent relationship with local press to raise profile and market 
school which Ysgol Trefnant can build on. 
o Both schools have excellent pastoral care and a nurturing Christian ethos, as they are run 
in a similar manner already. 
o Both schools have strong links with the local community; by federating the community 
becomes wider with more opportunity for engagement. 
o Ysgol Llanbedr has excellent links with the community council, county councillors, AM’s 
and MP’s and can help Ysgol Trefnant improve the links as required. 
o Ysgol Llanbedr has effective communication methods with parents and is sharing these 
with Ysgol Trefnant. 
o Both schools have wrap around care. Munchkins@Ysgol Llanbedr also offers a holiday 
club, 8am-6pm for ages 2-11. 
o Both schools run lunch time and after school clubs, which is further enrichment for pupils 
through sports, gardening and art. Federation will lead to more sharing of ideas between 
teachers and teaching assistants to develop these activities. At Ysgol Llanbedr we are 
interested in the different activities at after school club in Ysgol Trefnant. 
o Both schools have well established activities with their respective Church, federation will 
develop these further. 
For Staff: 
o Federation will provide both school with a greater pool of resources, wider staff expertise 
and well informed governing body to ensure high quality teaching and learning for all 
students in the federation. 
o Federation between these two schools with similar approaches to teaching and leadership 
from motivated staff members and founded on a clear vision focused of improving student 
outcomes will drive good standards up further. 
o The Ysgol Trefnant head teacher will run both schools allowing her to focus on school 
strategy and managing the school and teaching staff, without having to juggle a teaching 
commitment. 
o Federation provides a development opportunity for head teacher at Ysgol Trefnant, as it 
allows her to stay in post and expand role rather than feel need to progress to bigger school. 
o Recruitment and retention of a good head teacher becomes more likely as the role has 
greater responsibilities, which can be more attractive than teaching commitment. 
o Federation means that there are development opportunities for deputy heads in both 
schools. 
o Federation provides development opportunities for teachers & teaching assistants at both 
schools to mentor, observe other lessons and team teaching. Working with other teachers 
delivering the curriculum to the same age group is an excellent opportunity for the teachers 
in both schools. 
o Federation provides the opportunity for professional development for teachers as they are 
able to become subject specialist across two schools rather than one. 
o Federation further facilitates sharing of good practice and encourages schools to be more 
outward looking, the impact being improved standards of teaching and learning outcomes for 
pupils. 
o Both schools have enthusiastic, stable staff with a wide range of knowledge and skills. 
Allowing these staff to work together to plan and resource lessons will improve results 
across both schools. 
o Both schools use a similar level of incidental welsh in place throughout. 
o Both schools have established MAT programmes, federation will allow a joined up 
approach to be developed to benefit those pupils identified as More Able and Talented. 

Page 230



o Both schools can support each other on the provision for pupils with Additional Learning 
Needs, sharing ideas, practices, skills and resources to ensure these pupils are able to 
develop to their best ability. 
o Both schools will be able to benefit from joined up approaches to achieve awards such as 
Eco or healthy schools. 
For Governing body: 
o Ysgol Trefnant has a long established governing body with a strong track record in running 
a successful school. This experience will be important in forming the federation. 
o Ysgol Llanbedr has a fully engaged governing body, which acts as a critical friend and 
confidently challenges the school. Merging the governing bodies will ensure this continues. 
o Good financial management, both schools are projected to be in surplus for the next three 
years.Federating will further strengthen this financial position. 
o The governing body of both schools have high aspirations for the students, focusing on the 
quality of leadership and teaching and the proven impact this has on pupil outcomes is the 
most important factor. Already having this shared ethos will make the federation easier to 
manage. 
o Thorough understanding of local and national government education policies and 
literature. 
o Ysgol Llanbedr has a number of governors with expertise in education (outside of Ysgol 
Llanbedr) and from other local authorities. Other members work in different professions 
bringing a range of skills, resulting in a professional governing body. These skills are also in 
place on the Ysgol Trefnant governing body so combining the governing bodies will result in 
a strong and effective team. 
o Fluent Welsh speaking members of the governing body ensures day to day Welsh is used 
in both schools. 
Future proofing: 
o The two schools have different catchment areas so will not compete for pupils. 
o Both schools attract pupils from outside their villages; improving standards further at the 
schools will ensure the schools continue to be popular, desirable schools. 
o Strong marketing and pupil recruitment campaign attracted pupils resulting in 
oversubscription for 
Nursery 2014 & Reception 2015. 
o Plans in place for attracting future pupils to see numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr return to 
capacity. 
o Good working relationship with local Assembly members and members of parliament. 
o Federation will preserve two village schools in the Vale of Clwyd. 
o Job security for all staff due to more secure school arrangements. 
o Ongoing provision of faith schools in the diocese. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page 231



  

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 (B) 

Email received from the Chair of Governors Ysgol Llanbedr 

From:  

Date: 11 October 2015 22:23:36 BST 

To: "hugh.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk" <hugh.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "julian.thompson-

hill@denbighshire.gov.uk" <julian.thompson-

hill@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "eryl.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk" 

<eryl.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "bobby.feeley@denbighshire.gov.uk" 

<bobby.feeley@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "hugh.irving@denbighshire.gov.uk" 

<hugh.irving@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "huw.jones@denbighshire.gov.uk" 

<huw.jones@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "barbara.smith@denbighshire.gov.uk" 

<barbara.smith@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "david.smith@denbighshire.gov.uk" 

<david.smith@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "mohammed.mehmet@denbighshire.gov.uk" 

<mohammed.mehmet@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  Jackie Walley 

<jackie.walley@denbighshire.gov.uk>,  "Karen I. Evans" <karen.i.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk> 

Cc: "Huw O. Williams" <huw.o.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk>,   

Subject: Cabinet briefing - Ysgol Llanbedr 

Reply-To:  

Dear Cabinet members and modernising education team, 

 

I am delighted to inform you that Ysgol Llanbedr has secured a federation partner in 

Ysgol Trefnant. The governing body at Ysgol Trefnant voted in favour of supporting 

federation on Thursday evening. 

 

The process to get to this point has been very thorough lasting over 5 months:  

- Representatives from the two governing bodies have met on several occasions.  

- The governing bodies have visited both schools to fully understand the similarities 

between them and understand would be involved in federating the schools. 

- Both governing bodies have either visited or spoken to other federated schools to see 

first hand the pros and cons of federation. 

Page 232

mailto:hugh.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:hugh.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:julian.thompson-hill@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:julian.thompson-hill@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:julian.thompson-hill@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:julian.thompson-hill@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:eryl.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:eryl.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:bobby.feeley@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:bobby.feeley@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:hugh.irving@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:hugh.irving@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:huw.jones@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:huw.jones@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:barbara.smith@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:barbara.smith@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:david.smith@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:david.smith@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:mohammed.mehmet@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:mohammed.mehmet@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:jackie.walley@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:karen.i.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:huw.o.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk


- Both governing bodies have worked with the education team at the Diocese of St 

Asaph around how federation would work between the two schools. 

- Ysgol Trefnant held discussions with representatives from the modernising education 

team to understand the council position on federation. 

 

Throughout all the discussions the focus has been on how the current and future pupils 

at the two schools would benefit from a federation between the schools. Both governing 

bodies have been clear from the start that federation is not about moving pupils between 

schools to deliver the core curriculum instead it is to drive up the already good standards 

at both schools. During the visits and discussions it has become clear that the leadership 

teams at both schools are already aligned in how to deliver a good primary education, 

whilst running successful schools with a family ethos and robust financial management. 

 

The governing bodies have carried out a thorough appraisal of the benefits to both 

schools that could be achieved by federating the schools. Both governing bodies agree 

that federating the two schools is the right way forward for both schools therefore we 

ask that the council allow this federation to be pursued. 

 

Whilst we are happy for this information to be discussed at the cabinet briefing we 

request that it remains confidential outside of the cabinet briefing for the rest of this 

week whilst both schools conduct communications with the families at the schools. 

 

Kind regards 

Redacted 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 233



 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 (C) Governing Body of Ysgol Trefnant 

Benefit Appraisal for 

Ysgol Trefnant VA federating with Ysgol Llanbedr  

October 2015 

 Ysgol Llanbedr is a similar church school to us with good standards and a committed and high 

performing governing body which is not in our catchment area, so we are not in direct competition. 
 

 Ysgol Llanbedr is a similar school to Ysgol Trefnant situated in a rural village which is much sought 

after by parents. 
 

 One management of the two schools  would revolve around further improving standards within the 

schools.   
 

 There will be more support and training for the teaching staff cumulatively this will, we feel, raise 

the standard of education within both schools. 

 

 The Head will focus on the strategy and management of the schools eg monitoring, marking etc  

and developing that role. 
 

 We will share best practice and quality learning experiences. 
 

 We will share resources; making the most of what is available and of teaching time. 
 

 Interaction where needed with larger peer groups. 
 

 A collaborative approach to new initiatives. 
 

 Increased and wider opportunities for friendship, physical and cultural activities. 
 

 Learn from each other’s PTFA’s and parent expertise. 
 

 Support each other in developing our Christian ethos. 
 

 Potential economies of scale with projects/procurement. 
 

 Developing pupil friendship groups prior to high school (some pupils go to Ysgol Brynhyfryd). 
 

 Share cost of trips. 
 

 Join together for fund raising activities. 

Page 234



 

 To be able form community group as well as school groups for the Urdd competitions such as 
‘Adran’. 

 

 Provision of career development opportunities for staff. 
 

 Widen our list of community contacts. 
 

 Expertise of Governing bodies that can support each other. 
 

 Potential for parents to use holiday club. 
 

 Sharing of staff expertise and specialisms. 

Appendix 1 (D) 

Email received from the Chair of Governors Ysgol Trefnant 

-----Original Message----- 
From:  
Sent: 12 October 2015 12:34 
To: Jackie Walley 
Subject: Ysgol Trefnant 
 
Dear Jackie 
 
I am contacting you to confirm that the Governing Body at Ysgol Trefnant would like to proceed with 
working more collaboratively with Ysgol Llanbedr. 
 
With all good wishes. 
 
Chair of Governors 
 

 

Page 235



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 

 

Appendix 2 

FORMAL CONSULTATION REPORT 

 

 

Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

Dyffryn Clwyd (Voluntary Controlled, 

Church in Wales- Diocese of St. Asaph) 

as of the 31st of August 2016 with pupils 

transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin 

subject to parental preference 
 

OCTOBER 2015 
 

 

 

Should you require a copy of this report in hard copy please email 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk with your name and postal 

address. Please indicate whether you would like to receive the document in 

Welsh, English or both. 

 

 

 

Page 237

mailto:modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk


 

2 
 

 

Table of Contents 

 

Foreword 

 

P.3 

Introduction 

 

P.4 

Consultation with the Diocese of St. Asaph 

 

P.4-5 

Formal Consultation  

 

P.5 

Pupil Consultation Arrangements 

 

P.5-6 

Responses to the Formal Consultation 

 

P.6 

Response from Estyn 

 

P.6-9 

Appendix A 

 

P.10-17 

Appendix B 

 

P.18 

Appendix C 

 

P.19-22 

Appendix D 

 

P.23-37 

Appendix E 

 

P.38-61 

Appendix F 

 

P.62-113 

Appendix F (i) 

 

P.114-117 

Appendix G  

 

P.118-131 

Appendix H 

 

P.132-134 

 

 

Page 238



 

3 
 

 

Foreword- Reviewing Our Schools  
Denbighshire County Council {DCC} has a responsibility to periodically review 

our schools to make sure that we are providing the best education for our 

pupils, so that they can achieve their full potential. We need to review our 

school provision to ensure; 

 Make sure our education provision is of high quality, and is sustainable 

in the long term; 

 Improve the quality of school buildings and facilities; 

 Provide the right number of school places, of the right type, in the right 

locations. 

In Denbighshire we are carrying out a series of areas reviews. This means we 

are looking at groups of schools in areas of the County to see if we can 

improve the delivery of education in each area. This could include closing or 

merging schools, or opening new schools. We review schools on an area by 

area basis to make sure that when we make changes to school organisation, 

we take into account any potential impact on other schools nearby. 

The Ruthin area review of primary educational provision began in 2013. The 

Ruthin area included 11 schools, challenges facing primary educational 

provision in the Ruthin area include; 

 Surplus places; 

 Condition and suitability of school sites and facilities; 

 Provision of mobile classrooms; 

 School estate efficiency and sustainability. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 239



 

4 
 

 

1.     Introduction  

 

1.1.     Denbighshire County Council {DCC} has completed a period of consultation 

regarding the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC as of the 31st of August 

2016 with existing pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to 

parental preference. 

 

1.2.     The consultation took place between the 16th of June 2015 and the 28th of 

July 2015, inclusive. The consultation was undertaken in accordance with the 

School Organisation Code {‘the Code’}. Following a period of formal 

consultation the Code requires us to publish a formal consultation report. In 

the report we have to; 

 

 Summarise each of the issues raised by consultees; 

 Respond to these issues by means of clarification, amendment to the 

proposal or rejection of these concerns, with supporting reasons; and 

 Set out Estyn’s view of the overall merits of the proposal. 

 

2.        Consultation with the Diocese of St. Asaph  

 

2.1. Where school organisation proposals relate to schools for which land and/or 

buildings are held on trust, or which have a designated religious character, 

the proposer must conduct consultation with the trustees and/or appropriate 

religious body before the consultation document is published. The proposer 

must then allow 28 days for receipt of comments before any decision is 

made to proceed to formal consultation.  

 

2.2. In February 2015, Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet of elected 

members agreed to commence a period of consultation with the Diocese of 

St. Asaph regarding Ysgol Llanbedr DC. This took place between the 20th of 

April 2015 and the 18th of May 2015, inclusive. A draft consultation document 

was issued to the Diocese of St. Asaph. 

 

2.3. Representatives from both the Diocese of St. Asaph and the Governing Body 

of Ysgol Llanbedr DC attended a meeting were they proposed an 

alternative option, namely to federate Ysgol Llanbedr DC with another 

Church in Wales primary school and to change the legal status from 

Voluntary Controlled to Voluntary Aided. The Diocese of St. Asaph and the 

Governing Body requested that the Cabinet report proposing the 

commencement of a consultation regarding the closure of Ysgol Llanbedr 

be suspended for further work to be undertaken regarding federation and 

change of legal status. The written response from the Diocese of St. Asaph 

and Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr is contained within Appendix A of this 

Page 240



 

5 
 

report pack. Please note this is not the response to the formal consultation 

but to the pre-consultation with the appropriate religious body. 

2.4. It was decided that at the time there was not sufficient evidence to 

persuade members to suspend the report coming before Cabinet and this 

would be further deliberated at Cabinet in June 2015. The Diocese of St. 

Asaph and Governing Body have submitted the alternative proposal as part 

of their respective responses to the formal consultation.  

 

3.        Formal Consultation  

 

3.1. DCC Cabinet agreed to commence a period of formal consultation relating 

to the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC as of the 31st of August 2016 with 

existing pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

preference. 

 

3.2. The formal consultation took place from the 16th of June 2015 to the 28th of 

July 2015 inclusive. The formal consultation document was distributed in 

hardcopy and electronically to a total of 792 consultees. The full list of 

recipients can be found in Appendix B of this report pack. A hardcopy of the 

response form was attached to the consultation pack. 

 

3.3. All documentation, including the formal consultation document, community 

and Welsh language impact assessment, children and young peoples’ 

consultation an electronic version of the response form were published on 

the Denbighshire County Council website. These documents can be found 

here.  

 

3.4. The Code does not make it mandatory for the authority to facilitate meetings 

with stakeholders. The authority received no requests for such meetings prior 

to or during the consultation period. A community meeting was facilitated 

during the consultation period however this was not arranged by the local 

authority and no local authority officers were present. A postal and email 

address was provided within the formal consultation document for 

consultees should they have any questions regarding the proposal. Some 

consultees requested clarification on some elements of the proposal.  

 

4.        Pupil Consultation Arrangements 

 

4.1. A pupil consultation document was produced by the authority specifically 

for pupils who may be impacted by the proposal so that they could fully 

engage with the consultation process. The document was provided in 

hardcopy to Ysgol Llanbedr DC, Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street 

School, Ysgol Bro Famau and Ysgol Llanfair DC. The document was available 

bilingually.  

 

Page 241

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/consultations/closed-consultations.aspx


 

6 
 

 

4.2. Consultation sessions were arranged for the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr DC and 

Ysgol Borthyn as the proposed receiving school. The findings of the pupil 

consultation sessions and further information relating to arrangements for 

children and young people can be found in Appendix C of this formal 

consultation report pack.  

 

4.3. As part of the pupil consultation arrangements and age appropriate 

response form was also provided specifically for pupils. A total of 10 forms 

were received. The issues and comments submitted by pupils are also 

contained within Appendix C.  

 

5.        Responses to the Formal Consultation  

 

5.1. A total of 539 responses were received during the consultation period. 112 

responses were letter or emails and a further 427 responses were received via 

the standard response form. A response from the Diocese of St. Asaph and a 

response from the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr were also received.  

 

5.2. A summary of the issues raised and a response from the authority by type of 

response is set out with the appendices of this report pack, as follows; 

 Appendix D: Issues raised via letter and email 

 Appendix E: Issues raised via standard response form 

 Appendix F: Issues raised by the Diocese of St. Asaph 

 Appendix F (i): Covering letter  from the Diocese of St. Asaph 

 Appendix G: Issues raised by the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr  

 Appendix H: Estyns’ response 

 

6.        Response from Estyn 

 

6.1. Estyn, in considering the educational aspects of the proposal, concluded 

that the proposal would at least maintain the current standards of education 

in the area. Furthermore, Estyn commented that the authority had 

appropriately considered the impact of the proposal on the quality of pupil 

outcomes, provision and leadership and management. Estyn stated that the 

authority had provided a useful range of information relating to performance 

outcomes including local and national averages and benchmarked data 

relating to the family of schools. 

 

6.2. The Estyn response in full is set out in Appendix H of this formal consultation 

pack. The table below sets out the key points made by Estyn in their response 

alongside comment and/or clarification from the authority; 

 

 

 

Page 242



 

7 
 

 

 

 

Estyn Response/Point of Clarification  

It is Estyn’s opinion that the 

proposal is likely to at least 

maintain the current standards of 

education in the area. 

Noted. The authority welcomes this view. 

The proposer clearly outlines the 

perceived benefits of the 

proposal. These include the 

maintaining of the current 

standards and quality of 

education, the reduction of 

surplus places in the Ruthin area, 

a more balanced distribution of 

school funding, improved 

efficiency and effectiveness of 

the school estate and improving 

pupils’ access to improved 

school buildings, facilities and 

resources. 

Noted. The authority welcomes this view.  

The proposer clearly stated the 

perceived disadvantages of the 

proposal. These include the loss 

of English medium faith based 

education in the village of 

Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd. Pupils 

may be required to travel further 

to their nearest school and staff 

may be redeployed or made 

redundant. 

Noted. 

 

Clarification: A minority of pupils would be required to travel 

further to school however this would be within Welsh 

Government Guidelines for learner travel arrangements. Ysgol 

Borthyn is currently the nearest suitable school for the majority 

of pupils currently attending Ysgol Llanbedr. 15 pupils would 

be eligible for school transport should the proposal be 

implemented, however 4 of those pupils have home locations 

closer to Ysgol Borthyn than Ysgol Llanbedr. 

The proposer has appropriately 

considered transport issues 

including an analysis of costs. 

Transport to alternative schools 

will be provided in accordance 

with Denbighshire county 

councils transport policy. 

Noted. Should the current proposal be implemented the 

authority would work with individual families regarding 

transport arrangements. 

The proposer has considered 

alternatives to its proposal. These 

include maintaining the status 

quo, federation or amalgamation 

with another Church in Wales 

primary school, becoming a 

voluntary aided school and 

expansion of the current site and 

closure. The proposer has 

demonstrated clearly the 

advantages and disadvantages 

Noted. 

 

The Diocese of St. Asaph and the Governing Body of Ysgol 

Llanbedr have provided a response to the formal 

consultation regarding the option to federate Ysgol Llanbedr 

with another Church in Wales primary school and change the 

legal status from Voluntary Controlled to Voluntary Aided. A 

full response to the proposed alternative option can be found 

in appendix 1 of the Cabinet report papers.  

Page 243



 

8 
 

of each option and the reasons 

for the preferred option. 

The proposer has completed a 

useful Welsh language impact 

assessment. It concludes that the 

proposal will be neutral in terms 

of its impact on the Welsh 

language. The proposal provides 

parents with the option for English 

medium education for their 

children with Welsh taught as a 

second language. This is similar to 

the current position and pupil 

access. The current proposal 

provides access and maintains 

parental preference for 

language medium. 

The impact assessment included outcomes at the end of Key 

Stage 2 Second Language Welsh assessment for Ysgol 

Borthyn with 100% of pupils gaining the expected outcomes. 

There is no data available for 2014 for Ysgol Llanbedr 

however in 2013 this was 100% and for Ysgol Borthyn in the 

same year this was 90%. Both were above the local and 

national average. Should the proposal be implemented 

pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr would receive an equivalent 

standard in respect of Welsh language provision.  

 

Denbighshire County Council is committed to the Welsh 

Government’s aspiration of delivering ‘a sustained increase in 

both the number and percentage of people able to speak 

Welsh’ and recognise the importance of bilingualism in the 

21st century. DCC have adopted a long term aspiration that 

all children and young people in Denbighshire will leave full 

time education being competent and confident in using 

both Welsh and English. Outcome 5 of the Welsh in Education 

Strategic Plan aims to have ‘more learners with higher skills in 

Welsh’ including Welsh second language.    

The proposer has adequately 

considered the impact of the 

proposal on the quality of pupil 

outcomes, provision and 

leadership and management. 

The proposer has considered the 

outcomes of the most recent 

Estyn inspection reports and has 

provided the support categories 

and bands of both schools. 

Noted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

It {the proposer} has also 

provided a useful range of 

information relating to 

performance outcomes. These 

include local, national and the 

family of schools who have similar 

levels of free school meal 

entitlement. 

Noted, the authority welcomes this view. Contextualised data 

relating to Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn (percentiles of 

ALN and EAL) was also included within the formal 

consultation document.  

The consultation appropriately 

raises the challenges facing small 

primary schools in being able to 

implement leadership structures 

effectively. The proposer 

acknowledges that in small 

primary schools, many head 

teachers have a significant 

teaching responsibility. This limits 

the time they can devote to 

leading and managing and they 

Noted.  

Page 244



 

9 
 

have fewer opportunities to 

evaluate standards and to drive 

improvement. 

The proposer states reasonably 

that the preferred proposal 

would provide stability in 

leadership and allow Ysgol 

Borthyn to strengthen its 

leadership and management 

team. Ysgol Borthyn has a 

substantive head teacher and 

established senior leadership 

team. Ysgol Llanbedr has an 

acting head teacher who has 

been in post since 2013. Since 

2009 the school has had three 

permanent and four acting head 

teachers. 

Noted.  

The proposal asserts reasonably 

that if pupils transfer to Ysgol 

Borthyn it is likely that pupils will 

have access to a broader 

compliment of teaching staff 

offering expertise in a number of 

different curriculum areas. 

Noted.  

The proposer acknowledges that 

if the current proposal was 

implemented pupils with 

additional learning needs will be 

supported by the councils 

additional learning needs officer. 

Any additional learning needs 

support that pupils currently 

receive, such as 1-2-1 support, will 

be replicated in their new 

learning environment. 

Noted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 245



 

10 
 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

 

 

          
 

Cllr Hugh H Evans OBE 
Leader of Denbighshire County Council 
County Hall 
Wynnstay Road 
Ruthin 
LL15 1YN 
 
17th May 2015 
 
Dear Hugh 

Re: Pre-consultation regarding Ysgol Llanbedr 

Thank you again for the opportunity to present our proposals at the pre cabinet meeting on 

the 11th May 2015 in respect of Ysgol Llanbedr,  

The decision of cabinet on the 17th February 2015 was for its officers to commence 

consultation with the Church in Wales on the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr and report 

back to members. The Modernising Education team sent to the Diocese of St Asaph on the 

20th April 2015, a draft formal consultation document and invited the Diocese to consider 

the draft proposal document and to provide their views on the proposal by Monday 18th 

May 2015. Officers stated that this would enable the views of the Diocese to be reported to 

elected members at the Cabinet meeting scheduled for the 2nd June.   

Please find below a summary of the proposal and the response of the Diocese of St Asaph to 

be reported to members at cabinet scheduled for the 2nd June 2015. 

Page 246



 

11 
 

In 2012 surplus places at Llanbedr were high, since then school and Governing Body have 

worked hard to grow pupil numbers, such that the school is in a position of year on year 

growth with 5 year pupil projections continuing to show strong increase in pupils. It is the 

belief of the Diocese and Governing Body that these pupil projection are on the low side 

based on the information we have about families who would like to move their children to 

Llanbedr once the future of the school is certain. Also the LDP for Llanbedr has 70 houses 

which will be built around the corner from the school; we recognise that not all the pupils 

from these houses would want English medium education however we know that families in 

Llanbedr whose children have recently started / are just starting school now are choosing 

Llanbedr again. 

 

Pupil projections based in the school census data from January this year show a net increase 

of 21 pupils at Llanbedr, with the strongest growth in the next couple of years, and the 

corresponding reduction in surplus places. 

In light of  the information the Governing Body has about demand for Llanbedr they have 

recently had a request approved to increase capacity back to 77, the level at which the 

school has operated for many years, because the lower number will not support the number 

of projected admissions. 

 Currently, Llanbedr does incur an above-average cost per pupil. 
 As indicated by projected pupil numbers, incurred costs decrease per pupil as 

numbers on roll increase.   
 Pupil growth numbers give a more balanced distribution of pupil led funding. 

 

 

 

 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Number on roll

Surplus

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

2015 2016 2017 2018

C
o

st
 P

e
r 

P
u

p
il 

(£
) 

Year 

Cost per Pupil

Trendline

Page 247



 

12 
 

 

 

The school and Governing Body at Llanbedr have worked hard to maintain good financial 

management at the school. During the period of decreasing pupil numbers, the subsequent 

stabilisation and now the increase in pupils the budget has always been in surplus, however 

slight. The school has not had to make any redundancies so as pupil numbers grow the 

school is well placed to continue to deliver good quality of education to the pupils without 

sudden increases in cost. Therefore the cost per pupil falls significantly over the next 3 years 

due to the increase in pupils. This brings the Llanbedr cost per pupil much more in line with 

the Denbighshire average. 

 One of the aims of the Ruthin Review is to reduce surplus places. 
 Denbighshire County Council has already taken steps towards achieving this aim. 
 Current work and other consultations, if carried through, will bring capacity down to 

the desired target. 
 All projections point to pupil numbers increasing over the next five years. The school 

has registered interest indicating an increase in number on roll, should its future be 
secured.  
 

Faith provision 

 We believe that faith-based provision, delivering a high-quality education with a 
framework and ethos based on Christian values, remains an important part of overall 
educational provision. 

 Pupil projections for the next five years strongly suggest an increased demand in 
both schools. 

 Evidence collated after the Minister’s decision demonstrates a significant demand 
for English-medium faith-based education, alongside current pupil projections, this 
strongly suggests both schools need to remain open. 

 

It is wrong to assume that faith schools are schools intended to educate people of the faith 

into the faith, this is not so, they provide a Christian school for all people. We are open and 

transparent in our offer to parents that our ethos is based on a set of values that promotes 

Christian character and an education that is about service and spirituality as well as 

academic achievement. 

Our data tells us that parents in this area want their children to attend a church school and 

that there is demand in the system for English medium faith based provision. It would not 

be cost effective or economic to close one school and then have to create that capacity in 

another school. This would also not meet the benchmarks required under the 21st Century 

Schools Programme. 

Page 248



 

13 
 

We have evidence from parents who contacted the school after January 27th to request a 

place for their child. We are happy to submit names which can be validated by officers. 

Denbighshire today is very different from the early nineteenth century when the Victorian 

church built schools in rural villages, when there was no other provider. The demographic 

has changed and these schools now find themselves serving an altogether different 

community need. 

Parents with no apparent connections to the church or who are not regular worshippers, 

seek this education for their children, this is because our schools are ingrained with 

Christian values and have the human flourishing of every child at its core, because we drive 

a philosophy of education and a pedagogical approach that is underpinned by the rhythm 

and liturgical life of the community and because we offer pastoral care to all. 

The Proposal: 

That Ysgol Llanbedr:- 
 

 Federates with another Church in Wales school. 
 Consults on a proposal to change status to a Voluntary Aided school 

 

We believe that this addresses the issues of reducing surplus places whilst also reducing 

costs. It also demonstrates our willingness and continued commitment to working with the 

local authority to achieve these broader policy aims of reducing costs and addressing 

surplus places, we are both statutory providers of education and the Diocese of St Asaph 

wants to work cooperatively and supportively with the Local Authority with a shared vision 

for the planning of school places 

Federation 

 Education (Small Schools) (Wales) Order 2014 States: 
 Welsh Government wishes to make federation more common place, especially 

amongst small schools 
 Federation can provide an opportunity for schools to remain open in their 

communities and to share good practice, resources and facilities to improve school 
performance and pupil attainment. 

 federating small schools is likely to result in some cost savings for local authorities  
 Evidence from schools that have federated show there are clear advantages and 

savings that can be achieved  
 

The Education (Small Schools) (Wales) Order defines a small school as that with fewer than 

91 pupils 

The explanatory memorandum to the order states: 

Page 249



 

14 
 

Federation provides an opportunity for smaller schools to remain open in their communities 

and to take advantage of the benefits federation can offer in terms of sharing expertise, 

good practice and resources for the benefit of all schools in the federation. 

  

Evidence suggests that federation can be beneficial in terms of improving the quality and 

range of educational provision and can make schools more efficient financially.  

The Welsh Government wishes to make federation more common place, especially amongst 

small schools. Education (Small Schools) (Wales) Order 2014, therefore included provision 

which allows the Welsh Ministers to make regulations which make it easier for a local 

authority to propose federation of schools. This order was enacted on the 29th April 2014 so 

was not an option for the Authority at earlier stages of the consultation with regard to Ysgol 

Llanbedr, but now is a worthy and available mechanism to retain provision whilst meeting 

your objectives of cost savings and reducing surplus places. 

Federation can provide an opportunity for schools to remain open in their communities and 

to share good practice, resources, and facilities to improve school performance and pupil 

attainment. The ultimate aim of federations should be to improve educational outcomes of 

pupils. However, federating small schools is likely to result in some cost savings for local 

authorities 

Small schools that are federated should also benefit from potential cost savings as the 

federation beds down. Evidence from schools that have federated show there are clear 

advantages and savings that can be achieved  

Annex 9 of the UK Department for Children, Schools and Families Report (now the 

Department for Education) issued in September 2009 evidences some of the financial 

savings from the case studies of small rural primary schools federating. Based on shared 

headships at that time the estimated savings on head teachers’ salaries ranged from a net 

minimum of £12,000 - £54,530 depending on variables such as the pay point and salary 

scale of the heads, the position will be even more beneficial 6 years later 

Schools can improve value for money by working more closely with each other. In our 

research delivered benefits included sharing and sharing leadership and other staff 

resources. (Ref: Valuable lessons guide – improving economy & efficiency in schools) 

There are considerable and wide-ranging advantages to federating for both schools and 

school leaders. The option to federate could provide a positive option to schools facing 

longstanding head teacher recruitment issues, reasons that seem particularly pertinent to 

small and rural schools. (Ref: Hard Federations of small primary schools) 

Page 250



 

15 
 

From a local authority perspective, federations offer a positive alternative to school closure, 

an incentive for retaining heads and an opportunity to improve standards. (Ref: Hard 

Federations of small primary schools) 

School governing body federation can be beneficial in terms of improving the quality and 

range of provision and that it can also make schools more efficient financially. (Ref 

Explanatory Memorandum to the proposed Education (Wales) Measure 2011)  

Mrs Alison Heale is the head teacher of three federated schools in the Wrexham area, she 

comments on her experiences: 

 The Federation has enabled us  to offer the advantages of a small school and a caring 
and supportive ‘family type’ environment whilst also offering the benefits of working 
together as a larger school community.  

 Staff working in partnership has developed and nurtured staff leadership skills, 
sharing of best practice, mentoring of colleagues and a focus on continuity and 
consistency within and between schools 

 Standards  continue to improve as a result of consistent assessment procedures, a 
common marking and feedback policy and many opportunities for the children to 
work collaboratively..  

 As a Federation we are building curriculum teams which again allow for the sharing 
of expertise and skills. Staff who have historically worked in isolation because they 
are the only teacher for a vertically grouped class are now able to plan, share ideas 
and reflect together. This is improving our teaching and learning.  

 As a Federation one of our schools was inspected in July last year. Staff in other two 
schools did all they could to support and encourage the staff going through 
inspection. this is a great example of Federation working well- to the benefit of all 
our pupils.  

 Numbers in our three schools have been sustained and indeed increased 
 

Initial discussions within our family of Church schools indicate a number of willing and 

potential federation partners. Subject to the mandate from cabinet, The Diocese will 

proceed to formal negotiations and inform the council when a preferred federation partner 

is selected. 

Change the status of Ysgol Llanbedr to Voluntary Aided 

What will happen if a school becomes Voluntary Aided? 
 

 All capital works under the Capital Grants Scheme become the responsibility of the 
Governing Body and Diocese which is a cost saving to Denbighshire County Council 

 Greater involvement of the Diocese in the management and operation of the school 
(reducing commitment from Denbighshire County Council) 

 Governing Body are the Admissions Authority – cost saving to DCC 
 Governing Body are the employers of the teaching staff – cost saving to Denbighshire 

County Council 

Page 251



 

16 
 

 Better distribution of faith schools by type in Denbighshire (currently only one other 
Church in Wales VA School) 

 Our commitment to working with the local authority to achieve its broader policy 
aims of reducing costs and addressing surplus places is further supported by our 
desire to change the status of the school to Voluntary Aided. 

 Cost of capital projects is offset – deficiencies in school accommodation highlighted 
in the consultation reports can be addressed at no cost to the Authority. (School hall, 
upgrade of facilities).  

 Greater school improvement advice from the Diocesan team meaning less 
responsibility to officers, the management of the school is the responsibility of the 
Governors with support from the Diocese. 

 Admissions process is administered wholly by the school, parents apply to the school 
not the authority, the Governing body determine admissions, and inform parents, 
and appeals are the responsibility of the Diocese. Welsh Government and the 
Diocese advise and manage the process. 

 As employers the Governing Body undertake recruitment and selection of the 
Headteacher and teaching staff. The Local authority saves money by not having to 
support these HR functions  

 The Voluntary Aided School has responsibility for its own RE, using the Church in 
Wales syllabus rather than the agreed syllabus. This means that support relating to 
RE and Collective worship is provided by the Diocese and not the Local Authority. 
This extends across the curriculum for example we have our own resources for the 
LNF in VA schools and there is specific additional support for the section 50 
inspection framework. 

  

 There is need for schools to form effective structural partnerships and collaborations 
if they are to survive into the future. The need to offer a broad educational 
experience, whilst facing the challenge of sustaining experienced leadership under 
increasing financial pressure is a challenge. It is only as our schools work more 
intentionally in structural collaborations that they will find the strength and 
resilience they need to continue to offer an outstanding education in the heart of 
local rural communities 
 

 Church schools seek to be highly effective educationally, and they achieve that by 
not simply aiming to produce outstanding test and exam results or by striving just to 
be rated good or excellent by ESTYN, but by aiming for every child and young person 
to have a life enhancing encounter with the person of Jesus Christ and the Christian 
faith. Through that daily encounter and a focus on spiritual development and the 
formation of character, our schools seek to enable pupils to show integrity, courage, 
trustworthiness, emotional intelligence and to be passionate about justice. 
 

 

In conclusion, the Diocese of St Asaph invites cabinet to: 

 Suspend  the proposed consultation to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

Page 252



 

17 
 

 The St Asaph Diocesan Board of Statutory Education secure a federation partner for 
Ysgol Llanbedr and commence the consultation to change status from Voluntary 
Controlled to Voluntary Aided 

 The proposal is reviewed  in May 2018 and if we have not achieved a successful 
federation, changed status and reduced surplus places to within 10% of extended 
capacity, the Diocese will work with the Authority to commence further consultation 
on closure 

 

The timescales for this are potentially: 

Consultation process to change status: 13 weeks 

Consultation process for federation is 100 days if both schools have fewer than 91 pupils, 

125 days if one school is bigger. 

If this proposal is approved prior to summer holiday and then the changes could be made by 

the end of the financial year, or within 12 months of starting the process. 

We hope that this alternative proposal demonstrates the commitment of the Diocese and 

the Governing Body to work with Denbighshire County Council to secure the future of 

provision at Ysgol Llanbedr and our willingness and continued commitment to achieve this 

by addressing the councils broader policy aims of reducing costs and addressing surplus 

places. 

If there is any further information that we can provide that will assist cabinet in their 

decision making we would be happy to provide this. 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Rosalind Williams 
Director of Education and Lifelong Learning 
Diocese of St Asaph 
 
 
enc:  Explanatory Memorandum to the Education (Small Schools) (Wales) Order 2014 
 

 

 

END 

Page 253



 

18 
 

=================================================================== 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

Stakeholder Number of 

Recipients 

Parents of pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr DC 26 

Parents of pupils of Ysgol Borthyn 105 

Parents of pupils of Ysgol Gellifor 64 

Parents of pupils of Rhos Street School 117 

Parents of pupils of Ysgol Bro Famau 66 

Parents of pupils of Ysgol Llanfair DC 76 

Teachers and support staff at Ysgol Llanbedr DC 10 

Teachers and support staff at Ysgol Borthyn 30 

Teachers and support staff at Ysgol Gellifor 15 

Teachers and support staff at Rhos Street School 30 

Teachers and support staff at Ysgol Bro Famau 15 

Teachers and support staff at Ysgol Llanfair DC 17 

The Governing Bodies of Ysgol Llanbedr DC, Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos 

Street School, Ysgol Bro Famau and Ysgol Llanfair DC  

6 

The School Councils of Ysgol Llanbedr DC, Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street 

School, Ysgol Bro Famau and Ysgol Llanfair DC 

6 

The Diocese of St Asaph 1 

The Roman Catholic Diocese of Wrexham 1 

Head teachers and Chairs of Governors of all Denbighshire Schools (Primary, 

Secondary & Special Schools) 

112 

Denbighshire County Council Councillors  47 

Llanbedr DC Community Council 1 

Ruthin Town Council 1 

Llanelidan Community Council 1 

Llanfair DC Community Council 1 

Regional and Constituency Assembly Members 7 

Members of Parliament  3 

The Welsh Ministers 3 

Estyn 1 

North Wales Regional School Effectiveness and Improvement Service (GWE) 1 

Independent nursery and childcare providers in the area 8 

All relevant teaching and support staff trade unions  7 

Flintshire County Council 1 

Conwy County Council 1 

Wrexham County Council 1 

Powys County Council 1 

Page 254



 

19 
 

Gwynedd County Council 1 

Taith  6 

North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner  1 

Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years 

Development and Childcare Partnership & SEN Co-ordinator 

2 

Communities First Partnership  n/a 

Total 792 

=================================================================== 

 

Appendix C 

Pupil Consultation Report 

 

1.        Introduction  
 

1.1. The School Organisation Code requires Denbighshire County Council {DCC} 

to facilitate consultation sessions with pupils in the schools affected by the 

proposals. DCC issued a children and young peoples’ version of the 

consultation document, this was distributed in hardcopy to the schools 

affected by the proposal and also those identified as possible alternatives 

within the consultation document. The link to the electronic version was also 

sent to these schools including Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street School, Ysgol Bro 

Famau, Ysgol Rhewl and Ysgol Llanfair DC. The School Council for each 

school was invited to comment on the proposal however no responses were 

received. 
 

1.2. The Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr approached the authority regarding 

elements of the wording within the document. Minor changes were made at 

the request of the Governing Body, however this did not impact on the 

context of the document. The amended version was provided to Ysgol 

Llanbedr and responses were received from pupils. Other schools and 

Governing Bodies did not raise any concerns regarding the document.  
 

2.        Pupil Consultation Sessions 
 

2.1. DCC and the Governing Bodies of Ysgol Llanbedr DC and Ysgol Borthyn 

facilitated consultation sessions for the pupils at each school. The sessions 

were led by an education officer who has experience of consulting with 

children and young people. The sessions aimed to be as interactive as 

possible. 
 

2.2. The sessions began with an explanation of the context and reason for the 

sessions and why they were being asked for their views on the proposal. 
 

Page 255



 

20 
 

2.3. Pupils took part in a ‘Hopes and Fears’ activity were pupils are asked to write 

down anonymously what they liked about their school (‘hopes’) or things 

they were concerned about (‘fears’) in relation to the proposal. The findings 

of this activity are set out below; (next page) 
 

 

 

 

Ysgol Llanbedr 13-Jul-2015 

Hopes Fears 

 The school would stay open so I can 

stay with my friends. 

 I would like nice teachers like the 

ones in my school. 

 To have dark jumpers. 

 That the school doesn’t close 

because our school could be a big 

school and nobody wants to go to a 

school that might be closing. 

 That we have more children to come 

to the school. 

 The council to stop.  

 I don’t want blue or red or 

colourful jumpers. I would like to 

have my own clothes to wear 

every day. 

 My amazing school is going to 

close. 

 I’m going to leave my teachers. 

 I don’t want to go to a new 

school. 

 I don’t know anybody in Ysgol 

Borthyn. 

 None of my friends will be in my 

new school. 

 

Ysgol Borthyn 15-Jul-15 

Hopes Fears 

 New people to play with; 

 More money for charities; 

 More teachers; 

 New friends; 

 Choices of dinners; 

 Bigger school; 

 Bigger staffroom; 

 More classes; 

 The school will be better. 

 Bigger chance of bullying; 

 Longer school dinner queues; 

 School will be overcrowded; 

 Need money to make school 

bigger; 

 Making new friends; 

 More teachers; 

 New buildings; 

 

 
2.4. Pupils then took part in a mapping out activity to build on the first activity.  

This activity was based around four questions; 
 What needs to be improved at the moment? 

 What works well at the moment? 

 What would you like to see in a new/alternative school? 

 Is there a need to change things at all? 

 

2.5. The findings from the activity are set out in the tables below; 

Page 256



 

21 
 

Ysgol Llanbedr 13-Jul-15 

What we like about our school 

Tennis club; Values for life; Adventure playground; Army club; Astro turf to play games; 

Christian club; Spellings; Friends; Football after school; Beautiful wildlife in the garden; 

School trips; Jumpers; School council; Like the rabbits; Music; Special events; Breakfast 

club; Cartoon club; Holiday club; Racing cars in the morning; Best friends; Rounders’ in 

PE; It’s good to be green; School projects; Meet new friends; Book club and opportunity 

to be a librarian; Playing games; Like the school dinners; Red cards 

What we would like to see in our school 

More people to come to the school; Have afternoon playtime; Like the people; A big 

field and more places to go; Can’t find more friends; More animals; Don’t want to go to 

a bigger school 

 

Ysgol Borthyn 15-Jul-15 

What we like about our school 

Playtime; Proms; Golden time; Books; Sports day; Games; Friends; Nice teachers; Films; 

Work; White boards; Food; Panto; PE; Lessons; Own clothes day;  English; Gymnastics; 

Start chart; Laptops and iPads; Prizes; Cake day; Goal posts; Dinner time 

What would we like to see in our school 

Fun playtime; More DVDs; Stitched footballs; Monkey bars; More work; More PE; Bigger 

school; Better dinners; More laptops; More iPads; Later school starts; More choice of 

food; More golden time; Fun lessons; Less lessons; School mascot; Trampoline; Bring 

games/toys in; More after school clubs; More helpers; More options in PE; Better books; 

Park; More free time; Swings; Go to dinner early; Earlier home time; More games on 

iPads; More stars; Climbing frame; Swimming pool 

 

 

 

3.        Response Form 

 

3.1. 10 responses were received via the pupil response form, all responses were 

pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr. A summary of the responses are set out in the table 

below; 

 

How do you feel about Ysgol Llanbedr possibly closing and moving to Ysgol Borthyn, or 

another school? 

 Angry- I’d miss my friends and teachers. It wouldn’t be the same. 

 Sad, upset- it would be different. 

 Sad- I would not like it. 

 Upset and angry. I don’t want to go to a new school. Llanbedr is a village not a 

town so it is not the same. 

 Angry, sad, worried, annoyed. 

 I would feel sad ‘cos this is my favourite school. I don’t want it to come I just want 

more people to come here and I like my uniform. 

 Makes me feel sad. I love the country not in the town they haven’t got munchkins 

so I can’t play with them. 

 Very sad because I do not want to go to any other school and it is silly to close 

because the school is getting bigger. 

 

Page 257



 

22 
 

Is there anything else you would like to see happen instead of what we are planning? 

 I would like Ysgol Llanbedr to stay open forever and day. 

 Don’t close this school because I will miss the school. 

 Not close the school. 

 Give Ysgol Llanbedr more time and cancel it because nobody wants to go to a 

school that might close and Ysgol Llanbedr will be a bigger school. 

 It’s not a very good idea. 

 Keep our school open!! 

 To not close the school and let it grow. 

 

 

 

 

Would you like to say anything else? 

 We’ve got a lovely school. Holiday club in Munchkins. The little ones come to 

munchkins when they are 2 and we help look after them at playtime then they 

come to school when they are bigger. This is the best school ever. 

 I would miss all my friends. I like my school in the village. I don’t want to be in the 

town it is not the same. 

 We have a village and people like to help out and come to our services and join 

in events that we do and lots of schools use our munchkins. 

 This morning I actually felt sad about my school might be closing. 

 I love our school and teachers!!! 

 Don’t close my school because I want to keep it forever so I can better at doing 

maths ‘cos I know my sounds. I can ride on my bike to school and walk home up 

the big big hill. 

 I don’t want you to close it down because I can ride my bike to school and I can 

run through the fields to school. I would not like to go to school in the town 

because we have a big field and a big astro turf. I love my little school and all my 

friends. They might not go to the same school as me and I would be very sad. My 

teachers help me a lot and they wouldn’t be at another school. So please don’t 

close our school. 

 

 

 

4.        Pupil Formal Consultation Report 

 

4.1. The finding of the pupil consultation sessions have also been produced in a 

format that is accessible for children and young people. This is available 

here.  

 

END 

=================================================================== 

 

 

 

Page 258

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/consultations/closed-consultations.aspx


 

23 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix D 

Issues Raised via Letter and Email 

 

1. Educational Standards and Provision at Ysgol Llanbedr 

Ysgol Llanbedr has high educational standards which consistently outperform the Denbighshire 

and Wales average; Ysgol Llanbedr consistently provides excellent/exceptional education for 

pupils. High performing. Children (Ysgol Llanbedr) enjoy an exceptional range of activities 

including swimming and indoor PE working in partnership with Ysgol Brynhyfryd. Ysgol Llanbedr is 

the only English medium, rural faith school in the Ruthin area 

 

Response 

Many respondents have outlined the current provision at Ysgol Llanbedr, specifically in terms of 

educational provision such as; 

 

 Small class sizes; 

 Provides an excellent education; 

 Dedicated staff; 

 Wonderful environment- indoor and outdoor; 

 Provides a family community environment. 

 

Estyn, in their response to the formal consultation, concluded that should the proposal be 

implemented the standards of education within the area would at least be maintained. It is the 

view of the authority that should the proposal be implemented and pupils transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, 

or another of the identified alternative provision, they would have access to at least an equivalent 

standard of provision.  

 

Educational outcomes and attainment across the Ruthin area is good as a whole. The tables 

below display the Ruthin area average for both the Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 (this 

information was also contained within the formal consultation document); 

 

Page 259



 

24 
 

                         
 

 

 

 

 

The tables below displays the outcomes at the end of the Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 in all 

schools identified in the consultation document, this includes the outcomes for the 2014/2015 

academic year; 

  

Foundation Phase- Outcome 5 and above 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Llanbedr 85.7% 87.5% 100% 83.3% 100% 100% 

Borthyn 82.4% 77.3% 58.8% 53.8% 100% 70% 

Rhos 

Street 

88.9% 90% 95.2% 100% 100% 100% 

Gellifor 100% 94.7% 100% 100% 93.3% 75% 

Bro 

Famau 

100% 90% 81.8% 90.9% 80% 100% 

Rhewl 100% 100% 66.7% 83.3% 85.7% 70% 

Llanfair 

DC 

94.1% 86.7% 100% 100% 92.3% 100% 

D’shire 

Av. 

82.4% 79.8% 86.4% 84.9% 86.1% 86.4% 

Wales 

Av. 

81.6% 82.7% 80.5% 83% 85.2% 86.8% 

 

 

Key Stage 2 Level 4+ 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Llanbedr 84.6% 100% 85.7% 100% n/a n/a* 

Borthyn 58.8% 78.6% 92.3% 93.3% 80% 83.3% 

Rhos 

Street 

93.5% 93.3% 96.6% 92.6% 100% 100% 

Gellifor 92.9% 92.3% 100% 91.7% 100% 100% 

Bro 

Famau 

91.7% 100% 94.4% 95.8% 100% 100% 

Rhewl 100% 100% 100% 100% 75% 90.9% 

Llanfair 

DC 

88.9% 91.7% 100% 94.1% 93.3% 100% 

Page 260



 

25 
 

D’shire 

Av. 

78.1% 82.3% 83.5% 86% 86.6% 87.9% 

Wales 

Av. 

77% 80% 82.6% 84.3% 86.1% 87.7% 

*Data has been omitted as it is potentially disclosive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

During the formal consultation period the outcomes for the 2014/2015 academic year were not 

available. The tables below provide contextualised data  regarding the assessed cohort for both 

Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn for the 2015 academic year; 

 

Contextualised Data Foundation Phase Outcomes 2015 

School ALN FSM EAL Total in 

Cohort* 

Llanbedr 0 1 0 7 

Borthyn 6 1 2 10 
*Total includes pupils in cohort who are not ALN/FSM/EAL 

 

 

Although in 2015 the outcomes at Ysgol Borthyn for the Foundation Phase were below the local 

and national average, 60% of the cohort were pupils with Additional Learning Needs, including 2 

pupils who are statemented. A further 20% of the cohort were pupils with English as an Additional 

Language (EAL). In summary, 80% of the cohort were pupils with ALN or EAL. No pupils at Ysgol 

Llanbedr had Additional Learning Needs and no pupils were EAL. The Free School Meals % at both 

schools for the assessed cohorts were similar.  

 

 

Contextualised Data Key Stage 2 Outcomes 2015 

School ALN FSM EAL Total in 

Cohort* 

Llanbedr n/a** n/a n/a n/a 

Borthyn 9 2 5 24 
*Total includes pupils in cohort who are not ALN/FSM/EAL 

**Data has been omitted as it has potential to be disclosive. Data has been provided to decision makers. 

 

Ysgol Borthyn saw an improvement in attainment at Key Stage 2 from the last academic year 

although this was not above the local or national average. There were a total of 24 pupils in the 

assessed cohort, 9 of these pupils had Additional Learning Needs equating to 37.5% of the overall 

cohort with a further 5 pupils having English as an Additional Language (EAL) equating to 20.8% of 

the overall cohort. Of the total cohort 8.3% were FSM. The cohort in Ysgol Llanbedr was small; the 

data relating to the cohort is potentially disclosive. The data has been made available to decision 

makers.   

2. Facilities and Accommodation  

Page 261



 

26 
 

Wonderful environment- indoor and outdoor- incredible space to run and play; excellent facilities; 

School is situated in rural environment; yet to find a more idyllic school than Ysgol Llanbedr; 

beautiful school; rural location; Future expansion and development of school site 

This is noted however equivalent school facilities are available at the proposed alternative school, 

Ysgol Borthyn. Estyn commented that the school offered “a good range of resources, including 

ICT, provides an appropriate range of learning opportunities for all pupils. The well-maintained 

school building provides a clean and pleasant learning environment. There is plenty of space 

available on the school site for outdoor play and learning. Areas such as the vegetable garden, 

forest area and the secure play area for children in the Foundation Phase extend opportunities for 

learning well.” Should the proposal be implemented pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr would have access 

to at least equivalent standard of facilities and resources.  

 

With regard to school organisation proposals the Code requires that any alternate provision offers 

the same language and faith offer as the pupils currently receive. There is no requirement for the 

authority to provide an offer in a rural or town setting. The authority notes the views of consultees 

that the Ysgol Llanbedr site could be expanded, however an expansion of the school would lead 

to an increase in surplus places and would require significant capital investment. 

 

3. Alternative Provision 

Ysgol Borthyn does not have enough capacity to accommodate the growing numbers of pupils 

from Ysgol Llanbedr; plan to transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn not practical; Borthyn will be at full 

capacity. Ysgol Borthyn uses mobile classrooms. Ysgol Borthyn is situated on a main road; no off 

road parking or drop off/pick up. Clear demand for English medium faith based education in the 

Ruthin area based on pupil numbers and projections. If Ysgol Borthyn closes alternative school 

needs to provide equivalent or better education for pupils Ysgol Llanbedr delivers education in a 

rural area, Ysgol Borthyn is in the town- not equivalent; Llanbedr is excellent/very good to Borthyn 

which is only classed as adequate; not another faith school with achievement level of Ysgol 

Llanbedr; Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr would contradict policy which entitles pupils to equivalent or 

better educational experience- Borthyn under performed (and most other local schools) at both 

foundation phase and key stage 2 2009-2014, inferior site, temporary classrooms and over full class 

sizes, unsuitable on all levels as an alternative facility- no provision for pick up/drop off, concrete 

everywhere, limited green spaces, poor facilities for outdoor sporting pursuits, mobile classroom, 

poor educational standards and results. Children at Ysgol Llanbedr not used to large class sizes.All 

other schools shoe horned into unsuitable spaces with no room for expansion 

Education Provision 

 

It is the view of the authority that Ysgol Borthyn provides at least an equivalent educational 

provision. Estyn also support the view that standards of education would at least be maintained in 

the area should the current proposal be implemented. A detailed response to educational 

outcomes and standards can be found in section 1 of this table which includes information 

relating to the 2014/2015 academic year. 

 

Assessed cohorts at Ysgol Llanbedr are relatively small and data should be treated with caution. 

Contextualised data for outcomes at both the foundation phase and key stage 2 were provided 

in the formal consultation document. Ysgol Borthyn overall has a higher than average number of 

pupils with ALN and FSM is above both the local and national average. Ysgol Borthyn also has a 

number of pupils who have English as an additional language. It is the view of the authority that 

pupils would receive the same standard of education should the current proposal be 

implemented.  

 

In the view of the authority the school has made strong progress toward meeting the 

Page 262



 

27 
 

recommendations set out by Estyn in 2014. The school has been supported by the local authority 

and the regional educational consortia GWE. A comprehensive action plan based on the 

recommendations has been implemented and the school are making strong progress with its 

implementation. A permanent head teacher took up post in January 2015 following the retirement 

of the previous head in July 2014. As a consequence of the adequate judgement the school 

received a monitoring visit from Estyn in June 2015. The purpose of the visit is to assess the progress 

made by the school against the Estyn recommendations made in 2014. Estyn found the school 

had made sufficient progress and the school was removed from Estyn monitoring. 

 

 

Pupil Numbers, Capacity& Impact on Faith Provision  

 

Ysgol Borthyn currently has 116 full time pupils on roll (September 2015) equating to 26 surplus 

places. Within the capacity assessment for Ysgol Borthyn there is scope for a further 23 full time 

pupils to be accommodated at the school by the potential use of resource area. Historically, Ysgol 

Borthyn has accommodated more than the current capacity of 142 although pupil numbers have 

declined and remained static for a number of years. This area has previously been used for 

teaching purposes. The table below displays the class structures at both Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol 

Borthyn as of September 2015; 

 

 N R Y1 Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5 Y6 

Llanbedr 4 10 7 3 7 2 3 0 

Borthyn 14 18 22 19 11 13 16 17 

Totals 18 28 29 22 18 15 19 17 

 

The total number of full time pupils would be 148 full time pupils; numbers at Ysgol Borthyn have 

historically been higher than this in the past. The authority recognises the importance of faith 

based education, there is sufficient capacity within the area to meet demand for English medium 

faith based provision. Should all proposal as part of the Ruthin area review be adopted there 

would be a mix of rural, town, language and faith based provision which would maintain parental 

choice. For the majority of pupils Ysgol Borthyn would be closer to their home locations. There is no 

statutory requirement for the authority to provide education in either a town or rural setting. 

 

Additionally there are further 23 full time faith based surplus places at Ysgol Llanfair DC. Other 

possible alternative schools in the area have a total of 133 surplus places this includes Rhos Street 

School, Ysgol Gellifor, Ysgol Bro Famau and Ysgol Rhewl.  

 

Small Class Sizes 

 

The authority recognise that parents may choose smaller schools as however this does not 

necessarily correlate to smaller class sizes due to the restrictions placed on the staffing body by 

school funding arrangements. Currently pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr are taught within two class 

settings within their appropriate key stage. 

 

Mobile Classrooms 

 

Ysgol Borthyn has a mobile classroom on site which is used for teaching purposes. The authority 

would note that Ysgol Llanbedr also has a mobile classroom located on site which has also been 

used for teaching purposes but is now utilised by ‘Munchkins@Llanbedr’.  

 

Highway Considerations 

Page 263



 

28 
 

 

Ysgol Borthyn is not located on hazardous route. There is a pelican crossing located on the road 

approaching the school and a school crossing patrol is in place to assist pupils and parents both in 

the mornings and afternoons. School transport vehicles disembark at the adjoining housing estate 

which has a rear access to the school. Currently only one pupil at Ysgol Borthyn receives home to 

school transport. 

 

Quality of Accommodation and Facilities 

 

Consultees have raised concerns regarding the facilities, specifically outdoor facilities, at Ysgol 

Borthyn in comparison to those available at Ysgol Llanbedr. The authority has produced evidence 

relating to condition and suitability surveys at Ysgol Borthyn which indicate the school provides a 

good learning environment and the school had an overall suitability rating of A. 

 

Pupils at Ysgol Borthyn have access to large playing field which is located to the rear of the school. 

Estyn found the learning environment at Ysgol Borthyn to be good stating “The well-maintained 

school building provides a clean and pleasant learning environment. There is plenty of space 

available on the school site for outdoor play and learning. Areas such as the vegetable garden, 

forest area and the secure play area for children in the Foundation Phase extend opportunities for 

learning well.” 

 

One of the key drivers for the Ruthin review was the condition and suitability of school buildings 

and facilities. The authority recognises that some school buildings and sites within the area are not 

fit for propose or reflective of a 21st century schools standard. As a consequence of the review 

£15million will be invested in the school estate which will result in a significant improvement to the 

learning environment and school estate. 

 

4. Impact on the Community  

Ysgol Llanbedr is an important part of the social fabric of the local community and closure would 

have a devastating impact on Llanbedr; to close would be to detriment of community; 

paramount importance to keep this school open within our community; by closing Llanbedr you 

are braking a tight knit community that is focused around the village school. Ysgol Llanbedr has 

served the village of Llanbedr for 150 years. Vendetta against community. Rural families should 

continue to be able to have their children educated in rural village schools; Children take part in 

many activities at the village hall, the church and village events- without Ysgol Llanbedr these 

events would suffer; difficult to sustain these events. Having village hall not the same as having a 

school, deprive the school; Concerns about what would happen to astro turf facility if the school 

were to close and who would be responsible for its management and how it would be funded; 

highly valued facility for community use; Older members of the community support the school. 

 

The authority acknowledges that school closure will inevitably impact upon a community. The 

authority produced a Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment which was published 

alongside the formal consultation document. It is recognised by the authority that the school plays 

an important role in the community, should the proposal be implemented there would be scope 

to extend links with Ysgol Borthyn and the Llanbedr DC community.  

 

There is a separate village hall located within Llanbedr which is utilised for events in the village. The 

school does not have a hall facility however the astro-turf pitch is used by the wider community. 

The authority would be open to working with the Diocese and local community to retain use of the 

facility for the local community. The authority has provided a response to the issues raised within 

the community impact assessment in section two of this table. 

Page 264



 

29 
 

 

As a consequence of the review the authority has maintained a mix of provision to ensure 

parental preference including rural, town, faith and language provision within the Ruthin area. 

 

In other instances where school buildings and sites have been subject to a reverter under Charity 

Commission Law, Denbighshire have worked with third parties, such as the Church in Wales 

Diocese to seek to retain the use of the building for the community, for example in Bryneglwys 

following the closure of the site and establishment of Ysgol Dyffryn Ial on one site. Should the 

proposal be implemented the Council would facilitate discussions with the local community and 

the Diocese of St Asaph should they wish to seek to retain all or part of the building and/or site for 

community use. 

 

Should the current proposal be implemented there would be scope for links to be fostered 

between Ysgol Borthyn and the local community in Ysgol Llanbedr DC. The authority is willing to 

work with the Diocese of St. Asaph and the Governing Body and wider school community of Ysgol 

Borthyn to assist in creating strong links between the two communities.  

 

 

 

5. Wrap-around-care 

Ysgol Llanbedr provides wrap-around-care for working families with pre and after school clubs; 

essential for working parents; importance of this service to people within our community , allows 

parents to get back to work and studies thus contributing to local economy; Ysgol Llanbedr 

provides wrap-around-care for working families with pre and after school clubs; Ysgol Llanbedr 

provides full wrap around care, breakfast club, afterschool and holiday club- no equivalent care 

at Ysgol Borthyn; Ysgol Llanbedr provides wrap-around-care for working families with pre and after 

school clubs. Munchkins at Llanbedr could not continue without the school remaining open; not 

viable as a standalone private day care facility. Munchkins employs local people, staff would lose 

their incomes if school closed. Holiday club accessed by children at other schools in the area. 

Should munchkins close it would have financial impact on families. Village hall not alternative for 

Munchkins as it is open to the public for use of toilet facilities, car parking and for group bookings. 

The Denbighshire County Council childcare sufficiency report (2014) noted that there were a total 

of 354 childcare places available in the Ruthin area. There were 258 children of 0-3 years of age in 

2014 with 50% of childcare vacancies empty for this age range not taking into account 118 spaces 

within full day care private provision. The full day care provision in Ruthin has a daily capacity of 

57% of the numbers it could cater for suggesting that there is more than adequate childcare 

options and places available within the area. Other full day child care is available in the Ruthin 

area. The report can be found here.  

 

The authority notes concerns of consultees that ‘munchkins’ may not be viable without the school 

remaining open. It has been proposed that the village hall would be suitable however consultees 

have stated that this would not be an option as the village hall is well utilised throughout the day 

and could not accommodate the facility due to the toilet facilities and car park being used by 

members of the community or visitors to the area. 

 

Other schools in the area provide wrap-around-care, including the proposed reciving school Ysgol 

Borthyn. Ysgol Borthyn offers ‘Borthyn Bunnies’ playgroup for pupils aged two and a half years and 

over for morning and afternoon sessions. Other schools within the area also offer similar wrap-

around-care provision, breakfast clubs and after school clubs. There is also a significant surplus of 

childcare places within the Ruthin area (English medium). Although the authority recognises the 

importance to parents of wrap-around-care it is important to note that this is not a statutory 

Page 265

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/childcare-sufficiency-assessment.aspx


 

30 
 

provision.  

6. Pupil Numbers and Surplus Places 

Llanbedr on road to recovery with projected pupil numbers more than enough to resolve current 

surplus; school is growing and seen as desirable for many families; to close Ysgol Llanbedr on the 

basis of temporary excess of school places seems short-sighted. Pupil numbers and registrations for 

the school have increased steadily, school is predicted to reach full capacity by September 2016. 

Pupil numbers are low primarily due to threat of closure by Council. Inaccuracy in projections for 

Llanbedr. Increasing birth rate/LPD. Council has already met initial surplus places target. 

Understanding that WG funding for new schools in Ruthin is conditional of LEA reducing surplus 

places. 

The authority has acknowledged there will be an increase in pupil numbers, however Ysgol 

Llanbedr will remain a small school. It is unlikely that the school will reduce surplus places to within 

10% in the near future. There are currently 32 full time pupils at Ysgol Llanbedr and 4 part time 

pupils. Assuming all part time pupils transition to Reception in 2016 there would be 36 full time 

pupils at Ysgol Llanbedr. The capacity of Ysgol Llanbedr will increase to 77 full time places as of 

September 2016 which would result in a surplus capacity of 53.2%.  

 

Pupil numbers at the school have remained static for a number of years however a higher than 

average intake to Reception would indicate that consultation regarding the future of the school 

has had no significant impact on intake at the school.  

Pupil projections are calculated using an agreed methodology using the most recent PLASC data. 

These projections are updated with admissions data to provide a more accurate reflection each 

year. The pupil projections submitted by the Diocese and Governing Body are in line with the 

projections provided by the authority within the formal consultation document. 

 

LDP 

 

The birth rate in the Llanbedr/Llangynhafal ward has decreased over recent years as 

demonstrated in the table below; 

 

 

Ward 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Llanbedr & 

Llangynhafal 

11 8 9 8 4 

Llanarmon 

yn 

Ial/Llandegla 

 

11 

 

17 

 

15 

 

17 

 

21 

Ruthin 56 53 66 67 54 

Totals 78 78 90 92 79 

 

 

Birth rates within the wider area have also remained static indicating there will be no significant 

increase in the overall pupil quantum in the near future indicating that surplus capacity will remain 

across the area as a whole.  

 

Page 266



 

31 
 

The Council calculate how many additional pupils would be generated should homes under the 

LDP be implemented using an agreed formula which is based on data gathered by Local 

Authorities. The primary school multiplier is 0.24 (no. of dwellings x 0.24). Should the 70 homes be 

built in the Llanbedr DC area this would generate an estimated 17 pupils as per the formula. The 

developments are expected to be phased with 20 homes identified to be built by 2020. This 

includes 5 homes in 2017, 5 homes in 2018, 5 homes in 2019 and 5 in 2020. 

There is no guarantee that all of these pupils would access the provision at Ysgol Llanbedr due to 

parental preference for language medium and other types of provision. As of May 2015 there 

were 37 pupils of primary school age living within the Llanbedr area. 12 pupils were attending 

Category 5 English medium (non-faith) schools including Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street 

School and Ysgol Bro Famau. A further 12 pupils were accessing Welsh medium education and a 

further 2 pupils were accessing Category 2 provision. 11 pupils from Llanbedr DC were attending 

Ysgol Llanbedr. 

 

Surplus Places 

 

The Welsh Government has set a 10% surplus places target for each local authority in Wales. The 

authority has been making progress toward the target however it has not reached the 

recommended 10%. Local authorities who bid for funding must demonstrate that they are taking 

appropriate action to ensure a greater efficiency and effectiveness of the school estate which 

includes rationalisation of school places where there are significant surplus places. The Welsh 

Government has set a target of 10% surplus places for each county in Wales. 

7. Alternative Options/Federation 

The Diocese of St Asaph supports the proposal for Ysgol Llanbedr to federate with another Church 

in Wales school and to change status to Voluntary Aided, would relieve the council of financial 

burden, support this proposal; Diocese and school have made excellent suggestion to federate 

and change status-would overturn many of your initial points in favour of closing; reconsider an 

alternative to save money; proposal is given full consideration. Suggest that sharing a head 

teacher with neighbouring school would help provide efficiency. Have not been given any other 

option other than closure, other options not explored by council; local authority has failed to 

adequately explore alternatives to closing the school.  

The local authority has explored the option of Federation for Ysgol Llanbedr, the advantages and 

disadvantages of all alternative options were detailed within the formal consultation document. 

The authority broadly agrees with the benefits put forward in relation to federated school models 

however there are other issues, such as surplus places, fairer and more equitable distribution of 

school funding and greater efficiency and effectiveness of the school estate. These issues were 

detailed at the outset of the Ruthin are review of primary education. It is the view of the authority 

that whilst federation outcomes would realise some benefits such as stability of leadership, pupils 

access to a broader compliment of staff etc. these same benefits can also be realised through the 

option to close Ysgol Llanbedr whilst also providing economies of scale for the benefit of all pupils 

within the area.  

As stated by the Diocese and also the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr in their response to the 

consultation there are potential teaching, learning and educational experience enhancement 

opportunities for pupils. Options for sharing best practice and the pooling of resources can be 

achieved in a federated model however these benefits can also be achieved at a single site 

school. For example, Ysgol Borthyn the proposed alternative school, has a broad compliment of 

staff with an established senior leadership and middle management teams. The authority remains 

of the view that whilst these benefits can be realised in a federation the proposal to close Ysgol 

Llanbedr and transfer existing pupils to Ysgol Borthyn where pupils will have access to a broader 

compliment of teaching staff, curriculum leads and established leadership teams.  

In a federated arrangement Ysgol Llanbedr will still remain a small school, surplus capacity will 

Page 267



 

32 
 

remain and likely increase as of September 2016 due to a revised capacity assessment at the 

request of the school and Governing Body. The authority acknowledges that there will be an 

increase in pupils however there is not a general increase in the numbers of pupils across the 

Ruthin area indicating that the quantum of pupils will not change. Birth rates and pupil numbers 

have remained static for a number of years. The efficiencies and economies of scale that can be 

achieved by transferring pupils to Ysgol Borthyn with a sustainable number of pupils, single 

governance and established leadership structures will provide better use of resource and provide 

pupils with a broad range of learning and development experiences and opportunities.  

The Diocese and Governing Body would be able to bid for funding via the Welsh Government 

capital grant scheme for VA schools. Accessing such resources is dependent upon 15% 

contribution from Church in Wales and / or Governing Body of the Federated schools. Any 

expansion of the school/school site would lead to an increase in the overall pupil capacity, likely 

leading to an overall increase in surplus capacity in the area. 

The authority remains of the view that in light of the benefits that can be realised through 

federation (and these benefits were detailed within the formal consultation document) and light 

of the availability of alternative provision within the area. The authority’s response in full can be 

found (appendix 1)  here.  

 

In determining a way forward full consideration was given to the alternative options such as 

Federation, maintaining the status quo, amalgamation/area school, change of status have been 

explored by the authority. The advantages and disadvantages of these options are detailed within 

the formal consultation document.  

There is no requirement on local authorities to consult on more than one option although 

authorities can do so were they feel this is appropriate. Estyn commented “The proposer has 

considered alternatives to its proposal. These include maintaining the status quo, federation or 

amalgamation with another Church in Wales primary school, becoming a voluntary aided school 

and expansion of the current site and closure. The proposer has demonstrated clearly the 

advantages and disadvantages of each option and the reasons for the preferred option.” 

8. Consultation Process 

Proposal to transfer the children to Ysgol Borthyn is flawed; Minister ruled to keep the school open 

and straight away the Council restarted the process for closure; concerns about why a second 

consultation has been started so soon after the first; can you advise is an investigation has been 

done into this matter- flawed first consultation (1st consultation); Little confidence in the process 

being conducted in a fair and honest manner; Concerned evidence base used by council is 

flawed- numbers at school recovering yet council forecasts do not seem to reflect this; I feel the 

consultation period should be made known properly in the community; Pre-determined decision 

to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

Consultation Process 

 

The proposal has been formulated in accordance with the requirements as set out in the School 

Organisation Code. The authority did not announce a second consultation for closure 5 days 

following the issuing of the decision by the Minister for Education and Skills on the 27th January 

2015. The report taken to Cabinet on the 17th of February 2015 was to inform Cabinet members of 

the Ministers decision and to set out the recommendations within the determination letter. In this 

report it was recommended that a consultation take place with the Church in Wales Diocese of St 

Asaph regarding the future of Ysgol Llanbedr. This took place between the 20th of April 2015 and 

the 18th of May. Representatives from the Diocese of St Asaph and the Governing Body were 

included within pre-Cabinet briefing meetings during this period and presented an alternative 

proposal to be considered by members. A decision to formally consult on the proposal to close 

was not taken by Cabinet until 2nd June 2015 providing adequate time for the Council to 

evaluate the Ministers recommendations. 

Page 268

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=5146&LLL=0


 

33 
 

 

The consultation document was sent to over 700 consultees including Ruthin Town Council and 

Llanbedr DC Community Council. 539 responses were received as part of the consultation 

indicating that there was a significant awareness of the consultation in the local and wider 

community. No decision has been made regarding the future of Ysgol Llanbedr. Decision makers 

must consider the proposal afresh and consider the responses submitted as part of the 

consultation period. 

 

Data 

 

The data contained within the consultation document was the most recently available school 

census data- January 2015. The data for the school census is returned by individual schools. The 

authority has acknowledged that pupil numbers will increase at Ysgol Llanbedr which is reflected 

in the pupil projections contained within the consultation document. The pupil projections 

submitted by the Governing Body and Diocese are in line with those produced by the authority. 

9. Impact on Pupils Well-being 

Constant disruptions to the children’s education and well-being are not acceptable; second 

consultation leaves children in uncertain situation, find it distressing; inadequate consideration of 

the impact of a second consultation on the psychological health and well-being of pupils at Ysgol 

Llanbedr 

The authority has made adequate arrangements to ensure that the best interests of learners are 

ensured during this process. This has included producing a children and young people’s 

consultation document- to which numerous pupils have supplied a response. 

 

The authority, in conjunction with the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr DC, facilitated a 

consultation session for the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr which allowed them to put forward their views 

on the proposal. The children and young people’s version can be found here.  

 

Prior to the commencement of the consultation in June 2015 the authority contacted the school 

regarding arrangements for pupils during the consultation period. It was stated that should staff at 

the school or parents/carers become aware of any issues resulting in pupils requiring additional 

support this could be provided by contacting the relevant support officers within the school 

improvement team. Neither the school nor individual families have approached the authority with 

any concern to date.  Should the proposal be formally published this support would continue. 

10. Local Development Plan 

LDP has plans for 80 new houses- generate demand for Ysgol Llanbedr; developers unlikely to 

develop houses without nearby schools 

The Council calculate how many additional pupils would be generated should homes under the 

LDP be implemented using an agreed formula which is based on data gathered by Local 

Authorities. The primary school multiplier is 0.24 (no. of dwellings x 0.24). Should the 70 homes be 

built in the Llanbedr DC area this would generate an estimated 17 pupils as per the formula. The 

developments are expected to be phased with 20 homes identified to be built by 2020. This 

includes 5 homes in 2017, 5 homes in 2018, 5 homes in 2019 and 5 in 2020. 

 

There is no guarantee that all of these pupils would access the provision at Ysgol Llanbedr due to 

parental preference for language medium and other types of provision. As of May 2015 there 

were 37 pupils of primary school age living within the Llanbedr area. 12 pupils were attending 

Category 5 English medium (non-faith) schools including Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street 

School and Ysgol Bro Famau. A further 12 pupils were accessing Welsh medium education and a 

further 2 pupils were accessing Category 2 provision. 11 pupils from Llanbedr DC were attending 

Ysgol Llanbedr.  

Page 269

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/consultations/closed-consultations.aspx


 

34 
 

 

11. Financial  

Cost per pupil is coming down and will return to the Ruthin average; Ysgol Llanbedr is the lowest 

budget school in Ruthin area; has managed its budget this year without deficit; Council estimates 

savings of £126k- it will in fact be virtually nothing; No capital gain for Council from land/buildings; 

Added cost of transport to other schools; cost of developing alternative accommodation at 

another school; additional special needs requirements;  redundancy payments of staff   

Per Pupil Funding 

The proposal would result in a more equal distribution of funding within the area. The reduction in 

surplus places would allow funding to be released and re-distributed more directly to the benefit 

of the learner. Elements of the school budget that are pupil led would follow the pupil to their new 

provision should the proposal be implemented. Should all pupils transfer to Ysgol Borthyn this would 

result in an increase in Ysgol Borthyn’s budget of £86k (based on the current budget 2015/2016). 

This would result in per pupil funding of approximately £4,058, the Denbighshire average is 

£3,931.Pupil led funding allows the schools to ensure there is sufficient resource for the pupils.  

Ysgol Llanbedr Budget 

Ysgol Llanbedrs budget share is the lowest within the Ruthin area as it currently has the lowest 

number of pupils on roll. The authority is aware that the school has a marginal surplus. However, 

the school budget is directly linked to pupil numbers and therefore would be expected to have a 

small budget compared to larger schools. 

Savings 

Should the proposal be implemented and all existing pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr (nursery pupils have 

been included within the exercise as they would transition to reception class in September 2015) 

transferred to Ysgol Borthyn 15 pupils would be entitled to free school transport. The per annum 

cost would be approximately £26,600. By deducting the estimated transport costs it would result in 

an overall net saving of £104,056. 

 

The non-pupil led sum (£104k) would be reinvested within the Councils corporate plan to deliver 

the priority area of improving school buildings and facilities. This would be achieved by using the 

savings to generate prudential borrowing which in turn would fund investment works within 

Denbighshire’s schools. 

The authority would not pursue proposals to close any school based solely on financial gains such 

as capital receipts. In some instances this can be a residual benefit however educational aspects 

of the proposal can outweigh such financial benefits and must be the primary concern. 

The authority has provided information relating to recurrent costs (such as an annual revenue 

saving from mobile rental) and has detailed the transport costs should the proposal be 

implemented. The authority has also set out why Ysgol Borthyn does not require investment as the 

facilities are adequate and have a good condition and suitability rating.  

 

As of September 2015 there were 71 surplus places within faith provision in the Ruthin area. Should 

the current proposal be implemented there is sufficient capacity within the system without the 

need to develop additional accommodation. 

12. Accessibility of School Places and the Impact on Parental Choice and Faith Provision 

Proposal reducing parental choice of provision; important to offer parental choice in education; 

Proposals for closure of other schools in the area including Rhewl, Pentrecelyn, Llanfair and Rhos 

Street; Ysgol Llanbedr school at centre of a faith community, removes parents right to educate 

their children in a faith community based school; Have a strong faith which they developed at 

Ysgol Llanbedr; Parents value strong Christian ethos at Ysgol Llanbedr and excellent engagement 

school has with the Church in Wales 

The alternative school, Ysgol Borthyn, provides a faith based education. The authority recognises 

the importance of faith based provision within education. Parents who wish for their child/children 

Page 270



 

35 
 

to attend a faith based English medium provision will be able to continue to do so. At the 

commencement of the Ruthin review in February 2013 24.8% of the overall capacity for the Ruthin 

area were faith places. If all proposals put forward as part of the review are adopted the overall 

total will be 26.8% although there will be an overall reduction of 20 places. 

 

The authority acknowledges that there are a number of factors that determine where parents end 

their child/children. However, local authorities are unable to maintain all schools in the current 

financial climate especially where there are significant surplus places within the system. Should the 

proposal be implemented there will still be a mix of provision within the Ruthin area including rural, 

town, faith and language provision.  

 

Ysgol Borthyn is also a Church in Wales primary school, this would provide pupils with continuity in 

faith based provision should the current proposal be implemented. Estyn commented that “daily 

acts of collective worship and close links with the local church provide pupils with valuable 

opportunities to reflect on spiritual and moral issues” and that “links with the local church enrich 

pupils’ spiritual experiences”. Furthermore that “the school’s partnership with Llanfwrog Church 

helps pupils to make good progress with their spiritual development. There are weekly visits by the 

rector to assembly and classes, and pupils perform services in the church on religious festivals. 

These, plus school visits to places of worship, such as St Asaph Cathedral, support the religious 

education syllabus well.” 

 

The Ruthin are review commenced in 2013, a number of related proposals were put forward as 

part of the review. The review was undertaken on area basis to ensure that one proposal did not 

have a negative impact on neighbouring schools. Should all proposals as part of the review be 

implemented sufficient capacity would remain in the area to allow for parental choice for 

language medium and faith based provision. The review will consequently realise an investment of 

£15million and 4 new school buildings and facilities within the Ruthin area. 

 

The proposed alternative school, Ysgol Borthyn, provides a faith based provision. Should the 

proposal be implemented parents who wish to access this provision will be able to do so. Further 

faith based provision is also available within the Ruthin area at Ysgol Llanfair DC. Although the 

school is proposed to close, should this be approved it would form a new area school which would 

retain the faith based provision and the language offer. 

13. Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

Do not believe assessments are robust enough. Limited set of criteria and impact rated as neutral 

when it should be negative such as community demographics;  DCC community impact 

assessment has shown there to be no positive impacts from closure of the school and highlights the 

impact on community activities;  we do not feel a suitable and sufficient Community and Welsh 

language impact assessment has been carried out as part of the consultation process- many 

impacts have not been considered;Welsh impact assessment gives insufficient information given 

on the use of Welsh in Borthyn and the other schools;  Llanbedr has after school Urdd club and all 

pupils are members of the Urdd; closure of Llanbedr will have negative impact on the Welsh 

language; school committed to promoting Welsh language and culture;  impact assessment 

shows 97% of pupils speak Welsh- closure of Llanbedr would have negative impact on Welsh 

language;  keen for my children to learn Welsh- encouraged in Ysgol Llanbedr- will they be getting 

the same encouragement in other Category 5 schools in the area?  

 

The authority acknowledges that school closure will inevitably impact upon a community. It is 

recognised by the authority that the school plays an important role in the community, should the 

proposal be implemented there would be scope to extend links with Ysgol Borthyn and the 

Llanbedr DC community.  

Page 271



 

36 
 

 

There is a separate village hall located within Llanbedr which is utilised for events in the village. The 

school does not have a hall facility however the astro-turf pitch is used by the wider community. 

The authority would be open to working with the Diocese and local community to retain use of the 

facility for the local community. The authority has provided a response to the issues raised within 

the community impact assessment in section two of this table. 

 

Ysgol Llanbedr is a Category 5 schools and Welsh is taught as a second language. The proposal 

provides parents with the option for English medium education for their children with Welsh taught 

as a second language. This is similar to the current position and pupil access. The current proposal 

provides access and maintains parental preference for language medium. 

 

The national curriculum for the Foundation Phase includes Welsh Language Development (Welsh 

as a second language). Pupils in the Foundation Phase should learn to use and communicate their 

needs in Welsh to the best of their ability. Pupils should be encouraged to do so and should be 

increasingly exposed to Welsh. At Key Stage 2 pupils should build on these skills. This is followed by 

all schools in Wales, such as Category 5, schools which teach Welsh as a second language. The 

data provided within the assessment is clear that no pupils speak Welsh fluently. 32 pupils can 

speak Welsh but not fluently and 1 pupil cannot speak Welsh. This data was provided by the 

school.  

The impact assessment included outcomes at the end of Key Stage 2 Second Language Welsh 

assessment for Ysgol Borthyn with 100% of pupils gaining the expected outcomes. There is no data 

available for 2014 for Ysgol Llanbedr however in 2013 this was 100% and for Ysgol Borthyn in the 

same year this was 90%. Both were above the local and national average. Should the proposal be 

implemented pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr would receive an equivalent standard in respect of Welsh 

language provision.  

Denbighshire County Council is committed to the Welsh Government’s aspiration of delivering ‘a 

sustained increase in both the number and percentage of people able to speak Welsh’ and 

recognise the importance of bilingualism in the 21st century. DCC have adopted a long term 

aspiration that all children and young people in Denbighshire will leave full time education being 

competent and confident in using both Welsh and English. Outcome 5 of the Welsh in Education 

Strategic Plan aims to have ‘more learners with higher skills in Welsh’ including Welsh second 

language.    

14. Impact on Staff 

Request clarification that salary will be guaranteed up to and including 31st of August 2016 

Do not feel consultation document conveys the high value of work of staff 

The value of the staff is recognised by the authority. The authority also recognises the uncertainty 

that school reorganisation proposal can bring. Should the proposal be implemented all staff would 

be offered 1-2-1 meetings with a HR officer to discuss options such as redeployment, their well-

being and to offer support and advice appropriate to the needs of the individual members of 

staff.  All members of staff have been offered support by HR and a member of the HR team has 

visited the school during the consultation period. 

15. Impact on Local Economy 

Ruthin and surrounding area benefit from professionals and business people moving to the area- 

Denbighshire will lose out from council taxes and benefits to the local economy 

The authority notes the concerns regarding the impact on the local economy. However, the 

Council’s policy clearly states “Any review of schools within an area will have to take into 

consideration the impact and benefit a school or its facilities within the local community. The 

Community Impact Assessment will take into consideration both the community use of the school 

buildings and the wider impact the school has within the community. However, the overriding 

factor in any such review would be the effect on the standard of education and lifelong learning 

Page 272



 

37 
 

to be provided in the area.” 

 

The authority notes this concern. However, there are a number of villages within Denbighshire, and 

wider, which do not have village schools but continue to have a thriving and engaged 

community. Should parents wish for their child/children to access a village school provision there 

are schools within the area with surplus places. 

 

The authority has acknowledged within the Community Impact Assessment that a school closure 

would inevitably impact on a community but the proposal overall will assist in safeguarding the 

standard of education in the area.  

16. Glasdir Development 

Development of a new community school will undoubtedly have detrimental impact on the 

school (Borthyn); Risk of Ysgol Borthyn closing when the new school is built on Glasdir site 

It is the view of the authority that the new development for Rhos Street School and Ysgol Pen 

Barras will not have an adverse impact on Ysgol Borthyn. The capacity of the new development 

on the Glasdir site takes into account the capacity of the overall area and general quantum of 

pupils. Additional capacity that is not required will not be ‘built in’ to the detriment of another 

school in the area.  

17. Alleged Mismanagement of the LEA in 2011-2012 

Surplus places due to mismanagement in 2011-2012 by LEA; led to excess of surplus numbers; pupil 

numbers at a historical low due to the council mismanaging the appointment of a new 

permanent head teacher. 

Support was provided to the school and Governing Body during 2011-2012. A solution to the issues 

was reached in mutual agreement with the Governing Body at the time. Ysgol Llanbedr received 

extensive support from the school improvement team which saw pupil numbers stabilise. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

END 

 

=================================================================== 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 273



 

38 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix E 

Standard Response Form Analysis 

1.        Introduction  

 
1.1. As part of the formal consultation document pack a standard response form 

was attached to help elicit responses from consultees. The form was 

attached in hardcopy to the consultation document and was also available 

electronically.  
 

1.2. The standard response form was designed to establish; 
 Whether or not people were in favour of the current proposal; 
 The capacity in which they were responding; 
 Whether or not they were linked to either school; 

 What has influenced their views on the proposal; 

 Whether parents would send their child/children to the alternative 

school or another provision if the proposal was to be implemented; 

 Collate any comments regarding the proposal, either positive or 

negative. 

 

1.3. In total 427 standard response forms were completed and returned. This report 

provides an analysis of the responses received.  
 

2.        Analysis of Responses 

 

2.1. Respondents were asked if they were in favour of the current proposal or 

against, 97.9% of respondents were against the current proposal; 

 

Page 274



 

39 
 

Are you in favour of the current proposal; 

Yes 6 1.4% 

No 418 97.9% 

Skipped 3 0.7% 

Total 427  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2. Respondents were asked to indicate who they were responding as e.g. 

parent, community member etc. The majority of respondents indicated that 

they were community members; 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.3. Respondents were asked what had influenced their views about the 

proposal; 

Please tell us if any of the following has had an influence on your view of the 

proposal; 

Impact on educational provision 371 

The impact on the community  369 

Other/Additional* 51 

Total** 793 
*Comments submitted by respondents can be viewed in the table below **Respondees 

could choose more than one answer 

 

2.4. Respondents had the opportunity to provide additional comments regarding 

what had influenced their views. Comments received are outlined below 

alongside a response or point of clarification from the local authority; 

Type of respondent;  

Pupil of Ysgol Llanbedr  4 

A parent of a pupil of Ysgol Llanbedr 47 

A Governor of Ysgol Llanbedr 4 

A staff member of Ysgol Llanbedr 4 

A pupil of Ysgol Borthyn  1 

A parent of a pupil Ysgol Borthyn 3 

A Governor of Ysgol Borthyn 5 

A staff member of Ysgol Borthyn 2 

Community member  301 

Skipped 53 

Total 427 

Page 275



 

40 
 

 

Ref. Comment Response 

1A I'm worried that should these 

two schools close then there 

will be a detrimental effect 

on Llanfair school which has 

already suffered as a result of 

its amalgamation with 

Pentrecelyn, by this I mean in 

terms of increasing numbers 

of pupils at Llanfair and a 

worse pupil/teacher ratio as 

parents of Llanbedr may 

choose to move their 

children to the new area 

school in Llanfair. 

Ysgol Llanfair DC has been identified by the authority as a 

possible alternative provision should the current proposal be 

implemented. The proposed alternative school is Ysgol Borthyn, 

Ruthin. However, Ysgol Llanfair DC offers a faith based (Church 

in Wales) provision. The language category of Ysgol Llanfair DC 

is Category 2; a Category 2 schools are dual stream schools. 

Category 2 schools provide Welsh medium and English 

medium provision side by side dependent on parental 

preference.  

 

If parents choose Welsh medium the delivery language of the 

pupil’s education, the language of communication with the 

pupil and educational assessments are in Welsh- the same as 

Category 1 schools. If parents choose for their child to be 

educated through the medium of English the curriculum is 

delivered in English, the communication language with the 

child is in English and any assessments are done in English- the 

same as a Category 5 school. 

 

Based on the provision available at Ysgol Llanfair DC and the 

home locations of some of the existing pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr 

it is deemed reasonable that Ysgol Llanfair may be impacted 

by the proposal. There are currently 23 surplus places at Ysgol 

Llanfair DC as of September 2015. 

1B Impact on the economic 

well-being of the area - 

hampering attracting people 

to move into the area with 

the desire to send children to 

small village school.Impact 

on local business, no job= no 

money= no local spending. 

The authority notes this concern. However, there are a number 

of villages within Denbighshire, and wider, which do not have 

village schools but continue to have a thriving and engaged 

community. Should parents wish for their child/children to 

access a village school provision there are schools within the 

area with surplus places.  

1C The village based community 

church school is a fantastic 

environment for a child to be 

educated into a wholesome 

individual. This school should 

be given the opportunity to 

grow with the community. 

Fantastic location. 

Some of my family live there 

The authority notes the concerns regarding the impact on the 

local community. However, the Council’s policy clearly states 

“Any review of schools within an area will have to take into 

consideration the impact and benefit a school or its facilities 

have within the local community. The Community Impact 

Assessment will take into consideration both the community 

use of the school buildings and the wider impact the school 

has within the community. However, the overriding factor in 

any such review would be the effect on the standard of 

Page 276



 

41 
 

and have enjoyed contact 

with school on many 

occasions. I am concerned 

that you are taking this away 

from the elderly members of 

this community, and 

inevitably lowering their 

house prices unfairly. The 

impact of losing a local 

school providing top quality 

education and the disruption 

of the heart of an historical 

village. Former pupils are 

saddened by the proposal 

and mourn the loss of such a 

valuable service to Welsh 

village life. 

Impact on the economic 

well-being of the area - 

hampering attracting people 

to move into the area with 

the desire to send children to 

small village school. 

Impact on local business, no 

job= no money= no local 

spending. 

education and lifelong learning to be provided in the area.” 

 

The authority has acknowledged within the Community Impact 

Assessment that a school closure would inevitably impact on a 

community but the proposal overall will assist in safeguarding 

the standard of education in the area.  

 

 

 

 

1D Impact on children Impact 

on wider local area Impact 

on other schools in area. The 

impact on the young pupils 

who will be forced to make 

long journeys outside their 

community. The impact on 

my children. The impact on 

my children and all the 

children and staff at the 

school. The negative 

emotional impact This would 

have on my child. The 

impact on the staff and 

parents. The unjust action 

which is taking place for a 

SECOND time. Shoddy way in 

which Denbighshire has 

The authority has made adequate arrangements to ensure 

that the best interests of learners are ensured during this 

process. This has included producing a children and young 

people’s consultation document- to which numerous pupils 

have supplied a response.  

 

The authority, in conjunction with the Governing Body of Ysgol 

Llanbedr, facilitated a consultation session for the pupils of 

Ysgol Llanbedr which allowed them to put forward their views 

regarding the proposal. The findings of the session are set out in 

Appendix C.  

 

Prior the commencement of the formal consultation in June 

2015 the authority contacted the school regarding 

arrangements for pupils during the consultation period. It was 

stated that should staff at the school or parents/carers 

become aware of any issues resulting in pupils requiring 

additional support this could be provided by contacting the 

Page 277



 

42 
 

treated the school and 

community. The children. You 

are not thinking about them. 

They are clear they want to 

be schooled in Ysgol 

Llanbedr. Stress caused to 

children and families by 

conducting an 

unprecedented second 

consultation. The previous 

consultation was more than 

a minor technical flaw. The 

impact and uncertainty for 

the children -again! It's just 

not very professional putting 

the ones you say you are 

trying improve the education 

through this twice. Welfare of 

the children. The impact on 

wellbeing of pupils, staff and 

parents. Impact on 

grandchild’s well-being. 

Children having to go 

through closure for second 

time. 

relevant support officers within the school improvement team. 

Neither the school nor individual families have approached the 

authority with any concern to date. Should the proposal be 

formally published this support would continue.  

 

Any school re-organisation process could result in staff 

redundancy. However the council would actively seek re-

deployment as a preferred option for staff. In previous cases of 

school closures within Denbighshire redundancies have been 

minimal with the majority of staff redeployed.  

 

Should the proposal be implemented all staff would be offered 

1-2-1 meetings with a HR officer to discuss options such as re-

deployment, their well-being and to offer support and advice 

appropriate to the needs of the individual members of staff.  

 

All members of staff have been offered support by HR and a 

member of the HR team has visited the staffing body during 

the consultation period.    

1E The school is inappropriately 

placed, There are too many 

cars being driven there on 

school runs, with 

inconsiderate drivers driving 

too fast along a small single-

track country lane. This risks 

lives of local people, and of 

the very few schoolchildren 

whose parents actually walk 

them to school. 

This view is noted. 

1F There is ample evidence that 

there is need for church 

school places in the area. 

Llanbedr school is fully 

subscribed. Potential loss of a 

faith school discriminates 

against faith. The reduction in 

Church in Wales School 

The authority acknowledges the importance that faith based 

provision has within education. Ysgol Borthyn has been 

proposed as an alternative provision should the current 

proposal be implemented. Ysgol Borthyn provides an English 

medium faith based provision. There are currently 26 full time 

surplus places at Ysgol Borthyn (September 2015) and 6 part 

time surplus places.  

Other alternative faith based provision also exists within the 

Page 278



 

43 
 

places. The importance of 

receiving an education 

within a small, nurturing faith 

school. Ysgol Llanbedr is a 

viable school and there is 

clear demand for two English 

medium church schools in 

the Ruthin area, closing Ysgol 

Llanbedr removes 77 places 

that are needed. There is not 

enough capacity in other 

church schools to 

accommodate the 

projected pupils. 

Denbighshire County Council 

would be significantly 

reducing church school 

places if they proceeded 

with the proposal. The faith 

development of young 

people in rural areas outside 

the town of Ruthin. The 

impact on church school 

places.It is very important to 

have a Christian school in the 

area. Christian ethos. 

Ruthin area with Ysgol Llanfair DC offering a faith based 

provision within a Category 2 language offer. Please see 

section 1A of this table for further information relating to 

categorisation of primary schools and the offer provided. At 

the commencement of the Ruthin review in February 2013 

24.8% of the overall capacity for the Ruthin area were faith 

places. If all proposals put forward as part of the review are 

adopted the overall total will be 26.8% although there will be 

an overall reduction of 20 places. The surplus within faith 

provision as of September 2015 was 71 places equating to 

22.9%. There are a further 133 surplus places within alternative 

English medium provision within the Ruthin area.  

 

Additionally, some pupils have alternative Church in Wales 

English medium schools closer to their home locations other 

than Ysgol Borthyn and Ysgol Llanfair DC. Should the proposal 

be implemented parents who wish to send their child/children 

to an alternative English medium faith based school will be 

able to do so. Home to school transport will be in line with the 

Council Transport Policy.  

1G LDP states that Llanbedr 

should have over 70 new 

houses built over the coming 

years. With no local school 

the area will not be as 

popular with developers, 

without a school the houses 

will not sell so well, thus 

Denbighshire will be cheated 

out of Council Tax. Yet again 

Denbighshire would have 

failed to see the economic 

long term advantages of 

attracting home purchasers 

and Council tax payers to 

the County. 

The Council have adopted a formula which generates a 

potential pupil yield as a consequence of new housing 

developments. The primary school multiplier is 0.24 pupils per 

dwelling. Should 70 homes be built within the Llanbedr area this 

would generate around 17 additional pupils. Currently 20 

homes have been identified to be built by 2020 by developers. 

This includes 5 homes in 2017, 5 homes in 2018 5 homes in 2019 

and 5 homes in 2020. There is currently no indication from 

developers that the remaining 50 homes will be built prior to 

2020. 

 

The authority also recognises there are a number of factors 

that determine where parents send their child/children. There is 

no guarantee that all of these pupils would access the 

provision offered at Ysgol Llanbedr DC due to parental 

preference for language medium and other types of provision.  

As of May 2015 there were 37 pupils of primary school age 

residing in the Llanbedr DC area. 12 pupils were attending 

Page 279



 

44 
 

other Category 5 English medium schools including Ysgol 

Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street School and Ysgol Bro Famau. 

A further 12 were accessing Welsh medium education and a 

further 2 pupils were accessing Category 2 schools. 11 pupils 

from Llanbedr DC attend Ysgol Llanbedr.  

1H People have chosen to send 

their kids to Llanbedr as I 

have been to Pen Barras. 

They don’t want to change 

schools and why should 

they? 

In the current financial climate local authorities are unable to 

maintain all schools, especially where there are significant 

surplus places within the system. Should all proposals related to 

the Ruthin area review be implemented a range of provision 

will continue to be maintained including faith and language 

provision. 

1I The unprecedented re 

application to the Welsh 

Government shortly after the 

Welsh Government ruled in 

the school's favour. 

As a point of clarification there is no application to the Welsh 

Government to formally consult. A decision to formally consult 

on the proposed closure of Ysgol Llanbedr DC was taken by 

DCC Cabinet of elected members in June 2015.  

1J Austerity from 2010 lead by 

the coalition govt, has 

destroyed communities 

around the uk especially rural 

communities with a smaller 

population, none the less all 

governments have a duty to 

uphold national schooling 

programmes, closing down 

of so many social community 

buildings shows a total lack 

of commitment by councils 

across the country and 

destroys the sprite of these 

hard working tax paying 

families, if these closures 

where in the south east or 

west of the country it 

wouldn't be happening, why 

are we being the poor 

country of the UK? 

This comment is noted.  

1K Both educational impact 

and community are huge 

parts of our objection but we 

also object due to economic 

reasons (we cannot both 

work full-time without the 

This is noted and the authority acknowledges that school 

organisation proposals and processes bring uncertainty. The 

authority has made adequate arrangements to ensure that 

the best interests of learners are ensured during this process. 

This has included producing a children and young people’s 

consultation document- to which numerous pupils have 

supplied a response. The report is set out in Appendix C of this 

Page 280



 

45 
 

exceptional wrap around 

childcare), and decency. 

The decision of the Cabinet 

to move to close the school 

a few days after letting us 

hold a celebration party at 

school is cruel in the extreme. 

The Council does not have 

the right to act in a way 

which damages the 

happiness and stability of our 

children. You have no idea 

how difficult this has been - I 

dread to think how he will 

view democracy as he grows 

up having seen such 

unashamed unfairness 

demonstrated by "Grown 

Ups". 

formal consultation report pack and Appendix D contains the 

Children and Young People’s version.  

 

Prior to the commencement of the consultation in June 2015 

the authority contacted the school regarding arrangements 

for pupils during the consultation period. It was stated that 

should staff at the school or parents/carers become aware of 

any issues resulting in pupils requiring additional support this 

could be provided by contacting the relevant support officers 

within the school improvement team. Neither the school nor 

individual families have approached the authority with any 

concern to date.  Should the proposal be formally published 

this support would continue. 

1L The excellent education 

received by the children. 

This is noted however as part of their response to the 

consultation Estyn concluded that the proposal is likely to at 

least maintain the current standards of education in the area 

based on the information and data provided within the 

consultation document. The authority included a range of 

data and statistical information within the consultation 

document relating to outcomes and standards at Ysgol 

Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn. This included contextualised data 

at both Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2. Data for other 

schools in the area has also been included within the 

consultation document. Tables relating to outcomes across the 

Ruthin area and in individual schools at both the Foundation 

Phase and Key Stage 2 are provided in 2A.  

 

A full response to the educational aspects of the proposal and 

a comparison between educational outcomes and standards 

at both Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn can be found in 

section 2A of the table contained in section 3. 

1M Grandchildren educated at 

Ysgol Llanbedr and are all 

the better for it. 

This is noted. 

1N Childcare facility. This is noted. A full response to wrap-around-care provision can 

be found in section 2G of the table contained in section 3. 

 

Page 281



 

46 
 

2.5. Respondents were asked if the proposal was to be implemented would they 

send their child/children to Ysgol Borthyn, the proposed alternative school, or 

an alternative provision; 

 

If the current proposal was implemented would you send your child/children to 

Ysgol Borthyn or an alternative provision? (those who have stated they are a 

current or prospective parent of Ysgol Llanbedr) 

Ysgol Borthyn 5 

Other** 12 

Skipped/Not Applicable 30 

Total* 47 
*Respondents who indicated they were parents or prospective parents of Ysgol Llanbedr.**Respondents who 

stated that they would choose alternative provision stated they would possibly choose Ysgol Gellifor, Ysgol Bro 

Famau, Rhos Street School, home school or look at other schools out of the area. 

 

 

3.        Response to Issues Raised 

 

3.1. Respondents were invited to provide further comments or observations 

regarding the current proposal. These have been grouped into themes 

below alongside a response or point of clarification from the local authority. 

 

Issue Raised LA Response 

2A Educational Provision  84 respondents raised issue 

Educational Provision: unique 

educational environment; The school 

makes a great educational start for 

primary children; village based 

community church school is a fantastic 

environment for a child to be educated 

into a wholesome individual; brilliant 

school; small class sizes; Ysgol Llanbedr is 

providing an excellent education for its 

pupils as it has done for many years; 

dedicated hardworking staff; Ysgol 

Llanbedr is the only English medium, 

rural faith school in the Ruthin area. 

Ysgol Llanbedr consistently delivers 

exceptional education to the pupils in a 

wonderful environment, indoor and 

outdoor and because of this Ysgol 

Llanbedr is now growing and is seen as 

a desirable school for a many families 

from within the traditional catchment 

area for the school and further afield; 

School is highly recommended great 

facilities and great staff; educational 

Many respondents have outlined the current provision at 

Ysgol Llanbedr especially in terms of educational delivery 

such as; 

 

 Small class sizes; 

 Provides an excellent education; 

 Dedicated staff; 

 Wonderful environment- indoor and outdoor; 

 Provides a family community environment. 

 

Estyn, in their response to the formal consultation, 

concluded that should the proposal be implemented the 

standards of education within the area would at least be 

maintained. It is the view of the authority that should the 

proposal be implemented and pupils transfer to Ysgol 

Borthyn, or another of the identified alternative provision, 

they would have access to at least an equivalent 

standard of provision.  

 

Educational outcomes and attainment across the Ruthin 

area are good as a whole, the tables below display the 

Ruthin area average for the Foundation Phase and Key 

Stage 2 (this information was also contained within the 

Page 282



 

47 
 

standard that is good and better than 

the average within Denbighshire and 

Wales; The children do very well 

academically, they leave school 

confident, with a positive attitude to 

learning and ready for high school; 

village school provide a nurturing 

environment; Unparalled high standard 

of teaching excellence; school provides 

a family/community environment which 

I value; teaches children to a high 

standard above some of the other local 

primary schools  

formal consultation document); 

 

 
 

 

 
 

The tables below displays the outcomes at the end of the 

Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 in all schools identified 

in the consultation document, this includes the outcomes 

for the 2014/2015 academic year; 

 

Foundation Phase- Outcome 5 and above 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Llanbedr 85.7% 87.5% 100% 83.3% 100% 100% 

Borthyn 82.4% 77.3% 58.8% 53.8% 100% 70% 

Rhos 

Street 

88.9% 90% 95.2% 100% 100% 100% 

Gellifor 100% 94.7% 100% 100% 93.3% 75% 

Bro 

Famau 

100% 90% 81.8% 90.9% 80% 100% 

Rhewl 100% 100% 66.7% 83.3% 85.7% 70% 

Llanfair 

DC 

94.1% 86.7% 100% 100% 92.3% 100% 

D’shire 

Av. 

82.4% 79.8% 86.4% 84.9% 86.1% 86.4% 

Wales 

Av. 

81.6% 82.7% 80.5% 83% 85.2% 86.8% 

 

 

 

Page 283



 

48 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Stage 2 Level 4+ 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Llanbedr 84.6% 100% 85.7% 100% n/a n/a* 

Borthyn 58.8% 78.6% 92.3% 93.3% 80% 83.3% 

Rhos 

Street 

93.5% 93.3% 96.6% 92.6% 100% 100% 

Gellifor 92.9% 92.3% 100% 91.7% 100% 100% 

Bro 

Famau 

91.7% 100% 94.4% 95.8% 100% 100% 

Rhewl 100% 100% 100% 100% 75% 90.9% 

Llanfair 

DC 

88.9% 91.7% 100% 94.1% 93.3% 100% 

D’shire 

Av. 

78.1% 82.3% 83.5% 86% 86.6% 87.9% 

Wales 

Av. 

77% 80% 82.6% 84.3% 86.1% 87.7% 

*Data has been omitted as it is potentially disclosive 

 

 

During the formal consultation period the outcomes for 

the 2014/2015 academic year were not available. The 

2015 outcomes are displayed in the table above. The 

tables below provide contextualised data for both Ysgol 

Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn for the 2015 academic year; 

 

Contextualised Data Foundation Phase Outcomes 2015 

School ALN FSM EAL Total in 

Cohort* 

Llanbedr 0 1 0 7 

Borthyn 6 1 2 10 

*Total includes pupils in cohort who are not ALN/FSM/EAL 

 

 

Although in 2015 the outcomes at Ysgol Borthyn for the 

Foundation Phase were below the local and national 

average, 60% of the cohorts were pupils with Additional 

Page 284



 

49 
 

Learning Needs including 2 pupils who are statemented. 

A further 20% of the cohort were pupils with English as an 

additional language (EAL). In summary 80% of the cohort 

were pupils with ALN or EAL. No pupils at Ysgol Llanbedr 

had Additional Learning Needs and no pupils were EAL. 

The Free School Meals % at both schools for the assessed 

cohorts were similar.  

 

 

Contextualised Data Key Stage 2 Outcomes 2015 

School ALN FSM EAL Total in 

Cohort* 

Llanbedr n/a** n/a n/a n/a 

Borthyn 9 2 5 24 

*Total includes pupils in cohort who are not ALN/FSM/EAL 

**Data has been omitted as it has potential to be 

disclosive. Data has been provided to decision makers. 

 

Ysgol Borthyn saw an improvement in attainment at Key 

Stage 2 from the last academic year although this was 

not above the local or national average. There were a 

total of 24 pupils in the assessed cohort, 9 of these pupils 

had additional learning needs equating to 37.5% of the 

overall cohort with a further 5 pupils having English as an 

additional language (EAL) equating to 20.8% of the 

overall cohort. Of the total cohort 8.3% were FSM. The 

cohort in Ysgol Llanbedr was small; the data relating to 

the cohort is potentially disclosive. The data has been 

made available to decision makers. 

2B School Facilities 21 respondents raised this issue (some respondents 

included this within the above educational provision) 

School Facilities: Fantastic location; it 

has more potential than other schools in 

the area with its grounds and setting; 

safe and secure site; Llanbedr has an 

AstroTurf, large field, purpose built car 

park, great outdoor facilities, outdoor 

learning areas and equipment, safe, 

aesthetically pleasing site; site at 

Llanbedr is wonderful greenfield site 

surrounded by fields; Space for 

expansion or development 

Many respondents have outlined the facilities available at 

Ysgol Llanbedr, in particular attention has been drawn to 

its outdoor facilities. Although respondents believe that 

the outdoor facilities at Ysgol Llanbedr are of a better 

quality to those at Ysgol Borthyn and other alternative 

schools the facilities available at alternative schools are 

equivalent to those provided at Ysgol Llanbedr. 

 

Estyn also found the learning environment at Ysgol 

Borthyn to be good stating “The well-maintained school 

building provides a clean and pleasant learning 

environment. There is plenty of space available on the 

school site for outdoor play and learning. Areas such as 

the vegetable garden, forest area and the secure play 

area for children in the Foundation Phase extend 

opportunities for learning well.” Ysgol Borthyn has 

sufficient outdoor hard play area which is utilised for 

outdoor activities year round. It is recognised that this is 

not an astro-turf facility however it would not impact on 

the pupils access to outdoor PE provision should the 

Page 285



 

50 
 

current proposal be implemented.  

Respondents have noted that the school has an astro-turf 

located on the site (which is also used for community 

use). Ysgol Borthyn, or any of the neighbouring alternative 

schools do not have a multi-use games area/astro-turf, 

however the new development at Glasdir would likely 

provide a multi-use games area. Respondents have also 

claimed the site has more potential than other schools to 

expand, however expansion of the site would require 

significant capital investment and would likely lead to an 

increase in surplus places within the area. 

 

2C Impact on Pupils/Families 45 respondents raised this issue 

Impact on Pupils/Families: The closure 

of the school will be detrimental to the 

children's well-being; damaging to the 

well-being and consequently to the 

educational attainment of those pupils; 

the impact on the children during an 

extremely vulnerable time in their 

education - their foundation years- 

appears to be irrelevant to the MET. The 

children should not be under this 

amount of uncertainty which could 

cause anxiety and stress at this early 

stage in their life for the second time; 

children’s document had to be re-

written – wrongly worded and 

misleading 

This is noted and the authority acknowledges that school 

organisation proposals and processes bring uncertainty. 

The authority has made adequate arrangements to 

ensure that the best interests of learners are ensured 

during this process.  

 

This has included producing a children and young 

people’s consultation document- to which numerous 

pupils have supplied a response. The report is set out in 

Appendix C of this formal consultation report pack. 

 

Prior to the commencement of the consultation in June 

2015 the authority contacted the school regarding 

arrangements for pupils during the consultation period. It 

was stated that should staff at the school or 

parents/carers become aware of any issues resulting in 

pupils requiring additional support this could be provided 

by contacting the relevant support officers within the 

school improvement team. Neither the school nor 

individual families have approached the authority with 

any concern to date.  Should the proposal be formally 

published this support would continue. 

2D Impact on staff 21 respondents raised this issue 

Impact on Staff: Uncertainty, stress Any school re-organisation process could result in staff 

redundancy. However, the council would actively seek 

re-deployment as a preferred option for staff. Where 

school organisation proposals have been implemented 

previously redundancies have been minimal with the 

majority of staff re-deployed. Costs for support from HR 

are absorbed by the SLA and would not reduce the 

proposed savings. Should the proposal be implemented 

all staff would be offered 1-2-1 meetings with a HR officer 

to discuss options such as redeployment, their well-being 

and to offer support and advice appropriate to the 

needs of the individual members of staff.  All members of 

staff have been offered support by HR and a member of 

the HR team has visited the school during the consultation 

period. 

Page 286



 

51 
 

2E Impact on the Community and Local 

Area 

86 respondents raised this issue 

Impact on Community/Local Area: The 

school has been at the heart of the 

community for many years; Impact on 

the economic well-being of the area - 

hampering attracting people to move 

into the area with the desire to send 

children to a small village school; I feel 

that rural schools should be kept open 

to give village identity and community 

activity; large influence on many 

aspects of the local community; village 

schools are a large part of the local 

communities and need to be 

maintained; Closing local schools has a 

detrimental effect on the community it 

serves. We are supposed to support our 

rural communities and more and more 

is being taken away from them; The loss 

of this school would be detrimental to 

the local community; Ysgol Llanbedr 

has served the village of Llanbedr DC 

and the wider community for over 150 

years; and inevitably lowering their 

house prices unfairly; They benefit 

greatly from the links this provides with 

other residents of the village. They enjoy 

taking part in community and church 

events such as the village show, 

Christmas lantern parade, church 

services, singing for the older people’s 

luncheons and their presence in our 

regular events that we hold for the 

community. My children enjoy learning 

from older members of the community 

who volunteer in school, who give their 

time, skills and expertise willingly. I feel 

this village school is thriving and is the 

hub of the community. To close it would 

be detrimental to the whole of the 

village; Closing the school will destroy 

the community, the school is the heart 

and soul of the village and church; 

impact on families living in rural poverty 

has not been fully explored  

 

The authority acknowledges that were school closures are 

proposed it will inevitably have some impact on the local 

community. The Code requires local authorities to 

produce a Community Impact Assessment to measure 

the impact and how the impact can be minimised or 

negated. 

 

It is recognised by the authority that the school plays an 

important role in the community, should the proposal be 

implemented there would be scope to extend links with 

Ysgol Borthyn as the proposed receiving school and the 

Llanbedr community. Due to the proximity of Llanbedr to 

the town of Ruthin the authority would seek to assist the 

Governing Body and PTA of Ysgol Borthyn to foster links 

with the wider Llanbedr community. 

 

The authority is aware that the school site is subject to a 

reverter and has not claimed that the release of the Ysgol 

Llanbedr DC site and building would result in a capital 

receipt which would be re-invested into the Modernising 

Education Programme. The authority does not believe 

that the content of the policy is misleading. In other 

instances where school buildings and sites have been 

subject to a reverter under Charity Commission Law, 

Denbighshire have worked with third parties, such as the 

Church in Wales Diocese to seek to retain the use of the 

building for the community, for example in Bryneglwys 

following the closure of the site and establishment of 

Ysgol Dyffryn Ial on a single site. Should the proposal be 

implemented the Council would facilitate discussions with 

the local community and the Diocese of St Asaph should 

they wish to seek to retain all or part of the building 

and/or site for community use. 

2F Alternative Provision  82 respondents raised this issue 

Alternative Provision: The differences 

between Borthyn and Llanbedr are 

huge. Plus Borthyn is oversubscribed 

Standards, Outcomes and Provision 

 

As part of their response to the consultation Estyn 

Page 287



 

52 
 

and parking impossible - it has a lower 

grade of education reported by last 

inspection; Borthyn- considering it is of a 

lower standard than Llanbedr itself; 

DCC claims the Borthyn school is 

equivalent- not borne out by the data 

published in the consultation; I know of 

no other school in the area that can 

match the facilities and standards of 

education; Moving to Borthyn will be a 

negative step; There is not the physical 

space in Borthyn for all the children from 

Ysgol Llanbedr as detailed in the 

consultation document; I do not feel 

Ysgol Borthyn is equivalent to or better 

than what Ysgol Llanbedr is offering, in 

fact, I don't feel any Ruthin school can 

offer the same standard of schooling; 

The increase in the number of pupils at 

the proposed school will affect road 

safety for all pupils; safety and suitability 

of schools and traffic in Ruthin- 

congested; The proposed school does 

not offer equivalent or better 

educational standards or facilities; Ysgol 

Borthyn is not a suitable alternative, the 

only alternative would be same or 

better - recent Estyn inspection put 

Borthyn at adequate , Llanbedr 's last 

inspection was on the old Estyn format 

but in summary was good in almost all 

areas; Borthyn doesn't have the space 

for Llanbedr's pupils or the parking 

facilities for pick up and drop off; the 

proposed new school on Glasdir only 

has capacity for Pen Barras and Rhos St 

children, you are in danger of putting 

Llanbedr's pupils in a position where 

there is not space for them anywhere; 

given a yellow banding and achieved 

excellent results in national tests, in 

order to send children to an 'adequate' 

school with an amber banding. Clearly, 

this is not offering parents and pupils an 

equivalent standard of education; 

Academically the proposed alternative 

school Borthyn is well below Llanbedr 

and cannot be considered a like for like 

alternative so yet again you are being 

deceptive claiming it is the same;  

From the tables in the consultation 

concluded that the proposal is likely to at least maintain 

the current standards of education in the area based on 

the information and data provided within the 

consultation document. The authority included a range of 

data and statistical information within the consultation 

document relating to outcomes and standards at Ysgol 

Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn. This included contextualised 

data at both Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2. Data for 

other schools in the area has also been included within 

the consultation document. Tables relating to outcomes 

across the Ruthin area and in individual schools at both 

the Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 are provided in 

2A.  

 

Where cohorts are small, such as at Ysgol Llanbedr, 

outcomes should be treated with caution. There have 

been no available Key Stage 2 outcomes at Ysgol 

Llanbedr for the last two academic years. Furthermore, 

Estyn stated that the proposer {DCC} had appropriately 

considered the impact of the proposal on pupil 

outcomes, provision and leadership and management. 

Estyn stated a useful range of information relating to 

performance outcomes.  

 

Following a follow up visit in March this year Ysgol Borthyn 

has been removed from Estyn monitoring. Ysgol Borthyn 

has also appointed a permanent head teacher. Although 

Ysgol Borthyn is classified as amber and Ysgol Llanbedr as 

yellow the overall weighting for the two schools is similar 

with Ysgol Borthyn at 16.5 and Ysgol Llanbedr at 16. Both 

schools are in Standards Group 3.  

 

Facilities  

 

The authority has produced evidence relating to 

condition and suitability surveys at Ysgol Borthyn which 

indicate the school provides a good learning 

environment. Estyn also found the learning environment 

at Ysgol Borthyn to be good following an inspection in 

2014 stating “The well-maintained school building 

provides a clean and pleasant learning environment. 

There is plenty of space available on the school site for 

outdoor play and learning. Areas such as the vegetable 

garden, forest area and the secure play area for children 

in the Foundation Phase extend opportunities for learning 

well.”  

 

Pupils at Ysgol Borthyn have access to outdoor PE and 

utilise hard play areas year round, although this is 

recognised this would not be on an astro-turf facility. 

 

Page 288



 

53 
 

document education is not equivalent- 

results are worse, environment is worse 

and inspection reports are worse; there 

is no equal alternative school in the 

Ruthin area; 

Llanbedr one only 12 schools forecast a 

surplus budget- Borthyn due to have 

deficit in 3 years time- exacerbating the 

situation at Borthyn  

Capacity of Ysgol Borthyn 

 

As of September 2015 there were 32 Full Time pupils in 

Ysgol Llanbedr and 4 Part Time pupils. The current 

capacity of Llanbedr is 54 (this will increase to 77 as of 

September 2016 however a flexible admission number is 

currently being applied) which results in 22 surplus places 

equating to 40.7% of the total capacity. As of September 

2015 there were 116 Full Time pupils at Ysgol Borthyn and 

14 Part Time pupils. The current capacity of Borthyn is 142 

which results in 26 surplus places equating to 18.3% of the 

total capacity. Part time (nursery places) are not included 

within the full time pupil capacity and are calculated 

separately. The table below provides current numbers of 

pupils on roll as of September for both Ysgol Borthyn and 

Ysgol Llanbedr; 

 

 N R 1 2 3 4 5 6 

YL 4 10 7 3 7 2 3 0 

YB 14 18 22 19 11 13 16 17 

T 18 28 29 22 18 15 19 17 

*N&R admission data as of September 2015.   

 

Should the proposal be implemented and all full time 

pupils transfer to Ysgol Borthyn this would result in a total 

of 148 full time pupils. Ysgol Borthyn has accommodated 

full time pupil numbers greater than 142 full time pupils in 

the past. Within the capacity assessment there is potential 

accommodation for 23 further full time pupils at Ysgol 

Borthyn as per the capacity assessment. As demonstrated 

should all pupils transfer to Ysgol Llanbedr the pupils could 

be accommodated within the current class structures 

and would not exceed 30 pupils per class. There is also 

further faith provision within the Ruthin area, Ysgol Llanfair 

DC which has a capacity of 113 with 23 surplus places as 

of September 2015. Ysgol Llanfair DC is a Category 2 dual 

stream provision. The majority of parents who responded 

to the consultation stated a preference for other 

alternative provision with a small number displaying a 

preference for the proposed alternative.  

 

The Council recognises that pupil numbers in Ysgol 

Llanbedr will increase over the coming years and this 

data has been contained within the pupil forecasts data 

within the consultation document. The authority remains 

of the view that these pupils coming through the system 

can be accommodated at Ysgol Borthyn within existing 

class structures going forward and the reduction in 

capacity within the English medium faith based primary 

sector would not result parental choice being removed.  

 

Page 289



 

54 
 

Other faith based provision exists within the wider Ruthin 

area which would provide an English medium provision. 

The Church in Wales as  a co-promoter with Denbighshire 

have recently published a statutory notice to establish a 

new Church in Wales area school to serve Llanfair and 

Pentrecelyn as a dual stream school at which pupils may 

be educated through the Medium of English as per the 

offer described in the categorisation of schools. At the 

commencement of the Ruthin review in February 2013 

24.8% of the overall capacity for the Ruthin area were 

faith places. If all proposals put forward as part of the 

review are adopted the overall total will be 26.8% 

although there will be an overall reduction of 20 places. 

There is potential capacity within Ysgol Borthyn (as per the 

capacity assessment) for a further 23 full time pupils 

places. Should it be required this space could be utilised 

within the school. 

 

 

 

 

 

Capacity of Other Alternative Schools 

 

The table below provides an overview of surplus places 

by school as of September 2015- Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol 

Borthyn are included for comparative purposes;  

 

School Capacity Surplus 

Ysgol Llanbedr 54* 22 

Ysgol Borthyn 142 26 

Ysgol Llanfair 

DC 

113 23 

Rhos Street 

School 

189 27 

Ysgol Bro 

Famau 

135 56 

Ysgol Gellifor 91 13 

Ysgol Rhewl 82 37 

Totals 806 204 

*Capacity to increase to 77 as of September 2016 

 

 

There are 182 surplus places within other alternative 

schools within the area, 49 places are within faith 

provision.  

 

Highway/Parking/Drop off & Pick Up Concerns 

 

Currently one pupil is transported to school at Ysgol 

Borthyn. School transport vehicles do not alight and 

Page 290



 

55 
 

disembark from the Denbigh Road to the front of the 

school but at the rear access of the school off the Porth y 

Dre housing estate.  

 

2G Wrap-around-care 78 respondents raised this issue 

Wrap-around-care: Ysgol Llanbedr 

offers wrap around care which is 

needed by the parents due to work 

commitments; The school provides 

excellent wrap around care suitable for 

working families; Ysgol Llanbedr offers 

full wrap around care, breakfast club, 

after school club and holiday club. 

There is not equivalent care at Ysgol 

Borthyn;  It provides a flexible, fun and 

stimulating environment that the 

children love which enables parents to 

continue working due to the affordable, 

accessible and convenient childcare; 

Llanbedr Munchkins is the only service in 

the area that provides wrap around 

care 8am-6pm and through holidays, 

this service is used by many from the 

Ruthin area not just Llanbedr allowing 

parents to work, ensuring the strength of 

the local areas economy; Munchkins is 

used by children from every school in 

the area during the year but it is solely 

reliant on Ysgol Llanbedr, as it cannot 

exist anywhere else; cannot work full 

time without wrap around care; 

misrepresentation that munchkins can 

be moved to another site  

The Denbighshire County Council childcare sufficiency 

report (2014) noted that there were a total of 354 

childcare places available in the Ruthin area. There were 

258 children of 0-3 years of age in 2014 with 50% of 

childcare vacancies empty for this age range not taking 

into account 118 spaces within full day care private 

provision. The full day care provision in Ruthin has a daily 

capacity of 57% of the numbers it could cater for 

suggesting that there is more than adequate childcare 

options and places available within the area. Other full 

day child care is available in the Ruthin area.  

 

The authority notes concerns that ‘munchkins’ would not 

be viable without the school remaining open. It has been 

proposed that the village hall would be suitable however 

consultees have stated that this would not be an option 

as the village hall is well utilised throughout the day and 

could not accommodate the facility.  

 

Other schools, including Ysgol Borthyn, have wrap-

around-care available. Ysgol Borthyn offers ‘Borthyn 

Bunnies’ playgroup for pupils aged two and a half years 

and over for morning and afternoon sessions. Other 

schools within the area also offer similar wrap-around-

care provision, breakfast club and after school club. 

Although the authority recognises the importance to 

parents of wrap-around-care it is important to note that 

this is not a statutory provision.  

2H Consultation Process 19 respondents raised issue 

Consultation Process: Current proposal 

has not been consulted upon properly; 

un-precedented re-application to the 

WG shortly after WG ruled in their 

favour; should never have had another 

consultation; I do not believe the 

council has acted democratically in its 

procedures nor in the way it has 

consulted with the local community; less 

than two weeks between the decision 

from the minister  before 

announcement of a new consultation- 

not enough time to review the current 

situation; section 4.7 consultation 

document mentions a birth rate of 21 

but  table shows 4 for Llanbedr- which is 

it? authority has not sought to explain 

The authority has followed the process for consultation as 

per the School Organisation Code. The authority has 

conducted a broad consultation and has received a 

total of 539 responses to the consultation.  

 

The decision to formally consult was not taken until the 2nd 

of June 2015. The Minister in his decision letter stated that 

he was concerned about the future of Ysgol Llanbedr in 

the light of the relatively low number of children on roll 

and the temporary nature of current leadership. The 

authority has considered the Ministers recommendations; 

it remains the view of the authority in light of the current 

situation within the Ruthin area that closure remains the 

preferred option to ensure that educational standards 

are safeguarded for the future. 

Page 291



 

56 
 

why in light of the previous decision by 

the minister it has decided to proceed 

with the proposal afresh  

2I Impact on Alternative Schools 5 respondents raised this issue 

Impact on Alternative Schools: I'm 

worried that should these two schools 

close then there will be a detrimental 

effect on Llanfair; Difficult as we don't 

know what the new school provision will 

be for English Medium in Ruthin; most 

parents unlikely to move their child to 

Ysgol Borthyn so there would be 

additional demands made on other 

rural schools for placements; would be 

looking to send to Gellifor, Rhos Street or 

Llanfair- I think impact of this should be 

addressed and investigated 

The impact on other provision within the area has been 

addressed by the authority. Ysgol Borthyn has been 

identified as the most suitable alternative provision as it 

offers faith based English medium provision. There are 

surplus places within all of the identified possible 

alternative schools including Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street 

School and Ysgol Llanfair DC should parents wish to 

choose a provision other than Ysgol Borthyn.  

 

The new school building within the town of Ruthin is a 

replacement school building for Rhos Street School and 

not an entirely new provision. Information relating to 

outcomes and standards at the school has been 

included within the formal consultation document.  

2J Parental Choice 7 respondents raised this issue 

Parental Choice: Closing the school 

takes away parental right to choose; 

Parents should have a choice between 

large town schools or small village 

schools. Closing down the village 

schools takes away this choice; without 

Llanbedr there would be no English 

medium faith school in a village 

location  

The authority acknowledges that there are a number of 

factors that determine where parents end their 

child/children. However, local authorities are unable to 

maintain all schools in the current financial climate 

especially where there are significant surplus places within 

the system. Should the proposal be implemented there 

will still be a mix of provision within the Ruthin area 

including rural, town, faith and language provision.  

2K Local Development Plan  62 respondents raised this issue 

Local Development Plan: Once the new 

housing development has been built as 

this will bring more young families in to 

the area; with no local school the area 

will not be as popular with developers, 

without a school the houses will not sell 

so well; the impact of the LDP does not 

seem to have been considered 

thoroughly in the consultation and the 

fact that a school will be a requirement 

for a number of families who will 

inevitably move in to the village with 

the new housing; If the council are 

building new homes in Llanbedr any 

children will need a school; where will 

all the new children go if you are filling 

up other schools to capacity; New 

buildings in the village would change 

the demographics overnight- influx of 

families would require there to be a 

local school  

The Council calculate how many additional pupils would 

be generated should homes under the LDP be 

implemented using an agreed formula which is based on 

data gathered by Local Authorities. The primary school 

multiplier is 0.24 (no. of dwellings x 0.24). Should the 70 

homes be built in the Llanbedr DC area this would 

generate an estimated 17 pupils as per the formula. The 

developments are expected to be phased with 20 homes 

identified to be built by 2020. This includes 5 homes in 

2017, 5 homes in 2018, 5 homes in 2019 and 5 in 2020. 

 

There is no guarantee that all of these pupils would 

access the provision at Ysgol Llanbedr due to parental 

preference for language medium and other types of 

provision. As of May 2015 there were 37 pupils of primary 

school age living within the Llanbedr area. 12 pupils were 

attending Category 5 English medium (non-faith) schools 

including Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street School 

and Ysgol Bro Famau. A further 12 pupils were accessing 

Welsh medium education and a further 2 pupils were 

accessing Category 2 provision. 11 pupils from Llanbedr 

DC were attending Ysgol Llanbedr.  

Page 292



 

57 
 

2L Faith Provision  57 respondents raised this issue 

Faith Provision: Potential loss of a faith 

school discriminates against faith; close 

links with the Church; demand for two 

faith English medium schools in the 

area; There is clear demand for English 

medium faith education in the Ruthin 

area based on pupil numbers and pupil 

projections for Ysgol Llanbedr and 

Borthyn; 

There is not enough capacity in other 

church schools to accommodate the 

projected pupils. Denbighshire County 

Council would be significantly reducing 

Church school places if they proceed 

with the proposal; This is about the 

availability of faith-based education. 

Ysgol Llanbedr is the only faith school in 

the area with access to the curriculum 

in English; A church school education 

benefits pupils and other stakeholders in 

so many ways and there is not enough 

capacity in other church schools in the 

area to accommodate the pupils. The 

closure of this school would not be in 

the best interests of pupils, staff, parents 

and local community; want my children 

to learn the strong Christian values 

taught in the school; I am aware of the 

demand for education in a church 

school and of the wonderful 

atmosphere to be found in church 

schools. In closing this school the 

number of places in church schools 

would be significantly reduced and I do 

not believe that this is the best interests 

of our community; link with the church is 

not offered by any other school in the 

area; Families wanting English medium 

faith education for their children would 

not be able to attend such a school; 

Christian ethos at Ysgol Llanbedr  

The alternative school, Ysgol Borthyn, provides a faith 

based education. The authority recognises the 

importance of faith based provision within education. 

Parents who wish for their child/children to attend a faith 

based English medium provision will be able to continue 

to do so.  

 

At the commencement of the Ruthin review in February 

2013 24.8% of the overall capacity for the Ruthin area 

were faith places. If all proposals put forward as part of 

the review are adopted the overall total will be 26.8% 

although there will be an overall reduction of 20 places. 

There is potential capacity within Ysgol Borthyn (as per the 

capacity assessment) for a further 23 full time pupils 

places. Should it be required this space could be utilised 

within the school.  

 

Ysgol Borthyn is also a Church in Wales primary school, this 

would provide pupils with continuity in faith based 

provision should the current proposal be implemented. 

Should the current proposal be implemented there would 

be scope for Ysgol Borthyn to extend links with the local 

church, St Peters, in Llanbedr DC. 

Estyn commented that “daily acts of collective worship 

and close links with the local church provide pupils with 

valuable opportunities to reflect on spiritual and moral 

issues” and that “links with the local church enrich pupils’ 

spiritual experiences”. Furthermore that “the school’s 

partnership with Llanfwrog Church helps pupils to make 

good progress with their spiritual development. There are 

weekly visits by the rector to assembly and classes, and 

pupils perform services in the church on religious festivals. 

These, plus school visits to places of worship, such as St 

Asaph Cathedral, support the religious education syllabus 

well.” 

2M Pupil Numbers/Surplus Places 44 respondents raised this issue 

Pupil Numbers/Surplus Places: Ysgol 

Llanbedr is a growing school; Pupil 

registrations for Nursery and Reception 

have increased; Surplus places have 

never been an issue for Ysgol Llanbedr 

until 2011-2012. Due to the isolated 

traumatic events of 2011-12 the school 

now finds itself with a high level of 

The authority has acknowledged that there will be an 

increase in pupil numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr. This is 

contained within the formal consultation document. 

However, surplus places will still remain within the school 

and within provision in the wider Ruthin area. The table 

below displays current surplus places at all faith based 

provision within the Ruthin area as of September 2015; 

 

Page 293



 

58 
 

surplus places; decline in numbers 

nothing to do with excellent education 

it provides but the mis-handling of a 

leadership issue by DCC; looking 

forward to 2015 – 2016 and beyond the 

level of surplus places will quickly 

reduce to acceptable levels; Why close 

Llanbedr when surplus places target has 

been met?  

School Full Time Surplus Places 

Ysgol Llanbedr 22* 

Ysgol Borthyn 26 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 23 

Total 71 

*Capacity of Ysgol Llanbedr to increase to 77 September 

2016 

 

 

The quantum of pupils has remained static in the Ruthin 

area for a number of years, this is forecast to continue 

with no marked increase in birth rates within the area. 

2N Financial Issues 61 respondents raised this issue 

Financial Issues: It is managing its 

budget unlike most other schools in the 

authority; The cost per pupil at Ysgol 

Llanbedr is coming down and is due to 

return to the Ruthin average within two 

years; The council estimate they will 

save £126,000 by closing Ysgol Llanbedr. 

We expect the actual savings to be 

virtually nothing; The cost of providing 

school transport to the alternative 

school significantly reduces any savings; 

submitted a proposal to further reduce 

costs and federate with another church 

school which would mean your 

preferred option to close us down 

would actually be more expensive 

when you take in to consideration the 

thousands of pounds you would need 

to spend in transport; The school is the 

lowest cost to the council as it is church 

owned, the council have no capital 

gain from closing Llanbedr as it belongs 

to the church; A need to invest in extra 

accommodation, need to invest more 

in SEN support, staff redundancy and 

decommission the site; Llanbedr is good 

or better value for money and should 

be allowed to continue. 

Based on the current budget it has estimated that £126k 

would be retained centrally should the current proposal 

be implemented. Pupil led funding would follow pupils to 

an alternative provision. Additionally there would be an 

annual revenue saving of £4k with the removal of the 

mobile classroom. The transport costs that could be 

generated should the current proposal be implemented 

have been estimated at £26k. This would result in an 

overall net saving £104k.  

 

Due to the availability of alternative school places within 

the area there is no requirement for significant 

remodelling or refurbishment at any of the proposed 

alternative schools should the proposal be implemented.  

ALN support would be provided in line with the individual 

needs of the pupil. The proposal would not generate 

additional costs associated with ALN. 

2O Alternative Options 76 respondents raised this issue 

Alternative Options: The Diocese's 

proposals for VA status and federation 

are sound and should be considered by 

DCC; these changes will reduce costs 

for DCC AND maintain schools in village 

communities. Should the Diocese 

proposal be accepted then the council 

could have a school it doesn’t own and 

that would be enhanced and 

Federated models have been established by the 

authority in areas of the county, the local authority has 

explored the option of Federation for Ysgol Llanbedr, the 

advantages and disadvantages of all alternative options 

were detailed within the formal consultation document. 

The authority broadly agrees with the benefits put forward 

in relation to federated school models however there are 

other issues, such as surplus places, fairer and more 

equitable distribution of school funding and greater 

Page 294



 

59 
 

developed at no cost to the council; as 

VA school building work is funded by 

Welsh government, the Diocese and 

the school; I have not been consulted 

or asked for my opinion about 

alternative options for the school, just 

given the option of closure yet again; 

why has the council not worked with 

the Diocese to make these ideas a 

reality rather than dismiss without 

consideration?  

efficiency and effectiveness of the school estate. These 

issues were detailed at the outset of the Ruthin are review 

of primary education. It is the view of the authority that 

whilst federation outcomes would realise some benefits 

such as stability of leadership, pupils access to a broader 

compliment of staff etc. these same benefits can also be 

realised through the option to close Ysgol Llanbedr whilst 

also providing economies of scale for the benefit of all 

pupils within the area.  

 

As stated by the Diocese and also the Governing Body of 

Ysgol Llanbedr in their response to the consultation there 

are potential teaching, learning and educational 

experience enhancement opportunities for pupils. 

Options for sharing best practice and the pooling of 

resources can be achieved in a federated model 

however these benefits can also be achieved at a single 

site school. For example, Ysgol Borthyn the proposed 

alternative school, has a broad compliment of staff with 

an established senior leadership and middle 

management teams. The authority remains of the view 

that whilst these benefits can be realised in a federation 

the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr and transfer existing 

pupils to Ysgol Borthyn where pupils will have access to a 

broader compliment of teaching staff, curriculum leads 

and established leadership teams.  

 

In a federated arrangement Ysgol Llanbedr will still remain 

a small school, surplus capacity will remain and likely 

increase as of September 2016 due to a revised capacity 

assessment at the request of the school and Governing 

Body. The authority acknowledges that there will be an 

increase in pupils however there is not a general increase 

in the numbers of pupils across the Ruthin area indicating 

that the quantum of pupils will not change. Birth rates and 

pupil numbers have remained static for a number of 

years. The efficiencies and economies of scale that can 

be achieved by transferring pupils to Ysgol Borthyn with a 

sustainable number of pupils, single governance and 

established leadership structures will provide better use of 

resource and provide pupils with a broad range of 

learning and development experiences and 

opportunities.  

 

The authority remains of the view that in light of the 

benefits that can be realised through federation (and 

these benefits were detailed within the formal 

consultation document) and light of the availability of 

alternative provision within the area. 

2P Small Schools/Small Classes  21 respondents raised this issue 

Page 295



 

60 
 

Small Schools/Classes: Whilst the 

council tries to find evidence that small 

schools do not perform as well as larger 

schools, both Estyn and Ofsted have 

issued reports that demonstrate that 

small schools achieve at least as well as 

larger schools; we did not want them to 

be in classes of 28-32 children; we 

chose a small school as we knew it 

would best suit our child’s development; 

Ofsted recommended a place for small 

schools in national provision because of 

academic achievements and 

contribution to local communities; small 

schools achieve just as well as larger 

schools- Estyn and Ofsted  

There are advantages to small class sizes, but there are 

also advantages for the pupil in an age appropriate 

class. Due to the current pupil numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr 

pupils are taught according to their key stage i.e. 

foundation phase class and key stage 2 class. The 

average pupil teacher ratio in primary schools across the 

UK in 2012-2013 was 20.5 for primary schoolsi. The table 

below displays the pupil teacher ratios in the identified 

alternative schools; 

 

School Ratio 

Ysgol Llanbedr 9.8 

Ysgol Borthyn 15.4 

Rhos Street School 18.5 

Ysgol Gellifor 18.2 

Ysgol Bro Famau 13.9 

Ysgol Rhewl 15 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 12.9 

*Data for academic year 2013/2014 

 

The authority acknowledges that whilst parents may 

choose smaller school this does not necessarily correlate 

to smaller classes as pupils will likely be taught in mixed 

age groups often spanning whole key stages as a 

consequence of school funding restrictions, as is currently 

the case at Ysgol Llanbedr. This places pressures on 

teaching staff who face greater challenges in small 

schools when catering for a wider age range often 

encompassing an entire key stage. Head teachers are 

also likely to have a substantial teaching commitment, as 

is currently the case at Ysgol Llanbedr, which can lessen 

the time they can devote to leadership and 

management of the school.  

 

2Q Ysgol Llanbedr School Site & 

Buildings- Future Use 

2 respondents raised this issue  

Llanbedr Site: What would be the future 

of the premises (Ysgol Llanbedr); school 

buildings held in trust by the Diocese  so 

should the school close it will not be 

possible to use it for the different ideas 

in the consultation document  

In other instances where school buildings and sites have 

been subject to a reverter under Charity Commission Law, 

Denbighshire have worked with third parties, such as the 

Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph to seek to retain the 

use of the building for the community, for example in 

Bryneglwys following the closure of the site and 

establishment of Ysgol Dyffryn Ial on one site. 

 

Should the proposal be implemented the Council would 

facilitate discussions with the local community and the 

Diocese of St Asaph should they wish to seek to retain all 

or part of the building and/or site for community use. 

2R head teacher Recruitment  1 respondent raised this issue 

head teacher recruitment: council will 

not appoint a permanent head 

The Governing Body of any school are able to advertise 

and appoint a head teacher. School organisation 

Page 296



 

61 
 

teacher, had it been advertised  would 

have had a permanent head- could 

not be advertised due consultation on 

closure   

proposals and related consultations and processes do not 

restrict Governing Bodies in terms of recruitment.  

2S Additional Learning Needs/SEN 3 respondents raised this issue 

ALN: additional 1-2-1 needs, how would 

this be dealt with and what level of 

quality/provision would there be at the 

new school? attainment of ALN pupils 

could not be achieved in another 

school 

Pupils with ALN that currently receive support, either in the 

form of 1-2-1 or other support arrangements would see 

this support replicated within their new environment.  

 

The authority recognises the support that ALN pupils 

receive at Ysgol Llanbedr and this support would 

continue in Ysgol Borthyn. Estyn commented that the 

provision at Ysgol Borthyn for pupils with ALN was good 

and that teachers identify pupils’ needs quickly and put in 

place appropriate support.   
 

END 

 

=================================================================== 

 

 

Page 297



 

62 
 

Appendix F 

Issues Raised by the Diocese of St. Asaph 

 

Ref. Issue Raised Response/Point of Clarification 

Section 2: Development of School Organisation Proposals 

2.4 The Diocese believes that going to a second consultation 

proposing to close Ysgol Llanbedr is definitely NOT in the 

best interests of the learners. They have been put under 

emotional and psychological pressure which impacts on 

their parents and carers.  

 

The Diocese is so concerned that this matter has been 

referred to the Children’s Commissioner who will be 

meeting the children in the new term to ascertain the 

impact the consultation has had on them.  

 

The authority has provided no psychological assessment or 

evidence to state that a second consultation will NOT 

negatively impact on learners. 

The Children’s Commissioner and the authority have been in 

dialogue regarding the consultation. The authority would ask 

that the findings are made known to the authority and the 

decision makers (Cabinet members).The authority has made 

adequate arrangements to ensure that the best interests of 

learners are ensured during this process. This has included 

producing a children and young people’s consultation 

document- to which numerous pupils have supplied a 

response. 

 

The authority, in conjunction with the Governing Body of 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC, facilitated a consultation session for the 

pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr which allowed them to put forward 

their views on the proposal. This is set out in Appendix C. 

 

Prior to the commencement of the consultation in June 2015 

the authority contacted the school regarding arrangements 

for pupils during the consultation period. It was stated that 

should staff at the school or parents/carers become aware 

of any issues resulting in pupils requiring additional support 

this could be provided by contacting the relevant support 

officers within the school improvement team. Neither the 

school nor individual families have approached the 

authority with any concern to date.  Should the proposal be 

formally published this support would continue. 

P
age 298



 

63 
 

2.5 Ysgol Llanbedr (the site and buildings) is subject to 

charitable interest- the school has a reverter therefore 

according to Charity Commission law the property reverts 

back to its previous owner when it stops being a school. 

Hence it cannot be used to help fund the Modernising 

Education Programme. As defined in DCC policy 10- 

Future Use of Surplus Assets: 

 

“Where a school site is closed, the following approach will 

be taken: 

1. If the site is owned by the Church in Wales, Roman 

Catholic Church or Trust, the future use of the site and 

building will be a matter for the church or organisation 

concerned, in consultation with the local community. The 

County Council would not want to take on any additional 

assets because it faces significant challenges in 

maintaining its core assets. If there were a desire for 

buildings to be retained for community use, this would be 

a matter for the local town or community council or other 

community organisations to pursue and fund” 

 

This provides the misleading assumption that there is the 

potential for the community to retain the school for 

community use. This is not the case, hence the community 

will lose a valuable facility. 

 

Policy 10 also states; 

 

“Disposal of sites that are being closed will form a key part 

of the funding package. Any receipts generated will be 

reinvested in the Modernisation of Education provision.” 

 

As the site is not owned by DCC this benefit from closing a 

The authority is aware that the school site is subject to a 

reverter and has not claimed that the release of the Ysgol 

Llanbedr DC site and building would result in a capital 

receipt which would be re-invested into the Modernising 

Education Programme. The authority does not believe that 

the content of the policy is misleading. In other instances 

where school buildings and sites have been subject to a 

reverter under Charity Commission Law, Denbighshire have 

worked with third parties, such as the Church in Wales 

Diocese to seek to retain the use of the building for the 

community, for example in Bryneglwys following the closure 

of the site and establishment of Ysgol Dyffryn Ial on one site. 

Should the proposal be implemented the Council would 

facilitate discussions with the local community and the 

Diocese of St Asaph should they wish to seek to retain all or 

part of the building and/or site for community use. 

 

The authority would not pursue proposals to close any 

school based solely on financial gains such as capital 

receipts. In some instances this can be a residual benefit 

however the educational aspects of a proposal can 

outweigh such financial benefits and must be the primary 

concern. 

P
age 299



 

64 
 

school cannot be realised, unlike if a community school 

was closed. 

Section 3: Background to the Proposal 

3.4 If Ysgol Llanbedr were to become a VA school, it would 

remove some of the burden for improvement and 

modernisation from DCC. 

If the status of Ysgol Llanbedr changed from VC to VA the 

school budget would be calculated in the same way as 

other schools (community, VC etc.). The difference would 

be under premises allocation for maintenance. Although VA 

schools do remove some financial responsibility from the 

local authority they would still receive 75% of a repairs 

budget and 15% of additional repairs budget. 

 

Taking the school budget for Ysgol Llanbedr 2015/2016 and 

applying the above would have resulted in a total saving to 

the overall delegated budget of £453. The Council is aware 

of funding opportunities for VA schools and their respective 

Diocesan authorities to seek 85% funding from the Welsh 

Government towards improvement works to the schools.  In 

considering any proposal for the school to become a VA 

school the authority would need assurances from the 

Governing Body and the Diocesan Authority regarding their 

financial capacity to fund the remaining 15% of such works 

for this to be seen as a real benefit. 

3.5 “The needs of learners are a priority for the Council…” But 

what about the psychological damage for the learners in 

having to face the closure of their school not once, but 

twice with the second closure proposal coming only a 

week after they believed the school was safe following on 

from the Ministers determination letter where he stated 

that he must “reject the proposal”.  

 

Officers from MET announced on the 3rd of Feb that the 

decision to go back to Cabinet to restart consultation had 

been made. This means that officers and elected 

The authority has made adequate arrangements to ensure 

that the best interests of learners are ensured during this 

process. This has included producing a children and young 

people’s consultation document- to which numerous pupils 

have supplied a response which is set out in Appendix C. 

Prior to the commencement of the consultation in June 2015 

the authority contacted the school regarding arrangements 

for pupils during the consultation period. It was stated that 

should staff at the school or parents/carers become aware 

of any issues resulting in pupils requiring additional support 

this could be provided by contacting the relevant support 

P
age 300



 

65 
 

members took 5 days to consider carefully, seek legal 

advice and determine that this was the best course of 

action. We believe that 5 days was not enough time to 

make this decision in a measured and considered way 

and was a knee jerk reaction to the Ministers rejection of 

the original proposal. 

officers within the school improvement team. Neither the 

school nor individual families have approached the 

authority with any concern to date.  Should the proposal be 

formally published this support would continue. 

 

The authority did not announce a second consultation for 

closure 5 days following the issuing of the decision by the 

Minister for Education and Skills on the 27th January 2015. 

The report taken to Cabinet on the 17th of February 2015 

was to inform Cabinet members of the Ministers decision 

and to set out the recommendations within the 

determination letter. In this report it was recommended that 

a consultation take place with the Church in Wales Diocese 

of St Asaph regarding the future of Ysgol Llanbedr. This took 

place between the 20th of April 2015 and the 18th of May. 

Representatives from the Diocese of St Asaph and the 

Governing Body were included within pre-Cabinet briefing 

meetings during this period and presented an alternative 

proposal to be considered by members. A decision to 

formally consult on the proposal to close was not taken by 

Cabinet until 2nd June 2015 providing adequate time for the 

Council to evaluate the Ministers recommendations. 

3.8 Ysgol Llanbedr has a potential federation partner which 

comes under model (d) of policy 1 of DCC’s Modernising 

Education Policy Framework. Education Small Schools 

Order 2014 attached in supporting documents.  

 

Federation provides an opportunity for smaller schools to 

remain open in their communities and to take advantage 

of the benefits federation can offer in terms of sharing 

expertise, good practice and resources for the benefit of 

all schools in the federation. Evidence suggests that 

federation can be beneficial in terms of improving the 

The local authority has explored the option of Federation for 

Ysgol Llanbedr, the advantages and disadvantages of all 

alternative options were detailed within the formal 

consultation document. The authority broadly agrees with 

the benefits put forward in relation to federated school 

models however there are other issues, such as surplus 

places, fairer and more equitable distribution of school 

funding and greater efficiency and effectiveness of the 

school estate. These issues were detailed at the outset of the 

Ruthin are review of primary education. It is the view of the 

authority that whilst federation outcomes would realise 

P
age 301



 

66 
 

quality and range of educational provision and can make 

schools more efficient financially. 

 

The ultimate aim of federations should be to improve 

educational outcomes of pupils. However, federating 

small school is likely to result in some cost savings for local 

authorities. Small schools that are federated should also 

benefit from potential cost savings as the federation beds 

down. Evidence from schools that have federated show 

there are clear advantages and savings that can be 

achieved. 

 

Annex 9 of the UK Department for Children, Schools and 

Families Report (now the Department for Education) issued 

in September 2009 evidence some of the financial savings 

from the case studies of small rural primary schools 

federating. Based on shared headships at that time the 

estimated savings on head teachers salaries ranged from 

a net minimum of £12,000-£54,530 depending on variables 

such as the pay point and salary scale of the heads, the 

position will be even more beneficial 6 years later. 

some benefits such as stability of leadership, pupils access to 

a broader compliment of staff etc. these same benefits can 

also be realised through the option to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

whilst also providing economies of scale for the benefit of all 

pupils within the area.  

 

As stated by the Diocese and also the Governing Body of 

Ysgol Llanbedr in their response to the consultation there are 

potential teaching, learning and educational experience 

enhancement opportunities for pupils. Options for sharing 

best practice and the pooling of resources can be 

achieved in a federated model however these benefits can 

also be achieved at a single site school. For example, Ysgol 

Borthyn the proposed alternative school has a broad 

compliment of staff with an established senior leadership 

and middle management teams. The authority remains of 

the view that whilst these benefits can be realised in a 

federation the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr and transfer 

existing pupils to Ysgol Borthyn where pupils will have access 

to a broader compliment of teaching staff, curriculum leads 

and established leadership teams.  

 

In a federated arrangement Ysgol Llanbedr will still remain a 

small school, surplus capacity will remain and likely increase 

as of September 2016 due to a revised capacity assessment 

at the request of the school and Governing Body. The 

authority acknowledges that there will be an increase in 

pupils however there is not a general increase in the 

numbers of pupils across the Ruthin area indicating that the 

quantum of pupils will not change. Birth rates and pupil 

numbers have remained static for a number of years. The 

efficiencies and economies of scale that can be achieved 

by transferring pupils to Ysgol Borthyn with a sustainable 

P
age 302



 

67 
 

number of pupils, single governance and established 

leadership structures will provide better use of resource and 

provide pupils with a broad range of learning and 

development experiences and opportunities.  

 

The authority remains of the view that in light of the benefits 

that can be realised through federation (and these benefits 

were detailed within the formal consultation document) and 

light of the availability of alternative provision within the 

area. 

3.15 What about the short term and midterm implications for 

the learners at Ysgol Llanbedr from having their school 

under the threat of closure twice in a three year period. 

This sustained threat has undermined morale within both 

the school and wider community, whilst strengthening their 

resolve to keep Ysgol Llanbedr open. 

This is noted and the authority would re-iterate that they 

have made adequate arrangements to ensure that the best 

interests of learners are ensured during this process. This has 

included producing a children and young people’s 

consultation document- to which numerous pupils have 

supplied a response which is set out in Appendix C of this 

formal consultation report pack. Further information relating 

to arrangements for pupils can be found in section 2.4. 

 

Section 4: What is the Proposal? 

4.1 Since the original Ruthin review numbers on roll at both 

Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn have increased. Borthyn 

now has 137 pupils on roll, with a capacity of 142, meaning 

there are only 5 places available in the school. Llanbedr 

now has 28 pupils on roll (23 full time and 11 nursery) 

therefore not all pupils at Llanbedr could transfer to 

Borthyn (contrary to the Ministers view).  

 

This then removes the parental preference from this 

proposal as if all parents chose to send their children to 

Ysgol Borthyn this would not be possible. Section 1.4 of the 

Code- need for places and the impact on accessibility of 

schools is included. 

As of September 2015 there were 32 Full Time pupils in Ysgol 

Llanbedr and 4 Part Time pupils. The current capacity of 

Llanbedr is 54 (this will increase to 77 as of September 2016 

however a flexible admission number is currently being 

applied) which results in 22 surplus places equating to 40.7% 

of the total capacity. As of September 2015 there were 116 

Full Time pupils at Ysgol Borthyn and 14 Part Time pupils. The 

current capacity of Borthyn is 142 which results in 26 surplus 

places equating to 18.3% of the total capacity. Part time 

(nursery places) are not included within the full time pupil 

capacity and are calculated separately. The table below 

provides current numbers of pupils on roll as of September 

for both Ysgol Borthyn and Ysgol Llanbedr; 

P
age 303



 

68 
 

 

 N R 1 2 3 4 5 6 

YL 4 10 7 3 7 2 3 0 

YB 14 18 22 19 11 13 16 17 

T 18 28 29 22 18 15 19 17 

*N&R admission data as of September 2015.   

 

Should the proposal be implemented and all full time pupils 

transfer to Ysgol Borthyn this would result in a total of 148 full 

time pupils. Ysgol Borthyn has accommodated full time pupil 

numbers greater than 142 full time pupils in the past. Within 

the capacity assessment there is potential accommodation 

for 23 further full time pupils at Ysgol Borthyn. As 

demonstrated should all pupils transfer to Ysgol Llanbedr the 

pupils could be accommodated within the current class 

structures and would not exceed 30 pupils per class. There is 

also further faith provision within the Ruthin area, Ysgol 

Llanfair DC which has a capacity of 113 with 23 surplus 

places as of September 2015. Ysgol Llanfair DC is a Category 

2 dual stream provision. Further information relating to the 

categorisation can be found in section 5.3. 

 

The Council recognises that pupil numbers in Ysgol Llanbedr 

will increase over the coming years and this data has been 

contained within the pupil forecasts data within the 

consultation document. The authority remains of the view 

that these pupils coming through the system can be 

accommodated at Ysgol Borthyn within existing class 

structures going forward and the reduction in capacity 

within the English medium faith based primary sector would 

not result in parental choice being removed.  

 

4.4  DCC’s stated aim is to reduce primary school capacity in The Council calculate how many additional pupils would be 

P
age 304



 

69 
 

the Ruthin area from 1213 to 1050 full time places (informal 

consultation document). DCC has already taken steps to 

achieve this aim. Current work and other consultations if 

carried through will bring capacity down to the desired 

target. All projections point to pupil numbers increasing 

over the next 5 years. Ysgol Llanbedr has registered interest 

indicating an increase on roll, should its future be secured. 

Through the work of the Ruthin Review the following 

outcomes are planned: 

 

-Closure of Ysgol Rhewl reduces capacity by 82. 

 

-Merging Llanfair and Pentrecelyn reduces capacity by 29. 

 

-The rebuild at Glasdir reduces capacity by 20. 

 

This takes the capacity number to 1058 which is only 8 

pupils over DCC target figure. Also the figure of 23 quoted 

for Ysgol Llanbedr in 2014/2015 relates to full time pupils. 

 

Based on interest shown and numbers in nursery and 

munchkins the school expect this to increase to 33 full time 

pupils for 2015/2016. This reduces surplus capacity from 

57.4% to 38.9% a reduction of 18.5% in just one year and 

this is in spite of the fact the school is under the threat of 

closure. Should the threat be removed the pupil numbers 

would grow much more quickly. Incidentally the pupil 

numbers at Ysgol Borthyn are growing so there would be 

insufficient capacity there for Ysgol Borthyn and Ysgol 

Llanbedr pupils. 

 

Based on current numbers in both munchkins and 

playgroup we can forecast school numbers as follows; 

generated should homes under the LDP be implemented 

using an agreed formula which is based on data gathered 

by Local Authorities. The primary school multiplier is 

0.24.Should the 70 homes be built in the Llanbedr DC area 

this would generate an estimated 17 pupils as per the 

formula.   

 

In addition should new properties be completed there is no 

guarantee that all of these pupils would access the provision 

at Ysgol Llanbedr due to parental preference for language 

medium and other types of provision. 

 

As of May 2015 there were 37 pupils of primary school age 

living within the Llanbedr area. 12 pupils were attending 

Category 5 English medium (non-faith) schools including 

Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street School and Ysgol 

Bro Famau. A further 12 pupils were accessing Welsh 

medium education and a further 2 pupils were accessing 

Category 2 provision. 11 pupils from Llanbedr DC were 

attending Ysgol Llanbedr.  

 

As set out in the table above no class size would exceed 30 

pupils should all current FT pupils transfer to Ysgol Borthyn. 

The authority remain of the view that additional spend at 

Ysgol Borthyn, or any other school in the area, would not be 

required as a result of the proposal being implemented. 

 

Works recommended as per the FRA are scheduled to take 

place however this was not achieved by March 2015. The 

FRA works will be undertaken by the end of April 2016 at the 

latest.  

 

Pupil projections for Rhos Street School which will relocate to 

P
age 305



 

70 
 

 

 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 

FT 35 40 45 50 

N 6 8 8 8* 

Total 41 48 53 58 

*based on trend 

 

These figures do not take into account the pupils who had 

intended to join Ysgol Llanbedr before the decision was 

made by the Minister. 

 

Llanbedr is now bottom heavy with numbers. The renewed 

growth of pupil numbers at Llanbedr must be taken into 

account. “The Local Authority has identified a decrease in 

live birth in the area” Ministers letter. 70 new homes within 

the LDP and 17 extra pupils of primary age. Option of 

mobile accommodation at Borthyn cannot be condoned 

under DCC policy 6.The current head teacher at Ysgol 

Borthyn considers that if the children at Ysgol Llanbedr 

were to transfer to Ysgol Borthyn she would have no option 

but to use the mobile provision on site as classroom space. 

 

The reception class will be 33 which is over the infant class 

size limit, therefore the class will need to be split which will 

either lead to pupils taught in mixed aged groups (which 

negates one of the benefits of pupils moving to Ysgol 

Borthyn) or additional teaching resource and classroom 

space required with the inevitable cost implications.  

 

Either way the evidence shows that this proposal cannot 

proceed without either requiring investment into the 

building at Ysgol Borthyn which the authority already said 

is not possible in the MET “Review of Primary School 

the Glasdir site have been included within the consultation 

document. Forecasts for Ysgol Pen Barras have not been 

included as it is a Category 1 Welsh medium school, it is 

reasonable to assume parents that are currently attending 

Ysgol Borthyn for faith and language preference and 

therefore it is unlikely that Ysgol Pen Barras will absorb any 

pupils from the area.  

 

Ysgol Borthyn provides an English medium faith based 

provision for the town of Ruthin. The number of pupils within 

the area and the process of admissions will ensure that an 

equity between pupil numbers at Rhos Street and Ysgol 

Borthyn will be carefully managed whilst maintaining 

parental preference. 

 

 

The Council have acknowledged the issues surrounding 

leadership at Ysgol Llanbedr and this is contained within the 

consultation document. 

 

The Council calculate how many additional pupils would be 

generated should homes under the LDP be implemented 

using an agreed formula which is based on data gathered 

by Local Authorities. The primary school multiplier is 0.24 (no. 

of dwellings x 0.24). Should the 70 homes be built in the 

Llanbedr DC area this would generate an estimated 17 

pupils as per the formula. The developments are expected 

to be phased with 20 homes identified to be built by 2020. 

This includes 5 homes in 2017, 5 homes in 2018, 5 homes in 

2019 and 5 in 2020. 

 

As of May 2015 there were 37 pupils of primary school age 

living within the Llanbedr area. 12 pupils were attending 

P
age 306



 

71 
 

Provision in the Ruthin Area, Ruthin Town Schools Brief” 

dated June 2013. But also that there is no available 

funding or plans to undertake the immediate works to 

Ysgol Borthyn. Works to be completed by March 2015 still 

outstanding. 

 

The Diocese feel that the relocation of Ysgol Pen Barras 

and Ysgol Rhos Street to a site 0.4 miles from Borthyn will 

necessarily impact directly on the schools future and 

therefore needs due consideration. The authority have not 

produced any trend data to show predicted numbers at 

Borthyn and the new Glasdir school for the next 6 years or 

show what impact this will have on any learners who will 

transfer from Ysgol Llanbedr. 

 

By combining the numbers on roll at Ysgol Llanbedr and 

Ysgol Borthyn as of Jan 2015 it can be seen that the full 

time NOR will be 150 pupils. This is over the capacity of 142 

without even taking into account numbers in nursery. This 

gives the school a deficit not a surplus of places. 

 

Estyn’s current guidance for the inspection of local 

authority education services for children and young 

people states “Inspectors should judge whether there is 

enough capacity in both primary and secondary sectors, 

including Welsh medium and special education, and 

whether any school is significantly over filled or has 

significant surplus capacity WITHOUT GOOD REASON”. 

 

In 2011/2012 the head teacher at Ysgol Llanbedr went on 

sick leave and was replaced with a covering head from 

DCC. It was as a result of this imposed leadership that a 

large number of pupils left the school. The Diocese 

Category 5 English medium (non-faith) schools including 

Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street School and Ysgol 

Bro Famau. A further 12 pupils were accessing Welsh 

medium education and a further 2 pupils were accessing 

Category 2 provision. 11 pupils from Llanbedr DC were 

attending Ysgol Llanbedr. It is reasonable to conclude that 

not all pupils that may be generated as a result of the 

developments would attend Ysgol Llanbedr.  

 

P
age 307



 

72 
 

believes this is GOOD REASON for the sudden surplus 

capacity- which incidentally is now reducing year on year 

despite the constant threat of closure. The consultation 

document does not show any material difference from the 

original proposal. 

 

4.6 Pupil projections increase in both Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol 

Borthyn. Even DCC figures show an increase in both 

schools. The proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr would 

reduce the number of English medium faith based places 

by 77 (based on increased capacity at Ysgol Llanbedr in 

2016/2017) leaving only 142 in the Ruthin area (capacity at 

Borthyn). This 35% drop in English medium faith based 

primary places. Figures show this is less than the number of 

places required which will be 150 in September 2015. 

The figures in the consultation document suggest that based 

on known admission data as of May 2015 pupil numbers will 

increase at Ysgol Llanbedr and remain constant at Ysgol 

Borthyn. However, the overall demand for English Medium 

education in the area is likely to decrease further. The 

increase in pupil numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr can be mainly 

absorbed within the existing class structures at Ysgol Borthyn 

whilst maintaining class sizes of under 30 pupils.  

 

Other faith based provision exists within the wider Ruthin 

area which would provide an English medium provision. The 

Church in Wales as  a co-promoter with Denbighshire have 

recently published a statutory notice to establish a new 

Church in Wales area school to serve Llanfair and 

Pentrecelyn as a dual stream school at which pupils may be 

educated through the Medium of English as per the offer 

described in the categorisation of schools. At the 

commencement of the Ruthin review in February 2013 24.8% 

of the overall capacity for the Ruthin area were faith places. 

If all proposals put forward as part of the review are 

adopted the overall total will be 26.8% although there will be 

an overall reduction of 20 places. There is potential capacity 

within Ysgol Borthyn (as per the capacity assessment) for a 

further 23 full time pupils places. Should it be required this 

space could be utilised within the school. 

4.7 DCC LDP suggests 70 new homes in Llanbedr and 17 extra 

pupils of primary age. This does not show possible 

The Council calculate how many additional pupils would be 

generated should homes under the LDP be implemented 

P
age 308



 

73 
 

movements into the area. Also the projected decrease is 

in Rhos Street and Ysgol Gellifor not in the faith schools. 

 

The narrative shows 4 live births in Llanbedr/Llangynhafal in 

2012 but the table shows 21- which is it? This is 

contradictory and misleading. We ask for specific 

clarification and response on this point. 

using an agreed formula which is based on data gathered 

by Local Authorities. The primary school multiplier is 0.24 (no. 

of dwellings x 0.24). Should the 70 homes be built in the 

Llanbedr DC area this would generate an estimated 17 

pupils as per the formula. The developments are expected 

to be phased with 20 homes identified to be built by 2020. 

This includes 5 homes in 2017, 5 homes in 2018, 5 homes in 

2019 and 5 in 2020. 

 

There is no guarantee that all of these pupils would access 

the provision at Ysgol Llanbedr due to parental preference 

for language medium and other types of provision. As of 

May 2015 there were 37 pupils of primary school age living 

within the Llanbedr area. 12 pupils were attending Category 

5 English medium (non-faith) schools including Ysgol Borthyn, 

Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street School and Ysgol Bro Famau. A 

further 12 pupils were accessing Welsh medium education 

and a further 2 pupils were accessing Category 2 provision. 

11 pupils from Llanbedr DC were attending Ysgol Llanbedr.  

 

There is an error within the table- the live birth rate for the 

Llanbedr area is 4 (as contained within the narrative). The 21 

live births should be located alongside the Llanarmon area 

for the corresponding period. This, however, does not 

impact on the overall totals of live births for 2012 as this still 

identifies an overall decrease in the birth rate within the 

area indicated and therefore is not misleading and still 

provides a true representation of birth data. 

4.10 What was the response to this consultation? No data has 

been provided in this document. There is no research to 

show how reducing surplus places improves outcomes. We 

would ask for specific responses to these and other queries 

raised within this response. 

The response to the informal consultation period was 

considered by Cabinet in June 2013.Where surplus places 

exist, resource is directed away from the learner. The 

average cost of a surplus place within the primary sector is 

around £260 (Estyn, May 2012). The removal of surplus places 

P
age 309



 

74 
 

allows this resource to be directed back to the learner, 

primarily for teaching and learning purposes which impacts 

positively on standards and outcomes for the learner. 

4.13 Based on current numbers in both Munchkins and 

Playgroup we can forecast Ysgol Llanbedr school numbers 

as follows; 

 

 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 

Full 

Time 

Pupils 

35 40 45 50 

Nursery 6 8 8 8 

TOTAL 41 48 53 58 

*figure based on trend 

 

These figures do not take into account the children who 

had intended to join Ysgol Llanbedr before the decision by 

the Minister. If these were included the forecast numbers 

would be even greater. Incidentally Ysgol Borthyn (the 

proposed school for Ysgol Llanbedr students should it 

close) is also growing so there would be insufficient 

capacity there for Ysgol Borthyn and Ysgol Llanbedr pupils. 

 

By combining the numbers on roll at Ysgol Llanbedr and 

Ysgol Borthyn as of Jan 2015 it can be seen that the full 

time NOR will be 150 pupils. This is over the capacity of 142 

without even taking into account numbers in Nursery. This 

gives the school a deficit (not a surplus!) of places of 6%.  

 

 

 

 

Full Time NOR- Ysgol Llanbedr & Ysgol Borthyn Combined 

As of September 2015 the numbers of pupils registered at 

Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn by class are displayed 

below; 

 

 N R 1 2 3 4 5 6 

YL 4 10 7 3 7 2 3 0 

YB 14 18 22 19 11 13 16 17 

T 18 28 29 22 18 15 19 17 

*N&R admission data as of September 2015.   

 

  

Should the current part time pupils transition to Reception in 

September 2016 this would increase the full time pupils at 

Ysgol Llanbedr from 32 to 36. The capacity of Ysgol Llanbedr 

will increase from 54 to 77 as of September 2016, this would 

equate to a surplus of 53.2% as of September 2016. Should 

all current part time pupils at Ysgol Borthyn transition to 

Reception in 2016 there would be 113 full time pupils at Ysgol 

Borthyn in September 2016 equating to 20.4% of the overall 

capacity. This would result in a total of 70 surplus places 

across both schools equating to 31.9% of the total capacity.  

 

Historically, pupil’s numbers at Ysgol Borthyn have been 

greater than 150. There is additional area within the school 

which could be utilised to accommodate 23 full time pupils 

as identified within the schools capacity assessment.  

 

P
age 310



 

75 
 

as of September 2015 

Reception  Year 

1 

Year 

2 

Year 

3 

Year 

4 

Year 

5 

Year 

6 

Total 

33 29 20 17 15 18 18 150 
 

Section 5: Benefits, Disadvantages and Risks of the Proposal 

5.1 Benefit 1: The authority has not produced any evidence to 

support this. We would request that the authority adduce 

meaningful evidence to support how they have come to 

this conclusion with specific regard to Ysgol Llanbedr and 

Ysgol Borthyn. We believe that the consultation document 

is once again flawed in that generalised statements are 

being made with no statistical evidence or research 

provided to allow consultees to consider the matter with 

all the evidence needed to make an informed decision. 

 

The current support category for Ysgol Borthyn is AMBER 

whereas the current support category for Ysgol Llanbedr is 

YELLOW. The Code makes clear what a local authority 

must do with regard to the nomination of any receiving 

school. Ysgol Borthyn is a good school but the authority 

has not considered how the influx of so many pupils will put 

added pressure on the school and affect current 

standards of education. 

As part of their response to the consultation having 

considered the content of the consultation report, Estyn 

concluded that the proposal is likely to at least maintain the 

current standards of education in the area based on the 

information and data provided within the consultation 

document. The authority included a range of data and 

statistical information within the consultation document 

relating to outcomes and standards at Ysgol Llanbedr and 

Ysgol Borthyn. This included contextualised data at both 

Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2. Data for other schools in 

the area has also been included within the consultation 

document. 

 

 Estyn in their response commented that the proposer {DCC} 

had provided a useful range of information relating to 

performance outcomes. These include local, national and 

the family of schools who have similar levels of free school 

meal entitlement. Furthermore consultation appropriately 

raises the challenges facing small primary schools in being 

able to implement leadership structures effectively. The 

proposer acknowledges that in small primary schools, many 

head teachers have a significant teaching responsibility. This 

limits the time they can devote to leading and managing 

and they have fewer opportunities to evaluate standards 

and to drive improvement. 

 

Furthermore Estyn stated that the proposer {DCC} had 

appropriately considered the impact of the proposal on 

P
age 311



 

76 
 

pupil outcomes, provision and leadership and 

management. Estyn stated a useful range of information 

relating to performance outcomes. Although Ysgol Borthyn is 

classified as amber and Ysgol Llanbedr as Yellow the overall 

weighting for the two schools is similar with Ysgol Borthyn at 

16.5 and Ysgol Llanbedr at 16. There is a similar picture at 

both schools. The Council is of the view that this has been 

considered and is contained within section 7 of the 

consultation document which provides an assessment of the 

impact of the proposal on the quality of educational 

provision should the proposal be implemented. 

5.1 Benefit 2: Proposal would reduce the number of English 

medium faith based places by 77 (based on increased 

capacity at Ysgol Llanbedr in 2016/2017), leaving only 142 

in the Ruthin area. Figures show this is less than the number 

of places required which will be 150 in September 2015. 

At the commencement of the Ruthin review in February 

2013 24.8% of the overall capacity for the Ruthin area were 

faith places. If all proposals put forward as part of the review 

are adopted the overall total will be 26.8% although there 

will be an overall reduction of 20 places. There is potential 

capacity within Ysgol Borthyn (as per the capacity 

assessment) for a further 23 full time pupils places. Should it 

be required this space could be utilised within the school. 

5.1 Benefit 3: The authority has not produced any evidence to 

show that this would improve the educational outcomes 

of the schools under review or those schools who would 

receive additional pupils if these proposals were 

implemented. The consultation document does not show 

how the authority would invest in any of these receiving 

schools.  

 

No investment is planned into Ysgol Borthyn. It is not 

acceptable for the authority to make generalised remarks 

on possible future investment. This consultation document 

should have had a detailed feasibility into the planned 

investment into Ysgol Borthyn showing how the 

redistribution of funds would benefit learners there, and 

The proposal would result in a more equal distribution of 

funding within the area. The reduction in surplus places 

would allow funding to be released and re-distributed more 

directly to the benefit of the learner. Elements of the school 

budget that are pupil led would follow the pupil to their new 

provision should the proposal be implemented. Should all 

pupils transfer to Ysgol Borthyn this would result in an 

increase in Ysgol Borthyn’s budget of £86k (based on the 

current budget 2015/2016). This would result in per pupil 

funding of approximately £4,058, the Denbighshire average 

is £3,931.Pupil led funding allows the schools to ensure there 

is sufficient resource for the pupils.  

 

The authority remains of the view that should the proposal 

P
age 312



 

77 
 

what is planned to improve facilities. We would request 

that the authority adduces evidence that they have 

considered this as part of the current consultation and 

would ask why these documents were not included in the 

consultation documents which would support these 

contentions. We believe that the consultation document is 

once again flawed in that statements are being made 

with no statistical evidence or research provided to allow 

consultees to consider the matter with all the evidence 

needed to make an informed decision. Sets out section 1.5 

of the Code. 

 

 

Consultation document does not give the depth of 

information to allow respondees to fully consider how the 

requirements of the code will be met by this proposal. 

There is no detail on recurrent funding, additional transport 

costs, necessary costs to improve facilities at Ysgol Borthyn, 

consideration of the loss of the value of the Llanbedr site or 

the cost of the status quo if surplus places at Ysgol 

Llanbedr continue to fall and the potential savings of a 

federation. 

be implemented there would be no detrimental impact on 

the standard of the facilities at Ysgol Borthyn in light of its 

suitability rating. The authority has invested a total of £36k in 

revenue and £62k in capital to improve facilities in Ysgol 

Borthyn since 2010.  The Council will also be undertaking 

further works as per the FRA recommendations which will be 

completed by April 2016. It is the view of the authority that 

there is no requirement for further significant works at the 

school should the current proposal be implemented. 

 

The authority has provided information relating to recurrent 

costs (such as an annual revenue saving from mobile rental) 

and has detailed the transport costs should the proposal be 

implemented.  

5.1 Benefit 4: This is not accurate. There would be a loss of 

resource as the Church School site would be lost with no 

recompense due to the reverter clause. 

The comment was reflecting on the reduction of 

maintenance requirements on the school estate. The 

Council notes the potential loss of an asset to the Church in 

Wales should the proposal be implemented.   

5.1 Benefit 5: The cost of closing Ysgol Llanbedr when 

scrutinised against the additional costs not listed is 

negated. The consultation document does not list the 

costs of redundancy for staff, it does not include the costs 

of removing the mobile and making good of the site it sits 

on, neither does it include the stripping out of the building 

or repairs necessary before it can be handed back to the 

Significant costs have not been incurred by the Council in 

instances of building and land disposal previously. The Chief 

Finance Officer statement stated “The costs around the 

statutory processes are not significant and will be contained 

within existing resource”. A previous CiW school closure 

resulted in total costs of £1,267 following closure of the 

school building (inclusive of contractor work). These costs 

P
age 313



 

78 
 

Diocese. It does not include the legal costs associated 

with the closure, no assessment has been made of the 

insurance costs of an empty building. It does not include 

the value of the loss of the site to the authority. Must return 

in an agreed state of repair. 

 

Any asbestos will need to be removed, the commercial 

kitchen equipment stripped out- no costs listed. These are 

significant costs that have not been assessed and agreed. 

Members should be given a full breakdown of the costs- 

legal-facilities- electrical- and specialists that need to be 

incurred should the proposal be implemented. No 

assessment of additional costs incurred at Ysgol Borthyn- 

inevitable costs that will not be met by pupil led funding.  

 

We would ask for a full and comprehensive breakdown of 

all potential additional costs. Members have also not been 

given full information regarding financial projections for 

Denbighshire schools. Llanbedr will be one of only 12 still 

projecting a surplus in 2017/2018. No financial sense to 

close.  

 

are not significant and would be absorbed within existing 

resources.  

 

The authority reiterates there will be no requirement for 

additional capital spend at Ysgol Borthyn as the proposed 

receiving school. There are other issues which the authority 

believes outweigh these concerns such as the safeguarding 

of educational standards within the wider Ruthin area, 

surplus places and leadership issues. It is the view of the 

authority that the proposal, if implemented, will lead to the 

greater efficiency and economies of scale to the benefit of 

all learners within the area. The authority is aware that the 

school is not in a financial deficit.   

5.2 Disadvantage 1: Would be a loss of 77 English medium 

faith based primary places. 35% drop in English medium 

places- not just affecting Llanbedr but wider Ruthin area. 

At the commencement of the Ruthin review in February 

2013 24.8% of the overall capacity for the Ruthin area were 

faith places. If all proposals put forward as part of the review 

are adopted the overall total will be 26.8% although there 

will be an overall reduction of 20 places. There is potential 

capacity within Ysgol Borthyn (as per the capacity 

assessment) for a further 23 full time pupils places. Should it 

be required this space could be utilised within the school. 

Additionally, there are options for a permanent extension to 

the building should demand necessitate.  

 

P
age 314



 

79 
 

Should the current part time pupils transition to Reception in 

September 2016 this would increase the full time pupils at 

Ysgol Llanbedr from 32 to 36. The capacity of Ysgol Llanbedr 

will increase from 54 to 77 as of September 2016, this would 

equate to a surplus of 53.2% as of September 2016. Should 

all current part time pupils at Ysgol Borthyn transition to 

Reception in 2016 there would be 113 full time pupils at Ysgol 

Borthyn in September 2016 equating to 20.4% of the overall 

capacity. This would result in a total of 70 surplus places 

across both schools equating to 31.9% of the total capacity 

across both schools.  

5.2 Disadvantage 2: Could lead to parents having to make 

difficult decision to send children to non-faith school to 

minimise effects of longer journey. Removes parental 

preference. Authority has a duty to provide faith based 

places if a parent requests it. 

21 pupils currently attending Ysgol Llanbedr have home 

locations that are closer to Ysgol Borthyn which will reduce 

the home to school journey for these pupils. Pupils living in 

the Llanbedr area (11 pupils) would have an increased 

journey time to school, however due to the proximity of 

Llanbedr to the town of Ruthin this would be within the 

guidelines set out by the Welsh Government in relation to 

learner travel.  

 

Should the proposal be implemented parents who wish to 

access faith based English medium provision can continue 

to do so. The Council is unable to sustain every school within 

the Ruthin area in light of further financial constraints. The 

Council has endeavoured to ensure that parental choice is 

maintained within the Ruthin area with a mix or rural, town, 

community and faith based provision available. The Council 

recognise that some parents may want to choose other 

provision than the named alternative school and have 

included information relating to educational performance, 

Estyn comment and other comparative information within 

the consultation document for consultees. 

5.2 Disadvantage 3: Cost implication to redundancy or even Any school re-organisation process could result in staff 

P
age 315



 

80 
 

redeployment. redundancy. Should the proposal be implemented and 

Ysgol Llanbedr was to close staff would cease to be 

employed at the school. The Council would work closely 

with individual members of staff and the relevant trade 

unions to secure alternative employment for staff as part of 

the re-deployment process. In previous cases of school 

closures within Denbighshire redundancies have been 

minimal with the majority of staff re-deployed. 

  

Costs for support from HR are absorbed by the SLA and 

would not reduce the proposed savings. Should the 

proposal be implemented all staff would be offered 1-2-1 

meetings with a HR officer to discuss options such as 

redeployment, their well-being and to offer support and 

advice appropriate to the needs of the individual members 

of staff. All members of staff have been offered support by 

HR and a member of the HR team has visited the school 

during the consultation period. 

5.3 Risk Management 1: Additional transport costs £26k. 

Current transport costs at Ysgol Llanbedr £0. 

There is a minimal cost of transport associated with current 

pupils travelling to Ysgol Llanbedr although this is not zero. 

The majority of pupils attending Ysgol Llanbedr have nearer 

suitable schools, such as Ysgol Borthyn, therefore are not 

currently eligible for home to school transport. 

5.3 Risk Management 2: Numbers have increased at Llanbedr 

and Borthyn. The proposed new area school in Llanfair DC 

is not an alternative as language designation is Category 

2.If Ysgol Llanbedr should close there are not enough 

English medium faith based primary places available. 

Ysgol Llanfair DC is a Category 2 school. Category 2 schools 

are dual stream schools. These schools provide Welsh 

medium and English medium side by side dependent upon 

parental preference. If they choose Welsh medium the 

delivery language of the pupil’s education, the language of 

communication with the pupil and educational assessments 

is in Welsh- the same as Category 1 schools. If parents 

choose for their child to be educated through the medium 

of English, the curriculum is delivered in English, the 

communication language with the child is in English and any 

P
age 316



 

81 
 

assessments are done in English- the same as a Category 5 

school.  

 

5.3 Risk Management 3: Authority has not produced any 

evidence to show what the costs of this would be (staff 

redundancy/redeployment). We would request that the 

authority adduce evidence to support this. Flawed in that 

statements are being made with no statistical evidence. 

 

The school has been under threat since 2013 and in that 

time HR have visited once; there has been no assistance 

to staff throughout the process either from HR or 

Occupational Health. Clear breach of a duty of care to 

staff that have not been supported. 

Please see the response as set out in 5.2. 

5.3 Risk Management 4: Costs included relating to federation 

resulting in a saving of £12,028. 

 

Closure option costs; 

 

Closure Option   

 Income  Expenditure  

Capital/School 

Budget Savings 

£126,000.00  

Head teacher 

salary  

  

Revenue Savings £4,656.00  

   

Transport   £26,600 

Redundancy   £43,230.77 

Additional SEN 1-2-

1 needs 

 £16,000.00 

Extra mobile at  £5,000 

Any school re-organisation process could result in staff 

redundancy. However the council would actively seek re-

deployment as a preferred option for staff. In previous cases 

of school closures within Denbighshire redundancies have 

been minimal with the majority of staff re-deployed. 

  

Costs for support from HR are absorbed by the SLA and 

would not reduce the proposed savings. Should the 

proposal be implemented all staff would be offered 1-2-1 

meetings with a HR officer to discuss options such as 

redeployment, their well-being and to offer support and 

advice appropriate to the needs of the individual members 

of staff.  

 

The authority would re-iterate there is no requirement for an 

additional mobile classroom at Ysgol Borthyn should the 

current proposal be implemented and no capital 

investment would be required in Ysgol Borthyn or any other 

alternative school in the area. The authority note that there 

P
age 317



 

82 
 

Borthyn 

Loss of Llanbedr 

site  

 £250,000 

Business Support   £20,054.00 

Increased staffing 

at Ysgol Borthyn 

 £16,000.00 

Totals £130,656.00 £376,884.77 

 

This shows that the federation option would also generate 

savings whilst at the same time benefitting from the 

advantages of federation. There is also no assessment of 

the additional costs that will be incurred at Ysgol Borthyn. 

There are inevitable costs which will not be met by direct 

pupil funding. We would ask for a full and comprehensive 

breakdown of all potential additional costs that will be 

incurred if this proposal would be implemented. 

would be an asset loss should the current proposal be 

implemented. The authority would not pursue proposals to 

close any school based solely on financial gains such as 

capital receipts. In some instances this can be a residual 

benefit however educational aspects of proposal can 

outweigh such financial benefits and must be the primary 

concern. 

 

It is unlikely that the proposal would result in an additional 

£20,054 for business support. This figure was provided during 

the pre-consultation stage following a request for further 

information from the Diocese relating to savings made within 

the school budget. The proposal would result in a business 

support saving (not an additional expenditure) of £20,054 

which forms part of the overall total school budget saving 

(non-pupil led funding). 

5.3 Risk Management 5: The Modernising Education Team did 

not hold parents meetings or offer any new parents the 

opportunity to speak to officers or to visit Ysgol Borthyn. 

Section 3.4 of the Code is set out. By not meeting authority 

has failed to consult in an open and transparent way 

which would allow parents to discuss their concerns. 

 

The Diocese believe that the authority is using the proposal 

as a means to promote its own community provision and 

thereby help reduce their surplus places. Ignoring the 

parental preference for a rural English medium faith based 

provision. 

The Code does not make it mandatory for the authority to 

carry out meetings with parents and received no request 

from parents, the Governing Body or other stakeholders 

during the consultation period for such meetings. Should the 

proposal be implemented the Council would work with 

individual parents and pupils based on their preference for 

alternative provision. This would include transitional 

opportunities for pupils (i.e. taster days) and opportunities for 

parents to visit schools such as Ysgol Borthyn. 

 

The Council refute the comment that the proposal is trying 

to ‘promote’ community schools at the expense of faith. The 

Council as of 1st September implemented the proposal to 

re-designate Ysgol Esgob Morgan in St Asaph as a Voluntary 

Controlled School and is working with the Church in Wales 

for the new Area school for Llanfair / Pentrecelyn to be a 

Voluntary Controlled School and seeking to establish a new 

P
age 318



 

83 
 

secondary joint faith provision in the North of the County. 

5.5 It appears the only benefit is the reduction of surplus 

places- disadvantages are as follows; 

 

-Loss of 35% English medium faith school places within 

Ruthin area. 

-Impact on viability of village hall. 

-Incompatible school support category between Ysgol 

Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn. 

 

The authority has been clear from the outset of the review 

that surplus places were a key driver to safeguarding the 

quality and standard of education in the Ruthin area. A 

number of responses have identified how well utilised the 

village hall is throughout the week. It is the view of the 

authority that the hall would continue to be sustainable 

should the proposal be implemented. The authority has 

addressed the concern around categorisation of both Ysgol 

Borthyn and Ysgol Llanbedr. Both schools are currently in 

Standards category 3, there is a similar picture at both 

schools.   

5.7 The Diocese believes that the consultation is once again in 

reality on only one option. There is no evidence to suggest 

that DCC has seriously considered other alternative 

proposals either as solutions other than a closure or as to 

why Llanbedr should be singled out for closure rather than 

other possible schools. The authority has not produced any 

evidence to support the claim that a number of options 

have been considered. We would request that the 

authority adduce evidence- we would expect to see 

copies of internal reports, research undertaken by officers, 

questions on federation, amalg or maintain the status quo. 

 

We would expect to see a risk benefit analysis and proper 

business case examining the alternatives showing how 

officers came to an informed decision. Consultation 

flawed by not providing this. Proposal is opportunistic and 

remains potentially discriminatory. No alternatives consider 

due to time from Ministers determination- not at a 

formative stage as Code requires. 

The Council have set out a number of options for Ysgol 

Llanbedr which includes the advantages and 

disadvantages of each option and how each option meets 

the key drivers for the review. This has been contained within 

the consultation document. The authority has consulted on 

closure as it believes that closure would achieve the 

following; 

 

 Pupils would have access to an equivalent provision 

in terms of standards and outcomes, language 

medium and faith provision; 

 Pupils would benefit from exposure to a broader 

compliment of teaching staff, senior leaders and 

curriculum leads; 

 A reduction in surplus places would occur whilst 

maintaining provision for parental preference; 

 Would lead to more balanced and equitable funding 

between mainstream schools in the area including a 

more balanced per pupil spend; 

 Resource would be re-directed to the learner and 

teaching provision. 

P
age 319



 

84 
 

 

 

The Diocese and Governing Body were invited to present 

their option for federation during the consultation with the 

Diocese. Benefits of Federation and a change of status that 

have been put forward by the Diocese and Governing Body 

were similar to the advantages detailed within the formal 

consultation document such as; 

 

 Ysgol Llanbedr would be retained; 

 Some maintenance and administrative costs would 

be transferred; 

 Ysgol Llanbedr would have a permanent head 

teacher providing an opportunity to strengthen 

leadership and management and result in a head 

teacher salary saving; 

 Greater opportunity to share resource, best practice 

and staff expertise; 

 Pupils would have access to a broader compliment 

of staff. 

 

 

In determining a way forward full consideration was given to 

the alternative options such as federation, maintaining the 

status quo, amalgamation/area school, change of status 

have been explored by the authority. The advantages and 

disadvantages of these options are detailed within the 

formal consultation document.  

 

Section 6: What will be the impact of the proposals on the Quality and Standards in Education? 

6.1 Ysgol Llanbedr has strongly embedded values and a 

distinctive Christian ethos, and even though it is a VC 

school due to parental request it follows the church in 

Should the current proposal be implemented the local 

authority would work with the regional educational 

consortia, the Diocese and the proposed receiving school, 

P
age 320



 

85 
 

wales denominational syllabus and not the LA agreed 

syllabus for RE which is followed at Ysgol Borthyn. Therefore 

pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn will not receive 

equivalent teaching in RE. Not possible for Borthyn to make 

this change without the agreement of parents, must be a 

request from parents with no outside influence. 

Ysgol Borthyn during a transitional period. Should pupils 

transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, parents who have requested for 

pupils to follow the Church in Wales denominational syllabus 

would be able to submit a similar request. 

 

Ysgol Borthyn is a Church In Wales Voluntary Controlled 

school, as is Ysgol Llanbedr. The current support that is 

provided to Ysgol Llanbedr to implement and monitor the 

denominational syllabus by the Diocese could be replicated 

within Ysgol Borthyn due to its Church in Wales status. 
 

6.4 According to AA route planner the distance between 

Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn is 3.3miles and not 2.2 

miles as stated by DCC. This emphasises that the 

consultation document is poorly drafted and has basic 

flaws that should have been amended prior to 

publication. 

The location of Ysgol Llanbedr on ‘AA Route Planner’ is 

inaccurately located. The Council utilise Ishare GIS software 

to calculate distances between sites based which shows the 

distance between the two school sites to be 2.6 miles. The 

reference to 2.2miles within the document is for the village 

of Llanbedr, the school sits outside of the village itself. Pupil 

journey times resulting from the proposal will fall within the 

requirements set out in Welsh Government guidelines for 

learner travel times.  

6.5 Shows the drop in numbers which we have continually 

argued is due to the Council handling of the temporary 

head teacher arrangements. 

Support was provided to the school and Governing Body. 

Solutions to the issues were reached in mutual agreement. 

Ysgol Llanbedr received extensive support from the school 

improvement team which saw pupil numbers stabilise. 

6.10 Ysgol Borthyn has a higher than average ALN proportion of 

pupils. These pupils require additional support staff. Ysgol 

Llanbedr has 5 pupils. Will place extra strain on capacity 

will lead to a detriment in the quality of educational 

provision. Also noted in 6.11 and 6.26 

The support for pupils with ALN in Ysgol Borthyn is already in 

place. Should the proposal be implemented support 

packages for the individual pupils currently in Ysgol Llanbedr 

will be replicated in their new learning environment and 

appropriate transitional arrangements for the individual 

pupils needs will be arranged should the proposal be 

implemented. ALN officers would work closely with individual 

families and pupils. 

6.22 Although numbers in cohorts relatively small the The authority would re-iterate that where cohorts are small in 

P
age 321



 

86 
 

consistency of outcomes shows that Ysgol Llanbedr 

provides excellent educational provision. Additionally 

noted in 6.27 

number outcomes should be treated with caution. This is 

advice is replicated by the Welsh Government on the “My 

Local School” website. The authority has provided a range 

of contextualised data relating to both schools to 

demonstrate this. 

6.29 The Diocese has had confirmation that had a permanent 

head teacher position been advertised for at Llanbedr 

and had the school not been under threat of closure a 

previous acting head teacher would have applied. 

Position Llanbedr has been put in by the LEA.  

Ysgol Llanbedr could advertise for a permanent head 

teacher. The advice not to recruit for a permanent head 

teacher was issued during 2011-2012 when there were 

leadership issues at the school. 

Section 7: Evaluation of the Impact of the Proposal on the Quality and Standard of Education 

7.1 The well-being of learners has not been considered as their 

school has now been under the threat of closure twice in a 

three year period. With regard to standards, the current 

support category for Ysgol Borthyn is Amber. The current 

support category for Ysgol Llanbedr is Yellow. Does not 

meet threshold requirements of school org code. 

 

Provision- Diocese believes that Ysgol Llanbedr continues 

to provide an excellent education as is demonstrated by 

the consistently good outcomes. However to continually 

improve Ysgol Llanbedr has identified potential partners for 

federation. Benefits of Federation are numerous. 

 

 

The authority has made adequate arrangements to ensure 

that the best interests of learners are ensured during this 

process. This has included producing a children and young 

people’s consultation document- to which numerous pupils 

have supplied a response. The authority, in conjunction with 

the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr DC, facilitated a 

consultation session for the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr which 

allowed them to put forward their views on the proposal. This 

is also set out in detail in Appendix C. 

 

Prior to the commencement of the consultation in June 2015 

the authority contacted the school regarding arrangements 

for pupils during the consultation period. It was stated that 

should staff at the school or parents/carers become aware 

of any issues resulting in pupils requiring additional support 

this could be provided by contacting the relevant support 

officers within the school improvement team. Neither the 

school nor individual families have approached the 

authority with any concern to date.  Should the proposal be 

formally published this support would continue.  

7.2 Notes different support categories. Ysgol Borthyn is a good 

school but the authority has not considered how the influx 

The LA has responded to the concerns around the 

categorisation of Ysgol Borthyn and Ysgol Llanbedr in 

P
age 322



 

87 
 

of so many pupils will put added pressure on the school 

and affect the current standards of education. The other 

alternative schools in the area do not provide an English 

medium faith based education and as such are NOT 

alternatives. Parental preference would be removed as 

children would be forced to go to either bilingual faith 

based schools. Parental preference removed and children 

forced to go to either bilingual faith schools or non-faith 

based English medium schools. 

 

Failed to ensure that disruption to learners is minimised by 

second consultation on school closure. 

 

section 7.7. The authority has undertaken an evaluation of 

the impact of the proposal on the quality and standard of 

education which was detailed in Section 7 of the formal 

consultation document. The authority addressed the 

potential impact of the proposal on; 

 

 outcomes :- standards, wellbeing, curriculum delivery; 

 provision :- learning experiences, teaching, care 

support, guidance and learning environment; 

 leadership and management :- leadership, improving 

quality, partnership working and resource 

management. 

 

The authority have included an assessment of potential 

other alternatives in the area in addition to Ysgol Borthyn as 

the proposed receiving school. Ysgol Borthyn, and other 

schools within the area, would continue to provide all pupils 

with a broad and balanced curriculum at both the 

foundation phase and key stage 2 without detriment as a 

consequence of the proposal. 

7.5 Ysgol Llanbedr follow the Church in Wales syllabus for RE. 

This is not the case at Ysgol Borthyn or the other alternative 

schools. The receiving schools would not be able to 

provide the same curriculum should they receive pupils as 

a result of the proposed closure of Ysgol Llanbedr. 

Authority does not provide evidence to support the 

statement that other schools would be able to continue to 

deliver the curriculum. If all pupils moved to Llanbedr the 

infant class size would be over the legal limit of 30. This 

would impact on Ysgol Borthyn’s ability to deliver the 

curriculum.     

This is detailed within the formal consultation document 

(Section 7). There are surplus places within each of the 

identified schools, as of September 2015 there were 204 

surplus places across all identified schools (inclusive of Ysgol 

Llanbedr) equating to 41.5% of the overall capacity of the 

schools.  

 

7.6 Other alternative schools not alternatives do not provide 

faith education. 

The School Organisation Code states that “information 

should be included for all existing schools likely to be 

P
age 323



 

88 
 

affected by the proposal- for example in the case of a 

proposal to close a school information should be provided 

about all the surrounding schools to which it might 

reasonably considered that pupils may wish to transfer”. 

 

The proposed alternative school, Ysgol Borthyn, provides an 

alternative faith based English medium provision. In addition, 

it would be deemed reasonable that other schools in the 

area may be impacted should the proposal be 

implemented. Identified alternative provision includes faith 

based and non-faith based provision. A broad range of 

information relating to each of the schools has been 

included within the formal consultation document including 

educational outcomes, standards, Estyn comments and 

data regarding past, present and future pupil numbers.  

 

Some responses to the formal consultation have expressed 

wishes for other schools other than Ysgol Borthyn. 

Additionally, of those pupils who left Ysgol Llanbedr between 

2011 and 2013 none attended an alternative faith based 

provision.  Therefore it is reasonable that parents of current 

pupils may seek a non-faith option in accordance with 

parental preference and consultees have been provided 

with information relating to these schools in accordance 

with the Code. 

7.7 Ysgol Borthyn is in improvement category C whilst Ysgol 

Llanbedr is in improvement category B, whilst both schools 

are working well Ysgol Llanbedr is in a stronger position in 

terms of its improvement capacity. 

Both Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn are in standards 

group 3 as per the national schools categorisation system. 

The overall weighted scores for the schools are also similar 

with Ysgol Llanbedr having an overall weighted score of 16.5 

and Ysgol Borthyn 16. The picture at both schools is similar. 

The authority does not agree that Ysgol Llanbedr is in a 

stronger position that Ysgol Borthyn and would maintain the 

view that there is an improving picture at both schools. 

P
age 324



 

89 
 

7.8 Importance of a school within a village community and 

parental involvement which is better within small schools. 

The authority acknowledges that school closure will 

inevitably impact upon a community. The authority 

produced a Community and Welsh Language Impact 

Assessment which was published alongside the formal 

consultation document. It is recognised by the authority that 

the school plays an important role in the community, should 

the proposal be implemented there would be scope to 

extend links with Ysgol Borthyn and the Llanbedr DC 

community. There is a separate village hall located within 

Llanbedr which is utilised for events in the village. The school 

does not have a hall facility however the astro-turf pitch is 

used by the wider community. The authority would be open 

to working with the Diocese and local community to retain 

use of the facility for the local community. The authority has 

provided a response to the issues raised within the 

community impact assessment in section two of this table. 

7.9 Ysgol Llanbedr and Diocese have proposed federation. 

Consultation report gives two weak lines saying that 

federation was considered but gives consultees no 

adequate reasons for not pursuing this. 

 

The authority asked the Diocese of St Asaph to bring 

forward alternative proposals. We strongly contend that 

under the Code it was and is the absolute duty of the 

authority to consider fully all alternatives and bring forward 

proposals on a number of possible options. All alternatives 

should have formed part of this consultation. By limiting the 

consultation to the only outcome of closure the authority 

effectively limited the responses and the information 

gathering process that would have allowed elected 

members to hear from the wider community on a range of 

alternatives. 

The Council has set out disadvantages and advantages of 

Federation within the consultation document. The Council 

have considered not only this information but also 

information presented by the Diocese of St Asaph and the 

Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr.  

 

There is no requirement within the Code for local authorities 

to consult on more than one option. Should a local authority 

consult on only one option they must outline why other 

alternative options have been discounted. This information 

has been contained within the formal consultation 

document. A large volume of responses have been 

received and the authority would disagree that this limited 

responses to the consultation. The range of issues raised by 

respondents is set out in this formal consultation report. 

7.12 Provision: Difference in support category re-iterated. Ysgol Both Ysgol Borthyn and Ysgol Llanbedr are in standards 

P
age 325



 

90 
 

Borthyn has a higher than average % of ALN pupils. These 

pupils require additional support staff. Ysgol Llanbedr has 4 

pupils with ALN, and 1 with support.  

 

Already higher than average will put immeasurable 

pressure on the capacity of the building and will inevitably 

lead to a detriment in the quality of educational provision. 

No consideration has been given in the consultation 

document, which again we submit as a significant flaw.  

 

Forecasts show insufficient places, this would mean using 

mobile accommodation. No scope left to extend Borthyn 

due to access restrictions at the site not feasible option. 

The authority fails to provide details of how support 

currently received by individual pupils would be 

replicated. 

category 3. The overall weighted scores at both schools are 

similar with Ysgol Llanbedr having an overall score of 16 and 

Ysgol Borthyn 16.5. There is a similar picture at both schools.  

 

The resources for ALN support would be reviewed in 

accordance with pupil movement. However there is no 

reason to believe that the higher than average ALN 

percentile at Ysgol Borthyn has an impact on the quality of 

educational delivery at the school.  

 

The feasibility work has identified potential to expand Ysgol 

Borthyn and following an assessment by the Property Health 

and Safety Manager the authority is of the view that there is 

safe access to expand the school should demand increase. 

Work has been undertaken to extend other schools in the 

county were access has been restricted to a greater extent 

than that at Ysgol Borthyn. 

7.13 Authority fails to provide evidence as to how possible 

shortcomings of small schools in terms if wider opportunities 

in respect of curricular and extra-curricular activities relates 

directly to Ysgol Llanbedr. Any possible benefits due to a 

larger cohort of pupils can be alleviated by following 

through on the proposal to federate. Estyn states it differs 

from school to school and given Ysgol Llanbedrs 

consistently good outcomes this shows shortcomings are 

not present at Ysgol Llanbedr. 

The consultation document was based on the proposal of 

closure and compared the position of closure against the 

status quo.  The Council welcomes the diocesan view that 

alternative options than the status quo would lead to a 

better educational experience for current pupils. 

 

7.14 It is the authority’s belief that Ysgol Borthyn is LIKELY to offer 

a broader compliment of staff and have an established 

structure for curriculum leads however fail to provide any 

evidence to this effect. Increase in pupils re-iterated. 

Therefore information provided by the authority from the 

Estyn report 2013 is misleading and irrelevant. Numbers 

forecast to grow to 50 by 2018/2019. 

Ysgol Borthyn has a permanent head teacher with no 

teaching commitment, an established senior leadership 

team and a middle management team. The school also has 

a number of curriculum leads with staff having expertise in a 

number of areas. This information was contained within the 

formal consultation document. In comparison to the status 

quo at Ysgol Llanbedr which currently has FTE of 2 teaching 

P
age 326



 

91 
 

 staff, one of whom is the head teacher with a significant 

teaching commitment, it is reasonable to conclude that 

should the proposal be implemented pupils would have 

access to a broader compliment of staff.  

The authority does not believe that the inclusion of the Estyn 

2013 report is misleading or irrelevant. Ysgol Llanbedr will 

remain a small school. A small school is defined by Estyn as 

any school with 90 pupils or fewer; there are currently 32 full 

time pupils on roll. The current capacity of Ysgol Llanbedr is 

54 with an increase to 77 as of September 2016. It is 

expected there will be 36 full time pupils on roll as of 

September 2016 should all 4 current part time pupils 

transition to Reception. Very small schools are defined as 30 

pupils or fewer and this was applied to Ysgol Llanbedr at the 

time of publication (22 Full time pupils January 2015) 

although it is recognised that the school currently 

(September 2015) has 32 full time pupils on roll. 

7.21 There is no evidence from the authority to back up their 

claim that their proposal would offer at least an equivalent 

standard of leadership and management.  

The Diocese proposal to federate would provide an 

equivalent standard as well as stability. Current 

consultation unfairly discriminates against the school in 

seeking opportunities to develop further federation 

proposals as the consultation and decision of Cabinet 

could effectively remove Ysgol Llanbedr as a viable 

partner.   

The Council set out the rationale for the educational case 

for change within the document alongside comparative 

and contextualised data and information for Ysgol Llanbedr, 

Ysgol Borthyn and the other possible alternative schools 

within the area. Ysgol Borthyn has appointed a permanent 

head teacher who took up post in January 2015. Prior to this 

the deputy head teacher was acting head for one term 

following the retirement of the previous Head in July 2014. 

The school, due to its size, has an established senior 

leadership team unlike at Ysgol Llanbedr which is restricted 

in terms of staff due to budgetary restrictions. As recognised 

by Estyn, it is less challenging for larger schools to implement 

senior leadership and middle management teams as the 

school budget formula allows for a greater staffing body 

than at a smaller school. 

 

P
age 327



 

92 
 

7.23 The authority fails to recognise that it was as a result of the 

imposed leadership that a large number of pupils left the 

school leading to the sudden surplus capacity- which is 

now reducing. Ysgol Llanbedr was graded 4 in 2009 prior 

to the issues arising in 2011-2012. Since school leadership 

and current acting head teacher with support from GWE 

have greatly improved the school’s self-evaluation 

processes. 

The authority refute that the leadership arrangements were 

‘imposed’. Support was provided to the school and 

Governing Body.  

Solutions to the issues were reached in mutual agreement. 

Ysgol Llanbedr received extensive support from the school 

improvement team which saw pupil numbers stabilise.  

7.24 The authority only provide a “view” that should current 

pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr transfer to Ysgol Borthyn it would 

not have a negative impact on the quality of leadership 

and management at Ysgol Borthyn. No evidence is 

provided to substantiate this view. We would ask for 

specific evidence to support this. No assessment on the 

impact on the Head teachers well-being has been made.  

Proposing a large number of children to attend the school. 

Unfair expectation of any head teacher and teaching 

staff. Authority provides view it would positively impact on 

pupils- no evidence is provided to support this ambitious 

claim. Pupils could access a broader compliment of 

teaching staff offering expertise through federation. Same 

benefit without upheaval of moving schools. 

Ysgol Borthyn, due to the size of the school, has a broader 

compliment of teaching staff than at Ysgol Llanbedr. This 

includes staff with expertise in various areas of the curriculum 

who act as curriculum leads. The school has an established 

senior leadership team and a substantive head teacher with 

no teaching commitment.  

 

Section 8: Alternative Provision  

8.1 Alternative schools- not alternative do not provide faith. 

On what basis is the statement that parents/pupils may 

wish to choose a school other than Ysgol Borthyn? Parents 

at Llanbedr have consistently stated that they wish to send 

their children to a faith school. Relying on fact they may 

not choose Borthyn- not an adequate rationale.  We 

would seek clarification as to why the authority are 

proposing Borthyn but stating that parents may wish to 

choose another school. 

The School Organisation Code states that “information 

should be included for all existing schools likely to be 

affected by the proposal- for example in the case of a 

proposal to close a school information should be provided 

about all the surrounding schools to which it might 

reasonably considered that pupils may wish to transfer”. 

The proposed alternative school, Ysgol Borthyn, provides an 

alternative faith based English medium provision. In addition, 

it would be deemed reasonable that other schools in the 

area may be impacted should the proposal be 

P
age 328



 

93 
 

implemented. Identified alternative provision includes faith 

based and non-faith based provision. A broad range of 

information relating to each of the schools has been 

included within the formal consultation document including 

educational outcomes, standards, Estyn comments and 

data regarding past, present and future pupil numbers.  

Some responses to the formal consultation have expressed 

wishes for other schools other than Ysgol Borthyn. 

Additionally, of those pupils who left Ysgol Llanbedr between 

2011 and 2013 none attended an alternative faith based 

provision.  Therefore it is reasonable that parents of current 

pupils may seek a non-faith option in accordance with 

parental preference and consultees have been provided 

with information relating to these schools in accordance 

with the Code. 

8.4 Authority does not provide 5 year forecasts of pupil rolls at 

all existing schools likely to be affected. Information should 

be provided by EC Harris surveys only not other surveys. 

The 5 year forecasts for all possible alternative schools are 

included in section 4 (4.6-4.7) of the formal consultation 

document. The School Organisation Code states that the EC 

Harris surveys undertaken in 2010 should be included within 

the formal consultation document, however it does not 

state this should be the only information used to compare 

the accommodation of schools.  

The EC Harris surveys were undertaken in 2010, the authority 

believes that it was reasonable to include additional 

information that provided a more recent view regarding the 

quality of accommodation. There has been works at both 

schools since this time with a maintenance revenue spend 

of £31k and a capital maintenance spend of £43k at Ysgol 

Llanbedr since 2010. At Ysgol Borthyn there has been a 

maintenance revenue spend of £36k and a capital 

maintenance spend of £62k at Ysgol Borthyn for the same 

period.  

Based on the investment made the internal survey 

P
age 329



 

94 
 

information has also been included in addition to the EC 

Harris surveys to provide a comprehensive comparison of 

the quality of accommodation at both schools. 

8.5 Why does the authority bring two sets of contrasting data 

to advise consultees? Serves no purpose but to make 

comparative less clear and does not show which set is 

being used by authority to make final decision. Another 

flaw in document. 

The authority provided an explanatory note regarding the 

two sets of pupil forecasts. The first table is based purely on 

actual pupils (January PLASC data) and the second table 

uses this same data but updates with the most recent 

admissions for Nursery and Reception.   

8.6 What date is this based on? Consultation document is 

flawed as it does not give a date or by what method it 

was calculated. 

The capacities of each school are calculated in line with the 

Measuring the Capacity of Schools in Wales 2011 Circular 

No: 021/2011. The capacities included within the table are 

the most recent calculations for the schools listed. Further 

information relating to the measurement of school 

capacities can be found on the Welsh Government website 

here. 

8.8 What date is this based on? Consultation document is 

flawed as it does not give a date or by what method it 

was calculated. Two methodologies used. Authority should 

have an agreed methodology. 

Section 8.8 of the consultation document is in reference to 

pupil teacher ratios The authority assume the methodology 

queried is the pupil projections methodology. The 

methodology for the calculations of pupil forecasts does not 

differ for the two sets of data; however one set is based on 

the PLASC numbers only whereas the second set provides 

an updated forecast using the most recent admissions data 

available. The methodology in both circumstances takes a 3 

year average from the Nursery, Reception and Year 1 class 

to provide a trend number to roll forward. Actuals within the 

system also roll forward. 

8.10/11 Misleading as they give data and outcomes for schools 

that are either not church schools or are not in the same 

category as Llanbedr. 

The School Organisation Code states that “information 

should be included for all existing schools likely to be 

affected by the proposal- for example in the case of a 

proposal to close a school information should be provided 

about all the surrounding schools to which it might 

reasonably considered that pupils may wish to transfer”. The 

proposed alternative school, Ysgol Borthyn, provides an 

P
age 330

http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/publications/circulars/0906measuringcapacity/?lang=en


 

95 
 

alternative faith based English medium provision. In addition, 

it would be deemed reasonable that other schools in the 

area may be impacted should the proposal be 

implemented. Identified alternative provision includes faith 

based and non-faith based provision. A broad range of 

information relating to each of the schools has been 

included within the formal consultation document including 

educational outcomes, standards, Estyn comments and 

data regarding past, present and future pupil numbers.  

Some responses to the formal consultation have expressed 

wishes for other schools other than Ysgol Borthyn. 

Additionally, of those pupils who left Ysgol Llanbedr between 

2011 and 2013 none attended an alternative faith based 

provision.  Therefore it is reasonable that parents of current 

pupils may seek a non-faith option in accordance with 

parental preference and consultees have been provided 

with information relating to these schools in accordance 

with the Code. 

Section 9: Adequacy of School Accommodation and Impact of the Proposal on the Quality of Accommodation  

9.1 Code states information to be used must include 

reference to 21st Century Schools survey and not any other 

survey. Yet has been ignored by the authority who 

adduces data from 2014 which is not relevant as the 

authority has not made significant investment in either 

school since 2010. Information is misleading and tries to 

convey that Ysgol Borthyn is better graded in suitability 

that Ysgol Llanbedr.  Flawed consultation has information 

does not meet criteria. 

The School Organisation Code states that the EC Harris 

surveys undertaken in 2010 should be included within the 

formal consultation document, however it does not state this 

should be the only information used to compare the 

accommodation of schools. The EC Harris surveys were 

undertaken in 2010, the authority believes that it was 

reasonable to include additional information that provided 

a more recent view regarding the quality of 

accommodation. There has been works at both schools 

since this time with a maintenance revenue spend of £31k 

and a capital maintenance spend of £43k at Ysgol Llanbedr 

since 2010. At Ysgol Borthyn there has been a maintenance 

revenue spend of £36k and a capital maintenance spend of 

£62k at Ysgol Borthyn for the same period.  

P
age 331



 

96 
 

Based on the investment made the internal survey 

information has also been included in addition to the EC 

Harris surveys to provide a comprehensive comparison of 

the quality of accommodation at both schools. 

9.3 Where is the evidence that Ysgol Borthyn can 

accommodate 23 full time pupils? Where would they go? 

What is the anticipated impact in each class? Why hasn’t 

the authority changed the capacity number? head 

teacher of Ysgol Borthyn counters this view. 

The ‘Measuring Capacity of Schools in Wales’ methodology 

used by the authority demonstrates there is additional 

capacity within Ysgol Borthyn. There is a room area of 43sqm 

which would potentially provide 23 full time pupil places as 

per the measurement formula. Other classrooms within the 

building measure 41sqm and 42sqm.  

 

This room is presently allocated as resource space for the 

school but has previously been utilised as a teaching area. 

 

Should the proposal be implemented and all pupils of Ysgol 

Llanbedr transferred to Ysgol Borthyn the arrangements for 

teaching would be discussed closely with the Governing 

Body of Ysgol Borthyn.  Based on current , and should all 

pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, class 

structures would be as follows; 

 

 

 

 N R 1 2 3 4 5 6 

YL 4 10 7 3 7 2 3 0 

YB 14 18 22 19 11 13 16 17 

T 18 28 29 22 18 15 19 17 

*N&R admission data as of September 2015.   

Data based on the January 2015 PLASC was presented 

within the formal consultation document demonstrating 

class structures for both Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn. 

9.5 The authority fails to mention the fact that Ysgol Llanbedr 

has an astro turf facility. 

The astro-turf facility is included within the Community and 

Welsh Language Impact assessment. The authority would be 

P
age 332



 

97 
 

open to working with the Diocese and local community to 

retain use of the facility for the local community. 

9.6 No evidence to back this up- no mention of the fact pupils 

from Ysgol Llanbedr would no longer have the provision of 

year round outdoor PE. 

The authority has produced evidence relating to condition 

and suitability surveys at Ysgol Borthyn which indicate the 

school provides a good learning environment. Estyn also 

found the learning environment at Ysgol Borthyn to be good 

stating “The well-maintained school building provides a 

clean and pleasant learning environment. There is plenty of 

space available on the school site for outdoor play and 

learning. Areas such as the vegetable garden, forest area 

and the secure play area for children in the Foundation 

Phase extend opportunities for learning well.”  

Ysgol Borthyn has sufficient outdoor hardplay area which is 

utilised for outdoor activities year round. It is recognised that 

this is not an astro-turf facility however it would not impact 

on the pupils access to outdoor PE provision should the 

current proposal be implemented.  

 

9.7 FRA Recommendations have not been met The FRA (Fire Risk Assessment) works were not completed by 

the end of the financial year 2014/2015. These works have 

been factored into the capital programme for the coming 

financial year and the authority can confirm they will be 

completed by April 2016. 

9.9 Very questionable how DCC can perceive Ysgol Borthyn 

to have a suitability rating of A- Good performing as 

intended and operating efficiently. 

The School Organisation Code states that the EC Harris 

surveys undertaken in 2010 should be included within the 

formal consultation document, however it does not state this 

should be the only information used to compare the 

accommodation of schools. The EC Harris surveys were 

undertaken in 2010, the authority believes that it was 

reasonable to include additional information that provided 

a more recent view regarding the quality of 

accommodation. There has been works at both schools 

since this time with a maintenance revenue spend of £31k 

P
age 333



 

98 
 

and a capital maintenance spend of £43k at Ysgol Llanbedr 

since 2010. At Ysgol Borthyn there has been a maintenance 

revenue spend of £36k and a capital maintenance spend of 

£62k at Ysgol Borthyn for the same period.  

Based on the investment made the internal survey 

information has also been included in addition to the EC 

Harris surveys to provide a comprehensive comparison of 

the quality of accommodation at both schools. Estyn also 

found the learning environment at Ysgol Borthyn to be good 

stating “The well-maintained school building provides a 

clean and pleasant learning environment. There is plenty of 

space available on the school site for outdoor play and 

learning. Areas such as the vegetable garden, forest area 

and the secure play area for children in the Foundation 

Phase extend opportunities for learning well.” 

9.10 It should be noted that the authority is not planning any 

investment into Ysgol Borthyn.  Suitability rating of Ysgol 

Borthyn will not be improved by the proposal. 

The Council have not stated that the suitability rating would 

be improved (this however is already good and graded A). 

It is the view of the authority that should the current proposal 

be implemented it would not negatively impact on the 

suitability of Ysgol Borthyn to continue to deliver the 

curriculum. There is no requirement for the proposal to 

improve the facilities at a receiving school unless there is 

good reason to do so. As evidenced investment has been 

made into Ysgol Borthyn and the condition and suitability of 

the learning environment is good. The school is currently 

operating below its capacity and additional area has been 

identified.  

Section 10: What will be the impact of the proposal on the availability for school places of the same designated religious 

character? 

10.3 Not for the Diocese to bring forward proposals- it is for the 

authority to determine if it is a viable option before 

commencing consultation on closure. Authority failed to 

do this. It would have been appropriate for the authority to 

In considering moving towards consultation on the proposal 

for closure the Cabinet report provided the view that 

“Should a decision be made to consult this would not 

preclude further work being undertaken by the Governing 

P
age 334



 

99 
 

consult on this proposal {to federate} so they could be 

certain all options had been fully explored. There is no 

information provided to enable respondees to this 

consultation to make an informed decision about the 

Diocesan proposal. 

Body in partnership with the Diocese and Local Authority on 

developing more firm proposals regarding the options for 

federation.”  Subsequently the Council has worked with the 

Diocese to assist with this proposal.  At the stage of 

publishing the consultation document no clear information 

had been provided by the Diocese or Governing Body in 

regard to alternative schools to which Ysgol Llanbedr would 

federate. The advantages and disadvantages of Federation 

have been provided within the consultation document and 

have been measured against the strategic drivers of the 

review.  

It is the view of the authority that although Federation would 

provide some benefits closure remains the preferred option 

which would safeguard and sustain current standards of 

education within the area and meet the key drivers review 

resulting in a reduction in surplus places, more equitable 

distribution of per pupil funding and lead to greater 

efficiency and effectiveness of the school estate. 

10.6 Ysgol Llanfair DC does not provide an English medium faith 

based provision it is misleading to include them in the 

figures. 

Ysgol Llanfair DC is a Category 2 school. Category 2 schools 

are dual stream schools. These schools provide Welsh 

medium and English medium side by side dependent upon 

parental preference. If they choose Welsh medium the 

delivery language of the pupils’ education, the language of 

communication with the pupil and educational assessments 

is in Welsh- the same as Category 1 schools. If parents 

choose for their child to be educated through the medium 

of English, the curriculum is delivered in English, the 

communication language with the child is in English and any 

assessments are done in English- the same as a Category 5 

school. 

Section 11: What will be the impact of the proposal on financing of schools? 

11.1 Information is extremely misleading. Is inaccurate and 

therefore flawed as it presents the case that no extra 

The authority maintains the view that there is no requirement 

to invest in the facilities at Ysgol Borthyn, or any other school 

P
age 335



 

100 
 

money would be spent. Not the case and the costs have 

not been presented to cabinet. 

in the area, should the proposal be implemented. The 

authority has explained within the consultation document 

that there is capacity within the system should the proposal 

be implemented. 

11.3 Costs provided by Diocese on closure/savings and for 

Federation. Outlines financial benefits. 

Federation would generate a head teacher saving, the 

Diocese and Governing Body have stated this would save in 

the region of £12k. However, there are other costs 

associated with establishing a Federation and the schools 

would continue to have distinctly separate budgets. 

Federated schools receive an additional £3k lump sum 

within their delegated budget (this is per individual school). 

Closure would generate a head teacher saving in addition 

to the non-pupil led funding elements of the school budget 

such as premises allowance, small schools grant and 

business support. 

11.6 Based on evidence (costs) we do not believe there will be 

significant cost savings of £104k. 

This view is noted however it is the view of the authority that 

closure would result in a saving and lead to a more equal 

distribution of school funding. 

11.7 Cost per pupil will fall. Where pupil numbers increase per pupil funding decreases, 

however Ysgol Llanbedr will remain a small school and 

although pupil numbers at the school are increasing it is 

unlikely per pupil funding will fall in line with the average cost 

in the near future. 

11.10 The proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr would reduce the 

number of English medium faith based places (based on 

increase in Sept 16 at Llanbedr to 77) leaving only 142 

places in Ruthin area. Will be 150 in September 2015.  NOT  

a more balanced and equitable dispersal of school 

funding as far as church places is concerned. 

At the commencement of the Ruthin review in February 

2013 24.8% of the overall capacity for the Ruthin area were 

faith places. If all proposals put forward as part of the review 

are adopted the overall total will be 26.8% although there 

will be an overall reduction of 20 places. There is potential 

capacity within Ysgol Borthyn (as per the capacity 

assessment) for a further 23 full time pupils places. Should it 

be required this space could be utilised within the school. 

Ysgol Llanfair DC is a Category 2 school. Category 2 schools 

are dual stream schools. These schools provide Welsh 

P
age 336



 

101 
 

medium and English medium side by side dependent upon 

parental preference. If they choose Welsh medium the 

delivery language of the pupil’s education, the language of 

communication with the pupil and educational assessments 

is in Welsh- the same as Category 1 schools. If parents 

choose for their child to be educated through the medium 

of English, the curriculum is delivered in English, the 

communication language with the child is in English and any 

assessments are done in English- the same as a Category 5 

school. 

11.12 There would be no capital gain from closing the school- 

unlike if a community school were to close. 

The authority would not pursue proposals to close any 

school based solely on financial gains such as capital 

receipts from the sale of school buildings and or sites. In 

some instances this can be a residual benefit, however the 

educational aspects of a proposal can outweigh such 

financial benefits and must be the primary concern. 

Section 12: What will be the impact of the proposal on the land and buildings of the school? 

12.12 Facility would be lost to the community. Munchkins would 

be at risk- village hall is not suitable. Lists reasons. Holiday 

club available to children during holidays. Schools site 

subject to reverter under Charity Commission Law. 

Although the authority recognise that Munchkins@Llanbedr 

play an important role at the school it is not a statutory 

provision. The authority have stated that other options could 

be available to Munchkins@Llanbedr to continue providing 

their service. The Denbighshire County Council childcare 

sufficiency report (2014) noted that there were a total of 354 

childcare places available in the Ruthin area. There were 

258 children of 0-3 years of age in 2014 with 50% of childcare 

vacancies empty for this age range not taking into account 

118 spaces within full day care private provision. The full day 

care provision in Ruthin has a daily capacity of 57% of the 

numbers it could cater for suggesting that there is more than 

adequate childcare options and places available within the 

area. Other full day child care is available in the Ruthin area.  

The authority notes concerns that ‘munchkins’ would not be 

viable without the school remaining open. It has been 

P
age 337



 

102 
 

proposed that the village hall would be suitable however 

consultees have stated that this would not be an option as 

the village hall is well utilised throughout the day and could 

not accommodate the facility. Other schools, including 

Ysgol Borthyn, have wrap-around-care available. Ysgol 

Borthyn offers ‘Borthyn Bunnies’ playgroup for pupils aged 

two and a half years and over for morning and afternoon 

sessions. Other schools within the area also offer similar wrap-

around-care provision, breakfast clubS and after school 

club. Although the authority recognises the importance to 

parents of wrap-around-care it is important to note that this 

is not a statutory provision. 

Section 13: What issues have been considered in developing the proposal? 

13.1 Alternative Options: There is no evidence to demonstrate 

that the Diocesan proposal has been given careful 

consideration. Immediate revisiting of option to close after 

Ministers decision indicates clearly no alternatives were or 

are under consideration. Hence the Diocese believes the 

proposals are not still at a formative stage in clear breach 

of the Code. No information provided on the strategies for 

school improvement or on the timetable for attaining a 

21st Century schools standard. 

The proposal from the Diocesan was presented to Cabinet 

members in person during May 2015.  The issues arising were 

considered very carefully by elected members and officers 

before the report was finalised. A full response to the option 

to federate and change the status of Ysgol Llanbedr DC is 

contained within Appendix 1 of the Cabinet report pack 

which can be found here. 

13.2 We have demonstrated that numbers are continuing to 

grow at Ysgol Llanbedr.  We have shown that Ysgol 

Borthyn is not suitable as a receiving school. 

The authority acknowledges there will be an increase in 

pupil numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr, as per the information 

contained within the consultation document. This view is 

noted however the authority maintains the view that Ysgol 

Borthyn is a suitable alternative school should the current 

proposal be implemented. 

13.4 Not for the Diocese to bring forward proposals it is for the 

authority to determine if this is a viable option before 

commencing consultation on closure. 

Should a proposal be sought for the school to become a 

Voluntary Aided School it would be the responsibility of the 

Diocese to draft and publish the proposal.  The local 

authority would not have the power. The authority has 

undertaken an options analysis with regard to options for 

P
age 338

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=5146&LLL=0


 

103 
 

school re-organisation for the Ruthin area. Those pertaining 

to Ysgol Llanbedr were included within the consultation 

document. The educational benefits that would be 

achieved by Federating Ysgol Llanbedr could also be 

realised by the current proposal and result in a fairer 

distribution of resource within main stream schools in the 

Ruthin area. 

Section 15: Impact of the Proposal on Staff and the Governing Body 

15.1 If all the staff choose to take redundancy overall cost to 

authority would be £43k. No costings for HR support. Would 

reduce cost savings. 

Any school re-organisation process could result in staff 

redundancy. However, the council would actively seek re-

deployment as a preferred option for staff. Where school 

organisation proposals have been implemented previously 

redundancies have been minimal with the majority of staff 

re-deployed. Costs for support from HR are absorbed by the 

SLA and would not reduce the proposed savings .Should the 

proposal be implemented all staff would be offered 1-2-1 

meetings with a HR officer to discuss options such as 

redeployment, their well-being and to offer support and 

advice appropriate to the needs of the individual members 

of staff.  All members of staff have been offered support by 

HR and a member of the HR team has visited the school 

during the consultation period. 

15.2 More staff required in Ysgol Borthyn as infant class size 

would be over 30 and there will be extra resources 

needed for ALN pupils. 

Based on admission data for September 2015 the Reception 

class size would not exceed 30 pupils. There are currently 10 

pupils in the Reception class at Ysgol Llanbedr and 18 pupils 

in the Reception class at Ysgol Borthyn. Within the nursery 

provision there are 4 nursery pupils at Ysgol Llanbedr and 14 

nursery pupils at Ysgol Borthyn.  

 

15.3 No regard for the impact this will have on the Governing 

Body who have invested a significant amount of time and 

effort into this school. 

The authority has acknowledged the impact of the proposal 

on the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr. The Council 

acknowledges that school organisation proposals can result 

in a great deal of change for pupils, staff and the Governing 

P
age 339



 

104 
 

Body members. Should the current proposal be 

implemented the existing Governing Body at Ysgol Llanbedr 

would cease. The authority in partnership with the proposed 

receiving school, Ysgol Borthyn, would seek to ensure that 

the community of Llanbedr would be appropriately 

represented.  

Section 16: Impact of the proposal on pupils  

16.1 Impact on pupils: Pupils will lose contact with their local 

church. New teachers and peer group but also a new set 

of clergy. There will be no association between school and 

home faith provision. At least 15 pupils will require transport 

as a result of the move. Route planner shows the distance 

to be 3.3miles. The route from Llanbedr means travelling 

through Ruthin during busy times of the day or travelling 

along single track roads with their higher accident risk. 

Increasing the distance travelled for 15 pupils has a 

negative impact on pupils. However it is more important to 

note that the way they will travel to school is likely to 

change. This will be very stressful for pupils as they will be 

expected to travel by taxi with drivers who they do not 

know. DCC is trying to reduce transport costs across the 

county so surely additional requirement has to be a 

negative impact? Doc DCC school transport costs Ruthin 

area annexed.  

No mention of pupils losing their friends, bonds they have 

made with all the staff not just teachers. 

Limited parking at Ysgol Borthyn, crossing trunk roads on a 

twice daily basis to get from car parks to Ysgol Borthyn and 

back, loss of rural learning environment, loss of forest 

school area, outdoors etc. loss of links with the community 

in which they live, loss of identity with their community, loss 

of pride in their village/community. 

There would also be an impact on parents who would lose 

The authority, in partnership with the school community at 

Ysgol Borthyn and the Diocese, would seek to ensure that 

links were made with the Llanbedr community and St Peters 

Church. 

The authority would like to clarify that although 15 pupils 

would be eligible for school transport should the proposal be 

implemented it is not the case the distance would be 

increased for all 15. 4 pupils would be eligible for transport 

but live closer to Ysgol Borthyn which is their nearest suitable 

school resulting in a reduced travel time. The remaining 11 

pupils live within the Llanbedr DC area and it is recognised 

their home to school travel would be increased however this 

would be within the Welsh Government guidelines for pupil 

journey times. Some pupils have closer English medium 

Church in Wales’s schools other than Ysgol Borthyn however 

these are out of county.  The authority would like to note 

that the current approach to Ysgol Llanbedr is along a single 

track road. 

The authority has identified changes that pupils may face 

should the proposal be implemented within the consultation 

document. Where school organisation proposals have been 

implemented previously the School Improvement Team 

have worked closely with the schools and pupils involved to 

make arrangements for pupils to undertake taster days or to 

join activities with  their new peer group. Should the proposal 

be implemented the authority would seek to undertake 

P
age 340



 

105 
 

the “informal social environment” which was such an 

important part of Ysgol Llanbedr. This would also 

negatively impact the wider community since many plans 

are hatched at the school car park that involve 

community council, friends of Ysgol Llanbedr and other 

village events, including social activities that support the 

village pub and events in the village hall. 

No assessment of psychological damage for the learners, 

parents and community in having to face the closure of 

their school not once but twice. 

such transitional arrangements. 

The majority of pupils who attend Ysgol Borthyn utilise 

walking routes to school. Only 1 pupil receives home to 

school transport and arrangements. There is a council 

owned facility directly opposite the school which can be 

utilised by parents who pick up and drop off pupils by car. 

There is a school crossing patrol located outside the school 

to assist both parents and pupils, in addition to a pelican 

cross located near the entrance of the school. Walking 

routes on the approach to Ysgol Borthyn are all designated 

safe routes to school.  

Equivalent school facilities are available at the proposed 

alternative school, Ysgol Borthyn. Estyn commented that the 

school offered “a good range of resources, including ICT, 

provides an appropriate range of learning opportunities for 

all pupils. The well-maintained school building provides a 

clean and pleasant learning environment. There is plenty of 

space available on the school site for outdoor play and 

learning. Areas such as the vegetable garden, forest area 

and the secure play area for children in the Foundation 

Phase extend opportunities for learning well.” 

The authority acknowledges that school organisation 

proposal will impact on the school community however the 

authority would seek to assist Ysgol Borthyn, as the proposed 

alternative school, in fostering links with the wider Llanbedr 

DC community. This could be achieved via the work of the 

Governing Body and PTA. 

Please see section 2.4 of this document regarding 

arrangements for learners. 

16.2 No detail as to what steps would be taken and what 

budget would be allocated to enable the support to take 

place. 

This would be absorbed within current officer roles within the 

School Improvement Team. As stated above such 

arrangements have been undertaken in other cases 

successfully. 

P
age 341



 

106 
 

16.3 Additional support will be required in Ysgol Borthyn as one 

pupil would receive one to one support at Ysgol Borthyn 

that was not provided at Ysgol Llanbedr. 

Should the current proposal be implemented the 

appropriate officers would work with individual pupils and 

their families to establish what support is required at the 

receiving school. All support that pupils currently receive 

would be replicated within their new learning environment. 

Section 17: Additional Learning Needs (ALN) and Groups of Vulnerable Learners 

17.1 ALN no information detailing what support would be given 

and how it would be funded. Higher than average cohort 

of registered ALN pupils will put additional strain on the 

building capacity as not only will there be more pupils but 

more teaching assistants. 

The support pupils receive would the support package that 

is currently being implemented for the individual pupil. 

Should there be a requirement through additional support 

this would be provided in accordance with the needs of the 

pupil and would be assessed through the Additional 

Learning Needs Moderation Panel. 

Section 18: Transport Arrangements 

18.2 Transport: Effect of transport on pupil outcomes. A number of pupils across Denbighshire, and Wales, are 

transported to school using home to school transport (taxi, 

mini bus or coach). There is no evidence that demonstrates 

a correlation between pupil outcomes/attainment and 

school transportation. School transport times for the existing 

pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr to the proposed alternative school, 

Ysgol Borthyn, are within travel guidelines as issued by the 

Welsh Government. For 21 pupils Ysgol Borthyn would be 

closer to their home locations therefore reducing their home 

to school journey times. 

18.4 Public car parks nearest to Borthyn at least 240m or 325m 

from school and require pupils to cross one main road with 

no school crossing patrol. This is in comparison to Ysgol 

Llanbedr where parents/carers could park in the school 

car park or in the lay-by without the need to cross any 

busy roads. Where will the school transport drop off and 

pick up the 15 children entitled to school transport. School 

is on a main road and will add to congestion- will increase 

risk to pupil safety. 

The majority of parents currently transport their children to 

Ysgol Llanbedr. A number of pupils live within close proximity 

to Ysgol Borthyn. Walking routes on the approach to Ysgol 

Borthyn are considered safe walking routes to school. There 

is a pedestrian crossing located near the school and a 

school crossing patrol is in place in the mornings and 

afternoons. There is currently only one pupil receiving 

transport to Ysgol Borthyn. School transport vehicles do not 

allow pupils to disembark onto the main road, there is 

access available from the adjoining housing estate were 

P
age 342



 

107 
 

school transport vehicles allow pupils to disembark. A 

member of staff from the school is also present at the 

location. 

Section 21: How will the consultation take place? 

21.2 Not sufficient information for people to fully participate in 

the consultation process. The Diocese believes that the 

consultation is once again in reality only on one option. 

There is no evidence to suggest that DCC has seriously 

considered other alternative proposals as either solutions 

other than closure or as to why Llanbedr should be singled 

out for closure rather than other possible schools. 

Have not produced evidence to support claim that a 

number of other options have been considered. We would 

expect to see copies of internal reports, research 

undertaken by officers, questions on federation. Expect to 

see benefit analysis and proper business case examining 

the alternatives and showing how officers came to an 

informed decision. 

The authority note this view however it is the view of the 

authority that a range of information has been provided in 

accordance with the requirements set out in the Code. 

Denbighshire’s Cabinet agreed to consult on closure. The 

Diocese of St Asaph and the Governing Body have 

presented an option for Federation and a change of status 

from VC to VA. In making this decision the Cabinet clearly 

stated that they would review any costed proposal for 

federation and change of status to VA. The information 

submitted will be considered prior to the decision being 

made to proceed to statutory notice. 

Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

How can DCC say they are committed to community focused 

schools when they are looking to close a school which will 

negatively impact on the community? Ysgol Llanbedr is an 

important part of the community with many children partaking in 

activities at the village hall, the Church and village events such as 

the Village Flower Show, Fun Run, Christmas Lights, Harvest Festival, 

St Davids Day Concert, Bonfire Night, Community Craft, Older 

People’s luncheon etc. Without Ysgol Llanbedr these events would 

suffer. 

The Council’s policy clearly states “Any review of schools 

within an area will have to take into consideration the 

impact and benefit a school or its facilities have within the 

local community. The Community Impact Assessment will 

take into consideration both the community use of the 

school buildings and the wider impact the school has within 

the community. However the overriding factor in any such 

review would be the effect on the standard of education 

and lifelong learning to be provided in the area.”  

The authority has acknowledged that a school closure will 

inevitably impact on a community but that the proposal will 

assist the standard of education in the area. 

Although Ysgol Llanbedr is a Category 5 English medium school, 

100% of the children are members of the Urdd and partake in Urdd 

The national curriculum for the Foundation Phase includes 

Welsh Language Development (Welsh as a second 

P
age 343



 

108 
 

activities therefore Ysgol Llanbedr plays an important part in the 

local area in successfully introducing and encouraging native 

English speakers to the Welsh language. The impact assessment 

shows that 97% of the children in Ysgol Llanbedr can speak Welsh, 

however there is no comparison data for Ysgol Borthyn or other 

English medium schools. The closure of Ysgol Llanbedr would have a 

negative impact on the Welsh Language. 

language). Pupils in the Foundation Phase should learn to 

use and communicate their needs in Welsh to the best of 

their ability. Pupils should be encouraged to do so and 

should be increasingly exposed to Welsh. At Key Stage 2 

pupils should build on these skills. This is followed by all 

schools in Wales, such as Category 5, schools which teach 

Welsh as a second language. The data provided within the 

assessment is clear that no pupils speak Welsh fluently. 32 

pupils can speak Welsh but not fluently and 1 pupil cannot 

speak Welsh. This data was provided by the school.  

The impact assessment included outcomes at the end of 

Key Stage 2 Second Language Welsh assessment for Ysgol 

Borthyn with 100% of pupils gaining the expected outcomes. 

There is no data available for 2014 for Ysgol Llanbedr 

however in 2013 this was 100% and for Ysgol Borthyn in the 

same year this was 90%. Both were above the local and 

national average. Should the proposal be implemented 

pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr would receive an equivalent 

standard in respect of Welsh language provision.  

Denbighshire County Council is committed to the Welsh 

Government’s aspiration of delivering ‘a sustained increase 

in both the number and percentage of people able to 

speak Welsh’ and recognise the importance of bilingualism 

in the 21st century. DCC have adopted a long term 

aspiration that all children and young people in 

Denbighshire will leave full time education being competent 

and confident in using both Welsh and English. Outcome 5 

of the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan aims to have ‘more 

learners with higher skills in Welsh’ including Welsh second 

language.    

There is insufficient capacity within Ysgol Borthyn to receive all the 

pupils from Ysgol Llanbedr. All parents have indicated a preference 

for an English medium faith based education which can only be 

As of September 2015 there were 32 Full Time pupils in Ysgol 

Llanbedr and 4 Part Time pupils. The current capacity of 

Llanbedr is 54 (this will increase to 77 as of September 2016 

P
age 344



 

109 
 

offered by Ysgol Borthyn. The preference for a rural, community 

based school is also being ignored. 

however a flexible admission number is currently being 

applied) which results in 22 surplus places equating to 40.7% 

of the total capacity. As of September 2015 there were 116 

Full Time pupils at Ysgol Borthyn and 14 Part Time pupils. The 

current capacity of Borthyn is 142 which results in 26 surplus 

places equating to 18.3% of the total capacity. Part time 

(nursery places) are not included within the full time pupil 

capacity and are calculated separately. The table below 

provides current numbers of pupils on roll as of September 

for both Ysgol Borthyn and Ysgol Llanbedr; 

 

 N R 1 2 3 4 5 6 

YL 4 10 7 3 7 2 3 0 

YB 14 18 22 19 11 13 16 17 

T 18 28 29 22 18 15 19 17 

*N&R admission data as of September 2015.   

 

Should the proposal be implemented and all full time pupils 

transfer to Ysgol Borthyn this would result in a total of 148 full 

time pupils. Ysgol Borthyn has accommodated full time pupil 

numbers greater than 142 full time pupils in the past. Within 

the capacity assessment there is potential accommodation 

for 23 further full time pupils at Ysgol Borthyn. As 

demonstrated should all pupils transfer to Ysgol Llanbedr the 

pupils could be accommodated within the current class 

structures and would not exceed 30 pupils per class. There is 

also further faith provision within the Ruthin area, Ysgol 

Llanfair DC which has a capacity of 113 with 23 surplus 

places as of September 2015. Ysgol Llanfair DC is a Category 

2 dual stream provision. Further information relating to the 

categorisation can be found in section 5.3. 

 

The Council recognises that pupil numbers in Ysgol Llanbedr 

P
age 345



 

110 
 

will increase over the coming years and this data has been 

contained within the pupil forecasts data within the 

consultation document. The authority remains of the view 

that these pupils coming through the system can be 

accommodated at Ysgol Borthyn within existing class 

structures going forward and the reduction in capacity 

within the English medium faith based primary sector would 

not result parental choice being removed.  

It is accepted that parents may choose to travel further to access 

faith education. 

The authority acknowledges this however the majority of 

pupils currently attending Ysgol Llanbedr have nearer English 

medium faith based provision than Ysgol Llanbedr. 

Events Listed: The majority of these events would be negatively 

affected by the closure of Ysgol Llanbedr as it would be unrealistic 

to expect children to support them if they are at a different school 

in a different area. 

The authority acknowledges that school closure will 

inevitably impact upon a community. It is recognised by the 

authority that the school plays an important role in the 

community, should the proposal be implemented there 

would be scope to extend links with Ysgol Borthyn and the 

Llanbedr community. Due to the proximity of Llanbedr to the 

town of Ruthin the authority would seek to assist the 

Governing Body and PTA of Ysgol Borthyn to foster links with 

the wider Llanbedr community.  

The children will lose contact with their local church (St Peters 

Llanbedr). Not only will they need to get used to new teachers and 

peer group but also a new set of clergy. There would be no 

association between school and home faith provision. 

Ysgol Borthyn is also a Church in Wales primary school, this 

would provide pupils with continuity in faith based provision 

should the current proposal be implemented. Should the 

current proposal be implemented there would be scope for 

Ysgol Borthyn to extend links with the local church, St Peters, 

in Llanbedr DC. 

Estyn commented that “daily acts of collective worship and 

close links with the local church provide pupils with valuable 

opportunities to reflect on spiritual and moral issues” and 

that “links with the local church enrich pupils’ spiritual 

experiences”. Furthermore that “the school’s partnership 

with Llanfwrog Church helps pupils to make good progress 

with their spiritual development. There are weekly visits by 

P
age 346



 

111 
 

the rector to assembly and classes, and pupils perform 

services in the church on religious festivals. These, plus school 

visits to places of worship, such as St Asaph Cathedral, 

support the religious education syllabus well.” 

Ysgol Gellifor is looking to change to Category 2. 

 

Denbighshire has not received a request from Ysgol Gellifor 

to seek to change Category. To change language 

Category the school would have to undergo a statutory 

consultation process.  

Ysgol Llanbedr is subject to charitable interest- the school has a 

reverter therefore according to charity commission law the property 

reverts back to its previous owner when it stops being a school. 

The authority would not pursue proposals to close any 

school based solely on financial gains such as capital 

receipts. In some instances this can be a residual benefit 

however educational aspects of proposal can outweigh 

such financial benefits and must be the primary concern. 

15 pupils will require transport as a result of a move. The route from 

Llanbedr means either travelling through Ruthin during its busy time 

of day or travelling along single track roads with their higher 

accident risk. 

The majority of pupils currently attending Ysgol Llanbedr are 

not from the Llanbedr area. 21 pupils have home locations 

closer to Ysgol Borthyn. The authority would like to note that 

the current approach to Ysgol Llanbedr is along a single 

track road. 

The authority would like to clarify that although 15 pupils 

would be eligible for school transport should the proposal be 

implemented it is not the case the distance would be 

increased for all 15. 4 pupils would be eligible for transport 

but already live closer to Ysgol Borthyn which is their nearest 

suitable school. The remaining 11 pupils live within the 

Llanbedr DC area and it is recognised their home to school 

travel would be increased but this would fall considerable 

under the Welsh Government guidelines. Some pupils have 

closer English medium Church in Wales schools other than 

Ysgol Borthyn.  

Where is the evidence to prove that the 71 houses would not 

generate a significant number of pupils? This statement has been 

manufactured to advantage the authority’s position.   

The Council calculate how many additional pupils would be 

generated should homes under the LDP be implemented 

using an agreed formula which is based on data gathered 

by Local Authorities. The primary school multiplier is 0.24 (no. 

P
age 347



 

112 
 

of dwellings x 0.24). Should the 70 homes be built in the 

Llanbedr DC area this would generate an estimated 17 

pupils as per the formula. The developments are expected 

to be phased with 20 homes identified to be built by 2020. 

This includes 5 homes in 2017, 5 homes in 2018, 5 homes in 

2019 and 5 in 2020.There is no guarantee that all of these 

pupils would access the provision at Ysgol Llanbedr due to 

parental preference for language medium and other types 

of provision. 

As of May 2015 there were 37 pupils of primary school age 

living within the Llanbedr area. 12 pupils were attending 

Category 5 English medium (non-faith) schools including 

Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Gellifor, Rhos Street School and Ysgol 

Bro Famau. A further 12 pupils were accessing Welsh 

medium education and a further 2 pupils were accessing 

Category 2 provision. 11 pupils from Llanbedr DC were 

attending Ysgol Llanbedr.  

No consideration of factoring in parental choice for faith education. Should the current proposal be implemented, parents who 

wish to access faith based provision in their chosen 

language medium can continue to do so. Ysgol Borthyn is 

the proposed receiving school which provides a Church in 

Wales faith based provision. There is additional faith 

provision within the wider Ruthin area. The Council have 

ensured that as a consequence of the Ruthin area review a 

mix of rural, town, community and faith based provision 

remains available. 

No information to show how these links {with the community} could 

be developed or what budget has been allocated towards it. 

The authority would seek to work in partnership with Ysgol 

Borthyn as the proposed receiving school to foster links with 

the school community and wider community of Llanbedr 

DC. This could be achieved via the work of Governing Body 

and PTA with support from the authority. 

Munchkins@Llanbedr is a wraparound childcare facility based on 

site at the school and it would not operate with the school closed. 

The Denbighshire County Council childcare sufficiency 

report (2014) noted that there were a total of 354 childcare 

P
age 348



 

113 
 

The Community Council have highlighted the importance of this 

service to people within the community. Having such a flexible and 

high level of childcare within the community allows parents to get 

back to work and studies thus contributing to the local economy. 

Not possible for Munchkins to operate from the village hall. 

places available in the Ruthin area. There were 258 children 

of 0-3 years of age in 2014 with 50% of childcare vacancies 

empty for this age range not taking into account 118 spaces 

within full day care private provision. The full day care 

provision in Ruthin has a daily capacity of 57% of the 

numbers it could cater for suggesting that there is more than 

adequate childcare options and places available within the 

area. Other full day child care is available in the Ruthin area.  

The authority notes concerns that ‘munchkins’ would not be 

viable without the school remaining open. It has been 

proposed that the village hall would be suitable however 

consultees have stated that this would not be an option as 

the village hall is well utilised throughout the day and could 

not accommodate the facility. Other schools, including 

Ysgol Borthyn, have wrap-around-care available. Ysgol 

Borthyn offers ‘Borthyn Bunnies’ playgroup for pupils aged 

two and a half years and over for morning and afternoon 

sessions. Other schools within the area also offer similar wrap-

around-care provision, breakfast club and after school club. 

Although the authority recognises the importance to parents 

of wrap-around-care it is important to note that this is not a 

statutory provision. 

 

 

END 

 

========================================================================================================= 

 

 

P
age 349



 

114 
 

 

 

P
age 350



 

115 
 

Appendix F (i) 

 

Page 351



 

116 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 352



 

117 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 353



 

118 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

END 

============================================================== 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 354



 

119 
 

 

 

Appendix G 

Response of the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr  

 

Federation  

Points Raised by GB LA Response 

Aware of 2 suitable schools who are 

seriously interested and considering 

federating with Ysgol Llanbedr should 

the council drop the consultation on 

closure. 

Supported by Diocese, parents, 

governors and staff. 

Is an alternative to closure 

Estyn, Welsh Government and Ofsted all 

promote federation, particularly within 

rural schools. 

WG small schools order now makes it 

easier for schools to federate. 

Sharing best practice is a win-win for 

both schools. Federation facilitates the 

sharing of good practice and 

encourages schools to be more 

outward looking, the impact being 

improved standards of teaching and 

learning outcomes for pupils. 

Ysgol Llanbedr has many areas of 

excellence which could be shared and 

developed such as well-developed and 

varied curriculum and extracurricular 

activities; excellent pastoral care and 

nurturing ethos; strong links with local 

community; effective communication 

with parents; best practice model of 

wrap around care; Greater pool of 

resources and staff expertise; excellent 

outdoor provision; shared use of astro 

turf. 

Provides a development opportunity for 

a head teacher, as it would allow a 

head teacher to stay in post. Would be 

a full time head rather than having a 

teaching commitment.  

Cost saving involved in Federation due 

to only having one head teacher over 

two schools. Saving of at least £15k-

The local authority has explored the option of Federation 

for Ysgol Llanbedr, the advantages and disadvantages of 

all alternative options were detailed within the formal 

consultation document. The authority broadly agrees with 

the benefits put forward in relation to federated school 

models however there are other issues, such as surplus 

places, fairer and more equitable distribution of school 

funding and greater efficiency and effectiveness of the 

school estate. These issues were detailed at the outset of 

the Ruthin are review of primary education.  

It is the view of the authority that whilst federation 

outcomes would realise some benefits such as stability of 

leadership, pupils access to a broader compliment of 

staff etc. These same benefits can also be realised 

through the option to close Ysgol Llanbedr whilst also 

providing economies of scale for the benefit of all pupils 

within the area.  

As stated by the Diocese and also the Governing Body of 

Ysgol Llanbedr in their response to the consultation there 

are potential teaching, learning and educational 

experience enhancement opportunities for pupils. 

Options for sharing best practice and the pooling of 

resources can be achieved in a federated model 

however these benefits can also be achieved at a single 

site school. For example, Ysgol Borthyn the proposed 

alternative school, has a broad compliment of staff with 

an established senior leadership and middle 

management teams. The authority remains of the view 

that whilst these benefits can be realised in a federation 

the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr and transfer existing 

pupils to Ysgol Borthyn where pupils will have access to a 

broader compliment of teaching staff, curriculum leads 

and established leadership teams will also deliver benefits.  

In a federated arrangement Ysgol Llanbedr will still remain 

a small school, surplus capacity will remain and likely 

increase as of September 2016 due to a revised capacity 

assessment at the request of the school and Governing 

Body. The authority acknowledges that there will be an 

increase in pupils however there is not a general increase 

in the numbers of pupils across the Ruthin area indicating 

Page 355



 

120 
 

£20k. 

 

that the quantum of pupils will not change.  

Birth rates and pupil numbers have remained static for a 

number of years. The efficiencies and economies of scale 

that can be achieved by transferring pupils to Ysgol 

Borthyn with a sustainable number of pupils, single 

governance and established leadership structures will 

provide better use of resource and provide pupils with a 

broad range of learning and development experiences 

and opportunities.  

The authority remains of the view that in light of the 

benefits that can be realised through federation (and 

these benefits were detailed within the formal 

consultation document) and light of the availability of 

alternative provision within the area. 

 

 

 Change of status to VA 

Points Raised by GB LA Response 

Changing status from VC to VA reduces 

the county’s costs, as the school 

governing body and diocese become 

more involved and responsible for the 

management and operation of the 

school. 

Governing body controls admissions 

rather than county; governing body 

recruit and employ staff;  

any capital works done at the school 

are paid for by the Diocese/Governing 

Body/ WG 

The school grounds and buildings not 

owned by the county, rather they are 

held in trust by the Diocese, so it is 

sensible to move to VA status where the 

county does not pay to improve the 

site. 

VA status would allow an English 

language Church in Wales school to 

exist in the Ruthin area with significantly 

reduced cost and liability to the 

council. The school could be improved 

and at no cost to the council yet 

benefit the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr and 

 If the status of Ysgol Llanbedr changed from VC to VA 

the school budget would be calculated in the same way 

as other schools (community, VC etc.). The difference 

would be under premises allocation for maintenance.  

Although VA schools do remove some financial 

responsibility from the local authority they would still 

receive 75% of a repairs budget and 15% of additional 

repairs budget. 

 

Taking the school budget for Ysgol Llanbedr 2015/2016 

and applying the above would have resulted in a total 

saving to the overall delegated budget of £453.  

 

The Council administers the admissions process for 16,000 

pupils.  The % of these pupils who attend Ysgol Llanbedr 

would be 0.3% and therefore any change would make no 

real saving to the authority 

 

The Council is aware of funding opportunities for VA 

schools and their respective Diocesan authorities to seek 

85% funding from the Welsh Government towards 

improvement works to the schools.  In considering any 

proposal for the school to become a VA school the 

authority would need assurances from the Governing 

Body and the Diocesan Authority regarding their financial 

Page 356



 

121 
 

the wider Ruthin area. 

There is a lot going on with the Ruthin 

review and other areas, by allowing 

Llanbedr to stay open and change 

status the Council could release some 

responsibility for the school allowing the 

council to focus its ever reducing 

resources on other schools in the review 

and in the area. 

 

capacity to fund the remaining 15% of such works for this 

to be seen as a real benefit. 

 

 

Consultation Process 

Points Raised by GB LA Response 

Point 5.6 states ‘DCC has carefully 

considered a number of options’. 

Where is the evidence in this 

consultation document that anything 

has significantly changed since the first 

consultation in 2013? Surely with other 

school reorganisation progressing, the 

options in 2015 must be different to 

those in 2013. 

 

Alternative options that have been explored by the 

authority were detailed in the formal consultation 

document alongside the advantages and disadvantages 

of each option.  

There have been no meetings with the 

MET with staff, parents or the Governing 

Body or community. Communication 

process poor- some staff found out 

about the 2015 consultation in the 

paper back in February. 

 

The Code does not make it mandatory for the authority to 

carry out meetings with parents and received no request 

from parents during the Consultation period for such 

meetings.  

 

Should the proposal be implemented the Council would 

work with individual parents and pupils based on their 

preference for alternative provision. This would include 

transitional opportunities for pupils (i.e. taster days) and 

opportunities for parents to visit schools such as Ysgol 

Borthyn.  

 

No decision had been made regarding a consultation in 

February 2015. Cabinet made a decision to consult on 

the proposal on 2nd of June 2015. The Diocese, staff and 

Page 357



 

122 
 

Governing Body were made aware of the decision and 

the proposed date for commencement of the formal 

consultation period. 

 

Meant to be a totally new consultation, 

not a continuum of the last one. Was a 

complete appraisal of the current 

situation carried out prior to launching 

the consultation? Appears many of the 

arguments used in the 2013 consultation 

have been used in 2015. 

 

The proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr has been 

undertaken afresh by the local authority.  

 

Following the decision by the Minister in January the 

recommendations made were presented to Cabinet.  A 

number of options were considered alongside the current 

situation in the Ruthin area. The preferred option of the 

local authority, based on educational and strategic 

rationale, was to propose closure in light of the current 

situation within the Ruthin area. 

This consultation is persecution of the 

children, there has been no gap in 

between the ministers decision and start 

of the second consultation- is 10 days 

really enough time to fully consider the 

minsters recommendations? 

 

The Children’s Commissioner and the authority have been 

in dialogue regarding the consultation. The authority 

would ask that the findings are made known to the 

authority and the decision makers (Cabinet members). 

 

The authority has made adequate arrangements to 

ensure that the best interests of learners are ensured 

during this process. This has included producing a children 

and young people’s consultation document- to which 

numerous pupils have supplied a response. 

 

The authority, in conjunction with the Governing Body of 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC, facilitated a consultation session for 

the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr which allowed them to put 

forward their views on the proposal. This is set out in 

Appendix C. 

 

Prior to the commencement of the consultation in June 

2015 the authority contacted the school regarding 

arrangements for pupils during the consultation period. It 

was stated that should staff at the school or 

parents/carers become aware of any issues resulting in 

pupils requiring additional support this could be provided 

by contacting the relevant support officers within the 

school improvement team. Neither the school nor 

individual families have approached the authority with 

any concern to date.  Should the proposal be formally 

published this support would continue. 

This second consultation is 

unprecedented and we do not believe 

it has been carried out in a better 

manner than 2013. 

 

This view is noted. 

Any consultation is meant to consider 

the matter afresh. How can we have an 

unbiased consultation with the same 

This view is noted. 

Page 358



 

123 
 

people on panels that made the 

decision last time? 

 

The minsters letter had too many 

recommendations to offer a second 

unbiased review. 

 

This view is noted. 

What training and qualifications do the 

DCC education panel and elected 

members have to make them the best 

people to carry out school 

reorganisation consultations? Should 

the same people who were involved in 

the seriously flawed consultation of 2013 

be able to try and carry out another 

consultation? What training has been 

received?  

 

Since the Code was implemented in 2013 the WG have 

introduced a quality assurance system upon the 

publication of formal consultation documents. This 

ensures that local authorities are compliant with the 

factors set out within the Code (1.3-1.14).  

Given the 2013 consultation for Ysgol 

Llanbedr was seriously flawed- does this 

mean for all other consultations- does it 

mean all Ruthin review consultations are 

seriously flawed? 

 

The Council note this view however there is no reason to 

believe other consultations were flawed in this respect.  

To imply children from Llanbedr would 

be offered wider opportunities in terms 

of curricular and extracurricular 

activities due to larger cohorts of pupils 

is unfair.  

 

This view is noted however Ysgol Borthyn provides a 

broader compliment of staff with curriculum leads and an 

established senior leadership and middle management 

teams.  

 

Where there are larger cohorts of pupils there are more 

opportunities for pupils with peers of their own age group.  

Council not listening to communities- 

not just Llanbedr- do Rhos St parents 

want their school moved? 

Statement from First Minister reiterated. 

Council not listening to views of the 

community.  

 

This view is noted. 

Children’s document was misleading 

and so seriously flawed it had to be re-

written before GB would allow it to be 

used with the children. What has 

happened at Borthyn? Which 

document did the children use? If the 

children are completing different 

consultation documents is this still a 

The Council issued an age appropriate formal 

consultation document for children and young people. 

This document was issued on the 26th of June.  

 

The Governing Body and school approached the 

authority regarding some elements of the wording within 

the document. 6 minor changes were made as 

suggested by the Governing Body as the changes did not 

Page 359



 

124 
 

valid consultation? impact on the context of the document. An amended 

version was then issued in hardcopy to the school and 

numerous responses were received from pupils.  

 

The pupils at Ysgol Borthyn took part in the consultation 

session however no formal responses were made via the 

children’s document. Ysgol Borthyn and the other schools 

identified raised no concerns with the document issued.  

 

 

 

Surplus Places 

Points Raised by GB LA Response 

Pupil numbers are not in decline at 

Ysgol Llanbedr. The school is showing 

strong growth, continuing to attract 

families from Llanbedr and further 

afield. Remarkable since being under 

threat of closure.  

 

The authority has acknowledged an increase in pupil 

numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr. As of September 2015 there 

were 32 Full Time pupils in Ysgol Llanbedr and 4 Part Time 

pupils. Should all Nursery pupils transition to Reception in 

September 2016 there would be 36 full time pupils on roll. 

Although there will be an increase, although marginal, 

the capacity of Ysgol Llanbedr will increase to 77 full time 

places equating to a surplus of 53.2%. Ysgol Llanbedr will 

remain a small school.  

Surplus places are in KS2 not foundation 

phase. 

Lack of pupils in KS2 is due to the 

Council managements of the situation 

in 2011-2012.  

 

Support was provided to the school and Governing Body 

during 2011-2012. A solution to the issues was reached in 

mutual agreement with the Governing Body at the time. 

Ysgol Llanbedr received extensive support from the 

school improvement team which saw pupil numbers 

stabilise. 

The school and GB have received 

many expressions of interest from 

families with pupils at other schools. 

Especially due to uncertainties around 

other schools. 

The authority is not aware of any mid-term transfers to 

Ysgol Llanbedr from neighbouring schools.  

We know of at least one instance where 

the council admission office has tried to 

dissuade families from applying to Ysgol 

Llanbedr. A formal complaint was 

raised but not satisfactorily resolved. 

 

The authority has received no further communication 

regarding the complaint.  

The consultation document shows pupil 

numbers in decline in Rhos St/Ysgol 

Gellifor- is it pie in the sky projections like 

for Llanbedr to try and eradicate English 

medium primaries. 

Growth in English medium church in 

Wales expected to grow although 

overall English medium to decrease. 

Ofsted data 2007 showed schools under 

51 on roll having the most good or 

Pupil projections are calculated based on school census 

information in line with guidance issued by the WG. Pupil 

projections use school census data from the January 

PLASC exercise of each year. A formula which takes a 3 

year average of the Nursery, Reception and Year 1 class 

generates trend data for subsequent years. Actuals from 

each class carry forward for the higher end of the school.  

 

At the time of publication no decision had been made 

regarding Ysgol Rhewl, due to the home locations of 

Page 360



 

125 
 

outstanding grades   for teaching and 

51-100 came next. Good parents and 

good teachers have long been shown 

to be the major guarantors of 

educational outcomes. Small and very 

small schools have been more 

proportionately represented in Ofsted 

outstanding judgements. 

How can the council seriously put 

forward Ysgol Rhewl as an alternative 

primary school when it is due to close in 

2017. Going through one school closure 

would be traumatic enough for any 

child. 

 

pupils and the language offer at the school it was 

identified as a school that may be impacted should the 

current proposal be implemented.  

 

 

 

 

Ysgol Borthyn as the receiving school 

Points Raised by GB LA Response 

The Code states that when a school is 

closed that the proposed receiving 

school is equivalent or better. Borthyn is 

not equivalent or better from ESTYN 

inspections or the banding for 

improvement where Borthyn is Amber-C 

and Llanbedr is yellow-B. 

 

Estyn have concluded that the proposal is likely to at 

least maintain the current standards of education in the 

area. Furthermore they stated that the local authority 

has; 

 Clearly stated the rationale for the proposal; 

 The proposer has appropriately considered the 

impact of the proposals on the quality of pupils 

outcomes, provision and leadership and 

management; 

 Provided a useful range of information relating to 

performance outcomes.  

 

Both Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn are within 

Standards Group 3 under the Categorisation system and 

have similar overall weighted scores (Ysgol Llanbedr 16.5 

and Ysgol Borthyn 16). There is a similar picture at both 

schools.  

 

It is the view of the authority that should the proposal be 

implemented and pupils transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, or 

another of the identified alternative provision, they would 

have access to at least an equivalent standard of 

provision. Educational outcomes and attainment across 

the Ruthin area is good as a whole. The tables below 

display the Ruthin area average for both the Foundation 

Phase and Key Stage 2 (this information was also 

contained within the formal consultation document); 

 

Page 361



 

126 
 

 
 

 

 
 

The table below displays the outcomes in the identified 

alternative schools at both foundation phase and key 

stage 2 for the last 5 year period; 

 

Foundation Phase- Outcome 5 and above 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Llanbedr 85.7% 87.5% 100% 83.3% 100% 100% 

Borthyn 82.4% 77.3% 58.8% 53.8% 100% 70% 

Rhos 

Street 

88.9% 90% 95.2% 100% 100% 100% 

Gellifor 100% 94.7% 100% 100% 93.3% 75% 

Bro 

Famau 

100% 90% 81.8% 90.9% 80% 100% 

Rhewl 100% 100% 66.7% 83.3% 85.7% 70% 

Llanfair 

DC 

94.1% 86.7% 100% 100% 92.3% 100% 

D’shire 

Av. 

82.4% 79.8% 86.4% 84.9% 86.1% 86.4% 

Wales 

Av. 

81.6% 82.7% 80.5% 83% 85.2% 86.8% 

 

 

Key Stage 2 Level 4+ 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Llanbedr 84.6% 100% 85.7% 100% n/a n/a* 

Borthyn 58.8% 78.6% 92.3% 93.3% 80% 83.3% 

Page 362



 

127 
 

Rhos 

Street 

93.5% 93.3% 96.6% 92.6% 100% 100% 

Gellifor 92.9% 92.3% 100% 91.7% 100% 100% 

Bro 

Famau 

91.7% 100% 94.4% 95.8% 100% 100% 

Rhewl 100% 100% 100% 100% 75% 90.9% 

Llanfair 

DC 

88.9% 91.7% 100% 94.1% 93.3% 100% 

D’shire 

Av. 

78.1% 82.3% 83.5% 86% 86.6% 87.9% 

Wales 

Av. 

77% 80% 82.6% 84.3% 86.1% 87.7% 

*Data has been omitted as it is potentially disclosive 

 

 

During the formal consultation period the outcomes for 

the 2014/2015 academic year were not available. The 

2015 outcomes are displayed in the table above. The 

tables below provide contextualised data for both Ysgol 

Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn for the 2015 academic year; 

 

Contextualised Data Foundation Phase Outcomes 2015 

School ALN FSM EAL Total in 

Cohort* 

Llanbedr 0 1 0 7 

Borthyn 6 1 2 10 

*Total includes pupils in cohort who are not ALN/FSM/EAL 

 

 

Although in 2015 the outcomes at Ysgol Borthyn for the 

Foundation Phase were below the local and national 

average, 60% of the cohort were pupils with Additional 

Learning Needs including 2 pupils who are statemented. 

A further 20% of the cohort were pupils with English as an 

additional language (EAL). In summary 80% of the cohort 

were pupils with ALN or EAL. No pupils at Ysgol Llanbedr 

had Additional Learning Needs and no pupils were EAL. 

The Free School Meals % at both schools for the assessed 

cohorts were similar.  

 

 

Contextualised Data Key Stage 2 Outcomes 2015 

School ALN FSM EAL Total in 

Cohort* 

Llanbedr n/a** n/a n/a n/a 

Borthyn 9 2 5 24 

*Total includes pupils in cohort who are not ALN/FSM/EAL 

**Data has been omitted as it has potential to be 

disclosive. Data has been provided to decision makers. 

 

Page 363



 

128 
 

Ysgol Borthyn saw an improvement in attainment at Key 

Stage 2 from the last academic year although this was 

not above the local or national average. There were a 

total of 24 pupils in the assessed cohort, 9 of these pupils 

had additional learning needs equating to 37.5% of the 

overall cohort with a further 5 pupils having English as an 

additional language (EAL) equating to 20.8% of the 

overall cohort. Of the total cohort 8.3% were FSM. The 

cohort in Ysgol Llanbedr was small; the data relating to 

the cohort is potentially disclosive. The data has been 

made available to decision makers.   

In terms of KS2 Llanbedr has never been 

below the local or national averages 

whereas Borthyn has been below the 

local and national average for the last 3 

of the 5 years. How is this equivalent? 

How can it be said that Borthyn offers 

equivalent or better educational 

standards for the children at Ysgol 

Llanbedr? 

 

It is the view of Estyn that the proposal would at least 

maintain the current standards of education within the 

area should the proposal be implemented. 

 

The consultation document has provided contextualised 

data relating to outcomes at the proposed alternative 

school, Ysgol Borthyn. The data provides information 

relating to % of ALN FSM and EAL within assessed cohorts.  

Ysgol Borthyn overall has a higher than average 

percentile of pupils with ALN and FSM averages are also 

higher than the local and national average. 

 

For example, for 2013-2014 key stage 2 outcomes when 

ALN pupils and EAL pupils are abstracted all remaining 

pupils achieved the expected outcomes. There is a 

detailed response to the outcomes at Key Stage 2 

above. 

In terms of FPOI/CSI Ysgol Llanbedr has 

been better than the local average for 4 

out of 5 years- Borthyn below- how is this 

equivalent? 

 

The consultation document has provided contextualised 

data relating to outcomes at the proposed alternative 

school, Ysgol Borthyn. The data provides information 

relating to % of ALN FSM and EAL within assessed cohorts.  

Ysgol Borthyn overall has a higher than average 

percentile of pupils with ALN and FSM averages are also 

higher than the local and national average. 

 

There is a detailed response to outcomes at Foundation 

Phase above. 

 

There is not capacity at Ysgol Borthyn for 

the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr. In 2016 

there is predicted to be 150 pupils in 

Borthyn and Llanbedr, whereas the 

capacity is 142. 

Full time pupil totals for Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn 

for September 2015 would be as follows; 

 

 N R 1 2 3 4 5 6 

YL 4 10 7 3 7 2 3 0 

YB 14 18 22 19 11 13 16 17 

T 18 28 29 22 18 15 19 17 

*N&R admission data as of September 2015.   

 

Ysgol Borthyn has sufficient capacity that could be used 

by the school. Historically Ysgol Borthyn has 

accommodated full time pupil numbers greater than 

Page 364



 

129 
 

150. During the consultation period a small number of 

respondents who indicated they were parents expressed 

a preference for Ysgol Borthyn. The majority of 

respondents stated they would seek alternative provision.  

The number of pupils with ALN at Borthyn 

is already higher than average 28.2% vs 

national average of 20.5%. This is not 

equivalent or better for pupils from 

Llanbedr. 

 

The inclusion of ALN statistics is to provide contextualised 

data with regard to the outcomes achieved. 

 

There is no reason to believe that the higher than 

average % of ALN pupils at Ysgol Borthyn would be 

detrimental to the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr should they 

transfer to Ysgol Borthyn. 

Borthyn has several EAL pupils (11.3%) 

versus Llanbedr 0%. National average is 

5.5%. Again not an equivalent. 

 

The inclusion of EAL statistics is to provide contextualised 

data with regard to the outcomes achieved. 

 

There is no reason to believe that a higher than average 

% of EAL pupils at Ysgol Borthyn would be detrimental to 

the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr should they transfer to Ysgol 

Borthyn. 

Borthyn does not have wrap around 

care to the same extent as Ysgol 

Llanbedr or any sort of holiday club. 

Would profoundly affect families at Ysgol 

Llanbedr. 

The Denbighshire County Council childcare sufficiency 

report (2014) noted that there were a total of 354 

childcare places available in the Ruthin area. There were 

258 children of 0-3 years of age in 2014 with 50% of 

childcare vacancies empty for this age range not taking 

into account 118 spaces within full day care private 

provision. The full day care provision in Ruthin has a daily 

capacity of 57% of the numbers it could cater for 

suggesting that there is more than adequate childcare 

options and places available within the area. Other full 

day child care is available in the Ruthin area.  

 

The authority notes concerns that ‘munchkins’ would not 

be viable without the school remaining open. It has been 

proposed that the village hall would be suitable however 

consultees have stated that this would not be an option 

as the village hall is well utilised throughout the day and 

could not accommodate the facility.  

 

Other schools, including Ysgol Borthyn, have wrap-

around-care available. Ysgol Borthyn offers ‘Borthyn 

Bunnies’ playgroup for pupils aged two and a half years 

and over for morning and afternoon sessions.  

 

Other schools within the area also offer similar wrap-

around-care provision, breakfast club and after school 

club. Although the authority recognises the importance 

to parents of wrap-around-care it is important to note 

that this is not a statutory provision. 

 

The authority would maintain that the ‘Munchkins’ facility 

could continue to operate should the school close which 

could be in partnership with another school in the area 

Page 365



 

130 
 

who are seeking to expand their provision. DCC would 

work in partnership with ‘Munchkins’ should the proposal 

be implemented and continued use of the current site 

was not a possibility.  

Finance 

Points Raised by GB LA Response 

The budget and finances at Ysgol 

Llanbedr have been very well managed. 

The budget has always remained in 

surplus and is predicted to do so for the 

next three years. In fact Ysgol Llanbedr is 

one of only 12 schools in Denbighshire to 

be predicting a surplus in 3 years time, 

when the overall deficit for all the 

schools is expected to be £7.6million. 

The authority is aware that Ysgol Llanbedr currently has a 

surplus.  

The budget at Ysgol Borthyn is nowhere 

near as healthy as that of Llanbedr, the 

school is already in deficit and is 

expected to grow to over £220k. Is there 

money available in the budget at 

Borthyn to be able to accept the pupils 

from Llanbedr without other spending at 

the school being cut? The lag between 

pupils joining the school and the money 

coming through the budget is around18 

months, which could cause Borthyn 

significant budgetary issues. 

 

The proposal would result in a more equal distribution of 

funding within the area. The reduction in surplus places 

would allow funding to be released and re-distributed 

more directly to the benefit of the learner. Elements of 

the school budget that are pupil led would follow the 

pupil to their new provision should the proposal be 

implemented. Should all pupils transfer to Ysgol Borthyn 

this would result in an increase in Ysgol Borthyn’s budget 

of £86k (based on the current budget 2015/2016). This 

would result in per pupil funding of approximately £4,058, 

the Denbighshire average is £3,931.Pupil led funding 

allows the schools to ensure there is sufficient resource for 

the pupils.  

 

Ysgol Borthyn have implemented a 3 year recovery plan 

which will see the school achieve a surplus by the 

2017/2018 academic year.  

In 2013 the proposed savings were £68k 

yet in 2015 the proposed savings are 

£126k. What has changed to make the 

difference in size of the savings? 

 

Previously the savings made as a consequence of school 

organisation proposals have been based upon the 

saving of a head teacher salary only. 

 

This approach did not include other financial elements 

within the delegated budget which where non pupil led 

such as costs associated with the running of a school 

building, business support etc.  

Quoting a saving for the rent of the 

mobile classroom (at Llanbedr) is only 

part of the story. It is obvious there is not 

enough space at Borthyn for the pupils 

so extra capacity would be needed, 

most likely by renting a mobile. This 

would wipe out the saving made at 

Llanbedr. 

Should the proposal be implemented and pupils transfer 

to Ysgol Borthyn there would not be a requirement for an 

additional mobile classroom at the school to 

accommodate pupils. 

There is an estimate of £26,000 for 

transporting pupils to Borthyn. At present 

the transport to school budget to 

As detailed within consultation document relating to the 

proposal for Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn the 

impact on transport is expected to be neutral with no 

Page 366



 

131 
 

Llanbedr is minimal around £700. In the 

Ruthin area alone the cost of transport is 

£254,000. This will only increase should 

the new schools be built near Glasdir, 

should Rhewl close and should an area 

school for Llanfair and Pentrecelyn be 

built. Proposal to close Llanbedr will 

increase the cost at a cost to the 

council. 

 

significant increase of decrease. 

 

As detailed within the consultation document relating to 

the proposal for Ysgol Rhewl the impact on transport 

costs is expected to be neutral. The relocation of Ysgol 

Pen Barras and Rhos Street School has also shown that 

the transport impact will be neutral based on the home 

to school locations of pupils attending both schools. 

Cost of returning the building to the 

Diocese, such as the removal of any 

asbestos , removing catering facilities 

and decontaminating the site and 

making it fit for return to the Diocese. 

Cost of this not included in the 

consultation document. Would reduce 

potential savings. 

In previous cases there have been negligible costs 

associated with closure of school buildings which are 

subject to reverts. Most recently the closure of Ysgol 

Llantysilio incurred minor costs for the type of works 

identified by the Governing Body.  

Using the forecast pupil numbers cost 

per pupil in Llanbedr would be £5,324 in 

2017/2018 in line with Ruthin average. 

Should federation proposal be adopted 

it would be less as the school budget 

would be less. 

Ysgol Llanbedr would remain a small school. With an 

increase in pupils there will be decrease in per pupil 

funding however due to the size of the school it would 

remain higher than the average per pupils spend. 

To demonstrate proposed savings would 

not be reached- can’t be accurate do 

not have necessary figures. Costs for 

closing outweigh potential savings. No 

savings from closing Llanbedr. 

The authority has provided a document in response to 

the proposal to Federate and change the status of Ysgol 

Llanbedr which can be found here. 

  

Summary 

Point Raised by GB LA Response 

The suggested savings by closing 

Llanbedr will not be achieved. 

 

It is the view of the authority that savings would be made 

in the region of £100k as detailed within the consultation 

document. 

Ysgol Llanbedr is growing, surplus places 

are reducing. 

 

The Council has acknowledged and contained pupil 

forecasts that demonstrate an increase in pupil numbers 

at Ysgol Llanbedr.  

 

However, the authority must look at a wider picture. The 

pupil numbers in the Ruthin area have remained static, 

there are only so many pupils within the Ruthin area and 

as a whole there continues to be significant surplus 

places.  

Ysgol Llanbedr is very well managed and 

runs with a budget surplus and is forecast 

to continue in surplus. 

This view is noted.  

Cost per pupil at Ysgol Llanbedr is falling 

as pupil numbers rise. They will be 

comparable to the area average in two 

years. 

The authority acknowledged that as pupil numbers 

increase the per pupil funding will decrease however 

Ysgol Llanbedr will remain a small school and per pupil 

funding will remain above average.  

Page 367

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/cabinetpapers27102015


 

132 
 

 

Demand for English language church in 

wales places at Ysgol Llanbedr and 

Borthyn is growing such that there is not 

capacity for pupils from both schools in 

Borthyn. 

Should all existing full and part time pupils at Ysgol 

Llanbedr transfer to Ysgol Borthyn there would be 

sufficient capacity without the need to undertake 

significant remodelling or provide an additional mobile 

classroom.  

There is a viable counter proposal to 

closure, where Ysgol Llanbedr federates 

with another Church in Wales school and 

changes status to VA. Both of which 

save the council more money. 

 

The authority has provided a document in response to 

the proposal to Federate and change the status of Ysgol 

Llanbedr which can be found via this link {insert link} 

The GB is strongly opposed to this 

proposal and is very disappointed by the 

lack of collaboration from the 

Modernising Education team and 

council as a whole. The position of 

school governor is a voluntary one and 

we have worked tirelessly to secure a 

future for the school. It is our intention to 

work with the diocese and the council to 

find and deliver a solution to secure the 

future of the school, whether this is 

through a federation, a change in status 

to VA, a combination of the two or to 

maintain the status quo. 

This view is noted.  

 

 

 

 

END 

============================================================== 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 368



 

133 
 

 

 

 

Appendix H 

Response from Estyn 

 

Estyns' response to the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd as of the 31st of 
August 2016 with pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin.  
 
This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and Training in 
Wales.  
 
Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its 
associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn. 
However Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code and 
the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school organisation 
matters. Therefore as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their opinion only on 
the overall merits of school organisation proposals.  
 
Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the 
following response to the information provided by the proposer and other additional 
information such as data from Welsh Government and the views of the Regional 
Consortia which deliver school improvement services to the schools within the proposal.  
 
Introduction  
 
The proposal is by Denbighshire County Council.  
 
It is being proposed that Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd would close on the 31st of 
August 2016 with existing pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin. 
 
Summary/Conclusion  
 
The proposal is part of Denbighshire County Council’s Modernising Education 
programme. It states the importance of addressing the challenges of surplus places, the 
condition and suitability of school buildings and facilities, the provision of mobile 
classrooms and the efficiency and sustainability of school estates. This proposal is part 
of a reorganisation of primary schools in the Ruthin area that began in 2013.  
 
It is Estyn’s opinion that the proposal is likely to at least maintain the current standards 
of education in the area.  
 
Description and benefits  
 
The proposer clearly states the rationale for the proposal. The proposal has been 
developed in accordance with the council’s investment in the modernising education 
programme. The proposal clearly states that primary schools in the Ruthin area face a 

Page 369



 

134 
 

number of issues that could impact on the ability to sustain educational standards in the 
future. These include the need to address surplus places, the condition and suitability of 
the school buildings and facilities, the use of mobile classrooms and the efficient use of 
school estates and their sustainability. The proposer clearly outlines the perceived 
benefits of the proposal. These include the maintaining of the current standards and 
quality of education, the reduction in surplus places in the Ruthin area, a more balanced 
distribution of school funding, improved efficiency and effectiveness of the school estate 
and improving pupils’ access to improved school buildings, facilities and resources.  
 
The proposer clearly states the perceived disadvantages of the proposal. These include 
the loss of English medium faith based primary education in the village of Llanbedr 
Dyffryn Clwyd. Pupils may be required to travel further to their nearest school and staff 
may be redeployed or made redundant. The proposer states that all risks associated 
with the proposal will be monitored as part of the Council’s Modernising Education 
Programmes risk management strategy.  
 
The proposer has considered alternatives to its proposal. These include maintaining the 
status quo, federation or amalgamation with another church in Wales primary school, 
Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd becoming a voluntary aided school and expansion of the 
current site and closure. Overall, the proposer has demonstrated clearly the advantages 
and disadvantages of each option and the reasons for their preferred option. The 
proposer has appropriately demonstrated how surplus places will be affected by 
providing a forecast of pupil numbers to 2020.  
 
The proposer has appropriately considered transport issues including an analysis of 
costs. Transport to alternative schools will be provided in accordance with Denbighshire 
county council’s transport policy.  
 
The proposer has completed a useful Welsh language impact assessment. It concludes 
that the proposal will be neutral in terms of its impact on the Welsh language. The 
proposal provides parents with the option for English medium education for their children 
with Welsh taught as a second language. This is similar to the current position and pupil 
access. The current proposal provides access and maintains parental preference for 
language medium.  
 
Educational aspects of the proposal  
 
The proposer has appropriately considered the impact of the proposals on the quality of 
pupil outcomes, provision and leadership and management. The proposer has 
considered the outcomes of the most recent Estyn inspection reports and has provided 
the support categories and bands of both schools. It has also provided a useful range of 
information relating to performance outcomes. These include local, national and the 
family of schools who have similar levels of free school meal entitlement. During their 
inspection in 2009, leadership and management at Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd was 
judged grade three (good features outweigh shortcomings) and for improving quality and 
standards the school was judged grade four (some good features, but shortcomings in 
important areas). Ysgol Borthyn was awarded an adequate judgement for leadership 
and management during their inspection in 2014.  

Page 370



 

135 
 

The consultation appropriately raises the challenges facing small primary schools in 
being able to implement leadership structures effectively. The proposer acknowledges 
that in small primary schools, many head teachers have a significant teaching 
responsibility. This limits the time they can devote to leading and managing and they 
have fewer opportunities to evaluate standards and to drive improvement.  
 
The proposer states reasonably that the preferred proposal would provide stability in 
leadership and allow Ysgol Borthyn to strengthen its leadership and management team. 
Ysgol Borthyn has a substantive head teacher and established senior leadership team. 
Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd has an acting head teacher who has been in post since 
2013. Since 2009 the school has had three permanent and four acting head teachers. 
The proposal asserts reasonably that if pupils transfer to Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn it is 
likely that pupils will have access to a broader compliment of teaching staff offering 
expertise in a number of different curriculum areas. 
  
The proposer acknowledges that if the current proposal was implemented pupils with 

additional learning needs will be supported by the council’s additional learning needs 

officer. Any additional learning needs support that pupils currently receive, such as 1-2-1 

support, will be replicated in their new learning environment. 

 

 

 

 

END 

============================================================== 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 371



 

136 
 

                                                           
i
 Education and Training Statistics for the United Kingdom 2013, 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/.../file/.../v01-2013.pdf  

 

 

Page 372

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/.../file/.../v01-2013.pdf


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Proposal to Close Ysgol Llanbedr DC as of 

the 31
st
 of August 2016 with pupils 

transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin 
subject to parental preference  

08 October 2015 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 373



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

<Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC as of the 31
st

 
of August 2016 with existing pupils transferring to 
Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 
preference> 
 

Contact: 
 

Lowri Roberts 

Updated: <08.10.15> 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A service review or re-organisation proposal 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

The proposal is part of the Ruthin area review of primary educational provision. 
Should a decision be made to implement this proposal English medium, faith 
based (church in wales) primary education would cease in the village of Ysgol 
Llanbedr DC.  
 
In June 2015 the council commenced a consultation on the proposed closure of 
Ysgol Llanbedr DC with exisitng pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin 
subject to parental preference. This EQIA has been updated as a decision is 
required from Cabinet regarding the publication of a statutory notice, should this 
be the preferred way forward.  
 
Should the current proposal be implemented educational provision in the village of 
Llanbedr DC would cease. Ysgol Llanbedr is an English medium Church in Wales 
school, the alternative school is also a English medium Church in Wales school. 
This provides pupils with continuity in provision.  
 
Should the current proposal be implemented Denbighshire County Council will 
work with the staff on an indiviudal basis. Should the proposal be implemented 
this may result in redeployment of staff or staff redundancy. As part of the 
consultation process staff will be able to speak with a Human Resources 
representative.  
 

Page 374



 

 

Should the proposal be implemented the village/community of Llanbedr DC would 
lose the school as a facility. However there are alternatives such as the village 
hall which is currently and could be utilised by the community going forward. 
 
The Council recognise that the proposal would result in a change in learning 
environment for all pupils should it be implemented. The Council recognise that 
this may be particularly challenging for pupils with ALN. In this instance the 
Council would work closely with parents and pupils prior and during the transition 
period to an alternative school. Support that pupils with ALN currently receive 
would be replicated within their new learning environment. The proposed 
alternative provision provides at least an equal standard of provision for ALN 
pupils that they would currently receive in Ysgol Llanbedr. Should the proposal be 
progressed appropriate officers would work with individual parents and pupils. No 
pupils at Ysgol Llanbedr have English as an additional language. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes <If no, briefly summarise the reasons for this decision here, 
and skip ahead to the declaration at the end> 

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

A period of consultation was undertaken from June-July. This included 
engagement with pupils at the named schools. 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

      

 
 

Page 375



 

 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

      

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

Yes If implemented the closure would result in the closure of a 
faith based (CiW) educational provision in the village of 
Llanbedr DC. The proposed alternative provision, Ysgol 
Borthyn Ruthin (approx 2.1 miles from Ysgol Llanbedr DC) 
offers a Faith based CiW provision for existing pupils of Ysgol 
Llanbedr DC. There are further faith based school places 
available within the Ruthin area.   

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes The proposal would result in the closure of a faith based Church 

in Wales school in the village of Ysgol Llanbedr. The Council 
does not believe that this will have a disproportionate impact on 
any of the protected characteristic- specifically faith as the 
proposed alternative school is offers a faith based provision. 
Additionally there are other available faith based pupil places 
that offer an English medium provision. 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: <08.10.15> 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Page 376



 

 

Lowri Roberts <08.10.15> 
 

 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Page 377



This page is intentionally left blank



Report To:   Cabinet 
  
Date of Meeting:  27th October 2015 
 
Lead Member / Officer: Cllr David Smith, Public Realm/ 

Angela Loftus, Strategic Planning & Housing Manager 
 
Report Author:  Karsten Bruβk, Planning Officer 
 
Title: Draft LDP Annual Monitoring Report 2015: Lack of a 5-year 

supply of readily developable housing land 
  
 

 
 
1. What is the report about? 

  
 This report is about the identified lack of a 5-year supply of readily developable 
housing land in the Denbighshire Local Development Plan 2006 – 2021 (LDP) 
Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 2015. It outlines actions to address the shortfall, 
and proposes to express the Council’s concern about the prescribed calculation 
method to Welsh Government (WG). 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
  

A decision is required on whether the Council wishes to express its concern about 
the prescribed calculation method for a 5-year supply of readily developable housing 
land to WG. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

  
i) Members note the full Annual Monitoring Report (Appendix I), it being the first 

such report.  
 

ii) To send a written statement on behalf of Cabinet to Welsh Government 
outlining concern about the prescribed calculation method for a 5-year supply 
of readily developable housing land.    

 
4. Report details 

 
4.1 The Draft Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 2015 for the LDP (Appendix 1) has 

revealed that having regard to WG method of calculation the Council lacks a 5-year 
supply of readily developable housing land, which is a principal performance indicator 
for the entire Plan. 
 

4.2 Planning Policy Wales (2015) requires local planning authorities (LPAs) to ensure 
that sufficient land is genuinely available or will become available to provide a 5-year 
supply of land for housing. This national policy is supplemented by Technical Advice 
Note (TAN) 1: Joint Housing Land Availability (2015) which prescribes the calculation 
methodology for LPAs with an adopted LDP. 

Page 379

Agenda Item 7



 
4.3 Welsh Government published a revised version of TAN 1 in January 2015. If the local 

planning authority (LPA) has an adopted LDP, the ‘residual’ method is the only 
method to be used for calculating housing land supply instead of the previously 
accepted method of ‘past building’ rates. The Council already outlined its concern 
about the prescribed ‘residual method’ in a consultation response to the draft TAN 1 
document in October 2014 (Appendix 2) and in letters from the Head of Service to 
the WG Chief Planner (Appendix 3).  
 

4.4 The residual method of calculating housing land supply can lead to extreme annual 
requirements during periods of low economic activity and also where growth levels in 
adopted LDPs are based on Household projections that have not materialised. The 
difficulties of using the residual method were at least recognised in the previous TAN 
1 (2006) which stated (para. 7.5.2) ‘In some circumstances that calculation has 
indicated land shortages or surpluses which do not exist in practice. In such cases, a 
comparison of available land with past building rates can provide a measure of the 
adequacy of land supply that is more relevant to the achievement of the general 
objectives of the development plan’. 
 

4.5 The residual method of calculation works best when actual build rates have broadly 
been as anticipated in the development plan. However if there is significant deviation 
between actual build rates and those contained in the LDP this distorts the residual 
calculation and produces unrealistic and, having regard to market conditions, 
unachievable results. The Minister acknowledged, in his letter of 10th April 2014 to 
LPA’s, that recent completions have been lower than anticipated in previous WG 
projections and this is an obvious reflection of recent past economic conditions 
resulting from the global economic crisis. 
 

4.6 In comparison, the residual method focusses on the remaining number of houses to 
be delivered in the remaining Plan period, whereas the past completions/ built 
method reflects to a greater extent what has actually been delivered on the ground 
by the construction industry in the County. Comparing both methods identifies a 
significant problem in Denbighshire. (see Table 1) There is sufficient land available 
for residential development but delivery is dependent on developers. The industry 
has not taken up the land available to deliver as many houses per year as required 
by the Plan. 
 
Table 1: Impact of chosen method on 5-year housing land supply 

Method used for calculating housing land supply Result 

Based on 10 year past completions 8.75 years 

Based on 5 year past completions 9.97 years 

Based on residual method 2.10 years 

 
4.7 The adopted Denbighshire LDP contains an annual housing requirement of 500 

dwellings per annum over the 15 year Plan period. Actual completions since the start 
of the Plan period (2006) have averaged only 189 dwellings per annum. As a result, 
in Denbighshire, based on the residual method there is now a requirement to achieve 
a completion rate of 898 dwellings per annum to meet the LDP requirement. This rate 
is more than four times that achieved since 2006. While the LDP Inspector ensured 
that the Council has sufficient land allocated to meet its LDP requirement, both the 

Page 380



capacity of the housebuilding industry and the market demand in the area, to meet 
this residual completion rate of 898 dwellings per annum over the lifetime of the Plan 
is not optimistic. 
 

4.8 The subsequent release of more land, either via an appeal scenario, or via a review 
of the LDP is likely to do little to help achieve a 5 year supply, given the market and 
housebuilding capacity constraints referred to previously. Furthermore, this likely 
increase in applications and appeals on unallocated land will serve to harm planning 
and its reputation as a tool for public interest & sustainable development; remove 
certainty and transparency for developers and the community (key concerns noted in 
the Positive Planning agenda) and, undermine the influence of an LDP which has 
gone through the relevant consultation and Examination in Public procedures. It does 
not achieve what WG itself had set out for Wales, namely a Plan led system.  

 
4.9 The Denbighshire situation is of course not unique and a significant number of other 

LPA’s are struggling to achieve an agreed 5 year supply, even though the land 
supply as a whole is sufficient to accommodate their LDP requirement and a built in 
contingency. This would appear to fly in the face of Welsh Government’s stated 
desire to have a plan led system. 

 
4.10 Officers at this stage, i.e. the first AMR, do not wish to review the LDP Growth 

Strategy on the mere quantitative lack of houses being built, and takes the following 
actions to support an increase in new built houses: production of supplementary 
planning guidance notes, site development briefs, a housing sites prospectus, 
development of a Housing Strategy for the County, the provision of high quality 
planning advice for developers, land agents and the public to make Denbighshire an 
attractive County for house builders to invest. 
 

4.11 In conclusion, Members are requested to send a strongly worded letter on behalf of 
Cabinet to Welsh Government, outlining their concern with the dictated calculation 
method for the 5-year supply of land for housing in order to minimise the principal risk 
that the Council would otherwise be exposed to (see also point 10. What risks are 
there and is there anything we can do to reduce them?): 
(1)  There is a risk of losing planning appeals for residential development on non-

allocated LDP sites or outside of development boundaries in the open 
countryside. 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 Whilst the decision to send a strongly worded letter to WG does not contribute 

towards the Corporate Priorities, the LDP contributes towards them through setting 
out where and how new developments will be taken place up in the County up to 
2021: 
- Developing the local economy; 
- Ensuring access to good quality housing; and 
- Modernising the Council to deliver efficiencies and improve services for our 

customers 
 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
  

Page 381



 There are no costs. Other Council services will benefit from addressing the lack of a 
5-year supply of land for housing. Having a strong, reliable and sustainable Local 
Development Plan provides planning certainty for services that deal with Council-
owned land and buildings, provision of infrastructure facilities such as schools, and 
support the implementation of corporate strategies such as the Economic & 
Community Ambition Strategy. 

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision? The completed EqIA template should be attached 
as an appendix to the report 

  
 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been carried out because the report 

does not seek a decision on a Council policy, strategy, work procedure or 
programme. It is about providing a written statement to Welsh Government. 

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 

  
There have been discussions with Members of the LDP Steering Group (30th July 
2015), at Cabinet Briefing (2nd March 2015), SLT (17th September 2015) and CET 
(5th October 2015). The Draft AMR 2015 document was also noted by Members of 
the Planning Committee (16 September 2015). 

 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

 
The report’s recommendation has no immediate cost pressure to the Council. 
However the longer term financial implication of the Council not being able to show a 
5 year supply of housing could potentially lead to additional costs arising from having 
to conduct an early full review of the LDP. There are also costs of defending 
decisions at appeal and the risk of having costs awarded against the Council. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
  
 If the Council is not in the position to show a 5-year supply of housing land, it will be 

exposed to the following risks: 
(1)  There is a risk of losing planning appeals for residential development on non-

allocated LDP sites or outside of development boundaries in the open 
countryside. 

(2) The LDP will be subject to an early Full Review, which would be a prolonged 
and costly process.    

  
11. Power to make the Decision  
 

Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Section 76 
 

Page 382



Denbighshire County Council 
Strategic Planning and Housing 
Caledfryn 
Smithfield Road 
Denbigh 
LL16 3RJ 

Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan            
2006 – 2021 

Annual Monitoring  
Report 2015      
Published 31 October 2015 

Appendix 1 - 1st LDP Annual Monitoring Report

Page 383



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This report was authorised by Graham Boase (Head of Planning and Public 
Protection Services at Denbighshire County Council). 
 
 
 
……………………………………..           ……………………………… 

                         
 

Page 384



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  3 

Content 

1. Executive Summary 5

2. Introduction 6

3. Background 6

4. Denbighshire socio-economic situation 8

5. Changes to National Policy and Technical Advice Notes 9

6. LDP Growth Strategy 15

7. Gypsy & Traveller Site 18

8. Sustainability Appraisal Framework 18

9. Local Policy Monitoring 19

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table 

Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table 

Page 385



 

 

Figure 1: Location of Denbighshire County Council in North Wales 

 

P
age 386



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  5 
 

1. Executive Summary 
  
1.1 This is the first annual monitoring report (AMR) prepared by 

Denbighshire County Council. The document reviews the relevance 
and success of the LDP, and looks at the extent to which the LDP 
Strategy and local policies are being delivered and achieved. 

  
1.2 There have been several changes made to national policy, technical 

advice notes and other sector guidance documents since Plan 
adoption. Chapter 5 discusses in detail those changes that have 
implications for Denbighshire LDP policies; notably Technical Advice 
Note (TAN) 1: Joint Housing Land Availability, TAN 20: Planning and 
the Welsh Language, and planning changes to Waste and Minerals.  

  
1.3 Detailed local policy monitoring identified two local policy areas which 

do not operate as expected at the time of Plan adoption and, 
therefore, may require further attention: BSC 1 – Growth Strategy for 
Denbighshire (esp. 5-year housing land supply), and BSC 10 – Gypsy 
and Traveller Sites. Details for all local policies and, where required, 
proposed actions to address the shortfall, are set out in Appendix 1.  

  
1.4 Whilst housing delivery, i.e. granted planning permission and 

completions, is in line with the LDP Growth Strategy, spatial 
distribution and settlement classification (see Chapter 6), there is an 
identified need to increase the amount of homes build every year. The 
Council do not wish to review the LDP Growth Strategy on the mere 
quantitative lack of houses, and outlines various actions to support 
prospective developers to address the challenges.  

  
1.5 Local policy BSC 10 is highlighted because the Council was committed 

to instigate the search for a suitable site, i.e. identified and planning 
permission granted within 18 months of receipt of the North West 
Wales LHMA, should it identify a specific need. The Gypsy & Traveller 
Accommodation Needs Assessment (GTANA) element of the Local 
Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) was received in May 2013 and 
ratified by the Council on 3th December 2013. The Council is 
currently undertaking an updated GTANA with Conwy CBC. This is now 
a statutory requirement (Housing Act 2014). Should a need to be 
identified, the Council will be obliged to address that need. 

  
1.6 The Sustainability Appraisal (SA) - monitoring as part of the AMR is 

conducted in a similar way like the local policy monitoring. No SA 
Objective has been identified that requires further considerations or 
immediate actions. The assessment of individual SA Objectives, 
including commentary, can be found in Appendix 2. Due to the nature 
of individual indicators and trigger levels, the Council has only limited 
powers to steer change but will consider measures that positively 
contribute towards meeting the SA Objectives. 

  

Page 387



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  6 
 

1.7 Denbighshire County Council do not wish to review the Plan on the 
basis of not meeting the 5-year housing land supply as a result of the 
first LDP annual monitoring report. The Plan was found to meet the 
tests of soundness at the end of the examination process including 
demonstrating that sufficient supply of land for residential 
development is available in the County.   

  
1.8 The Council should complete at least 2 formal AMRs before the Plan is 

reviewed in order to demonstrate specific trends and patterns 
emerging. It is essential to have the evidence to justify the need to 
change or amend the Plan. 

  
2. Introduction 
  
2.1 Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 – 2021 

(LDP) was adopted on 4th June 2013. It provides a clear vision on how 
new development can address the challenges faced by the County and 
where, when and how much new development can take place up to 
2021. 

  
2.2 Under the obligations of section 76 of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004, as amended, and section 37 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 2005, 
the Council is duty bound to produce an annual monitoring report for 
submission to Welsh Government (WG) by 31st October each year and 
publication on its website. 

  
2.3 This is the first annual monitoring report (AMR) prepared by 

Denbighshire County Council. Although policy performance is 
assessed and based on the period 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015, 
the document includes reference to changes in legislation and local 
circumstances that have influenced decision-making since Plan 
adoption in June 2013.  

  
3. Background 
  
3.1 Monitoring represents an essential feedback loop within the cyclical 

process of policy-making. It should identify the key challenges, 
opportunities and possible ways forward for revising and adjusting 
local policies.  The process is a tool for reviewing the relevance and 
success of the LDP and identifying any changes necessary. It also 
provides feedback on the extent to which the LDP Strategy and 
policies are being delivered and achieved. 

  
3.2 Local planning authorities may wish to make amendments to their LDP 

and supplementary planning guidance documents as a result of the 
monitoring exercise. A major Plan review must be undertaken after 4 
years of adoption and should consider elements of the sustainability 
appraisal and, consequently, the soundness of the Plan. Details on the 

Page 388



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  7 
 

LDP Review process can be found in the document: ‘Local 
Development Plan: Manual – Edition 2’, Chapter 10 Review and 
Revision.  

  
3.3 The LDP contains a detailed monitoring framework in Chapter 7, which 

is part of the adopted LDP and sets out performance targets for the 
LDP Objectives and various local policies. Individual indicators are 
linked to trigger points that when met may result in a review of the 
relevant local policy. 

  
3.4 Figure 2: Local Development Plan Preparation Process Diagram  
 

 
Adapted from Welsh Government, Local Development Plans Wales (2005), Figure 1 

  
3.5 Local Development Plans Wales 2005 (see paragraph 4.43) contains 

further guidance on the assessments that should be included in AMRs: 
 ▪ whether the basic strategy remains sound (if not, a full plan 

review may be needed); 
 ▪ what impact the policies are having globally, nationally, regionally 

and locally; 
 ▪ whether the policies need changing to reflect changes in national 

policy; 
 ▪ whether policies and related targets in LDPs have been met or 

progress is being made towards meeting them, including 
publication of relevant supplementary planning guidance (SPG); 

 ▪ where progress has not been made, the reasons for this and what 
knock on effects it may have; 

Page 389



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  8 
 

 ▪ what aspects, if any, of the LDP need adjusting or replacing 
because they are not working as intended or are not achieving the 
objectives of the strategy and/or sustainable development 
objectives; and 

 ▪ if policies or proposals need changing, what suggested actions are 
required to achieve this. 

  
3.6 Plan monitoring and Plan review are two closely linked processes but 

must remain separate. Whilst monitoring comprises of data collection 
and assessment, i.e. the AMR presents facts, a Plan review builds on 
those facts, which turn into evidence that may influence political 
decision-making. Since this is the first AMR produced by Denbighshire 
County Council, it is difficult to demonstrate any trends that justify 
consideration for a Plan review. 

  
4. Denbighshire socio-economic situation 
  
4.1 The purpose of this chapter is to provide an overview of the socio-

economic situation in the County. It does not merely set a statistical 
background for the Sustainability Appraisal but also paints the picture 
of the environment in which the local policies are applied to new 
developments.   

  
4.2 Population & Demographics: The most recently available (2013 

based) population and household estimates place Denbighshire’s 
population at 94,510 and number of households at 41,043. The 2011 
Census illustrated that 21% of Denbighshire’s residents were 65 and 
over; this is above the national average of 18.4% and is illustrative of 
an ageing population within the County. Population projections 
suggest that this percentage will increase to 24.7% by 2021 putting 
further strain on services provided to residents who are 65 and over. 

  
4.3 Welsh Language: According to the annual population survey 

estimates published by Statistics Wales, an estimated 38.7% of 
residents over the age of 3 could speak Welsh at the year ending 
December 2013. This figure is 2.1% higher than the same figure for 
Conwy, but markedly less than for Gwynedd or the Isle of Anglesey, 
the two most westerly North Wales authorities. The percentage of 
residents over the age of 3 who could speak Welsh at the year ending 
December 2006 was 35.8%, which means an increase of almost 3% 
between measures taken in 2006 and 2013; Denbighshire is the only 
North Wales local authority to witness an increase. Electoral wards in 
Rhyl and Prestatyn have low percentages of Welsh speaking residents, 
with more rural wards in the middle and towards the south of 
Denbighshire exhibiting a higher percentage of Welsh speakers. 

  
4.4 Employment & Economy: At the most recent count (February 2015), 

there were 1,488 people in Denbighshire who were claiming job 
seekers allowance. This is a rate of 2.6% and uses the number of 

Page 390



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  9 
 

people between 16-64 years-old as the denominator. According to the 
ONS Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, the median weekly 
earnings for a full-time Denbighshire resident is £417 approximately; 
this is significantly below the median earnings recorded for Conwy, 
which is £516. In 2013, there were 3,195 active businesses in 
Denbighshire; this is an increase from 3,155 in 2006. However, the 
intervening period witnessed an increase until 2008, a year which 
witnessed a peak of 3,320. Since then, the number of businesses 
decreased down to a low of 3,115 in 2012 before recovering to 3,195 
in 2013. The Gross Value Added for Denbighshire in 2012 (the most 
recent year that data is available for) was £13,555, which is an 
increase of £1,725 from 2006. 

  
4.5 Housing & Homelessness: Denbighshire County Council has met the 

Welsh Quality Housing Standard and is one of the first local authorities 
in the whole of Wales that has achieved this. The Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard does not just apply to Council owned properties but 
applies to all social housing stock and therefore housing associations. 
Wales & West have already completed the Standard, whilst North Wales 
Housing, Grwp Cynefin and Clwyd Alyn are working towards 
compliance. During the 2013/14 financial year, there were 150 
households that were accepted as homeless in Denbighshire. In spite 
of the economic situation, the number of households accepted as 
homeless has decreased by 160 households from 2006/07. 

  
4.6 Deprivation: According to the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation, 

14% of Denbighshire’s lower layer super output areas (LSOAs) are in 
top decile of most deprived LSOAs in Wales. In short, this means that 
8 of Denbighshire’s 58 LSOAs are amongst the most deprived. Most of 
the deprivation is fuelled by the social and economic issues in the 
North of the County, and, in particular, in Rhyl. Rhyl West LSOAs and 
Rhyl South West LSOAs are deprived areas, with Rhyl West 2 being the 
second most deprived in all of Wales. In comparison, other North 
Wales local authorities have much lower percentages of LSOAs in the 
top decile. The Isle of Anglesey and Flintshire have only 2% of their 
LSOAs in the top decile, Gwynedd has 4% in the top decile and 
Wrexham and Conwy both have 6% in the top decile. In comparison to 
the region, it is clear that Denbighshire has stark deprivation issues in 
certain parts of the County. 

  
5. Changes to National Policy and Technical Advice Notes 
  
5.1 The Planning Inspectors who conducted the examination into the 

Denbighshire Local Development Plan concluded that the Plan met the 
tests of soundness and, hence, was compliant with national policy and 
guidance on the day of adoption.  

  
5.2 There have been made several changes to national policy, technical 

advice notes and other sector guidance documents since Plan 

Page 391



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  10 
 

adoption. These are listed in table 1. This chapter discusses in detail 
those changes that have implications for Denbighshire LDP policies 
and require further consideration regarding potential policy review.  

  
5.3 Table 1: New legislation and guidance documents since June 2013 

Document Date 
Planning Policy Wales (6. Edition) February 2014 
Planning Policy Wales (7. Edition) July 2014 
Technical Advice Note 1: Joint Housing Land 
Availability Studies 

January 2015 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design July 2014 
Technical Advice Note 20: Planning and the 
Welsh Language 

October 2013 

Technical Advice Note 21: Waste February 2014 
Technical Advice Note 23: Planning for 
Economic Development 

February 2013 

Technical Advice Note 22: Sustainable 
Buildings (deleted) 

July 2014 

The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (Amendment) (Wales) 
Order 2013 

September 2013 

The Town and Country (General Permitted 
Development) (Amendment) Order 2014  

November 2014 

The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Wales) (Amendment) 
Order 2014  

September 2014/ 
November 2014 
(amendment no.2) 

 

  
5.4 Technical Advice Note 1: Joint Housing Land Availability 
  
5.41 Welsh Government published a revised version of TAN 1 in January 

2015. The guidance document sets out the principals of conducting 
the Joint Housing Land Availability Study (JHLA) and, hence, the 
determination of the 5-year housing land supply in the County. If the 
local planning authority (LPA) has an adopted LDP, the ‘residual’ 
method is the only one to be used for calculating housing land supply 
instead of ‘past building’ rates. The disadvantage of the dictated 
method is that it can indicate land shortages, which do not exist in 
practice.    

  
5.42 Maintaining a 5-year supply of housing land is a principal measure of 

performance for an adopted Local Development Plan. The 2015 JHLAS 
has been completed and the Statement of Common Ground agreed 
with the members of the study group. The report has been published 
and indicates a housing land supply of 2.1 years. Since the Plan was 
adopted in 2013, the 2015 Joint Housing Land Availability Study 
(JHLAS) includes land allocated for residential use in the LDP. That 
means that actually more land was available for residential 
development. Table 2 illustrates the differences that individual 

Page 392



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  11 
 

calculation methods have on the 5 year housing land supply figure. 
Previously local planning authorities have been able to use an average 
of past completion rates to derive housing land supply. 

  
5.43 Table 2: Impact of chosen method on 5-year housing land supply 
 Method used for calculating housing land supply Result 

Based on 10 year past completions  8.75 years 
Based on 5 year past completions  9.97 years 
Based on residual method 2.10 years 

Source: Denbighshire County Council (2015) 
  
5.44 The residual method focusses on the remaining number of houses to 

be delivered in the remaining Plan period, whereas the past 
completions/ built method reflects to a greater extent what has 
actually been delivered on the ground by the construction industry in 
the County. Comparing both methods identifies a significant problem 
in Denbighshire. There is sufficient land available for residential 
development but delivery is dependent on developers. The industry 
has not taken up the land available, due to viability concerns, to 
deliver as many houses per year as required by the Plan.   

  
5.45 Planning Policy Wales (July 2014), paragraph 9.2.3, stresses the need 

for a local planning authority to demonstrate that a 5-year housing 
land supply is genuinely available in the County. The Denbighshire 
JHLA 2015 indicates a supply of 2.1 which is a lower figure than the 5 
years stipulated by PPW. Technical Advice Note (TAN) 1 ‘Joint Housing 
Land Availability Studies’, paragraphs 2.4 and 3.4, advises (but does 
not compel) local planning authorities to consider a Plan review should 
the supply figure not be met.  

  
5.46 Denbighshire does not wish to review the Plan on the basis of not 

meeting the 5-year housing land supply as a result of the first LDP 
annual monitoring report. The Plan was found to meet the tests of 
soundness at the end of the examination process including 
demonstrating that sufficient supply of land for residential 
development is available in the County.   

  
5.47 The Council’s Strategic Planning & Housing  and Development 

Management teams are working on the production of supplementary 
planning guidance notes, site development briefs, housing site 
prospectus, and the provision of high quality planning advice for 
developers, land agents and the public to make Denbighshire an 
attractive County for house builders to invest. 

  
5.48 The local planning authority should complete at least 2 formal AMRs 

before the Plan is reviewed in order to demonstrate specific trends 
and patterns emerging. It is essential to have the evidence to justify 
the need to change or amend the document. The LDP is not due for a 
full review until 2017, and by that date a new set of household 

Page 393



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  12 

projections will have been produced, which may well be very different 
to previous projections.  

5.5 Welsh Language and Culture 

5.51 Sites allocated in the Denbighshire LDP for specific land uses were 
screened with regard to potentially adverse effects on the Welsh 
language as part of the Sustainability Appraisal. LDP policy RD 5 ‘The 
Welsh Language and the social and cultural fabric of communities’ 
lays out thresholds and criteria when the local planning authority 
expects a Community Linguistic  Statement or Community and 
Linguistic Impact Assessment to be submitted with a planning 
application.   

5.52 In October 2013, Welsh Government revised Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 20: Planning and the Welsh Language. Further advice on the 
consideration of the Welsh language as part of the Local Development 
Plan making process was published in a Practice Guidance in June 
2014. TAN 20, paragraph 4.1.2, clarifies that planning applications 
should not be accompanied by Welsh language impact assessments to 
avoid duplication with the site selection process as part of the 
Sustainability Appraisal during Plan production. 

5.53 There is a potential conflict between LDP policy RD5 and TAN 20. 
However, the local policy does not narrowly focus on Welsh language 
requirements but broadens the assessment to include culture, 
character and balance of local communities. These matters are not 
dealt with by the Technical Advice Note. The document further 
clarifies, in TAN 20 paragraph 3.11.3, that local planning authorities 
with a local plan adopted prior to October 2013, have to achieve TAN 
compliance at the 4-year review stage, if supported by evidence. 
Therefore, Denbighshire will need to review its position with regard to 
RD 5 at the next Plan review stage. 

5.6 Minerals 

5.61 The LDP was produced using the Regional Technical Statement for 
Aggregates published in 2009, which recommended that no rock 
resource allocation was required at the time of publication. The 
Council was advised to provide for 1 Million tonnes (Mt) Sand and 
Gravel to cover at least a 12 year period. In response to this 
requirement, the LDP identified a ‘Preferred Area for Sand and Gravel’, 
designated under local policy PSE 17, within which applications for the 
extraction of up to 1Mt of Sand and Gravel will be permitted, taking 
into account the level of need identified by the Regional Aggregate 
Working Party apportionment figures.  

5.62 The North Wales Aggregates Working Party has undertaken a review of 
the Regional Technical Statement; culminating in the publication of 

Page 394



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  13 
 

the 1st Review of the document in August 2014. As a result, 
Denbighshire is advised that new allocations totalling 2.2 Mt for Sand 
and Gravel and 0.8 Mt for crushed rock should be identified over a 25 
year period until 2036. These recommendations are based upon the 
need for an LDP to meet needs over the entire Plan period plus 10 
years for crushed rocks and plus 7 years for Sand and Gravel in line 
with Minerals Technical Advice Note 1: Aggregates, paragraphs 31 and 
32. Consideration therefore needs to be given to what the level of 
requirement would be over the Plan period and 10 / 7 years beyond.  

  
5.63 The annual requirement for crushed rock is based upon an annualised 

apportionment of 0.89 million tonnes per year. This equates to a 
requirement for 8.9 Mt over a 10 year period (2011 – 2021) and to a 
requirement for 17.8 Mt over a 20 year period (2011 – 2031); and is 
well below the 22.07 Mt landbank available as at December 2010). 
The annual requirement for sand and gravel is based upon an 
annualised apportionment of 0.1 Mt per year. This equates to a 
requirement for 1 Mt over a 10 year period (2011 – 2021) and to a 
requirement for 1.7 Mt over a 17 year period (2011 – 2028), which is 
greater than the 1Mt provision made in the LDP for Sand and Gravel.  

  
5.64 LDP policy PSE17 is considered to be sufficiently flexible to enable the 

increase in requirement for Sand and Gravel to be met. In October 
2014, Planning Committee agreed a Position Statement to 
demonstrate Denbighshire’s commitment to contributing towards 
demand for minerals. The existing landbank for crushed rock is 
considered to be sufficient. 

  
5.7 Waste 
  
5.71 The LDP was written in the context of the North Wales Regional Waste 

Plan 1st Review (NWRWP) (April 2009). Local policy VOE 7 monitoring 
indicator and trigger levels were established using the requirements 
contained within the NWRWP. Subsequently, Welsh Government 
published a new Chapter 12 on Waste in Planning Policy Wales (2014) 
and a revised Technical Advice Note 21 (February 2014) which 
removed the requirement to produce Regional Waste Plans (RWP) and 
the need for local Plans to have regard to the pertinent RWP. 

  
5.72 In order to deliver the Waste Strategy ‘Towards Zero Waste’ (2010), 

Welsh Government also published a number of Sector Plans, including 
the Collections, Infrastructure and Markets Sector Plan (CIMSP) in July 
2012. The CIMSP has effectively superseded the RWP in terms of 
assessing need, and Planning Policy Wales requires local Plans to 
demonstrate how the CIMSP has been taken into account during 
document production.   

  
5.73 Capacity calculations contained within the NWRWP are out of date and 

have been superseded by national policy. Therefore, the monitoring 

Page 395



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  14 
 

indicator and trigger level defined in the local Plan are of limited 
relevance. Should the Council consider reviewing local policies in the 
future, the requirements as set out in TAN 21should be used to 
formulate monitoring indicators and trigger levels. Local Development 
Plans have to ascertain whether:   

 a) Support for any local authority procurement programmes is 
necessary; 

b) Any agreement contained within the Regional Waste Monitoring 
Report needs to be addressed by way of a site allocation; and 

c) Whether any opportunities exist to derive benefits from facilitating 
co-location and the development of heat networks. 

  
5.74 a) Is support for any local authority procurement programme 

necessary? During development of the LDP consideration was given to 
any spatial requirements of the local authority procurement 
programmes, namely the North East Wales Hub Food Waste Project, a 
collaboration between Denbighshire, Flintshire and Conwy to procure 
food waste treatment and the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment 
Partnership Project, a collaboration between Denbighshire, Flintshire, 
Conwy, Gwynedd and Anglesey to procure residual waste treatment. 
An allocation was included in the Denbighshire Local Development 
Plan near Rhuallt, at the Waen, which has been taken forward and 
developed as part of the North East Wales Hub Food Waste Project. No 
spatial requirements were identified within Denbighshire for the North 
Wales Residual Waste Partnership Project. This matter should be kept 
under review, particularly as supporting infrastructure requirements 
may change. 

  
5.75 b) Does any agreement contained within the Regional Waste 

Monitoring Report need to be addressed by way of a site allocation? 
As identified above, no Regional Waste Monitoring (RWM) Report had 
been published at the time of writing this report. Consideration has 
therefore been given as to whether any action is considered likely to 
be required within Denbighshire in advance of the publication of the 
RWM report. As identified above, the 5 year trigger for action has not 
yet been reached with respect to landfill and therefore no action is 
considered necessary. However, this matter should be kept under 
review. 

  
5.76 c) Do any opportunities exist to derive benefits from facilitating co-

location and the development of heat networks? As identified above, 
the North Wales Residual Waste Partnership project has not identified 
any spatial requirement for Denbighshire and is currently looking to 
locate a facility on the Deeside Industrial Estate, a location which also 
offers potential opportunities for the development of heat networks. 
Any facility would therefore need to be delivered by the market. There 
is a fine balance to be met between having sufficient capacity to 
manage residual waste arisings and having an overprovision, which 
the Collections, Infrastructure and Market Sector Plan cautions 

Page 396



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  15 
 

against. Proposals for such facilities should therefore be rigorously 
tested to ensure that they would meet a required need and not result 
in overprovision of recovery.  

  
5.77 Although national policy and guidance has changed with respect to 

waste, LDP policy VOE 7 is considered sufficiently flexible to enable 
waste infrastructure to be delivered. This matter should be kept under 
review to ensure that any emerging requirements can be met through 
the LDP. TAN 21 includes a regional requirement for monitoring which 
will monitor progress and level of need with respect to recovery and 
disposal and where necessary identify where additional provision 
needs to be made. In the event that additional provision is identified 
as necessary in Denbighshire the waste policies would need to be 
reviewed to ensure that an appropriate allocation can be identified. It 
is not considered necessary to identify a monitoring target or trigger 
level within the monitoring for the LDP to address this, as a review of 
policy would be prompted by the significant contextual change 
demonstrated by the Waste Planning Monitoring Report. 

  
5.78 Policy VOE 8 includes a test that proposals outside development 

boundaries will be supported where they meet an unmet need 
identified in the Regional Waste Plan. Since the requirement to 
produce and have regard to the Regional Waste Plans have been 
removed from national policy and guidance, the strict application of 
this test could result in the approval of proposals that are contrary to 
national policy and/or guidance. In reality, however, when making 
decisions regarding proposals for waste management the Local 
Authority would be obliged to consider whether any material 
considerations would support a different decision being taken. The 
changes to national policy and guidance would be considered 
significant in this respect. For example, in the event that the CIMSP or 
any regionally produced Waste Planning Monitoring Report identify an 
un-met need for waste infrastructure, it would be appropriate for 
these to apply to Policy VOE8 instead of the Regional Waste Plan. It is, 
however, recommended that this policy is amended during the review 
of the LDP to enable this inconsistency to be addressed. 

  
6. LDP Growth Strategy 
  
6.1 One of the key issues the Denbighshire Local Development Plan needs 

to address is the need for housing in general and affordable housing. 
The broad spatial distribution of growth was established at the Pre-
Deposit stage with growth being mostly concentrated in the north of 
the County with more limited growth to meet local needs in all other 
areas. 

  
6.2 The settlement strategy for the County is outlined in local policy BSC 1 

– Growth Strategy for Denbighshire. There is a single Key Strategic Site 
selected in the County – Bodelwyddan. Lower growth areas have been 

Page 397



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  16 
 

identified at Rhyl, Prestatyn, St Asaph, Denbigh, Ruthin and Corwen. 
These are all established centres with a range of services to meet 
regional or local needs. Rhyl and Prestatyn are the main centres within 
the County but are heavily constrained by issues such as flood risk; 
topography; environmental designations and infrastructure capacity. 
These constraints have resulted in levels of growth for these areas 
being lower than those previously experienced. 

  
6.3 A number of villages have been identified and development 

boundaries drawn, where appropriate sites allocated for housing, 
community facilities and recreational open space have also been 
identified on the proposals maps. There have been a number of 
hamlets been identified to allow for affordable housing growth to 
meet purely local needs in very rural areas. Housing development in 
hamlets will be limited to a quota set for each settlement, located 
within the areas of search defined on the Proposals Maps and tied to 
local needs. 

  
6.4 Outside of villages and hamlets, other rural areas have been classified 

as open countryside where development opportunities will be strictly 
controlled in line with national policy. A limited contribution to 
housing needs will be made through the conversion of redundant rural 
buildings and infill development. 

  
6.5 Tables 3, 4 and 5 sets out the number of dwellings granted planning 

permission and houses completed during the monitoring period 
2014/15 in accordance with their position in the LDP Growth Strategy. 

  
6.6 Table 3: Granted permissions for dwellings  in line with LDP Growth 

Strategy (2014/15) 
LDP Growth Strategy Number of houses 
Key Strategic Site Bodelwyddan (1715)* 
Lower Growth Towns 165 
Villages 9 
Hamlets nil 
Open Countryside 16 
Total 190 
* - Outline permission was granted in January 2015; subject to a Section 106 

agreement. Terms of S106 agreement are currently being drafted. 
 

  
6.7 Table 4: Housing completions in line with LDP Growth Strategy 

(2014/15) 
LDP Growth Strategy Number of houses 
Key Strategic Site Bodelwyddan n/a 
Lower Growth Towns 134 
Villages 20 
Hamlets 3 
Open Countryside 29 
Total 186 

 

Page 398



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  17 
 

  
6.8 As can be seen from tables 3 and 4, the performance of the LDP 

Growth Strategy merely lacks in the quantitative number of houses to 
be built in line with LDP policy BSC 1and its monitoring target but not 
in their spatial distribution and settlement classification.  

  
6.9 Table 5: Spatial distribution of house completions in 2014/15  

Location Number of houses 
North of the County 133 
Central area 25 
South of the County 28 
Total 186 

 

  
6.10 The total number of houses completed shown in tables 4 and 5, i.e. 

186, differs by 10 houses from the figure recorded against BSC 1in 
the Denbighshire Joint Housing Land Availability and Appendix X.  
This is due to 186 is the gross figure for completions, whilst 176 is 
the net figure, including 10 dwellings lost due to conversion or 
replacement dwellings. 

  
6.11 As indicated by tables 3, 4 and 5, houses granted planning permission 

and house completions during the monitoring period were in line with 
the LDP Growth Strategy and the spatial distribution of houses in the 
County. 

  
6.12 Whilst planning significantly contributes towards the delivery of 

affordable housing (see LDP policies BSC 4, BSC 8 and BSC 9), 
Denbighshire County Council places great emphasise on exploring 
additional and alternative ways of providing affordable housing for 
people in need.   

  
6.13 The Council is taking a number of actions to increase affordable 

housing provision in the County: 
   
 ▪ Currently investigating innovative housing funding and delivery 

mechanisms for affordable housing and good practice at other 
local authorities, such as joint venture schemes, private 
investment, establishing a housing delivery company, innovative 
actions to bring empty homes back into use and address eyesore 
sites. This also includes identifying a wider range of development 
partners to assist in increasing the supply of affordable housing. 

   
 ▪ Asset review underway to establish best use and potential to 

develop/ redevelop Council-owned land. A cross-departmental 
group has been established to promote and facilitate the 
redevelopment of several Council-owned sites. 

   
 ▪ Work has also commenced on promoting other potential 

development sites and formalising pre-planning application 

Page 399



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  18 

discussions with developers.  

▪ Work has commenced on a standard approach to S106
agreements, with the aim of simplifying and speeding up the
planning process, whilst ensuring that it meets mortgage
providers’ requirements.

▪ Work is underway in conjunction with Grwp Cynefin (i.e. registered
Social Landlord) to review and simplify the affordable housing
application process and register, alongside developing a
marketing strategy.  Re-launch and promotion of the register will
be carried out following this process.

6.20 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

6.21 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 received Royal 
Assent on 29.04.2015, and is about improving the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. It places a duty on 
Welsh local authorities to contribute towards achieving the seven 
‘well-being goals’ set out in line with defined sustainable development 
principles. 

6.22 As a member of the local Public Service Board (PSB), the Council will 
develop in cooperation with its partners a number of ‘well-being 
objectives’ for the County. Once these objectives have been set, the 
planning department will have regard to them when making planning-
decisions. Should a reference to the local development plan be 
identified in any of these new objectives, future LDP AMR documents 
will report progress, and may contain recommendations for actions, to 
ensure alliance with other corporate strategies and plans.        

7. Gypsy & Traveller Site

7.1 An understanding of Gypsy and Traveller accommodation issues is 
essential to make properly planned provision and avoid the problems 
associated with ad hoc or unauthorised encampments. A 
comprehensive accommodation assessment and strategy to meet the 
need which is identified will greatly strengthen the ability of local 
authorities to respond swiftly and firmly to inappropriate unauthorised 
developments and encampments and help to avoid future 
unauthorised camping and development. 

7.2 The assessment of Gypsy and Traveller accommodation needs, and 
the duty to make provision for sites where the assessment identifies 
need, became statutory requirements under the Housing (Wales) Act 
2014. 

7.3 All local authorities are required to undertake a new assessment by 
26th February 2016 and every 5 years thereafter. Denbighshire 

Page 400



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  19 
 

County Council will be conducting a joint Gypsy and Traveller 
accommodation needs assessment with Conwy County Borough 
Council in 2015/2016 to meet the Welsh Government deadline. 
Having completed the required assessment, if a need has been 
identified, the Council will be required to address that need in line 
with local policy BSC 10.   

  
8. Sustainability Appraisal Framework 
  
8.1 The SA Framework was developed using the review of plans and 

programmes, baseline data and key sustainability issues and 
opportunities. The framework comprises a series of SA Objectives 
which are aspirational goals that Denbighshire should strive to work 
towards through the preparation and implementation of the LDP. 

  
8.2 The SA Framework is used to test the sustainability performance of 

the LDP and highlighting its strengths and weaknesses. Monitoring is 
a fundamental activity that will enable Denbighshire County Council to 
assess:  

 ▪ the implementation of the LDP objectives and targets; 
 ▪ the performance of mitigation measures; 
 ▪ the undesirable sustainability effects; and 
 ▪ whether sustainability predictions were accurate. 
  
8.3 The performance of each of the Local Development Plan polices has 

been assessed using the SA Framework and are reported in the SA 
Report (2011) and Appendices. Results from this SA Objectives 
monitoring exercise will be used to adjust local policies if required as 
part of the Plan review in the future. Appendix 2 contains a detailed 
SA Objectives monitoring table. 

  
9. Local Policy Monitoring 
  
9.1 Information and data are drawn from multiple sources: Joint Housing 

Land Availability Study, planning applications received by the Council 
and survey work undertaken by other departments and services in the 
Council. The assessment of individual local policies, including 
commentary, can be found in Appendix 1. 

  
9.2 There are policy indicators and trigger levels, for example, LDP 

Objective 8, that contain the phrase ‘except where justified in line with 
policy’ or wording to a similar extent. They were included in reference 
to the requirement that Planning Policy Wales (PPW) and LDPs have to 
be applied in their entirety during the decision-making process. Other 
material considerations may occasionally override individual policy 
criteria without threatening the effectiveness and deliverability of the 
Plan. 

  
  

Page 401



Denbighshire County Council 
Local Development Plan 2006 - 2021 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015  20 
 

9.2 To visually aid monitoring, the following symbols are used to highlight 
local policy performance: 

  
 
 
 
 

 
Local policy performs satisfactorily, i.e. policy target has 
been met, is ongoing or exceeds expectations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Policy target has not been met yet but the Council 
expect to meet the target over the next 12 months or 
the monitoring period is too short to assess 
performance in line with policy indicator and defined 
trigger level.   

 
 
 
 
 

Local policy does not operate as expected, i.e. policy 
targets aren’t met. The Council has to identify reasons 
for failure and make use of appropriate measures to 
improve performance.  
 

 

  
9.4 Table 6 summarises local policies which are not operating as expected 

at the time of Plan adoption and, therefore, may require further 
attention.  

  
9.5 Table 6: LDP policies not performing as expected 
 LDP Policies Comments 

BSC 1 – Growth Strategy for Denbighshire 
(i.e. maintain 5 year housing land supply) 

see Chapter 5.4 

BSC 10 – Gypsy & Traveller Sites see Chapter 7 
 

  
9.6 The Sustainability Appraisal (SA) - monitoring as part of the AMR is 

conducted in a similar way like the local policy monitoring. Symbols 
were used to visually aid monitoring and comments are provided in 
relation to every SA Objective. The assessment of individual SA 
Objectives, including commentary, can be found in Appendix 2. 

  
9.7 The SA monitoring looks holistically at societal, environmental and 

economic trends in Denbighshire. Some SA indicators are not directly 
influenced by LDP policy performance. It is difficult to provide detailed 
comments on actions that could improve the SA Objective. 
Furthermore, due to the nature of individual indicators and trigger 
levels, the Council has only limited powers to steer change but will 
consider measures the positively contribute towards meeting SA 
Objectives.  

  
9.8 Some fields in the SA monitoring table are marked ‘Data not 

captured’. This refers to the fact that information is generally not 
available or no longer recorded. Previously available data may have 
been collected by the voluntary sector or public bodies but have 
ceased due to reduced resources.    

 

 √ 

 0 

 X 

Page 402



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [1]

LDP Objective 1: Population and Community 

BSC 1 ‐ Growth 
Strategy for 
Denbighshire 

Meet the housing 
needs of the 
County 

The number of new 
houses granted 
planning permission; 
the number of new 
homes completed 
annually 

In the case of both 
indicators: Less than 500 per 
year for 3 consecutive years 
in Phase 2 and less than 750 
per year for 3 consecutive 
years in Phase 3 

LDP housing development ‐ Phase 2 
(2011/12 – 2015/16), Phase 3 (2016/17 
– 2020/21);
Number of houses granted planning 
permission (2014/2015); excluding 
outline permission: 190; 
Number of new dwellings completed 
(2014/2015): 176; 
Both indicators are significantly lower 
than the anticipated 500.  
Denbighshire County Council housing 
land supply figure (2014/ 2015): 2.1 
years; 

The Council is committed to supporting 
house builders by providing additional 
planning guidance, and pre‐application 
advice.  More efforts have to be made 
to increase the amount of residential 
development brought forward in the 
County but there is no requirement to 
review the LDP Growth Strategy.  

Maintain 5 year 
housing land 
supply 

‐‐‐  Less than 5 years housing 
land supply 

BSC 2 – Brownfield 
Development 
Priority 

Increase the 
number of 
brownfield sites 
coming forward for 
development 

The amount of new 
development 
granted planning 
permission on 
brownfield sites 

Decrease below 60% for 
housing and employment 
(excluding Bodelwyddan KSS) 

% of dwellings granted planning 
permission on brownfield land: 68%; 
% of employment granted planning 
permission on brownfield land: 100%; 
Policy review is not required 

0

X

√

P
age 403



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [2]

BSC 4 – Affordable 
Housing; BSC 8 – 
Rural Exception 
Sites;  
BSC 9 – Local 
Connections 
Affordable Housing 
within Small 
Groups 

Increase the 
number of new 
affordable 
dwellings built in 
the County. 

Number of 
affordable dwellings 
permitted per 
annum; 
Number of 
affordable dwellings 
completed per 
annum 

In the case of both 
indicators: Less than 165 
affordable dwellings 
permitted per year for 3 
consecutive years in Phase 2 
and less than 225 per year 
for 3 consecutive years in 
Phase 3 

Number of affordable dwellings granted 
planning permission (2014/2015): 70; 
Number of new affordable dwellings 
completed (2014/2015): 36; 
The total number of affordable housing 
delivered in 2014/15 was 74. This figure 
is higher than the 36 dwellings 
completed through the planning system 
because it also includes, for example, 
reuse of empty properties. 
More efforts have to be made to 
increase the amount of affordable 
housing delivered in the County but 
there is no requirement to review the 
LDP Growth Strategy.  

BSC 10 – Gypsy & 
Traveller Sites 

Meeting the needs 
of gypsies and 
travellers 

‐‐‐  Where a need for permanent 
and/or transit sites is 
identified for Denbighshire in 
the North West Wales Local 
Housing Market Assessment 
(LHMA). The Council will 
work in partnership with 
neighbouring authorities to 
instigate a site search. A 
suitable site will be identified 
and planning permission 
granted within 18 months of 
receipt of the North West 
Wales LHMA, should it 
identify a specific need 

The Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation 
Needs Assessment (GTANA) element of 
the  Local Housing Market Assessment 
(LHMA) was received in May 2013 and 
ratified by the Council on 3th December 
2013. The Council is currently 
undertaking an updated GTANA with 
Conwy CBC. This is now a statutory 
requirement (Housing Act 2014). Should 
a need to be identified, the Council will 
be obliged to address that need. Policy 
review may be required in 12 months 
time, should the Council fail to address 
any identified need in the updated 
GTANA. 

0

X

P
age 404



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [3]	
 

 

LDP Objectives 2 & 3: Economy and Jobs 
 

PSE 2 – Land for 
Employment Uses 

An average of 4 
hectares of 
employment land 
taken up per 
annum 

The amount of new 
employment land, in 
hectares, granted 
planning permission 

Less than 3 hectares per 
year for 3 consecutive 
years 
 

  There has been no planning applications 
granted permission for development on 
new employment land (see LDP 
document, p.42) for the last two years. 
However, 7.95ha of employment land 
were delivered on (existing) brownfield 
land. Outline planning permission, 
subject to Section 106 agreement was 
granted for 26ha at Bodelwyddan Key 
Strategic site. Delivering 26ha will 
amount to 43.7% of all additional 
employment land made available in the 
LDP. Policy review is not required 

 
PSE 1 – North 
Wales Coast 
Strategic 
Regeneration Area; 
PSE 3 – Protection 
of Employment 
Land and Buildings 

Protect 
employment land 
from non‐
employment uses 

The amount of 
employment land, in 
hectares, lost to non‐
employment uses 

More than 5% lost in 
conflict with Policy PSE 3 
in comparison to the 
amount of employment 
land available, in 
hectares, in the year of 
LDP adoption 

  The amount of employment land in the 
year of LDP adoption (2013/2014): 
342.36ha.  
The amount of employment land in the 
year (2014/2015): 339.75ha, which 
equates to a reduction in 0.77%. Policy 
review is not required 

 
PSE 5 – Rural 
Economy 

Help to sustain the 
rural economy 

Unemployment levels Increase in 
unemployment levels in 
rural areas 5% above 
2011 levels 

  There has been a fall in unemployment 
(i.e. people applying for jobseeker’s 
allowance) throughout all electoral 
wards in Denbighshire from 3.5% in 
2013 to 2.2% in 2015. Policy review is 
not required 

 

  0 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 405



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [4]	
 

 

LDP Objective 4: Retail 
 

PSE 6 – Retail 
Economy;  
PSE 9 – Out of 
Centre Retail 
Development 

Direct new retail 
development to 
existing town 
centres 

Amount of unallocated 
new major retail, office 
and leisure floor space 
permitted outside town 
centres 

1 new major retail, office 
and leisure development 
permitted outside town 
centres contrary to LDP 
policy 
 

  No planning permission was granted for 
schemes outside town centres contrary 
to LDP policy in 2014/15. 
Policy review is not required  

PSE 7 – Proposals 
for New Retail 
Development 

Meet the 
quantitative need 
for non‐food 
retailing in the 
county 

The provision of new 
non‐food retail floor 
space in Rhyl, Prestatyn 
and Denbigh 

No projects delivered by 
2015. 

  Planning permission was granted for 
construction of a terrace of 4 no. new 
retail (non‐food) units adjacent to 
Prestatyn Retail Park (Planning 
permission ref: 43/2014/0905). Policy 
review is not required

PSE 8 – 
Development 
within Town 
Centres 

Maintain the 
balance of retail 
and non‐retail uses 
within town 
centres 

Number of shops lost 
due to a change of use 

5% increase in non‐retail 
uses in a town centre for 
3 consecutive years 

  There is no town centre in Denbighshire 
where an 5% increase in non‐retail uses 
was recorded between November 2013 
and November 2014. The total number 
of convenience, comparision and other 
outlets within all town centres has risen 
by 1.8%. Policy review is not required 

PSE 6 – Retail 
Economy; PSE 8 – 
Development 
within Town 
Centres; PSE 9 ‐ 
Out of Centre 
Retail 
Development 

Maintain and 
enhance the vitality 
and viability of 
town centres 

Number of vacant retail 
units within town 
centres 

Vacancy rate of 15% or 
above for 3 consecutive 
years 

  There is no town centre within 
Denbighshire where a vacancy rate of 
15% or above has been observed for the 
last two years; with the exception of 
Rhyl (November 2014: 17.2%). Policy 
review may be considered if the 
number of town centres with a vacancy 
rate above 15% has increased over the 
next 12 months. 

 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

  0 

P
age 406



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [5]	
 

PSE 10 – Local 
Shops and Services 

Protect local shops 
and services 

Number of local shops 
or services lost due to a 
change of use 

Loss of any local shop or 
service contrary to policy 

  No planning permission was granted 
that would have resulted in the loss of a 
local shop or service contrary to LDP 
policy in 2014/15. Policy review is not 
required 

 
 

LDP Objectives 5 & 6: Transport 
 

ASA 1 – New 
Transport 
Infrastructure 

Provision is made for safe 
access by all users, 
including cyclists, 
pedestrians to public 
services, retail and 
community facilities 

Number of developments 
that incorporate 
recommendations made 
in accompanying 
transport assessment and 
non‐motorised user 
audits

One development 
failing to incorporate 
the recommendations 
made in accompanying 
transport assessment 
and non‐motorised user 
audits

  The Council approved 18 planning 
applications which were supported 
by a transport assessment in line 
with policy requirements.  Policy 
amendment is not required 

 

ASA 2 – Provision 
of Sustainable 
Transport 
Facilities 

Use of planning 
conditions/ S106 
agreements to secure the 
improvement of or 
contributions to the 
improvement of public 
transport, walking or 
cycling infrastructure 
likely to be caused by 
new developments 

Number of new 
developments improving 
or making contributions 
towards the 
improvement of public 
transport, walking or 
cycling infrastructure 
through planning 
conditions/ S106 
agreements

No new developments 
making necessary 
contributions towards 
the improvement of 
public transport, 
walking or cycling 
infrastructure through 
planning conditions/ 
S106 agreements after 
four years

  The Council negotiated a sum of 
£25,000 contributions towards 
improvements to cycle and 
pedestrian linkages in Rhyl. Policy 
review is not required 

 

ASA 3 – Parking 
Standards 

Application of maximum 
parking standards to new 
development proposals in 
line with relevant 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance 

Number of new 
developments exceeding 
maximum parking 
standards set out in 
relevant Supplementary 
Planning Guidance

One new development 
failing to comply with 
maximum parking 
standards 

  All new developments comply with 
maximum parking standards. There 
has been no planning application 
that was proposing more spaces 
than required by the adopted SPG 
‘Parking Requirements in New 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 407



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [6]	
 

Developments’. 5 Planning 
applications were refused on the 
basis of insufficient parking space 
provision. Policy review is not 
required 
 

BSC 5 – Key 
Strategic Site ‐ 
Bodelwyddan 

Provision of new road 
infrastructure/ 
improvements to existing 
road network between 
A55 Junction 26 and 
Bodelwyddan (Sarn Road) 

Length of new road 
infrastructure/ 
improvement works to 
existing network between 
A55 Junction 26 and 
Bodelwyddan (Sarn Road) 

No new road 
infrastructure / no 
improvement works to 
existing network 
between A55 Junction 
26 and Bodelwyddan 
(Sarn Road) before the 
occupation of the first 
dwelling on the KSS 

Has not been 
monitored 
yet 

Outline permission was granted in 
January 2015; subject to a Section 
106 agreement. Terms and 
conditions of the S106 agreement 
are currently being drafted. 
 
Policy performance is linked to 
general principles of BSC 5.  

Improvement of public 
transport / increased bus 
service links between 
Bodelwyddan KSS and key 
settlements in 
negotiation with service 
providers 

Frequency of bus services 
linking Bodelwyddan KSS 
and key settlements per 
hour 

No increase in 
frequency of bus 
services linking 
Bodelwyddan KSS and 
key settlements in 
accordance with the 
timetable agreed by 
developers and service 
operators 

Has not been 
monitored 
yet 

Provision of new cycle 
and pedestrian 
routes/facilities as part of 
the Bodelwyddan KSS to 
provide connectivity 
between residential and 
employment / 
community facility areas 

Number/ length of new 
cycle and pedestrian 
routes/facilities as part of 
the Bodelwyddan KSS 

No cycle and pedestrian 
routes/ facilities before 
the occupation of the 
first dwelling on the KSS 

Has not been 
monitored 
yet 

P
age 408



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [7]	
 

 

LDP Objective 7: Welsh Language 
 

RD 5 – The Welsh 
Language and the 
Social and Cultural 
Fabric of 
Communities 

No significant harm 
to the Welsh 
character or 
language balance 
of the community 

Results of Community 
Linguistic Statements or 
Assessments submitted 

Any development 
permitted where the 
Community Linguistic 
Statement or Assessment 
concludes Welsh 
character or language 
would be harmed where 
such harm is not 
outweighed by other 
considerations 

 
 

The Council granted planning 
permission for two developments, 
where the planning application was 
accompanied by a Community Linguistic 
Statements as required by local policy. 
None of the submitted statements 
concluded that the development will 
harm the Welsh language. 
 
The ‘Planning and the Welsh Language’ 
SPG was adopted in March 2014. 
 
The Council registered new street names in 
Welsh only = 1, English only = 0, and 
Bilingual = 3. 
 
 
Policy review is not required 
 

An increase in 
Welsh or bilingual 
signage and Welsh 
place names 

Use of Welsh or 
bilingual signage and 
the use of Welsh place 
names in new 
development 

Any development where 
new streets or places are 
created not including 
Welsh names or bilingual 
signage 

 

Prepare and adopt 
Supplementary 
Planning Guidance 
regarding the 
Welsh language 

Preparation and 
adoption of SPG 

Adoption of SPG within 
12 months of the 
adoption of the LDP 

 

 

LDP Objective 8: Public Open Space 
 

BSC 11 – 
Recreation and 
Open Space 

Ensure new 
developments 
make an adequate 
contribution to 
public open space 
provision 

Number of units 
granted where the open 
space requirements are 
met 

1 planning permission 
granted where the open 
space requirements are 
not met, except where 
justified in line with policy 

  There were 12 approved planning 
applications that allowed for 
development land either entirely or 
partially designated under policy BSC11. 
These applications were justified in line 
with policy, and included improvement 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 409



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [8]	
 

Protect allocated 
open space from 
development 

Amount of allocated 
open space lost to 
development 

1 planning permission 
granted for development 
on open space, except 
where justified in line 
with policy 

  works to facilities located on play and 
open space. 
 
Policy review is not required 

 

LDP Objective 9: Minerals 
 

PSE 15 – 
Safeguarding 
Minerals 

Safeguard high 
quality resources of 
minerals, including 
limestone, sand 
and gravel, 
Denbigh gritstones, 
igneous and 
volcanic deposits 
from development 
that would result in 
permanent loss or 
hinder extraction 

Area of mineral lost to 
development 

Loss of identified mineral 
except where justified in 
line with the policy 

  Only planning applications which have 
been justified in line with the policy 
have been approved, 4 in total during 
the monitoring period. Policy review is 
not required 

PSE 16 – Mineral 
Buffer Zone 

Maintain a buffer 
between sensitive 
development and 
quarries 

Number of planning 
permissions granted for 
sensitive development 
in buffer zones 

One or more planning 
permission granted for 
sensitive development 
within a buffer zone 

  No planning permission has been 
granted within Mineral Buffer Zones 
during the monitoring period. Policy 
review is not required 
 

PSE 17 – Future 
Mineral Extraction 

Contribute to the 
regional demand 
for aggregates 

Tonnes of sand & gravel 
extraction permitted. 
Maintain a 10 year 
landbank of hard rock 

No extraction permitted 
by 2017. Landbank falls 
below 10 years 

  No planning permissions for sand and 
gravel extraction have been received to 
date. Reserves in excess of 20 million 
tonnes remained at the end of 2013. 
The landbank for hard rock was 36 
years, based upon a 10 years sales 
average. Policy review is not proposed 

  √ 

  √

  √ 

  0

P
age 410



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [9]	
 

at this time in the Plan period but it 
must be kept under observation over 
the next 12 months. (see paragraphs 
5.6 in main document) 
 

 

LDP Objective 10: Waste 
 

VOE 7 – Locations 
for Waste 
Management 

Denbighshire will 
contribute towards 
the regional need 
for waste 
management 
capacity 

The percentage of 
waste management 
capacity permitted as a 
percentage of the total 
capacity required, as 
identified in the North 
Wales Regional Waste 
Plan 1st Review 

Less than 50% capacity 
permitted by 2015, either 
within or outside of the 
County delivered in 
partnership with other 
north Wales local 
authorities, as proportion 
of capacity required by 
Denbighshire 

  Planning permission was secured for 
the construction of a 200 kilotons per 
annum Energy from Waste facility in 
Flintshire which will manage residual 
waste arising from across North Wales, 
including Denbighshire. Policy review is 
not proposed at this time in the Plan 
period but it must be kept under 
observation over the next 12 months. 
(see paragraphs 5.7 in main document) 
 

 

LDP Objective 11: Energy 
 

VOE 10 – 
Renewable Energy 
Technologies 

Progress towards 
the TAN 8 target 
for onshore wind 
energy 

The capacity of 
renewable energy 
developments (MW) 
(installed or permitted 
but not yet operational) 
inside the Strategic 
Search Area by type per 
annum (in collaboration 
with CCBC) 
 

Not achieving the target 
set out in TAN 8, National 
Energy Policy or PPW by 
2015 

  Total operational and consented 
capacity at 31/03/2015 = 189.45MW 
(TAN8 target: 140MW); Policy review is 
not required 
 

  0 

  √ 

P
age 411



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [10]	
 

Prepare and adopt 
Supplementary 
Planning Guidance 
regarding 
renewable energy 

Preparation and 
adoption of SPG 

Supplementary Planning 
Guidance not adopted by 
2013 

  Supplementary planning guidance note 
(SPG) on renewable energy has been 
drafted, and adoption is anticipated for 
Winter 2015/16. Policy review is not 
required 

VOE 9 – On‐shore 
Wind Energy 

Increase the 
capacity of 
renewable energy 
developments in 
the County 

Number and type of 
renewable and low 
carbon energy schemes 
permitted per annum 

Less than 1 development 
per year over 3 
consecutive years 

  There were 18 approved planning 
applications in the period 1st April 2014 
to 31st March 2015. The total amount 
of kw approved was 10,326 over the 
last three years. Policy review is not 
required 

 

LDP Objective 12: Infrastructure 
 

BSC 3 – Securing 
Infrastructure 
Contributions from 
Development 

Secure 
contributions 
towards 
infrastructure to 
meet the additional 
social, economic, 
physical and/or 
environmental 
infrastructure 
requirements 
arising from 
development 

Number of planning 
obligations secured 

Failure to secure 
contributions where 
necessary 

  The Council signed 9 Section 106 
agreements covering the provision of 
affordable housing, open space, and the 
installation of flood mitigation 
measures. Policy review is not required 

BSC 12 – 
Community 
Facilities 

Prevent the loss of 
community 
services or facilities 

Number of services or 
facilities lost through 
change of use 

Loss of any community 
facility unless justified in 
line with policy 

  There were 3 approved planning 
applications seeking a change of use but 
all of them were justified in line with 
policy or prevailing material 
consideration. Policy review is not 
required 

  0 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 412



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [11]	
 

VOE 6 – Water 
Management 

To ensure new 
development does 
not increase risk of 
flooding 

% of new developments 
with Sustainable 
Drainage Systems 
(SuDS) incorporated, or 
similar solution, where 
suitable 

Failure to secure any or 
any successful challenges 
to the requirement, 
where suitable 

  There was 1 development granted 
approval in Llangollen where SuDS were 
suitable and have been secured by 
planning condition. 
 
The Council hasn’t received a major 
planning application accompanied by a 
water conservation statement during 
the monitoring period. Supplementary 
Planning Guidance on water 
management is scheduled for adoption 
in Spring 2016. 
 
Policy review is not required 

To ensure major 
development 
proposals make 
efficient use of 
water resources 
and without 
detriment to the 
environment 

Number of major 
development proposals 
developed in 
accordance with by a 
Water Conservation 
Statement 

Failure to secure any or 
any successful challenges 
to the requirement, 
where suitable 

 

Prepare and adopt 
Supplementary 
Planning Guidance 
regarding water 
management 

Preparation and 
adoption of SPG 

Guidance not adopted by 
2015 

 

 

LDP Objective 13: Mixed Use Development 
 

BSC 5 – Key 
Strategic Site – 
Bodelwyddan 

Prepare and adopt 
Supplementary 
Planning Guidance 
regarding the Key 
Strategic Site 

‐‐‐  Supplementary Planning 
Guidance not adopted by 
the end of 2013 

  Site Development Brief ‘Bodelwyddan 
Key Strategic Site’ was adopted in July 
2014. The outline planning application 
was received in December 2013 and 
was granted permission, subject to a 
Section 106 agreement, in January 
2015. Terms and conditions of the S106 
agreement are currently being drafted. 
Policy review is not proposed at this 
time in the Plan period but it must be 

Deliver the Key 
Strategic Site 

Planning permission 
granted for 1715 
dwellings, 26 hectares 
of employment land 
and associated facilities 

Planning permission not 
granted by the end of 
2013 
 

 

  √ 

  0 

  0 

  √ 

  0 

P
age 413



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [12]	
 

and infrastructure  kept under observation over the next 
12 months. 

 

LDP Objective 14: Design 
 

RD 1 – Sustainable 
Development and 
Good Standard 
Design 

Respect site and 
surroundings and 
ensure sustainable 
land take 

Average density of 
residential development 
permitted 

Average density of 
residential development 
permitted falling below 
35 dwellings per hectare 
unless justified by policy 
 

  The Council approved planning 
applications for a total number of 190 
dwellings. Deviations from the 35 
dwellings per hectare density 
requirement were justified where 
additional highways arrangements or 
landscape constraints prevented the 
achievement. 
Supplementary Planning Guidance is 
scheduled for adoption in Spring 2016. 
Policy review is not required 
 

Produce 
supplementary 
planning guidance 
regarding design 

‐‐‐  Supplementary planning 
guidance not produced by 
the end of 2013 
 
 

 

BSC 1 – Growth 
Strategy for 
Denbighshire 

Create mixed and 
balanced 
communities 

The provision of a range 
of house sizes, types 
and tenure to reflect 
local need 

No developments 
completed with a range 
of house sizes, types and 
tenure to reflect local 
need 

  A number of housing developments 
have been completed, or are still under 
construction, which have delivered a 
range of house types and sizes to reflect 
local need. These include Parc St Francis 
in Prestatyn, Castlefields in Rhuddlan, 
and Maes Glyndwr in Cynwyd. All of 
these schemes delivered affordable 
housing in addition to market dwellings. 
Policy review is not required 

BSC 7 – Houses In 
Multiple 
Occupation & Self‐
contained Flats 

Prevent the 
creation of Houses 
in Multiple 
Occupation 

Number of HMOs 
granted planning 
permission 

1 or more HMOs granted 
planning permission 

  The Council did not approve any 
planning applications for the creation of 
a HMO. Policy review is not required 
 
 

  0 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 414



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [13]	
 

VOE 1 – Key Areas 
of Importance 

Direct 
inappropriate 
development away 
from the flood 
plain 

Amount of 
development permitted 
in C1 and C2 flood plain 
areas not meeting all 
TAN 15 tests (paragraph 
6.2 i‐v) 

1 or more granted 
planning permission 

  The local planning authority dealt with 
62 planning applications that sought 
permission for development located 
either wholly within or more than 10% 
of the area in C1 flood plain. All of them 
met TAN15 tests where relevant. 42 
planning applications have been 
approved for development located 
either wholly within or more than 10% 
of the area in C2 flood plain; for 
example: erection of overhead lines or 
the construction of a manege and 
associated lighting. There has been no 
residential development granted 
planning permission within C2 flood 
plain, i.e. no proposal met the TAN 15 
tests. Policy review is not required 

 

LDP Objective 15: Tourism 
 

PSE 1 – North 
Wales Coast 
Strategic 
Regeneration Area 

Contribute 
towards the 
visitor economy 

Number of tourism facilities 
lost through change of use 

Loss of any tourism 
facility except where 
justified in line with 
policy 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Council approved 10 planning 
applications for developments 
contributing to the visitor economy in 
the County. Proposals included a hotel, 
improvement to facilities on existing 
caravans and the installation of new 
cabins. Policy review is not required Contribute 

towards the 
visitor economy 

Number of planning 
permissions granted and 
completed in accordance 
with policies PSE1 criteria iii), 
PSE 11, PSE 12 and PSE 14 

No planning 
permissions granted 
over 3 years in 
accordance with the 
named policies 
 

 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 415



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [14]	
 

VOE 3 – 
Pontcysyllte 
Aqueduct and 
Canal World 
Heritage Site 

To protect the 
designation of the 
World Heritage 
Site, its 
Outstanding 
Universal Value 
and setting 

Prepare joint SPG  Joint SPG not adopted 
by the end of 2013 

  The Joint SPG was adopted with 
Wrexham and Shropshire (England) in 
June 2012, and revised in August 2013. 
Policy review is not required 
 
 
 

To protect and 
enhance the 
World Heritage 
Site Buffer Zone 
character. 
 

Prepare joint SPG  Joint SPG not adopted 
by the end of 2013 

 

 

LDP Objective 16: Areas of Protection 
 

VOE 5 – 
Conservation of 
Natural Resources 

Protect statutory 
designated sites of 
nature 
conservation from 
adverse effects 
caused by new 
development 

Number of 
developments that 
have an adverse effect 
on statutory 
designated sites of 
nature conservation 

No development proposal 
granted planning 
permission that would 
have an adverse effect on 
statutory designated sites 
of nature conservation and 
unless accepted by Natural 
Resources Wales as being 
necessary for management 
of the designated site 

 
 

There has been no approved planning 
application that would adversely affect 
statutory designated of nature 
conservation. Natural Resources Wales 
and the County Ecology and Biodiversity 
Officer are both consulted on proposals 
that are likely to have an effect on 
ecological features. Policy review is not 
required 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 416



Appendix 1 – Local Policy Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

LDP Policy Policy Target  Indicator Trigger Level  Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [15]	
 

 

National policy objectives 
 

Policy Target Indicator Trigger Level Performance Comments 
Delivering new housing on 
allocated sites 

Number of planning permissions 
granted on allocated sites, as a % of 
total development permitted 
(hectares and units) 

‐‐‐  ‐‐‐  Number of planning permissions 
granted on allocated sites, as a % of 
total development permitted – in 
hectares: 27.45 %; in units: 60.5% 
 

Maintaining the vitality 
and viability of town 
centres 

Amount of major retail, office and 
leisure development (sqm) permitted 
in town centres expressed as a 
percentage of all major development 
permitted 

‐‐‐  ‐‐‐  Amount of major retail, office and 
leisure development (sqm) permitted 
in town centres expressed as a 
percentage of all major development 
in town centres: 43.3%   

Amount of residential 
development meeting the 
Code for Sustainable 
Homes Level 3 and 
obtaining 6 credits under 
Ene 1 – Dwelling Emissions 
Rate 

All new housing developments to 
meet this National requirement 

One new development 
not meeting national 
requirements 

N/A  Policy Target and Indicator are no 
longer covered by planning legislation. 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 7), 
Section 4.12, has been revised to 
delete the national development 
management policy on sustainable 
building standards. These changes 
have been made in light of 
amendments to Part L of Building 
Regulations on energy efficiency 
coming into force. No further actions 
required, proposed for deletion. 
 
 

Amount of non‐residential 
development over 1,000m² 
on a site over 1ha meeting 
BREEAM ‘very good’ 
standard and achieving 
mandatory credits for 
Excellent under issue Ene 7 
– Reduction of CO2 
Emissions 

All new non‐residential developments 
to meet this national requirement 

One new development 
not meeting national 
requirements 

N/A 

 

P
age 417



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [1]	
 

 

SA Objective 1: Ensure the housing needs of the community are met 
 

The LDP includes a number 
of policies promoting new 
housing which should 
positively contribute to 
housing needs 

No. of affordable homes 
delivered per annum and 
the % of eligible 
residential planning 
permissions where 
affordable housing has 
been negotiated 
 

To follow guidance on 
provision of affordable 
housing in the interim North 
East Wales Housing Market 
Assessment 

  Affordable homes – delivery rates have varied 
annually, with 573 delivered during the Plan 
period so far.  The interim North East Wales 
Housing Market Assessment was updated by 
the Update of Need, Demand and Affordability 
in Denbighshire undertaken by Glyndwr 
University in 2010. This informed LDP policy 
requirements. Following LDP adoption all 
residential development sites have met the 
policy requirements for affordable provision 
unless justified in line with Policy BSC 4 & SPG 
Affordable Housing. 
Empty properties – the Council undertakes a 
variety of actions aiming to bring empty 
properties back into use. As at April 2015, 
1.63% of the County’s housing stock had been 
vacant for more than 6 months. 
Waiting list – the housing waiting list has been 
subject to a number of reviews since 2009 and 
this has led to a reduction in the overall 
numbers. 
Housing quality – As at Sept 2014 96% of the 
Council’s housing stock had met WHQS. The 
remaining properties could not be accessed and 
will be upgraded when they are vacated. 
Property prices – Property prices have fallen in 
the County as a result of the economic 
downturn, and recovery has been slow with 
prices still below the average price in 2009. 

% of vacant housing  100%   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Households on the 
Housing register 

Year on year reduction in the 
number of households on 
the housing register 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

% of unfit housing against 
the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard 

To reduce the percentage of 
unfit homes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  √ 

0 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 418



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [2]	
 

Average property price 
compared against 
average earnings 

To reduce the ratio of 
property price and earnings; 
Source: www.landreg/gov.uk 
/ Wealth of the Nation, 2004 

 
 
 
 
 

However, average incomes have also fallen and 
the ratio of income to house price has risen 
slightly from 4.67 (2009) to 4.97 (2014). 

 

SA Objective 2: Promote community health and well‐being 
 

Promote community health 
and well‐being 

Life expectancy  To maintain/increase life 
expectancy; Source: 
www.statistics.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Life expectancy for men and women has been 
maintained over the period 2010 – 2013;  
Health Impact Assessment was used in the 
production of the Key Strategic Site 
Bodelwyddan, Site Development Brief which 
was a material consideration in the 
determination of the outline planning 
application for the site, however they aren’t a 
statutory requirement in the planning process; 
Access to services in rural areas remains an 
issue but Denbighshire is not an authority 
highlighted as have one of the highest 
proportions of wards in the worse 10% (Welsh 
Index of Multiple Deprivation 2014).  

No. of planning 
applications 
incorporating Health 
Impact Assessment (HIA) 

100% for major 
developments 

 
 
 
 
 

Community Satisfaction / 
perceptions surveys – 
Housing Estate Surveys 

To decrease % of people 
who describe their health as 
poor 

Data not 
captured 

Indices of deprivation 
 
 

To decrease % of population 
living in most deprived areas 

 
 
 
 
 

Proportion of households 
not living within 400m of 
their nearest natural 
green space 

0% Source: NRW (CCW) 
Accessible Green space 
standards 

 
 
 
 
 Proportion of households 

within reasonable 
Increase 

  0 

  √ 

  0 

  0 

  0

P
age 419



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [3]

walking distance of key 
health services 

SA Objective 3: Promote safer neighbourhoods and contribute to a reduction in the fear of crime 

Promote community health 
and well‐being; the LDP has 
reference to safety and 
crime in policies that 
consider design 

Overall crime rates by 
type 

To reduce crime rates year 
on year 

The average crime rate per 1000 inhabitants in 
Denbighshire has been significantly fallen since 
2006/2007. Whilst the crime rates for violence 
against people have been fallen, the crime rates 
for burglary have slightly increased over the 
same period of time. Average crime rate in 

Denbighshire per 1000 
inhabitants 

To reduce the number of 
crimes committed per 1000 
inhabitants 

SA Objective 4: Enhance existing and promote the development of high quality recreation, leisure and open space and provide opportunities for 
people to experience and respect the value of the natural environment 

Polices in the LDP seek to 
protect open space and so 
the effect are predicted to 
be positive 

Accessibility / availability 
of community facilities 

To increase % of residents 
using authority and/or 
private sports and leisure 
facilities at least once a week 

Data not 
captured 

Leisure centre usage – comparison data will be 
available for the 2015/15 AMR; Loggerheads 
and Moel Famau country parks continue to 
attract large numbers of visitors 180k and 160 
per annum respectively. DCC continues to 
expand its programme of countryside 
volunteering and organised events and walks to 
increase participation. Project to improve 
access to Horseshoe Falls, Llangollen 
completed; all residential development sites 
have met the policy requirements for open 
space provision unless justified in line with 
Policy BSC 11. 

Number of residential 
permissions granted 
where the open space 
requirements are met 

100% 

Hectares of accessible 
countryside and local 
green space 

To increase (use the Green 
Space Toolkit) 

Data not 
captured 

0

√

√

P
age 420



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [4]	
 

Number and % residents 
using parks, open spaces 
and nature reserves 
annually 

Increase numbers year on 
year 

 
 
 
 
 

 

SA Objective 5: Improve accessibility to education, employment, health, homes and community services for all sectors of the community through 
modes of transport other than the private car 
 

It will be important to 
monitor the accessibility 
of the opportunities 

Accessibility /availability of 
community facilities 
(schools, health and social 
facilities, nurseries, further 
education establishments, 
community halls, churches, 
libraries, residential homes 
for the elderly, cemeteries, 
open space, sports facilities, 
supported accommodation, 
theatres and cinemas) 

Distances from residents 
properties to community 
facilities as listed in the 
indicator to comply with the 
Welsh Index of Multiple 
Deprivation 

  Using the access to services deprivation 
statistics as a guide, Denbighshire’s access to 
services is worse than Conwy’s, and significant 
worse than the more urbanised authorities of 
Wrexham and Flintshire. However, 
Denbighshire’s access to services is significantly 
better than Anglesey and Gwynedd, with their 
more remote locale’s a negative in this 
instance; WIMD 2014 data for ‘village, hamlet 
and isolated dwellings’ show that the rural 
residential population of Wales experiences a 
significantly higher travel time to access key 
services than more urbanised areas. Data for 
maintain and improve the proportion of 
residential population within walking distance 
of key services can only be found at the national 
level and for the most recent update to the 
2014 WIMD data undertaken in March 2015. It 
is therefore difficult to identify a trend for this 
indicator; from the period of 2009‐2014, car 
millage/use has decreased, as has bus/coach, 
pedal cycle, motorcycle, and HGV use. Only light 
goods vehicle use has seen an increase in use;  

% of rural residential 
population within walking 
distance of key services 

Maintain and improve the 
proportion 

 
 
 
 
 

Travel to work data/modal 
split 

Reduce the distance of travel 
to work and reduce the % of 
people who travel by means 
of private car. Increase % of 
people travelling by 
sustainable modes of 
transport 

 

  √ 

  0 

  0 

  0 

P
age 421



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [5]	
 

(walking/cycling/public 
transport) 

 
General trend from 2009 – 2013 is a reduction 
in reducing traffic growth rates. This time 
period includes fluctuations of traffic growth 
and decline; Over the period 2004 – 2012, bus 
availability (households whose nearest bus stop 
is within 13 minutes walking and has a service 
at least once an hour) has risen from 88% to 
89% in Wales. The Great Britain average is 91%. 

Traffic volumes  To reduce traffic growth 
rates 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proportion of new 
developments (housing/ 
economic/ retail) located 
within reasonable walking 
distance of public transport, 
cycle ways and footpaths 

To monitor of new 
developments within 
reasonable walking distance 

 
Data not 
available 

Frequency/reliability of 
public transport 

Ensure frequency is 
maintained and improved 

 
 
 
 
 

Length of bus network  Ensure frequency is 
maintained and improved 

 
 
 
 
 
 

No. of settlements served by 
bus/rail 

Ensure frequency is 
maintained and improved 

Data not 
captured 

% of residential 
developments making 
relevant infrastructure 
contributions 

Record the amount provided 
and the method of spend 

Data not 
captured 
 

  √ 

  √ 

  0 

P
age 422



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [6]	
 

 

SA Objective 6: Protect and enhance the Welsh language and Culture, including the County's heritage assets 
 

LDP Policy RD 4 as well as 
the LDP objective to 
retain young people in 
the County through the 
provision of affordable 
housing 

Proportion of Welsh 
speakers in the County and 
their distribution 

Maintain and improve the 
proportion 

 
 
 
 
 

Figures from the Census 2011 have shown a 
decline in the number of Welsh speakers in 
Denbighshire from 26.7% to 24.6% since 2001. 
Similarly, the number of people with Welsh 
language skills has decreased from 36% to 35.4.  
However, Welsh Government’s annual survey 
estimates figures (see StatsWales, ‘Annual 
Population Survey estimates of persons aged 3 
and over who say they can speak Welsh by local 
authority and measure’) indicate that the % of 
persons aged 3 who say they can speak Welsh 
in Denbighshire has risen from 35.8% to 38.7% 
over the period 2006 to 2013. 
 
Primary school Welsh language capacity 
projected to be maintained in Denbigh, 
Prestatyn, Rhyl and Ruthin catchment areas. 
Capacity projected to increase in Dee Valley 
(127 in 2015 ‐ 135 in 2018) and St Asaph (51 in 
2015 ‐ 69 in 2018) catchments. 
 
Welsh Language Standards have been issued for 
the County Council from the Welsh Language 
Commissioner. They will be implemented upon 
Council’s formal approval. This will ensure a 
standard practice is achieved across the 
Council’s work. 
 
There are very few SAMs in Denbighshire 

Proportion of people with 
skills in the Welsh Language 

Maintain and improve the 
proportion 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Welsh medium schools and 
pre‐ schools as a proportion 
of all schools 

Maintain and improve the 
proportion 

 
 
 
 
 

Bi‐lingual published material  Maintain and improve the 
proportion 

 
 
 
 
 

% quality of Schedule 
Ancient Monuments, Historic 
Parks and Gardens, 
Conservation Areas, Historic 
Landscapes 

No reduction in quality  Data not 
captured 

Number of listed buildings 
on the ‘Buildings at Risk 
Register’ 

Reduction  Data not 
captured 

  √ 

  0 

  0 

  0 

P
age 423



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [7]	
 

% of Schedule Ancient 
Monuments subject to 
positive actions undertaken 
by DCC as a result of plan 
proposals 

Increase  Data not 
captured 

compared to listed buildings and I can be 
reasonably sure that they have not suffered any 
deterioration. The register in this area was 
drafted by Cadw in 1995 and there has been no 
follow up survey by Cadw since so there is no 
objective information to go on. Historic 
landscapes are vast areas which are impossible 
to monitor.  
 
There are no figures available since then on 
buildings that have been removed from the at 
risk category and no figures of buildings that 
might have been added. The last building at risk 
survey was carried in 2011. Cadw are in the 
process of carrying out a building at risk survey 
for the whole of Wales but Denbighshire has 
not been done yet. Demolition and 
redevelopment in Conservation Areas may 
positively contribute towards the built 
environment. Therefore, keeping the number 
‘low’ is not necessarily an aspiring target.  
 
All Conservation Areas in Denbighshire benefit 
from a character appraisal. The Council is in the 
process of carrying out a review of individual 
ones. 

% of demolition in 
Conservation Areas 

Low number in demolition   
 
 
 
 
 

% of Conservation Areas 
with an up‐ to‐date 
character appraisal 

50% up to date   
 
 
 
 

Number of Conservation 
Areas adversely affected by 
plan proposals 

0  Data not 
captured 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  √ 

  0 

P
age 424



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [8]	
 

 

SA Objective 7: Support County economic development and regeneration, including the provision of opportunities for rural diversification 
 

New employment land 
will be permitted in the 
County and it will be 
important to monitor the 
land take. In addition the 
SRA will be developing 
regeneration schemes 
which will have an 
impact on the levels of 
deprivation in the north 
of the County. The 
number and type of rural 
diversification will be 
monitored for trends and 
impacts. 

Gross Value Added per 
capita 

To increase GVA per capita   
 
 
 
 
 

The Gross Value Added per capita has been 
increased year by year from £11,830 (2006) to 
£13,555 (2012).  
 
Gross Value Added per worker / GVA per hour 
worked increased from £18.4 (2006) to £20.9 
(2012). 
 
Number of VAT registered enterprises/ number 
of active enterprises has slightly increased from 
3155 (2006) to 3195 (2013). 
 
There has been a fall in unemployment (i.e. 
people applying for jobseeker’s allowance) 
throughout all electoral wards in Denbighshire 
from 3.5% in 2013 to 2.2% in 2015. 
 
There has also been a small increase (+0.3%) in 
the number of people claiming unemployment 
benefit in Denbighshire between January 2006 
and January 2015. 
 
7.95ha of employment land were delivered on 
(existing) brownfield land. Outline planning 
permission, subject to Section 106 agreement 
was granted for 26ha at Bodelwyddan Key 
Strategic site. Delivering 26ha will amount to 
43.7% of all additional employment land made 
available in the LDP. 

Gross Value Added per 
worker  

To increase GVA per worker   
 
 
 
 
 

Proportion of economic 
activity by sector 

To increase the number of 
sectors, especially rural 
trends 

 
Data not 
captured 
 
 
 

% changes in the number of 
VAT registered enterprises 

To increase the overall 
number of VAT registered 
enterprises 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Employment / 
unemployment rates 

Reduction in unemployment 
rate 

 
 
 
 
 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 425



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [9]	
 

Unemployment claimant 
count with proportion of 
residents of working age 
population 

To decrease the proportion 
of people claiming 
unemployment benefit 

 
 
 
 
 

Take up of allocated 
employment land 

To increase the take up of 
employment land 

 
 
 
 
 

 

SA Objective 8: Maintain and enhance the vitality and viability of town and rural centres 
 

The LDP protects the 
retail core of town 
centres from 
inappropriate change of 
use and so a positive 
effect should be 
monitored 

Vacancy rates in town 
centres 

To decrease the amount of 
vacant floorspace 

 
 
 
 
 

In terms of vacant town centre floorspace, 
performance was mixed for the 8 town centres 
in Denbighshire in the period of 2009 – 2015.  
Corwen, Denbigh, Rhuddlan have reduced 
vacancy rates over this period, Ruthin has 
remained the same, whilst Llangollen, St.Asaph, 
Prestatyn and Rhyl have witnessed an increase 
in vacancy rates.  
 
Approximately 62 % of residents are satisfied 
with their nearest town centre whilst roughly 
35% are dissatisfied. As the 2013 Denbighshire 
Residents Survey is the first Council initiative to 
include this question, it is not possible to 
measure performance in this target until the 
next 2015 Residents Survey has been 
completed.  
 

Quality of town centres 
(perception surveys) 

Maintain and improve the 
quality 

 
 
 
 
 

% changes in total number of 
VAT registered enterprises in 
town and rural centres 

Increase in the number of 
VAT registered businesses 

 
 
 
 
 

% change in total number of 
shops, pubs and post offices 
in rural centres 

To resist the loss of village 
shops, pubs and post offices 
in rural areas where 
appropriate 

 
Data not 
captured 

  √ 

  0 

  0 

  0 

  √ 

P
age 426



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [10]

SA Objective 9: Make the best use of previously developed land and existing buildings in locations served by sustainable transport modes 

The new development 
promoted through the 
LDP could lead to the 
remediation of 
brownfield land 

% of dwellings built on 
previously developed land 

% of new dwellings to be 
built on previously 
developed land same 
comment as below 

The percentage of dwellings built on previously 
developed land has declined from 73% (12/13), 
70% (13/14) and 68% (14/15), this is in line with 
the target of reducing the amount of derelict 
land in the County. 
Development densities of 30 dph have been 
encouraged and implemented wherever 
appropriate in respect of the surrounding 
character of the area. Limited amount of 
development being delivered currently and no 
commencements to date on LDP allocated sites 
to measure impact of density requirement in 
policy RD1. NB: RD 1 policy requirement is 
35dph. 

Number of developments 
meeting densities of 
between 30‐50 dph and 
higher % in town centres and 
areas with high public 
transport accessibility 

All developments aim for a 
density of 30 dwelling per 
hectare 

Amount of derelict land  Reduce year on year 

No of empty properties  Reduce year on year 

SA Objective 10: Safeguard soil quality and function and maintain long term productivity of agricultural land 

The new development 
promoted through the 
LDP will lead to the 
removal of soil from the 
land 

Total area of contaminated 
land 

To reduce the area of 
contamination year on year 

There has not been development on land 
allocated in the LDP that necessitate 
remediation work. Where development has yet 
to commence, this will be controlled through 
the use of conditions attached to the planning 

0

√

0

0

√

P
age 427



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [11]

Total area remediated as 
part of new development 

To remediate all areas of 
contamination to a 
satisfactory standard when 
required by new 
development 

permission. There has also been no change to 
areas of contaminated land and soil 
management. 

Soil management 
methodology 

Positive mitigation of and 
reuse/replacement of soil 

SA Objective 11: Protect and enhance all international, national and locally designated nature conservation sites, protected species and geo‐
diversity sites and avoid their damage or fragmentation. Protect, enhance and create appropriate wildlife habitats in urban and rural areas thus 
enhancing biodiversity 

There are policies in the 
LDP to protect the 
biodiversity in the County 
and so the effects are 
predicted to be positive. 
However, information 
should be collected in 
relation to condition and 
enhancement of the sites 
to monitor the 
effectiveness of the LDP 
policies 

Area and condition of 
statutory nature 
conservation sites. Area and 
condition of non‐statutory 
nature conservation sites 

85% of SSSI features in 
favourable condition by 
2013. No adverse effects on 
SAC’s/SPA’s  

Nature Conservation and biodiversity 
enhancement measures are a principal 
consideration in determining planning 
applications. There has been no approved 
planning application that would adversely affect 
statutory designated of nature conservation. 
Natural Resources Wales and the County 
Ecology and Biodiversity Officer are both 
consulted on proposals that are likely to have 
an effect on ecological features. 

The Denbighshire Biodiversity Partnership 
reports actions derived from the Denbighshire 
Local Biodiversity Action Plan to the Biodiversity 
Action Reporting System. There are 75 listed on 

% of designated sites 
improved by the LA 

To improve condition of all 
designated sites  Data not 

captured 

Number of 
proposals/policies resulting 
in the loss or damage to 
designated sites 

No loss or damage to 
designated sites at all levels 

0

0

√

√

P
age 428



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [12]	
 

Achievement of the 
Biodiversity Action Plan 
targets 

Annual Local Biodiversity 
Action Plan reports 

 
 
 
 
 
 

BARS website.  
 
There has been no decrease in the number of 
Regionally Important Geological and 
Geomorphological Sites (RIGS). 

No. of Regionally Important 
Geological and 
Geomorphological Sites 
(RIGS) 

No decrease in number   
 
 
 
 
 

Area of land actively 
managed for nature 
conservation 

Increase in the area of land 
managed under 
Environmental Stewardship 
Schemes e.g. Tir Gofal 

Data not 
captured 

Number of development 
schemes which include 
design in ecological features 

Increase proportion of 
ecological design in new 
developments 

Data not 
captured 

Maintenance regimes in 
place for new habitats on 
new developments 

100%   
 
 
 
 

 

SA Objective 12: Preserve and enhance landscape character across the County, particularly the AONB 
 

The LDP seeks to protect 
the local landscape. It 
will be important to 
monitor whether new 
developments positively 

% of county designated for 
landscape 

No decrease   
 
 
 
 

Extension to the AONB supported and achieved. 
SPG for World Heritage Site adopted. No 
changes in LANDMAP evaluation.   √ 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 429



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [13]	
 

contribute to the design 
quality of settlements 

% of county designated as 
high or outstanding 
landscape quality (LANDMAP 
studies) 

No decrease   
 
 
 
 

Changes in the LANDMAP 
evaluation and extent of that 
change as a result of 
development 

No changes   
 
 
 
 

 

SA Objective 13: Protect and improve the water quantity and quality of inland and coastal waters 
 

The LDP seeks to protect 
the quality of surface and 
groundwater resources. 
The availability of water 
resource falls within the 
remit of Dŵr Cymru 
which is responsible for 
managing water supply 
and demand across 
Wales, although it is 
recognised that this will 
be affected by the levels 
of growth within each 
settlement. Indicators 
have been proposed to 
monitor water quality 
and the potential effects 
of new development. The 
LDP also promotes 

% of watercourse classified as 
good biological and chemical 
quality 

91% of rivers length in the 
UK should be of good 
quality by 2010. DCC will 
work towards achieving 
this target. Source: NRW 

  In 2014, 40.6 per cent of Welsh waters achieved 
good or better ecological status, an increase 
compared with 31.2 per cent in 2009. 
 
Sea water of the North Wales Coast has been 
described as compliant with Bathing Water 
Directive, Prestatyn Beach was awarded a ‘Blue 
Flag’ 
 
There are no records of incidents of major and 
significant water pollution due to new 
developments. 
 
Per capita consumption of water by year for 
Wales from 150 litres (2006) to 149 litres (2011) 
per person per day 

Compliance with Bathing 
Water Directive, European 
Blue Flag and UK Seaside 
awards 

100% compliance   
 
 
 
 

Groundwater quality  To maintain groundwater 
quality 

 
Data not 
captured 
 
 
 

Distribution of aquifers and 
their vulnerabilities 

To maintain groundwater 
quality 

Data not 
captured 
 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 430



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [14]	
 

sustainable design and 
construction and so it will 
be beneficial to monitor 
water use in the LDP, 
although this is also 
affected by individual 
actions. 

Number of incidents of major 
and significant water pollution 
due to new developments 

0%   
 
 
 
 

Surface water and 
groundwater abstractions 
(licensed and private) 

‐‐‐  Data not 
captured 
 

% of planning permissions 
with water saving devices/ 
grey water recycling required 
as part of conditions 

To reduce overall water 
consumption in new 
developments 

Data not 
captured 

Estimated household water 
consumption (litres per head 
per day) 

Long term decrease   
 
 
 
 

 

SA Objective 14: Minimise the vulnerability to flooding and ensure new development does not increase flood risk 
 

There are a number of 
policies to direct new 
development away from 
areas of floodrisk and so 
effects should be 
positive. The extent to 
which the need for 
permeable surfaces and 
the use of SuDS is 
promoted in new 
development 

% of planning applications with 
SuDS required as part of 
conditions 

All new development 
proposals to show that 
sustainable drainage has 
been considered and 
implemented if 
appropriate; Source: 
NRW 

  Environment Agency, Countryside Council 
Wales and Forestry Commission merged in 2013 
to form Natural Resources Wales, an 
organisation that advises on flood 
considerations. Conditions attached to planning 
permissions were used to secure the 
implementation of SuDs into the development 
where applicants proposed them. Denbighshire 
County Council did not granted planning 
permission for vulnerable development against 
advice received from Natural Resources Wales. 

No. of new vulnerable 
development granted planning 
permission in C1 and/or C2 
floodplain area contrary to 
advice from the Environment 

0%   

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

  0 

P
age 431



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [15]	
 

Agency Natural Resources 
Wales 

 

SA Objective 15: Protect and improve air quality 
 

It is not predicted that 
the LDP will result in 
adverse effects on air 
quality. However, some 
contextual monitoring 
could be undertaken to 
support other monitoring 

Levels of main pollutants  To meet National Air 
Quality Standards 

 
 
 
 
 
 

An Air Quality Management Zone has not been 
established in the County of Denbighshire yet. 

No. of days when air pollution is 
moderate or high for NO2, SO2, 
O3, CO or PM10 

‐‐‐  Data not 
captured  
 

 

SA Objective 16: Contribute to a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions (especially CO2) by increasing energy conservation and efficiency in 
development and support increased provision and use of renewable energy 
 

Monitor the success of 
the MIPPS 01/2009 
requirement for new 
development 

Annual greenhouse gas 
emissions by sector 

To reduce CO2 emissions 
by 20% by 2010 and by 
60% by 2050 from a 1990 
baseline figure (national 
target) Source: UK Climate 
Change Programme 2000 
 

  Both Wales and Denbighshire have shown a 
continuing decline in greenhouse gas 
emissions.  
Denbighshire’s CO2 emissions in 2012 were 
581 Kt, which is a decrease from 637 Kt in 
2008.  CO2 emissions for Wales were 46.6 Mt 
in 2010, which is a 15% reduction from 1990.  
For all of Wales, greenhouse gas emissions 
have reduced in each sector, from a total of 
35.9 Mt in 2006 to 31.8 Mt in 2010. 
 
The requirements set out in national planning 
policy for developments to meet Code for 
Sustainable Homes and BREEAM standards 

No. of Code for Sustainable 
Homes assessments 
accompanying new 
developments 

100% of new dwellings to 
meet Code Level 3 
Standards from 2010. 100% 
of new commercial 
buildings to meet BREEAM 
Very Good Standard 
 

Data not 
captured 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 432



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [16]	
 

% of energy produced in the 
County generated from 
renewable sources 

10% renewable energy 
target by 2010 (national 
target) and 60% by 2050 
Source: UK Climate Change 
Programme 
 

  has been removed and integrated with 
Building Regulations requirements.  
Developments meeting these standards (or 
equivalents) are therefore no longer recorded.   
 
Data is not available at county level for 
renewable energy production. However, the 
all‐Wales percentage has increased each year 
from 2005.  In 2013, 10.1% of energy 
generated in Wales was from renewable 
sources and this has steadily increased from 
3.5% in 2005.   
 
No major developments have taken place 
since LDP adoption, which would require on‐
site recycling. 

No. of buildings incorporating 
renewable energy production 
(solar panels, wind turbines, 
photovoltaics, ground‐source 
heat) 
 

Increase number year on 
year 

 

Construction projects 
incorporating on‐site recycling 

All major development 
projects to incorporate on‐
site recycling 
 
 

 

 

SA Objective 17: Protect mineral resources from development that would preclude extraction 
 

There is a need to 
consider the mineral 
deposit which may be 
found underneath a 
development proposal 

Amount of mineral reserves  To sustainably manage 
existing reserves 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reuse of aggregates in construction was 
approximately 50% in North Wales according to 
the 2012 Construction and Demolition Survey 
undertaken by Natural Resources Wales. 
However, less than 1% of aggregate wastes 
were actually disposed of by landfill in North 
Wales, with the vast majority of aggregate 
wastes being recovered for beneficial use, 
including backfilling. Although this indicator is 
not being complied with, in light of the above 
the objective is still being met. No mineral 
reserves were sterilised by non‐mineral 

Reuse of aggregates in 
construction 

100%   
 
 
 
 
 

  √ 

  0 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 433



Appendix 2 – SA Objectives Monitoring Table Denbighshire County Council Local Development Plan 2006 ‐ 2021 

 

Effect to be monitored  Indicator Target/ Data Source Performance Comments
 

Annual Monitoring Report 2015 [17]	
 

Number of planning 
applications approved 
resulting in the sterilisation 
of mineral reserves 

0%   
 
 
 
 

development. 

 

SA Objective 18: Encourage waste reduction, reuse, recycling and recovery and regional self‐sufficiency 
 

New development in the 
County will need to 
consider how it can 
minimise the impact on 
the environment. Policies 
VOE 7 & 8 permits new 
local waste  management 
sites / facilities and so 
those numbers should be 
monitored 

Household, construction and 
demolition and industrial 
waste production (tonnage) 

Reduction in waste to at 
least 10% of 1998 figure by 
2010 By 2020 waste arising 
per person should be less 
than 300 kg per annum; 
Source: Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy for 
Denbighshire County 
Council, February 2005 

  The target for 2009/10 was met across Wales 
(Source: Municipal Sector Plan). 
 
Recycling rates in Denbighshire in 2009/10 was 
52.5%, well in excess of the WG target of 
40%.Further targets have been identified for 
subsequent years all of which Denbighshire has 
exceeded to date. 

% of household, construction 
and demolition and 
industrial waste recycled 

By 2009/10 achieve at least 
40% recycling/composting, 
with a minimum of 15% 
composting and 15% 
recycling Source: Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy 
for Denbighshire County 
Council, February 2005 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  √ 

  √ 

  √ 

P
age 434



CONSULTATION RESPONSE FORM 

Draft Technical Advice Note 1 – Joint Housing Land Availability 
Studies 

We want to know your views on proposed changes to Technical Advice Note 1, Joint 
Housing Land Availability Studies, which supports the Welsh Government’s policy on 
housing land supply. 

Please submit your comments by 10th October 2014 

If you have any queries on this consultation, please email:  
planconsultations-f@wales.gsi.gov.uk or telephone: 029 2082 3290 

Data Protection 

Any response you send us will be seen in full by Welsh Government staff dealing with 
the issues which this consultation is about. It may also be seen by other Welsh 
Government staff to help them plan future consultations. 

The Welsh Government intends to publish a summary of the responses to this 
document. We may also publish responses in full. Normally, the name and address 
(or part of the address) of the person or organisation who sent the response are 
published with the response. This helps to show that the consultation was carried out 
properly. If you do not want your name or address published, please tick the box 
below. We will then blank them out. 

Names or addresses we blank out might still get published later, though we do not 
think this would happen very often. The Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 allow the public to ask to see information 
held by many public bodies, including the Welsh Government. This includes 
information which has not been published.  However, the law also allows us to 
withhold information in some circumstances. If anyone asks to see information we 
have withheld, we will have to decide whether to release it or not. If someone has 
asked for their name and address not to be published, that is an important fact we 
would take into account. However, there might sometimes be important reasons why 
we would have to reveal someone’s name and address, even though they have asked 
for them not to be published. We would get in touch with the person and ask their 
views before we finally decided to reveal the information. 

Confidentiality 

Responses to consultations may be made public on the internet or in a report.   

If you do not want your name and address to be shown on any documents we 
produce please indicate here   

If you do not want your response to be shown in any document we produce 
please indicate here   

Appendix 2 - WG TAN 1 Response

Page 435



CONSULTATION RESPONSE FORM 
 

 
Draft  Technical Advice Note 1, Joint Housing Land Availability 
Studies (Consultation) 
 

Date 18 July -  10 October 2014 

Name  Lara Griffiths 

Organisation  Denbighshire County Council 

Address  Caledfryn 
Smithfield Road 
Denbigh 
LL16 3RJ    

E-mail address  Lara.griffiths@denbighshire.gov.uk 

Telephone 01824 706913 

Type 
(please select 
one from the 
following) 

Business  

Local Planning Authority  

Government Agency / Other Public Sector  

Professional Body / Interest Group  

Voluntary sector (community groups, volunteers, self-
help groups, co-operatives, enterprises, religious, not for 
profit organisations) 

 

Other (other groups not listed above)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 436



Q1 
 

Purpose / Context (sections 2 and 3) 

Do you agree that the Joint Housing Land Availability Study (JHLAS) 
and Local Development Plan Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 
processes should be more closely aligned? 
 

x 

Agree
 

 

Neither Agree nor Disagree
 

 

Disagree
 

 

 
Q1 Further Comments 
 

The JHLAS clearly informs the AMR and provides data for a number of the key 
indicators within it.  There are however concerns relating to formally linking the 
two processes and the potential impact this may have in terms of trigger points 
for a LDP review.  The first AMR can be due relatively shortly following 
adoption of an LDP and before many newly allocated sites have had sufficient 
time to progress through the planning process.  As landowners/developers 
have no confirmation that their site is to be included in an LDP until the 
Inspector’s report is received then they are unlikely to have spent time and 
money preparing detailed plans prior to adoption of the Plan.  The time 
required to prepare plans and necessary supporting information, submit and 
secure a full planning consent and commence construction is unlikely to 
happen on many newly allocated LDP housing sites prior to submission of the 
first AMR.  This also supposes that the landowner/developer considers that the 
housing market is sufficiently attractive for them to consider bringing the site 
forward on adoption, which in the current economic climate is unlikely.  The 
likely outcome of this is, that the majority of LPAs will find themselves 
triggering the need for an LDP review within 2 years of adoption in the current 
climate.  This is borne out by comparison of the 2013 JHLAs across Wales 
where only 1 LPA, with an adopted LDP, had a housing land supply in excess 
of 5 years using the residual method. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q2 
 

Study preparation (section 4.1) 

To enable the most up-to-date JHLAS to feed into the AMR it is 
proposed to shorten the timetable for its preparation to six months.  
 
Do you agree that it is feasible to prepare a JHLAS in this revised 

x 

Page 437



timeframe?  
 

Agree
 

 

Neither Agree nor Disagree
 

 

Disagree
 

 

 
Q2 Further Comments 
 

Completion of the JHLA within 6 months may be desirable but difficult to 
achieve in reality for many LPAs.  Staff reductions and budgetary constraints 
are likely to impact on the resources available to carry out such studies.  For 
areas such as Denbighshire, which has a large rural hinterland the actual site 
survey work is extremely time consuming. The authority has also experienced 
delays to the agreed timetable caused by study group members requesting 
extensions to agreed consultation periods due to limited resource issues 
which is understandable but can delay publication dates. Even assuming that 
the Council can carry out the survey work and prepare the statement of 
common ground within the suggested timeframe, the Planning Inspectorate 
would also have to deal with a significant number of studies at the same time.  
This would be outside of the control of the council but may impact on 
publication date of the final study and input in to the AMR. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q3 
 

Sites for inclusion (section 4.3) 
 
Do you agree that sites subject to section 106 agreements should be 
included in the 5 year housing land supply (subject to their removal if 
the agreement remains unsigned after 1 year)? 
 

x 

Agree
 

 

Neither Agree nor Disagree
 

 

Disagree
 

 

 
Q3 Further Comments 

Yes they should be included.  Should be some flexibility to retain for more 

Page 438



than 1 year if it can be demonstrated that progress is being made. 

 
 
 

Q4 
 

Site categorisation (section 4.4) 

Greater delineation has been introduced into the site categorisation to 
give more precise information about why a site has not been included in 
the 5 year housing land supply. The former 2* category (sites affected 
by low market demand) has been removed as a result.  
 
Do you agree that these changes will assist in the understanding of a 
local planning authority’s housing land supply? 
 

x 

Agree
 

 

Neither Agree nor Disagree
 

 

Disagree
 

 

 
Q4 Further Comments 
 

The Council would support the removal of the 2* classification and hasn’t 
used this category for a number of years. 

Category 4 would appear in equitable as there is little Councils can do to force 
developers to bring forward sites if they feel they are unviable or would prefer 
to wait for healthier market conditions. This may encourage land banking 
particularly if it is known that the council will be forced to release additional 
land if the JHLA reports a land supply of less than 5 years which is not in fact 
an accurate picture of what is available. 

 

Q5 
 

Calculating housing land supply (section 5) 

It is proposed that only local planning authorities with an adopted LDP 
(or an adopted Unitary Development Plan that is still within the plan 
period) will be able to undertake a JHLAS calculation (using the residual 
methodology) and thus be able to demonstrate that they have a 5 year 
housing land supply. 
 
Do you agree with this approach, which is aimed at incentivising the 
preparation and adoption of LDPs? 
 

x 

Agree
 

 

Neither Agree nor Disagree
 

 

Disagree
 

 

Page 439



 
Q5 Further Comments 
 

Denbighshire recognises the value and importance of having an adopted LDP 
and agrees that all authorities should be encouraged to progress their Plans.  
If an authority does not have an adopted and in date development plan 
though it is hard to see what incentive there would be for carrying out the 
JHLA if there is no opportunity to demonstrate a housing land supply.  This is 
particularly relevant given the resource constraints local authorities are 
currently operating under. 

 

Q6 
 

Calculating housing land supply (section 5) 

It is proposed that the residual methodology based on an adopted LDP 
or UDP will be the only methodology allowed for calculating housing 
land supply. Do you agree with this approach?  
 

x 

Agree
 

 

Neither Agree nor Disagree
 

 

Disagree
 

 

 
Q6 Further Comments 

Denbighshire does not agree the proposed approach. The residual method 
can lead to extreme annual requirements during periods of low economic 
activity and also where growth levels in adopted LDPs are based on 
Household projections that have since been shown to be inaccurate. The 
difficulties of using the residual method are at least recognised in the existing 
TAN 1 (2006) which states (para. 7.5.2) ‘In some circumstances that 
calculation has indicated land shortages or surpluses which do not exist in 
practice. In such cases, a comparison of available land with past building 
rates can provide a measure of the adequacy of land supply that is more 
relevant to the achievement of the general objectives of the development 
plan’. 

The residual method of calculation works best when actual build rates have 
broadly been as anticipated in the development plan. However if there has 
been significant deviation between actual build rates and those contained in 
the LDP (which are primarily based on WG projections) this distorts the 
residual calculation and can produce unrealistic and, having regard to market 
conditions, unachievable results. The Minister acknowledged, in his letter of 
10th April 2014 to LPA’s, that recent completions have been lower than 
anticipated in previous WG projections and this is an obvious reflection of 
recent past economic conditions resulting from the global economic crisis. 

For Denbighshire the household figures are much lower than those published 
in the 2006 and 2008 based household projections.  The differences are 
significant and suggest a much lower growth rate than that planned for in the 

Page 440



LDP which was adopted prior to the new figures being produced by Welsh 
Government. Whilst it is accepted that the latest projections are based on a 
period of economic decline, for Denbighshire they are significantly lower than 
previous projections (approx. 50% lower) or the LDP requirement. Housing 
completions remain the lowest recorded since 1996, with only 159 
completions over the last year. The average annual completion rate over the 
plan period so far has been 211, significantly lower than the rate required to 
achieve the LDP target of 7500. This suggests that despite the availability of 
developable land allocated for housing, the market is unlikely to deliver the 
levels of house-building required to meet the predicted household growth. 

The adopted Denbighshire LDP contains an annual housing requirement of 
500 dwellings per annum over the 15 year Plan period. Actual completions 
since the start of the Plan period (2006) have averaged only 211 dwellings per 
annum. As a result, in Denbighshire, based on the residual method there is 
now a requirement to achieve a completion rate of 796 dwellings per annum 
to meet the LDP requirement. This rate is more than double that achieved 
since 2006 and compares to an average completion rate over the LDP plan 
period of 211 dwellings per annum. While the LDP Inspector has ensured that 
the Council has sufficient land allocated to meet its LDP requirement, both the 
capacity of the housebuilding industry in the area and the market demand in 
the area, to now meet this residual completion rate of 796 dwellings per 
annum must be questioned. For example Denbighshire has not achieved a 
completion rate as high as 400 dwellings per annum in any single year during 
its existence. It is now expected to achieve nearly double this on average 
every year during the remaining Plan period which is clearly unachievable. To 
achieve a 5 year supply it has to have sufficient land available and agreed by 
the study group as likely to be developed within the next five years, to 
accommodate an annual completion rate of 796 dwellings per annum, which 
is unrealistic. The Denbighshire situation is of course not unique and it is likely 
that a significant number of other LPA’s will struggle to achieve an agreed 5 
year supply, even though the land supply as a whole is sufficient to 
accommodate their LDP requirement and a built in contingency. 

The subsequent release of more land, either via an appeal scenario, or via a 
review of the LDP is likely to do little to help achieve a 5 year supply, given the 
marketing and housebuilding capacity constraints referred to previously. 
Furthermore, this likely increase in applications and appeals on unallocated 
land will serve to; harm planning and its reputation as a tool for public interest 
& sustainable development; remove certainty and transparency for developers 
and the community (key concerns noted in the Positive Planning agenda) and; 
undermine the influence of an LDP which has gone through the relevant 
consultation and Examination in Public procedures.  Finally, it is paramount 
that housing supply analysis understands that although important, land supply 
is not the single variable that prevents the 5 year housing supply being met 
(for eg. access to finance for developers is a key barrier identified during 
discussions with developers) in a multifaceted housing market. 

The proposed use of the residual methodology only is likely to lead to a 
market led approach to planning which runs in direct contradiction to the 
Welsh Government’s stated aims of having a plan led approach.  The 

Page 441



production of a development plan is extremely resource intensive and many 
authorities may question the value in producing one if the net result is an 
apparent shortage of housing land through the JHLA based on the proposed 
methodology.  This is particularly true of authorities whose LDPs are based on 
the 2008 based household estimates which have subsequently been 
demonstrated to be highly inaccurate 

 
 
 

Q7 
 

Housing supply figure (section 6) 

Where an LPA has an undersupply of housing land (i.e. less than 5 
years) it is proposed that the action to be taken would no longer be set 
out in the JHLAS report, but would be addressed in the AMR in order to 
link it directly with LDP monitoring.  
 
Do you agree with this approach? 
 

x 

Agree
 

 

Neither Agree nor Disagree
 

 

Disagree
 

 

 
Q7 Further Comments 
 

The JHLAS should still include commentary however if the JHLAS process is 
to be aligned more closely with AMR then this would be the more logical place 
for such measures to be included. Given that the land supply situation can 
change rapidly the reference to possible Plan review based on the result of 
one JHLAS seems excessive and as previously stated is likely to put most 
LPAs into a Plan review less than 2 years from adoption 

 
 
 

Q8 
 

JHLAS process (section 7.3) 

Do you agree that where the inclusion of sites is disputed by members 
of the Study Group, a Study Group meeting must be held? 
 

x 

Agree
 

 

Neither Agree nor Disagree
 

 

Disagree
 

 

 
Q8 Further Comments 

Page 442



 
It is reasonable to allow provision for a study group meeting if required, but to 
make one compulsory may lead to delays in the publication of studies.  The 
resources available to study group members are limited and it is considered 
unlikely that a difference stance on particular sites will be taken at a meeting. 

 

Q9 
 

Any other comments 

We have asked a number of specific questions. If you have any related 
issues which we have not specifically addressed, please use this space 
to report them. 

 

 
The Planning Bill sets out what characterises a ‘good’ planning authority.  
Included within this is having an adopted development plan and a 5 year 
housing land supply.  For those authorities whose LDPs are based on the 
2008 based Welsh Government projections; which have subsequently been 
proved to be highly inflated; these 2 indicators are almost mutually exclusive.  
In reality it will lead to a situation where authorities that have committed the 
resources and effort to adopt an LDP are then being unfairly penalised due to 
the methodology used in calculating the 5 year housing land supply. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

How to respond 

Please submit your comments by 10th October 2014 in any of the following ways:  

Email Post 

Please complete the consultation form 
and send it to :  

planconsultations-f@wales.gsi.gov.uk 

[Please include ‘TAN1 Consultation 
WG22580’ in the subject line] 

Please complete the consultation form 
and send it to: 

TAN 1 Consultation 
Planning Policy Branch 
Planning Division 
Welsh Government 
Cathays Park, Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ 
 

 

Page 443



Additional information 

If you have any queries about this consultation, please  

Email: planconsultations-f@wales.gsi.gov.uk 
 
Telephone: Paul Robinson on 029 2082 3290 or Nick Lloyd on 029 2082 6802 
 

 

Page 444



Appendix 3 - Letters to Chief Planners

Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Page 452



Page 453



Page 454



  

Report To:   Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:  27th October 2015 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill / Richard Weigh, Chief 

Finance Officer 
 
Report Author: Steve Gadd, Chief Accountant  
 
Title:    Finance Report 
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
 

The report gives details of the council’s revenue budget and savings as 
agreed for 2015/16. The report also provides a summary update of the Capital 
Plan as well as the Housing Revenue Account and Housing Capital Plan.  

 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the council’s current 
financial position. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

Members note the budgets set for 2015/16 and progress against the agreed 
budget strategy.  
 
Members approve the transfer of £40k funding to the EDRMS reserve to help 
fund the project in 2016/17. 
 

4. Report details 
 

The report provides a summary of the council’s revenue budget for 2015/16 
detailed in Appendix 1. The council’s net revenue budget is £185m (£188m in 
14/15).  The position on service and corporate budgets is a forecast 
underspend of £0.476m (£0.380m under at the end of August). Further 
narrative around the reasons for variances and the risks and assumptions 
underlying them are outlined below. 
 
Savings of £7.3m were agreed as part of the budget and a summary of the 
savings is shown as Appendix 2. £6.627m (91%) of the savings have already 
been achieved, an increase of £1.221m on the figure of £5.406m (74%) that 
was reported last month. Further details on the progress on achievement of 
the remaining 9% will be reported on in next month’s monitoring report.  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 455

Agenda Item 8



  

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

Effective management of the council’s revenue and capital budgets and 
delivery of the agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including 
corporate priorities. 
 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
Significant service narratives are shown in the following paragraphs. 
 
Children’s Services – The service is currently expected to overspend by 
£129k (£126k overspend last month). As noted last month it is hoped the 
service can reduce the current projected overspend through the management 
of vacancy savings and possibly through the utilisation of the Specialist 
Placement Reserve. However the possibility of further changes to high costs 
placements will remain a risk. 
 
Planning and Public Protection – The service is currently projected to 
underspend by £65k (£50k last month) due to the early implementation of 
agreed budget savings. 
 
Highways and Environmental Services – Risks around School Transport, 
Parking and the work carried out on behalf of the Trunk Road Agency remain 
in 2015/16. The following management action has been identified: 

 Parking - Better performance management of the enforcement staff to 
increase PCN income and a review of operational costs had already 
been implemented during last year. Pricing tariffs for the car parks will 
be reviewed as part of the budget process. 

 School Transport - A task and finish group was brought together to 
look at options to reduce the trend of overspending in this area.  This 
has resulted in a revised School Transport policy being issued 
(applicable from September 2015) which it is hoped will help the service 
move to a break even position. The effect of the new policy on the 
budget position is being monitored closely alongside the effect of 
continuing pressures around demography, college transport and SEN 
requirements. Details of the contracts in place for the 15/16 academic 
year are currently being examined and will be reported on next month. 

 North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency - The service has reduced 
costs in order to limit the impact of the reductions in fee income that are 
currently known, however there remains a risk of further reductions in 
income and levels of work. 

It is currently projected that the actions identified above alongside careful cost 
management within the service as a whole will allow the Highways and 
Environmental Service to break even overall this year.  
 
Business Improvement and Modernisation – This service is now projected 
to underspend by £80k largely due to vacancy savings related to the early 
achievement of efficiencies agreed as part of the Phase 4 savings for 2016/17. 
It is recommended that £40k of this underspend is placed in the EDRMS 

Page 456



  

reserve in order to contribute to the funding for this corporate project next 
financial year.  

 
Schools - At the end of September the projection for school balances is 
£1.894m, which is a reduction of £1.644m on the balances brought forward 
from 2014/15 (£3.538m). Monitoring reports have been submitted to finance 
detailing the risks and assumptions that have informed the projections and 
summaries of plans in place for using reserves and/or dealing with projected 
deficits. The non-delegated budget is currently projected to overspend by £68k 
due to additional costs related to the expansion of Broadband in Schools. It is 
hoped this overspend will be offset by a reduction in historic pension costs, 
although these figures will not be known until the end of the financial year. 
 
Corporate – It is still currently projected that there will be an underspend on 
Corporate budgets of £0.454m. The current assumption is that corporate 
underspends will be used to support the delivery of the Corporate Plan. A 
review of corporate contingencies, provisions and reserves will be completed 
in the coming weeks and reported on in November. 
 
Other Service Risks / Assumptions – Although other services are currently 
projected to break even there are a number of risks and assumptions that will 
be monitored closely over the coming months and reported to Members.  
 
Corporate Plan cash reserves at the beginning of 2015/16 are £17.413m. 
Allowing for projected funding and expenditure during the year, the Corporate 
Plan reserve at the end of the year is estimated to be £4.231m.  
 
PFI Contract Termination Update 
As reported to Cabinet in May 2015, under the terms of the PFI Project 
Agreement covering County Hall, Ruthin Town Hall and the Corporate Store, 
the council issued a formal notice to terminate the Agreement on 14th May.  
The buildings are already on the council’s balance sheet and the council paid 
an annual charge (called a unitary charge) covering maintenance, utilities and 
financing costs totalling £2.6m per year. In order to save money, the council 
elected to terminate the PFI Agreement fifteen years early – the agreement 
was due to expire in 2029. Under the terms of the Agreement, termination 
triggered a compensation payment to the PFI counterparty and a termination 
account was submitted to the council on 7th September. The compensation 
calculation was within the boundaries of the estimate that informed the original 
business case to terminate, but the council disagreed with elements of it and 
over several weeks has successfully negotiated a reduction of £1.2m. The 
final elements of the compensation sum were agreed on 14th October 2015 
and resulted in a total compensation sum of £16.9m. In addition to this, fees of 
£34k were incurred on specialist support and specific legal and tax advice. 

Crucially, terminating the PFI Agreement provides better value for money for 
the council. It is similar to repaying a mortgage or loan agreement early - the 
compensation paid is essentially paying a lump sum in lieu of the payments 
that would have been made over the remaining term of the contract. The key 
issue though is that by paying this lump sum ‘in advance’, the council has both 

Page 457



  

saved and avoided contractually committed costs of at least £12m over the 
next 15 years.  

This is because the council is able to finance the termination costs and 
maintain the buildings at a lower cost than the unitary charge.  In respect of 
the annual revenue budget, the move realises annual savings of £300k 
immediately by replacing the financing charge with a lower borrowing cost (as 
agreed as part of the 2015/16 budget savings) and will help contribute to 
further savings as part of a wider review of the council’s capital financing 
budget. It will also provide the council with full control of the buildings, which 
under the PFI Agreement, had costly restrictions imposed, such as on the 
numbers of people based in the building, use of the car park and prescribed 
(costly) maintenance arrangements. Therefore, further budget savings should 
be generated through more cost effective management of the buildings and 
better value procurement of utilities and insurance. It also provides the 
opportunity to facilitate wider efficiencies in future through possible further 
consolidation of the council’s office accommodation buildings.   

A further, detailed report will be presented to the Corporate Governance 
Committee in November. 
 
A summary of the council’s Capital Plan is enclosed as Appendix 3. The 
approved general capital plan is £47.4m with expenditure to date of £17.2m. 
Also included within Appendix 2 is the proposed expenditure of £26.6m on the 
Corporate Plan. Appendix 4 provides an update on the major projects 
included in the Capital Plan.  

  
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA). The latest revenue position assumes 
an increase in balances at year end of £150k compared to a budgeted 
increase of £168k. HRA balances are forecast to be £2.002m at the end of the 
year. The Capital budget of £7.8m is allocated across Repairs and 
Maintenance   planned repairs (£7.2m), Environmental Improvements (£0.5m) 
and an IT project (£150k). 
 
Treasury Management – At the end of September the council’s borrowing 
totalled £189.442m at an average rate of 4.9%. Investment balances were 
£11.5m at an average rate of 0.63%.  

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?   
 
A detailed impact assessment was produced as part of the budget setting 
process and was reported to Council in December 2014.  

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  

 
In addition to regular reports to the Corporate Governance Committee, the 
budget process has been considered by CET, SLT, Cabinet Briefing and 
Council Briefing meetings. Specific proposals were reviewed by scrutiny 
committees.  There were ten budget workshops held with elected members to 
examine service budgets and consider the budget proposals. 

Page 458



  

 
There was a public engagement exercise to consider the impact of budget 
proposals and there are ongoing discussions between some of the county 
council's services and some Town councils. The council has consulted its 
partners through the joint Local Service Board and specific discussions have 
taken place with the Police.  

  

All members of staff were kept informed about the budget setting process and 
affected staff have been or will be fully consulted, in accordance with the 
council's HR policies and procedures. Trade Unions have been consulted 
through Local Joint Consultative Committee.  

 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

It is important that services continue to manage budgets prudently and that 
any in-year surpluses are considered in the context of the medium-term 
financial position, particularly given the scale of budget reductions required 
over the coming two or three years.  

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 
 This is the most challenging financial period the council has faced and failure 

to deliver the agreed budget strategy will put further pressure on services in 
the current and future financial years. Effective budget monitoring and control 
will help ensure that the financial strategy is achieved. 

  
11. Power to make the Decision 
 
 Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 

1972 to make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial 
affairs.   

Page 459



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Net Budget Variance

Sep-15 2014/15 Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Net Previous 

Report

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

Communication, Marketing & Leisure 5,727 10,576 -6,738 3,838 10,637 -6,799 3,838 61 -61 0 0.00% 0

Customers & Education Support 2,454 7,334 -1,988 5,346 7,681 -2,335 5,346 347 -347 0 0.00% 0

School Improvement & Inclusion 4,555 15,419 -11,518 3,901 15,851 -11,950 3,901 432 -432 0 0.00% 0

Business Improvement & Modernisation 3,734 5,790 -1,737 4,053 5,798 -1,825 3,973 8 -88 -80 -1.97% 0

Legal, HR & Democratic Services 2,395 3,475 -1,061 2,414 3,385 -971 2,414 -90 90 0 0.00% 0

Finance & Assets 8,354 10,842 -4,257 6,585 10,839 -4,260 6,579 -3 -3 -6 -0.09% -2 

Highways & Environmental Services 18,829 34,377 -16,188 18,189 34,593 -16,404 18,189 216 -216 0 0.00% 0

Planning & Public Protection 2,480 3,798 -1,433 2,365 3,926 -1,626 2,300 128 -193 -65 -2.75% -50 

Community Support Services 32,269 46,106 -14,324 31,782 46,506 -14,724 31,782 400 -400 0 0.00% 0

Economic & Business Development 1,421 877 -80 797 1,037 -240 797 160 -160 0 0.00% 0

Children's Services 8,419 10,495 -2,199 8,296 10,636 -2,211 8,425 141 -12 129 1.55% 126

Total Services 90,637 149,089 -61,523 87,566 150,889 -63,345 87,544 1,800 -1,822 -22 -0.03% 74

Corporate 16,142 45,585 -29,007 16,578 45,131 -29,007 16,124 -454 0 -454 -2.74% -454 

Precepts & Levies 4,342 4,361 0 4,361 4,361 0 4,361 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Capital Financing 13,330 12,945 0 12,945 12,945 0 12,945 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Total Corporate 33,814 62,891 -29,007 33,884 62,437 -29,007 33,430 -454 0 -454 -1.34% -454 

Council Services & Corporate Budget 124,451 211,980 -90,530 121,450 213,326 -92,352 120,974 1,346 -1,822 -476 -0.39% -380 

Schools & Non-delegated School Budgets 63,731 73,806 -10,500 63,306 74,797 -9,779 65,018 991 721 1,712 2.70% 1,907

Total Council Budget 188,182 285,786 -101,030 184,756 288,123 -102,131 185,992 2,337 -1,101 1,236 0.67% 1,527

Housing Revenue Account -163 13,441 -13,609 -168 13,661 -13,811 -150 220 -202 18 18

Budget 2015/16 Projected Outturn

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16

P
age 461



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 Agreed Savings 2015/16
2015/16

£'000

Highways & Environment

Street Cleansing - reduce activity Achieved 100
Increase Cemetery Charges Achieved 50
Reduce Rights of Way activity Achieved 71
Reduce Road Safety Programme Achieved 50
Reduce Street Lighting Inspections Achieved 5
Introduce Charges for Green Waste Achieved 400

Remove or reduce public transport subsidy Achieved 166

Highways general maintenance review Achieved 125

Reduce grounds maintenance activity Achieved 40

Rationalisation of Countryside Services Achieved 65

Communication, Marketing & Leisure

Reduce spend on recruitment advertising in newspapers Achieved 30
Stop production of paper version of County Voice Achieved 19
Leisure Centres - further increase income and efficiency In Progress 118
Rhyl Pavilion - restructure and introduction of transaction fees Achieved 62
Youth Services - changes to open access programme Achieved 28
Youth Services - staffing structure Achieved 46

Remove subsidy from Scala Prestatyn Achieved 40

Rationalise Tourist Information Centres  - inc. changes to opening hours Achieved 20

Introduce charges for the use of the Drift Park water play area in Rhyl and reduce the level of Lifeguard Cover  on 

the beaches from 2015/16
Achieved 48

Increase income recharge or transfer Denbigh Town Hall Achieved 17

Library Service - modernisation programme (Stage 1 - delete  vacant posts, reduce book fund) Achieved 130

Library Service (Ruthin Craft Centre - reduce subsidy)  Achieved 10

Education Support

Remove historic contingency budgets Achieved 78

Premises Budget - stop facilities management service provided to schools Achieved 70

Clothing Grants - end council support with the option to pay passed to schools Achieved 4

Remission claims  - end council support with the option to pay passed to schools Achieved 34

Governor Support - change the way support is provided Achieved 31

Schools Delegated Budgets

Demography reduction to reflect fall in pupil numbers Achieved 242

Use of Corporate Plan additional funding to meet 1 % protection target Achieved 581

School Inclusion

Review Additional Learning Needs - removal of external chair moderation Achieved 3
Behaviour Support - property savings from moving Project 11 Achieved 3
Specialist equipment - reduce budget to match expenditure Achieved 5

Review Education Social Worker Service Achieved 120

Review Educational Psychology Service Achieved 30

Review of Counselling Service Achieved 100

Reduce Recoupment Budget to match expenditure Achieved 140

School Improvement Services

Regional Consortium Office costs - renegotiate costs Achieved 30

School Library Service - stop the service Achieved 45

Music Service - end the agreement with William Mathias Achieved 103

School improvement discretionary subsidies - remove  to match demand Achieved 141

Outdoor pursuits SLA - involves transferring the cost to schools Achieved 23

Customer Services

Website Advertising - scope for additional income Achieved 10

Rhyl One Stop Shop Review Achieved 100

Finance & Assets

Finance - modernisation and efficiency Achieved 60
Finance - external funding team, removal of base budget Achieved 65
Property - Office Accommodation Rationalisation In Progress 100
Property - management restructure Achieved 80

Reduce the Miscellaneous Property Portfolio In Progress 20

Property School Facilities Management Agreement Achieved 48

Agreed Savings by Service Area
STATUS

Page 463



2015/16

£'000
Agreed Savings by Service Area

STATUS

Revenues & Benefits Commercial Partnership Achieved 80

Corporate 

Capital Financing & PFI Achieved 650
Energy Efficiency - result of lower consumption and price increases Achieved 300
Removal of contingency budgets Achieved 50

Corporate Complaints - provision to be considered as part of the wider corporate review of support/business 

services
Review 40

Business Improvement & Modernisation 

Community Safety Partnership - review contribution Achieved 5
Information Management - service redesign Achieved 50
Corporate Improvement Team (corporate review of support/business services) Review 180
Corporate Project Team - increase external charges Achieved 10
Partnerships & Communities Team Achieved 30
Internal Audit Achieved 75

Legal & Democratic Services

Reduce the Number of Committee Meetings - saving on travel costs Achieved 2

Reduction of Civics budget Achieved 5

Strategic HR

Not replacing Head of Service Achieved 50
Staff Training & Development - greater use of e-learning etc Achieved 15

Adult & Business Services

PARIS - electronic Domiciliary Care Invoices Achieved 37
Receivership Achieved 13
Cefndy Healthcare Achieved 71
Workforce Development Achieved 75
Restructure of Locality Services Achieved 100
Benefits & Welfare Advice Service Review In Progress 200

Children & Family Services

Staffing Budgets - realign to current requirement Achieved 150
ICT Desktop Budget Achieved 10
Young Carers - revised contribution to regional service Achieved 6
Children with Disabilities - reduction to equipment budget to match spend Achieved 10
Adoption support costs Achieved 20
National Youth Advocacy Contract Achieved 10
Child Protection Training Achieved 10

Parental contributions  for services provided for Children with Disabilities Achieved 50

Planning & Public  Protection

Development Management - increase income revenue for pre application advice Achieved 45
Public Protection - closure of Pest Control Service Achieved 95
Pollution Control - review to consider minimum level of provision Achieved 20
Trading Standards - stop providing consumer advice Achieved 45

Housing & Community Development

HRA Recharges - increase costs funded by the Housing Revenue Account Achieved 270

Remove Town & Area Plan Budgets Achieved 356

Reduce Core Project/Development Budget Achieved 159

Reduce staffing budget - deletion of a vacant post Achieved 42

Reduce non-staffing elements throughout the Economic & Business Development Budget Achieved 43

Total Agreed Savings 2015/16 7,285      

£'000 %

6,627 91

658 9

0 0

7,285Total

Summary:

Savings Achieved/Replaced 

Savings In Progress/Being Reviewed

Savings Not Achieved or Deferred and not replaced 

Page 464



Denbighshire County Council  - Capital Plan 2015/16 - 2018/19 APPENDIX  3
Position to end September 2015

General Capital Plan  2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Capital Expenditure

Total Estimated Payments  - General 21,484 688 171 171

Total Estimated Payments  - Corporate Plan 25,006 11,388 5,008 454

Contingency 919 500 500 500

Total 47,409 12,576 5,679 1,125

Capital Financing

1 External Funding 15,700 7,368 7,040 4,792

2 Receipts and Reserves 13,706 5,914 658

3 Prudential Borrowing  18,003 3,399 2,086 438

5 Unallocated Funding (0) (4,105) (4,105) (4,105)

Total Capital Financing 47,409 12,576 5,679 1,125

Corporate Plan  
Revised October 2015 £000s £000s £000s £000s

Approved Capital Expenditure Cefndy Healthcare Investment 140

Extra Care 998

included in above plan Highways Maintenance and bridges 2,881

Feasibility Study - New Ruthin School 6

Feasibility Study - Carreg Emlyn 42

Rhyl High School 17,039 1,935 332

Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy - Dee Valley West Review 4

Bodnant Community School 2,606 277 61

Ysgol Glan Clwyd 1,248 9,176 4,615 454

Faith Based Secondary 42

Estimated Capital Expenditure 1,587 22,801 28,035 15,636

Total Estimated Payments 26,593 34,189 33,043 16,090

Approved Capital Funding External Funding 3,022 2,763 2,435 187

included in above plan Receipts and Reserves 11,007 5,914 658

Prudential Borrowing 11,153 2,711 1,915 267

Estimated Capital Funding External Funding 0 6,217 16,743 11,637

Receipts and Reserves 1,235 1,405 2,151 480

Prudential Borrowing 176 15,179 9,141 3,519

Total Estimated Funding 26,593 34,189 33,043 16,090

P
age 465



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix  4  - Major Capital Projects Update September 2015 

Rhyl Harbour Development 

Total Budget £10.648m 

Expenditure to date £10.537m 

Estimated remaining spend in 2015/16 £  0.111m 

Future Years estimated spend £  Nil 

Funding WG £2.613m; WEFO £6.165m; Sustrans £0.700m: 
RWE £155k; WREN £69k and DCC £0.946m 

Comments Programme 
The accessible board walk route from the harbour to the 
viewing platform and the extension to the viewing 
platform has been completed. Seats have been installed 
at the viewing platform and at a further vantage point. 
The picnic area is complete, and the map and boards for 
the children’s trail have been installed. 
The WREN grant funding claim has been submitted. 
Work is on-going to rectify any remaining defects 
associated with works undertaken at the harbour. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 15/16 £0.227m 

21st Century Schools Programme – Bodnant Community School Extension and 

Refurbishment 

Total Budget £3.441m 

Expenditure to date £1.270m 

Estimated remaining spend in 15/16 £1.833m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.338m 

Funding  WG £1.687m, DCC £1.754 

Comments Bodnant Community School 

This scheme is one of five projects within the Band 
A proposals  for 21st Century Schools 
Programme. 
The project will build 7 classrooms, a new school 
hall and supporting facilities on the current 
Juniors site. This will allow the Infants pupils to 
move to the Juniors site and the school to 
operate on a single site. The Infants site will then 
become surplus to requirements. 
Construction of the roof is underway following 
completion of the blockwork walls. 
A beam signing and time-capsule event is due to 
take place at the school during October. James 
Davies MP and Ann Jones AM, together with local 
members and school governors will be given a tour 
of the construction site. 
The project is running to schedule and within 
budget. 
The project should be delivered in readiness for the 
start of the new school year in September 2016. 
 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 15/16 £2.606m 

Page 467



 

21st Century Schools Programme - Rhyl New School 

Total Budget £24.586m  

Expenditure to date £11.866m 

Estimated remaining spend in 15/16 £10.444m 

Future Years estimated spend £  2.276m 

Funding DCC £12.293m; WG £12.293m 

Comments The project will provide a new school building for Rhyl 
High School to serve up to 1,200 pupils in mainstream 
education whilst also housing approximately 45 pupils 
from Ysgol Tir Morfa, the community special school in 
Rhyl. 
The brickwork is progressing well and installation of the 

feature cladding has commenced. The internal walls 

have been erected and most are now plastered; the first 

coat of paint is going on in some areas. The second fix of 

the mechanical and electrical installation is making good 

progress. 

Some of the flooring has been installed and the fixed 

furniture and fittings installation has commenced. 

Works to create the elevated link between the school 

and the leisure centre are taking place, and the external 

works which have included improvements to the 

entrance at Grange road are underway. 

The works to re-roof and re-clad the leisure centre 

commenced in July are now complete. Works have 

commenced on the design for the new PE classroom 

which will be on the footprint of the squash courts, and 

in the next month the external corridor adjacent to the 

leisure centre will be removed and the cladding to the 

pool hall will commence. 

There have been some legal issues relating to the 

substation which has been a cause for concern; the 

substation has been relocated to avoid/minimise any 

delays. The legal process is taking some time and it is 

possible that the power on date may be delayed; this is 

not expected to affect the handover date. 

The removal of the Japanese Knotweed on land adjacent 

to the school site has commenced; due to the vigorous 

nature of this weed this is being completed through the 

project to protect the school site and in particular the 

all-weather pitch which is closest to this location. 

The new school is still programmed to complete in 

February/March 2016, at which point the pupils will 

transfer to the new school, and the existing school 

buildings will be demolished and the grounds re-instated 

Page 468



to school playing fields. 

The anticipated completion date of the project is August 

2016. 

There is ongoing consultation with key stakeholders 

which includes the neighbours. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 15/16 £17.031m 

Nova Development 

Total Budget £4.472m  

Expenditure to date £3.383m 

Estimated remaining spend in 15/16 £1.075m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.014m 

Funding DCC £4.380m; Other contributions £0.092m 

Comments The refurbishment of Prestatyn Nova Centre 

commenced on 5th January 2015. This scheme includes 

external environmental improvements to improve the 

look of the building as well as the creation of a new 

entrance , reception, 60 station fitness suite, café, retail 

units, three storey soft play structure, multi-purpose 

studios and refurbishment of associated toilets and 

changing areas throughout the complex. The scheme 

has also been extended to include the complete 

refurbishment of the public toilet block to the East of 

the property together with improvements to the 

promenade area. 

Works are progressing well on site with all internal block 

work alterations, formations and internal stud walls now 

complete. Floor coverings are currently being installed 

throughout. Tiling and joinery works are on-going. 

The mechanical and electrical first fix is complete and 

the second/final fix is on-going. 

The works to the sea defence walls are now 50% 

complete. Works to the promenade have started and 

the resin bond will be applied after the sea defence 

walls are completed.  

The soft play structure has now started to be erected 

and the fitness suite equipment will be installed in the 

next few weeks along with the café and restaurant 

furniture. 

Property and Legal Services have finalised the lease with 

OBL Group – consisting of On Board Leisure and Three 

Services Automatics. The company, to be known as TSA 

hospitality will provide the food and beverage offer. The 

company has now agreed the opening hours, menu 

costs, soft play party packages, marketing and 

promotions and calendar of events. Both Leisure 

Page 469



Services and TSA hospitality are now recruiting for a 

number of positions. 

The website holding page has now been launched which 

is supported by a social media campaign. The full 

website will be launched two weeks before the 

attraction opens to the public. 

The temporary public toilets that were installed near 

Beach Road West in May 2015 have now been removed. 

The Council remains on course to take partial hand over 

of the building on 2nd November 2015, with full hand 

over from 16th November 2015. The centre will open 

fully to the public from the 23rd November 2015. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 15/16 £3.400m 

West Rhyl Coastal Development Phase 3 

Total Budget £5.262m  

Expenditure to date £5.112m 

Estimated remaining spend in 15/16 £0.150m 

Future Years estimated spend £Nil 

Funding DCC £0.577m; WG/WEFO £4.346m; WG £0.199m; 
Town Plans/Town Council £0.140m 

Comments This coastal defence scheme is the final phase of works 

designed to protect 2,700 properties from coastal 

flooding. 

The coastal defence works are now operationally 

complete. Remaining works will be completed by the 

end of October 2015.  

Removal of contaminated fill from Phase’s 1 & 2 is 

complete. 

Surfacing to all levels completed. Anti- skid to be applied 

to upper promenade and viewing platforms to 

commence mid-October. 

Street lighting to the works is complete. 

Connecting footpaths are complete. 

Landscaping/Fill is complete, along with seeding of 

grass. 

Landscaping and setting out of the extension to the play 

area is complete, awaiting delivery of play equipment 

and soft surfacing. 

Reinstatement of laybys/parking bays is complete; white 

lining to commence early October. 

Groyne repairs will commence mid-October. Awaiting 

delivery of materials from a sustainable source. 

Further works due for completion include: 

Coatech surfacing to upper promenade/viewing 

platform; tie in works at east end; handrails to ramps, 

Page 470



steps and east end; placement of 12 No.benches, 26 

No.bins; 2 No. Lecterns; 1 No. Flagpole and 10 No. cycle 

racks. 

Organise and undertake internal Health and Safety audit 

upon completion of works and rectify any points raised. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 15/16 £2.230m 

 

Page 471



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

 
 
 

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

24 November 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Corporate Plan Report To update Cabinet on 
delivery of the Corporate 
Plan 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

15 December 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Corporate Plan Performance 
Report 2015/16 Q2 

To consider progress against 
the Corporate Plan 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Liz Grieve 

 3 Supporting People Local 
Commissioning Plan 

To approve the Supporting 
People Local Commissioning 
Plan 2016-19 for submission 
to the North Wales Regional 
Collaborative Committee 

Yes Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Sophie Haworth-Booth 

 4 Former North Wales Hospital, 
Denbigh - Compulsory 

Tbc Tbc Graham Boase 

P
age 473

A
genda Item

 9



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

Purchase Order 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

12 January 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

      

16 February 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

29 March 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Corporate Plan Performance 
Report 2015/16 Q3 

To consider progress against 
the Corporate Plan 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Liz Grieve 

P
age 474



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

26 April 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill / 
Richard Weigh 

 2 Future of Adult Provider 
Services 

To consider the future of 
adult provider services. 

Yes Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Phil Gilroy / Holly 
Evans 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

October 13 October November 10 November December 1 December 
 
Updated 09/10/15 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 475



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES
	5 PROPOSAL TO CLOSE YSGOL LLANFAIR DC AND YSGOL PENTRECELYN AS OF THE 31 AUGUST 2017 AND FOR THE DIOCESE OF ST. ASAPH TO OPEN A NEW DUAL-STREAM CATEGORY 2, CHURCH IN WALES VOLUNTARY CONTROLLED PRIMARY SCHOOL FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017
	YSGOL LLANFAIR PENTRECELYN - APP 1
	YSGOL LLANFAIR PENTRECELYN - APP 2
	YSGOL LLANFAIR PENTRECELYN - APP 3
	YSGOL LLANFAIR PENTRECELYN - APP 4
	YSGOL LLANFAIR PENTRECELYN - APP 5
	YSGOL LLANFAIR PENTRECELYN - APP 6
	YSGOL LLANFAIR PENTRECELYN - APP 7
	YSGOL LLANFAIR PENTRECELYN - APP 8

	6 PROPOSED CLOSURE OF YSGOL LLANBEDR DC
	YSGOL LLANBEDR - APP 1
	YSGOL LLANBEDR - APP 2
	YSGOL LLANBEDR - APP 3

	7 DRAFT LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 2015: LACK OF A 5-YEAR SUPPLY OF READILY DEVELOPABLE HOUSING LAND
	LDP REPORT - APPENDICES

	8 FINANCE REPORT
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 1
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 2
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 3
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 4

	9 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME



